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Part One

	A short time ago I was discussing something that a friend stated she felt about Bowie, and that was that she felt he was ashamed of his middle class upbringing. I will admit that I am no expert on the subject, only having learned  about this class system from what she told me, and an employee of mine who is from London originally. Her argument was that he disguises parts of his past and many times the accent is "faked" to be that of a higher class Englishman. I have to take her at her word on the accent as she is British and although a times I can hear a difference in them, I could not tell their origins or the difference between upper, lower or I believe they call it the "working" class. I had never thought of this before and I did at first disagree because why would Bowie care about class distinction when he is one of the wealthiest entertainers in the world,  worth an estimated 975 million in the year 2000, and he no longer resides in Britain as of 1976. She did have a valid point though when she reiterated his re writing of his past. That is one thing Bowie has done and continues to do to this day. He has gone from character to character, the professional actor who uses his public life as his stage to portray what he wishes his audience to believe. David Bowie is a puzzle that mixes fact with fantasy in each of his self created personas. What is real and what is fabricated. We may have never seen the so called "real" David Bowie and in the vast personalities of the characters he created there may not be a "real" Bowie anymore. As far as the "real" person, well, he may now only be a small fragment intertwined with the self created fantasy of an invented personality that we know and believe to be the actual David Bowie. 

Trying to sort out what is real and what is fabricated either by the media or Bowie himself is not an easy task as both are quite unreliable. The media often writes stories which are far from accurate, although they are not to blame all the time. The media becomes unwilling victims to the very source of their information which quite often is Bowie himself. I wonder sometimes how after all of these years the press still laps up every word out of Bowie's mouth and dutifully reports it as fact. Why haven't they learned by this time that Bowie is a classic manipulator when it comes to the media and he has a solid reputation of either bending, or going as far as inventing, the truth. You would think that they would at least check their facts before printing a news article but they don't. It is no wonder that people can't understand Bowie if they rely on the accuracy of the media. I remember a classic Bowie move sometime around 1988. I opened the news paper one day and in the Entertainment section there was a picture of Bowie grinning ear to ear with his arm around Melissa Hurley who was a dancer on the Glass Spider Tour. The caption under the photo read, "BOWIE WEDS."  The accompanying article of several lines stated that Bowie had married Melissa Hurley in a brief ceremony the previous day. It was not true. Nice one Dave. 

It is difficult to really know when the characters Bowie invented actually started. If one looks back to the late sixties some truths can be sifted out but his childhood is up to speculation and I have read various accounts which all claim to be true.  The best one can do is attempt to find what is fairly common between these accounts and those are probably as close to the truth as you will likely get. This method has revealed a number of things about  how Bowie was influenced while growing up.  Bowie's adolescence seemed no worse, or better perhaps, that most.  He was much closer to his father and his half brother Terry than he was to his mother although the relationship to his mother improved drastically in the eighties. He was asked in 1975 about the relationship with his mother in a live interview on The Dick Cavett Show and it seemed that he was blind sided by the question and he looked terribly uncomfortable that Cavett asked it. With an embarrassed look on his face his reply was, "We have an understanding." Cavett changed the line of questioning. Bowie admired his father as a role model and he greatly respected his advice. He used this advice even when it came to his career as he would often make his manager at the time, Kenneth Pitt, get his father's approval on various business matters. His fathers death from pneumonia in 1968 was particularly hard on Bowie.  It was his older half brother Terry however that had the most impact on David. His influence can't be underestimated, going so far as to say that Terry is the sole reason that Bowie took the direction he did in life and became the artist he is. 

The "Alien" personality Bowie has been described as did not develop when he was fourteen years old, however it is safe to say the physical look for this personality did. The "outer space" look came when a schoolmate named George Underwood beat Bowie up rather severely and caused permanent damage to his eye. This changed Bowie's appearance permanently and he spent eight months away from school. While away from school Bowie also made a permanent change which was a result of Terry's influence. During this period David and Terry spent the time together. Terry picked out books for David to read. It was through Terry that Bowie discovered the writings of Jack Keroac and William S Burroughs who both had an influence on his later work. A portion of Bowie's writing style can be directly attributed to the style invented by Burroughs. In addition to this, with Terry's assistance, Bowie obtained an education on the arts, music, foreign culture and Buddhism which he later adopted for a period. It is a certainty that these eight months changed Bowie for the rest of his life, however the truth concerning his relationship and behavior towards Terry did not always co-incide with Bowie's version. Their relationship was not exactly the way Bowie painted it to be for the media. 

Bowie has stated many times how important an influence Terry was. He said in one interview, "It was Terry who started everything for me." He has described their relationship as "extremely close" and said how much he admired his brother and considered him a mentor. Bowie's feelings about his brother had to have run deep in order to have penned the lyrics found on The Bewlay Brothers, which in my opinion are as profound as anything I have ever read. I do not think that too many Bowie fans would argue that point.  The personality Bowie showed to the media right into the eighties was a caring younger brother.  Terry, who was now living in a psychiatric hospital, had seen David  only once between 1975 and 1985 and that was after his second suicide attempt in 1982. Bowie had broken a promise to financially support his brother in a decent care facility as well as a commitment to visit him. The visit in 1982 was prompted after one of Bowie's aunts spouted off to the media about the lack of support Bowie gave to his family, naming his mother Peggy and Terry especially. His mother did say that he bought her an expensive fur coat adding that on her pension she could not afford to go anywhere to wear it. After this appeared in the media Bowie made good on his promise. Terry was successful in ending his own life in 1985 and although Bowie still remarks on their closeness he did not attend the funeral. I am aware that some people are not emotionally able to deal with funerals but this is not the truth in Bowie's case as he did attend Marc Bolan's. It is surprising that he did not attend his brother's though or Mick Ronson's. 

Bowie has said that he fell into the music industry, " Quite by accident," and "Only to make some cash." He has insisted that he graduated from art school and his talent is in painting, with music really nothing more that a sideline. The art school graduate is another of Bowie's inventions. Bromley Technical is not what one would qualify as an "art" school although Bowie did study art along with woodworking and he worked for six months in an advertising agency as a commercial artist. This however does not qualify one to be a "painter" as he quit this job to pursue music as a career. Bowie the painter and art critic did not emerge until much later. This character Bowie maintains came from a family who was, "Involved in the theater," which alluded of course to the talent which ran through the family.  It was Bowie's father actually who was involved in the theater, but not in a way Bowie would have you believe and the story does not involve any wealth of talent coming from the Jones family. His fathers first wife was the daughter of an Irish circus clown and an Italian acrobat. She was a singer who accompanied herself on piano  in nightclubs under the name of The Viennese Nightingale. Her real name was Hilda. Jones took the better part of a three thousand pound inheritance, quite a sum in 1933, and financed a touring review  called 11:30 p.m. Saturday Night. This revue of course starred Hilda. The touring revue lasted all of two weeks before closing for good. Jones bought a bar with the remainder of the money which also turned into something of a disaster as well. So much for this character of Bowie's coming from a rich theatrical background. 

David Bowie signs a five year management deal on April 25, 1967 with Kenneth Pitt. This period of Bowie's life seems to be relatively free of any self invented personalities. Bowie it seems was quite content with being himself during this period up until 1971. Artistically he had grown in many ways. He was writing music and had a respectable number of recordings to his name including Space Oddity. He had overseen his Beckenham Arts Lab, experimented with mime under the renowned Lindsay Kemp as well as done a few acting parts including the Luv Ice Cream television commercial. Money did not seem to be much of a problem as Kemp seemed quite willing to finance Bowie although they did not agree on which direction Bowie should take his music and this eventually became a problem. 

In the late sixties Eastern Religions were all the rage. The Beatles had taken a well publicized trip to a spiritual retreat in India. Books by a self proclaimed Tibetan monk named Lobsang Rampa would sell as soon as they hit the shelves.  The writings by gurus such as Carlos Castaneda, who were spiritually heightened my the ingesting of the Mexican Shaman's sacred psilocybin mushrooms were hot sellers too.  Spiritual awareness from sources other than the mainstream religions was "hip." Bowie was studying Buddhism, another religious fad of the day for most, however to Bowie it was not a social statement. He was quite serious about it. 

The study of Buddhism was not done by a Bowie creation to attract attention. It was a serious interest kindled by Terry and further fuelled by Tony Visconti. Bowie was studying under a Tibetan monk named Youngdong Rimpoche. Songs such as Karma Man reflected his belief and Bowie has stated that he spent upwards of eighteen months in a Scottish monastery and according to Pitt this is quite possible as he lost touch with Bowie, on and off over the same time period. Bowie has said he came close to taking his novice vows and shaving his head, an act which he was convinced not to do by Lindsay Kemp. True to form though, often the truth is just not quite enough, so Bowie tends to add a little flair to a story. Bowie has said that during this period he was living on two simple meals a day and sleeping upright in a wooden box. Those close to David at the time find this to be pushing things a little. 

Bowie, it seems to me anyway by the many interviews I have read over the last three decades, takes almost all of the credit for the creation of his characters. He is always ready to explain how he invented them and how he "killed them off" when it was time to change into the next costume and assume the next role. Only a fool would deny Bowie's creativity, his ability to set a trend and his ability to lead.  I am not taking any of this away from Bowie however the reality is that he had a lot of input along the way from others who do not get the credit they deserve. In a few circumstances they had far more to do with the creation of certain personalities than Bowie did. This is evident in the early seventies. 

Up until now it was fairly easy to separate what was Bowie and what was an invention of his. This line however started to become quite blurred in 1970. This is the same year in which two people became part of David Bowie's life  and whose combined influences on him changed him forever. This was the year that Bowie married Angela Barnett and the year he met Tony Defries who would later become his manager.  Looking at Bowie's life so far one could say that it was fairly tame. Many give Bowie credit for being outrageous but it is easy to see that he really, at least up until now, was not. The outrageousness came into his life actually. It was brought by both Angela and Defries and at times their ideas dwarfed Bowie. One thing for sure was, the circus was about to begin. 

A good indication as to what Bowie's new wife would be contributing to his various images was felt around the end of 1970 shortly before the release of The Man Who Sold The World. David at first protested but was convinced enough by Angela to be photographed in the new dress she purchased for him when she explained that, "It was after all, a man's dress."  This move caused the cover to be rejected by Mercury Records for the North American market. Angela was probably unaware at the time but the character that she created wearing a dress and posing with a deck of cards on a lounge would be branded a "Transvestite" in America. Unfortunately no radio station in America was prepared at the time to broadcast any record made by "one of those." 

On the first day of August 1971 Tony Defries formally enters Bowie's life with a signed management contract. Defries would almost immediately contribute to the invented Bowie with a suggestion that would haunt Bowie for decades to come. Defries himself is viewed by many Bowie fans as a character himself. The character that many Bowie fans pin on him is  that of a blood sucking leach who took advantage of Bowie and did nothing more than to rob him  blind. I do not share this opinion and I believe that those fans who view Defries this way do not understand the situation at the time and have failed to properly assess the situation Bowie was in. Many of these fans are upset because Bowie got a raw deal. Few stop to realize that they owe Defries because there is a good chance that if he did not enter the picture they probably never would have heard the music of David Bowie, as his career would have ended before the release of Ziggy Stardust. People are too busy condemning Defries to see what he did that was in Bowie's favour. He pulled off nothing short of a miracle. 

Tony Defries is entitled to a large percentage of the credit for the development of the characters Bowie became for the next four to five years.  It is important to take a close look at what actually happened over this period to get a proper understanding of the extent to which Defries' affected Bowie's life.  It is worth noting that it was not Defries who was soliciting Bowie to become his client, it was in fact the other way around and Bowie had a reason for taking this action. It only requires a brief look at Bowie's career under the management of Kenneth Pitt to come to the same realization which Bowie did at the time.  Except on a few occasions his career had not blossomed under Pitt and his latest release, The Man Who Sold The World, was yet another dismal failure at attracting a large enough audience to help Bowie's career.  Bowie went to the States on a promotional tour to support the release of the album and to visit the top brass at Mercury. The trip was also designed so Bowie had the opportunity to introduce himself to the executives from the other major record labels as well. The fact remained though that Bowie was unlikely to succeed with Pitt at the helm and to Bowie this was painfully obvious. There was no choice, either he find a new manager or stay where he was and fade into oblivion.  His career at this point was close to being over. 

To those who think that Defries harmed Bowie have no valid argument until they can find another set of answers to these questions, and I have yet to see any.  Your personal feelings on the contract and the percentage splits involved are not relevant in this case as the question is not if the terms of the contract are fair. The question is if Defries saved Bowie's career. As I have already said it was Bowie who initially made contact with Defries.  The first question that comes to mind is why Bowie, with all of his talent,  even needed to have a manager. He did quite well on his own from 1976 onward. The answer to that is simple. First of all Bowie wound never have made it on is own because it takes money to finance a career in the music industry and to put it bluntly Bowie had none. He owed Ken Pitt.  In all fairness though Bowie did try once to manage himself before this and the effort was financed by a two hundred pound loan he got from Pitt. The attempt failed and there would be no more loans again with which to try.  Although having been a recording artist for some time Bowie lacked the business experience and the contacts needed within the industry as well to make a go of it on his own. One may wonder why Bowie was focused on obtaining the services of Defries and where all of the other possible investors were at this time? Logic dictates that with the size of the recording industry at the time in England there should have  been several management organizations willing to have David Bowie under contract? Usually a bidding war between labels arises when an artist becomes available to sign. The answer here is a straight matter of common business sense and has to do with Bowie's worth as a recording artist to any major label. Strictly speaking Bowie was not worth signing for several reasons.  Based on his past history there was no reason to believe that there should ever be an expectation of any profit generated through his sales.  The proof of this is It is true that the last album made it into the top ten  in several American cities but Bowie's albums were in no way  consistent enough sellers to warrant a financial commitment. There was no shortage of bands around who would be worth taking a risk on. There was also the general consensus that if he hadn't made it by now, the chances are he never would. There was a couple of more factors here as well which would further dissuade a label from signing Bowie. He was still under contract to deliver one more album to Mercury meaning that someone would have to buy out the remainder of Bowie's contract valued at over $17,000.00.  To put this all in perspective the scenario was this. To retain Bowie on their roster of artists a label would first be required to pay Mercury Records the tidy sum of $17,884.41 to get David released from his obligations and in all probability have to pay something to Kenneth Pitt. Bowie would have to be paid something when he signed on as well as retainers periodically to cover his daily expenses. The costs involved for the recording and manufacturing of Bowie's first recording would have to be paid up front.  With all this done there still remained the costs to market the product and there were no guarantees that there would be sufficient airplay, or even a market, to sell enough records to recoup the initial costs, let alone make a profit.  There was no one willing to spend this kind of money on an artist who had never once made any profit for his management company, instead putting them into debt. Bowie was nothing more than a liability and for this reason no one was interested in signing him. If Bowie had no label to finance him that meant the end. Tony Defries was the ONLY ONE willing to take a chance and invest in Bowie so I find it difficult to understand why he is despised when in fact he rescued Bowie's career when no one else would. How many Bowie fans would have felt sorry for Defries if David failed to make it and he lost all of his investment? I thought so, and that is pretty one sided thinking. Just two more quick things I wish to add. I am aware of the details of Bowie's contracts he signed with Defries, MainMan, Gem and Chrysalis and so I know that the percentages weighed heavily on the side of Defries. One has to remember that Bowie was an extremely HIGH RISK investment and the probability  was quite high that Defries would lose his money. I think it is fair, and it is standard business practice when it comes to investing, that a high risk investment demands a higher rate of return and Bowie would not have suffered any drastic financial loss if the venture failed. It was Defries, not Bowie, who took on the risk. The last thing is that no one FORCED Bowie to sign the contract, he could have walked away. 

On May 28th, 1971 Bowie enters the role of a father when his son is born. Over the period of the making of The Man Who Sold The World and Hunky Dory Bowie the musician experimented with what many musicians experiment with having been smoking a considerable amount of hash and he admittedly tried heroin. The heroin was tried mostly to say he had done it and he never tried it again as it scared him enough that he warned others against even trying. Visconti stated that The Man Who Sold The World is more of a Ronson/Visconti effort than one by Bowie as they did almost all of the final mixing and the finishing touches needed before it was given to the record company. Bowie was difficult to get hold of to drag into the studio and Visconti blames this on smoking too much dope. Thankfully, for Visconti's  sake anyway,  this was a short lived experiment. 

On December 17, 1971, RCA,  which is now his new label courtesy of Defries, releases Hunky Dory. This is truly one of Bowie's most brilliant albums but that was not realized at the time of its release. Bowie had started  to record Hunky Dory in July and there was studio time booked right through until mid January of 1972. The reason for this is that they were also laying down the tracks for The Rise And Fall Of Ziggy Stardust And The Spiders From Mars at the same time. Ziggy was scheduled for release in the early summer of 1972. 

The characters were also scheduled for release. The first one was quite unique as it did not come into being by Bowie's hand alone, it was a group effort. 

To be continued......... 
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Part Two

Unlike Instant Karma there is no "instant salvation,"  especially if one is attempting to resurrect a career that was in the state that Bowie's was shortly after the release of Hunky Dory. This state is best described as dismal. One of the problems that occurred between Kenneth Pitt and Bowie was that neither could agree on what direction Bowie should go with his music and therefore lacked a plan.  Without the know how it is easy to see why Bowie was in the position he was in. He had not had a hit in years and it didn't take long to realize that Hunky Dory was not about to give them one either. Bowie was out of the media spotlight as there was nothing worth writing about where he was concerned and being out of the press results in certain death for the career of a celebrity. Defries had a major problem  on his hands in January of 1972. Between February and March a fourteen date tour  of the UK had been lined up to promote Hunky Dory and the way it looked at the time it would have to be cancelled. The problem was that there were not enough tickets selling to even cover expenses. It was time to face the cold hard fact that David Bowie had no audience. Defries had no choice, he had to get rid of this David Bowie. It was the only way out. 

Tony Defries, unlike the previous manager, had a plan. Since there was little interest in this David Bowie a new one would have to be invented that would attract an audience. Defries knew that people are gullible, they believe what they see, even if what they see is staged. Perception was far more important than truth. The idea that Defries had to market Bowie was brilliantly simple.  There is an infatuation people have about celebrities, the public adores them and will easily part with their money to have a piece of them. They will buy their music, see their films and attend their performances.  The media will fuel this infatuation by elevating them to the status of Deities. People believe what the media tells them and all Defries reasoned he had to do was get the media to announce that David Bowie was indeed a star.  If Bowie was proclaimed to be a star by the press then the audiences will come. Easy. 

Perception. Perception is everything and this is why the old Bowie must die, and so he did. The death was swift.  The character which eventually replaced the former Bowie did not develop overnight, it was more like a metamorphosis, it developed over time. Every aspect concerning the image of this creature was manufactured, with not one detail overlooked, and like any theater production, the players must have costumes. It was known as "Unisex" in the early seventies and it was a fashion trend of androgyny. Gone were the "his" and "hers." Clothes could be worn by both men and women and hair could be short or long on either sex. To the average person this trend was outrageous enough and to get the attention Defries wanted it would be necessary to go even further. They would have to create a character that would be even more outrageous. They had to shock even the Unisex Generation. This character would eventually grow to become known as Ziggy Stardust. Many believe that Ziggy was Bowie's own creation and this is not the case at all. Of course Bowie does nothing to dispel this myth and takes all the credit. Bowie may have conjured up the idea of the persona of Ziggy, but in reality  he had little to do with the actual physical development of him. The Ziggy look was not Bowie's idea. 

Unlike Pitt, who would often succumb to David's wishes, Defries was firmly in control. The "man's" dress Angie procured for David came from Mr. Fish, who also designed the dress Mick Jagger wore at the tribute concert for Brian Jones at Hyde Park. There would be no more store bought clothes because David must be an original.  David must have his clothing custom made and so Defries put clothing designer Freddi Buretti on the payroll.  Sometime later designer Kansai Yamamoto was also added to the payroll on  Bowie's insistence. Bowie was extremely interested in Japanese Kabuki theater where all of the acting roles are portrayed by men. Many of Bowie's stage costumes that Yamamoto designed were based on the costumes from Kabuki theater. One of Defries rules, which was strictly enforced, was that Bowie was not to be seen in public wearing anything other than one of his costumes. It was not sufficient either to just outfit Bowie. To enhance appearances Defries had clothes made for those who were likely to be seen in public with David. Defries' trademark apparel, was a full length coat made from racoon pelts which he was seen wearing in the summer as well as winter. 

There was one person who was around Bowie at this time who had no boundaries when it comes to the outrageous, and was Angie.  She had a great deal of input and her ideas contributed far more to the physical appearance than most are willing to admit. Bowie was still sporting the Greta Garbo look with the long wavy hair that adorns the front cover of Hunky Dory. Angie decided that this style had to be upgraded.  Bowie was not in favour of having his hair cut, especially short, which is what Angie's hairstylist recommended because she said that long hair was boring since everyone had it. The "Ziggy" cut was a combination of three different styles that Angie and her stylist chose out of some French editions of Vogue magazine. When she was finished it was still not quite radical enough in Angie's opinion and when the thought came to dye it a luminous colour the stylist remembered a German brand which went by the name Red Hot Red. When Defries saw this new look he was quite pleased and referred to it as "marketable.” As drastic as these changes may have been though they still fell far short of anything that the press would find interesting enough to write about.  There was nothing about David Bowie that was worth reporting which brought him another day close to anonymity. 

Everyone knew that the press had to be fed something that would get David noticed and his music wasn't doing it. An interview had been scheduled with Melody Maker magazine for Bowie to discuss Hunky Dory as well as the upcoming tour. Bowie, Defries and Angie sat down together shortly before the interview discussing how it should be handled to get the best coverage. They shared ideas with each other and there was one particular idea that Angie had which caught the attention of Defries. "Tell them you're gay," she said. Defries loved it, the same could not be said for David. Bowie acquiesced in the end and during the interview he dropped the bombshell with these words, "I'm gay and I always have been, even when I was David Jones." This lie would effect Bowie for the rest of his life, and it is a lie. I am not going to start on a debate about Bowie's sexuality because as far as I am concerned too much time has  already been devoted to it. I am interested in Bowie because of his talent and his sexuality really has no bearing on his work. I will admit however that I do not like to see things printed on Bowie that claim to be the truth,  yet fail to provide anything in the way of evidence to support the claims made in the article. This topic is one of them. 

What I will say however is in the three decades that I have been following the career of David Bowie I have not seen one bit of credible evidence to support the claim that what he said to Melody Maker is the truth. I repeat, not one single piece of credible evidence. Now, some may argue that because Bowie said it then that is enough to say the statement is true. I respond to that by saying that Bowie is not credible. I can say that with impunity because if you believe what Bowie says is credible then I hope you enjoyed the last concert he ever did in July of 1972. I imagine you voted for him to be Prime Minister of England when he ran as a Fascist, attended his marriage to Melissa Hurley and attended the play he wrote on the life of Goebbels. If you still maintain that he is credible then you may wish to know that he admitted  in an interview in 1983 that the gay statement to Melody Maker was a lie, and he went on to say that it was the biggest mistake he ever made. So, if you believe Bowie then you have to believe that statement is true as well. Backstage Passes was authored by Angela and claims to be an "inside look" at the life of Bowie. I have read it and it is better described as a self serving attempt to make a buck with a hard cover edition of something akin to The National Enquirer or The Daily Mirror.  Let loose on her own Angie is best described as a "wing nut" and  that is one of the reasons that Bowie had a seven year gag order placed on her as one of the terms in their divorce settlement. Any fool can figure out that once someone writes a book they have to sell it. For Angela what better way is there than to run around and appear on any talk show desperate enough to have her as a guest and tell people that Bowie and Mick Jagger slept together. Of course she is the only witness to this event. One read of her "inside look" at the life of Bowie will put a swift end to any notion that she is credible. 

Bowie has been in the public eye since the late sixties and in those forty years I find it rather odd that not one photograph exists to support the gay/bisexual assertion. Not one photo in forty years. The photos that do exist happen to show Bowie with rather attractive females. I was contacted by an individual once after an article I posted on this subject who said that I was incorrect and went on to say that he had photos of Bowie and his male "companion." These pictures were allegedly taken at an intimate gathering of friends at a small house party. Now, there is so much garbage written about Bowie that is as about as accurate as what could be termed "collateral damage" and I try my best not to contribute to it. I do my best to write what is accurate and if I can be proven to be incorrect I will write a retraction. Now, I know that this person, for obvious reasons that I agree with, would not send me copies of these pictures so I did not ask. Since however he lived in the States just south of Toronto, and I originally came from that area, I asked if I could send a friend down to see him. What I wanted him to do was to show my friend a copy of one of these pictures and my friend could tell me if indeed the photos proved me to be wrong. Isn't it interesting that when confronted to provide evidence some people disappear rather abruptly. This person did not reply to the four requests that I sent him. One should also know that Bowie's first manager Kenneth Pitt is a homosexual and used to get frustrated that his advances were spurned by Bowie. He got quite jealous at the stream of girls Bowie used to bring home. Those close to Bowie have often scoffed at the suggestion he is gay or bisexual. From my perspective I am going to have to maintain my stance on this topic until someone can prove me wrong and after the passage of thirty years I can't see that happening any time soon. Believe what you want but, I go by the evidence. 

The gay statement made to the writer from Melody Maker could not have worked better even if Defries himself wrote it. The next issue of the magazine was adorned with a photo of Bowie and a lengthy article appeared inside that was titled, "Oh You Pretty Thing." There are no qualifications required to become a celebrity in the public eye. The stature is open to everyone from mass murderers to musicians and that includes "weirdoes." Melody Maker announced in the article that this "weirdo" was going on tour. Since the public can't miss this tickets became hot property. This new character now had an audience. 

I feel sorry for Bowie sometimes because of what was happening to him at this time. I know some of you reading this will think that statement is a very foolish one. Let me explain. Look at what he was thrust into in a very short period of time and some of these things he was made to do that he did not want to. I believe that there must have been periods that he was quite lonely and felt rather helpless. Bowie was rather naive back then and now he basically had no guidance. His father was gone and so was Pitt who had become a surrogate father to David. One thing about Pitt that is honourable is that he really did care about David as a person and genuinely looked out for what he thought were in David's best interests. I can't say this about Defries or anyone else who surrounded Bowie at this time, save Angie. Bowie had no control on his life or on  his work. He was quite helpless as he was expected to do what Defries told him to do. The transition from pauper to star overnight could not have been easy for him. 
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Part Three

If you live long enough in an illusion it will eventually become real. If you are told something enough times by enough people you will believe it. If you live the life of another you will soon become that person. This is how Bowie came to believe that he really was Ziggy Stardust. Ziggy was already a star. 

Ziggy Stardust was released in March of 72 and by this time Defries had created the perfect set for a colossal performance, a performance to make the world believe Ziggy was a star.   The illusion was created by the seemingly endless amounts of money Defries had in his pockets, which later became Bowie's  pockets, unknown to him.  Bowie's starving musician poverty was now replaced by the luxuries afforded those who are rich and famous. Celebrity living. Limousines replaced the tour van, there were clothes from personal designers, a hairstylist, makeup artist, bodyguards and personal assistants. No more cheap hotels. There was new equipment as well, to the tune of fifty thousand dollars, along with roadies to assemble it. Ziggy was given everything and it was all delivered on a platter of gold. 

A small problem still remained however and that was that the world did not know that it had been given a new star to behold.  Now, rather than wait for the public to discover  Ziggy Defries brought the public to Ziggy. He arranged for RCA to pay for several influential writers to be flown to England to be shown music's newest star. They could see first hand just how important Ziggy was. They would see a show and be given a private audience and after flown back home to report that Ziggy, the hottest new sensation, would soon be coming to America and he was not to be missed. The writers believed exactly what they were shown, the performances by the players in Defries play were impeccable. It  worked. 

If you build a house of cards you would be well advised not to open a window, because with even the slightest breeze, your work will be in ruins. It was during this period that Defries built his house of cards, and it was to be called MainMan, the greatest entertainment conglomerate in the world. The conglomerate was financed on forty thousand borrowed dollars from Defries partner in Gem which was the publishing subsidiary of MainMan. In addition there was also another subsidiary, Chrysalis, which owned the master recordings which were sold to RCA.  Defries seemed quite serious about giving MainMan the appearance of a word wide entertainment corporation and this was achieved by adding on a few more "companies" to the roster.  In addition to the British registered MainMan Defries also incorporated another MainMan in the United States. He then registered two additional companies in the States, one to operate on the West Coast and the other on the East Coast. They were given the appropriate names of MainMan East and MainMan West. He opened yet another company in Britain called MainMan Artistes Ltd. which was subsequently followed by MainMan Tokyo. At this time MainMan  was really just another illusion scripted by Defries, and what better way to make it appear legitimate than to staff it with actors. That is exactly what he did. They staff at MainMan were all mostly acting out their roles as very few of the employees at this entertainment conglomerate had any real qualifications for their positions. You got a job at MainMan if you were "bizarre" enough. For now anyway, there were no ill breezes blowing at MainMan. The look of success impressed those on the outside, and nobody on the inside was aware that although they were all being rather well taken care of, it was all on borrowed money. This  illusion would eventually cost Ziggy tremendously. It was the price one pays when they become too naive. Defries had not only fooled those on the outside, but he had equally managed to convince even those close to him that this fantasy world he scripted was in fact a reality.  No one was more convinced than David Bowie. 

Bowie bought in to the whole sham, and who could blame him.  He was being treated like royalty now so there was no reason to believe that he wasn't. How could you expect him to rationalize the fact that he was not a rich celebrity when he is riding in limousines, staying at the finest hotels and having people fawning over him catering to his every whim. In retrospect he should have been paying more attention to the actual business but he was inexperienced and all through his career up until now others always took care of him. He was very trusting and thought Defries was another Kenneth Pitt who would look after his best interests. In reality Defries was more interested in "interest rates" and soon he would start making a small fortune as a currency trader, buying and selling foreign currency with his new found wealth. There was eventually money being made but it sifted through the companies and found its way right into the pockets of Tony Defries. Bowie, in addition to believing that all was what it seemed, also believed that fifty percent of this new "world wide entertainment corporation" was also his. Defries told Bowie that it was all a fifty-fifty split between himself and MainMan. That was the truth. Bowie split all of his earnings with MainMan, however MainMan and all of the other companies were one hundred percent owned by Defries. This Bowie did not realize. Another thing which escaped his attention was that he only received fifty percent of the profits after all of the expenses were paid and it was Bowie who paid all of the expenses. Defries of course also drew a salary, or what he termed a "management fee" for running each company. MainMan was responsible for supporting the artist and their family and providing any staff that would be required to take care of the artists needs as well as office personnel. These costs of course fell under the category of expenses which were paid by Bowie and so did his salary of seventy five dollars ($75.00) a week. Should the revenue not cover the expenses, then the loss would be carried by the artist. Ziggy Stardust by all outward appearances was a rich rock n' roll star but in the real world by the middle of 1972 David Bowie owed MainMan around sixty thousand dollars. 

Ziggy Stardust was a character in isolation. Bowie through most of his life had always had someone around to take care of him, his father, Pitt, Angie and now Defries.  There were certain things that Bowie was unable to do for himself because he never learned due to the fact that these things were taken care of by others. Things were taken care of for him so he really did not bother to question much. He had what he needed so what else mattered, and this type of thinking most certainly led to a false sense of security.  This false security and the fact that Bowie never questioned much was perfect for Defries, by keeping Bowie isolated from what was really going on with MainMan Defries had free reign to do whatever he wished with Bowie and Bowie's money.  Defries had built the perfect illusion and he sold it so well that the actors in it started to become the characters they were playing.  The line between what was real and what was not became a gigantic blur. Bowie believed that he really was Ziggy Stardust and he had got to the point that he told those who interviewed him to address him as such. It would soon be reported that Ziggy Stardust was coming to America. 

Homosexual. You are labeled probably for life if people think you are one, and in early seventy two it was not the best label to have attached to your name. Bowie did not like it. He was however delighted when Defries came up with the idea of Ronson announcing he was gay as well. Apparently at the live shows Ronson was getting a bit too much attention from the girls because he was straight. A gay announcement would fix this. Ronson was playing a character as well, the costumes, makeup and platinum hair were not his idea but he did not mind playing along. He understood Defries' marketing but he now felt that things were getting a wee bit out of control. The picture of Bowie performing simulated fellatio on Ronson's guitar had already been snapped by Mick Rock and Ronson was not very impressed. He regretted it being taken. The problem was that this picture caused quite a bit of embarrassment for him when his mother and friends who lived in Hull saw it. Mick, as a person, was not at all like his "character" was.  The character was outlandish and Mick was not, he was actually quite conservative and ended up doing a lot of explaining to his family to convince them that the Ronno they saw on stage was all an act. Just before going to America Defries wanted Mick to add a new dimension to his character. He told Ronson that they would hold a press conference at which time he can announce that he is also a homosexual. Ronson refused, there was no way that he would cause any further problems at home by doing this. Defries was not one to take no for an answer and pressed Ronson further. Ronson's response was to quit the band and that is exactly what he did. There would be no further discussion. It was a relatively short period of time and prior to the upcoming tour that Defries promised that Ronson could remain straight if he would rejoin the band. This Ronson accepted. 

"I'm bisexual, not homosexual," Bowie told the press on his arrival for the first America tour. The British are more forgiving it seems when it comes to the eccentricities of others. Ziggy received several death threats. The homosexual label was not one that a person should want to carry in America at this period of time and Bowie was trying to either downplay it, or shake it off.  Ziggy, who was to be perceived as a star could very well become Ziggy The Freak.  If his image became "unacceptable" it was quite likely he would fade into obscurity. This "Star" could become more of a side show attraction that people would stare at for awhile out of curiosity and then probably get bored with the whole thing. Defries limited media access to David allowing only the writers he believed would comment more on the talents of Bowie and less on the sexual controversy. In case anyone needed further convincing that Ziggy was indeed a star, then Defries had a plan to prove Ziggy's worth. 

Ziggy's worth, as seen by Defries anyway, could be added up in dollars. Now, these are not dollars made, but dollars spent and it was soon apparent to everyone just how much of a star Ziggy was. As it turned out, no one knew more about how much Ziggy was worth than RCA and the value of Ziggy hit them like a ton of bricks. The advance promotional work done by RCA and MainMan worked well for the most part. The 3,500 seat Cleveland Music Hall was sold out, hopefully a good indication of what was to follow this opening night.  Having the first few shows of the tour do well was not just a wish that Defries had, it was a necessity.  This is because Defries had a rather ingenious method of  of financing the tour because, as it turns out, the whole thing was being funded by cash advances from ticket sales. If sales were poor the result would have been that the tour could not continue, because once again, unlike appearances, there was very little money. As the tour continued it was met along the way with mostly decent reviews although there were some which were less than flattering. The New York Post reported that Bowie lacked "stage presence," which I personally find impossible to believe. The show in Boston was by all accounts spectacular, so spectacular that the papers named Bowie the Judy Garland of rock n' roll. To insure that Ziggy kept believing in the hype,  Defries made sure that any reviews which were critical never reached him. Everything was fine. 

Tickets for a David Bowie performance were rare, and this was not the news Defries wanted to hear. You see, unfortunately what this really meant was that it was rare if anyone bought one. In St. Louis less than one thousand tickets had sold for a venue with a capacity for an audience of ten thousand. Two hundred and fifty seats were sold in Kansas City.  There were two shows scheduled in San Francisco and eight hundred seats for the first show were gone. By the time they got to Los Angeles there was virtually no money left, and even though tickets had sold extremely well for the shows it did not help matters at all. It was now time for Defries to execute his plan and it would be now that RCA would truly learn exactly how much Ziggy was worth. 

The rich and famous stay at The Beverly Hills Hotel when they are in Los Angeles. This is also where forty six artists and employees of MainMan stay when they are broke. Tony Defries checked forty six people into The Beverly Hills Hotel for two weeks with himself and Bowie staying in private bungalows. These were the settings befitting the head of an international entertainment conglomerate and a star as big as Ziggy Stardust. Defries promptly issued instructions that large meals were to be ordered and washed down with ample bottles of champagne. There was a little matter that needed to be dealt with when it was time to check out concerning the hotel bill.  As it turned out the hotel bill for the two week stay was just slightly over one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00). Since Defries did not have any money he simply signed the bill, "RCA Records And Tapes." RCA had money so they could pay, which they did, and I don't believe that they too happy about it at all. In total RCA spent $400,000.00 for Bowie to perform 21 concerts. The total revenue brought in from ticket sales was $114,000.00.  What this meant was that every time Bowie performed RCA lost $20,000.00.  Defries handled this by explaining to RCA that it was time for a world tour and said that they could  be ready to go in about ten weeks. Defries recommended that the tour should start in America. He was serious too. 
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Part Four

I have often contemplated which company was run by the most insane. Was it MainMan or RCA Records And Tapes? I am leaning more towards RCA as what other company would have put up with the internal fortitude of Defries? You had to be fucking crazy to put up with being handed a one hundred thousand dollar hotel bill you did not authorize and in addition to that suffer an additional loss on Bowie of a few more hundred thousand dollars. The next tour  included an RCA accountant on staff to watch over expenses. The hotels became less expensive and room service as well as the hiring of limousines was exclusive to Bowie, and not forty six others. It wasn't just Bowie and Defries that tried the patience of RCA, but as it would turn out later Iggy and Lou Reed also became a handful.  I am sure that sedatives were an item within easy grasp of most executives at the company which had to deal with  any of them. It would not be that far into the future when the executives at RCA would arrange for Iggy Pop to be advanced  a  respectable amount of money. This money was to cover studio time, hire what musicians he needed and cover his living expenses. Iggy, in return, was to deliver a finished album to RCA.  Iggy gratefully accepted the money and I am sure he must have been pleased that RCA had faith in him as an artist and that he was worth investing in. This all gave Iggy a fantastic reason to celebrate, and he did just that, not bothering with the hassles of hiring a band or arranging any studio time. Instead, Iggy spent all the money on drugs, which by all accounts was a sizeable amount as RCA did not hear from him for a considerable length of time. When he finally appeared he did not have any music to give to RCA and of course he had no change left over from the expense money advanced to him. 

Metal Machine Music gave Lou Reed the distinction of making the worst album ever made by a major recording artist according to a survey of music critics. Of course Metal Machine Music appears on the label," RCA Records And Tapes." To those reading this that have never experienced this "music," I can give you a quick synopsis as I received this Lou Reed album many years ago as a birthday gift.  No, the person did not hate me, I asked for it actually as I wanted to at least hear it, and to say that I owned a copy just in case they ever became difficult to obtain. The cover features a nice shot of Reed and the album title and under the title is what appears to be Reed's interpretation of what this record actually is. It says, "An Electronic Instrumental Presentation." I fully agree with the "mental" portion of this ingenious description. There are other words  on the cover such as "Pharmaceutical Science" and a brief synopsis of what his work is about from the days of The Velvet Underground. He states that his work is not about, " The exploration of various "taboo" subjects, drugs, sex, violence." I was unaware, having listened to Lou Reed for many years, that he considered any of these subjects "taboo."  On the back of the album jacket under the title of "Specifications"  is a list of various items used in the making of this, "Electronic Instrumental Presentation."  I found one thing quite striking when I scanned the list of what was used to make this album, and that is the words, " No Instruments?"  After hearing the album once I do not think that there is any need for a question mark at the end of that statement. In terms of recognizable equipment there are several amplifiers, microphones, speakers, tremolo units and tape machines. Interestingly,  there are also mentions of various decibel levels.  Just before the bottom of the list is a fairly accurate description, I believe anyway, of what you hear on the four sides of this double album set. It states, " Combinations and Permutations built upon constant harmonic Density Increase and Melodic Distractions." The only thing I would alter about the description of this Electronic Instrumental Presentation is I would remove the words "harmonic" and "melodic." I would also make the word "distractions" a lot bolder so it really stands out. I feel rather strongly about these changes and if I were in any position I would have a law passed in order to make them mandatory. 

There was a large segment of music being made by bands such as Jethro Tull, Genesis, Gentle Giant and King Crimson that fell under the classification of "progressive rock," because these bands were experimenting with ideas that fell generally outside of what was considered the standard way most music was written. Metal Machine Music, I can assure you, was also a "creation" which was quite far removed from what was the standard at the time. Progressive implies that something is progressing, and in the case of progressive music this means that it is usually moving  in a direction that makes it a better quality product. I am not convinced that this record falls into that category. Thinking about it I realize that there is no real category in which to place this work, it stands alone. This becomes obvious, painfully obvious in fact, when one places side one on the turntable and drops the needle. 

When an instrument or a microphone get too close to an amplifier at the correct volume the result is an undesirable high pitched shrill or squeal that is uncomfortable to the ears. This sound is known as "feedback."  Now, not all feedback is annoying to listen to as it can be controlled by a proficient musician and when used properly it can add a certain amount of high energy to a song. Metal Machine Music incorporates feedback quite extensively but unfortunately, to me anyway, this feedback is out of control. Way out of control. The problem I think with this Electronic Instrument Presentation is that it is unlistenable to for more than a few awful minutes. The military at one time experimented with something called "White Noise." White Noise is a constant irritating sound played for long periods of time and its primary use was torture. When people are exposed to this repetitive drone of irritating sound it cause a great deal of mental anguish. Metal Machine Music is two albums of irritating feedback and other unpleasantness which lasts for a seemingly eternity of sixty four minutes and four seconds. I believe that this Electronic Instrument Presentation qualifies as "White Noise" and that it is long enough to also qualify as an instrument of torture. It is easy to see why after being given this recording by Lou Reed why the executives at RCA were a little "spooked" when they were handed side two of Low by Bowie. 

The first tour was not a disaster as some may think it was; Defries called it a rehearsal. Since RCA had so much invested in Bowie that had not been earned back, they could hardly let him slip and having an accountant to watch over things would certainly cure much of the uneasiness regarding the berserk unauthorized  spending of Defries. In key cities Bowie managed to sell out and the reviews from the press. The New York daily new produced the headline, "A Star Is Born," after a sell out concert. This so called "rehearsal" had taught Defries a valuable lesson about risk and the difference between greed and profit. It was greed that prompted Defries to take all of the risk and finance the first American tour, after all the profits to be made were all his. He did not consider the other possibility that any losses would also be his. If RCA lost three hundred thousand dollars the only reason Defries didn't lose the same or more is because he didn't have it to lose, and if it was not for RCA paying those bills MainMan would have been out of business. The other stars signed on to MainMan, Iggy Pop and Dana Gillespie, were not turning any profit either. 

Defries knew that by sharing the costs of touring there would be less profit for MainMan because any profits would have to be split on a percentage basis. On the other hand by sharing expenses it would minimize the risk of enormous losses that MainMan would be solely responsible for. Defries now wanting a little safety met with RCA and convinced them to be "partners" with MainMan and help finance the next tour in exchange for a share of the profits. There was no mention of losses, after all Defries told them that after the last tour Bowie really was a bone fide star in America. Defries also arranged to lease the rights to Bowie's two previous Mercury albums to RCA so they would now have a catalog of Bowie albums to promote. Defries had paid twenty thousand for each and leased them to RCA for thirty seven thousand five hundred dollars each. While Defries worked on RCA Bowie was busy working on Aladdin Sane. As unbelievable as it sounds after what RCA endured after the first tour Bowie was indeed heading back to America for a second tour, and within the ten weeks Defries had announced. This time however there would be no mistakes. 

The tour opens at Radio City Music Hall on February the 14th. 1973. There are to be no more ten thousand seat auditoriums on this tour. Stars only play to packed houses and Ziggy had to pack the house. The venues were all music halls or theaters seating a few thousand. The luxuries that the last tour afforded for all of the forty six employees and the band were now gone. Bowie had the exclusive rights to room service, better hotels and limousines. Ziggy was the star, not the band as they were treated now like necessary hired help but not essential to the survival of Ziggy. Ronson however was viewed with a little more worth than the others and Defries thought that he was marketable as a solo artist. Ronson, with visions of stardom, signed on and he too was now "owned" by Defries. The others were expendable. The Spiders ere being paid a fixed wage. Trevor Bolder and Woody Woodmansey were on salary of thirty pounds a week and Mick Ronson was being paid fifty pounds. Their expenses were paid by MainMan. It did not go over well when the new addition to the band, pianist Mike Garson, revealed that his salary was eight hundred dollars a week. The reviews were positive and the only hitch was that Bowie fainted at the Radio City Music Hall gig which publicity wise was good as it made the papers.  To keep the media interested Defries contrived a plan to give them something to write about. Defries announced to the press that Bowie was now about to become involved in acting and a film project, Stranger In A Strange Land, was currently underway with some other projects in the works as well. The truth was of course that there were no films being made or planned for that matter. Everything was going well for Defries with the exception of a small problem he had with one of his artists, Iggy Pop. Iggy got tired of watching the rising stardom of Ziggy Stardust while waiting for his own turn. Iggy attempted to gain his own publicity by slicing himself up in public with a steak knife. There was a need to fill in the time while waiting for his stardom and you can only practice so much. Drugs seemed like the perfect solution to relieve the hours of boredom and Iggy and his band wasted no time procuring this remedy. Much to the displeasure of Defries however the drugs were purchased by pawning their sound equipment. To put an end to this restlessness Defries booked a gig for Iggy near his home town at the Ford Theater in Detroit. Iggy appeared on several local radio shows in order to promote the concert. On one particular show Iggy took his clothes off and announced that he was masturbating to the listening audience. This proved too much even for Defries and he took immediate action. MainMan now had one less artist in its roster. 

Whatever MainMan and RCA were doing to promote Bowie seemed to be working well. Ziggy had sold eight thousand copies the first week it was released and in comparison there were one hundred thousand advance orders for Aladdin Sane. After the American tour Bowie left for Japan for a five city tour consisting of eight concerts including a three night stint in Tokyo. Defries took no risk this time and he secured a guaranteed fee of six thousand dollars per show from the local promoters. The audiences as it turned out  were less than a thousand in some of the venues. These numbers were disappointing but because of the guarantee the tour turned a profit, for MainMan anyway. Not one album in British music history, apart from The Beatles, had more advance orders than Aladdin Sane. On the British music charts it remained in the number one position for eight weeks and went on to be named the album of the year. Bowie also had four top ten hits. The first three, Jean Genie, Drive In Saturday and Life On Mars could be expected but the fourth one came as a surprise. Hoping to cash in on Bowie's popularity, Deram, which was his former label before Mercury re-released The Laughing Gnome and it also made it into the top ten. Taking all of this into consideration it would be easy to assume that Ziggy was the star MainMan said he was. This however, was just another illusion. Stardom still eluded Ziggy Stardust, and Defries knew it. So did RCA. 

The problem Defries faced was a problem which would continue to haunt Bowie for the next decade.  Bowie was a true star at home in England and as rock stars do he sold a lot of records. In America however his record sales were nowhere near that of a successful rock star and his "image" of stardom was one confined to the press. It was only because of the press that his portrayal of a star  was believed in America as they continued to fuel the fire with the articles that were read by the public. It is easy to forget when someone is living in a world of fantasy that there is such a thing as reality. As in most every case reality eventually catches up and one is forced to face it. This experience can be likened to being caught in a lie, and what happens when one is caught in a lie is the very thing that  RCA, Bowie and Defries were about to encounter. They were all about to encounter a real life experience that is best described as,  "a rude awakening." With all of the hype being generated from his successes in Britain it was easy to become entangled with the belief that Ziggy was an international star. There was no more dividing line anymore between what was the truth and what was invention, for MainMan and the artists it employed anyway. At RCA however things were a bit more sobering and it would not be long before Defries' fantasy and RCA reality would come face to face. What no one knew at the time, especially RCA, was that this face off would have enormous consequences, more than anyone could have ever possibly conceived of at the time. Who would have imagined that if Defries did not have his way he would do the unthinkable. Rather than give in an inch to what RCA wanted he decided instead to show them who was really in control. Ziggy Stardust belonged to Defries, and if RCA needed any proof of that all Defries had to do was kill him. That would remove all doubt, and as it turned out, Defries had a loaded gun just waiting. 

The biggest concert tour ever arranged in Britain calls on Bowie to play  thirty seven cities in forty five days and one hundred and fifty thousand tickets have sold the shows out weeks in advance. There is such a high demand for tickets that Defries seizes the opportunity to cash in by adding seventeen matinees to the tour The Aladdin Sane tour opens at Earl's Court on May 12, 1973 to an audience of eighteen thousand which was the largest audience ever to attend an indoor rock concert.  Tickets that had a face value of two pounds were being sold by the scalpers for prices upwards of twenty five pounds. The opening night however proves somewhat of a disaster as the way the seating is arranged many can't see the stage which results in a "free for all" for those wanting to actually get a glimpse of the band. The show scheduled for the next night is cancelled. The bad reviews for the first night were enough. With the demand so great for Bowie in Britain it was only logical that Defries had his sights set on a third American tour.  RCA was favourable to a third American tour but had a different opinion than Defries on how it was to be arranged. 

Defries seemed to have forgotten something. What he forgot was that this Ziggy Superstar Illusion he creates was just that, an illusion. He was starting to believe his own hype and if you lie enough they say, you forget what the truth is.  Defries wanted an American tour with seventy to eighty concerts. There were to no more theaters either, these concerts were all to be held in arena size venues. The tour would be split 90/10 on the gross revenue from ticket sales with the local promoters and of course it was Defries getting the ninety percent. These promoters would be required to deliver a thirty percent guarantee of the gross in advance when the contracts were signed and these were not negotiable. As Defries saw it, you either take it or leave it. Period. End of story. 

RCA saw things a bit differently. It doesn't take one long to get a firm grip on the reality of a situation when you have recently lost several hundred thousand dollars. RCA had to remind Defries that contrary to what he told everyone, that outside of his home country David Bowie was not a star, and RCA had the losses to prove it.  In terms of sales, none of Bowie's albums had gone Gold in the States. On the last tour, although better than the first, ticket sales were poor in six out of the sixteen cities Bowie played. RCA knew, and they were right, that Bowie could not sell out an arena tour. They would commit to supporting a tour, but only if Defries agreed to play in smaller venue. Defries was not about to negotiate. In his mind David was the biggest star in the seventies and the fact that America did not realize that was not his problem. There would be no tour if Bowie did not play arenas. Better yet, no tour, no Bowie. The plan was hatched since RCA would not budge. The world was about to see the last of Ziggy Stardust and by the time it all sunk in, Ziggy would be gone. Forever. 
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Part Five 

Defries was learning fast from his mistakes and thankfully mostly on other's money.  Not only had Defries received an education but the slow learners at RCA had progressed a grade or two. Their education however had been far more expensive than Defries'. One thing they had not learned at RCA, and should have, is that you would never win in a confrontation with Defries and forget even the idea of a stalemate. Tony Defries got his was and that was it. No argument, no negotiation, no further discussion. You wanted to avoid getting into this situation with Defries at all cost but that is exactly where RCA was concerning the planned third American tour. RCA and Defries had come to a stalemate. What RCA knew Defries did not want to face and that is the fact that Bowie was not a star outside of England and he could not possibly sell enough tickets to warrant a tour being booked into venues the size of arenas. There was not enough demand and demand was the key. Defries knew about demand, he had seen it on the Aladdin Sane tour, and he knew that with the demand you had to supply and that the demand becomes greater when the supply is limited. With this reasoning then it made sense to assume that if Bowie was in less supply then the demand should become greater. With this it should be possible then to create a demand for Bowie. 

"It's the last show we'll ever do," were the words that the audience heard at The Hammersmith Odeon on July 3rd, 1973. Bowie had quit. The shock was not confined to the audience. Trevor Bolder and Woody Woodmansey had neglected to be told in advance of their pre arranged retirement. They knew that this was the end of the line for them. As for Ronson, he was told in advance with a vow of secrecy. Not only that,  he had an upcoming solo career that was going to make him a star in his own right, after all he did have a contract with  and a commitment from Defries. He would later learn that this was another illusion Defries created in order to have control over him. He too was convinced that this was all real when in fact he was just another actor playing a part in the play. 

The next day the press releases poured out of MainMan. Bowie had retired. There was one release that Defries made sure was sent out separately so it was sure to be seen by the media. It said at the top in bold print, "DAVID-BOWIE - US TOUR THREE HAS BEEN CANCELLED." The press release went on to say that a massive arena tour consisting of  80 performances in the US and Canada had been cancelled. A tour this big PROVED to the media how big a star Bowie was and tour of this magnitude was necessary just to fill the demand of the public.  Regrettably, it was now cancelled due to Bowie's retirement.  The truth is that RCA and Defries never did come to terms and not one date had been arranged or any plans made at all for this third American tour. There was no tour. 

There were a few more people who were overlooked when it came to informing people of the intended retirement of Ziggy Stardust. Those namely were the fine folks over at RCA. Suddenly, and I am sure much to their disbelief, their label was now short one artist. If it was any consolation Defries told them that they would be getting one more album from Bowie. It would be nothing original, it would be a tribute album which consisted of Bowie doing covers of songs originally recorded by others. Defries was going to pass on a little nostalgia, after all, Bowies contract with RCA needed to be re-negotiated anyway. There was a minor publishing  problem that had to be taken care of as well, and a nostalgia album would help that tremendously.  Defries did not have the sole rights to Bowie's publishing through Chrysalis as he had a partner involved as well in the company. With Bowie officially retired then the value of his publishing would be considerably less and the fact that Bowie would never make another album again meant that the company was also worth less. Defries was sure that his partner would be keenly interested in selling his share of a company that had no future. He was right, and soon he had it all. 

I do know what I have written below and I know the temptation those reading this will have to read it again due to disbelief. I can assure you that you read it right the first time. 

Things were about to get wild at MainMan, extravagantly wild. At the risk of plagiarism I will borrow a description once used by Defries and say that everything up until now was merely a "rehearsal." Now it is show time. Bowie was off to France to begin the recording of Pin Ups at the famous composer Chopin's former home, the Chateau d'Herouville. Defries would stay in America to further promote his favourite star. This time however the star was not Bowie, this star would be much larger than Bowie. It was time to lift the veil so the world could see first hand the tremendous wealth and power wielded by Defries' star, which went by the name of MainMan. 

MainMan now occupied fourteen offices on Park Avenue in New York with a staff of twenty six not including domestic staff and chauffeurs. Defries sat smoking his trademark cigars in opulent splendour firmly in control of his "world wide entertainment conglomerate" behind a massive leather inlaid desk with gold and silver "executive appointments." There was no further need to rent limousines. MainMan now had its own which was a custom built Cadillac with a leather cream coloured interior and operated by a uniformed chauffeur. In keeping with the insanity MainMan had a number of executives running various departments, many of whom were recognizable from  the Andy Warhol film "Pork." Cherry Vanilla was put in charge of the newest company department, MainMan Films.  There were several additional pieces of real estate owned by MainMan as well. These properties included a MainMan duplex in New York as well as a penthouse suite  and five apartments. MainMan West operated out of a small mansion on Mulholland Drive in Los Angeles. There were properties as well in Tokyo and West London which served as corporate offices for MainMan. The crowning glory was in Greenwich Connecticut known as The MainMan Estate whose central feature was a twenty room mansion.  Times Square now included a huge billboard featuring Mick Ronson and the release of his first solo album Slaughter On Tenth Avenue and his upcoming tour. Defries spoke at times of buying RCA. David Bowie was living in a rented eight pound a week flat. He was behind on his rent and his property taxes. This could leave a person wondering who the star really was. 

There is one act left for Bowie to play in the role of Ziggy Stardust, but even before that the transformation had already begun. A new character would soon emerge and Bowie was already erasing the past and rewriting his own history. Bowie was publicly denying that he was a musician, he stated that he never was giving the reason that he would not make a career out of something so restrictive. The press had it all wrong. David Bowie was a "writer." Oh, and he was currently looking over four movie scripts with him in the starring role and then there was the one he was writing as well. Not only was Bowie a writer now, but a writer for theater, and these theaters were the ones located in New York. On Broadway to be exact. 

Bowie was in Rome in September of 1973 holed up with Tony Ingrassia who directed Warhol's film Pork. The objective was a working partnership to write the lyrics and script for a musical production based on George Orwell's famous novel, 1984. Defries had visions of Bowie starring in this production which would debut in London and then open on Broadway where it would run for as long as possible . This would lead to the next step of Bowie acting in films which MainMan would produce. MainMan saw dollars, and it was dollars they needed desperately, because nothing had changed. This was all still an illusion of  Defries making and the house that he built was still a house of cards. Correction, an empire built of cards. There was a problem looming for Defries. Bowie, like an undisciplined child, was starting to question a few questions about the wrong things. If Bowie ever came back to reality Defries would have a real problem on his hands. So big in fact that the game would be over. 

The major thing which eventually got David clued in to what was really happening at MainMan and to the degree he was being soaked came down to one thing, Defries' lack of discretion. There was not an ounce of humility to be found in that man, he flaunted it all. He didn't throw it in the faces of others, he propelled it with the force of a rocket launcher. Defries thought of no one but himself and he was driven by greed, wealth, power, control, lust, ego and would do anything to obtain the privileges which are afforded to the rich power brokers in America. He made the mistake of actually believing his own bullshit, he thought that he actually built this empire on his own, forgetting that without Bowie, he was nothing. David Bowie was his sole source of revenue and he started to become foolish enough not to take care of him. Angie or David would phone MainMan, they needed pocket money. What they got was the run around. Tony's out, the bank is closed, we'll take care of it, wait till tomorrow and cheques would arrive unsigned. Cheques were often returned NSF. This was money for the minor day to day expenditures such as cigarettes, food and other trivial items. Bowie started to wonder why he should be without the pettiest amount of spending money and why he should have to endure a never ending run around to get it. After all it was HIS MONEY. Where was it all going? He also realized that everything he had he did not own, it was rented, leased or borrowed. Where was his money, it was going somewhere? 

The collaboration with Tony Ingrassia was not going well at all. Bowie did not, and never has, worked well under pressure or when restricted to within a time frame. Two eighties albums prove that. Deadlines and Bowie mix like Jagger and Hall. To the credit of their short lived collaboration though, out of it came the concept for Diamond Dogs but not much else. Bowie returned to England to work on the project himself and penned twenty new songs for his "musical." This time reality reared its ugly head and put an end to any dreams of Broadway that anyone had. You see, if a person writes something original it becomes their "intellectual property" and people who write for a living often "copyright" their work to legally stop another from copying it without the owner receiving a fee for the use of his work. The funny thing is that George Orwell just happened to go through this procedure and had his writings copyrighted. This required MainMan to obtain permission first of all to use Orwell's ideas or his work, and secondly, MainMan would be required to pay a royalty fee for using any of Orwell's intellectual property, which was now owned by his estate and managed by his wife. Mrs. Orwell, as it happened, was not a fan of David Bowie at all. She knew who he was and unfortunately her opinion of him killed any chance of her giving him the rights to use Orwell's novel 1984 to adapt into what she probably saw as a Broadway based production for the weird.  Call it Todd Browning meets William Shakespeare. The problem also remained that even if she did allow MainMan to go ahead with the production there was no money to pay any royalties. Broadway would have to wait for its new protégé. 

Now, I am sure that I will be called someone who is nitpicking or making a mountain out of a mole hill but I think this correction needs to be made. Almost everything I have read relating to Bowie's career, as well as what most fans will say as to when this event occurred, is totally incorrect.  I am referring to the date on the Death Certificate of Ziggy Stardust. It is stated as July 3rd, 1973. That is wrong. The correct date is October 20th, 1973.  Bowie, backed by The Spiders had one last appearance together and that was to film a special one hour long television presentation called The 1980 Floor Show that would appear in America on NBC's weekly show, The Midnight Special. I refer to it personally as The 1980 Fashion Show as well, and for those who have seen it I think that I would escape any criticism for that. The show was to be in support of the newly released Pin Ups but it eludes me exactly how. The show is brilliant in any case, and for the sake of history it was the end of Ziggy, and the end of The Spiders. Bowie's new character was for the most part already fully  developed before the taping of this show. All that was left to do was to put on the costume and present himself to the world. 
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Part Six 

This ain't rock n' roll, this is the gravy train. Nineteen seventy four, the year of the Diamond Dogs and the renegotiated contracts. Defries had secured  for himself from Chrysalis a higher percentage of the royalties made from  publishing. He also had RCA increase the advance paid to MainMan on each Bowie album to one hundred thousand dollars. This increased the cash flow for MainMan but it was never enough to cover expenses. This did not worry Defries however as he was being paid a generous personal salary for managing Gem, Chrysalis and MainMan and soon Bowie would be bigger than ever. Once everyone was sold on the fact that Bowie was the biggest star to ever emerge the cash would come rolling in the door. 

Bowie entered his new role and started to play his part with ease. A new fantasy had been scripted by Defries and Bowie was to act it out. He had been totally reinvented. Once again Bowie erases his past. This is one thing, in my view anyway, that Bowie does with ease and it has never ceased to fascinate me how he can keep a straight face and look almost convincing when he is in an interview and ninety percent of what came out of his mouth were lies. It doesn't matter who is interviewing him or how big the audience is. He seems oblivious to his surroundings. In all the years I have been a listener of Bowie I have learned a few things and some of these things have been rather enlightening, especially about human nature. There is one thing in particular I have discovered and that is exactly how fickle the general public are and how easy they can be manipulated. I might as well say it, I've become rather immune to the personal attacks I have received over the years due to some of my posts as well as my personality, not only are the general public easily mislead but there are a number of Bowie fans as well. This surprises me, but also tells me something, and that is the fact that there are fans out there who do not know Bowie's past history or much about Bowie for that matter. This is why some blindly follow him without so much as a question. Defries and Bowie had the public all figured out and they came to the same conclusion. "I am writing a novel about my experiences on the Trans Siberia Express," Bowie said in an interview. "I started out as a painter," he told another. Bowie reinvented himself with a few words and these words changed his past. All Bowie is who he says he is, where he came from is where he says he came from and this can all change in seconds. He was not a musician anymore, he never was. Bowie is an writer and an actor. Bowie works in theater and this theater was going to go on tour. Defries got his way as well regarding the venues even though RCA was still protesting, this would be an arena tour. Who would have thought differently? 

The return of Bowie tour would turn into the largest stage production to ever go on the road and Defries, along with Bowie, award winning lighting director Jules Fisher and stage designer Mark Ravitz were determined that it would be unequalled. "Big" was the word and big meant that money was no object. This time Defries was going to wake America up and there was no better way in his mind to do that then make it impossible for anyone not to notice Bowie. Defries was going to put the name David Bowie and MainMan on every TV station, radio station and in every magazine and newspaper. Bowie would even come in the mail. This time it would be too big to miss. The promotion that would be done for this tour was staggering. Nothing had ever been attempted on this scale before and my guess is nothing has since.  This was marketing's, "Finest hour." 

The press releases from MainMan came first and they were explicit. The essence of them was to make the point that this was NOT A ROCK N' ROLL tour.  The  press releases stated that Bowie would be giving, "an extensive series of theatrical presentations" and "much of the content of these shows is taken from Bowie's new RCA album, Diamond Dogs." MainMan called it a "THEATOUR." Defries stated that MainMan would embark on a one million dollar advertising campaign to market David as a product. What he did not mention though is the fact that MainMan did not have anywhere near that kind of money. One bright spot was that even though RCA would not finance the tour due to the losses they suffered on the last ones,  they did commit one hundred and fifty thousand dollars to be used by MainMan for advertising purposes. Defries immediately went out and spent four hundred thousand dollars on advertising and had the bills all sent to who else but RCA Records And Tapes. David Bowie was personally excluded from having any input regarding the marketing and advertising campaign and he was never consulted before the decisions were made and that is how he lost his name. 

There would be no more David Bowie and the MainMan press releases reflected that. He would now be known simply as "Bowie" and the staff at MainMan as well as others were instructed to refer to him by that name only. Even to this day Bowie is often referred to as a "chameleon" and contrary to popular belief this image did not come from the press, or Bowie. The portrayal of Bowie as the constantly changing artist who is continually reinventing himself was thought up by the key people at MainMan as a way to market Bowie. The chameleon image would be the focal point of a massive mailing campaign which was to follow. MainMan had an enviable mailing list consisting of around five thousand names at their disposal for marketing purposes and this list was not wasted. On April 1st a newsletter was mailed out which announced the upcoming Theatour. On April 12 a second mailing was done which gave the dates for the first half of the tour and it included a black and white rendition of the front cover of Diamond Dogs. Although it was probably not realized at the time,  by using an original painting by artist Guy Peellaert instead of commercial packaging for the cover of Diamond Dogs it resulted in the cover being reprinted much more frequently in magazines and newspapers. This was due mostly to the fact that the cover was indeed "art," and a very unique piece at that. Publications were quite willing to reprint it because it was something that was of interest and this in turn gave MainMan a wealth of free advertising.  Three more mailings were made to those on the list and in these mailings were seven photographs of Bowie. Each photo showed Bowie with a different look proving that he was a chameleon. MainMan also assembled an expensive press kit  consisting of various pictures of Bowie that could be reprinted. It all came in a book that was given away to writers and editors so the pictures could be used in their publications to accompany any articles written about Bowie. 

For additional promotion Defries had a series of radio and TV commercials made featuring Bowie that could be aired in regional markets in advance of the tour. He also had billboard advertising in Times Square, Sunset Boulevard and Piccadilly Circus. There were full page colour ads placed in all the major music periodicals in the States as well as overseas. RCA supplied displays and posters for the record stores and MainMan had metal dog tags made as souvenirs.  Defries had a petition asking for more Bowie songs to be played on the radio circulated and signed on a university campus which was then presented to the radio stations.  During this time period Defries had cut the media off from having any access whatsoever to Bowie, because as he had done once before when the time was right, the media people Defries wanted would be brought to the opening performance courtesy of MainMan. What he hoped they would see would be something that was big. Bigger than anything they, or anyone else for that matter, had ever seen before on a stage. 

This new character had a whole stage designed for him to play out his role.  Defries had a stage set built to resemble an entire city.  Hunger City, taken from the Diamond Dogs album, was a cross between Orwell's futuristic nightmare and Metropolis from the film directed by  Fritz Lang. You could, I am sure without any problem,  also throw in some Salvador Dali and Todd Browning influences as well. Like everything MainMan did money was not even in the equation when it came to constructing the set for this Theatour. The price tag came in at around four hundred thousand dollars. As part of the set there was a diamond "pod" which opened like the petals on a flower. Bowie would emerge out of the pod and there was a hydraulic arm with a chair attached to it that would allow Bowie to hover thirty five feet beyond the stage over the audience. The set weighed six tons and had twenty thousand moving pieces, among them was a remote control bridge to raise and lower Bowie in the midst of the buildings in Hunger City. The set took thirty men, what was to be an estimated thirty hours, turned into being a reality of thirty six hours to assemble. They should have realized that with something this large and complex there were bound to be some problems which arose. A few did actually during rehearsals but of course that didn't worry anyone. Not one little bit. 

In Montreal on June 14th, 1974 Defries' spectacle had its grand opening. Why Defries ended up  not bringing the press in for the opening show of the tour I do not know, but it was fortunate he did not. The entire system was overloaded  resulting in poor sound quality. There was quite a bit of distortion caused when some of the wires melted. In addition the bridge malfunctioned and crashed with David on it. The audience was enthusiastic however and were undaunted in their approval by any minor annoyances. Two days later the press was invited. This tour would have some interesting moments. 
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Part Seven

The press was invited as guests of MainMan to the show at the O'Keefe Center in Toronto on June 16, two days after the opening show in Montreal. This time it was different and the show went without a flaw. Defries must have been elated, he pulled off another one with the odds stacked against him. If the reviews penned by the critics could determine the fate of an artist then there would be nothing to ever fear again. What came out the next morning in the papers and in the next issues of the influential music periodicals and trade publications was what everyone had hoped for. The critics were impressed, to say the least, and they were enthusiastic about the concept of fusing modern music and theater.  Unfortunately there was a problem, and this problem could not be cured by a thousand good reviews. Like most MainMan ventures the tour costs were more than could be made from the revenue generated from ticket sales. 

When it came to matters of business all of the decisions were made at MainMan, with usually little in the way discussion.  Not everyone was informed either,  once these decisions were made. This was one rather innovative method Defries had of maintaining control. The only ones informed about anything of importance were those people who had to be informed. Defries said no more than he absolutely had to and this applied to Bowie as well. It was simple really. The less people knew then the more they relied on Defries to look after things, and the more things he looked after the more control he had. In Bowie's case he relied on Defries for everything from food to a roof over his head. It can therefore be attributed to Defries style that he band were not informed of the upcoming live recording of the shows at the Tower in Philadelphia which would become David Live. The news of the recording somehow reached the band and Visconti confirmed what was already evident as new equipment had made an appearance and was being set up.  The  musician's union pay scale for each band member was one hundred and fifty dollars. The band, through their new spokesman, bass player Herbie Flowers, demanded five thousand each. The worst part was Defries was nowhere to be found. The meeting ended up in Bowie's dressing room with the band refusing to play without the cash. Bowie relented after he threw a chair at Flowers and Defries was furious with Bowie for giving in and David apparently was in tears. 

For what it is worth a personal note. I could kill Bowie for paying the band. If he didn't maybe they would not have performed and then David Live would not even exist. Saxophones and cowbells do not belong in Moonage Daydream. Neither does that lame attempt at a guitar solo at the end. The unenergetic plunking of a string to make noises that do not fit the song being played makes me appreciate Ronson so much more and I dwell in respect for him. Comparing Moonage Daydream on Santa Monica to this "rendition" never fails to make me see visions of little green garbage bags. The notes Bowie sustains on Stay from the 76 Nassau boot or the end of Ziggy from any boot recorded in 78 or Absolute beginners in 87 or Space Oddity in 72 or on a zillion other live boots are nothing short of drop jaw amazing. Then there is the end of Sweet Thing off of Diamond Dogs, as good as the end of Lady Grinning Soul or Right. Listening to the lounge lizard croon on David Live makes me think of the Holy Bible. In the Gospel Of Bittan chapter 26 verse 16 it says, "If you aren't going to perform it with any energy, effort, conviction or desire then don't fucking sing it."  I believe in the Bible. If you really must Knock On Wood then it is best if done on your own time in private. Electricity should be withheld from those who desecrate Width Of A Circle and Earl Slick should have been given a prison sentence. David Sandborn must have  been playing at gun point or they had something on him that was pretty serious in order to make him co operate. If Bowie had any morals he could have demonstrated some basic human compassion and given him a bag for his head so that he would not be recognized. Those which supplied the vinyl that allowed this to be made should be brought up on charges of criminal negligence with intent to cause injury or death. I won't be picky on this subject. The song arrangements are disgusting and I dislike every bootleg as well, save two or three half decent tracks, of this tour along with what should have been properly titled as, "David Dead." To call this horrid irritating noise David Live is false and misleading advertising as far as I am concerned. 

The tour progressed leaving behind a trail of good reviews and financial losses. Defries was determined that those losses would be erased on the European leg of the tour.  Defries and  audacity are synonymous, actually Defries is the definition of audacity. Defries would ask for just about anything because in his mind he thought that if he had the fortitude to ask someone might be crazy enough to give it to him.  What he asked for when he was negotiating for Bowie  to perform for nine days at Wembley presents a wonderful example of just how far Defries was willing to go. This man had no fear.  Now, in order to put this in some sort of perspective I paid $8.50 Canadian to see the Station To Station tour in Montreal in 1976. That is roughly $5.50 in US dollars at the exchange rate today. Remember we are talking 1974 here. Wembley pool has a seating capacity of 7,927. Defries wanted the seat prices scaled with the best seats costing $16.80 US. If the shows sold out there would be just under one million dollars from ticket revenues. Pay attention because this is Defries at his best. Defries demanded 90% of the gross from ticket sales up to $432,000.00 On top of that he demanded 100%, that's right, he wanted every cent, on anything above the $432,000.00 Defries estimated that the promoter would have expenses of around $125,000.00 Defries wanted the promoter to ADVANCE $125,000.00 to HIM which would be deducted from Defries' fee later. If this deal went through Defries stood to make somewhat in the neighbourhood of $750,000.00 and the promoter would pocket $43.000. That isn't all however, this gets even better. In order to secure the deal Defries wanted a  NON REFUNDABLE security deposit of $500,000.00 paid to him nine months BEFORE the concerts. If that isn't enough he also wanted 50% of all of the money from the concessions such as cigarettes, drinks and food. Although it is not mentioned where I obtained these figures I imagine there would be souvenirs as well sold exclusively by MainMan. The deal for the Wembley concerts fell through. The tour ended in America as it turned out because it was losing so much money. They could not afford to continue on to Europe. The final act has begun and not just for the tour. The whole theater is closing. 

If you are going to keep a person insulated by creating a false existence then it is important that you keep them content. If they are content they will have no motivation to want to change their surroundings. However, if they are unhappy they will seek to find better circumstances.  This is where Defries made a big mistake. Defries should have taken better care of Bowie. If you look at what Defries accomplished you can see at times that he was quite brilliant. He got what he wanted by using a combination of street smarts, salesmanship, negotiating skills and a very aggressive attitude that could be extremely intimidating. Defries had a burning desire to succeed and by all appearances he wasn't going to stop until he had his empire and got the recognition he believed was owed to him. It is my opinion here, but I believe that ego, others believe it to be mostly greed, that had a tremendous amount to do with his desire to make it to the pinnacle of success by building a world wide entertainment conglomerate. When he once said that he would one day purchase RCA Records And Tapes I firmly believe he was serious. It is because of his drive that I find it so difficult to understand his behavior towards Bowie. It makes absolutely no sense anyway I look at it. You see, the one thing that really puzzles me about Defries is why he did not look after Bowie. The only reason I can come up with is that his ego got so big that he thought he was the one who was responsible for making it this far. I think that he was right in believing that as it was his ingenuity which built the company, but what he forgot was it was Bowie's income that allowed him to build. 

It is arguable to whether Defries was a good businessman. I believe he was if you look at things from the aspect of marketing, brilliant in that area actually, but overall I do not think so. He was a risk taker which is a beneficial character trait for an entrepreneur to have yet it can also be one's downfall. I think that Defries took too many risks. The truth is that had it not been for RCA Defries would not have gone far. This point is debatable and I can offer this in defence of what I believe. What would have happened if RCA refused to pay the $100,000.00 hotel bill Defries ran up on the first American tour and billed to them without their permission to do so? Defries had no money. The hotel would have sued him and easily won and Tony Defries as well as MainMan would have been named in the judgement since the forty six people were all registered with the hotel under MainMan. A judgement of over $100,000.00, which it would be when you take into consideration the court costs, lawyers, interest and other charges which may very well be levied, would have put MainMan out of business. I have learned that Defries is a very complicated individual. Most people are either good at something or not good at it. Someone can be good at math and not so good when it comes to sports. Now, if a person is good at a sport they can have a few days when they don't perform as well as they usually do. This is considered normal. The question here is can a person be good at something and not so good at the same thing? For example, can a person be a good, and a not so good mechanic? Now, I am not talking about a few "off days" where someone isn't performing up to par , I am talking about overall.  A person who is a good mechanic can maybe fix certain cars but not others, yet that does not make him a bad mechanic. I learned something about Defries while I was doing some research for this article and I do not think that I have ever seen this characteristic in anyone else and I find it quite interesting.  When it comes to his talents Tony Defries can be both a genius and totally incompetent at the same thing and at the same time. 

Finances. Defries excelled in this field and at the same time he was incompetent. The financial situation at MainMan almost from day one was a precarious one at best. The company teetered on the verge of financial ruin throughout its entire history. Corrine (Coco) Schwab earned her reputation as a dedicated employee who was a competent problem solver when she worked at MainMan. It was Coco who single handily kept the creditors away who would demand payment after being given a string of promises and bad cheques. MainMan's cheques may as well have been made of rubber they bounced so well. Her capabilities captured Bowie's attention and she remains to this day his personal assistant. She has never married and instead devoted her entire life to looking after the needs of Bowie. When it came to MainMan there was never enough revenue coming in to even begin to pay the bills. Since Defries had total control of every aspect of the company it would be easy to reach the conclusion, based on the situation at MainMan that Defries was incompetent at handling the finances of the company. Based on the balance sheets this statement is true and MainMan eventually went bankrupt. 

Now, at the same time he was proving that he was incompetent when it came to finances he was proving that he was a genius when it came to finances. Yes, you heard me right. You see, Defries was managing his personal finances extremely well. So well in fact that in just over four short years he would have himself set up for life, becoming a millionaire several times over and retiring to a life of luxury. Most Bowie listeners are aware of the fifty-fifty split agreement in the contracts Bowie signed with Defries contracts with Bowie. There are terms and agreements in those contracts however that many fans do not know about and these clauses made Defries much more money than the fifty-fifty split.  I would like to touch on those because they reveal just how bright Tony Defries was when it came to securing a comfortable living for himself. It is important to note that there was not just one company and one contract involved, there were several companies and several contracts. If what you are about to learn here shocks you, rest assured that you are not alone. 

First of all there is the publishing contract that gave Defries total control over the sheet music and lyrics to Bowie's work. This includes the copyrights as well. The contract is between Bowie and Chrysalis which is owned by Defries. Chrysalis not only owns the copyrights from the albums recorded during the MainMan days, it owns all of the rights to what Bowie wrote previously and that includes the recordings done for Pye, Decca and Mercury. Chrysalis bought the rights to them in one lump sum payment to Bowie of twelve thousand dollars. The royalties were split with Bowie. There are two clauses in this contract that made it very lucrative and one is the expiration date. There isn't one. This contract does not expire, it is FOREVER. That means Defries would continue to collect fifty percent of the royalties on the publishing of all of Bowies work up to and including Young Americans. Now, I do not know if Bowie managed to buy the rights back because I have not looked into it. I will find out though when I have time. The fact is though whether he did or not makes no difference because Defries had succeeded in obtaining the copyrights for eternity. The icing on the cake was that Gem required someone to manage it so Defries hired himself. He got a salary for this which came out of Bowie's own pocket as it was an expense. Tony Defries got paid before any profits were divvied up. 

Gem was another company owned by Defries, and it is with Gem that David Bowie signed a recording and distribution agreement. This contract was signed in 1971 and was valid for a period of six years. Contrary to popular belief Bowie did not have a recording contract with RCA, his recording contract was with Gem.  The way it worked was Gem would advance the moneys necessary for recording costs.  The contracts were between Gem and RCA, whereby Gem would give the recordings to RCA upon completion and RCA would then distribute them under licence. RCA would pay a fee to Gem for the distribution rights. This contract was  a real a "gem." ( get it "Gem" and "Gem". ha. ha. ha. yes, I know, and you are right. that is about as lame as anyone could get. it is a futile attempt, in my case anyway,  to try and fool someone into thinking that  I'm really clever and witty using the stupidest pun one could ever hope to find. I will promise to control my intelligence next time so you don't get sick reading this.)  Anyway, back to the story. Defries would subtract the "expenses" from these licence fees as well as the advances paid by RCA. After the expenses were subtracted Defries and Bowie would split the profits fifty-fifty. Bowie also received an eleven percent royalty on the amount of albums sold. Now, from all appearances this contract looked quite fair to both parties. Unfortunately when it came to fairness for Bowie it was seriously flawed. What it really did was give Defries complete access to the moneys paid to Gem and Bowie and by having the money pass through Defries' hands first allowed him to grab as much as he wanted. The dangerous stipulation for Bowie's share of the money in this contract were the words, "after expenses." This clause allowed Defries to determine exactly what was qualified to be labeled "expenses."  In order to operate Gem had to have a president and take a guess who became the president? Defries. Now, this allowed Defries to pay himself a salary and he determined the amount that the president should paid. This was of course an "expense" and deducted from the gross before Bowie got his share. What Bowie did not know, and did not learn until just before he and MainMan parted ways, was that Defries was getting money advanced to Gem from RCA on a continuous basis. We are talking a large amount of money here and it was estimated to be somewhat in the neighbourhood of five to seven million dollars. Defries had a portion of his living expenses paid by Gem as well. This contract allowed Defries to do anything he wanted and have Gem pay for it.  All he had to was mark it down as an "expense." The contract also gave Gem control over Bowie's work, as a matter of fact Bowie did not even own the rights to his own work, Gem did. This gave Gem the rights to pretty much do what they wanted with Bowie's recordings and Bowie had no say in the matter.  Owning David's work was more lucrative than most realize. Because Gem owned the recordings it didn't matter if Bowie was still under contract with Defries or not, you see Gem owned them PERMANENTLY. Bowie could leave but Gem still owned his work and Defries continued to make money from these recordings long after Bowie had departed. Here is a good example. In 1976 CHANGESONE was released which was a greatest hits package. Bowie had left MainMan by this time and he had no say in the release of this album, as a matter of fact he was against it. Unfortunately because Gem owned the copyrights to these songs there was nothing Bowie, or anyone else could do, to stop its release. CHANGESONE became David Bowie's very first platinum album, selling roughly 1,330,260 copies of which half of the money went right to Defries and the rest to Bowie, after "expenses" of course. Defries continued to make a rather comfortable income from Bowie for many years. It is estimated that in 1983, seven years after Bowie left MainMan, Defries made in excess of one million dollars. As I said, "What a gem of a deal." 

Most Bowie fans are aware of the famous fifty-fifty split contract. Most think that it was MainMan that got the split. What most fans are unaware of however is the existence of this contract, which was really the split contract, and it was in essence a personal management agreement. Now, if you think that taking fifty percent of Bowie's earnings is outrageous just wait until you hear this. There is another contract which Bowie signed that many do not know about and the expire date is rather interesting. It is a very common misconception that the contract Bowie signed with MainMan was a  contract that managed all of his business affairs as well as managed him as an artist. This is not correct. There were two separate contracts that Bowie signed actually. The first one was a personal management contract and this agreement managed him as an artist. This agreement was not between Bowie and MainMan as MainMan was not formed for nearly a year AFTER this contract was signed. On August the 12, 1971 David Bowie signed a personal management contract and this contract was then backdated to cover his affairs in effect from  April of 1970. This contract did not include his business affairs, this contract concerned the right to manage him as an artist. This personal management contract that David Bowie signed was exclusively with Tony Defries.  I am not going to mince words here and I will say that Bowie was as smart as a bag of nails to sign this agreement, and all the other ones as well, without getting a second opinion from a lawyer. You will see why in a second. If one thing was good that came out of  signing all of them was that it seemed to smartened him up in a hurry. The terms of this contract were clearly stipulated and Defries being a lawyer insured that it was iron clad. What this personal management contract did in effect was give Defries the right to manage Bowie as an artist, and what that entailed was that Bowie could not negotiate ANYTHING with regards to his career. His rights to make personal decisions about his business affairs were signed over to Tony Defries. To put it mildly Tony Defries OWNED David Bowie, for lack of a better analogy.  On top of it all Defries got fifty percent of Bowie's income as a management fee. Now if that isn't enough, here is the good part. The contract did not have any clause in it that specified when it would expire so in effect the contract gave Defries the rights to manage Bowie in perpetuity! Tony Defries not only owned Bowie, he owned him FOREVER! 

Now, if Defries didn't already get enough of Bowie's money already there was also the MainMan contract. This contract I like to describe as a money siphon that ran directly into Defries pocket. Thank God for Bowie's sake that this one had an expiry date of March 31, 1983 on it or he would probably still be on a salary of $75.00 a week plus expenses. If you take a good look at the terms of the MainMan contract you will discover that it not only controlled its own money, but had the right to control the flow of money from all of the other companies as well. The context of the wording is as follows, "All MainMan companies can lease one another the rights they controlled and also be the recipients of those rights from one another."  In order to find the true meaning of this all you do is forget the pleasant wording which attempts to make this clause sound like a harmless exchange of copyrights and read between the lines. It basically says this in plain English, "Any company that Defries owns can at any time take control of any of the other companies and take what they want and this includes raiding their bank accounts." It was important that Defries had total control of the companies finances so he could do whatever he wanted with the money. Also, it was imperative that Bowie never learn exactly how much money was coming in, and how much Defries was taking. If Bowie ever did find out then that would certainly spell the end. Should the end come the last money Defries would see would be whatever the courts awarded when they ruled on a settlement. The terms in the contract however ensured that it would be very difficult for Bowie to learn very much. Bowie was never paid directly by RCA or anyone else for that matter all the money he ever saw came from MainMan. The context of the clause  to enable Defries to totally control the flow of money to Bowie is as follows, "The licensee (MainMan) is empowered to collect all of the gross income." What this effectively did was allow MainMan to be paid every cent that Bowie made. All the money from recordings, films, live performances, publishing, royalties, endorsements, commissions, acting or anything else was paid to MainMan. The money was then distributed to Bowie, but not until after MainMan took its percentage and all of the "expenses" were deducted. This is where it gets pretty ugly. 

Bowie signed a contract that gave MainMan ten percent of his gross income world wide. In addition MainMan would receive fifty percent of the profits after expenses and Bowie would also get fifty percent. If you notice the words "after expenses" appears in this contract as well. Those expenses would turn out to be a prime example of creative corporate insanity applied to the art of "cost of business deductions. " The stipulations in the Bowie/MainMan contract are all worded extremely carefully. It is written so carefully in fact that MainMan appears to be an extremely responsible company who are quite prudent when it comes to the management of money. In the agreement it reads, "Care will be taken to maintain to determine which expenses are those in which MainMan should participate." Quite simply put is the fact that Bowie paid for all of MainMan's expenses. When I say all, I mean all. Bowie was MainMan's only source of income as all of the other artists that had signed management contracts never made any money. It is ironic that Bowie was footing the bill for these artists and he was covering their losses. All that MainMan had came from Bowie's earnings because Defries wrote it all off against Bowie's earnings as "expenses." These included all of MainMan's real estate, including the twenty room mansion, the offices, all salaries, the limousine, tour expenses, recording expenses, fees paid to artists under contract and everything else. Defries also took a salary as president of the company, which of course Bowie paid. In return Bowie got his living expenses paid, which were deducted from his share of the profits, as well as seventy five dollars a week as a salary. What most people do not realize is the fact that Bowie really got screwed due to the personal management contract that he signed with Defries. Take a good look at this. Bowie got fifty percent of the after expense profits at MainMan. Now, out of that Defries took half because he was entitled to take fifty percent of Bowie's earnings under the personal management contract. Suppose the profits at MainMan were $100,000.00. Bowie would receive $50,000.00 and Defries $50,000.00. Defries then got fifty percent of Bowie's earnings so he got another $25,000.00. Out of the $100,000.00 profit Defries got $75,000.00 and Bowie got $25,000.00 and to add insult to injury all of MainMan's expenses were paid by Bowie. 

I got a letter from a Bowie fan while posting this article who questioned one of my statements. What he questioned was the fact that I said Bowie had little control over his career while at MainMan. He said it was difficult to believe. Difficult or not the, facts prove otherwise even though Bowie publically takes all the credit for his success. Bowie was not ignorant back then, as it is easy to assume only someone who is downright stupid would sign those contracts. He was not conned either as some say. Bowie was naive, really naive. He always had others looking after him and he was plain lucky that Pitt looked out for his best interests as any other manager would do the same as Defries and try to make the best deal they could for themselves to make money. Business is about profits not personal relationships and that is what separates Defries from Pitt. Bowie was incapable of handling his business affairs and he did not want to deal with them. Making deals requires confrontation and Bowie avoided confrontations at all cost, he was much too sensitive to be tough with anyone. This lack of interest in the business end of things and his trust of others gave him a false sense of security. As long as he was looked after all was well in his eyes. Just how naive and what little interest he had in his business affairs can be easily proven and until proof arises to the contrary I have to support my findings. I offer this as a prime example. If he was not naive then this needs to be explained. Why did he sign any of these contracts without first having a lawyer, or at least someone else for that matter, look them over first? It is obvious in my opinion that had he truly understood how the arrangements between himself and the companies he signed with I believe he would have had second thoughts. If not, at least he would have negotiated at bit but he did not. I can't believe that he would sign away all rights he had to his own music and publishing as well as sign a contract that would bind him FOREVER in exchange for a $75.00 a week salary and 25% of his income. Oh, as well as agree to pay all of the expenses incurred for a company that he did not own any part of. I do not believe that he would have paid MainMan's expenses had he known he did not own 50% of it. It is either stupidity or naivety and I have a difficult time believing that Bowie is stupid. Uneducated at that time in business yes, but not stupid. I have been accused many times of supporting Defries and what he did. I have no option I'm afraid but to believe the truth. Defries saved Bowie but that does not mean I condone his actions. He made a profit and Bowie signed the deal. As always it is, "buyer beware." Now, from an ethical and moral point of view I personally think that it is wrong to take advantage of anyone to the degree Defries did for the sake of money. He used Bowie in the worst way and I can't condone what he did. Although what he did is not illegal, to me it is wrong. One last point here and I would be interested to hear some feedback on this. I have no evidence to support this and it is just a thought. Defries could have allowed MainMan to go bankrupt because after Bowie left there was no revenue generator, and he had already siphoned off most of the money into his own pocket. Just a thought. 
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Part Eight

To excel at one thing as well as fail at the same time seemed to be a trademark of Defries. It wasn't just the finances either. The marketing strategies he used to sell Bowie were brilliant, even though much of what he hailed about the greatness of his "star" was a fabrication. That does not matter as advertising in all forms often stretches the truth somewhat. Defries is often credited with originality in his marketing approach. Having made my living in the sales profession I can say that the techniques used by Defries were not original and he did not invent them. Two things come to mind that all salespeople know. First, "If you build it they will come," and second, "Sell the sizzle, not the steak." In other words, "Make your product so desirable that people MUST have it and that is accomplished by showing the customer what it "can" do. It is the "want" that you create and if you make the package desirable enough people will line up to buy it. I am not deflating Defries' talents by saying what he did was not new, I am saying that he took proven sales techniques and applied them brilliantly. You can't argue with what he accomplished in a few short years. He used his marketing abilities to rake in millions and at the same time his marketing strategies left a legacy of failures. 

Looking at the success that Defries enjoyed with Bowie tends to overshadow the fact that Bowie was not the only entertainer under contract at MainMan Artistes. There was Iggy Pop however the behavior of Iggy could not be blamed on Defries. Once Defries sent someone to check up on Iggy who was staying on the west coast in MainMan's rented mansion in Los Angeles. As could be expected the report that came back was a bit too enlightening. It seemed everyone at the house had eyes that were "pinned," which is a term used on heroin addicts as heroin causes the pupils of the eyes to become very tiny. The equipment had been pawned and there were "rigs," a term for syringes, all over the house.  Defries was not responsible for this except he should never had left Iggy unattended. Taking his clothes off and telling the radio audience he was masturbating during an interview was beyond Defries control. The failures of Iggy were the fault of Iggy and no one else. This was true throughout his career until he got his act somewhat together in 1977. Mick Ronson was signed as a solo artist to MainMan and Defries could do nothing with him. I want to make this clear that this is only my opinion about Mick Ronson. He was spectacular with Bowie and I think a lot of Bowie's work would have suffered if it were not for him. As a solo artist though I do not think his work is something that is essential to own. I will admit that I only own Slaughter On Tenth Avenue and that may be the reason that I do not have more. To me the album is uneventful at best. Ronson produced a local Vancouver band here sometime in the mid eighties, if I am not mistaken, called The Payolas. This album, as well as a single from it did rather well. I admit that I am no scholar on Ronson's career after Bowie, and there may be some of his work that I have not heard that may change my opinion. The general opinion however of the record buying public could not be swayed by Defries hype, billboards in Times Square, tours and full page magazine ads. Defries could do nothing for Ronson the way he did for Bowie. As far as artists are concerned, the same thing could be said for Dana Gillespie. Defries struck out there as well. To make a long story short, it is safe to say that of all of the things Defries set about to make famous he failed with all of them, except Bowie. A memorable one was a play MainMan financed. It was a comedy about the life of Marilyn Monroe that closed after one performance at a loss of $250,000.00. 

One thing Defries was good at though and never seemed to fail was trading foreign currency on the international markets using the company's money. From what I read he did extremely well profit wise. His biggest failure though was due to stupidity, indifference or arrogance. Take your pick. How could anyone not insure that their only source of income, the source that made you a millionaire, was not looked after. This mistake was as idiotic as killing and roasting the Golden Goose for dinner. I hope it tasted good. If Tony Defries would have made sure that every part of the fantasy world he created for Bowie was looked after there would have been no problems, at least not yet. What shocks me is how he failed to take care of the most obvious thing and of course that was money.  His actions defy all logic.  I want to take a look at the events, there aren't many, that lead to Bowie's discoveries about MainMan and his business agreements with Defries.  It is relatively easy to see how it all unravelled and in the process learn just how foolish Defries was in his handling of Bowie.  Although Bowie had yet to see success in America but he was a star in England.  The Diamond Dogs tour did do a lot to promote Bowie to a wider audience, and even with the limited audience he had one thing was certain, he was making money. Defries had immersed David in a world where everything was handled for you, you were taken care of and money was no object. Bowie saw the offices, the limo and the real estate. Bowie knew this lifestyle was costing a fortune. His room service bill for example was $17,000.00 for ONE WEEK.  Although MainMan paid for it all, and then billed Bowie, Defries kept him too dependant. David only got an allowance that had now been raised from the $75.00 a week to $500.00. This meant Bowie never had any money in his pocket, most of it going to taxi's, cigarettes and his recently acquired taste for cocaine. This is where Defries made a bad mistake. Leaving Bowie without sufficient cash for himself made him question the reason why he had to beg and borrow when there was all of this money being spent on other things.  If  Defries had kept Bowie happy by making sure he had money in his pocket to look after his day to day needs, then there would be no reason for Bowie to question where the money was going. Tony Zanetta, the president of MainMan by title only, was with Bowie one day when the money had run out again and Bowie had to track down Tony for more.  The degree of neglect Defries had is illustrated by the fact that when Bowie phoned for money he often would not take the call. This behavior prompted Bowie to ask Zanetta why he was doing without when everyone else, especially Defries, was not. What further proves my point about Bowie having no control over his career is strengthened by the fact Bowie complained to Zanetta that he never had a say in anything.  Zanetta states that the actual quote was, " Half this company is mine and I have no say in anything. I don't know what's going out, I don't know what's coming in"  That is the last thing Defries wanted Bowie to get an answer to. 

It is July, 21st. 1974 and this day was about to get real interesting. 

Tony Zanetta told Bowie that his deal with Defries was common knowledge, he got fifty percent of the profits  generated by him after expenses were deducted. He told Bowie that he owned NO PART of MainMan. The next sentence must have stunned Bowie with disbelief. "MainMan belongs exclusively to Tony," Zanetta said. Personally I feel very sympathetic towards David Bowie at this moment. We have all been the victim of embarrassment, the one where it seems that everyone in the entire world knew something that appeared to be basic common knowledge. Everyone except us. Bowie was not an idiot, naive yes, but not an idiot. Even so, he must have felt like a complete fool.  How could everyone know but him he must have reasoned. Zanetta further explained that Defries had total control over him and his money. Bowie did all he could to save himself from appearing even more foolish by telling Zanetta that Defries was his "partner" and he knew he owned half of the company.  Zanetta asked David if he even knew what the terms of the contract were and told Bowie that surely he must know what deal he had with Tony.  I envision that it must have seemed like a nightmare that you can't wake up from and the nightmare grew a lot worse when David Bowie admitted the truth and said to Tony Zanetta, "I  never understood it." In a last ditch effort at redemption Bowie again stated that he KNEW he owned fifty percent of MainMan. I can't begin to imagine the fear of the future when Zanetta told Bowie to get a lawyer and an accountant. The lawyer can look at the terms of all the contracts.  Meanwhile, the accountant can have a look at the books and tell Bowie where "his" money is going.  Bowie withdrew from reality at this point and his "character" took over. He was safe again now. He was  back in the fantasy.  He was a star, and this star had a tour to finish and an album to make. Besides, he knew he owned fifty percent of MainMan. 

Bowie went back on the road to finish the  Diamond Dogs tour, alone. Yes he was alone and I use that figuratively. Wind of his discovery naturally got to Defries who knew it was only a matter of time before the shit hit the fan.  Now he was "punishing" Bowie as one would discipline a naughty child. Defries would not speak to him. Bowie still did not know the legalities of his arrangements with MainMan as he had not sought advice from any  lawyers or accountants. Why? Simple. Bowie, even to this day avoids any confrontations at all cost and he always lets someone else sort out any nastiness. This is really the first time he did not have a manager taking care of his needs as well as directing his career. Bowie was never much at taking care of himself in those days, he was too insulated and looked after by willing admirers. They were replaced by Coco who is the person that is responsible for Bowie making it this far. Making it this far "ALIVE,"  I mean.  Bowie and Defries probably thought they knew what each other was thinking, so there was no immediate urgency to joggle for position in a battle that they knew was unavoidable. It wasn't "if" the face off was coming, it was more of a matter of "when."  The distance they created between each other was similar to prize fighters taking their corners before round one. If either was concerned about the impending clash they did not show it. Defries was armed with contracts that were "unbreakable." His attention was focused on the career of another of his "artists," namely Dana Gillespie, for the moment.  In the meantime  from August the 11 to the 18 Bowie was in Philadelphia at Sigma Studios recording his new album called Dancin'. The name was later changed to Young Americans. This was enough of a distraction to make him forget about Defries and on September 2nd. the Diamond Dogs tour resumed and would not finish until December 1st. 

The character was without a script due to the fact Defries was not there to make all of the decisions. Bowie had the backdrop and some other expensive accessories dropped for the last leg of the tour to reduce costs. This was done without consulting Defries and it was viewed as if Bowie was  testing his boundaries. Bowie was attempting to look as though he was taking charge but he was moving cautiously which was smart on his part as you did not want to anger the party that you would eventually have to negotiate your freedom with. If Defries was furious enough he could tie things up in court for an eternity. Bowie took to hanging out with celebrities and becoming involved in the social scene of the rich and famous. This was a novelty to him. He was hanging out for awhile with Elizabeth Taylor, of all people, and Bette Middler who is still a friend today.  He struck up quite a friendship with John Lennon who was living with May Pang at the time. This social scene was a haven where drug use was quite acceptable. That meant any drug from weed to heroin. Bowie did, or does, as I do not know if he still uses anything, not like  what he terms as "slow drugs. He liked drugs that kept him awake and active so he could continuously work for long periods of time. He once said that science had to find a cure for two things, the common cold and sleep. He tried mostly everything including heroin but his drug of choice was cocaine. He started dabbling in it around the beginning of 73 but kept it fairly hidden, especially from Defries. Defries despised any drug use by Bowie and David was worried enough about the consequences. He only used around a few people from MainMan whom he trusted such as Coco and Zanetta. Things were different now as he used fairly openly.  He did not do it exactly in Defries' face but openly enough that Defries would find out. The amount of cocaine he was using was quite substantial by mid to late 1974, turning to massive amounts by 1976. His use was enough at this time however that it alarmed some of those close to him such as Coco. She was extremely worried as he was sleeping little and hardly eating. She was close to telling Defries but her loyalty to Bowie was strong enough that she pledged to care for him personally rather than cause him any more problems. Defries did make a surprise appearance, walking into a session at Sigma, and confronted Bowie on a number of items including his cocaine use. Defries told Bowie he was throwing away his career by not listening to him and another of the reasons being the sound of Young Americans, which he did not like. Bowie wasn't caught red handed. 

If you were not an "insider"  who knew better then things  seemed relatively in control around David, from appearances.  Defries and Bowie kept mostly apart which created an air of calmness. It was calmness however that one experiences just before a storm.  The set was about to change and a new play to begin, one that was not written by Defries. This character would soon be permanently laid to rest. There would be another born to take his place, this character was different and I don't think that the world was ready. 
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Part Nine

In Atlanta on December 1, 1974 the curtain closes for the last time on The Year Of The Diamond Dogs. It is over, now just a part of history. On December 3 Bowie is in New York at The Record Plant where Dancin', the new album, has gone through a transformation and has now become Young Americans. The album is at the mixing stage and Bowie has been spending a considerable amount of time in the company of John Lennon. Like the new album Bowie was also being transformed. It is always a slow process to change into another personality, but this time the process was speeded up somewhat.  The problem was that no one was prepared for what emerged. The change started to take place in July just after Bowie learned about his situation with Defries. This new personality was the result of a combination of factors. The manifestation was partially the work of Bowie reinventing himself and the other contributor was the pressure from the circumstances he was in.  Most of Bowie's reinventions were developed slowly over periods that were in some cases years. Although each personality was different there were only a few that were radically different. Most shared some of the personality traits and characteristics of the previous character, but this time it was different. This time everything would change, nothing was spared and history itself was about to be erased. 

In many cases a person who experienced anything along the lines of the revelation Bowie received about being used in the manner Defries used him would more than likely feel quite helpless. It would be quite natural to feel not only that but also one would judge themselves as being rather unintelligent, okay downright stupid, for allowing themselves to get into such a predicament. The insult would be deepened by the fact that everyone around you knew the terms of the contracts you signed and you did not.  A great deal of embarrassment would certainly be felt every time you were around any of the staff from MainMan. What is worse is that David still has to work for a manager he could no longer trust. The resentment Bowie must have harboured was probably considerable for the fact that this manager whom he felt used him still gets most of his money and ownership of all of his work.  To top it all off Bowie is also trapped. He has to work and take instructions from a person he has little respect for and he has no choice. Normally a person could walk away from a bad situation but in Bowie's case he is forced to stay where he is due to the contracts. Remember that one contract that Bowie signed gave Defries the right to manage Bowie for a considerable amount of time. The personal management contract binds Bowie to Defries FOREVER. 

Bowie avoided confrontations. Bowie had most of his major decisions made for him. Defries paid his living expenses while Coco looked after the everyday tasks such as feeding him and keeping track of his appointment. Bowie was totally dependent on others to look after him. This situation was not new, it was the normal style Bowie was accustomed to. He never had to be assertive as he was cared for and very rarely did without anything. It is because Bowie avoided confrontation and never had to resort to forcing his will on others and that makes one trait in his new persona quite unique. Bowie started to become the complete opposite, he became  assertive and was not afraid to talk to Defries in a way he never could have in the past. Although at this time he knew that he had to gain some control of his own life and his work, he was still not ready to cope with controlling it all personally. This character was developing what can best be described as a "power" which will be felt by anyone who is around Bowie, and I am including those in an audience. This power gave Bowie the strength to dispatch Tony Zanetta with a message to take to Defries.  This was the message telling Defries that not all of the elaborate set would be used on the last leg of the Diamond Dogs tour due to expenses. The background which was a collage of buildings representing Hunger City would be replaced by a screen and using projections on a screen from a camera instead. This may not seem like a big thing however you must remember that this lavish presentation was "Defries baby" and it was the equivalent to a slap in his face to take it away. Especially after an investment of $400,000.00 and all of the promotional expenses invested. Plus, NOBODY said no to Defries. After Defries had his tirade on Bowie at Sigma over Bowie's lifestyle, drug use, change in musical style and his rebellion against Defries' authority Bowie had the internal fortitude to look at Defries and say, "Go screw yourself." Behavior like that from Bowie was unheard of. 

Officially the Diamond Dogs tour finished on December 1, however not for Bowie. For him it ended much sooner. On November 1st, 2nd and 3rd Bowie played Radio City Music Hall and by this time the transformation into his new being had progressed to the point that it was noticeable. The new character was different and not compatible with the surroundings, it did not "fit" into the world of the Diamond Dogs. So out of place was this new persona that it drew the attention of the press and they did not hold back in their subsequent reviews. Hit Parader said that, "Bowie is not a rock n' roller  anymore. The article went onto get brutal enough to state that, "He's not worth seeing in concert." The New York times called the show "empty" and "cardboard" ending with the opinion that the overall performance as being "disappointing." Creem magazine was the most descriptive calling David a, "Johnny Ray on cocaine singing about 1984." Cocaine was mentioned more than once in the review. The drug use by this time was getting to be on the side of excessive and while most celebrities try at best to conceal their vices Bowie almost flaunted in. Bowie would not usually do drugs necessarily in front of people he did not know, frequent trips to the bathroom for long periods of time was normal, but he had no concerns about being visibly stoned.  Bowie did not care who saw him at all when he was high, and I mean nobody, even if it was millions. 

On September third 1994 film maker Alan Yentob made a documentary about David Bowie titled Cracked Actor. The documentary is well made and unlike most documentaries where all you hear mostly is the commentator, this film allows Bowie to speak at length uninterrupted. The documentary opens with Bowie in the back of his limousine and within the first few seconds a siren is heard from somewhere outside. "Is that for us," Bowie asks who is visibly quite concerned and it is obvious why. You can tell from almost the minute the film starts that he is high and remains so throughout the entire the show. I am fortunate enough to have a video copy of an interview with Bowie on The Caveat Show which was recorded on December 4th, 1974. The interview is rather lengthy and the topics Cavett covers with Bowie are quite diverse. Apart from the interview being well done due to the subject matter it is also quite valuable due to the fact that Bowie's condition is easily apparent. Bowie is wearing the trademark blue long sleeve sweater, with the white dots, along with the baggy pants and suspenders that were the "look" he had taken on for this period. He also has with him a cane which was supposed to be left off the set but grabbed at the last minute before he went on. The cane seemed necessary as it appears to be a security blanket that he would be lost without. By the look on Cavett's face he is aware that he has his hands full. Bowie performs a few numbers that in my opinion are far from memorable. The most interesting part commences when Bowie takes his seat for the interview. The very first thing one notices is the fact that Bowie has lost a fair bit of weight, and by a "fair bit" I mean a lot. He is about as round as a bean pole and his cheeks are sunken. The "Bowie charm" is as smooth as ever and Bowie is quick to provide interesting answers accompanied by his wit that is, as always. lightning fast. One characteristic I have noticed about Bowie that is constant is the fact that no matter how blasted he is he does not lose his faculties. There have been instances, in 76, where the audience reported that he was so drunk on stage he was staggering, yet if you listen to the bootleg of the show the performance is flawless. This has happened on more than a few isolated instances. He can't sit still on the Cavett Show putting the cane behind his neck, twirling it around and generally devoting an incredible amount of time to it while listening to questions. The fact that Bowie has just done several lines of cocaine before sitting down with Cavett is blatant. He holds the side of each nostril while sniffing and his sniffs throughout the entire show loud enough to be clearly audible. His voice is rough because his nostrils are plugged up as though he has a cold, but his condition is not due to illness, it is self inflicted. At one point Bowie is focused so much on tweaking the tip of the cane along the carpet it prompts Cavett to say to Bowie, "What are you drawing." 

December was a busy month that saw Bowie change residences. He moved into a rented house because until then he had been living in hotels that were costing him an average of $20,000.00 per month. This was the start of David, through his new character, taking control of hi own affairs. Angie had been replaced by Ava Cherry who he was living with openly and he did not care who knew or what they thought.  RCA did not like Defries and were delighted when Bowie appeared in the office one day asking to see the books concerning the moneys paid out from the RCA account with MainMan. Shocked would have been the only emotion that swept over him. It was MILLIONS. MILLIONS. Advances, royalties, advertising expenses, tour costs, hotel bills. The advances alone totalled five to seven million dollars.  It all sunk in now. Millions of dollars went to MainMan and all from his work, yet he saw a mere pittance of it and was reduced to begging and borrowing at times for cigarette money.  The beginning of the end comes on December 29 in the form of a telegram to Defries from Bowie while he is on holiday with his girlfriend on the island of Mustique. Bowie will one day reside on that island which he could never envision at this time. The telegram is a simple one and short. "Your services are no longer required" and "Legal action will commence to terminate all contracts between the petitioner, MainMan and Tony Defries." Defries holiday is ruined. This was sent after Bowie mentioned his woes to John Lennon who then advised him to get a lawyer and sue Defries. Bowie was being aggressive in taking back control of his career. Lennon or Kenneth Pitt, who he also asked for advice , did not make the decision regarding Defries and MainMan, Bowie did, and rarely in the past did he make his own decisions, leaving that up to others. Out of the taking of control came something else. There was a quality that was developing that Bowie never displayed before and that was arrogance. It would only grow as well, so much that it would be the most noticeable trait of the character which was emerging. The character would be know as The Thin White Duke. 

RCA liked Young Americans, so much that an advance of 250,000 singles of the title track were ordered and they would back the album with a $200,000 advertising campaign. On February 21 Fame is released as a single and becomes Bowies first ever number one hit in America. It goes Gold selling over 500,000 copies. Young Americans will be the largest selling album to date reaching a total of 975,000 copies. Almost, but not quite enough to be certified Platinum, which is sales of one million copies. That will not happen for another year and would be on an album that was made with little co-operation from him, as he was against the concept all together, but legally had no say in its release.  Bowie asked RCA to refrain from paying MainMan any future royalties and instead pay them to him. The MainMan/RCA contract prevented this but they found another avenue and that was to pay all the money that RCA was obligated to pay into an escrow account instead pending the outcome of the legal action against Defries. Withholding money is a powerful tool if done legally, and one that can be used by either side as it was in this case.  Defries went and petitioned the court shortly after he received the telegram to obtain an injunction to halt the distribution of Young Americans due to Bowie's breach of the legal contracts he had with Defries and MainMan and would no longer honour. The injunction was rightfully granted by the court and in addition Defries suspended any payments from MainMan to Bowie, including his salary. Bowie had no income, at all.  So, no money for MainMan and no money for Bowie. Stalemate. If Defries had money he could have held his position indefinitely, however he did not and neither did Bowie. This sufficed to cause a relatively quick settlement between the two with negotiations from March until June. It was all finally settled and these were the new terms of his arrangement with Defries dated March 1, 1975. 

Defries and Bowie would jointly own the two albums which MainMan purchased the rights to from Mercury. In addition MainMan would jointly own the six albums Bowie recorded on the RCA label when he was under contract to MainMan. Namely these albums are Hunky Dory, Ziggy Stardust, Aladdin Sane, Pin Ups, Diamond Dogs and David Live. The royalties were to be divided equally between the two. This was a major victory for Bowie as he got the royalties paid to him directly now as a lump sum, and not after expenses were deducted by MainMan. Bowie's contract with MainMan legally did not expire until the end of 1982. It was agreed that MainMan would receive 16.66% royalties on Young Americans and any other material recorded by Bowie until the expiration date of the original agreement. As far as the income from publishing was concerned it was agreed that MainMan would receive 25% and for live appearances they would receive 5%. RCA became very instrumental in helping to negotiate an end to this settlement, and as far as I am concerned went above and beyond what any other company would do for an artist and I feel that Bowie should be indebted to them for their generosity. MainMan did not have enough money to pay Bowie what he was owed and so RCA agreed to pay MainMan $325,000.00 so Bowie would get paid. Not only that, RCA agreed to pay all of MainMan's unpaid bills which amounted to around $590,000.00. This money included 15,000 pounds a British court awarded Kenneth Pitt in a management dispute with MainMan. In June Bowie heads to New Mexico to star in his first feature film. Just prior to that he moves into the house of lawyer Michael Lippman who becomes his new manager. Nothing could have prepared Lippman for the character he let in his front door and life was about to take a real turn. A turn towards the bizarre, that is. 

Lippman was under the impression, and who wouldn't be, that Bowie would be easy to be around and by having him around would be an excellent way to get to know his new client. What Lippman did not know was he invited in something other than David Bowie. Michael Lippman had graciously opened his home to a character he would find rather perplexing, and one that was about to turn his residence, and his life, upside down.  David Bowie had become The Thin White Duke. 

AladInsaNE 

To be continued............

	Posted 4 February 2002


Part Ten

The return of The Thin White Duke? Hardly, this was it's inaugural appearance. Had it surfaced before then it would not have been a welcome guest at too many places, and not just at Lippman’s, anywhere is more like it, and believe me that it would not be on too many guests lists. The creature wasted no time in adding its own personal touch to the house by replacing the knick nacks on the coffee table and other places with bowls of cocaine that were never empty. Bowie weighed 112 pounds and took to wearing suits. He would go out and drive around, without a licence of course, in a yellow Volkswagen Beetle. A sight to see I imagine.  It was decided  by Bowie one day that Mr. Lippman’s outdoor swimming pool was possessed. At the bottom Bowie had seen the figure of Satan. David performed an exorcism that took care of the problem as he never had to perform a second one. The Thin White Duke had mystical powers. He was not a human. 

While The Thin White Duke was materializing he believed he was being targeted by people proficient in the practice of the black arts. Bowie believed that on Walpurgis Night, May Eve on April 30th he was going to be destroyed. This is night is one of the eight times a year when witches gather to celebrate their powers. In a state of fear and panic Bowie sought consultation with a white witch by the name of Wally Emlark, whom he had recommended to him by another white witch he met through Robert Fripp, of all people,  when she was recording with him in 1972. Wally had the answers, she knew what Bowie really was and this was her explanation to him. Bowie was really a "walk in," a visitor from outer space. He was an alien in human form who had a mission to fulfil on Earth and this mission was to change the consciousness of the world. This task was a difficult one and quite  often "walk ins" dulled their pain by using drugs, drinking heavily and having sex. David agreed with Wally Emlark's assessment because to him it made total sense. Walk ins are always a target for the forces of evil and walk ins have only five years before their destruction. FIVE YEARS. Now he knew where the concept for Ziggy Stardust came from, it was about him. It was a coded message telling him who he was and warning him. Bowie told Emlark that his five years is "almost up." To save him a night was set to perform a much needed exorcism to ward off the forces attempting to destroy Bowie. Bowie was in Los Angeles and Emlark was in New York when the phone rang. Purity and protection came from the ritualistic burning of white and blue candles Bowie was told as he lit them. Salt was sprinkled over the room to absorb the negative influences. Elmlark had gathered together a number of witches who stood inside of a pentagram at Elmlark home. The exorcism began. It ended with them all focusing their energy to establish a Cone Of Power that would surround David and protect him. Wanting to make sure that the job was complete Bowie turned to his copy of the Thesaurus Exorcismorum. This book of exorcism rites was usually reserved for use by ordained priests, however Bowie would substitute himself for the role. He was convinced that the rituals were successful when the water in the pool started to bubble. He thought he also heard an explosion. The evil forces may have been put at bay, however Claudia Jennings was still searching for Bowie to recoup money for a $2,000.00 phone bill he rang up at her apartment. 

The powers to protect Bowie were now at work. Never the less it was important not to let one's guard down and caution must be maintained. If someone were to obtain something close and personal to Bowie the results could be tragic as it could be used to  enhance a spell to give it intensely destructive power.  This can be likened somewhat to a Voodoo Doll which requires something from the intended victim such as an article of clothing or a piece of hair. The solution to prevent the "evil ones" from obtaining any personal items, especially discarded items from ones body, was to store them safely away from outsiders. This is the reason Bowie commandeered Lippman's refrigerator, it was so it could be converted to a "safety deposit box," so to speak. The refrigerator no longer housed milk, vegetables, food and other items which are commonplace in most. Taking place of these perishable items were David Bowie's nail clippings, leftover hair after having been cut as well as an array of tightly sealed bottles. The bottles on the shelf in the refrigerator contained his urine. All was safe. 

The Lippman home was a Spanish style hacienda. It was furnished comfortably and the home had plenty of windows that made the interior very bright and warm. That is until Bowie arrived. The shades were now drawn in any room he was in and only opened to look outside when he was searching the house for "intruders," as he often did. The bolero hat he constantly wore had little balls hanging from it. Bowie had, on his own initiative, redecorated some of the walls with his own drawings. There were pentagrams of various shapes and sizes drawn on the walls accompanied by the word "AUMGN." This was an Aleister Crowley variation of the Buddhist word "OM." which he believed could harness the energy of the universe.  Ashtrays overflowed with Gitanes. The name Tony Defries was taboo and was not allowed to be spoken in the presence of David, lest one wish to be the subject of a verbal dressing down. Some evenings at midnight Bowie would "cast spells" to battle the evil aimed at him or perform "magik rituals." The rituals sometimes came from various books, however quite often they were ones that Bowie invented himself. Burning the proper candle created a "psychic mirror" and evil would bounce off of it leaving Bowie unharmed.  It was believed that salt absorbed the negative influences, as I mentioned earlier, and was used liberally. The names of adversaries were written on pieces of paper with a quill pen in "doves blood" and a mixture of cinnamon, rose oil, bay, alcohol and other substances to make "dragon's blood." The paper was folded and a candle lit. Safe once again. 

Bowie lived every minute of life, and one could staying up for up to eight days straight. There were bits of paper with scribbled notes, lyrics and spells littering his room. Once Lippman recalls him sitting on the couch and playing with a piece of string for a considerable amount of time while staring into oblivion, as though he was lost in his own thoughts, he looked rather "confused." He had to get out of Los Angeles and he had two reasons why. One being that he had too much time on his hands which helped fuel his behavior that was far from normal, and number two, he had a date to keep with Nicholas Roeg in New Mexico. He kept his appointment. 
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Columbia Pictures had agreed to finance three films for director Nicolas Roeg. The wording of the agreement did not state which films Columbia was to finance, they had the right to pick them and if they turned down a proposed film then Roeg was free to go and secure backing and obtain distribution rights from elsewhere. The story is about an alien who lives on a planet that has been plagued with a severe drought, so severe there is little water left and he and his family face a certain death. The alien leaves his home planet and comes to Earth in search of water and his space ship is destroyed on arrival. The planet he is from has superior technology that he is able to capitalize on . The technology is used to make better electronic consumer products such as cameras and sound systems. He is able to build a multi million, or billion dollar corporation selling goods made with this new technology in a very short time. This money is needed to finance the building of a new space ship to get him home. The ship is built but before he can leave the authorities discover he is not human and he is detained. He does escape custody but by this time it is far to late to save his family, and besides his space ship was confiscated, leaving him no way to return to his planet. He came in search of water to drink,  yet on Earth he discovers something else to his liking and that is alcohol. The story ends with him sitting in a bar, drunk, and  sadly with all hope of saving his family gone this became his normal state. The film was to be called The Man Who Fell To Earth. 

Roegs first choice for the lead role was David Bowie and he got him a copy of the script. To understand more about Roegs directing style Bowie viewed some of the previous films Roeg had directed. A meeting was arranged at Bowie's residence during the same period that Young Americans was being mixed, early December 1974. Bowie needs a watch, and still does for that matter, as he is to this day extremely tardy. Roeg was a victim of Bowie's concept of time as he was kept waiting for eight hours before he finally arrived. The meeting lasted fifteen minutes and ended without anything signed between the two of them. Bowie verbally agreed to do the film and Roeg trusted him at his word. The salary was to be in the $200,000.00 range which was generous for a first picture, especially for someone with no experience. It was a gamble and Roeg was willing to throw the dice.  Bowie must have been delighted at Roegs offer because he would be paid a tidy sum to be in this film and he wouldn't even have to act. He wasn't really a human being anyway, he was a "walk in," an alien. He just had to be himself. 

Columbia Pictures were not gamblers and they displayed several concerns about this project. The first concern was Bowie, he had never acted before so they had no indicator of his ability to draw in a movie audience. Roeg wanted a budget of $1.3 million and Columbia reasoned that if he wanted this amount costs could easily balloon to become a number far higher than they were willing to pay. Columbia refused anything beyond a maximum of $1.1 million, which for a movie budget is a pittance. In the end Columbia passed on the deal. British Lion, a rather small English film company, offered to co-produce the film with Columbia but this offer was rejected.  British Lion thought they had a deal with Paramount only to have Paramount pull out AFTER they saw the film and so this left British Lion to finance the entire project. In June Bowie boarded a train to Santa Fe to begin acting in his first major motion picture. The cocaine went with him. 

I want to cut here and talk a bit about the soundtrack for the film and Bowie's involvement with it.  The reason for this is that I know of a lot of misconceptions, misinformation and untruths that are exchanged among Bowie fans regarding the soundtrack and I wanted to set the record straight. The initial idea to have David Bowie write the music for the soundtrack of The Man Who Fell To Earth was Nicholas Roeg. British Lion was not fully consulted on the idea and this is what later became the major problem. I have heard some say it was contractual difficulties with Defries or MainMan but this is not the case, as neither were involved. Roeg's idea was strictly for marketing purposes and it was a good one.  Young Americans was getting extensive airplay at the time and Fame had become a number one single. By having Bowie write the soundtrack it was hoped that those songs would get radio airplay, as well as be performed by David in concert, and by doing so would give the film added publicity at no extra cost to the film distributor. The benefit would be great if the film could be linked to the music of David. It is true that while filming in New Mexico Bowie was also working on the music for the soundtrack. Now, I have heard it a thousand times, and seen it written in countless Bowie articles that the tracks on Low were originally written for the soundtrack of The Man Who Fell To Earth. This is totally incorrect, Low is not composed from the unused tracks for the film. There is one song however that did make it on to Low that was going to be used for the film. The name of that song is Subterraneans. Now, the reason that Bowie's music did not make it on to the film is because British Lion did not promise the project to one single artist. What they were doing in fact was taking submissions from a number of different artists for review and the job would be awarded that way. Bowie was told by the heads at British Lion that he was free to submit his work along with the others for "consideration," but there were no guarantees. Having worked for almost free for so many years Bowie was not about to enter a contest in hopes of  getting his material used. He basically told them to fuck off. So, there you have it.  Now, since this was such a creative period for Bowie, and his work was on a level best described as "genius" we can only imagine what he would have written. All Bowie fans lose out due to the stupidity, in my opinion anyway, of British Lion. 

Roeg said that Bowie was a joy to work with while making this film, and he also said that there was no pretentious attitude to deal with as most directors have to with actors. Bowie dutifully studied and rehearsed his lines and he was open to taking suggestions to improve his acting skills. Bowie, charming and co-operative. The filming went without any major setbacks.  This wasn't really  a setback, well it could be depending where one fits into the story. Bowie arose rather groggy on a day where he was required to be in some rather demanding scenes with fellow actor Rip Torn.  Some kind individual went and fetched Bowie some No-Doz, which is an over the counter drug to keep a person alert. The drug is white. Well I guess Bowie reasoned that if it was a drug and the drug was white it could only be one thing, so he snorted it. 

Three months had passed and it was September 1975. Bowie was back in Los Angeles as everything had wound up on the set of The Man Who Fell To Earth and the film was in the can.  Without having anyone as an authority figure around left Bowie to his own devices and he resumed the lifestyle he had before departing  for Santa Fe. The authority figures had almost all been removed from David's life, they were exorcised, I mean that figuratively and not literally. Lippman was the only one remaining. 

Bowie was about to enter one of the most amazing parts of his career. I mean this in terms of his work and his life. His work, in my opinion is unsurpassed. His next album would be one of the highlights of David Bowie's career and this album is close to, if not, flawless. Bowie is constantly referred to as a "genius" by his fans and you can't argue the point when looking at what he accomplished in this period of his life from 1974 - 1978. This tour will rate as his best by almost all who saw it and I am speaking here from experience, having been one of those extremely fortunate ones who saw it. His lifestyle was about to get very intriguing. I like to use understatements at times and you just read one of the biggest ones I ever made. 
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	Part Twelve

Most of Bowie's characters had no real concrete names with which to be identified by. Yes, there was Ziggy Stardust, but no one really referred to him as Halloween Jack during the Diamond Dogs period and this is true for most of the other personas as well.  The characters were more identifiable by their looks, personality traits, and by the variations of the work they produced. Although not addressed as such, this creature did have a name. He called it The Thin White Duke. The name was perfect, a more than satisfactory self description. It was very self descriptive actually as it was the name Bowie gave to the autobiography he said he was currently writing. Of course the autobiography never appeared. The character was born and the only thing left to do by September 1975 was to write the script. 

Earl Slick, Dennis Davis, Roy Bittan, George Murray, Carlos Alomar and Harry Maslin. These were the ones that Bowie used to help him set the tone and write the script for this new phase of his existence. It was all built around a new album that they began recording in September of 1975, and this new album told the whole story.  The Thin White Duke was A creature that lived in isolation, yet was possessed with a knowledge that made him superior to all, so much so that he was as near to what we would call a Deity. He could rule the world but chose instead to live in a world of his own which allowed no others in. His inner world was that of turmoil, paranoia, and a place where a battle raged between good and evil.  This character was powerful and the power was not in physical strength. The Thin White Duke possessed the mystical powers derived from Magick and harnessing other cosmic forces that humans are incapable of. This creature was  definitely a "walk in," an alien who set about to change human consciences, and it did try by telling the media of a new world that it could create with himself as the leader. The Thin White Duke displayed an aura of arrogant superiority and therefore listened to no one. There was a weakness however that emerged throughout this arrogant veil of power. He wanted one thing most of all and he strived and was humble in his search for the truth and of the existence of God. The world he occupied was a world of contrast, a bleakness of black and white. 

The sessions for Station To Station were held at Cherokee Recording Studios in Los Angeles. Bowie mirrored the habits  of a wealthy cocaine user, he used to "binge." Instead of grams, ounces were the typical weight and the cost over all of those years was astronomical. Cocaine has dropped considerably in price since the seventies and this is one reason its use is so widespread. Currently cocaine sells for the average price of $80.00 a gram and in quantities for $1,200.00 to $1,600.00 an ounce. In the seventies and eighties however cocaine was referred to as, " the rich man's drug," and any sustained  use of it was restricted to celebrities and others who belong to the society of the wealthy and privileged. The sole reason for this was the cost. Cocaine used to sell in those days for an exorbitant price of $180.00, that's correct, one hundred and eighty dollars a gram, which made an ounce cost slightly over five THOUSAND dollars. Bowie once dropped an ounce on the floor in his changing room backstage at one of the shows on the Diamond Dogs tour. "We'll just get another one,"  he said as he walked out leaving the floor covered in powder. Later it was reported that many of the road crew were seen rolling up dollar bills while walking in the direction of the spill. While on a binge Bowie would go sometimes over six days with no sleep and little in the way of food. Coco was keeping him relatively healthy with countless jugs of whole milk. Toward the end of these long stretches Bowie would get hyperactive, "jumpy," and then a certain degree of paranoia sets in. This is all too a common condition, not just for cocaine users, but for anyone who is sleep deprived. When sleep did come it was often lasted over twenty four hours. Waking up was the signal to start over again. 

As usual Bowie's regard for time was absent as he showed up for the first recording  session a respectable sixteen hours late, and with an appearance of having been up for a considerable amount of time without sleep. By a considerable amount of time I mean days. I can think of no better time than now to mention a few details concerning an aspect of Bowie that is rarely talked about, and that is his how he works in the studio. There is little out there on the subject, but what I have managed to get my hands on and read has been extremely informative, in the sense you get a much better understanding  of the man and his level of creativity. First of all, it is standard practice that Bowie usually turns up at the studio with nothing, or very little, in the way of written material. In other words, almost everything is written while in the studio. I have heard this mentioned by many people he has worked with that this fact is accurate. The lyrics to Heroes were written at the microphone, that is according to Tony Visconti. Lodger was completely written in the studio. Station To Station is no exception, however there were one or two songs pre written, but they do not count. The reason they do not count is due to the fact that they were changed so much during the sessions, that there was little left of the originals in the finished versions. That is according to Earl Slick, who played lead guitar on the recording. Slick said, and I quote, "so he basically wrote everything in the studio." Although you can't count the two pre written songs, Bowie did show up at the studio with something that truly was finished, and he brought it from home.  It was a sound effects record, and one of the sounds on it was that of a train, and it is the first heard when the album is played. 

 Bowie is a workaholic in the studio, and not only that, the other musicians that he has worked with over the years have said that they have never seen such a high level of intensity from anyone else they have worked alongside. This was highly evident during the recording of Station To Station.  Bowie, no surprise to anyone here, prefers to work at night with sessions often starting in the early evening and often proceeding on until the next morning. The intensity and the devotion Bowie gave to Station To Station was remarkable. Bowie loved working on that album and often once he started he would not quit. Now, by saying he would not quit I mean that and I mean it in a sense that once he got going there were no obstacles that would hinder him. I will give you a terrific example of this by reiterating a story I heard about one of the sessions at Cherokee Studios, during the recording of Station To Station.  The sessions at Cherokee lasted an average of eight to ten hours. On one occasion there was a particular session which started at seven thirty and went on through the night. At nine o'clock the next morning they were asked to leave by the staff at Cherokee because the studio was pre- booked by another band to use during the day. Bowie was not ready to quit so he asked Harry Maslin to go and find another studio to work in. Maslin managed to get them booked into The Record Plant at ten thirty in the morning. That session lasted until somewhere close to midnight. So, in total, the recording session lasted twenty nine hours. It is now easy to understand why Eno commented that he could never put in the kind of hours David does in the studio. He said it was "unbelievable." 

Now, not only does Bowie work long consecutive hours but he works at breakneck speed. This is one thing that most fans do not know, for good reason considering the amount of low grade biographies published about Bowie, but should as it further enhances the knowledge of how amazing his work is. You must understand how most artists and bands work. They usually have a framework for most of the material to be recorded. In other words at least the music is written, or a rough outline of it, and that is refined to a finished product. Some bands have everything written and rehearsed so it is good enough to put to tape immediately. This method is prudent when you consider the cost of recording in a studio. Most artists take months to write and record a new album and it is not uncommon to hear of some who take a year or more. I understand that in those cases they do not work continuously, however that is still an extremely long time to stay focused on a project. I am referring here to the actual recording phase of an album and not including the mixing, mastering and anything else that is required before the product is shipped off to the distributor. Young Americans took eight days, Let's Dance took eighteen days, Eno was finished on Low in three days. Remember we are talking from scratch, written and recorded. Now, for whatever reason, all I can think of is he really liked the album and wanted it perfect, Station To Station took an unprecedented "eternity" to record. The album took three months before he finished laying down all of the tracks, and believe me, that is an eternity in Bowie time. In my opinion, for what it is worth, that extra time is indicative of the level of devotion David had for this album. Taking that into consideration and coupled with the talent of the musicians and the attention to detail the superior quality of this record is immediately recognizable on the first play. Each Bowie album has their own special merits. Some have more technical musician ship, others highlight vocals or focus on innovative instrumental tracks while others are ventures into new areas and are totally experimental in nature.  After recognizing these facts  it is my opinion that Station To Station is his best album in terms of overall quality and personally I believe it to be absolutely flawless. 

Although the recording of Station To Station was a long process the length of time spent on each individual track varied greatly. When it comes to any mention of the title track of Station To Station by those who contributed to it there is a general consensus that the track was an absolute joy to work on and  a tremendous amount of fun.  Station To Station was an enjoyable album to work on by all accounts, and this makes a difference in the outcome. The whole feel of music can be drastically altered by the attitude of the band, or the attitude of an individual. On this album I believe that this fact is easily discernible that everyone is genuinely "into" what they are doing. It is reflected in their playing. This factor also  works in reverse, and this can be heard  on David Live. Because there was a fight over money that came dangerously close to violence minutes before the show started, the general mood of everyone was tainted a bit. I think the fact the band is unhappy reflects in the music as they do not really sound "into" it.  I think it sounds like the band would rather be doing something more enjoyable, like getting castrated with dull bread knives, as opposed to being on that stage. 

Station To Station, at over ten minutes, was the longest song Bowie had written and it was all composed in the studio. The framework to build that song from, a rough draft of the main parts of the song, such as the melody chord and key changes and the rhythm, was done in FIFTEEN MINUTES! According to Carlos Alomar they had the turned up to a level that was comfortable enough to level most cities. Two Marshall amplifiers paid the ultimate price and they unselfishly gave up their lives during the making of that song.  Lest we forget. Maslin said that it only took a couple of takes to get it down.  Station To Station was a radical change from anything he had done previously but some techniques were carried over from the Diamond Dogs sessions, one of them being the lyric writing. While recording Young Americans there were some difficult spots when it came to the lyrics. Sometimes Bowie would grab the newspaper and "disappear" for ten or fifteen minutes. When he returned he had a few lines of a verse. What he was doing was using the "cut-up" writing technique which was developed by author William S. Burroughs, whom Bowie greatly admired. This technique involved cutting out words and parts of sentences and then piecing them back together at random to form lines and phrases. He really incorporated this method starting on Diamond Dogs and it was used to help write TVC15. 

Although he was fully productive he was still on guard against the evil forces. Cherokee Studios had a few additions on their walls and they were drawings similar to the ones that adorned the walls of the Lippman's home. Cherokee also had a more relaxed and homey atmosphere due to the burning candles set at various locations around the studio. Bowie  was  doing a bit of sculpture work while he was still at the Lippman's. He had constructed a penis made of playing cards and at the top was a little Mickey Mouse. He proudly had his work displayed in the kitchen. Something was happening to Bowie that would have scared people half to death had they known and understood what was  happening right in front of them. Bowie was dying and by January of 1976 he would be dead. 
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With each new character Bowie assumed there was always a bit left of the old one. Even now he was still carrying a large part of the character Ziggy Stardust. There was a lot of  Aladdin Sane, Halloween Jack, The Man Who Sold The World and the "real" David Bowie. But death loomed. This new character was powerful, and so much so that it was consuming every part of Bowie. There would be no other characters left inside or any part of the real Bowie, they would die. There would soon be nothing left, he would be one personality. The Thin White Duke. The complete transformation would take another two to three months and the last stages were difficult.  Bowie was near insanity. 

Bowie was getting difficult to work with when they were nearing the end of the Station To Station sessions. He seemed disconnected with the world "we" live in. He was incessantly wandering around the studio babbling to himself. Often he would sit and talk to Maslin for hours about Ziggy Stardust or other things. At times he was incoherent. Maslin would have to remind him at time that they were in a studio and it was important to get back to the music. Bowie didn't care, he would ramble on to anyone who would listen. He wasn't sleeping. His personality was fragmented and at times he didn't really know who he was.  On November 17, Golden Years was released as a single. Two days later the world would be exposed to The Thin White Duke, and what appeared was most bizarre. Hang on. 

I have it on video.  It appeared on National television , and in prime time, on a show watched by millions of middle age viewers. David Bowie appeared as a guest on The Cher Show, an hour long  musical variety that was televised mid evening, around eight or nine o'clock. It used to be The Sonny and Cher Show until the divorce halved it and the networks thought Cher to be a better draw for viewers. They were right, in America the show was extremely popular among the middle age television audience and the "older" crowd who seem to prefer to watch variety shows. They like them as much as shows that are about private investigators or crime mysteries. I got this information watching my grandmother and her friends. She bought me a copy of Space Oddity one year for Christmas and it was still sealed. This told me immediately that she never taped it before giving it to me, like a Bowie fan would. I think the picture on the back cover may have scared her off. I got it unwrapped in a bag. The next album, and the last, she bought me was Goat's Head Soup by The Rolling Stones which had a less dangerous cover. I never did play Starfucker for her. 

Bowie looked scary. The hair is slicked right back, orange with two blond streaks in the front and he is skeletal thin.  The clothes he is wearing are of a style known as "college prep," dress pants, shirt with no tie and a brown tweed jacket. It makes one conjure up the image of an alien being on cocaine who looks like a member of the Aryan race attending spring semester at Harvard. I am sure the viewing audience really appreciated the fact that Cher was gracious enough to bring Mr. Bowie into their living rooms that evening to entertain them. He was entertaining as well. I have this trait that used to be the envy of my friends. No matter what condition I am in, I look and act exactly the same. You could never tell. This is one trait that David Bowie does not share with me. When he is fucked up, you can tell he's fucked up and that lovely evening that he appeared on The Cher Show he is definitely fucked up. Fucked right up to be exact. 

Can You Hear Me is one of my favourite Bowie songs and live versions are rather difficult to come by and for this reason I am glad that he decided to perform this on the show. As far as the audio portion of the song is concerned, it is not too bad really. It's listenable to. The video portion is another story. In their attempt to be "hip" and appear "cool" to the younger crowd the video engineers decided to enhance the video by adding a little psychedelic flavour to it. Now, this song is not material written by The Beatles, Iron Butterfly or early Pink Floyd which would be appropriate to add these "enhancements" to, it is a slow paced love song and therefore is really not helped in anyway by this tampering. The angle and the distance the camera shots of Bowie do not help improve things much.  First of all the camera is a head shot that fills almost the entire screen. You can see Bowie's eyes revealing the fact that he is there in body only and at times he goes cross eyed.  His head looks like a human skull and the facial expressions are "pained" looking. Now, around this head are all of these flashing psychedelic special effects. It is awful. I do not know what they must have been thinking, instead of entertainment it looks like their priority was to kill a few old folk with video shock.  Even I could have run, and I happen to like the guy. Towards the end of the show it gets better with him and Cher singing a shitty version of Young Americans and a medley of other people's songs. They are older tunes to entertain those senior citizens  who managed to survive the assault of Can You Hear Me. The end of the medley is priceless. Once finished Bowie tries to look down Cher's top. Yes, you heard me. She notices and his response is to lick his lips like some hungry animal waiting to pounce on its prey. The show went to a commercial.  Bowie was not seen again. 

Bowie was free from anyone telling him what to do, he was responsible for himself. This was not such a good thing however, as David Bowie could now do anything he wanted. Leaving Bowie unattended was asking for trouble as this new character was not afraid to act anyway it wanted and with its pompous and arrogant personality it would leave some memorable impressions on a few people. Not the impressions that one should leave however. On Nov 25, 1975, just two days after the broadcast of The Cher Show, Bowie was again out promoting himself. This time it was an interview. The world we live in today is a world of communication where information can travel across continents and oceans in a fraction of a second. Back in 1975 however it was different. There were not a great amount of satellites, which now number in the hundreds, floating over our planet to make the transmission of information as efficient as it is today.  There has always been a high demand for access to satellites by companies and governments, and with the limited amount of them in 1975 access to them was highly valuable. The network that carried The Russell Harty Plus Show in Britain was one who had access to a satellite, and this satellite would be used for a link up to America and a live interview with David Bowie. Bowie had a very important announcement to make that would cause a buzz word wide. The link was established without a problem and the interview was going along fine when Bowie made his announcement. He announced that he would be returning to Britain next year as one of the stops on a world tour.  After the success of Young Americans Bowie was in demand and the prospect of a tour was a big news. This was a memorable day as it turns out, and there was other another event that happened that day that was news. This event had to be broadcast around the world, and it was even more important than Bowie's tour. While the interview with Bowie was happening at the same time General Franco of Spain died. The Spanish government needed this information broadcast immediately as it was of world importance. They needed the use of a satellite as a matter of fact they needed the use of the same satellite that was carrying the interview with Bowie. A request came in from the government of Spain explaining the circumstances and they politely asked Bowie to relinquish the use of the satellite for a few moments so the news of Francos death could be transmitted. Bowie basically told them to fuck off and the interview continued. I guess people should be more careful when they die. 

It was the last week in December and Bowie's behavior was getting more confusing by the day. There was nothing left of anything recognizable from before, the Thin White Duke was all there was and it was unknown how to handle him. Some of his decisions that he made were quite extreme and they were made without much forethought and often for unknown reasons. It was the last week in December and Golden Years was doing well.  The finishing touches were being done on Station To Station when one evening  Michael Lippman received a call from Bowie who was still at Cherokee. Lippman couldn't understand what Bowie was saying as he was babbling and incoherent. Later Lippman attempted to call Bowie but Bowie refused the calls. Hearing that Bowie was leaving town and heading to Keith Richards home in Jamaica for a brief holiday, he went to the train station to find him. When he finally did manage to see Bowie it was as though he did not exist. Bowie said hello and right after goodbye and he stepped on the train. The next time he heard from Bowie was through a lawyer. Bowie fired Lippman as his manager as well as filed a lawsuit against him claiming that Lippman had taken 15% of his earnings instead of the agreed 10%.  The amount Bowie was claiming in the court action was $475,000.00  Now he needed a new management company and the one he found was perfect for him. 

It happened to almost every major rock act at one time in their career. They would wind up in court suing a former manager for ripping them off in some form or another. It happened to Bowie, The Beatles, The Stones and countless others. It was a love hate relationship between the performers and their managers, you didn't want them but you had to have them. The problem that faced bands were the legalities pertaining to the music industry. Understand that most bands, and individuals, who made it in the entertainment industry did not usually have a sufficient enough education to manage their own affairs. Unfortunately even a few years of attendance at an institute of higher learning won't help. It's the contracts.  There are contracts with your record label, personal managers, distributors and then there is the publishing. The contracts required for a tour are frightening in numbers.  If you go on a sixty city tour you are looking at sixty contracts there alone with local promoters. Then there are contracts to be signed with each venue. Add to that transportation, equipment rentals as well as personnel.  It takes someone with training in order to negotiate these agreements and to decipher the fine print. It is a full time job and one that is usually not suited for an artist. The problem for the artists is finding a management company that will look after your affairs in an honest manner. These agreements have to be looked after and it is important that the artist understand them all, look what happened to Bowie if you sign agreements that you do not understand. A good management firm does this and protects its client's best interests. Bowie finally found one. 
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The management company Bowie signed with was a new firm, just opened in 1976 to be exact. This company would try to keep as much of David's earnings as possible. Defries took seventy five percent of Bowie's earnings and this new company wanted even more, much more. Bowie would have been happy if the company could take and hold on to ninety percent of what he made. The name of the company was Isolar Management and they are based out of New York.  Isolar, like MainMan, was entirely owned by one individual. The name of the individual in this case was David Bowie. 

With Lippman now gone it left Bowie in complete control of his own career, and his own finances. The formation of Isolar was to manage all of Bowie's personal appearances and tours. There were no more percentage splits with anyone as Isolar paid its employees on salary and legal costs were fixed and paid on a per piece basis. Isolar Management still operates today and is probably the best business move Bowie ever made. He would never have "managers" to deal with again, however he still uses advisors and the one closest to him, and a partner in some of his business ventures such as UltraStar, is his financial advisor, Robert Goodall. Isolar is not the only company Bowie owns to manager his affairs. He owns three companies to manage his publishing which are Jones Music SA, Bewlay Brothers SA and Tintoretto Music SA.  A company he named after his father, Stenton SA, handles film projects and all of his video distribution. More companies with Bowie as the owner, or a prime investor in, would appear over the years. Many more. Bowie had to leave Los Angeles. Through the MainMan settlement he received a lump sum payment of $325,000.00 This was certainly enough that he no longer had to borrow money to buy his four packs of Gitanes a day. However due to residency laws if he did not leave soon he would be left to pay a large sum in taxes. Angie went overseas to get the necessary documents. Bowie would soon be a resident of Switzerland. 

Bowie had assembled a band consisting of Carlos Alomar on guitar, Dennis Davis on drums and George Murray on Bass. There were two newcomers added to this line up. First of all was Stacy Heydon who  replaced the Station To Station session guitarist Earl Slick. The reason for this was Slick's management arrangement. His manager you see, was Michael Lippman. Also added was Tony Kaye, of Yes fame, on keyboards. The rehearsals for the tour were held in January and early February in Vancouver, Canada, at The Pacific National Coliseum, which was home to the Vancouver Cunucks hockey team of the NHL. If you are a fan interested in this period of Bowie's career and are intent on archiving it with video and audio recordings then you have my sympathies.  The task that you have chosen to take upon yourself is incredibly difficult and will require your best efforts and the result will be few, if any, rewards at the end of the day. 

On January 3rd, 1976 the final version of The Thin White Duke appears on national television in American. This time it is on the hugely popular afternoon talk show hosted by Dinah Shore. The time slot for the Dinah Shore Show was mid afternoon, a time that the viewing audience would have been housewives, and of course once again, the "older" crowd. What a lovely treat it was for them as well, and I am sure the old folks who survived the show still talk about it at social rest home gatherings and over games of bridge. A bit of insanity is always nice to break the afternoon boredom at times. And it was insanity. 

It was an absolute dynamite kick ass version of Stay Bowie performed on the show. Highlighted were some rather innovative and energetic dance steps in a routine he performs during the song. After, and quite out of breath he sits beside Dinah so she can enlighten the viewers about the career of David Bowie. It is quickly revealed that Dinah is not really acquainted with David's work or David for that matter. She wastes no time in demonstrating her ignorance by referring to Bowie as David Boowee. To help the old folks decide which album would be best suited to buy when the social security cheque comes, Dinah does a brief summary of Bowie's career. This is done with the aid of pictures flashed on the screen showing Bowie in various stages of his career. Dinah refers to Boowee's clothes as "costumes." When the picture of the recently deceased Halloween Jack appears Dinah questions Bowie on the style of the "costume" and how it originated. What Dinah thinks, and refers to as a "costume," is the outfit that he is wearing on the front cover of David Live. Maybe I am mistaken, but I do not refer to it as a costume, I call it a suit. Bowie says that he got the clothes because he was, "Hanging around with some Puerto Ricans at the time." Remarkably he said this with a straight face. Bowie is in fine company. Also on the show as guests are Henry Winkler who is best known for his role as Fonzie on the hit TV show Happy Days. The show was very popular in the mid seventies. Rhoda was a spin-off sitcom from the enormously popular Mary Tyler Moore Show.  The character of Rhoda was Mary Tyler Moore's neighbour originally, until the network built a new show around her. Nancy Walker played the part of Rhoda's mother, and she also made an appearance on the Dinah Shore Show, along with Bowie. 

Once again it is plain to see that Bowie is stoned. With his orange and blond hair he really looks out of place next to these average dressed humans sitting around on a sofa about to have an afternoon "chat." Henry Winkler demonstrates, in no uncertain terms, on the show that he is a blathering idiot. He makes a rather lengthy speech that details his "understanding" of Bowie. He tells the audience that Bowie is an amazing artist. He explains that Bowie is completely aware of his surroundings at all times and what is going on around him. So focused in fact, that he is tuned into "every single note" his band plays while on stage. His drivel extends for a period close two a minute and a half.  Bowie sits and says the odd, "Uh, huh," while Winkler is enlightening the old folks, bestowing on them his views to give them a deeper understanding of Bowie's talents. Bowie gives Winkler a stare throughout his soliloquy as though he too thinks Winkler is a babbling fool. To return the nonsense Bowie tell everyone he is "A big fan of Fonzie." Cigarettes are passed around and Bowie, looking like he just did a few more lines of cocaine, kindly offers everyone a light. He tells Dinah he is really a painter and an actor rather than a musician. He explains that he acts his songs rather than sing them. Bowie reveals he is terribly shy and he forces himself into social situations. Even though he is shy he does say that he has discovered he is, "A natural ham."  Because he was a guest in their home I am sure that the Lippman's would be able to confirm this statement rather easily. They saw first hand exactly how funny he is. 

On February 2nd, 1976, the day before the opening performance of the tour Bowie arranged for the afternoon rehearsal session to be videotaped. A local company was hired and they sent a  crew over to the Coliseum armed with cameras loaded with 3/4 inch Beta film.  The crew captured over ninety minutes of the afternoon session. Bowie had this tape shot for his own personal use, or the use of RCA, and the performance on it is spontaneous rather than scripted. This film footage is highly valuable to those Bowie fans interested in this period, enough so to call it The Holy Grail of 76 collectors, and this is for two important reasons. First of all, this era is so poorly documented that this film footage is THE ONLY VIDEO IN EXISTENCE of Bowie on a concert stage in 76 which has sound. There is other 8mm audience shot footage from venues in North America and Europe, including a few minutes shot at the Nassau Coliseum performance where the Resurrection On 84th Street bootleg was recorded, which has been dubbed. There is an hour long continuous uninterrupted piece of video that is poor in quality but still very watchable shot at Wembley. All of this film is extremely difficult to locate and it took me over twenty three years to find all of it. Second of all the rehearsal footage shows Bowie in a relaxed environment and this includes an environment where plenty of mistakes are made. This is rare, as those of you who have seen Bowie live are well aware how professional he is and mistakes on stage rarely ever occur. Bowie is usually flawless during a live performance. This is not so on the rehearsal video. The first thing one notices is that Bowie is visibly stoned. This comes to light the moment he appears singing on Station To Station, the opening number. Over the next ninety plus minutes coupled with several laughing fits, lyrics are forgotten, microphones are dropped and there are plenty of out of sync body movements. Most of the time though one gets a true look at the stage presence that was seen by the audiences in 76. For all of these reasons the tape is the most important historical document to archive this period. It was never released, and never will be, so it remains sitting around somewhere collecting dust. 

The tour would commence on February 3rd, 1976. By this time it was quite apparent to everyone that David Bowie, in the role of his new character The Thin White Duke, was for all intents and purposes completely out of control. 
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Station To Station was released on January 23 and it told a painfully familiar story. Bowie was well known, very well known as a matter of fact to be labeled as a major recording artist. He was an influential force that had taken the field of modern music and helped to shape it by taking it in new directions never before attempted by other artists. He was recognized as the first artist who successfully incorporated theater into live stage performances, ushering in a whole new concept that is still with us today. Bowie was truly a pioneer. All of this recognition however did not translate into record sales. Golden Years made it into the top ten. Station To Station sold 552,791 copies.  That was roughly 370,000 copies less than his previous album, Young Americans. The tour opened in Vancouver on February 3rd, 1976 to a less than sell out crowd. This would be common in most stops along the tour, and at some venues in Europe Bowie played to audiences as small as three thousand. Many of those who attended the performances in 76 got quite a shock, in terms of not getting what one would expect at a Bowie concert. By now, because of MainMan and the grand ideas of Tony Defries people expected something extravagant and bordering on the bizarre. They expected an "event." It was an event but an event in its own right. 

There are always clones at Bowie concerts, Ziggy clones. These are the fans who spare no expense when it comes to glitter, makeup and hair dye in their attempts to emulate the transgendered pop icons of what the media dubbed, Glam. This was a media brain dead idea enough to suggest that Bowie belonged lumped in with this bunch. Bowie's presence on stage was derived from far more "intellectual" sources that "sex." I guess the media didn't want to go to the trouble of relating how Bowie got many of his ideas for costumes and make up from the study of Japanese Kabuki Theater. That would make much to drab reading for the rock n' roll "tabloids" which rely on stories about sex, scandal and parties to sell. The clones looked horribly out of place. The real world kept progressing,  yet the world they inhabit came to a grinding halt in 1973 and they were frozen in time.  Bowie had thrown away the glitter and along with it went the hideously expensive stage sets. No more four hundred thousand dollar municipalities, Hunger City had met the wrecking ball. What replaced it was much more intriguing. 

Bigger. Even bigger. As big as you can fucking build it, that's how big most bands wanted their stages to be. Lasers, elevators, one ton mirror balls, an inflatable confetti shooting penis, exploding aircraft, pink pigs that fly, six story high projection screens,  one hundred piece orchestras and the most daring pyrotechnics were all the order of the day for bands on tour. Each one was intent on out doing the others, and it was all started by Bowie and Defries with the debut of the Diamond Dogs tour.  So, this time it was naturally expected that Bowie would certainly have concocted something even greater than Diamond Dogs, so as not to be out done.  Surely he would have something that would make the Diamond Dogs set look trivial.  He didn't disappoint either, he brought along something that would grab everyone's attention. This was truly another first, a stage design so innovative that one could not help but wonder. 

Bowie had nothing. That's right nothing. There were no lasers, mirror balls or pyrotechnics. There were no props except for a small winding staircase, and the elaborate backdrops and screen projections had given way to a plain black curtain. Gone too were coloured lights.  The stage overhead  and on both sides were banks of white fluorescent tubes. The two spotlights which followed Bowie's movements on stage were also white. You could have built this stage from items purchased at a local hardware store. The lack of anything proved to be absolutely brilliant. Those who attended the show would soon understand when the lights went out that this was to be one of the most phenomenal  visual experiences that they would ever encounter in their lives. The experience would be one so surreal that words would fail in an attempt to describe it. Something would happen to those who saw this show and it would stay with them a lifetime. This was far from a rock concert, it was an event, something much deeper. This would be Bowie's finest tour and nothing again would even come close to matching it. 

Okay, stop. Yes the above statements on the 76 tour are biased. They are as biased as you could ever hope to read and I am not attempting to disguise that fact. On the contrary, I am flaunting it. You can satisfy yourselves by regarding what I say as my personal "opinion" and therefore which tours are better than others is a matter of personal taste. I do not expect anyone to understand this but that is not the truth in this case. At the risk of sounding like an idiot, sorry about this, my "opinion" is correct. Now, my high regard for this period. Huh? what am I trying to do by being evasive? I can hear the voices now, "Cut the fucking bullshit. Regards, eh? Sure." Okay, I will try this again. I am an insane when it comes to this period of Bowie's career. I live it, breathe it and it has kept me mesmerized in a state of infatuated bliss since I saw this tour from the fourth row on February 25, 1976 at The Forum in Montreal.  I also collect this period and have done so since February, 26, 1975 when I realized that in my usual brilliant state of mind I did not purchase a tour program. I did get one soon after though, soon being a period of some twenty three years. I have seen every Bowie tour since, and usually numerous shows on each tour and I still stand by my statement. If it is of any help I do have some that will come to my aid and assist me should I require a defence. I will say in all seriousness that you will find that the overwhelming majority of Bowie listeners who saw this tour will tell you that it was an experience like no other. Many will readily agree that it had a profound effect on them, and one that lasted. I go by the old standard line, "You had to be there."   I am, according to many,  unqualified as a critic when it comes to anything which I write.  If  anyone who is reading this is a Bowie fan who is interested in the 76 tour I wanted to let you know that I did write an article some time ago about the show I saw in Montreal. Now, in order to save myself from the embarrassment of having to rate any of my articles I will just say this.  The Bowie fans who read it and saw the 76 tour said that the article was a very accurate description of what the show was like. Those fans who read it and had not seen the tour expressed the opinion that they were left with a much deeper understanding of what a performance was like in 1976.  If anyone is interested in reading it then just email me and I will forward it along to you, or if there are a few people then I will post it on this group. 

The idea came from the stark contrasts of black and white photographs and the effects that were able to be generated from the use of white lights on a black background were spectacular. The stage was extremely dark due to the backdrops and it was difficult to see anything on it in when the house lights went out. This allowed the band to walk out virtually unnoticed. When Stacy Heydon hit the opening note, which was a wail reminiscent of a train whistle, he was hit with a white spotlight. It looked as though he materialized out of thin air, poof. The same for each musician as they started their piece and joined in. Poof, one at a time. It was magic to witness. What was really awesome was the way in which the same technique was used slightly differently to create a much more spectacular effect, one I will never forget. They reversed it. They could make Bowie disappear by turning off the spotlight which was done many times only to have him re appear on a different part of the stage. The most bizarre effect was when they would illuminate his upper body only so his legs could not be seen. This would make it seem as though he was floating across the stage. This was the most visually surreal performance that I have ever seen. Bowie appearing, disappearing into thin air, floating and then vanishing again only to materialize elsewhere. The band is there, then gone, then back again.. WOW!!!!!!!! FUCKING AMAZING!!!!! 

Concerts are fun.  This was not "fun." Bowie was not "fun." This was serious. Bowie made sure the mood was set by opening each performance with what is recognized as the most surreal film ever made, Un Chien Andalou by Luis Brunnel, and the great painter in the style of Dada, Salvador Dali. The pre concert music was hand picked by Bowie, and was to set the stage for the audience to witness a razor blade slitting open a human eye as the film played. This set the tone, the ambience and mood, for which was to follow. Heydon starts as the film ends and the concert seems to be a continuation of the black and white film. The performance by Bowie was "played out" in front of you. Just like the movie. The Thin White Duke descended a set of stairs, cape over one shoulder and clothed in black and white. Flashing no colour except the blue package of Gitanes cigarettes in his vest pocket and the gold bracelet and cufflinks. The hair did not flash, it hypnotized. You followed it. "The return of the Thin White Duke." announcing his own arrival. This character on the stage was not real, it wasn't real. IT WAS NOT REAL. NOT REAL!!!! No smile, no emotion. Serious, so serious. The audience sat. Spellbound by the force. Sat and stared in wonder and amazement at what was unfolding before them. This was a once in a lifetime experience. They absorbed every second. 

Vancouver saw it first, and on February 4th, 1976 the morning paper had this as the header leading into a review of the show," Who David Bowie looked like last night at The Coliseum: Sinatra Having A Bad Dream." Now, to further defend my claim that this was the best tour ever the review went on to say this about the show: "Bowie performances are-have been-legendary for being massively orchestrated orgies of visual and musical sensationalism. Which makes the current offering the biggest no-show of his career. And possibly the best. The thing was absolutely brilliant, maybe for its sheer audacity than anything else, but brilliant nonetheless." It went on to say, " Now he gets to act the part of a rock star acting the part of Frank Sinatra having a bad rock dream, and a performance nobody else could pull off. Assuming that anyone else would want to try." It ended with this s observation," If you want Bowie, you get him on his terms only. And understanding was never much a part of it anyway." 

So true. Agreed? 
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Things got strange. Real strange. 

Bowie had a little stuffed animal that was in the shape of a monkey and it had a name. The monkey's name was, "Asshole." Now, Asshole was David's companion, his tag along so to speak, when he went and did interviews. Bowie extended the interviewer the courtesy of being personally introduced to Asshole. Sometimes Bowie would halt the interview to speak to the monkey and sometimes the monkey answered questions meant for Bowie. Bowie provided the voice. Often the interviewer left with nothing to write about, save the insanity that you could not report to the public. Like they would believe you anyway. Interviews are scarce for 76 because he gave few of them, much to the delight of RCA I imagine, but the ones he did give were memorable. Some too memorable, but more on those later. 

Bowie was fucked up during the whole tour, on-stage and off. His condition was obvious to the audience. The Neo Expressionism bootleg was recorded in Cleveland on February, 28th and it was reported by many who were at the show that in addition to being whacked on cocaine Bowie was visibly drunk on stage as well. What the amazing part is that it did not matter, the performances were flawless during the performance of the songs. So perfect in fact, you could never tell just by listening that he was smashed, unless he speaks or you happened to have been there to catch a glimpse. In addition to the lighting effects and the music there was sometimes lots of other interesting things to see as well. Bizarre things at that. 

TVC15 is stopped and started three times in Cleveland over the course of the show. These antics were to become quite common. At one performance, two verses into Five Years, Bowie announces that he didn't feel like singing that song and he promptly quit. One fan threw a tour program on stage at one performance which Bowie thought this to be fantastic reading material. He sat down on stage and leafed through it not worrying that there should have been vocals to the music that the band was playing. "You have a very nice hospital here," he commented to one audience, and then added, "We will see you all again in ten days." The interest that he took in the crowd that attended his performance in Rotterdam was rather unusual. "How many of you out there speak English? We're very rude, we don't speak your language,  but we do speak English." He then informed the audience, "The band tonight is very ill, with bronchitis." The harsh voice, unusually rough, is a common side effect from cocaine and what it does to the nasal passages. The singing voice however seemed surprisingly unaffected. Bowie did whatever he wanted. He commented one time to an audience that Dennis Davis gets all the girls, this stemmed from an incident where a women turning Bowie down one evening in favour of his drummer. One show was two hours late starting as Bowie did not feel like leaving the city he had played the previous evening. He had to be coaxed. When there were lengthy instrumental segments in songs Bowie would leave the stage. One guess why. The concerts were relatively short and Bowie absent a good portion of the time which left one hungry for more after. It just wasn't enough. The same can be said for only having six tracks on Station To Station. At one press conference Bowie threatened to "break every camera" if someone tried to snap a photo. Hmmm, cameras at a press conference? How unexpected. No one tried either. 

The press started it all and they lit a fire that would become an inferno. They began to describe Bowie as some sort of an Aryan. Big fucking mistake. It gave Bowie ideas and by mid 76 he was crazy enough to do or say just about anything. Some facilities on the tour were used as venues for his political rants after the show, or during, it didn't matter. There were three particular interviews he gave in 76 that are most famous. One to writer Kurt Vonnegut Jr. which appeared in the September issue of Playboy, the Cameron Crowe interview in Rolling Stone, also in September and a radio interview he gave to a reporter in Sweden. I want to spend a considerable amount of time and devote a lot of space in this article to these interviews. Why? Well, for one major reason, and that is in order to really give you a really good understanding of the character. These quotes will essentially give you a clear picture of just how bizarre the character was. You will also soon realize that there were no boundaries he would not cross.  I regret if this segment of Images causes boredom in some of you. I will take the responsibility, and the criticism I may receive, for rambling on about this period of Bowie's life. It would not be the first time. I admit the self indulgence that I am wallowing in, as I relish any chance to talk to anyone insane enough to listen to me about this period. Please either bear with me, or kill me. Sorry. 

Bowie had this response to a question about how he viewed members of the press, "Oh they're absolute idiots." As one can see this is the way one should deal with a reporter to get a favourable article written on them. He fell short of threatening to smash their pens, as he did with the photographers and their cameras. 

In Rochester New York on March 21, 1976 David Bowie and  Iggy Pop, who was with Bowie for a good portion of the tour, were arrested at a friends apartment and charged, with all things, possession of marijuana. Bail was granted four days later to both of them. First of all, I want to make it perfectly clear that I am NOT a lawyer. My OPINION is however, that it would not be wise to openly talk about drugs while one is awaiting to be tried on charges for possessing them. This is especially true if one is speaking to  members of the media who are going to print your comments where everyone can read them. Again, my opinion, but I believe it to be quite foolish if one openly admits to using drugs while out on bail after being  arrested and charged for a drug offence. I consider it insanity to be arrested for "soft drugs" and then tell the media that they were not yours for the simple reason you like "hard drugs" a lot better. What is that you say? No one would be that crazy? Oh, yes they would. A good example is David Bowie. Once you read this just imagine how his lawyers felt having such an "informative" client.  This is not all that was said in this interview. I have just taken certain quotes which pertain to the topic of his drug use. In an interview, surprisingly in Rochester one day before his arrest Bowie stated, "I had 800,000 units of penicillin the other day, and then I've been taking doses of 400,000 a day, and that and brandy really puts you out. The doctor said it  was cool to drink with penicillin." Six months after his arrest Bowie had these words of wisdom. Playboy magazine inquired about drugs to which Bowie responded , "What year is it now? 'Seventy-six? I suppose I've been knocking on heaven's door for about 11 years now, with one sort of high or another. The only kinds of drugs I use, though, are ones that keep me working for longer periods of time. I haven't gotten involved in anything heavy since '68. I had a silly flirtation with smack then, but it was only for the mystery and enigma of trying it. I never really enjoyed it at all. I like fast drugs." He was then asked about the first time he got stoned to which he said, "I had done cocaine before but never grass. I don't know why it should have happened in that order."  Bowie was quite specific on the topic if drugs influenced his music. He said his music is really an extension of him so the question is rephrased by Bowie to ask what have drugs done to him. He wasted no time in getting right to the point saying, "What have drugs done to me? They've fucked me up, I think. Fucked me up nicely and I've quite enjoyed seeing what it was like being fucked up." The arrest incident was brought up and Bowie defended himself, " Rest assured the stuff was not mine. I can't say much more, but it did belong to the others in the room that we were busted in. Bloody pot heads. What a dreadful irony--me popped for grass. The stuff sickens me. I haven't touched it in a decade." His lawyers must have thought that their client was working for the prosecution. 

It became quite clear to this new character that the press would believe and print anything that you wanted to tell them. It did not matter how unbelievable or impossible the claims were, you could rest assured that your quotes would make it to print unaltered. I mean, far be it from any responsible writers to actually check out the validity of anything before they print it as a fact.  This was a dangerous mix having this kind of journalistic responsibility, or lack thereof, around a creature starving for media attention. How ANYONE could swallow some of the things that came out of his mouth during some interviews is beyond me. Take for example this statement he made when asked how he met Angela, " Angela and I knew each other because we were both going out with the same man. Another one of her boyfriends, a talent scout for Mercury Records, took her to a show at The Roundhouse, where I happened to be playing. He hated me. She thought I was great. Ultimately, she threatened to leave him if he didn't sign me. So he signed me." Yep, and he said it all with a straight face, and looking serious enough that the idiot holding the pen opposite him actually wrote it down as fact. He also had this to say, "When I was 14, sex suddenly became all-important to me. It didn't really matter who or what it was with, as long as it was a sexual experience. So it was some very pretty boy in  class in some school or other that I took home and neatly fucked on my bed upstairs. And that was it. My first thought was, Well, if I ever get sent to prison, I'll know how to keep happy." It wouldn't surprise me if he did go to prison one day and the evidence to put him there will probably come from incriminating evidence he gave about himself in interviews on national TV. 

There were moments of truth. Like this bit of reminiscing,  ...."I was never at MainMan," Bowie said with a wicked gleam in his eye. "And I couldn't afford new teeth, I was so busy paying for everybody else's." There was this also," I'm getting used to suing people." Some were revealingly candid," I wanted my audience to know a little bit more about me as a person. Hence, another reason why I'm doing this interview: to make it understood that a lot of my past personae have been characters. About 100 per cent of my past personae have been characters." This quote regarding his fans is one of my favourites as it is awash with sincerity and reveals the humble side of Bowie, "So the ones who've stuck with me up till now, I think, have understood that. And they're the ones that I've made Station To Station for. The ones who accept me as a person who can't make up his mind. Which is basically what I am." 

This next quote from 76 is not an observation, this quote is a prophecy that comes true.  Back then he could never have even begun to envision how this would happen for him and he would be named one year, Britain's richest rock star. Listen to this," I dream of one day of buying companies and television stations, owning and controlling them." 

One day the shit hit the fan. Now, I as many of you, do not get offended at anything Bowie says. However I do get offended at what he tries to pass off as "music" on occasion. Over all of these years I am well aware of what is truth and what is another pile of Bowie media bait. The bait he uses to attract attention is "old news" to me. I shake my head and I laugh at those gullible enough to lap it all up. It proves that some things in life never change. Now, I was adopted at the age of three weeks some forty four years ago, and even though I can't be absolutely certain, I have no reason to believe that I am Jewish.  One thing I do know for certain is that I was not living in a subway tunnel under the city of London while Hitler's Third Reich rained down V2 Rockets, bombs and all sorts of nastiness on the city. I also have never been subjected to "rationing," and as an "excessive" person I probably would not have survived. I understand Bowie and so it is easy for me to see how those who are not really familiar with his antics may get the wrong impression of him at times from some of the things he says.  He can be bewildering at times: 

 "As I see it I am the only alternative for the premier in England. I believe Britain could benefit from a fascist leader. After all,  fascism is really nationalism." That started it. The whole fucking mess came from that one statement he gave to a Swedish radio reporter in an interview. I have heard the interview on tape and he is fucked right up, and fucked up good. He sounds high, drunk and sounds like the last time he slept was a week ago. He mumbles and his thoughts wander as he seems to fade in and out of coherency. It was all broadcast. The British press was far from amused and neither were the public. He was also off the list as a sought after entertainer for Bar Mitzvahs. Personally, knowing Bowie's behavior I find this whole episode that I am about to explain hilarious.  I say this because I firmly believe that there was no intended malice and he made these statements without thinking that  he could really offend a few people. Bowie has displayed some real callous behavior at times that I do not condone. However, I do not believe that this, or the other political ramblings that followed were done on purpose to hurt anyone. What they were was an exercise in bad judgement.  If I do have one major criticism it is the fact that he should have apologized instead of trying to wrangle out of it with a lot of bullshit explanations. My cat wouldn't believe him, that's how lame the lies to defend himself were. 

That wasn't a one armed Nazi Salute he gave to the crowd standing up in the back of his car at Victoria Station several days after his statements to the Swedish reporter. No sir, the photographer caught him in "mid wave" and it just looked like a Nazi Salute. That is what Bowie said to the press years later in his defence. Now, READ MY LIPS. Bowie is LYING. He stood up in the back of his convertible and raised his arm in the same fashion as one would give a salutation to The Furher. This salutation was instead to the crowd of fans and reporters who had gathered at Victoria Station to welcome home David Bowie. The problem was that David Bowie was not there, and instead they were giving a nice warm welcome to The Thin White Duke, Was I there? No. Have I seen the pictures? Yes.  Take one look at the expression on his face and the position of that arm and tell me he was waving happily to the crowd. If you think that after seeing that photo then America was testing fourth of July fireworks in Hiroshima and Nagasaki. Oh, and Never Let me Down, Tonight and Just A Gigolo are known as, "The Genius Trilogy." One more thing, I hope there is a sequel to that kick ass album David Live. It was a Nazi Salute, read my lips. 

The fact remains that if for some reason you do not agree about the Victoria Station incident then you still have to explain the goose stepping and Nazi Salutes he did at the Wembley gigs. More on that later.  This character bordered on the obnoxious at times. Rather than let the comments in Sweden fade away he had to play it up for all it is worth. Why? Publicity and he had to fill Wembley for six nights and remember the tour was not sold out. Dates were cancelled in Paris due to poor ticket sales.  Bowie will fix things, "Listen, I mean it. I'll bloody lead this country,  make it a great fucking nation. I can't exist happily and make records and be safe because, man, it's depressing... Everyone whimpering about the state of things. So what do I do? Just sit by and wait for someone else to sort it all out? No way. The masses are silly." In another interview, the famous one from Playboy he went on, "I will one day. I'd adore to be Prime Minister. And, yes, I believe very strongly in fascism. The only way we can speed up the sort of liberalism that's hanging foul in the air at the moment is to speed up the progress of a right-wing, totally dictatorial tyranny and get it over as fast as possible. People have always responded with greater efficiency under a regimental  leadership. A liberal wastes time saying, "Well, now, what ideas have you got?" Show them what to do, for God's sake. If you don't, nothing will get done. I can't stand people just hanging about." 

As you can well imagine these comments about Hitler did not go over too well. "Rock stars are fascists, too. Adolf Hitler was one of the first rock stars. Think about it. Look at some of his films and see how he moved. I think he was quite as good as Jagger. It's astounding. And, boy, when he hit that stage, he worked an audience. Good God! He was no politician. He  was a media artist himself. He used politics and theatrics and created this thing that governed and controlled the show for those 12 years. The world will never see his like. He staged a country." 

He had these observations about two of his favourite bands. " There are two bands now who come close to a neo-Nazi kind of thing? Roxy Music and Kraftwerk. It's not Nazism so much as nationalism. I think it, may be too clichéd to use the Nazi thing; it's more nationalistic." 

While he was returning from a trip to Moscow, Bowie had some books dealing with the Nazi's confiscated at the border between Russia and Poland. He gave the following explanation after telling customs officers that the books were "research material. "I'm working on a film on Goebbels and this is my reference material." 

His behavior at an interview done for Rolling Stone magazine with Cameron Crowe tells it all. I have copied this word for word from my copy of Rolling Stone with this interview. It goes as follows: 

...Suddenly-always suddenly-David is on his feet and rushing to a nearby picture window. He thinks  he's seen a body fall from the sky. "I've got to do this," he says, pulling a shade down on the  window. A ballpoint-penned star has been crudely  drawn on the inside. Below it is the word "Aum."  Bowie lights a black candle on his dresser and  immediately blows it out to leave a thin trail of smoke floating upward. "Don't let me scare the pants off you. It's only protective. I've been getting a little trouble from the neighbours." 

At the last gig of the Station To Station tour at Wembley Bowie gave four Nazi Salutes to the crowd at the end of the show. He then flashed a "peace" sign and ran off the stage. 

The end of an era had come to pass. 

AladInsaNe To be continued..........

	Posted 14 February 2002


Part Seventeen

A WARNING TO READERS: I am about to embark on writing segments pertaining to the Trilogy. I am more than likely to go into opinionated tirades about what constitutes music and what constitutes garbage. My views are set in stone and I am notorious for not listening to any other opinions on this subject, because simply put, I am right and any conflicting opinions are just plain wrong. Now, isn't that easy to understand. Those who know me and disagree with my opinions politely tolerate these outbursts. Those who agree with my opinions are geniuses. If I anger some of you, well too bad because you don't know where I live. If a somewhat arrogant stance on a topic is going to upset you, I suggest you go blind for a short time until I get to 1983. If you wind up hating me and want to remove me from this planet, all I can offer you as a suggestion is to get in line, there are others ahead of you. I know, can you believe it? Some people don't find me very likeable. I wonder why? Huh? 

Still uncontrollable. If you look at it this lack of conforming to any rules set Bowie free in a way. What I mean is artistic freedom, he wrote what he wanted to without sticking to any conventional patterns that make a good portion of the music out there inanely repetitive, and endlessly boring. I said it before, some things never change. We expect artists to "follow the rules." The rules are a nice beat, rhyming verses and a catchy chorus to hum along to, oh, and some simple minded lyrics set to a nice melody. I tend to have a nasty habit of calling these "songs" and I have a worse habit of separating songs from music. I know some of you reading this will actually understand that sentence. 

They called it progressive music. Wrong terminology.  Call it music, period. It is music that has been composed with the concept of  the sound being more important than the lyrics. You know, lyrics about a boy and a girl and their love. I've heard that story somewhere in the neighbourhood of sixty seven zillion times. That story has cured me from being addicted to the radio. I turned it off and I don't even have any cravings to ever turn it on again. I get better insurance premiums since I quit because the chances are I will not die from my brain turning to mush courtesy of Britney Spears, ACDC, Puff Diddy or some other horrible disease.  I tried something a while back on a few people just to see what would happen. I asked them a question. Now, please allow me to have your attention for a brief moment  so you see where I was coming from with this.  The question I asked was this, "Do you think that music is any good if it doesn't have any lyrics?" Think about it.  Sadly, although I wasn't surprised, I got the answer I expected to get from most people. How could they not get it. 

On April 14th, 1976 Bowie travelled to Lake Geneva, Switzerland, during a break in the tour to see the house that Angela had picked out. On May 20 a greatest hits LP titled CHANGESONE is released. This album was a milestone and it did the totally unexpected. CHANGESONE was Bowie's very first recording to go Platinum, selling 1,331,247 copies in America. Fame was still his only Gold single. Bowie is estimated to have made three to four million dollars from the Station To Station tour and MainMan's share was five percent. Financially Bowie was healthy. Interestingly David Bowie had also discovered a new pastime, he was drinking very heavily. What awaited  his fans from this point in time and for the next three years would be some of the most brilliant music ever composed,  and I do not mean just by Bowie, I mean some of the most brilliant works EVER COMPOSED BY ANYONE. From June until December Bowie is back on and off at the Chateau d' Herouville. This time it is with Iggy Pop to record  his new album, The Idiot. Bowie is living now in Berlin. Something was about to happen that would take most of the world twenty years to realize just what it was. 

Is it just me, or am I correct in saying that no one seems to care much for history anymore. My girlfriend told me that they hardly studied anything on WW1 or WW2 when she was going to high school. Oh, it isn't "history" anymore apparently, it is "social studies." My comment was to the effect that if we don't learn about our past, then how the Hell can we realize our mistakes so we won't repeat them. I guess I just answered my own question. I know now why we still find the need to kill our fellow man in wars that serve only as a means to gain control over people. Of course the ones who have control use their power to abuse the ones that they have control over. What a great system we built. Really great. Why am I on about history you wonder? Simple. It is because we can't understand the relevance of anything without history. You see to discover the relevance of something one needs to make comparisons. Comparisons are found using history. Let me simplify this insanity for you. I call this insanity call common sense, if you care to know. David Bowie entered the studio to make a new album, tentatively called New Music Night And Day, in September of 1976. The name of the album was later changed to Low. 

Ambient music, New Age music, Instrumental music, Mood music, Elevator music, Meditating music, Funeral music or any other idiotic label you want to attach to Low to describe its lack of vocals is fine. People do label it, like they do everything else in a usually vain attempt to appear as though they are a tiny bit more intelligent than your average human being.  It's ambient, grunge, hip hop, new wave and alternative. I fucking love that one, "Alternative." What the fuck is that? I have heard that said to me quite often by people when I inquire about their musical taste. They say, " I'm into ALTERNATIVE music." Being the little shit disturber that I am at times I can't seem to pass up an opportunity to put that label into perspective. The perspective being just how idiotic it sounds. I like to reply, "You know what music I'm into? I'm into the ALTERNATIVE to the ALTERNATIVE."  What is lost on most people is the plain fact that the operative word is, "MUSIC." Lost I guess because there isn't much of it out there anymore. Music has almost been wiped out by songs. 

I do not know where I heard this but it went like this, "Bowie fans seem to all say that Low is Bowie's finest album overall from a creative standpoint, it rates as number one. Low is also the album that most Bowie fans don't listen to."  When I heard this for the first time I was in awe. The shear brilliance of that observation and the eloquent way it is  worded left me wanting to meet the person who wrote it, just to thank him for being able to say it so perfectly.  I have firmly believed this statement for a very long time but I could never find  just the right words to put it so well. This statement could be the dividing line, or the reason anyway, why there are the "older" fans and the "newer" fans who often do not agree on much when it comes to Bowie. Now, anyone who does not recognize Low as one of the most groundbreaking albums ever made is in error. Grave error. Whoever makes a statement to the contrary does not know their history because history is the proof of the impact Low had on the face of modern music.  We take things for granted these days. Go into a record store and there is easily one wall of so called, "New Age" or "Ambient" music and nobody thinks that at one time that wall wasn't there.  In reality however this style had to start somewhere. 

At the end of 1976, December I believe, Bowie is in court to begin litigation in the action filed against his former manager Michael Lippman. I am rather impressed by these two men. I am impressed by the integrity that both of them displayed in court. It went like this. While in court, each side having the usual battery of high priced lawyers, Michael Lippman approached David Bowie. He asked if he could speak to him for a brief moment in private to which David agreed. Lippman said to Bowie that the disagreement was between the two of them and since it is their problem why not try to work it out themselves. Bowie agreed, which was to me a very brave move after losing so much money to others over the years, and it was also a very honourable and forgiving gesture. Together they went into a separate room for privacy and in the space of ten minutes they came out with all of their differences settled. The terms they reached are unknown. What the two of them did displays a genuine honour between two men and in my opinion they both deserve respect for the way they handled this matter. 

The Thin White Duke was as healthy as ever, David Bowie needed rest. The rumours that circulated in the business, and the stories in the music rags, was that Bowie had moved to Berlin to clean up. He was going to quit doing drugs and get "healthy."  If you read the interviews with Bowie that were printed shortly after he moved to Berlin, you get this. According to Bowie he rented a small flat above an auto repair garage in the Turkish section of Berlin. He bought his own groceries and led a quiet existence. He stopped using cocaine according to him in just after he moved. According to Bowie he was "clean" when Low was made. He said that Low largely reflected the moods he experienced during the transition to getting straight.  Now, this accounting of events that Mr. Bowie would have us believe is highly suspect. This "accounting"  can be much better described by labelling it exactly what it is, and that would be a fairy tale. There is little truth to be had here. Well, it is true he went to Berlin. Oh, and he did live in the Turkish section. Other than that the rest is a fabrication. Bowie once again rewriting his past. If you listen to Bowie's account then you picture him in this modest little flat living as ordinary folk do. I was rather disenchanted reading about Bowie's living arrangements. You see, I have worked quite hard over the years in order to attempt to get a little further ahead in life than just making ends meet. My house upstairs has three bedrooms, a kitchen, living room, dining room and a bathroom. My place is by no means opulent but I could do worse. I thought that I was a little ahead of the game but I guess that isn't so.  To my surprise I find that I am living modestly apparently. I know this by comparing my home with seven rooms to Bowie's "modest" flat with seven spacious rooms also  separated with Victorian style glass doors, and the floor covered with Persian carpets. 

I want to be accurate, especially here, so I am copying this quote word for word. This came from Bowie, "Low was a relatively straight album. It didn't come from a drug place. And I realized at the time that it was important music. It was one of the better things I'd ever written -- Low, specifically. That was the start, probably for me, of a new way of looking at life." I ask you to place trust in me that it is the truth when I tell you that Bowie made similar statements to this one many times. There is one part of this quote that I wish to examine a wee bit closer. It is this part of the quote actually, where he says,  "It didn't come from a drug place." My response to that would be, "Oh, is that so. How nice. "I would say it in a tone that implied that you don't lie very well.  Would you believe me if I told you that the safest place that you can put an arsonist is in a Bic Lighter factory. How about this one then. The Taliban government in Afghanistan did more to champion women's rights than any feminist movement ever did. You should always wear sunglasses when driving at night, especially if it is foggy outside. The best place to kick a drug habit is in the heroin capital of the world. Which one of these statements do you think makes the most common sense?  "The best place to kick a drug habit is in the heroin capital of the world," That is the correct answer, according to Bowie anyway. Oh, yes, Berlin at that time was considered the heroin capital of the world and that is where Bowie went to clean up. Now, I am NOT suggesting that Bowie was doing smack, he wouldn't as it would space him out rather than keep him awake. Bowie wants a drug with the opposite effect. The same though can't be said for his travelling companion and room mate, Jimmy Osterburg.  Back then Mr. Osterburg happened to like heroin a great deal, and the affinity he had for it lasted many years. I am not a substance abuse councillor, I am an abuser yes, and my counselling would be in the wrong direction. Therefore not being a professional this is my opinion only. It is my opinion that Iggy Pop is the wrong person to attempt to stay off drugs with. You may disagree but I do not think he would be a very good partner in a "support system" where you rely on your "buddy" to give you the emotional support at those times when your will power is weak. I believe that Iggy's answer to "weak" moments would be strong "drugs." The Thin White Duke hadn't gone anywhere,  Bowie was still doing drugs when he made Low.  I want to recall a fragment from Low, the one titled Always Crashing In The Same Car. If you already know what the song is about then just skip this part. If you do not know about the incident that the song is written about then you may wish to read this, you may find it somewhat interesting. At any rate you will have some more information on a piece of Bowie's work,  which is always a plus for any fan. 

Always Crashing In The Same Car was one of the first tracks that I really got to like on Low. The story behind the song is a wild one. As much as I liked that song  before I can honestly say that it really came to life when I learned what it was about. Bowie was in Berlin. Contrary to what he says about being drug free the truth is that he was on a cocaine binge. This binge was a good one too, he had been going at it rather hardily for several days non stop.  He needed more coke this one night as he had almost run out so he called his dealer who would deliver the dope to him. The guy arrived, dropped off the coke,  Bowie paid him and he left. Same old routine. When the guy was gone Bowie checked the package.  There was nothing wrong with the quality, but Bowie got it into his head that there was something amiss with the quantity and felt that he had been ripped off by his dealer. Whether it was really underweight or not I do not know., Nonetheless Bowie got rather upset and he became angry, then infuriated and finally he flew into a rage demanding revenge. Iggy and Coco were unable to reason with him in this state so they kept their distance trying to verbally soothe him while watching his tirade. Suddenly Bowie was out the door with the car keys. Iggy and Coco had bought David an older Mercedes Benz. It was a bit rusty in spots but mechanically it ran just fine, and before they could intervene Bowie was off down the road. They did not have a second vehicle to go after him with so they went back inside to wait. Bowie had a good idea where this dealer could be found and he headed for a rather popular entertainment area of the city.  Sure enough Bowie found him, he was sitting in his car at a corner. Bowie, fucked up out of his mind steps on the gas and literally rams the dealers car with his Mercedes. He then meticulously backs his car up, stops, puts the car into drive, steps on the gas and rams the guys vehicle again. It is important to note that this entertainment area is quite popular  and so it is rather crowded at this time of night. By now he has drawn some attention to himself and people are stopping on the sidewalk to watch what is going on. Bowie doesn't care, he's used to having an audience. In total Bowie rammed this person's car six times. He said later that he could not believe that nobody did anything to try and stop him, not even call the police. By the sixth impact Bowie had sufficiently calmed down, he had enough, so he turned around and drove back home.  He wasn't through though.  Once he was in the underground parkade he went a little strange. He was driving in circles like a maniac and contemplating ramming head on into a cement pillar. He was soon joined in the parkade by Iggy and Coco who had been alerted by the noise, and who now stood staring at him in shock. As you know the ending  was a happy one.  That is the story behind Always Crashing In The Same Car. 

Just one final thought before I close this segment of Images. If you do not think the character that made Low was The Thin White Duke, along with all of his vices, then I suggest you have a real good look at the music video he made for Be My Wife.  I knew you'd agree, case closed. 

AladINsaNE 

To be continued
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Part Eighteen

It wouldn't take very much, all one would have to do is go back and look at the archives.  You would pretty much have to if you were sincere in your efforts to learn and there are many questions to be answered. In any attempt to acquire a deeper understanding of this work it is necessary to look at things as they were in 1977. This is a great start if one wants to learn all they can in an effort to fully appreciate the relevance of this work. When a person truly understands just how relevant this work really was then it is only a short step to fully understand the artist behind it. Low can easily be found in the dictionary, it is under "genius" as the definition. 

Once upon a time there were no shelves for "ambient" or "New Age" music in the record stores.  Why? Well, because it didn't exist. I would be mistaken to tell you that it did not exist in the mid seventies, it did.  Now, existing, and being known to exist are two different things. The pioneers in "experimental music"  had been composing work that was musically in the same vein as Low since the early seventies. The music though was still unknown, except to a very small group of fans , such as the cult following that Brian Eno had at the time. This music,  like the truly great artists in the music business, would remain virtually unknown, and this rings true even today. Sad. For what it is worth the term  experimental music," which is used to describe works similar to this Bowie and Eno collaboration is about as pleasing to me as the catchy, descriptive, wonderful all encompassing  phrase "Alternative music." First off, they may have experimented with new ideas but this work is far too deep to be the result of some sort of "experiment" by a "mad musician." I may be picking at straws here but I tend to view this as music which was created by a series of "innovations" and not an "experiment" where results are often haphazard. Say, in 1970,  Led Zeppelin, The Who or The Rolling Stones put out an album of original material that sounded like something written by Ludwig Von Beethoven, keeping in mind that no one had heard anything by Beethoven before. What do you imagine the reaction would be like? If you think that a band recording an album where the music is so opposite of what is popular is an impossibility, then you better think again. This is why history is so important, do you know what everyone was listening to at the beginning of 77? The top album is Songs In The Key Of Life by Stevie Wonder. The top songs for the year are "I Just Want To Be Your Everything" by Andy Gibb, "You Light Up My Life" by Debbie Boone and the "Star Wars Theme" This is also the year when the band Chic featuring Nile Rogers and Tony Thompson released Dance Dance Dance which sold one million copies in one month propelling them to the top of the Disco scene.  Low was released during the Disco era and in 1976 Punk Rock was also attracting a following. The reaction was the same one you would expect to get if Zepplin released an album of classical music. We can thank the personality traits of Bowie's character for Low. There was no manager to control him now and the arrogance of The Thin White Duke, coupled with a belief that he was superior, and therefore not having to obey anything that would limit his creativity.  Bowie was free to pursue his creativity without any interference. Low was "unrestricted." 

Low was ground breaking because it was the first album by a major recording artist that explored this area of music. Bowie was one of the first to work with the concepts which appear on Low and he pioneered many techniques and refinements relating to this style. No one must be allowed to trivialize Low because of what it did to music as a whole. Low contributed immensely to the birth of a whole  new type of music and it was one of the works done by a handful of  artists that literally changed the course of modern music. It spurned a whole generation of copy cats. Low also had no songs on it.  Yes, you heard me correctly, there are no songs on Low. 

On the album, Low, we would refer, "naturally," to each individual compassion as a "song." Wow, is that ever enlightening, you learn something new every day from smart people like me. Bowie refers to the tracks on Low differently. I think what he calls them gives a lot of insight about his perspective of the music and exactly what it is he was trying to achieve when making Low. After I first heard this, and then listened to the album, it is my sincere opinion that Bowie definitely succeeded in getting what he was after. Bowie calls the tracks on Low, "FRAGMENTS," and he went on to say that  each one of them was, "A personal experimental challenge."  This statement, of course, makes the irritation I endure caused by my distaste for Low being called "experimental" a personal psychosis.  Obviously it is a feeling not based on facts. I still prefer "innovative" though. Now,  at times I have heard the contention from some "Bowie Intellectuals" that Low is more of an Eno album, than a David Bowie album. Well, I know they aren't worth much, but nevertheless, I would like to add my humble opinion of that statement. 

I promised myself something and I have failed. I promised when I started writing these articles that I would do my best to limit my personal opinions and stick to the details of the subject matter. I am well past the point of denial, I am unable too because I am too opinionated and high strung to control myself. I have seizures of self importance that elevate me to a  level of Godliness and while I am in this state  I do not  care what the "little people" think.  I am going to go on a tirade now and if you wish to spare yourself I advise you to skip the next seven paragraphs then it will be safe for you to read again. 

To those who think that Low is more of a Brian Eno album than A David Bowie album I have something for you. A gift, so to speak. I would like to give you a twelve inch vinyl Japanese pressing of Low to keep, along with my sentiments. I would like to give you this little gift by kicking it someplace where the sun doesn't shine,  sideways, and without the benefits of any lubricant.  I don't believe I just said that, it was very rude and I apologize and I take it all back. Let me be more polite and just say this. You don't deserve to own a copy of Low so give yours to someone who does.  Then go listen to Hours until you die of boredom, in a week or so. There, I feel much better now. I don't give a fuck that I just said that because the people that it applies to are all on BOWIEZOIDNET, not over here, so they'll never see it, although I do wish they would. <hee, hee> Their conclusions are derived at like this. These people compare Low to Eno's work in the early seventies and note that Bowie had never before written anything similar to this style. They then rationalize, in what is left of their brains, that Bowie needed Eno's contribution to Low in order to help write the material so he could get the "ambient sound" he was looking for. So, since Low sounds more like Eno's previous work, and Eno is on the album, then that makes it more of an Eno influenced album. Really? DUH! The lines of reasoning people use in order to "prove" that Low is more Eno than Bowie  re ripe with the evidence that these people lack a bit of knowledge. Simply put, they don't understand Bowie. In addition they do not have the foggiest notion about Bowie's work, they just can't grasp it, and they are at a loss to understand it.  Much of Bowie's work is wasted on these people and Low goes way over their heads, along with a few to many other Bowie albums. I will recognize the fact though that there are some albums that do not escape them, such as the work Bowie produced between 1984 and 1987, and some of his work that was done recently. 

Low is a David Bowie album, and arguably more of a David Bowie album compared to his others. That is Bowie's, not Eno's, picture on the front cover of the album by the way.  BOWIE WROTE LOW . HE WROTE IT, NOT ENO. If you look at the credits on Low you will discover that  Bowie wrote all of the fragments himself  except two. Eno appears on six of the eleven tracks on Low and is given credit for co-writing Warszawa while Dennis Davis and George Murray co-wrote Breaking Glass. Low is a beautiful example of Bowie's creative ability. He was able, on his first attempt, to write these tracks in a totally different style than anything he had previously done, and write them so well that many consider Low to be his finest album.  If you contend that Low is more Eno than Bowie then you are failing to give Bowie the credit he deserves for writing a masterpiece like Low.  I do not understand how any idiot can call themselves a serious Bowie listener and be so stupid as to deny Bowie credit for this brilliant writing. They do it though; I have seen it first hand. 

In case you were born yesterday let me say that Bowie is a perfectionist when it comes to what he releases. Even though he has put out shit from time to time it is high quality shit. To his credit Bowie does not have an ego when it comes to his talents and this is an enormous benefit to us as listeners because of the quality of work we get from him.  You see, by not having an ego it allows Bowie to recognize he has limitations. Bowie will not allow his name, in most cases, to be attached to anything of an inferior quality. Since he is a perfectionist, and maintains such high standards, he is not afraid to solicit the help of those who have the skills he needs for some of his work, but he does not have. Take Heroes for example and the use of guitarist Robert Fripp. If you do not already know then allow me to explain.  Robert Fripp was never supposed to play on Heroes at all. Originally, it was decided that Bowie, along with Carlos Alomar, would do the guitar work on Heroes and that is how the sessions started out, with him and Alomar. Quite a bit of recording was done, however Bowie was not satisfied with the results they were getting. There was "a certain sound" Bowie was after and even with repeated attempts they failed to get exactly what he was looking for. Because of the artist he is he would not settle for anything other than what he wanted. It was Eno who suggested that they bring in Robert Fripp to try and solve the problem. As we know it was solved.  By not being pretentious has left Bowie with a willingness to use other skilled artists and this is one reason I believe that his work is so far ahead of what most artists produce. The use of others has also allowed him to change musical styles from album to album. If he needs a certain sound he just brings to the studio best musicians around who can play the style he is looking for. Young Americans is a prime example with the use of David Sandborn and Luther Vandross. Nile Rogers on Let's Dance. I do not think that Station To Station would be near the album it is without Roy Bittan and add to that Adrian Belew on Lodger, Fripp on Heroes and Rick Wakeman on Hunky Dory. Oh, and one more I almost forgot, Brian Eno on Low. 

I am in no way attempting to take any credit away from Eno, the contributions he made are enormous, and I believe that Low would not be as good an album as it is without him. Bowie needed  him. Eno has a certain sound that is his, and it can't be duplicated by others. It was this sound that Bowie wanted and he was smart to get him. This recording between the two almost never happened due to the recommendation of Eno's management.  Eno's management was contacted first by Bowie in the efforts to get him into the studio to work with him on Low. They in turn relayed the message to Eno and at the same time advised him that it would be an unwise career move. They thought that his image would be sullied if he was seen working with a "Pop Star." 

There is a complete sense of artistic freedom on Low, the "fragments" are not structured and restrictive. What is very special about this album is  the way it communicates to the listener. Bowie communicated his ideas on some tracks without words, using instead phonetic sounds, as in Warszawa, or foregoing lyrics entirely and opting instead for strictly instrumental pieces.  I go back to a question I said I asked people. This one, "Do you think that music is any good if it doesn't have any lyrics?" Do you know the common answer I get is no? You see, many people just don't get it.  They don't understand that the answer to the question should never be no, because the LYRICS HAVE NOTHING TO DO WITH MUSIC.  These people are not into MUSIC, they are into cute phrases set to a catchy beat. I have discovered that there are few and getting fewer people who approach music as it should be approached, but then again there are  less artists turning out music these days. This is not a new problem but it is getting worse. Side two of Low, as well as Heroes are scorned by people, EVEN MANY BOWIE FANS, because they are instrumentals and they find little value in something that does not tell them what to think. The whole point is missed on them. Music is art, and art is to be INTERPRETED by each individual, it can mean many things to many different individuals. Fucking MTV and the rest of the  imbeciles who thrust these hideous music videos on the brains, little ones of course, of the record buying public have destroyed music. There is no more interpretation, the videos tell you what to think.  I am afraid to admit it but I fear that many do not care to think, being told is easier, and this accounts for the reason music is shunned. 

 I am going back to this quote which I heard a long time ago and one that I included in Part 17 of Images.  It went, "Bowie fans seem to all say that Low is Bowie's finest album overall from a creative standpoint, it rates as number one. Low is also the album that most Bowie fans don't listen to." True, in my opinion and I know for a fact that a good percentage of Bowie fans do not like the instrumental tracks on Low. How? By listening to other fans discussions on it. Many go with the flow and agree that Low is brilliant because they feel that it is the "intellectual" thing to do, but in reality they never listen to it because they don't like it,  which really means they don't understand it.  Station To Station, Low and Heroes are the three albums that make Bowie most accessible to his listeners,  however it does take a bit of work.  People who understand these albums will all tell you that It was well worth the effort.  Those who have are rewarded with a rare glimpse of the "real" Bowie, his soul, without all of the bullshit.  Bowie has stated many times that Low is his most personal album, so to understand it is to understand Bowie. I feel sorry for any fan that dismisses side two of Low and Heroes because if you do you don't understand Bowie. Uh, oh. Am I in trouble now? Don't answer that, I already know the answer. 

I can see the look on a few faces out there over what I just said. Oh, by the way, I can see you reaching for anything that may be utilized as a weapon against my person. How do I know? Let's just say from experience and leave it at that.  Now, to defend their position, those who disagree with me will say that this is all just my opinion.  Right? No. Wrong.  I am sorry to rain on your parade but I must tell you that my opinion happens to be the right one. No? Well it is according to Bowie. Here are some excerpts from an interview on page 35 that Bowie gave to New Musical Express in the September 13, 1980 edition. He said, "I still adopt the view that music itself carries its own message, instrumentally I mean. Lyrics are not needed because music does have an implicit message of its own; it makes the case very pointedly. If that were not the case then classical music would not have succeeded." He stated that music carries. "some definite point of view, some attitude which presumably can't be expressed with words." Bowie puts the importance of what he writes into his music, the lyrics are secondary and they DO NOT convey the ideas, or message he wants them to by themselves. I quote, " lyrics taken on their own are nothing without the secondary sub-text of what the musical arrangement has to say." He went on to say, "when people  concentrate only on the lyrics that's to imply there is no message stated in the music itself, which wipes out hundreds of years of classical music. Ridiculous." If for some reason you still disagree with my statements, I ask you to do me a favour. Since Bowie and I share the same viewpoint please take the matter up with him as you have a much better chance of succeeding. I'm much to stubborn. 

This next part is hard to believe but it is absolutely true. If some people had their way we never would have heard Low. EVER! 

AladinSANE 

To be continued..........

	Posted 17 February 2002


Part Nineteen

The favourite time of the year over at RCA Records And Tapes was Christmas. They just loved it, and the people who loved it the most were the ones who sat as the board of directors and the people who headed up the accounting and finance departments. This was not because these people were especially religious in nature; it was more because Christmas is a time when the record buying public spend shit loads of money. Appropriately they were already wringing their hands with glee at the thought of having a new David Bowie album to release just prior to shopping rush. I am sure they had visions of every good little boy and girl waking up on Christmas morning to find a nice new David Bowie album in their stockings. Ooooh, imagine all that money. The shareholders will be delighted. 

Bowie happy delivered Low to RCA on schedule, happy because to him the album was exactly what he wanted, it was a personal triumph. The executives at RCA couldn't quite believe their ears when they heard it. It was certainly different, in keeping with the Bowie style, but there was something missing on it. The album was played several times and they did discover a number of things, but each time the same conclusion was reached, there was definitely something missing. Now, as I said, there were several discoveries made when Low was played and each of these were well worth noting, due to their characteristics if nothing else.  They discovered that What In The World seemed to have a fresh approach to lyric writing and they had never before heard anything even remotely similar. They weren't used to songs with just three or four lines that get repeated over and over and over and over again for several minutes. Always Crashing In The Same Car got special attention because no one could quite figure out why anyone would record something like this. I mean, this wasn't music. They all really perked up at the sound of side two. Those two lengthy songs that last six and seven minutes really caught their attention. The lifeless ones with the endless repetitive drones and unintelligible lyrics. Eventually they did discover what was missing on Low. It was missing anything that resembled a hit single. The album had no hit potential whatsoever. This wasn't what good little boys and girls get for Christmas, this was the punishment for the naughty ones. They all agreed on one point, this is one David Bowie album that they couldn't release. 

RCA was frantic. The result of the meetings were that Low either had to be "fixed" or scrapped altogether. They decided to attempt to have it fixed first.  Still, getting it fixed wasn't going to help the situation much as it was certain that there wasn't enough time to have it ready by Christmas. Say goodbye to all that cash.  RCA asked Bowie to come in so they could tell him what they thought about the album and ask for his input regarding what the best ways might be to solve this problem. When Bowie came in they basically told him that Low was not marketable the way it was and  asked how it might be fixed. To get some airplay for promotional reasons they needed a single off of Low that could be distributed to the radio stations, and currently there was nothing they could use. Unfortunately Bowie could offer no suggestions to fix Low as he saw no problems with it and the fact that it had no commercial potential was not a bother to him. Low was written with artistic merits in mind, not money. Well, if Bowie had no suggestions RCA was full of them, and they told him in no uncertain terms what he was going to do to fix Low.  They told him to get his ass back into the studio. First of all Warszawa. Two things, no big deal. It need something added to it, lyrics, and the tempo speeded up a bit with some drums added. On, while he is at it he might as well add some lyrics to those other "songs" that didn't have any as well. Take a song from Low and remix it so it is playable on AM radio. It was then that Bowie had an idea and he decided to run it by the people at RCA to see what they thought. 

Bowie's idea was that RCA could fuck right off. It was his album and it was exactly what he wanted. Under his contract he was required to deliver it and he did. There was nothing to fix. RCA was not happy with Bowie's suggestion, they had another idea. They told Bowie he could fuck right  off, and they fully intended to use this idea without delay. To put the idea into its proper perspective, so David could fully understand the implications, they told him that there was nothing to market on Low in its present form and therefore they were unprepared to spend any money on it. They went on to further clarify themselves by saying that what they meant by spending no money on Low was spending NO MONEY, NONE, not even to press it. They told Bowie that he can keep the master tapes and do whatever he wanted with them because RCA had no use for them at all. The decision was made, RCA refused to release Low. That was final.

Bowie was a mixture of devastated and furious over the decision of his record label. They had always sided with him in the past as well as bailed him out of some fairly messy situations, such as the ones that were quite commonplace when Bowie was still an artist in the MainMan portfolio. He could not help but feel that RCA hand slighted him, along with his work, as he considered Low to be a personal achievement. He felt strongly enough about his work on this album that he was not going to take this lying down.  He decided to fight, something he would never do before, but this character he had adopted was not to be crossed. RCA should have known that. 

Unsure of what rights he had Bowie contacted a friend, who was a lawyer, in order to investigate all of the possibilities, if any, that existed as a recourse to the actions of RCA. His friend wanted to first see a copy of the contract that existed between Bowie and his label. I imagine Bowie was apprehensive about this because of what might be found in the small print, considering the fact that it was contracts that were used in the past to rob him blind. However, having nothing to lose in this case, and everything to gain, Bowie produced the contract. When he finally heard back from the lawyer he was told something which would not have been unexpected,  he heard it many times before. He was told that there was something in the small print of his contract with RCA and it would settle this matter, immediately. Bowie contacted RCA and arranged for a meeting to be held regarding their decision not to release Low. They were upbeat at the prospect of this meeting thinking of course that Bowie had come to his senses and would agree to remaking parts of the album that they wanted changed. Now it could be back to business as usual, a little late, but back to normal. Although I did not attend the meeting personally, I was busy that day giving the cat a flea bath, I can imagine that everyone was in rather jovial spirits, Bowie included, with everyone knowing that this situation was about to be resolved. First of all RCA asked was if Bowie was going to go back into the studio to apply the fixes to the album RCA wished to have done. The answer was no. If that was not the case then they wanted to know why they were wasting their time in a meeting, the decision was final, they would not release Low under any circumstances until their demands were met.  It was at this time that RCA was informed that they were going to release Low, immediately. No they weren't they asserted. As the contract was placed in front of them they were told that RCA had NO CHOICE, according to the terms of Bowie's arrangement they HAD TO.  Low was released January 14, 1977. Low went to number 2 on the British charts and number 11 on the American charts, Sound And Vision, the single chosen from the album made number 3 in Britain but only went to number 69 in the States. 

"A schizoid production, experiments in drone, confounding, stylistic inconsistency," were some of the words which the critics applied to Low when they wrote their reviews. In most cases the press was quite unkind and as Bowie fans we know why. They didn't understand it. We all knew that they weren't ready for it when it came out, we knew damn well Low and Heroes were light years ahead of their time. It was proven that we were right as well, because decades later the community of record critics that condemned it back then now hail it as one of Bowie's finest albums, if not his best album ever.  To RCA these reviews were reason for concern, however with enough help from Bowie personally promoting the album sales should be okay. Bowie was never a big seller but he was consistent. Radio interviews, magazine interviews, talk shows, plus TV and personal appearances is what Bowie would do to promote Low. Wrong. RCA contacted Bowie and he refused to do ANYTHING to promote Low. NOTHING.  Every request made by the media for an interview with Bowie was turned down. He would not speak to any member of the media about Low.  Repeated pleas from RCA were ignored until finally he refused to take any of their calls. Then he disappeared. The media were getting rather annoyed at being turned away on every attempt to get some information, and some questions answered about this new album which was quite bizarre in most opinions. Fed up they gave up on Bowie, who by now had slipped away to Berlin without telling anyone to embark on a six month drinking spree.  Instead they went after Eno and producer Tony Visconti to get some answers. Eno was quite helpful when asked about Low. He said it was a  "drifting" kind of a "new muzak" and the opposite of rock. It had a lot of "anchorage." They asked Visconti if Bowie had abandoned the pop mainstream to which Visconti answered, "He was never in it." 

Low remains as one of the most brilliant compositions ever written by anyone. If you are a Bowie fan and you are unkind to Low you do not understand Bowie. There is a chance you never will. If you dismiss Low you dismiss the essence of David Bowie. Do not get angry at me for saying this. You see there is a reason that Bowie refused to promote Low. He said, "It doesn't need to be discussed. It speaks for itself." 

Enough said for now. 

ALadINsaNE 

To be continued...................

	Posted 18 February 2002


Part Twenty

Mecca is the holiest of places for the Muslim religion. It may just be that Hansa By The Wall studios is one the holiest places for Bowie fans. It is a shrine, a landmark from which emerged the creative   genius of David Bowie. This period he was about to enter arguably was the pinnacle of his career. The change came first though.  What was Bowie had gone, he once again shed his skin to replace it with a new facade. This one was truly shocking to everyone. 

In September of 1976 the recording of Iggy Pop's new album The Idiot, which was mostly written by Bowie, had wrapped up. When Low was released in January of 1977 the only thing Bowie was willing to talk about to the media was Iggy. Questions about his own album went unanswered. Bowie was serious about helping Iggy get the recognition he felt he deserved, and he subsequently put much of his resources and time into making that happen. Iggy embarked on a tour March 1, 1977, which was to play Britain and 16 cities in North America. The tour opened in Britain amid a new wave of music that was starting to explode. Punk Rock. Personally I did not view as Punk being new, I found it to be the same old anti-establishment rhetoric found in Rock N' Roll. Get the "older folks" shocked and pissed off, which leads to media coverage, you get lots of attention, your records sell and you make money. Bowie did it, The Stones did it, Elvis did it and a host of others. What kills me is the fact that the record buying public are so damn stupid they never realize the fact that it is "gimmick" marketing, not only that, the same gimmick works over and over again and the idiots never catch on! How brain dead can you get? After all these years it is still used successfully by the likes of Marilyn Manson, Eminem and the rest of the Rappers. Punk just had a different sound, it was raw, and lyrics more risqué than rock. The visuals of the punk audience was a big help to promote it with various fluorescent dyed hair and hairstyles that the public was not used to, it was spiked. There were studs, piercings, makeup, jackboots, chains, dog collars, and the one fashion accessory that was mandatory for every punk, safety pins. 

The originator of punk went largely unnoticed during the British leg of his tour. The press basically ignored him preferring to give the pages of their magazines to emerging bands such as The Sex Pistols, The Jam and countless others. True to his word Bowie backed up Iggy by giving up the limelight and touring with him as strictly a member of his band. Bowie handled the piano duties as well as sang backing vocals. Not one Bowie song, with the exception of the ones that were  written for The Idiot, were ever played on the tour. This was an Iggy Pop tour, not a David Bowie tour.  The North American leg of the tour opened in Montreal, in a theater named Le Plateau. I saw this performance, Iggy was backed up by two bands on their first American tours. The two bands I saw along with Iggy were Blondie and The Ramones. May I stop for a minute? I want to say that I realize just how damn fortunate I am to be forty four years old. Why? Because I was around in the seventies and that afforded me the opportunity of a lifetime, which was to be able to see the bands I saw. Supertramp's first tour, Aerosmith's first tour, Elton John's Yellow Brick Road Tour, Jethro Tull 74, Cat Stevens, Strawbs, Yes, Pink Floyd's  Animals tour, The Who with Keith Moon, The Stones, Iggy, Rick Wakeman and of course Bowie. The list goes on and on. Zeppelin, Rush, Frampton, you name it. I truly feel sympathy for those who are into music and missed this era. I mean that with all sincerity. Someone wrote to me once and said they would give ten years of their life in a second to see the bands I have seen. That era is gone and has been replaced by, well you know, just turn on the radio and vomit. I beg you not to misconstrue this as one-upmanship, it is in fact the opposite, it makes me thankful. 

I wish I could write about this tour but I can't remember it as I do some Bowie tours. Funny, some memories are as if they happened yesterday, and others, well, not so clear. I remember the Ramones saying, "Gabba, Gabba, Hey" between each song. They were fun to watch and so was Blondie even though I knew little of their material. This was my first Iggy concert and I recall that he could contort his body into some lovely shapes. I had a copy of Raw Power and The Idiot so I was familiar with the stuff he sang. There was a racoon tail tied to the back of his jeans and he was shirtless. I remember him hanging by one leg from a light tree while singing something I did not recognize. Bowie's piano was tilted towards the back and I had a side view of him while he played. He rarely looked in the direction of the audience so not to take any of the limelight away from Iggy. He smoked a lot of cigarettes. At the end he walked to the front of the stage with Iggy and smiled and waved to the audience. His hair was still the same as The Thin White Duke's however Bowie did not look the least bit menacing. 

April, 1977. Bowie is back in Berlin. The tour is over and he starts work on his next album at Hansa studios. In addition he will again work with Iggy Pop on a second album titled Lust For Life. It is a new Bowie that enters Hansa. The Thin White Duke vanished, abruptly. Bowie is quiet now, no press,  no RCA and no longer in the company of lunatics. This period is not documented  Bowie is in hiding  and he has thrust himself into his work. I am not sure, and I have no way of finding out short of asking Bowie and he doesn't talk to me. I know this for a fact because I asked him a whole bunch of questions on BOWIEZOIDNET and I never got a response. I think it was the questions he didn't like, for example when I asked him why he sold Heroes to Microsoft and Watch That Man to Tommy Hilfucker when he doesn't need the cash. I also asked him if we could do lunch. I would have paid. Anyway, I do not know if Bowie realized at the time how much of an impact Low and Heroes would make on music. It opened up a whole new concept of which many, such as Gary Newman, copied. I will go as far as to say that almost every band owes a bit of thanks to Bowie for how he changed the face of music. He was on the cutting edge during this period and few artists in the music industry could even come close to achieving what he did as far as the innovation. It was fresh. We rarely see fresh innovative ideas in music anymore like we used to. Jobson, Fripp, Yes, Gentle Giant, Strawbs, Supertramp, Crimson, Floyd, Sparks, Reed, Iggy, ELP, Wakeman, The Nice, Hawkwind and that is just off the top of my head. All of them had the creativity to open up new avenues which expanded the way music can be approached. Oh, Jethro Tull, I almost forgot, and Genesis as well. What do we get nowadays? What will happen when these people no longer produce? Who will take their place? The thought to me is frightening. There is a certain circle of musicians who are true artists that usually work with one another. These artist are relatively unknown to most, but not to many of us in here, as Bowie is one of them. It seems that you can easily attach links to the people in this circle. Gabriel, Bruford, Holdsworth, Jobson, Eno, Fripp, Belew, Manzanara, Wetton, Levin, Ferry, Sylvian, Byrne and many more are all somewhat intertwined, and all are truly artists. You can tell how good they are because their stuff doesn't sell and is rarely heard over the airwaves. 

Bowie is at Hansa to record Heroes and Visconti had this to say, "Little did I know at that time that we were spearheading a mini-movement in modern music." Bowie was totally free on Heroes to expand what was accomplished on Low, by taking it in another direction. It was an expansion of the original concepts he mastered on Low and this time the keyboard drones, tape loops and treatments Bowie had Eno apply were overlaid with the manic ferocity of Robert Fripps guitar work. A great benefit was the liberty to do what he wanted again, this time knowing RCA had to release it.  Two months from now RCA would release Be My Wife as a single. It went nowhere. I wonder why because I really like that song, and the video to it is one of my favourites. I guess I am a minority. I mentioned in an earlier post that Robert Fripp was originally not scheduled to play on Heroes. He was brought in as Alomar and Bowie could not accomplish the exact sound David wanted. Fripp is recognized as one, if not the best, technical guitarist in the world. Those who know King Crimson's material are well aware of just how accomplished Fripp is. If I get into a discussion where someone is attempting to show me a better guitarist the argument is settled by the playing of the Crimson song Nuerotica and Frame By Frame. I defy anyone to follow Nuerotica let alone even attempt to play it, and the speed of Fripp on Frame By Frame is faster than greased lightening. The sounds that Fripp can get out of a guitar are unique to him and him alone and he has certainly enhanced the work of Eno, Peter Gabriel, David Sylvian as well as Bowie and a host of others. 

Bowie's new character for all intents and purposes was "human." He adopted the role of an "artist," akin to the looks of a starving artist in Paris. Gone were the trappings of a superstar, limos, handlers, the media and the extravagance of five star hotels, restaurants and everything you wanted hand delivered by servants bearing gold platters. Bowie dressed himself now and Coco looked after the household duties and the meals. I do not know what Iggy did, anything he wanted I imagine. His hair was back to its normal colour of brown and he sported a moustache at times. In some photos from that period  I had to look at twice.  Is that Bowie? Huh. He looks different. This character was the starving artist of Berlin. His dedication to his work was there but stronger than ever. The creative drive as well, not afraid to try something new. Bowie siphoned off everyone, he was not the type who would not take input from others, he was smart that way. Eno and Fripp are exceptional talents in their own right so why have the contributions and creative ideas of one when you can have three. 

Tony Visconti.  Producer, engineer, singer, musician and overlooked. This man is nothing short of brilliant and the high quality Bowie's albums have a lot to do with him. His creativity is left as a personal stamp on every Bowie album he ever worked on, especially Heroes.   The others include  The Man Who Sold The World,  Young Americans, Low, Lodger, Scary Monsters and several others. The vocals on the album are exceptional and a lot of this has to do with Visconti.  Especially unique are the vocal qualities on the title track. "Bowie histrionics," is the name given to the style when Bowie is singing at the top of his lungs so forceful it almost resembles a scream, with a little falsetto added in on the last syllables of certain words.  You all know it well. Like on Heroes. Anyway, Visconti wanted the maximum power of these "histrionics" to come through on the title track and he achieved this with a new recording technique, which he invented, and tried for the first time on Heroes. He placed three microphones at various distances away from Bowie and had them "gated."  What this means is that the microphones would only open at a certain decibel level so when Bowie pushed his voice harder these microphones opened. The result is the full rushing "explosion" of Bowie's vocals on Heroes as the microphones opened up. 

If one wishes to fully enjoy everything that Heroes has to offer it takes time, attention, headphones, and several years. This album has so much to give, yet it is not easily accessible in my opinion. Like Low it takes work, and I can't think of any work being much more enjoyable. Heroes can take you places. The chemistry on that album between all who contributed  to it is superb, and few others can rival it in that regard.  Listening to it you would think that the tracks were probably recorded many times before they got them so perfect. This was not the case. Fripp, Bowie, Eno and Alomar worked so well as a creative unit that most of the tracks were laid down in ONE TAKE. Yes, one take. That fact to me is amazing, given the complexity of the material written for the album, and this fact also is a testament to the brilliance of those musicians who were involved. If that is not sufficient enough to impress you, you may wish to know that Heroes was mostly all written in the studio and the lyrics to Heroes were made up as Bowie stood in front of the microphone. The lyrics, "just came out," according to Visconti. Should you be a "really tough case " and still need a bit of prodding to be convinced of just how far ahead these musicians are in comparison to most, then consider this. I advise you to sit down.  To lay down ALL of his guitar work Robert Fripp was in the studio a total of ONE DAY. One day was all it took for Fripp to do his parts. Wait, there's more. You see, not only did he do his work in a day, he almost turned Bowie down because he was a bit out of practice since hadn't been playing guitar for about THREE YEARS. This was because he had been devoting his playing time to synthesizers and other electronic devices. There you have it, twenty four hours from a man who hadn't played in three years. Visconti said Heroes was the best and most positive album he had made with Bowie. He said things went so well it seemed that they just couldn't do anything wrong. Bowie allowed the others he was working with to have a considerable amount of input, with regards to the material written. This is especially true when it comes to Brian Eno, as he is credited as a co-writer on Heroes, Moss Garden, The Secret Life of Arabia, and Abdulmajid. Eno never heard a finished version of Heroes in the studio as he had left the sessions before the lyrics were recorded. 

 Another testament to the capabilities of those who performed on Heroes is the vast diversity of the tracks. Many albums have one distinct flavour to them as the songs all "fit" to a similar musical style, or theme.  Good examples of this are Let's Dance, Young Americans, Hunky Dory and a few more. Heroes is an exception as the musical styles are "all over the place." This results in the listener being emotionally taken just to about everywhere. It is a real adventure. You can drift in the space between conscience and unconsciousness with Moss Garden and shocked full of energy with Heroes. Blackout invokes a sense of tenseness and Joe The Lion can make one manic. Sense of doubt causes sensations of bleakness and Sons Of The Silent Age a mood of reflection. Secret Life Of Arabia makes one question, travel to lands unfamiliar,  a want to discover. 

This is going to sound idiotic but I don't know how to put it another way. Limited vocabulary is a curse to me. A lot of thought went into Heroes. I know, into EVERY Bowie album, except "those two" in the eighties. I mean it is exceptional on Heroes, the thought behind each track. It is the characteristics of the Devil and an Angel that emerge on Beauty And The Beast. While in Berlin Bowie suffered a series of "blackouts" from the consumption of alcohol. On one occasion he suffered chest pains that were at first thought to be a heart attack, later it was diagnosed as anxiety. Hence the line, "Get me to the doctor."  The line, "Someone's back in town, the chips are down," could be a reference to Angie's appearance in Berlin and an incident with Coco. Angie, blaming Coco for everything, including the breakdown of their marriage, went on a rampage at the apartment where Coco, Iggy and Bowie were living. She cut up Coco's clothes and tried to set them on fire with vodka, broke some items and rumour has it threw her bed out a window and into the street. Joe The Lion. The story behind this song is one that I am sure you will find, as I did, extremely bizarre, as well as intriguing. This is all true, and if you happen doubt it then a quick search on the Internet will provide you with the confirmation that I did not make this up. Besides, this is so bizarre that not even I could have dreamt this up. I'm serious, and I can dream up some really imaginative things at times. Don't even ask. 

The song, Joe The Lion, is written about a real life person who goes by the name of Chris Burdon. Mr. Burdon is an artist, but of a special school called Visual Art. These are the artists who create what I term "public spectacles." You are familiar with them, the ones who wrap up entire buildings in coloured paper, cover the ground with five thousand yellow umbrellas or cover huge areas with cellophane. Chris Burdon is of a special breed of visual artists as he is one that incorporates the use of his body as an art form. He is a Visual Body Artist. His "art" incorporates the use of his body to portray the subject matter.  I will use one of his presentations which was called "Shoot" as an example. This presentation involved Mr. Burden standing still in a small room of an art gallery and then having a "friend?" shoot him in the arm with a 22 calibre hand gun. One of his artistic concepts was a five hour film he had made.  The film begins showing him being sewn into a mailbag, then the mailbag was tossed in the middle of an extremely busy highway. He laid on the highway inside the bag for a total of five hours and somehow survived. Now, if you are a person who is interested in this area of art and would like to examine it closer then I have some fabulous news for you. You can actually have an opportunity to  get a real "feel" for this work if you so desire and I am delighted to be able to tell you that Mr. Burden WELCOMES AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION! If you want to YOU can  PERSONALLY become ACTIVELY INVOLVED in one of the exhibits. Here is an example of one of those exhibits Mr. Burden constructed so the audience could become involved. The artistic presentation involved a chair with a small rack in front of it. Now, on the rack was a loaded 45  calibre handgun that was pointed at the level of the head of anyone who sat in the chair.  The gun had a timing device on it that would make it fire, with the timer set from "now," until some time in the future. People were welcome to sit in the chair and since no one knew when the timer was set for there was a chance that if you sat down you would get your head blown off. The point was so you could say that you did it and survived.  The line, "Nail me to my car," in Joe The Lion refers to a particular piece of Visual Body Art performed by Chris Burden. In this piece Burden had himself crucified on the back of a Volkswagen Beetle. He literally had himself nailed to the car. Speaking of nails,  for the love of his art form he once tried to swallow a ten inch nail. Does that surprise you at all? I didn't think so. 

Heroes. Two lovers by the wall. In Bowie's words" There were two lovers standing by the Berlin Wall. An East German watch tower stood high above them, manned by armed guards. Why did they choose the gun turret? I assumed their motive was guilt, thus the act of heroism in facing it." This version is probably romantic fantasy and in all probability did not occur exactly how he says. He may have seen a kiss by the Wall, however it was less of a random incident and not between two people strangers. The kiss was a flirtatious one between Antonia Maas, who sang backing vocals on Heroes and Tony Visconti. According to Tony on their return to the studio Coco said to him  "We saw you walking by The Wall and that's where he got that idea from." The inspiration for the song  probably came from one of Bowie's favourite artists, Otto Mueller. Bowie visited the Brücke-Museum on several occasions, and three paintings in the museum inspired Bowie's visual work during this time period. One of Mueller's paintings is Lovers Between Garden Walls. This painting portrays two lovers next to a wall 

WARNING: I AM GOING ON A TIRADE. IF YOU DO NOT WANT TO LISTEN TO IT SKIP THE NEXT PARAGRAPH FOR THE SAKE OF YOUR OWN SANITY. 

In my opinion I do not care if this kiss was between Visconti and Maas, or anyone else for that matter. Who the kiss was between in not relevant. What is relevant though is Bowie did give us a story line to Heroes, one of his best pieces of music in my opinion, and you can see the story unfold as you listen to it. Heroes is a powerful song and it is personal to me as it came out at a special time in my life. I have very deep and sentimental memories attached to it. I think everyone has a song in their life like that. Now when I hear Heroes I am told that I am to visualize products made by Microsoft, or think of FTD Florists all because Bowie sold the rights to the songs to these corporations. The lovers have been replaced by the Windows Operating System. Now, I realize they are HIS songs and he is legally free to do what he wants with them, which in turn gives him the rights to have reverence for his work, or disrespect it. How much money do you think he got? He is worth 975 MILLION DOLLARS IN US FUNDS. Did the money from the rights to Heroes make a big difference to his net worth? I highly doubt it. Better still is the question, "Does he NEED the money?" My uneducated guess is no, he does not need the money. I consider him selling Heroes an absolute disgrace, it is repugnant. Heroes, a powerful and romantic piece of writing by three genius artists  has been sullied for the sake of money he does not need. I shrivel up with rage at the disrespect he has for his art and in turn he has lost some of the respect I have for him. Consider this. I wonder how Fripp and Eno like having their work used in television commercials selling flowers and Microsoft products. I bet they are delighted and I wouldn't blame them if they never spoke to him again I guess Heroes isn't about two lovers, I am to think differently about it. It is about selling me consumer products. If this is the case then WHAT AM I SUPPOSED TO BELIEVE? Bowie has earned a credibility problem with me.  I will not apologize for my opinion about this because my opinion is a clear demonstration that I care and have respect for art, even when those who created it fail to. Hear that Bowie? We can buy Microsoft for ever and ever. 

END OF TIRADE 

I find Moss Garden to be hauntingly beautiful and the Japanese style very unexpected. Neukoln was named after the Turkish neighbourhood where Bowie lived and the correct spelling is 'Neukolln.'  Philip Glass's destroyed it on his horrid "Heroes" Symphony. Secret Life of Arabia. Brilliant piece, they say the song is about the movie 'Lawrence of Arabia' but I don't know, I have  my doubts. And speaking of doubt, well, Sense of Doubt. Do you like this? I hated it but it grew on me and now I "get it." I admire him for playing it on the 78 tour. The track Sons of the Silent Age I find underrated, highly underrated. The chorus was conceived by "the cut up" technique and it is sung beautifully. When he played this on the 87 Big Red Glass Arachnid tour he sang it perfectly and then let Peter Frampton sing the chorus. All I could think of was killing him. I wanted to wring his fucking neck. Man, was I angry. Oops, I forgot, I still am. V-2 Schneider kicks ass. 

In July Bowie was off to Paris for the French premier of The Man Who Fell To Earth and then went for a brief holiday in Spain with Bianca Jagger in tow. September was especially busy for Bowie with two TV appearances and one tragedy. On September 9th Bowie appears on Marc a Grenada TV show with Marc Bolan as the host. Bolan and Bowie perform a version of Heroes and this is the only time they publicly appeared together. Bolan was drunk and fell off of the stage. On the same day Iggy Pop's Lust For Life is released by RCA. Bowie is back in a TV studio on September 11 and this time with someone you would never expect. I know I was shocked to see David Bowie on The Bing Crosby Christmas Special. As much as Mr. Bowie should seem out of place surprisingly, as always, he pulls it off with the typical "Bowie charm." He looks completely "normal," human so to speak in a short sketch with Bing. Peace on Earth/Little Drummer Boy is the song they perform together and Bowie's voice is remarkably beautiful with falsetto in the duet. Bing Crosby sounds like a set of used tires, and believe me, I am being kind. My apologies for insulting the tires. I wonder what would have happened if they sang White Christmas? I mean, when Bowie heard the word "White" would he sing, or go get coke? The Heroes video is played on the show, and this is the first time I ever saw it. I describe it as visually powerful and it does justice to the song as it sets a mood of bleakness yet beauty shines through it. Bowie acts well in the video, his posture and facial expressions are commanding and that further adds to the emotion conveyed by the music. My parents saw it too and although exposed to Bowie, not by their choice, failed to be impressed with the video. I wonder how other people who were middle age, the majority of viewers, liked it? I bet it fucked up a few people because  Bowie and Heroes do not mix well with Santa, Bing and Christmas. I know Bing didn't like it, as a matter of fact he died a month later. Looking back on all this I wonder if I got the wrong message that the video was trying to convey.  After seeing the video I didn't feel like buying anything from Microsoft. Maybe I'm not very intelligent and I just didn't "get it." Hmmm? Now, I read someplace that apparently Bowie made three videos from the album and those were Heroes, Sense of Doubt, and Blackout.  The place I got this information from says that Blackout was never released and that would mean that Sense of Doubt was. I find this interesting because I have never seen this video or even heard of it before. This information may be wrong. Five days later tragedy strikes. On September 16, 1977, Marc Bolan is killed in an automobile accident. This news devastates Bowie. He is visibly shaken at the funeral on September 20. He set up a trust fund for Marc's son Rolan. The Marc Show featuring Bowie as a guest aired on September 30th.  When he was in London, Bowie went and visited some of his old haunts, one of them being Haddon Hall, where he once lived with Angie, Ronson and a host of others who were in and out consistently.  His previous landlord saw him and was delighted that David was so sentimental that he had thought to come back. He handed Bowie a bill for unpaid rent. 

While Bowie was in Berlin RCA did not receive too many postcards scribbled with the, " Having a wonderful time, I wish you were here" sentiments on them. I don't believe any were lost in the mail either. They hadn't heard much from Bowie since January and relationships between the two were rather strained after the hassle between them over the release of Low. Bowie's failure to do any promotion for the album did not improve matters. Low sold 279,050  ( Fig.1983)  copies in America and that was not a very Impressive number as far as RCA was concerned. Bowie felt the responsibility for the poor sales figures were solely due to RCA's failure, in his opinion, to support his work. Bowie did not feel RCA was spending anywhere near the money they should have to promote his albums. I do not think the two were missing each other much. Especially Bowie, as he now got advances of $200,000.00 per album. Right now he didn't need RCA. 

They were absolutely positively absolutely certain it was revenge. Those tracks on side two had to be left over from the Low sessions, fucking outtakes probably. They were convinced, and it  was not a happy day over at RCA Records And Tapes when they heard Heroes. Again, nothing marketable, and like Low, side two was a wasted effort in their opinion. Some executives started referring to side two of Low and Heroes as "sound effects." That's what Bowie was making now, sound effects records. Having no other choice due to the terms of Bowie's contract Heroes was released on October 14, 1977. The reviews came back to RCA. It didn't look good. The first thing that they thought of the back catalog, something Bowie despised. Let me explain. With the delay of Low , missing the Christmas shopping season, RCA believed that they had lost a lot of money. After all, their one Christmas release from a major artist was supposed to be Low, and if these problems were anticipated they could have selected another artist. In order to recoup some of this money RCA started  re-releasing tracks from his albums as singles without consulting Bowie. What was worse than that was the fact that on these singles, even the singles from new albums, Bowie never had any input as to what was placed on the "B" sides.  Bowie did not approve of their choices. I personally have to agree with him. I think that "B" sides should be in the same flavour as what is placed on side "A," I mean it should fit. Singles that were released such as Changes/Andy Warhol, Starman/Suffragette City and Fame/Right all fit together nicely. RCA was not very good at matching up tracks to be released together. For example  these are some that were released without telling Bowie, Diamond Dogs/Holy Holy, TVC15/We Are The Dead and Knock On Wood/Panic In Detroit. They don't fit together very well,  about as well as Bowie/RCA. 

David Bowie did not believe that RCA understood him as an artist and therefore felt that they did not support his work. Instead of the freedom he thought he should be allowed in order to produce, they did the opposite and instead attempted to put restrictions on him. What bothered him the most was that they did not "trust" his work, meaning that they thought his work was not what it should be and I can understand how this must have insulted Bowie. What "not trusting" means is that they believed his work was not going to rake in millions for RCA because it was not "pop" enough. What this was really telling Bowie was in effect,  "David, stop producing albums with depth and quality because these cater to a small select audience only, and we can't make millions from them. We want you to lower your standards a put out "pop" music with a nice beat like everyone else does. We don't care about music, we just want you to turn out hits. Do not write what you want, write what will sell. We don't care about your work, we care about money and you are signed with us for one reason only and that is to make RCA Records And Tapes a return on the investment we have in you." The problem is they didn't understand. NOBODY UNDERSTOOD. Well, nobody except a few. 

AladINSAnE 

To be continued........

	Posted 1 March 2002


Part Twenty One

Bowie felt that nobody understood and in my opinion he was correct. I admit that I used to approach this subject with a great deal of trepidation, however that was in the past.  There seems to be a definite "rift" between many newer Bowie listeners and the older ones and I have encountered it too many times for it to be just a co-incidence.  I have some rather strong beliefs, and others I have spoken to do as well, concerning this period of Bowie's career. My opinions are pretty much in tune with what Bowie felt, that his work was not understood by many. I will get to the point. To understand Bowie it is necessary to understand his work between 1976 and 1980.  To know Bowie this work will give you a glimpse into the man's soul.  From a creative point of view this work will forever be unequalled. From a point of being understood, it will largely remain misunderstood by fans, the experts and the music buying public. I have taken some heat over this topic before but I will stand by my opinion and the way Heroes, Low, Station To Station, Lodger and Scary Monsters were welcomed by the critics and the record buying public strengthens my position. My position is further strengthened by the way many fans regard this period. I actually mean disregard. I am about to succeed now in getting a few more personal critics for what I am about to say, but the way I see it is what are a few added on to the hundreds out there already. Besides, my insurance premiums are paid for the policies I have covering long term disability or accidental death. I have inquired as to whether I am covered in case of  being murdered by offended Bowie listeners, and they assured me that such a case would be classified  as "accidental." What I don't understand though is since I do it on purpose wouldn't that make it suicide? We are led to believe two things that I believe are incorrect,  extremely incorrect if I may say. We are told that there are individuals out there who are "experts" in their assessment of the vast amount of entertainment available for our ears. They are called the "critics," or the "reviewers"  and we are told that these individuals are "experts" on every facet of every style of music. I do not believe this. What they do have, sadly, is the power to often control what the public buys, and this also gives them the power at times to determine if a band succeeds or fails. The second thing we are led to believe is the average record buyer has intellectual depth when it pertains to music.  I do not believe this either, because if a person looks back into history the facts show a somewhat different scenario. 

What really transpired during this period? Well, the reviewers were writing endless scathing drivel conceived from minds that would be empty if the ignorance was removed.  Heroes and Low were being misunderstood by the "experts" and the majority of the record buying public.  Why? One reason is that everyone was listening to Disco. 

First of all I wish to address the level of "understanding" which the so called "experts" had of Low and Heroes. I advise you sit down after getting a few sedatives before reading this, you will need them. The reviewer for The Record Mirror said, and I quote, " Bowie is out of touch with the man on the street." In Rolling Stone the review on Heroes mentions Low and it says this, "But most of the purely instrumental Side Two was simply too distant for pop audiences." My question, "How do you gain employment as a music critic?" I know you have to be deaf and I am sure that a low IQ goes a long way. Another point made was this, "Heroes" reunites much of the "Low" cast (notably synthesizer whiz Brian Eno) and setting (Berlin), but it is unlikely to restore Bowie's commercial momentum." Rolling Stone said overall , Heroes is "without depth or soul" made by a man of "little faith.,” "Bowie's rapid moves from rock to soul/disco to, techno-rock have struck even some of his loyalists as gimmicky and, therefore, not worth serious attention.", " In "Heroes," Bowie again reserves most of Side Two for instrumentals - the tone of "Heroes" is mostly withdrawn and bleak. " Yes they said that, and this as well, "The problem with Bowie doesn't seem to be as much gimmickry as fluctuating pop interests that cause him to shift from style to style faster than his ability to master them. Heroes ends up as one of his least arresting turns. On the whole, it is cold and unattractive." Most reviews reflect the same sentiments and I have a problem with this because these music critics overlooked one small item in their reviews. These music critics overlooked the MUSIC! In these "reviews," the statements, er stupidity I mean, scrawled  by these ignorant deaf are an eternal testimonial that they did not concern themselves with anything as complex as "music" when forming their "one inch thoughts" about what to write. They were looking for the wrong things first of all.  Secondly, they were a few pounds short of the necessary brain matter to even begin to comprehend Bowie, or any other artist for that matter. 

I have read these reviews and many similar ones over the years concerning Bowie's work in an honest attempt to understand how these critics obtain their opinions. I have tried to understand how they approach Bowie's work so I can see the criteria that is used by them in judging the merits of what an artist writes. Take my word on this please, it is really difficult. I can't seem to get too far beyond the observation which was worded this way, "unlikely to restore Bowie's commercial momentum." I may be mistaken, but the tone of this remark seems to suggest that it is a criticism, and this is one of the shortcomings of Heroes. I am quite serious, I do not understand this at all, and what is further perplexing to me is the fact that I honestly do not think that I am missing anything.  Bowie was not thinking of commercial success when he wrote Heroes. Heroes was written from the heart and soul of David Bowie. Robert Fripp and Brian Eno had their hearts and souls in there as well. It would be a grave insult to even suggest that the motivation behind Heroes was to make a "hit" record, and this is readily apparent due to the fact that Heroes is not shallow enough to be a hit. Since Heroes was never intended to be a commercial album then Bowie SUCCEEDED because it was unlikely to restore any commercial momentum. This is a reason to BUY the album, not ignore it. I also do not see what "commercial success" has to do with the quality of the music on Heroes, except for the fact that by not being commercial it is a reason to BUY it. 

"Bowie is out of touch with the man on the street." Again, I find myself searching for some sort of an explanation. I fail to understand why it is a requirement for Bowie to produce work that everyone can relate to. Would this reviewer criticize Picasso, Mozart, Kubrick, Warhol or Einstein for the same reason? Scary thought. This reviewer is telling me that if the majority of the record buying public do not like an album due to the fact that it isn't mainstream enough then the album is no good. Since this is what he uses to measure the worth of an album then I can safely assume that Peter Gabriel, Adrian Belew, King Crimson, Roxy Music, Trey Gunn, Lou Reed, Dead Can Dance and Yes albums are also not worth owning because the number of sales determines the quality of the music. In retrospect, according to music review publications, it seems that what are now considered Bowie's best works are the ones which were not commercially inclined and  not in touch with the man on the street. That however took twenty years for the critics to realize. 

Another criticism, "The tone of "Heroes" is mostly withdrawn and bleak." Hmmmm? A reason not to buy Heroes? I laughed really hard when I read this.  I was just wondering how many Bowie listeners would agree that at least some of the album is like this? Personally I have to agree that parts of Heroes are dark, uninviting and cold. My description, and I think it is a good one, is that parts of Heroes sound "desperate." I have to give this reviewer a lot of credit for at least listening to the music on Heroes closely enough to experience these emotions. However, even though he picked this up he still didn't "get it"  and  I am confused as to how a person, especially an author who specializes in music, could be so "narrow thinking." Apparently the thought never crossed his mind that maybe some tracks on Heroes were SUPPOSED TO MAKE THE LISTENER EXPERIENCE THE SENSATIONS OF BLEAKNESS AND ISOLATION!!!!! Bowie said this once when talking about Heroes, "Berlin is a city made up of bars for sad, disillusioned people to get drunk in." Bowie's intention WAS to convey to the listener feelings of bleakness and disillusionment and he did a superb job of raising those emotions on some of the instrumental tracks. This is not a DETRIMENT to the album, it is a COMPLIMENT to Bowie's ability as an artist. Bowie was able to express his emotions to the listener without the aid of the written word. The music spoke. What I find inconceivable is that this person finds fault with Heroes because it  does not express happiness. I  guess according to him music should not convey a wide range of emotions, if the music does not make you happy and whistle, tap your feet or sing along, then it is worthless. Since this seems to be the case then all classical music, film soundtracks and the so called "New Age" music all belong in a landfill along with Low and Heroes. This guy really knows his stuff. 

"The problem with Bowie doesn't seem to be as much gimmickry as fluctuating pop interests that cause him to shift from style to style faster than his ability to master." Oh, I get it. Bowie's ability is rather limited as a musician, therefore the quality of the music suffers. Really? If this is the case I guess I should go and throw my Bowie albums out and stop writing. Maybe tomorrow. 

"Heroes is without depth or soul made by a man of little faith." This statement is the result of the worst incident I have ever encountered of "displayed ignorance." Regrettably I can't fathom this depth of stupidity, and therefore I will not lose one second of my life or waste one ounce of energy to respond to it. I feel sympathy for this man and I hope one day he is able to get the professional help he so desperately needs. 

How sad, in all these reviews every note went unnoticed. Heroes was judged by its commercial viability. If you look at Heroes potential as a money generating top forty album, then all of these people are right, Heroes is not worth much at all. As for me, I do not care if I am the only one who bought it. I could never put a price on something so meaningful. It wasn't just the critics who dismissed Heroes either and this next part has some moments that are quite beyond the comprehension of many Bowie listeners that I know. 

I am a very vocal defender of this period of David Bowie's career, from 1975 through until 1980. Who do I defend it from? Well, not from who you would think. I am not defending it from Pop music fans, Rap fans, Hip Hop fans or from fans of alternative musical styles. I defend this period from other Bowie fans. You read that right and it is not a prank, far from it, it is the truth and I have witnesses to the fact. Not only do I have witnesses, but I have seen other members of alt.fan.david-bowie doing the exact same thing. Many times members of this group, who consist of twenty year plus fans and others who prefer pre 84 Bowie, come under attack for their position that Bowie's work has lost a lot of it's quality. Many of these assaults originate from Bowie's official pay to join web community, as he calls it. Many who call themselves Bowie fans dismiss this period in favour of Bowie's commercial albums. If  you are one I have something to say to you. 

WARNING: I  AM ABOUT TO PRESENT MY POSITION REGARDING THOSE WHO PREFER THE COMMERCIAL BOWIE AND ON THOSE WHO I FEEL ARE BOWIE FANS FOR THE INAPPROPRIATE REASONS. IF YOU ARE A BOWIEZOID OR A CRITIC OF HIS WORK FROM 1975 TO 1980, BELIEVING THAT HIS LATER ALBUMS ARE BETTER, I ADVISE YOU TO SKIP THIS PART UNLESS YOU WANT TO EXPERIENCE THE EMOTION OF WANTING TO MURDER SOMEONE. 

I will not mince words or sugar coat this as I used to. This is straight. Anyone, and I mean anyone, who does not understand Low and Heroes does not understand David Bowie. Period. You will never have a clue about him as an artist by his later work. The commercial albums from 83 until the present are NOT David Bowie, or at least not the one which was at the cutting edge shaping the entire concept of music as we know it. Now, I am not saying that his later works are not relevant, far from it, there are some masterpieces there. What I am saying is that overall this period was far superior, and without knowing it you will miss the entire "essence" of David Bowie. Okay? 

Yes, I know what some are calling me at this moment and I want to let you know that I am totally unaffected. Oh, and while you are fuming you may wish to choke on this little titbit as well. That is not my "opinion," it happens to be a fact. Now, since this is a fact that makes me right, and if you disagree with me you are wrong. How's that? Oh, don't you worry, I will prove it. Not only that but I will prove it with evidence so strong that it is beyond any contradiction by any of you. 

"I mean, I look back on a lot of my earlier work and, although there's much that I appreciate about it, there's not a great deal that I actually like. I don't think they're very likeable albums at all. There's a lot more heart and emotion in 'Low' and, especially, in the new album." 

"But I didn't promote 'Low' at all, and some people thought my heart wasn't in it. This time I wanted to put everything into pushing the new album. I believe in the last two albums more than anything I've done before." 

"The only reason I've decided to do these interviews is to prove my belief in the album," Bowie said in one of a series of meetings with the press in London. "Both 'Heroes' and 'Low' have met with confused reactions. 

"The subtext/back-story of Heroes is deeply personal." 

Those are the words of David Bowie. In numerous interviews over the years it is not the least bit difficult to find quotes of this nature pertaining to Heroes and Low. Bowie has consistently maintained that these albums are his most personal, and Low he considers his most important work, and Heroes seems to be a close second. Until someone can provide quotes from Bowie that state that there is other work he has done which is more important, or more personal, then there is no other option than to accept what Bowie says as the truth. Therefore, if you are angry at me, you are angry at the wrong person and I suggest that you take the matter up with Bowie himself. I am merely agreeing with him. All you have to do to change things and make my statements incorrect is to convince Bowie that these albums are not his most personal and not his most important. Say hello to him for me while you are at it, if you don't mind. 

It is obvious to me that some of you may wonder why I take such a "Holier Than Thou," at least I am honest, stand on this.  It’s because I grow weary of seeing the artistic creativity of Bowie being ignored by his so called fans in favour of his looks or some other attribute. In addition the shear ignorance of some of his listeners is obscene to put it mildly. It isn't the ignorance itself but the fact that many Bowie listeners, including myself, come under verbal attack by these people who claim that we are the ones who are ignorant. I have seen members of alt.fan.david-bowie, who forgot more about Bowie in the past five minutes than these people will ever know, being demeaned by those who should be forcibly banned from owning any recordings other than Milli Vanilli's Greatest Hits As Sung By Porky Pig And Osama Bin Laden. It is my experience that many people do not look back. Yes, I am addressing the fact that nobody seems to think that it is warranted to learn about history to understand the present. It is impossible to  understand the relevance of anything without learning about the conditions from where it originated. This holds true for Bowie listeners as well, therefore it is necessary to look back, at least as far back as the early seventies. 

I get the strangest looks from my children when I tell them that I remember when there were no such things as CDs, pocket calculators, computers, digital watches, Nintendo or remote controls for the TV.  The looks are equivalent to the ones I get when I tell people that I remember when David Bowie had no fans. 

AladINsane 

To be continued for probably the next 1,600 or so years...........

	Posted 5 March 2002

	 


Part Twenty Two

That sounds odd, doesn't it? David Bowie had no fans. Well, as odd as it may be it is true and many Bowie listeners do not realize that because it is hard to fathom when looking at his popularity these days. It wasn't easy to be a Bowie listener back then either, you were certainly singled out, to say the least. Looking back however, there is something quite noticeable, and that is the fact that people start listening to Bowie for a variety of different reasons. I should say follow what Bowie is doing because there are some that do not listen, they watch. In the early seventies though people seemed to gravitate towards Bowie's work for mainly one reason and it became many reasons around 1983. It seems to be a fact that a "rift" developed between many fans around the time Let's Dance was released. This rift grew after that and from 1984 until 1993 it not only separated some fans from other fans,  it also separated some fans from Bowie himself. I am speaking here from personal experience as I started listening to Bowie in the early seventies. I want to make it clear, so this is not perceived as only my opinion, that I have spoken extensively with others who have been interested in Bowie from the same time period as I or earlier. I have included many of their views as well in this piece and I believe that I should point out that according to the comments I receive from others an overwhelming majority of fans from this era agree with what I am going to say. By overwhelming I mean ninety percent at the least. 

I am well aware of the difficulty in perceiving a David Bowie that is not popular. I also am aware how difficult it is to perceive a David Bowie that is not in the mainstream. Out of the shows that I attended during the Serious Moonlight Tour in 1983, three of them were in Vancouver. The fact that David Bowie was almost nowhere to be found for five long years had little bearing on ticket sales for this tour. Vancouver has a population of around one and a half million. The first concert was held at B.C Place Stadium,  your typical inflatable dome sports facility, which is a horrid place to hold a concert due to its size. The seating/standing capacity of the stadium I estimate at around sixty thousand. I say "standing capacity" because quite often, as in this case, there are no seats on the floor, it is standing room only. The venue sold out in a matter of a few short hours and Bowie tickets were a valuable commodity allowing some scalpers to enjoy an early retirement in all probability. Bowie returned later in the tour and played at The Pacific National Coliseum which is the same facility that he used for the tour rehearsals in 1976. Bowie played at The Coliseum for two consecutive nights and these concerts were filmed later released on video. This is the Serious Moonlight Tour video that most of you are familiar with as it was broadcast world wide and sold in video outlets. Some seating had to be removed to accommodate the filming equipment so I have to estimate here and I believe that there was enough space for at least fourteen thousand people. The concert was sold out both nights and a ticket for these two shows was next to impossible to obtain if you did not get one the day that they went on sale. They sold out in a little over an hour and twenty minutes.  The numbers are quite impressive when you consider that out of a population of one and a half million you can sell eighty eight thousand seats  and I am confident that he easily could have played a few more shows to sell out crowds. Vancouver is indicative of the 1983 tour as it sold out everywhere and often shows had to be add. Such was the case in New York where Bowie was scheduled to play one night he ended up doing three shows to meet the demand. Now, compare. I saw the 76 Station To Station tour and the 78 Heroes tour at The Forum in Montreal which had a seating capacity of sixteen thousand I believe.  Bowie played one night and the place was far from sold out on both occasions. A person could have bought a ticket the day of the show with ease. On some of the European dates during the Station To Station tour the venues had a capacity of three thousand. Yes, I said three, not thirty. 

Bowie may have been a recognized personality in his home country but in North America it was quite a different story. Bowie was not very well accepted in America and Canada and that was due a lot to the fact that there were so many misconceptions about him.  The root of it was the publicity that was generated by MainMan and spread by the media concerning his "sexuality." The dresses and make up did not help and many American and Canadian stations refused to play any music written by a "transvestite," as some put it. You must understand that homosexuality was NOT tolerated in the early seventies as it is now. It was extremely dangerous to "come out of the closet"  back then and you had an excellent chance of getting a severe beating if you were even perceived as a "faggot." Bowie received death threats on his first few American tours and Defries hired a body guard to protect him. This stemmed from one instance where a handgun was actually pulled out by someone a little too close for comfort. The labels were not confined to Bowie either. I want to ask who would take any notice of you today because you are a Bowie listener? I imagine that no one would say much except to compliment you on your better than average taste in music. This was not like it used to be however as there were some pitfalls back then for making your taste in music well known. Although it never did happen to me, I know of several incidents where some Bowie fans ended up getting a beating because of what they listened to. These were not isolated cases either and Montreal is an extremely tolerant city. I did get called names on several occasions as it was thought that Bowie was faggot music. Bowie had become a symbol for the gay community, against his will, and that further fuelled the belief that only queers listened to his music. Being a Bowie fan often meant getting labeled as a queer, fag, homo or just plain weird. It was something you endured at times. 

Bowie did not have a large fan base in North America in the seventies and that is easily proven by looking at the amount of people who bought his work. There are some of you who will question these statements and figures and some may say I am a liar.  Please feel free to say what you want in disagreement, however that will not change the fact that this information is correct. I know from experience that few people are actually aware of how small a fan base Bowie had. The people who listened to Bowie were a select few that I like to consider as people who were more intellectual in their approach to music and refused to entertain the thought of listening to what appealed to the mass record buying public. We were selective about what we exposed our minds to and therefore avoided that which most people bought for the simple reason it lacked any depth.  Our numbers were small, and I mean small enough that we could not accurately be called an audience. If there is any terminology that would be the best to describe us it would be a "cult following." You don't believe me?  First consider this, and I advise you to be ready for a shock. If you think that Bowie was a big seller then here is a bit of David Bowie Trivia for you. In the seventies sometimes FIFTY PERCENT(50%) of Bowie albums were returned to the record distributors as UNSOLD STOCK. I had the same question that some of you are asking now, "Surely Bowie must have been better known?" Well, I discovered the answer and it is quite appropriate. Bowie was well known but the truth is being "known" does not always equate into record sales. Bowie was known as being "strange" and all of the other characteristics that were generated for promotion in the media. A tremendous number of the public knew of him but did not buy his work. How many people lived in America in the seventies? I am guessing, but probably two hundred and fifty million and about twenty million in Canada. Ask new Bowie fans how many people out of the  two hundred and seventy million bought Heroes, Low, Lodger, Aladdin Sane, Diamond Dogs or The Man Who sold The World as of 1983. Well? Let me tell you. A whole 153,000 people out of 270 million bought Lodger and as far as Diamond Dogs goes not even one million bought it, as It sold 745,000 copies. Heroes 280,000, Low 266,000. Only 207,000 thought The Man Who Sold The World was worth anything  and 532,000 people saw value in Aladdin Sane. Bowie did not sell. Very few people "got it,” including the so called "experts," you know, the critics. 

One of the main problems with Bowie's work was that it was complex and had depth, both musically and lyrically. It was music that had to be "listened" to and therefore required you to sit still and become absorbed with the sound. This was not light music made for fun or catchy happy cute little jingles to sing along with. I can only speak for myself but I do not think many people tapped their feet to We Are The Dead or whistled along to Saviour Machine. I never once heard Width Of A Circle or Right played at any dances I went to. Oh, and I didn't hear Stay played on AM radio to sing along to. Another problem was that the work he released did not fit in with the time period that it was released in. Low and Heroes were released in the disco era and maybe some have a difficult time understanding the significance of this. NOBODY was interested in Bowie's music because it was totally the opposite of what was popular. Bowie had a lot of integrity towards his work by failing to cave into what the public wanted and recording what he felt was relevant to him at the time. He wrote for himself and stood by his work for the sake of what it meant to him and not for how it would fare on the charts. Bowie deserves a lot of respect for doing this, and so do the other artists who also demonstrated the same integrity towards their work. I thought my point would be best illustrated if we looked back at the charts to discover exactly what people were listening to the week some Bowie albums were released. I hope you find this as interesting as I did. 

Low was released on January 14, 1977.  I obtained the following information from a New York area radio station which have charts that list the top selling albums and singles by the week. According to the information this is what the most popular singles were for the week Low was released: 

  1. Car Wash - Rose Royce
  2. You Don't Have to Be a Star (To Be In My Show)   Marilyn McCoo & Billy Davis, Jr.
  3. You Make Me Feel Like Dancing - Leo Sayer
  4. Tonight's the Night - Rod Stewart
  5. I Wish - Stevie Wonder
  6. After the Lovin' - Engelbert Humperdinck
  7. Hot Line - The Sylvers
  8. Dazz - Brick
  9. Enjoy Yourself - The Jacksons
 10. Whispering/Cherchez la Femme/Se Si Bon -  Dr. Buzzard's Original Savannah Band

These are the top singles for the week in which Heroes was released, October 14, 1977:

  1. Star Wars Theme/Cantina Band - Meco
  2. You Light Up My Life - Debby Boone
  3. Nobody Does It Better - Carly Simon
  4. Boogie Nights - Heatwave
  5. Keep It Comin' Love - KC & the Sunshine Band
  6. I Feel Love - Donna Summer
  7. That's Rock and Roll - Shaun Cassidy
  8. It's Ecstasy When You Lay Down Next to Me -  Barry White
  9. Strawberry Letter #23 - The Brothers Johnson
 10. On and On - Steven Bishop

By looking at these charts it makes it relatively clear what people were interested in listening to. Since I lived, I mean survived, through this nightmare I can tell you first hand that the "music," and the clothing which accompanied it, was not the type of "scene" that most of you would want to participate in, and probably wouldn't unless you were tortured. These albums did not fit in with the time period, and it is interesting to note that neither did any of his work from 1974 until 1980. Now, you can well imagine how Bowie fans were viewed back then for listening to Low and Heroes.  They were all  dressed in polyester suits with  open shirts to reveal well placed gold chains and  they danced to mindless drivel about sex while sniffing amyl nitrate.  Amyl nitrate goes by the street name "poppers" and it was quite popular in the disco scene. When sniffed it elevates the heart rate and raises the blood pressure enough so you get a "rush." The stuff was a legal  "cheap" high that led to a headache afterwards. 

Bowie fans were at the opposite end of the spectrum when Heroes was released. We were listening to Bowie for one reason only and that was because it was music that stimulated the mind. Bowie made music which was unique, it had depth and it was intricate in every way. The average record buyer was unable to understand Bowie's work, because like all of the progressive music of that time period  it was aimed at a more intellectual audience. We all knew that Heroes and Low were two of the most amazing albums ever written and we were well aware that they were twenty years ahead of their time. It is true that the early Bowie fans who remained listeners for decades were motivated by the calibre of Bowie's work.  Outward appearances, or anything else physical, was not considered important, what came out of the stereo speakers was. Anyone who was a Bowie listener from 76 to 80 was there for the quality of his work. There were NO TOP 40 HITS, NO GIMMICKS, NO COSTUMES, NO FADS and FEW FANS. Bowie shared his audience with those who followed other artists for the same reasons, and again that was music. It is no accident that on the shelves of Bowie listeners you were apt to find a mixture of similar recordings of other unpopular or semi known artists at the time who were also producing their work for the sake of the artistic value rather than the income generating value. Do not misquote me on this however. If these artists,  and many did, scored a hit then that was fine. If something sold all the better,  but the point is that they did not write with the goal in mind of producing hit after hit. The albums of Bowie's that are referred to today as classics were all dismal failures when they came out with the exception of Young Americans and the reviews were nothing short of unkind in most instances. The question that begs to be answered is why? I have a feasible answer to that question. It is because  Bowie composed music. Not only did Bowie compose music, but what he wrote was outside of the traditional framework of what most were used to hearing, as his music was not superficial, instead it had substance. Equally as important was the fact that Bowie utilized the talents of others as competent as himself, and this put his work in a class reserved for those who truly had enough talent to rewrite the definition of music. If you look at the reviews the critics lavished on Bowie's work through this period it becomes obvious that they were looking for something that did not exist and missing what did exist.  To call these individuals "music" critics is an oxymoron, as the "music" escaped them. They were not looking for music, they were looking for songs, and ones that were commercially viable. 

There is always a number of "fair weather fans" and I admit that Bowie had some as well. I completely understand that there were those who liked the "gimmicks" of the early seventies and by this I mean the whole uni-sexual theme ,hairstyles, clothes, make up and glitter. It was like every other new wave that separated the generations by shock value. Shock losses its ability effect people after awhile because after being exposed to it for a period of time it ceases to grab attention anymore for the simple reason people get used to it. The whole thing becomes routine. Punk, Rock N' Roll, Disco, Hip Hop, Grunge, Gangstra Rap and every other "movement" became routine. Those who were into Bowie so they could play "dress up" only stayed around while the clothes and the make up were still an effective weapon against "The Establishment," or until the whole "look" had become acceptable by the "common" people. The gimmicks bands used in the early seventies ceased to be effective by 1975.  When Station To Station,  Low and Heroes came out the Bowie look that once shocked people was gone, and these fans went with it. 

Things have not changed at all over the years when it comes to those who purchase records. The average record buyer is looking for  "songs," and not music when selecting something to listen to.. Those who are looking for "music" make up a small minority of the record buying public. Their motivation for buying an album comes from a set of much different criteria than the average person who buys songs. As I said before, the record buying public wants "pop." Popular music is all alike, all 3:00 to 4:30 seconds, and almost all of these songs share certain specific qualities with one another. First of all the "music" itself is extremely simplistic in nature, utilizing three or four chords in a 4/4 time signature and played in a tempo that rarely changes except at the chorus lines. The rhythm is best described in normal cases as being, "boppy" and you can dance to the beat.  The structure to each song is absolutely the same with verses followed by a four or six line chorus followed by more verses, so everything alternates.  In almost all cases lyrics are mandatory for songs and these lyrics are usually catchy enough that it invites the listener to sing along. Like the competence of the musicians on most songs the lyrics do not have to be of high quality.  The intellectual quality of what is said by the lyrics is of no importance. The worth of these songs are is not based on any real measure of quality, so to speak.  We are "sold" the fact that these "songs" are good by record companies who are trying to get your money. They tell us what is popular and what we should listen to. They tell us what music is, and they tell us by attacking us with a blaze of hype generated from advertising, repetitive radio play, music videos, Grammy Awards and any other form of marketing money can buy. The performers of these "songs" in most cases have little talent as proper musicians and many times do not write their own material. What they do have is usually a voice, however the voice is secondary. The biggest asset for one of these "singers' is good looks, and forget about the music industry as a career if you are a real musician who does not looks that rival a model. The reason is that to make a singer popular they must be "packaged" to sell. The success of a person in the music business is not based on talent, but on the fact of how successful the record company wants to make you, and that depends if your package sells. If people buy the hype then the company will put more money behind you to create even more hype. If your package does not sell then you are replaced with a new package. There is no longevity for a singer. The people who pay are not paying for quality music, they are buying hype and the "flavour of the month." Tastes change rapidly and once they get tired of looking at you then you are replaced. All of this works well and sells for the reasons that the reviewers indicate, because these "songs" and the packaged entertainers who sing them are not out of touch with the man on the street and certainly not too distant for pop audiences. 

I value the fact that I discovered his work and had the opportunity to see it performed in those days. Unfortunately those days are gone, and I believe that the desire and motivation for him to ever go back to working in this fashion are long gone. What Bowie produces now is of the highest quality but it is really no different than the other noise over the airways in terms of having anything "new" to it. I thought I would never live to see the day when I would say that the depth in Bowies work is sadly lacking and much of what he puts out today is at best shallow. I am saying this as a general statement as he still has his moments, namely Earthling being the most recent in my assessment. A sure sign that will prove my point is the fact that you can tell the quality of an artist's work by their fan base and Bowie is no different. Bowie since 1983 has broadened his fan base by writing music that has been geared to sell albums rather than for strictly artistic value. There is a rather large percentage of these new fans who listen to Bowie for different reasons than the listeners who have been around for over twenty years. These differences have become a division line between the two fan bases and in my opinion negatively affected Bowie's work. This explanation may be lengthy. 

It is debatable, which would be for no reason really, that 1974 through until 1983 saw Bowie's best work from the standpoint of music. Since Heroes and Low were his most personal works those who lived through this period or the fans who have gone back to discover it have been rewarded by getting to know the essence of the "real" David Bowie, the artist. These albums speak from the soul of Bowie, he is stripped down and free from the marketing "gimmicks" which often became obstacles for listeners wanting to get an uninhibited understanding of him. The next two albums, excluding stage, were also written for artistic merits and sold poorly. They were brilliant albums and I will cover them later.  His attempt to create a solidly commercial album to break into the American marketplace was a masterpiece that did exactly what it was designed to do. It was a work that demonstrated the true talent of Bowie and his ability to create music that truly reaches the listener that he wishes to reach. Bowie set out to make a commercial album and who else could do it better as it sold FIVE MILLION copies. The older fans were a bit concerned seeing this sort of product coming from Bowie but rested assured that this was another "character" and another "phase" that would soon be gone and replaced by more adventurous work. We were wrong. Dead wrong. Little did we know  at the time that we had a reason to be deeply concerned. The next two albums were enough to send most of his older listeners scrambling to purchase work by The Talking Heads, Laurie Anderson, Klaus Nomi, Bauhaus, Adrian Belew or any other leading edge artists we could get our hands on. Bowie was no longer followed with much interest. Bowie had picked up a new fan base starting from 1983 that was comprised more of the average record buyer. 

Yes, I speak my mind. I do so without fear as well, even though I have taken plenty of heat for it in the past. The reason I have no fear is for the simple fact that I know that I speak for a large number of others who do not speak out. Inside they "know" but they see no need to voice it and come under attack. I do not blame them at all. It is not important really because as long as they "know" that is all that matters. Those that "know"  will understand that sentence. Won't you? 

Bowie departed from many of the characteristics in his music that initially made us listeners. I, for one, was not overjoyed at the fact that these characteristics were absent as this did not improve the music, instead it made it shallow enough for the average record buyer. His move toward commercialism was achieved by writing what the average record buyer wanted, and that was "songs." The writing of this material required it to be completely accessible and this was achieved by removing some of the qualities that made us listen in the first place. Unfortunately they were the MAJOR qualities. There was little depth left and the innovation was absent, replaced by the standard framework that most songs are written from. The quality was there but the music no longer took you places that were uncharted and you no longer had to think. The lyrics were downgraded to widely acceptable topics in most cases. 

I was vocal about this due to the fact that I felt robbed in a way. I was not happy about the fact he lowered his standards. Bowie always set the highest standards for himself and I grew to expect them after awhile. I admired the fact that every part of him went into his work and it was disappointing to find that gone. Now, I was the recipient of a few, well actually a lot of, comments from some of his new fans regarding some of the things I said. I stated that his work at times was a little better than mediocre and that the depth and intellectual quality of his writing seemed to be missing. One of the most common comments aimed at me was the fact that in their opinion  I am not a Bowie fan. Yes, I am not a Bowie fan. The reason I am not a Bowie fan is that I demonstrated the fact that his music was nowhere near the high standards it used to be. I CRITICIZED David Bowie, and harshly as well. Fasten your seat belts as this gets really terrifying when you hear the reasoning of some of these new fans. I fought back with the argument that I spoke out because being a Bowie listener I ACTUALLY CARE about what he produces and if his work starts slipping I get CONCERNED. Their response was if I don't like it then don't listen to it. How brilliant I thought that reply was. So, I just give up listening to Bowie after twenty eight years? I consoled myself with these questions and I want to share them because the right answer would be great if I happened. If Bowie ever decided to focus on music again and put out four albums in a row that were like side two of Heroes and Low with a little Baal put in for good measure, how many of these "new" fans who like the songs Bowie writes would still be listening after the four albums? If Bowie kept producing based on his innovative urges then how many of these fans would have started to listen to him in the first place? Do you like those questions? 

Fasten your seat belts as this gets really terrifying when you hear the reasoning of some of these new fans. One of the common tactics was to remind me that Bowie can do whatever he likes as he doesn't "owe" me anything? Okay? Let's look at Station To Station. How many "bad" songs on It? Scary Monsters? Aladdin Sane? Ziggy? Hunky Dory? How many songs on each album are not worth listening to. How about the two albums made in 84 and 87, how many good songs do they have? Two on each album? Is that the usual quality that I should expect from Bowie? Is that what I should accept. The answer was YES. YES it is okay for Bowie to put out as many albums as he likes with only two good tracks each on them. What shocks me is the simple fact that the people who feel this way have NO STANDARDS. None.They will accept anything Bowie throws at them. On the contrary the Bowie listeners from the seventies have extremely high standards and that is the reason they listened to Bowie in the first place, and the reason they left when he lowered them. One of the main reasons alt.fan.david-bowie is attacked is for the simple reason that the members are long time fans who have high standards with regards to what they feed into their ears. They have also felt robbed by the loss of Bowie as a quality artist and they speak out. These "fans" also attack them. Look at what is really behind their reasoning. They attack people for having high standards and refusing to lower them and in the same breath state that they do not care what Bowie puts out because they have no expectations of quality. These people do not care about the music. The ones who do however show a great deal of integrity and self respect for being discerning when it comes to music and what they subject their minds to. 

WARNING: I AM ABOUT TO POST SOME COMMENTS THAT I TOOK FROM BOWIEZOIDNET. THESE COMMENTS ARE REAL. IF YOU HAVE A WEAK STOMACH DO NOT READ THIS. IF YOU ARE BOTHERED BY PEOPLE WHO ARE BOWIE FANS FOR THE WRONG REASONS DO NOT READ THIS OR YOU ARE QUITE LIKELY TO COMMIT SUICIDE. 

I will reserve comment on these quotes for a few minutes. You may want to read them twice since they are rather unbelievable. 

1)  "Here he is in Utrecht, 1997. Just look at all those people gathered  round all itching to tear his pants off and give him the fuck of his life.

2) "This is David performing Ziggy Stardust (I am fairly certain) on the  Sound and Vision tour.  I bet there's a few of you out there who would  like to snuggle up to him tonight aren't there now?

3) "When you chat, is it to much to hope you could speak to me, as I've  idolized you since way back. you mean so much to me in my life david, and  i know if i'd ever met you we would have got= on so well. Bet i could've made you laugh, worship you so much David.  David, could you give me any job in your organization?  All i offer is loyalty." If you don't talk to me on june the 4th i'll, i`ll,i`ll, still worship you as I've always done since those far off 70`s days. "

I spent three months over at BOWIEZOIDNET and these posts came directly off of the message boards. To be perfectly honest I can guarantee that there are hundreds, if not a thousand messages which reflect the same sentiments. If you float around the Net and pop into a few Bowie related E-Groups it is not difficult to find similar posts.

BOWIEZOIDNET is by far the leader when it comes to discerning fans such as these.  I know it boggles the imagination but I can safely say that Bowie's official web site is the most useless place to get information, collectibles or talk to other fans. Can you see these people discussing the social commentary on Scary Monsters or Stacy Heydon's guitar work on the 76 tour. Ooops, I made a mistake. Unless they have a Ryko release of Station To Station they will never hear Heydon, he is on the two bonus tracks, Word On A Wing and Stay. The only other avenue to hear Heydon would be on ssshhhhh, quiet now, would be on those evil royalty robbing BOOTLEGS. These are frowned upon over in BOWIEZOIDLAND and rarely mentioned as they hurt David financially. I won't get into any legalities here  but let me say this. I am an admirer of Bowie's work and as far as live performances are concerned, I will get everything i can get my hands on and I think I speak for many.

The gloves are off when it comes to this topic and I am deadly serious about my remarks. I wish to show you something and it is worth listening to. The truth is that each and every one of you who are Bowie fans for the RIGHT REASONS, his work, should be deeply concerned about these worshippers because they are hurting you. The people who blindly worship David Bowie as if he is some kind of an idol are NOT Bowie fans, they are in fact the opposite.  Did you know that it is these people who are the reason Bowie does not put out the quality of music he used to. It is true. These people are to blame for it and in my opinion should be treated with the contempt they deserve. They are not Bowie fans at all; what they are in reality are a bunch of ignorant morons. If you are one of these worshippers and wish to say something I would appreciate it if you would direct your comments at me.  I would like to  have the opportunity to do all real Bowie fans a favour and reply to your objections. My reply should be sufficient to run you off of the Net. 

It comes down to supply and demand. Bowie produces his work and someone buys it and these transactions are how he earns a living. It is a business and like any other business you have to sell products that people want.  Do you see where I am going with this? 

I am only one of many thousands that will never have a complete Bowie collection which includes all of his official releases. Why? The reason is Bowie, or no Bowie. I will not spend my money on anything that does not meet the definition of what I feel constitutes good music. What do you think an artist would do if nobody bought their work because it was not of the quality it once was? I will NEVER own Bowie/Puff Diddy, and neither will any other self respecting Bowie listener. The point is that if no one bought Bowie/Puff Diddy then it is quite conceivable that David Bowie would not work with him. The Bowie worshippers however have NO STANDARDS and will BUY ANYTHING that has the name David Bowie on it. This in turn allows Bowie to release anything with a firm guarantee that it will sell. The idol worshippers can find absolutely no fault with anything Bowie does. I do not believe that it is a coincidence that during the seventies the quality of his work was consistent.  I do not believe that he would have tried to compromise his music as I am sure that he would not jeopardize the small base of fans he had at the time. His fan base was particular with what they listened to and would have stopped buying his albums. This point can be proven due to the fact that many of his older fans walked away between 1984 and 1993. Let's Dance worked wonders and the follow ups, rated as his two worst, also sold and this may have been the route that delivered a dangerous message to Bowie. The message was that his new fans bought Tonight and Never Let Me Down with very little complaint.  This is true, as I said I have seen these albums defended by those who insist that having only two really worthwhile tracks on an album is acceptable.  I say to the "fan" who said that Bowie doesn't owe me anything that you are wrong. Just because you have no expectations do not lump me in with others who share your low standards. You see, for over twenty  eight years David Bowie TAUGHT ME TO EXPECT A HIGHER QUALITY OF MUSIC FROM HIM SO HE OWES ME THAT. PERIOD!! 

I'll bet a 76 tour program that I speak for EVERY Bowie listener from the seventies. We were Bowie fans for the RIGHT REASONS, his MUSIC. After 1983 we lost the REAL David Bowie, his work was indistinguishable from the other "pop" on the radio and he sank to a level of mediocrity. If you do not understand this then you do not "understand" and you "missed" it all. We will not accept any reply from those who wish to contradict this fact, it is not an opinion. The reason why is that you are in no position to correct anything. I will not have someone lecture me on Bowie in the seventies because I was alive then and I find it difficult to accept the fact that a person would have a deeper understanding about this period when they weren't born yet. That has not stopped some of you though. If you like Bowie because he is cute, has nice hair or writes pop songs then you are listening to Bowie for the WRONG REASONS. If you buy collaborations with Puff Diddy, slander Heroes and Low on your E-Groups and ALLOW Bowie to sell work below  the quality he is capable of then you are the root of a problem. If you support BOWIEZOIDNET, BOWIEZOIDBANC and ULTRASTAR you are financing other sources of revenue for Bowie that allows him to focus less on his music. If you set your standards as low as I have seen, no real complaints about Puffy on BOWIEZOIDNET, I really wish you would become fans of Satan and you can all go to............. 

David Bowie shocked RCA. The Thin White Duke shocked the media. It all had to do with promoting Heroes. 

AladinSANe 

To be continued...................
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Part Twenty Three

Around the time of the release of Heroes, October 14, 1977, Bowie shocks the executives at RCA. He has taken it upon himself to arrange a series of interviews to promote Heroes.  The sales of Low were a real concern for him, not because of money, it was for the reason that his most important work to date slipped by virtually unnoticed. He was not about to let another of what he considered a very personal album suffer the same fate. In addition to the interviews  for the magazines he travels around Europe appearing on TV and radio shows as well. One question asked on a radio phone in show was, "Who, or were, the Bewlay Brothers. Bowie replied that it was based on himself and his brother. He once said it was, "Star Trek in a leather jacket." although physically The Thin White Duke was gone, he was still there inside. Interviews were granted to anyone who wished to have one, and The Evening News took advantage of the opportunity. In a headline the next day were the results of the interview. BRITAIN IS READY FOR A NEW HITLER says David Bowie. 

The interviews were good and bad. Bowie talked about Low and Heroes in depth. He also spoke of his interest in Cabalism and politics. This Hitler he said would be the new leader of The Nation Front. Apparently he had changed political parties personally as he stated that he was closer to communism than fascism. It must have been the trip with Iggy to Russia, or being so close to East Berlin that changed his mind, or the coke.  The Record Mirror featured an unusually lengthy article which was thoroughly unkind in it's appraisal of Bowie. The article called him "condescending," as well as "fickle, distrusting and isolated." It also said that Bowie's music, "tells us nothing about the guy." I feel that this statement is by another critic who doesn't "get it" at all. Low and Heroes are Bowie's two most personal albums, yet the concept of displaying emotion through  "music" sailed well over top of this person's thinking ability.  Melody Maker was far more in touch calling Heroes and Low "adventurous" and "in pursuit of a new musical vocabulary." They "got it." As always there were the writers that did not care about Bowie's work, they wanted  sensationalism to sell their magazines, and so their questions were aimed at Bowie's personal habits instead. "We don't want to talk about that." That was what the  response was, firm yet polite, to any questions regarding his sexuality. This was about art, not tabloid trash. 

As to be expected the personal promotional work done by Bowie did little to improve the intelligence of the average  North American record buyer. Heroes/V2 Schneider was released as a single on September 27, 1977. It did well in Europe but was a dismal failure elsewhere. Oh, if anyone disagrees, or became angry, with my assessment that most of the record buying public are brain dead then you have an opportunity to defend yourself. If I am wrong then you can start to explain to me the reason for the failure of Heroes. If these people are so smart then why did Heroes flop? Pardon? Speak up. I can't hear you. Just as I thought. It was while in Britain that Bowie was visited by director David Hemmings to discuss a starring role in his upcoming film called Just A Gigolo. Bowie accepted the role. In October Bowie and his son, Joey, left for vacation in Kenya. After his return Bowie went to New York to do the narration on The Philadelphia Symphony Orchestra's version of Prokofiev's Peter And The Wolf. 

Bowie returned to Berlin. He was seen once in a cafe with his face down in a plate of food. He was drunk and mumbling, "Help me." The readers of Melody Maker voted Heroes the Best Album Of The Year.  The readers of New Musical Express voted Bowie Singer Of The Year and  Songwriter Of The Year. Heroes still flopped in America. 

If you use the traditional definition of marriage David and Angela's does not apply. By now their "marriage" had long been over as both led their own lives mostly apart since the end of 1975.  Christmas 1977. The press got hold of a rumour that Angela had abandoned her son and not even bothered to call him over the holidays. This was a nasty piece of news and Angela wanted to tell her side of the story. She summoned Tony Robinson, a reporter from the Sunday Mirror, to Switzerland where she was staying in Bowie's house. I mean "their" house.  Also staying in the house was her boyfriend Keeth Paul who was a sound engineer for Tom Petty And The Heartbreakers. Bowie was still supporting Angela financially. He was giving her $40,000.00 a year as well as paying her travelling expenses which amounted to around $75,000.00.  In 1977 her bill for taxi cabs alone while in Switzerland was $25,000 . Angela told Robinson to bring the money with him. 

Tony Robinson arrived on January the 2nd, 1978. He must have thought of how fortunate he was to have this. How many times would a reporter ever get such a chance to have an interview this exclusive? He must have delighted in the thoughts of what he would see and hear to write about, the things that no other reporter had. He did not know upon his arrival that days later his headline would read, "DRAMA AT SNOW CHALET IN SWITZERLAND." Bowie's home was referred to as  the "cuckoo - clock" chalet in the article. I do not know how much Robinson paid for this interview but what I do know is that whatever it was he certainly got his money's worth. 

When he arrived he noticed that Angela seemed "sedated." Heavily sedated. She was drinking heavily as well. At four o'clock in the morning Angela locked herself in the bathroom and took an overdose of sleeping pills.  January 8th is David Bowie's birthday and Tony, Keith and Angie were still together, however they did not celebrate this happy occasion.  Angela had other plans. She started off by consuming "handfulls" of pills while completely inebriated from  non stop drinking.  Angela had passed out on several occasions, once after deliberately throwing herself down a flight of stairs. When Keeth Paul tried to intervene he was hit in the knees with a wooden rolling pin. The reason he was going to intervene was due to the fact that Angela was considering stabbing herself with a carving knife. Fortunately she changed her mind and decided to go on a destructive rampage instead and once again hurling herself down the stairs, drawing blood this time. They got her to the hospital where she slipped in and out of consciousness for three days. Upon her return home she filed for divorce seeking two million dollars as part of the settlement and sole custody of Joey. 

Angie broke the unwritten rules. First of all, celebrities are NEVER to air their dirty laundry or family secrets in front of the media. Secondly, ESPECIALLY ABOUT DAVID BOWIE. If there is one thing in this world that makes Bowie furious is friends, relatives, acquaintances or hangers on talking about him to the media. He doesn't just get furious, he gets downright mean, and if you ever break this rule it is best that you fucking disappear as fast as you can because he will get revenge. After, you don't exist anymore, you will never ever be allowed anywhere near him again. Now, how Angela ever thought that she could win a court battle fighting someone who had pockets as deep as Bowie's and in a place where men receive favouritism in the courts is beyond me. Bowie happens to be a rather dirty fighter as well and he will do what it takes to settle things. Imagine the look on Angie's face when David produced some photographs of her drugged up and engaged in lesbian sex with a well known heroin dealer. The pictures were obtained from a former boyfriend named Roy Martin. Angie received $750,000.00 over ten years. As a last resort to extort money Angie demanded the tidy sum of one million dollars in return for not writing a tell all book about Bowie's life. The response was, "Go ahead." She wrote them and I had the misfortune of wasting a portion of my life praying that the next page would be better. The prayers went unanswered. The books focus on her and sex and Bowie and sex. So much could have been learned from those years that Angie was with David if the sensationalism and the sex was left where it belongs, in a tabloid. "Bowie slept with Jagger, Bowie and Angie had a threesome," so fucking what? Who cares? We could have learned so much about the "REAL" personal side of Bowie, his thoughts, fears, his goals and his approach to his work. All of this wasted in favour of sex. If any fan praised her schlock then they are probably account holders at BOWIEZOIDBANC and have a BOWIESTORE frequent customer VIP Card with a picture of Bowie holding his kitty cat on the back. The Rolling Stones had their lawyers send a letter to Angela telling her that the use of any part of Angie, the song written about her, would be taken as a copyright violation and she would face legal action for the infringement of that copyright. Bowie got sole custody of Joey. 

Bowie during an interview said in response to a question why he accepted a role in Just A Gigolo was that he. " believed in the ideas and issues," the film represented. I saw the film several times because I could not believe what I saw the first two.  Personally I did not see any ideas or issues at all in the film. I saw a lot of bravery simply for the fact that someone actually released the film. I imagine the pig in the film sued for the fact that his appearance in the movie destroyed his acting career. Was it supposed to be a comedy? The advertisements said it was a serious film. Maybe they meant seriously funny. In my opinion the thing was fucking terrible. I mean terrible. 

The film had a budget of five million dollars and it was besieged with a number of plagues. The positive attraction for the film was the appearance of actress Marlene Dietrich who had not had a speaking role in a film for seventeen years. When her time to act came she wouldn't leave her apartment in Paris because she was busy writing her memoirs. The tensions were contagious and spread to the cast and crew. There were several too many pushing and shoving matches between the actresses. There  were major communication difficulties between the German and English speaking crew members. Bowie was unaffected, he enjoyed working on the film with all of its issues and ideas. In an interview during the filming of the movie Bowie was asked about his feelings for Tony Defries. He said he was grateful for all he had learned. Thinking about it I can see how in some twisted way that the statement could really be the truth. 

Apparently Bowie was not a communist anymore or a fascist. He now described himself as a "Generalist." What this meant was that," it encompasses anything he wished to do." To understand here is an analogy, If he wanted to become a painter he just stops fooling around with it and become one. If he wants to be an actor, an author or an astronaut  then he just becomes one. Isn't that interesting? I think it is really profound and one day I want to be a Generalist. 

On February 20th, 1978 Bowie was in London where he had scheduled a press conference at the Dorchester Hotel. The reason for the press conference was just what every Bowie fan wanted to hear. An announcement, two words that would give you a rush better than any drug imaginable. The words? "World tour" Asked why by a reporter Bowie said, "Simple, I need the money." Well put. 

I am jumping ahead of myself here but as you know this tour produced Stage, a double live album recorded over two nights at the Spectrum in Philadelphia. Bowie is the only musician I know who is capable of mixing the entire life and energy out of a live recording. He can take any gig you want, a few twists and turns at the mixing board and presto, you're bored to death. Bowie 78, Another Stage, Forever Yours, Bremen, Stockholm and most of the other bootlegs are far superior in the preservation of a performance compared to Stage. Stage seems lethargic, and I thought maybe it was just my opinion and there was nothing wrong with it, but that argument got put to rest a short time back. I read We Can Be Heroes, a book about the 78 tour written by the piano player on the tour Shaun Mayes. It is not a terrific book but does offer some fascinating insights so I recommend reading it for those moments. Mayes talks about recording Stage and as it turns out he does not like the album much either, and as far as lethargic goes, well, I was right, it is not an opinion and there is reasoning behind it. According to Mayes Bowie makes sure that the audience is not miked very well. Bowie does not like to have the audience noise on live recordings as he finds it is in "bad taste." Now, could someone please explain this to me because I openly admit that I do not understand this statement at all. The whole ambience of a performance can be felt from the energy coming from the crowd. A case in point is the Nassau bootleg from 76. Station To Station opens the show and the song keeps building with this amazing raw energy. When Bowie walks out just before the first line of the song you can hear the crowd go crazy. The cheering builds as he comes into the view of more people in the audience. It is enough to send shivers down your spine. When he sings, "It's not the side effects of the cocaine," again the crowd relays the overall mood in the venue, which is that of, "WOW!" Stage on the other hand has the ambience you would expect to find at the annual convention of the, "People Who Sit And Watch The Grass Grow Association." Here's a thought, maybe they listen to Stage while they watch the grass grow. It could be their official album. Mayes also reported that during the rehearsals before the recording of Stage, band leader Carlos Alomar had the tempo of the songs slowed down to mimic the same speed as the album versions of the songs. Mayes says that songs in a normal live setting are usually a bit faster due to the energy and excitement the band feed off of from the audience. Mayes said it was extremely difficult to "control" himself during these performances and it required a lot of discipline as his emotions told him to let loose. He had to keep focused on Alomar's instructions to slow down his playing and to keep it in check. Now, exactly how much sense does this make? Slow down everyone we don't want any excitement on this album. 

There is no escaping. Should something appear on the tape that Bowie doesn't want he will take care of it while doing the mix. Stage apparently still had too much of "those evil crowd noises" after it was recorded, even though the audience was poorly miked. No problem,  Bowie just edited the audience out further with a turn of a knob. The Ryko issue of Station To Station has two bonus tracks on it which are Word on A Wing and Stay. These tracks are taken from the Nassau Coliseum bootleg recorded in March of 76. You will notice if you listen to both of them that the Ryko versions have essentially been destroyed beyond belief compared to the bootleg. The bootleg is far superior. The bootleg versions of these songs are nothing short of marvellous, this is my favourite 76 bootleg and I have three copies of it for insurance, just in case. The versions on the bootleg are raw, full of energy, so full that you feel every note of those tracks and you get a wonderful feel of what that show must have been like to attend. The Ryko tracks have been remixed to ensure that the life is gone from them. They have been left dry and flat like every other official live Bowie album. This is true, for every live album Bowie has released there are at least six bootlegs that are far superior in quality. Official live recordings are really not worth owning if you prefer to know what it was really like to attend a show on the tour. 

The entire tour was organized by Isolar using local promoters to look after the finer details for each date. MainMan would receive five percent off of the gross which meant that the majority of the money landed where it should, with Bowie. 

On April 16, 1978 rehearsals began in Dallas, Texas. There were no more "characters" Bowie would ever play again. The life of constantly wearing new personalities was over. Ended. Permanently. There would be no more changes. This was the REAL DAVID BOWIE! 

AlaDINsaNE 
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Part Twenty Four

That is exactly how it was billed. THE REAL DAVID BOWIE. No more gimmicks. No characters, personalities, ego's, aliens, magicians, Kabbalists, actors, painters, Buddhist monks, politicians, rock stars, writers, generalists, just no more. David Bowie. Only David Bowie. 

This new "character" Bowie had invented was unique compared to the rest as it was one that actually had a name. This new creature was called David Bowie, and as true to the billing it appeared to be a normal person. He may have used the same line I use on people I know, or don't know, and it goes like this. See how good I am, I can fake sanity well enough that they actually believe it. Bowie should be commended for the job he did. Up front he was personable and out going, but in reality he was withdrawing from everyone into isolation. He was leaving his past behind and was attempting to sever all ties. Again it was time to rewrite history. His past would be erased and the people in it. Angela was already gone. He would do his best to get RCA as well. 

While touring in the States Bowie would be registered in hotels under the name of a player for Arsenal, a Premier League English Football (soccer) club. I have a Brit who works with me and that is his favourite team, The Gunners as he refers to them, and when he's drunk he keeps whining about going and standing under the clock at Arsenal's football grounds. I know, he sounds mental and he's British so what would you expect? I bet him twenty pounds every year that a real team like the one I like,  Manchester United, will finish higher in the division standings at the end of the season. Maybe not this year but I have a lot more of his money than he has mine. Maybe that clock fell on his fucking head, that would explain it all, wouldn't it? Anyway, when Bowie arrived in England there were no more hotels as he decided to disappear. He still continued to do as many interviews,  guest spots on TV and radio shows, as he possibly could, but no one knew where he went after. Bowie was staying in rented houses or flats paid for, by who else but RCA. No addresses were put on the agreements until RCA signed them so the copies RCA got back still had a blank space where the address was filled in. This was to prevent them from knowing where Bowie was. Everyone who was in any way related to Bowie had to sign confidentiality agreements. These contracts stated that you were never to talk to the media about Bowie in any fashion and if you did then you would be terminated on the spot. 

The rehearsals for the tour began on March 16 in Dallas, Texas, with the tour scheduled to open nine days later. The line up for the tour was Carlos Alomar, who in addition to rhythm guitar, served as the no nonsense band leader, Sean Mayes on piano, Roger Powell on keyboards, Simon House on violin, Dennis Davis and George Murray, drums and bass. Last but not least guitar wizard Adrian Belew on lead. Oh, and some Bowie guy on vocals and cigarettes. Carlos, Dennis and George were the only ones left over from the 76  tour and the three had amazingly been with Bowie a long stretch as musicians were turned over in his band very frequently. This kept everything new and stopped him from stepping into the pitfall of having one sound, which can kill an artist if a fad changes. Sean Mayes had actually toured before with Bowie during the Ziggy years, playing in the backup band called Fumble.  The book, "We Can Be Heroes," credited to him about the 78 tour was actually written after his death. It was made by a few friends piecing the notes together he wrote while on tour. Sean passed away from AIDS in 1995. Simon House was formerly of the band Hawkwind and Roger Powell was with Todd Rundgren's band Utopia. It was out of Frank Zappa's collection of talent that Adrian Belew emerged from.  It was of course much to early for anyone to know that in the future there would be a major connection made between two musicians from this period of Bowie's career. This connection would be one of the most important ones ever established because what came out of it was some of the most amazing  music that one could ever hope to hear. 

How the meeting took place I do not know, or even how they met, but Robert Fripp did invite Adrian Belew to join the band along with Tony Levin and Bill Bruford in the reforming of King Crimson. Their first release Discipline was an work even beyond what you would expect from four of the most skilled musicians to ever put a note on tape. The subsequent albums just got better. It is highly unfortunate that this band will go by unnoticed by 99.99% of people because they do not write material bad enough to get any airplay. To those who are familiar with progressive music, or follow the work of Peter Gabriel, these names are well known to you. If you are one who looks for "music" and have not explored this band then I strongly urge you to. These men are geniuses in their own right, and combined as a unit produce astounding music which is beyond the scope of what you are ever likely to hear again. I will say that even if a person does not favour their "style" of music they are still worth a listen just to enjoy the level of proficiency that these musicians have reached. I can't find the words to describe them live except to say that what you hear on a record they can do live, without any pre recorded segments or artificial help, and in many instances faster, hard to fathom, and better. Belew went on to have a rather successful solo career apart from Crimson and his solo work is also worth a try. 

It is fairly standard practice that a band will rehearse for about a month before the start of a tour. This leaves enough time to run through the set lists at a fairly non stressful pace. It is also a reasonable amount of time to allow the sound and lighting engineers to work out what they have to as well. There would be no such luxury however when it came to a Bowie tour. To the definition of a dedicated workaholic two weeks would be ample time, probably with even hours to spare, to rehearse and have the other necessities in perfect working order for a world tour. The rehearsal sessions were rather intense running from ten in the morning until eight or nine at night. It was almost on a whim that Bowie suggested doing ALL of the Ziggy album, "to surprise them," and the whole album was rehearsed during the sessions.  It was later decided that six tracks from Ziggy, rather than the whole album would be incorporated into the set. It was, as far as I am concerned anyway, a surprise, and a nice one at that. 

As previously said the whole affair would have a theme attached to it, and a simplistic one at that.  "The Real David Bowie."  It was all fairly straight forward, all this character did was appear, for all intents and purposes,  "normal." Outwardly the look had been long established in Berlin. Cropped un-dyed hair, moustache at times and most often so plain as he was unrecognizable as being apart from the crowd. The set was simple, banks of neon left over from 76 and some colour added. The backdrop was black, again a remnant of 76. Bowie had costumes, clothes really, designed by Natasha Korniloff. The original idea was to have a large wardrobe designed so the look would vary not only during a performance but from performance to performance as well. This was a novel approach as it offered the freedom that Bowie could adopt any look he desired on any given day depending on his "mood."  In the end however it was decided that a much more simplistic wardrobe be designed. There was one accessory Bowie wore at all times, small, yet noticeable enough to warrant questions about it during interviews. It as gold chain around his neck from which hung a small gold cross. His shirts it seemed, were always open enough for it to be noticed. 

I've never asked, but now that I have reminded myself I am going to post this question on the news group because I have always been quite curious what the answers would be.  I do not think that 78 was the Real David Bowie. I believe that 76 AND 78 were. I have reasons for this opinion and I will air them out for you to decide if I am making a good case or not. First of all may I clarify what I mean by "Real." I am not talking in terms of personality. Personality is the subject of this series an if you think that the truth about who Bowie is will be solved by the end of my article then it is best you stop reading now as I can assure you that no mysteries will be solved by me at this time.  I am using the word "REAL" to apply only to the personality of the "REAL ARTIST" of Bowie being revealed in its true form. I believe that this was witnessed on both of these tours and in his work actually from Dogs through to Monsters. Now, they contend that artists are free to create but is this really true? In my opinion not really and I feel this way because of the "external" pressures which govern artists that we do not take into consideration. You see artist suffer "creative restrictions" due to demands placed on them by those who ultimately have some control on their work. A good example is a film maker. What he is allowed to do with his ideas are limited to the boundaries set by a ratings system that determines whether your work will be allowed to be shown to a wide audience. Anything past an "R" rating and you are pretty much sunk. There are also the demands to meet certain targets such as budget and the box office. Films are not cheap and those who finance them will not continually suffer losses in order that you may have "free expression" as an artist. Does not this also hold true for musicians, painters, sculptures and all other forms of artistic expression? How often, except when they are first discovered because they answer to no one at that time, can an artist do whatever they want without concern for these external elements? You do see it the odd time, Metal Machine Music <LOL>, but not very often. 

I am firmly of the belief that this period, Station, Heroes, Low and up until 1980 if you want to stretch it was "pure" Bowie. I want to emphasize especially Station, Low and Heroes. All indicators point to the fact that David Bowie was unfazed by ANY external influences, and if he was I believe that the effect that they had on his work was negligible. Bowie  produced what HE WANTED. Period. If you compare that to previous years his management always had a say in things. What we got after Defries' departure was an artist who experienced a freedom that he had never before experienced in terms of answering to authority. Now, this is not to say that the suppressive elements were not around, they were, but Bowie had the fortitude to tell them basically to Fuck Off! What we were fortunate enough to get as listeners was Bowie, pure Bowie. This is why I insist that the billing was correct when it said that what we were getting on tour was the "REAL" David Bowie. I watched some 78 footage before writing some of this sort of to "get in the mood," and hopefully it would allow me to better express this period. I watched Musikladan and the NHK Tokyo broadcast. One thing that strikes me more than anything is that things do not appear to be contrived, staged or planned in anyway.  The same thing can be said for 76, with the exception of the personal behavior of the "character." Not his actions on stage so much, as they were not restricted, but the "look" had to be maintained. The band was free flowing and loose in 76 and 78 and were noticeable having fun on both tours. Bowie did not appear to be having fun in 76, but that performance was not to be misconstrued as a "rock n' roll concert,” but more of an "event. The 76 show was designed to effect you not just musically, but to effect you equally as much on a visual scale. It was designed to draw you personally into a surreal realm inhabited by The Thin White Duke. You became a "guest" in his world for a few short hours. 

Relaxed. Bowie was relaxed on this tour. One thing no one talks about is the degree of confidence he now seemed to have. This character "believed." I say this for two reasons. First, and I fail to understand why this goes unnoticed, Bowie had to have a great deal confidence to open the show as he did. Look, you have an arena full eighteen thousand or more fans who are charged with an overdose of adrenaline. Add to that the fact that they have waited two years for this tour and have now been kept waiting another hour after the time it said the show began on the ticket. Patience has worn thin on this group because of your lack of punctuality. What do you imagine they want? They want an outlet to vent off their energy and their frustration. They want "ROCK." They want, and expect, some hard driving  music to scream, cheer and dance to. They want to sing, shout or scream. Hang On To Yourself in 72, 1984 on the Diamond Dogs tour, Station To Station in 76, and what did they get as a hard driving energy filled show opener in 78? They got a very nice rendition of Warszawa. I defy you to show me a better example of confidence in oneself having the fortitude to do something like this. Remember, a good number of fans did not react positively towards Low and side two of Heroes because it was not what they wanted out of Bowie. That is not a slight on them in any way as even today there is a substantial group of fans who prefer the albums which have the more "raunchy" rock sound, as compared to what appeared on Low and Heroes. Personally, I still believe that they are shorting themselves more than they know when it comes to a real understanding of Bowie, but they are content it seems. Also you must realize that a large number, maybe the majority, I can't say for sure, had never even heard this track. Many were not only unfamiliar with Warszawa, they were unfamiliar with Low. This is due to the fact that many know only the more commercial material, or the really well known albums such as Ziggy. They have heard Bowie's more played material, but can't be called people who take a keen enough interest to actively keep in touch with the work Bowie is doing. A small contingent just go to concerts. It doesn't matter who is playing. These people have seen Barry Manilow and Eminem. A bonus if you happen to be a concert addict is that you never have to wait, some act is always around and you never have to worry if you like them, or even know them for that matter. Decide all that after. 

It wasn't just Warszawa either. Bowie had no reservations about playing Weeping Wall, Speed Of Life, Blackout and Beauty And The Beast, which are not exactly what is played on morning radio, afternoon radio, evening radio or any radio for that matter. The killer though was Sense Of Doubt. Personally I was floored when he played it. I looked around at the audience reactions when the show opened and saw a wide selection of varied responses. Some, a lot actually, were bewildered. They just sort of sat there attempting to make some sort of sense out of what they were hearing. This was something that defied reasoning to them, as this is definitely not how you open a live performance. You just don't do this. The thought of, "What the fuck is this," also crossed their minds based on their expressions. Some were still waiting for Bowie as reasoned that this could not be him, it was a warm up or something. "Why is he playing this shit," accompanied by a look of real disappointment from some who knew this song, but were obviously not playing it this morning.  Some who were not familiar with it , I know because they were asking people what it was, liked it, and some inquired but you could tell it was to make sure they never bought it. Then there were those who were shocked he played it, and loved every second.  I did not really like it much back then, but it has grown on me some since and I will say that compared to Warszawa, it was a different matter when it got played. Sense Of Doubt was not well received, not at all. Even though I can't tout Sense Of Doubt as being up there with Teenage Wildlife or The Bewlay Brothers I will say that Bowie had "balls" to play it. I remember that the sound ran speaker to speaker and it caused a "swirling" effect which as quite interesting I am sure to those in the audience who may have ingested some "helpers" before the show to further enhance the festive atmosphere. Of course I would not know about these "helpers" personally because I don't break the law and take any of those drugs. You know blow, weed, down, up, rock, acid and all the rest of the vast repertoire of natural and artificial mood enhancers. I probably don't have to say this as it would be obvious by reading any of my articles that I know very little about drugs because I listened to Nancy Reagan. She said, "Just say no to drugs." This anti drug campaign was so effective on me that  I took all of my empty beer cases back and donated the money to America's War On Drugs, even though I am a Canadian. I was hoping to get a thank you letter from the Drug Enforcement Agency but I never did. I guess they were all too busy over at the DEA to write in recognition of a donation amounting to $16.75. 

The total confidence this character had was really noticeable. Noticeable in the darkness actually. To explain this I have to tell you that this is how the concert began. 

AladINsaNE 
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Part Twenty Five

It took a while, however I did eventually figure it out. It was the attitude. Performers have it, and lots, they run on attitude, ego, attention and being noticed.  What I never considered at the time, but I see it now, is that the ultimate in attitude sheik is the appearance of not needing to be "seen." You just KNOW that they will notice you, no need to make a spectacle, they will go looking for you if they have to. The truly "cool" are beyond hype because they do not need it to survive. I saw this for the first time in 78. Bowie portrayed it perfectly, well, the role fit him anyway. It was as though he invented this new style of celebrity sheik, class, not pretentious. What am I saying, he probably did. 

You have seen it, the bands that are spectacle with no substance. You could barely see him walk out, and following Alomar no less. He didn't go far, only to the side of the stage really and seated himself behind a chamberlain. To the vast majority of the audience he was a member of the band, Bowie was not on stage. How could he be missed? Easy. He was dressed in a way that did not separate him from the others, and his actions were that of the "hired help." A concert goes in a sequence that is always the same, it never varies. First the long wait as an hour goes past the time on the ticket,  and as you sit exposed to the obscure music drifting out of the soon to be overheated speakers you can't help but wonder where the fuck they find this stuff. You always ask the same question, "Who gets to pick what they play over the sound system before the band starts?"  Step two, out go the lights. Three, there are two options. Either the front man comes out with the band and "leaps" to the front of the stage, or in the usual case of a single "star" some form of a grand  entrance has been carefully devised. Nobody misses the front man or the star.  Bowie was no different either, he was the worst in fact. I used to think that he must practice his grandiose entrances relentlessly. He still does it at somewhat, and I swear he would have halted the rotation of the Earth as an added effect to get more attention at times. Eighty three and eighty seven come to mind, oh, and ninety as well. 

The calls of biased opinion are expected but it is true, audiences in Montreal were extremely civilized, when I lived there anyway. Really. Warszawa was playing away and a good portion of the place sat there politely quiet waiting for the arrival of Bowie.  Now, before you write them off as idiots  remember that from a distance, and with no clothes or behavior to distinguish him from the others when he walked out, Bowie was easily missed. If you were not up close you would not have noticed him either. Planned? Yes, and well planned at that. He sat there and played while the audience waited for the Grand Moment, the ENTRANCE OF DAVID BOWIE. When will THE MOMENT arrive? Missed? It was a moment, but one gone by. No fanfare. David Bowie minus extravagance. This was the epitome of self assurance. Confidence. He dared to hand them Warszawa. It was almost a challenge and the message was clear, it was a statement that supported art for its merits, not Billboard Magazine's hit chart.  Bowie wrote what he wanted and  he played it, whether it was accepted or not by his listeners, the critics or his label. He was beyond the point of needing "approval" from anyone. It was quite evident that by his entrance he no longer needed to be noticed, and he did not care. The fanfare was gone. This character was one of detail to his work and indifference to his audience. I know many found this combination quite acceptable, so much so that a return to this would be not only welcomed, but wanted. Some of you may understand that observation a little too well. I learned it many years ago. 

It is rare, and as a matter of fact I have yet to see this "classic move" duplicated. I do not believe that it has a proper title that would serve as an adequate description, so I will coin one. Call it "Delayed Grandiose Entrance," after being on stage already. I know, "How can he manage to perform a grand stage entrance after he has already made his appearance on stage?" Easy. He stood up from behind the chamberlain he was playing on Warszawa, bowed to the audience and walked to the center stage as the band played the opening bars of Heroes. Everyone saw him now and the reaction was just as you imagine it would be. It was simple yet on a grand scale. This character had class. 

Read this. Warszawa, Heroes, What In The World, Be My Wife, The Jean Genie, Blackout, Sense Of Doubt, Speed Of Life  Breaking Glass, Fame and Beauty And The Beast. Just think about it, as you are unlikely to ever see a set list like this again. Yes, I said a set list.  Now, as creative and refreshing as the choice of songs were, this list  was not good news to some Bowie fans in the audience for a reason you may not readily notice. There is one thing that is absent on this list and its absence angered a fair number of people in the audience.  Read the list again, there are eleven songs. How many of those songs were hits on the radio?  How many are popular, or well known songs to casual Bowie listener? Well, there's Fame. Oh, and Fame? One of Bowie's hits is Fame. Everyone knows Fame. See? Get my point? You know as well as I do that there are plenty of Bowie fans who prefer Bowie's work previous to Low. Just picture yourself if you happen to be one of these people and you attend this concert expecting to get a good dose of Bowie's popular material? There is a strong possibility that most of these songs you are barely even familiar with. How would you feel about now? I know it sounds insane to even contemplate, but I saw Bowie fans who were angry while watching a live Bowie concert! There were of course the other contingent of fans who seemed to be in paradise, still in awe at their good fortune. Personally I do not care for Fame that much. I really adore Speed Of Life. 

Bowie didn't care, he was having fun and he seemed to really enjoy the freedom that he allowed himself to play this material. You could tell that he liked this work and he wanted to showcase it, which he did well if you go by the accounts of those who saw this tour. Sadly, and I am not alone in my opinion, it would be one year shy of two decades before a tour came that could rival any of the tours from the seventies.  At this time however we were naive, so unaware of what lay ahead. This character was not what it appeared to be, and unfortunately we would learn its true nature far too late. 

Intermission. Dave said ten minutes, meaning we had about an hour to kill. 

The complaints could easily be heard now since the band was off stage. "Fucking shit. All he has played is FUCKING SHIT. I don't like his new stuff much. He hasn't played ANYTHING from Ziggy. This is my last Bowie concert, I'm bored. Let's leave. What a fucking asshole. Not even Suffragette City or Jean Genie. What was that piano shit, the stuff without lyrics? Was that ever bad. This is a rip off." These cases were not what you would even begin to classify as isolated. It was probably a good thing for Bowie that most were too stoned to organize some sort of group, as well as the fact enough wood to construct a scaffold and ten feet of good solid rope are difficult items to come by anywhere close to the Montreal Forum. Canada has strict gun possession laws as well. The general consensus overall was that the show could be better. It all came down to a set list that focused too much on the "serious" side. I may not agree with the people who were less than satisfied due to my personal tastes, however I could certainly see their point. Is the point valid? I would be interested in some opinions from other fans who read this. I will say that if I was more of a hit oriented casual type of listener I would most likely, I mean I would definitely, feel rather let down. Considering their circumstances I tend to think that they were pretty much justified in wanting a few more accessible songs played. Bowie must have forgot to be exceptionally late because he reappeared in under an hour if I am not mistaken. 

 Five Years, Soul Love and Star. They were not the full complete versions of each song but performed as a medley. They may not have been the complete versions, but there was enough of each song to silence most of those who were complaining just a few short moments ago. The few that still had anything to say about being let down were forever silenced by Hang On To Yourself,  Ziggy Stardust and Suffragette City.  Art Decade and Alabama Song followed. I confess by this time I was getting concerned, well I was in fear actually, fear of being letdown and having to go home with the feeling of disappointment. Nothing played yet from Station To Station. NOTHING! Time running out, and I am nervously anxious about what will be the final outcome. Will he play something from that album? Please? It wasn't long. Saved. An excellent and lengthy version of Station To Station, not as good as 76 mind you, but still wonderful. I am happy. I am satisfied as Bowie says, "Thank you and good bye." The stage is quiet. I thought how I could not have asked for more as Stay and TVC-15 were performed as encores and the show closing with Rebel Rebel.  The reviews the next morning were quite good and the music critics in Montreal tended to be merciless. 

The tour cemented Bowie as a truly formidable act, able to fill 18,000 seat arenas, where as before, some venues on the 76 tour seated 3,000. Most of the venues on the North American leg of the tour seated 20,000 or more and many were filled to capacity. The exception was  in the Southern States where a few of the stops undersold the Station To Station tour. Overall though the North American part of the tour was an overwhelming success for Bowie. There were thirty one stops on the tour and almost every performance met with wonderful reviews, especially in the major markets such as New York, Los Angeles and Detroit.  The gross take for this leg of the tour was conservatively estimated to be in the range of three million dollars. Bowie was paying the band members two thousand dollars a week plus expenses, plus a bonus at the end of the tour. Carlos Alomar was paid an additional sum for his responsibilities as band leader. The North American portion of the tour closed on May 9th in New York, after which Bowie flew to Germany, the start of the European leg of the tour.  Bowie went to Cannes just before the tour was scheduled to hit Paris for the International Film Festival where a "teaser" for Just A Gigolo was being shown. The film was still in the editing stages so it could not be shown.  In retrospect, rather than editing it, they should have been dousing every inch of the film with high octane gasoline and igniting it with the aid of a ten megaton nuclear weapon.  His long awaited tour of Britain began in Newcastle on June 14th with three performances. Much to the dismay of RCA however, this was not the same Bowie that left the States. Something had changed. 

This character, reminiscent of The Thin White Duke, had gone once again into complete isolation. Bowie had insulated himself to the point that no one could get anywhere near him, unless he allowed them to, and Coco made sure that no one did. Now, you would rightly assume in most cases that a record company would be able to find one of their major acts, especially when on tour. This was not so with Bowie. RCA attempted to locate him on numerous occasions but were unsuccessful. They wanted to speak to him regarding this sudden change that had occurred because they were concerned, and they had a good reason to be. While in America Bowie was granting interviews to anyone who would listen, and this, as you can well imagine, delighted RCA after his refusal to promote Low in any fashion. On TV, radio and for the magazine reporters Bowie talked incessantly about Heroes and the tour. He more or less talked about anything. Not anymore however. Once Bowie arrived in Britain he refused to grant anyone and interview, and the band members were forbidden to speak to the media under the threat of being immediately replaced. Friends and relatives already knew that if they ever gave an interview or so much as commented about Bowie to the media in any form then he would never speak to them again, they would be removed from his life forever. That may sound petty but to disobey was at one's peril, and everyone, even to this day who has ever been admitted to the "inner circle" is made well aware of this rule and they heed it.  Those who are close are truly afraid of the consequences if they ever speak to the media, and the fear Bowie has instilled in them has worked well. How well? If you look back over all of the years since Bowie has been a public figure,  from around 1968, there has only been two cases of anyone breaking their silence and talking to the media. In each case they were close relatives, one being his mother and the other being his aunt Pat, who is his mother's sister.  His aunt went to the media saying that Bowie did not financially help his mother, and more importantly broke every promise he ever made about making sure that his brother Terry was well looked after while in the hospital for psychiatric problems which plagued him deeply for most of his life. His mother confirmed all of this. She did say he bought her a mink coat but as a pensioner she could not afford to go anyplace to wear it. 

Now, surely you think RCA could have found Bowie through his tour itinerary. I mean all you would have to do is get the name of the hotel and show up in person, he was bound to appear sometime. Unfortunately this was not possible. It is true that the hotels were well booked in advance, and the itinerary was  known to RCA along with  the accommodation arrangements. The problem lie in the fact that it was only the musicians and the employees on the tour who were staying at the hotels, Bowie was not. David, as well as Coco, only stayed at the homes of trusted friends, and when this was not possible they stayed in rented apartments. The only other living creatures in the solar system who knew where Bowie was staying were his long-time friend, confident, driver and bodyguard, Tony Mascia, and the other being Bianca Jagger who was traveling with him at times. Any attempts to get near Bowie when he was backstage before or after a performance were quickly thwarted by Coco. Obviously there were times when it was necessary for Bowie to meet with certain people, including those in the employment of RCA. The routine was always the same. David and Coco would have you pick them up at a predetermined spot away from where they were staying, and you would be required to come alone. They would be waiting on the side of the road and never near their car  The meetings would be held usually at a restaurant, and when they were finished you would drop them off again where you picked them up. Bowie would have Tony drive around for a bit before going home in order to make sure that they were not being followed. RCA finally at one point got a reason for Bowie refusing to talk to the media anymore. He said, " The tour was enough." Oddly RCA did not find that explanation very comforting. Gee, I wonder why? 

While in Cannes to help with the pre release promotion of Just A Gigolo,  Bowie was also pursuing a few other some other projects which interested him. David had approached a German film director by the name of Rainer Werner Fassbinder about the possibilities of making a film version of The Three Penny Opera which was written by two of Bowie's favourite composers, Bertolt Brecht and Kurt Weill.  He wanted to one day direct a film on his own but first wanted to gain some experience by co-directing a film with Fassbinder.  This was a very admirable request as there many famous people who often try new things without bothering to gain any experience first. Many are of the opinion that they can just get by doing anything because of their "celebrity" status, often with miserable results. Some of the examples which come to mind are the endless string of models who start singing or acting, sports figures as well along with a host of others. This is another beautiful example that Bowie does not allow his ego to override his abilities and he is humble enough to ask for help to gain the skills necessary to complete the projects he wants. He has done this with every facet of his career, from his own personal albums, to the films he has acted in as well as the new areas he ventures into. He should be recognized and highly commended for this degree of professionalism in my opinion, he certainly demonstrates lot of class.  Bowie's love of art, especially painting is no secret. In recent years he has written columns in some of the worlds most respected art journals,  and has become a recognized authority by many in the artistic community. One of Bowie's favourite painters was an Austrian by the name of Egon Schiele who was born in 1890. Schiele had a tragic life and was the epitome of the classic "starving" artist story. He was an expressionist who focussed on the basic subject of the male and female form. He incorporated very harsh lines when depicting his subjects which made his figures quite dramatic. This was coupled with the use of contrasting colours which seemed to be applied to the canvass at times with a fair amount of force. His paintings were viewed as extremely erotic for the time period, and he was sentenced to a prison term in 1912 for making 'pornographic' works. Schiele lived his entire life in a state of extreme poverty. His work was not recognized until long after his death from influenza. He died at the age of 28 from influenza, and his work only became recognized long after his death. In some respects his life mirrored that of another famous artist who died young by the name of Michel Basquiet. Bowie, as many of you are aware of played the role of Andy Warhol in a film about the life of Basquiet. While at the Cannes International Film Festival in 1978 Bowie was trying to arouse some interest in making a film about the life of Egon Schiele. Bowie wanted to play the lead role in the film. After Cannes there was a full year of discussions, apparently some preliminary work was started on the film but there was nothing more that became of the idea unfortunately. 

After thirteen performances in four cities the British portion of the tour came to an end with  three performances at Earls Court between June 29 and July 1st. There were five 35 mm film cameras set up, and all three of the shows at Earls court were recorded in their entirety under the direction of David Hemmings. Sound and Vision was performed for the only occasion on the tour as an encore for the final show on July 1st. Now, for what it is worth I would like to offer a little advice for those of you out there who are planning to hold your breath until this documentary film of the Heroes tour is released. You may heed this advice or ignore it at your convenience but I just wanted to mention that you will be long dead before you ever see one frame of that film. To put things into the proper perspective it is highly unlikely that you, your children, your grandchildren or the next six thousand generations of your family will ever see any of this documentary unless you are able to discover where it is stored and steal the fucking thing. If you do I want to remind you that I will go to great lengths in order to obtain the necessary funds in order to purchase a copy from you. I am nor   d robberies, a bit of extortion or some embezzlement.  Please be reasonable though and keep the price below two million, it isn't proper etiquette to take advantage of other collectors. 

If any of you are wondering why you will never see this footage of the 78 tour the reason is simple. It is a reason that I have loudly complained about for a long time and I a getting rather sick of it to tell you the truth. The reason is of course MONEY once again. Oh, and let's not forget GREED and EGO. I feel a mild tirade in the works so I have given you advance notice to either read or run at your leisure of course. The problem as far as Bowie is concerned is the MainMan contract, which you must remember was still in effect at this time and would be until 1982. Now, since the film was made in 1978 it means that Tony Defries is entitled to fifty percent of the gross profits from the film no matter when it is released. In fairness to Bowie I will say that he did try, he consulted with several lawyers who specialize solely in contract law in order to get some advice on what, if anything, could be done to get the film exempt from the agreement he signed with MainMan. Defries himself was a full time contract lawyer before he started to manage Bowie on a full time basis, and his partner in Chrysalis, Lawrence Myer, was a lawyer who specialized in contract law purely for the entertainment industry. Between the two of them you could well imagine the contract they drew up. Bowie was given the exact same verdict by every person he consulted, the contract was unbreakable under any circumstances. There was nothing anyone could do, and if he violated it he would lose in court, guaranteed. Okay, fine, and I fully accept the fact without any reservations at all that Bowie would have to give fifty percent of the profits from this documentary to Defries. My major question concerning this is, "SO FUCKING WHAT IF HE HAS TO GIVE UP FIFTY PERCENT OF THE PROFITS?" That's right, SO WHAT? Now, I have a question for those who are reading this. I was wondering out of curiosity if any of you would like to see this film, or am I just a member of a small minority who want to see it. I admit that 78 is not nearly as bad as 76 for the availability of concert footage. Although it is all bootleg, oops sorry, I mean "unofficial,” I DO NOT HAVE ANY BOOTLEG RECORDINGS BECAUSE THEY ARE ILLEGAL,  there is a fair bit of decent material from the 78 tour. There is some footage from Dallas as well as a fairly lengthy portion of the concert shot in Tokyo called Young Music Show which aired on NHK.  One of my personal favourites is a video shot on August 4th, 1978 in Bremen for German ZDF TV's Musikladen.  Since it was in a TV studio there is a only a small number of people in the audience and it gives the performance a very unique feel.  The quality of the tape is very good and the set list is great. Bowie performs Sense of Doubt, Heroes, Beauty and the Beast, Stay, Jean Genie, TVC 15, Alabama Song and Rebel Rebel. Compared to the one unreleased piece of video which has sound that exists of the 76 tour, the 78 tour is rather well documented. 

Anyway, documented or not isn't the point. All of these videos were never officially "released" and made available for fans to purchase. The copies which exist now have been copied from the original television broadcasts, or rebroadcasts in some cases. It is because of this that a great majority of Bowie fans do not have easy access to this material and for obvious reasons there are a great number of fans that do not even know that this material even exists. It is your prerogative to choose to disagree with me but I consider this period to be among the best of David Bowie's career and one of the most creative. I also consider this tour to be one of his best as well. I am willing to venture a guess that I may not be the only Bowie listener who feels this way either. The point I am making is WHAT ABOUT THE FANS? What about US? What about what WE want? Do the fans count for anything anymore? In my opinion it pretty much looks like we don't count for much and unfortunately it has been that way for quite a long time now. This has been my major complaint about Bowie and I feel that I am quite justified in my opinion. The fans just don't seem to matter at all. I am well aware of those who would criticize this opinion of mine and counter it with the statement that Bowie is free to do whatever he wants and he doesn't owe us anything at all. If we don't like what he does then we can stop listening to him, after all, nobody is forcing us to stay. I have given up responding to the stupidity of statements like that a long time ago, and all I can offer is my best regards to those who make them for a safe and pleasant trip back to Bowiezoidnet. People such as these await the release of Bowie/Puffy remixed picture disks and mourn the shelving of Toy considering it to be a loss the entire world will suffer for.  Thankfully encounters with these "fans" has become a rarity, as most have at least enough sense to steer well clear of this group having been forewarned of our "reputation." Those who choose to test their courage, fortitude and stamina by posting here, or those too stupid enough to heed good advice, do not last that long on most occasions. They usually flee within days to safer ground and become another voice warning others to avoid this place at all cost. 

What is troubling to me is that the requests or wishes from Bowie fans go ignored from what I have seen. This is particularly disturbing to see this done to fans who have supported Bowie financially and remained loyal to his work for DECADES. They have stuck with him through everything. I am not in any way undervaluing the loyalty of new fans when I say this because you go unheard for the most part as well. Many of you may not know this but it is true. Bowie and Eno recorded FIVE ALBUMS worth of material during the Outside sessions. You heard me, I said FIVE albums. I wonder if anyone other than myself would be interested in hearing these recordings? My opinion, an educated one at that, is yes. If you read the various newsgroups, or simply talk to other fans, you will find a large number who are waiting, well praying now, that one day before they die of old age. Contamination, the follow up album to Outside, will get released. There is a tremendous demand by fans to hear this material and to add insult to injury Bowie had PROMISED YEARS AGO to release it. Anyone see it yet? I haven't, and if I haven't I can guarantee you nobody else has either. Fans have begged for this album for years and received vague promises in return. These promises give fans hope, only to be snubbed and disappointed again. I seriously question the fact if Bowie cares at all about what this does to his listeners.  Rather than a promised Bowie/Eno collaboration that was desperately wanted, and one fans waited patiently for, we got Hours, Bowie At The Beeb, Toy which was shelved and a guaranteed disappointment, All Saints, and news of the pending release of Heathen. The Beeb and All Saints contained nothing to get exited about as it was all old material that is either well known or worn out as far as Bowie fans are concerned,  and Hours failed miserably to live up to the hype of it being a rival to Hunky Dory.  To compare Hours to Hunky Dory is an abomination in every sense of the word.  Oh, we got the Bowie and Puff Diddy collaboration too. Sorry, I wonder how I possibly managed to forgot about that? Silly me. 

It is the same situation with the 78 documentary. There are many, well the majority I would guess, of fans who would appreciate the opportunity to see one of the best concert tours ever, and I don't mean just Bowie tours either. This would be a tremendous opportunity which most fans would relish, as it would offer to them  the opportunity to be able to see Bowie perform material that he is unlikely to ever repeat, and at a time that many would argue is the best period of his career. I have experienced first hand the appreciation of those who I have shared some 78 video with, who were of the opinion before that as much as they wished to see film from this era, they had given up hoping in the firm belief that they never would. The reality I am sorry to tell you is that in all probability you will never see this documentary.  What is truly quite unfathomable is the reason why you will never see it, and that is because  Bowie refuses to forgo half of the profits. I can't speak for you but I do not particularly enjoy the feeling of being denied access to this valuable documentary solely for the reason that Bowie WON'T MAKE ENOUGH MONEY from it. There seems to be far more consideration for the money than for the wishes of the fans. Personally I find Bowie's actions to be a wonderful display of arrogance, and a perfect example in the art of how to be ungrateful. Is there any reason why Bowie could not release this for the benefit of his fans and show some gratitude, rather than think about money for a change. He is acting in a fashion that indicates he would suffer a financial setback of immeasurable proportions should he allow this documentary to be released.  It doesn't take the brain power of Einstein, as a matter of fact any idiot can easily figure out that the documentary does not generate any revenue from where it sits at the present time, it would however if it was packaged and sold. Guess what? I have a rather novel idea. Yes, I know, I am well aware how far fetched it is, and I know that the odds of it ever happening are around zero. I was thinking that maybe Bowie could release the documentary for us even if he broke even on it and there was no profit. I mean, he is worth over eight hundred million dollars, and I do not believe that the financial risks involved with this documentary are enough that they could cause him any serious harm.  Yep, that is my idea, just GIVE it to us without caring about money all the time. It would be nice if we did not have to be snubbed and deprived because of a hissy fit over something that has sweet fuck all to do with us. Forget Defries, you still are getting half of the cash anyway, you are profiting and think about us for a change. 

AlADiNsaNE 

To be continued.......................

	Posted 11 May 2002

	 


Part Twenty Six

I may sound a little harsh to a few of you in my assessment of this situation. That may be so, however, these are not by any means "isolated" instances, and matters of this nature are not the "exception" to the rule, but are the rule.  There is no shortage whatsoever of examples where little, or no consideration at all has been given to what the fans themselves may have wanted, or have in fact wanted.  It is quite an eye opening experience for any fan, no matter how long they have been buying Bowie's work, if they decide to get an accounting of what recordings are in fact REALLY available, and not just officially released.  I can safely assure each and every one of you that what you will uncover will provide you with a fairly hefty shock, and not one of a very pleasant nature. I still, after over a quarter century of purchasing Bowie's recordings, quite frequently find material that some have known about for some time and is a surprise to me. The sheer volume of recordings that are kept away from Bowie fans is STAGGERING. I am not referring to recordings which offer little in historical value as many of these which I have stumbled upon are of highly significant value, and a few in my opinion are "priceless."

At the risk of appearing not very well educated with regards to the "unofficial"  catalog of Bowie's work, I am going to reiterate this anyway. About two years ago I discovered a recording called Beckenham Oddity. The reason I feel uneducated is because of the treatment I got when I made inquiries about locating it. All I can say is that by the tone of surprise I encountered from all of those I contacted, it seemed that I was the only person in the world who was oblivious to its existence. I am specifically mentioning this recording for two reasons. One, to illustrate my point, and two, just in case there is another out there such as myself, who is unfamiliar with this recording, I want to make you aware of it so you may hunt a copy down if it interests you. Anyway, I was quite enthralled by the circumstances surrounding this recording, as well as completely dumbfounded as to how such a recording managed to elude me all of these years. I still marvel even today at that question.  This tape was recorded in Bowie's bedroom at his home in Clairville Grove, Chelsea, where he had shared a flat with his girlfriend, Hermione, and John Hutchinson. This tape features some of the material David and Hutch had been performing as Feathers, and now as a duo. "David had split from Hermione and Feathers had split too. It is an actual demo tape which was recorded in the presence of Bob Grace of Chrysalis Music. The recording was made in February, 1969. The track listings are  Space Oddity,  Janine,  An Occasional Dream, Conversation Piece, Ching A Ling, I'm Not Quite, Love Song, When I'm Five and Life Is A Circus. Taken from a historical perspective this recording is arguably thought to be the most valuable among collectors, for the simple reason of the time period it documents. I will vouch for the fact that anyone who likes this material will me overjoyed with this album. The songs are all performed on two acoustic guitars and few have Bowie's land lady on piano. Since it was recorded in his bedroom I do not have to tell you how laid back the ambiance is. There is a wonderful "feel" to the entire set, and I think that some of the versions far surpass what was released, although it is unfair to really compare them to one another. This should have been released, and a long time ago. All Saints contains the exact same versions of material that was released ages ago and as a collectors piece, other than mimicking a compilation CD Bowie gave away to friends as a Christmas gift, it has no real value. Fans should have been given Beckenham Oddity over All Saints, or Hours for that matter. Ooops, I'm in trouble now, aren't I? Again, I mean. 

Look at how long it took for fans to get an opportunity to see Ziggy Stardust The Motion Picture. What is known as the "farewell" or "retirement" concert was filmed by D.A Pennebaker at the Hammersmith Odeon Theater in London on July 3, 1973. Most will concede that the film and soundtrack are far from perfect, and the overall quality of the entire package borders on the side closest to mediocre. Still, even considering the quality, the film is a wonderful testament to the Ziggy era and I believe that most Bowie fans should have a copy of this film, I would forget purchasing the soundtrack alone. I am relieved that it got released but I still harbour a few concerns about it, and these concerns do not sit very well with me at all. First of all I am rather curious to know why most fans got short-changed on the film. If you did not know that you do now. To be more specific, many of you are not even aware that you have NEVER SEEN what I consider to be one of the best parts of the film, and you may never unless you track yourself down a copy, because the piece I am referring to was CUT OUT of the original film before you ever saw it. Yep. Are you curious as to what got cut? Okay, I will tell you. The officially released copies have the, "I retire and you will never ever see me again, and I mean that, for at least six months. Not only that, but I promise on my just written autobiography and my screen play on the life of Goebbels that I won't be recording any more at all, ever, until next month ," following White Light-White Heat and ending with Rock 'n' Roll Suicide. This is not how the concert went at all,  and the "unofficial" copies of the film which were never made available to fans show the concert as it REALLY WAS. There was truly a great moment in modern music history that took place immediately following  White Light-White Heat. Bowie announces that being the last show he wanted to something nice for the audience, and says that he has invited a friend along to come and join them on stage. He then asks the audience to welcome Jeff Beck. I would have no problem understanding an attitude that displays indifference to quote, "another," version of Jean Genie, however this one is different. Jeff Beck alongside Mick Ronson is nothing short of fabulous and the energy from them playing off one another creates a truly great and rare moment that should not be lost. In the middle of the song Bowie picks up a harmonica, starts playing, and they kick into a version of The Beatles, Love Me Do. The song works its way back into Jean Genie with Ronson and Beck trading off pieces. The guitar sounds continue to wind up leading to a thundering climax at the end. After Jean Genie Beck stays on for a version of Round and Round, and this is followed by the COMPLETE farewell speech which is missing on the released copy. The show closes to  Rock 'n' Roll Suicide. 

There was a demand for this film from the day it was learned that the concert was recorded, of which fell on deaf ears. It is a mystery to me why it took a decade to be released. I guess Bowie doesn't mind US waiting. There is something about all of this that ties into the 78 documentary shot by David Hemmings and it does not sit right with me at all. I would be extremely interested if any of you could offer a possible explanation for this because I can't possibly think of one, and maybe one of you either see something that I am missing, or you may know more about the circumstances which surround this. I will say at any rate I would really welcome any of your ideas about why this is. You may recall the explanation Bowie gave  for not releasing the 78 documentary video. It was because he would be required to pay Defries fifty percent of the profits and that bothered him. In 83 though he releases the Ziggy movie and since it was made in 1973 he would have to pay Defries fifty percent of the profits from it as well. What is more mystifying is not only does the movie get released but the soundtrack as well of which Defries also gets a percentage. My question is if he did not release the 78 film to prevent Defries from profiting, then why did he turn around and release not only the Ziggy movie, but the soundtrack as well, of which Defries would be eligible for fifty percent of the profits? 

The list goes on, there is a virtual wealth of extremely interesting and high quality material out there that Bowie has not made available to you. To any of you who have Bowie At The Beeb you will be aware of the older material that appears on there. If you find those recordings interest you sleep well knowing that there are three other CDs out there that contain the same thing. When is Bowie going to release it you ask?  I do not know for sure but I heard all three disks are due for release in a collectors box set. I believe it is scheduled to be in the stores sometime just after the release of The Contamination Trilogy, The double CD of the March 26, 1976 show from the Nassau Coliseum,  the Ziggy At The Rainbow video and the Sound And Vision tour video shot at The Tokyo Dome. 

It is interesting to note that BEFORE Bowie went mainstream there seemed to be greater attention placed on what he released, probably aware that the small following he had outside of the UK would not tolerate being ignored as far as the music is concerned. Look at it this way. I would have loved to see him try a Bowie/Diddy in 1974, but he knew better than to even think about it as it would have meant a rapid departure of his fan base. If you disagree, well, then you had better think again, because I seem to recall a mass exodus of his original fans between 84 and 87, with many returning at the release of Outside, and some never coming back. 

This disregard for fans has spread unfortunately, and you can bet it is going to get one Hell of a lot worse. You mark my words that one day albums, concert tickets and all other matter of Bowie related items will be available in one place, and one place only, through Bowie himself. I find his selling of tickets, the recent BBC studio performances and Roseland, through Bowienet to be a complete slap in the face to many of his fans. To do this demonstrates a complete and total lack of consideration on his part, and it is also highly discriminatory. I find it disgusting for Bowie to put "worth" on his fans, he has alluded to this fact by his actions that where he is concerned, SOME FANS ARE BETTER THAN OTHERS. You may wonder how I reached this conclusion? Well, just look. If you wanted to see the Roseland shows, or attend the BBC recording of Bowie At The Beeb, you had to do something first to obtain the "privilege" of being able to purchase a ticket. You had to first spend your money to join Bowienet, even if you did not wish to. It cost you the minimum of around $25.00 for a three month membership to be able to buy a ticket, as they were sold only to Bowienet members. What is wrong with this? Plenty. I know that $25.00 may seem to be a small amount, to you anyway. That however is not the case with everyone. To students, the unemployed or those who may have jobs which do not allow for many luxuries that amount of money is a lot, and spending it could cause some hardship, or it may be impossible to even afford. Remember that this money is ON TOP of the $60.00 or so price of a Roseland ticket and could mean the difference between going, or not going. If a scalper adds $25.00 to a ticket price artists like Bowie scream at how they are ripping off the public. Well, what is the difference? You pay a surcharge of close to fifty percent to obtain a ticket here. You are forced to buy a service you do not want if you wish to go. Sorry, this is wrong. Why should a Bowie fan miss a concert because they don't join Bowienet? Are Bowienet members better fans than everyone else? Apparently. Well, according to Bowie anyway if you look at the billing for one of the Roseland shows. If you recall one of the performances was not open to "the general public." Now, hold on here. "General public." What the fuck does that mean? This is a BOWIE CONCERT, there is no "general public." I would highly doubt it if the average person would plan to attend a Bowie concert just for the sake of having something to do.  I do not know about where you live but I have been to enough Bowie gigs over the years, and in many places, to say with confidence that Bowie concerts are attended not by "the general public," but by BOWIE FANS. What is really obnoxious is the billing went on to read that this show was reserved for, "REAL BOWIE FANS. THE DIE-HARDS." This meant of course Bowienet members. So, for those of you who have been buying Bowie's work faithfully for years and, I know full well just how much Bowie fans spend, rest assured that you are still not a "REAL" fan, but a measly member of the "general public." It is because of your status that you are not welcome at the Roseland gig or to the BBC sessions. Your value as a real fan is measured by your PAID membership to Bowienet. If you can't afford to join then tough luck, you are still "out." 

I may be mistaken but Bowie is the only artist that I am aware of who CHARGES his listeners a fee of close to $100.00 a year to have access to him. The truth is a Bowie fan is a Bowie fan. Young, old, just started listening to him, listened to him for years, whether you like this or like that, seen him live or not, it DOES NOT MATTER, if you listen to Bowie for the "right" reasons then A FAN IS A FAN. To even imply only the real fans are Bowienet subscribers is ignorant, and worse yet is the fact that there are people out there who are willing to believe the "pitch" and part with their money. Oddly though, if you go and visit Bowienet and get to learn about the "average" member, you will see in no time that there is one segment of Bowie's fan base that is noticeably absent.  His older fans. Ooopps, sorry. My apologies. I forgot. We aren't fans now, are we. 

Although because of my deep respect for authority, and my adherence to law and order, I do not personally purchase, or posses, any bootleg material, I can't fault others for buying it. The reason is that there is such a wealth of worthwhile material to be had that it is difficult to fault those fans who want it. There is only one chance to see The Thin White Duke in concert and that is the rehearsal tape that was bootlegged, other than that there is nothing with sound. Nothing. Most fans have never seen a 76 concert performance and to "understand" the white light effect, and why this show was so captivating, and considered by those lucky enough to see it his best, it is necessary to obtain this tape. In my opinion Bowie is at fault, not the fans for the vast trading and buying of this material. If it was RELEASED then there would not be a "black market" so large. Bowie fans I do not believe are wrong to get as much as they can, it shows dedication, if anything. Now, to those who say that these people are STEALING DAVID'S ROYALTIES and are NOT BOWIE FANS for doing it, then I have some kind advice for you. Look at me, now turn around, real slow, now FUCK OFF! Do you know how stupid you sound. I am a Bowie fan and I never want to see Bowie live on stage in 76, 78, 90, 72 or any other year except 83 and 87. I don't want to hear ANY live concerts except the ones on David Live, The BBC and Stage. I do not want to hear any other recordings Bowie did with Queen, Marc Bolan, John Cale or Lulu. I don't want to see The 1980 Floor Show, TV appearances or hear any radio broadcasts.  I am not interested in getting everything I can by Bowie, especially some of the unofficial recordings, even though some are the best I will ever hear.  Just listen to yourself. A Bowie fan? As I said, "Turn around." Idiot. 

End of speech. 
AlaDInsaNE 
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	Part Twenty Seven

Although it all appeared that success had infiltrated every aspect of Bowie's life, and his career, there was still a recurring problem that had yet to be overcome. It had plagued him his entire career and continued to do so. No remedy seemed to work and he had tried everything. Bowie still couldn't sell many records, and the lucrative American market he dreamed of one day breaking into, still eluded him. The first stage of his world tour concluded on June 29 and a four month break was scheduled before it was to resume. Bowie went off to Switzerland immediately to take a well needed three week holiday. What was becoming worrisome is the fact that even though the tour was earning Bowie record attendance figures, and record gate receipts, his record sales were dropping to staggering low figures. It did not matter where one looked, David Bowie had nothing on the record charts anywhere in the word. Tony Visconti mixed the tapes for Stage, the double live album recorded in Philadelphia on April 28 and 29, and the album was due for release the first week of September, while the tour was still in progress. It was hoped that Stage would have some impact and put Bowie's name back on the charts. There was one more item,  which nobody thought much of at the time. The premier of Just A Gigolo was postponed, and re scheduled for an October release in Berlin. The film would be ready  for general release in February of 1979. The reason given was that the  re editing of the film was taking much longer than originally anticipated. A curious comment was made in an article written by Michael Watts in the  September issue of Melody Maker. In the article Watts predicted Just A Gigolo would turn out to be, " the movie bummer of the year." Lucky guess maybe? 

While on the break from the touring schedule Bowie enters the studio, once again with Brian Eno to begin work on his next LP which will be released as Lodger. On September 25, 1978 RCA releases Stage. Personally, I can't imagine that any of the "suits" over at RCA would be so bold as to hold out even the slightest hope that Stage would do anything other than make a brief ripple, and then promptly sink to the depths and disappear from view. I say this because if you look at it realistically, and I find this quite humorous, what Bowie had given them was a "live" version of Low and Heroes, two albums RCA hated, and two albums that were commercial failures. The results were what one would expect, Stage sold 127,350 (fig. 1984) copies in America. With three commercial failures in a row, and considering the fact that Bowie was being far from co operative, they still couldn't even find him half the time, the executives at RCA had decided that they had taken about enough as they were going to from Bowie. The battle lines were being drawn. 

This character was one of indifference concerning the wants of those around it. Bowie did what "he" wanted to, and that was it.  This attitude was reflected in his work, his attitude and his lifestyle and if anyone disagreed with him, well, too bad. Things would be his way only. It is a dream of most to have a life where one does not need to have to succumb to the wishes of others, but instead living a life where you are free to do whatever YOU want, without any interference from others. It's called freedom I believe. This sort of lifestyle is possible, however it requires one thing, and that is to be self sufficient. In order to break free from having to do the will of others,  you first have to stop relying on the support of others to survive. Contrary to what many may think this is easily accomplished, all that is required is an ample supply of money, because once you have the money, you can get what you want,  you do not have to depend on anyone else. If one stops to look at what Bowie had accomplished in the time frame of about two years the results are nothing short of astounding. Look back to February of 1976, the beginning of the Station To Station tour. Bowie had just previous to the start of that tour re negotiated his contract with MainMan. While at MainMan Bowie was not only broke, he owed a sizable amount of money, and was himself owed a hefty sum from MainMan, which it was unable to pay. After all was said and done,  Bowie was for the most part free by the beginning of 1976 and after receiving what was due to him he had around three hundred thousand dollars to his name. This was considered a lot of money back in those days, however compared to the gross income Bowie had generated for MainMan, the amount was laughable. Still, it was better than the seventy five dollar a week salary, and fifty percent of whatever money Defries decided he would leave behind as profits. In just two short years Bowie received $200,000.00 in advance for Stage, and so far he had grossed from the 66 concerts on the tour five to six million dollars. If you add in the other sources of income such as royalties derived from album sales and publishing, Bowie was worth an estimated ten million dollars, and all of it was tucked away in the safety of Swiss bank accounts. 

The rift with RCA was becoming noticeable, so much in fact that the "trades" were starting to comment in their editorials. Bowie was living up to the letter of his contractual obligations, it was assumed that this would ensure a clean break with RCA when his contract expired and to avoid any litigation. The most recent "spat" between RCA and Bowie was over Stage. Bowie insisted that Stage count as two separate albums against what he was required to produce for RCA under the terms of his agreement, RCA would have no part of this saying Stage counted as one album, not two.  Surprisingly for once it was RCA who eventually got their way, Stage would count as one album. It was for obvious reasons that Bowie wanted to avoid "pissing" on RCA publicly, he still had four additional years to fulfil under his contract and a public fight would do nothing but further strain the relationship helping no one. In a completely unexpected mood Bowie held a press conference on October 8, saying he wanted to clear the air concerning the rumours about his intended split with RCA.  At the press conference Bowie stated that his relationship with RCA was not only a long one, but a very rewarding one as well. He said that any rumour stating that he was interested in signing with another label were false and erroneous. He was lying through his teeth. Isolar, under his direction, was already compiling information on the other labels for him to examine. Bowie was through with RCA.

The Heroes tour resumed on November 11 in Australia, with Adelaide being the first stop. All was not well. David Hemmings had run out of money when three quarters of the way through editing Just A Gigolo, and as a result he just simply walked away from the whole project. Bowie was given the opportunity of an advance screening before the film went to final edit. He watched it in the company of the members of Manhattan Transfer who had been hired to perform on the soundtrack. Bowie saw the movie for exactly what it was, career damaging. He was horrified, describing it as a "cocaine" movie. I disagree with this however, it is much more like an "acid" movie in my opinion. It gets worse however, you see Bowie saw the film BEFORE it got butchered. With Hemmings gone the final "cut" was left in the hands of "others." To make matters worse, the running background dialog which provided the story narration was deleted. In addition the music by Manhattan Transfer was cut and spliced to the point of reducing it to mish mash. Twenty minutes of the film, which Hemmings insisted provided the humour and the irony that were central to the picture, was left on the cutting room floor. In my opinion this statement was Hemmings trying to save his own skin. Nothing, especially twenty minutes of lost film could have saved this movie. I saw it several times and I did not think the humour was erased from the film in the least, I laughed my ass off all the way through it each time. 

There is a saying, and it goes like this, "Let sleeping dogs lie."  It is an old and popular saying, and one that someone should have remembered. When Just A Gigolo was complete there was not one film distribution company they could find that would have anything at all to do with it. Now, does this tell you something? It tells me something and perhaps they should have listened and decided not to release the film, however some people are stubborn. In the end they found an inexperienced distribution company called Tedderwick, who had distributed just one film before, to handle it. Bowie held a press conference at The Cafe Royal which lasted fifteen minutes. He did not attend the premier.  The critics were honest, they wrote that the film was a complete mess.  The script was called abysmal and the directing by Hemmings lacked any flair. The acting, with the exception of Sydney Rome was described as "stiff as a morgue." The saving grace for Bowie is that the film was not heavily publicized and pulled from the market after only a few showings. This certainly limited the amount of damage to his career. Bowie later referred to Just A Gigolo as all of his Elvis movies packed into one. I imagine the pig in the movie sued for damage to its acting career as it would not have been able to find work after appearing in that film. This film in my opinion has no value as art, however as a comedy it is worth seeing. 

The tour wound through Australia playing in venues that were well sold out in advance. The Melbourne show was held outdoors where a crowd of over twenty thousand braved the pouring rain to see the concert. As much as the crowds turned out however, this character Bowie had assumed grew more and more isolated. On one rare occasion he did speak to a journalist in London something he said had almost a prophetic value. The interview was conducted by Mavis Nicholson for Welsh TV. In the interview Bowie said, " Thematically I've always dealt with isolation in everything I've written, I think. So it's something that triggers me off. It always interests me in a new project. I have often put myself in circumstances and positions where I am isolated, just so that I can write about them." Interestingly, and what no one knew at the time, this statement was coming from a man, who for the most part was about to disappear for a period of five years. The Australian portion of the tour finalized with two performances in Sydney. There was a rumour, this one was reported in certain papers, that Bowie was paid in gold bars for the two performances in Sydney. This would allow him to legally evade certain tax obligations he had to the Australian government. Although this rumour is unsubstantiated, personally with his business savvy knowing how to keep the tax man in poverty, and his earnings in his own coffers, this would not surprise me one bit if it is true. If it is not true someone just gave him a perfect idea to use next time. 

On November 17th, RCA released Breaking Glass/Art Decade as a single with Ziggy Stardust on the flip side. All of the cuts were off of Stage. If anyone was still crazy enough to believe that there would be any positive public reaction to Stage, their hopes were soon dashed as the single promptly sailed off into oblivion.  Much to the dismay of the accounting department of RCA, as well as the executives responsible for managing their artists, this was becoming all to routine. The failure of the single to spark any interest in Stage, as well as the overall commercial failure of Stage had little or no effect on Bowie. Why should he care anyway whether it sold or not, he was making enough money as well as doing things his way. He did not need a hit, RCA did. To those around him Bowie was becoming incessantly arrogant. It was a "Fuck You" attitude, if you don't like it, well, then Fuck You. Bowie did what he HAD to, but no more beyond the minimum. He was quite clearly biding his time and there was nothing RCA, or anyone else could do about it. With the Australian part of the tour wrapped up Bowie rented an apartment, unknown of course to RCA, and he quietly moved to Kyoto, Japan. It is here that Bowie would spend Christmas. 

The 1978 Heroes tour wound up with shows in Osaka and Tokyo. To all who saw this tour most will agree with what I say, that it was an awesome experience. Now, as much as it was a real privilege to have the opportunity to attend a performance on this tour, and thinking of it conjures up some great memories, there is also a downside attached to it. Without getting into a debate the majority of the fans who "grew up" with Bowie in the seventies will agree with the opinion that this tour marked the end of Bowie, live anyway. The sad part is that little did anyone ever dream that this tour would be the last of Bowie as he was prior to 1980. We witnessed the end. This character turned out to be a virtual Jekyll and Hyde. You see, on the one hand this character gave us arguably the best work of Bowie's career, certainly the most creative. On the other hand it took the Bowie we knew away. Not immediately mind you, but it was the end of an era. Let me throw this out, just for the sake of asking. What do you think the mood would have been like had those in the audience known at the time that this would be the last they would see of Bowie for five years? Also, that this was the last they would see of Bowie as he was, the next time they saw him he will have done a complete makeover, musically and personally, he would leave it all behind, including his fans, and David Bowie would become totally commercial? 

March 1979 would find Bowie in New York mixing Lodger. Lodger, Bowie's most  experimental album really. That is hard to understand until one examines the recording of it. To do that we have to go back to September 1978,  Montreux, Switzerland. 

To be continued.......... 
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Part Twenty Eight

I am just as guilty as everyone else, calling Low and Heroes "experimental" albums. Now, although they were different when compared to Bowie's previous work, a vast departure is more like it, they were adventurous. Bowie definitely dipped his hand into uncharted territory as far as his work was concerned, but parts of this territory had been previously mapped out by other artists. The music was I readily admit "new," but was it really "experimental." Well, that point is debatable in my opinion for this reason. If you look at the sessions for Heroes and Low you will discover that there was not a great deal of "new" techniques incorporated in to the recording process. I concede that there were a "few" things done, such as the "gating" of the microphones to get the vocal effects on Heroes, that were never attempted before. There was in my opinion however, not enough recording innovation to truly label those albums as experimental. I came to this conclusion by comparing these albums to another piece of Bowie's work. I compared them to what I believe to be a truly experimental album, Bowie's most experimental by the way. I compared them both to Lodger. 

Overlooked? Yes, I think so. I never see much written about it. Misunderstood? Again, I believe so, or maybe what is there just isn't recognized. It may be that many do not give it much serious thought, not enough anyway to attempt to really understand it. I say this because I rarely ever hear Lodger mentioned. I never see it surface it as a topic of discussion, it appears that everyone knows it's there, but it just doesn't seem to merit much additional attention. Truthfully, I fell into that bracket for years. There are some tracks on Lodger I think are amazing, Look Back In Anger has always been one of my favourites, as well as Red Sails and the vocals on Fantastic Voyage rate among the best work.  There are some tracks as well that I do not particularly like. For years I just considered Lodger another great Bowie album, but stopped short of thinking it was "special" in a way that others were not. I felt this way for years until one day I read an article on the making of it. That article, coupled with some others I dug up, along with a few interviews with Bowie and the other musicians who contributed to it, really opened my eyes. After what I read I never looked at that album the same way, I gained a whole new respect for it, and this respect is well deserved. 

Mountain Studios could almost be considered cramped. Small, in terms of the average studio size, and nestled in the Swiss Alps on the shore of Lake Geneva. Bowie had already been at work for several days with Carlos Alomar, Dennis Davis and George Murray before the remainder of the band arrived. The four of them had been busy laying down some rhythm tracks. By the time they arrived the rough framework for two songs, "This Tangled Web" and "Portrait Of The Artist" were complete. These songs later were re titled and appeared on Lodger as Yassassin and Red Sails. Usually completing everything in the studio, Bowie would work differently this time. The bulk of the lyrics would not be written in the studio during the recording of the album, which was standard procedure for Bowie, but left until early 1979 to be written in New York. This was quite a departure from the way Bowie ALWAYS worked. There would be many "departures" where this album was concerned, and radical ones no less. 

Bowie and Eno. This time it would be different. Eno had very little input as to the way Low was recorded, how much could one have being in the studio for three days and not being involved in the  engineering on the final mix. This time however it would be different, Bowie let Eno "run wild," and embraced his ideas. Bowie was willing to try anything and everything on Lodger, no matter how unconventional, and he did for the most part. Sean Mayes describes a rather bizarre idea Eno had, and one that was used extensively on the album. Either Eno, or Bowie would lay out a very short sequence of chords which they would have the band play over and over again repetitively. These sequences were produced by varying methods and most were random, thought up on the spot. One of these methods for choosing a sequence of chords was thought up by Eno, and it involved a series of printed cards. These cards were fastened to the wall and printed on each one was a chord, for an example, A minor, B flat, C, F, C minor, D and so on. The musicians were assembled together and a very basic rhythm was played. Now, as the rhythm track played Eno would use a pointer to select various chords at random from the cards pinned on the wall, which were then played. This process, never before attempted as far as I know, was used to write some of the tracks on Lodger.  There were plenty more "unconventional" techniques incorporated on Lodger, this wasn't certainly wasn't it by any stretch of the imagination. Every day Tony Visconti would do rough mixes from the recording sessions and have them transferred to 3/4 inch reel to reel tape, and these tapes would be given to Bowie and Eno every evening. Once in possession of the tapes Eno and Bowie would cut and splice them, often making tape loops. These "edits" would be brought back into the studio the following day where they could be copied and inserted using a multi-tracking system. Although this method is out of the ordinary, it certainly is not new. Those of you familiar with Brian Eno's work with Roxy Music, and his solo material, are well aware of his use of tape loops, they could almost be classified as his "signature." Robert Fripp has also used this technique,  Frippertronics being a perfect example. Bowie used this method as well in the past, on Heroes to be exact. If you are not familiar with this technique I will try my best, forgive me but I am far from being a technical person, to explain, using what rudimentary knowledge I have. 

Tape loops are exactly that, tape loops. First of all there will be a selection of music which has been recorded on a reel to reel tape, just like Visconti's rough mixes. What is then done is the tape is literally cut in order to extract a certain section of music. Once the tape has been cut, it is then spliced back together in such a way that it forms a loop. This tape loop can then be inserted into a tape recorder and played. When it plays of course, the effect you get is having the same sound repeating over and over again. This sound is often used as the "core" sound when composing a piece of music, with other sounds, vocals and instrumental tracks laid over top to complete the composition. There is one technique using tape loops, Eno is famous for it as a matter of fact, that can bring a certain "sound" to a piece of music. The sound is created by changing the speed of the tape loop as it plays, by making it go faster or slower, a wide range of very unique sounds can be created. If you wish to hear a good example of some sounds generated using this technique, without having to try to decipher them amidst a vast array of other noises, then pull out a copy of Heroes. If you give a good listen to Blackout you should be able to distinguish these repetitive sounds generated by using tape loops. The reason I single out this particular track is for the reason that Blackout was composed around two simultaneous tape loops, and therefore the sound is quite easy to hear apart from everything else. 

What was usual about the sessions however is that all of the tracks were recorded in one or two takes, Bowie liked to preserve the spontaneity. Most of the time everything that was recorded was left in, including the "mistakes." Boys Keep Swinging is an interesting track, and one where the musicians swapped instruments, Alomar on drums, Davis on Bass and Eno on piano. The ranchos guitar solo done by Adrian Belew on this track has got to be one of the highlights. So was the way it was recorded. Adrian Belew was sequestered during the recording of Boys Keep Swinging, he had never heard the song.  After the track was recorded, and Belew still not hearing any portion of it, he was instructed to play a lead. The lead guitar track played by Belew spontaneously was then mixed into the final version of the released version of Boys Keep Swinging. I do not know how they managed to achieve this but that lead fits into that song perfectly and in my opinion is one of the best parts on Lodger. I wish to add this as a side note. I do not know if you agree, but I found the guitar solo done by Reeves Garbrels on the track Looking For Satellites from the album Earthling, strikingly similar the one done on Boys Keep Swinging. It sort of "comes out of nowhere." I happened to read an interview with Gabrels and in it he talks specifically about that song. The solo was not recorded the same way, it appeared under protest, so to speak. The original take of Looking For Satellites did not have Reeves guitar solo on it. As it so happened Bowie did not intend on having a guitar solo at all in Looking For Satellites, it was an after thought. After listening to the track Bowie decided to add a guitar solo to the song. Reeves Gabrels protested and said that the track was best left alone, a solo he insisted would not "fit," the "ambiance" would be lost. Bowie insisted that he wanted it done so it was done. The result?  To me anyway that solo is one of the best parts on Earthling.. As, far as Lodger is concerned, well, the experiments were just beginning. 

AladiNSaNE 
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Part Twenty Nine

Would you like to hear something profound? Something amazing? Something that is unheard of today? Well? Okay, I will let you in on it. While making Lodger Bowie sent a driver into town to go to the local music shop in order to borrow three mandolins. These three mandolins appear on Fantastic Voyage,  played by Adrian Belew, Tony Visconti and Simon House. Get it? MANDOLINS! Bowie got mandolins! 

After reading the above statement I am quite confident that there is a substantial contingent of those who are reading this with the thoughts in your minds that the quality of my drugs must have taken a drastic nosedive. No, the quality is fine, if it isn't I take them back. If you happen to be slightly curious about what the Hell I am talking about I will explain. We live in a modern age, we have electricity. Many things were born out of the electrical age, one of them being electronics. There is not one single area of our lives that has not been impacted by the advances made in the field of electronics, including the music we listen to. My view is that the integration of electronics into the making of music has been in some ways an enormous benefit and in many ways a plague. Unfortunately, from what I understand, plagues have a tendency to spread. Electronics allowed many of the processes in the making, recording, engineering and playback of music to become digital, thus allowing the joining of music, and the computer. This is my opinion that I am about to voice I admit, however, I am aware of many others who share it as well, so I am not alone. 

I believe that from the recording, engineering and playback side of things that electronics have in a lot of ways greatly enhanced music. Certainly from the recording end we seem to get a much better product. I am unable to go into specifics, or any great detail about all the recording equipment that has been effected, or re development due to electronics, as I am unqualified in that area. Those answers are best left to "wizards" such as Jimmy Smith on our news group. What I do know however from talking to those in the know is that things that were never thought possible in the recording studio, are now quite easily possible. I do have ears though, and I know the sound has improved on what you buy now a days, for the most part anyway. 

<hiss hiss> Once there <pop> were mountains <hiss> on mountains <sss> And once there were sun birds to <pop> soar with <scrrratch> could never be down <pop> <sss> Got to keep searching and searching Oh, what will I be believing and <hiss> who will connect me with love? Wonder who, wonder who, wonder<pop, pop, (JUMP),  you sought fortune, evasive and shy? Drink to the men who protect you and I Drink, drink,  <pop, pop, pop>drain your glass, raise your glass high. 

Shit, time to buy a new copy of Station To Station. I left the fucking thing out of the jacket last night. Damn good party though.  Sound familiar? I imagine it does to some of you. Ahh, the vinyl days. Scary Monsters cost me around $8.00 in 81 for a North American pressing. The pops, hisses, background noise and the crackling overtones on the album were free. In comparison my Japanese pressing of Scary Monsters cost me around $22.00 in 81. The pops, hisses, background noise and the crackling overtones were not available therefore not included. The domestic, Canadian pressing to be exact, of Low I originally bought was BEYOND disgusting in audio quality and so was the pressing from the States. My Japanese vinyl was much better, but still nowhere near as good as it should have been. It was a real nightmare to hear the "potential" in the sound of Low, but being unable to ever access it. FRUSTRATING! I do recall however the tingle in my spine, the hair on my entire head sticking straight up and the uncontrollable seizure I had that slammed me to the floor when I heard the first few notes of Speed Of Life from this new thing called a compact disk. Finally I thought, I can FINALLY HEAR LOW as it was intended to be heard. As for the playback quality of music,  the digital recordings have been a true blessing. I know that quality as far as what is best, whether it be  vinyl, CD, re-masters as well as the different recordings from the various labels, are all up to each individual person. It is a matter of personal preference, but I think that most will agree that many recordings have been vastly improved due to digital re-mastering. One thing I do know though is this. I have purchased more copies of Station To Station in the past 26 years than there are dollars in Bowie's bank account. This makes me then a self appointed expert on the various issues and re-issues of this boring, crappy, unimaginative and lifeless album. Therefore I can state with the highest authority that the Ryko AU20 digital re-master of Station To Station is by far the best in sound quality that there is and most who have heard it agree. I will not listen to that album on anything less. There are a few exceptions though regarding some of the digital remakes of older albums. I have heard cases where the vinyl originals are preferable in quality. Sometimes the re-equalization has left the sound "flat" or some of the instrument sounds have been lost. I have heard this from a few others and I have to agree, I find Ziggy Stardust better on vinyl than on CD. 

Most people have some sort of an opinion to offer when it comes to napalm, Cruise Missiles, ICBMS, artillery shells, land mines, and other weapons. I hold the same opinion regarding nuclear weapons, and other devices designed for mass destruction, as I do regarding the use of electronic devices to make music. It depends on whose hands they are in. I delight actually in seeing the results which come from keyboards, guitar synthesizers and various other sound producing electronic wonders when they fall into the hands of those who possess superior skills as musicians. I mean the ones who actually have talent and can play. Is there a finer sight than to see the graceful yet lightning quick hands of a man such as Keith Emerson perform a ten fingered ballet on a set of ivories protruding from a Hammond. Equally as impressive, although in a much more moderated ambiance, is the joy of being swept away to the vibrations emanating from an Eno album, especially when accompanied by the masterful licks, notes and temperaments coming from the guitar of Robert Fripp. One is left to marvel at the sounds of elephants, rhinos, Young Lions and Big Electric Cats which pour from the strings and whammy bar under the guidance of Adrian Belew. This electronic wizardry allows Tony Levin to take you to meet Satori In Tangier. These "gadgets" in the hands of musicians who are proficient become a tool that makes it possible to EXTEND their reach into areas that before they could only envision, and not produce. As a result of them these artists can give us so much more in "adventurous" music, and other art forms. WE are the WINNERS because of this. Remember it was the chips, dials, pedals and keyboards that gave us Low, Heroes, Lodger, Outside and much much more. 

Electronics, like weapons, in the hands of the evil often produce devastation and death. It did it to music in many cases, it literally KILLED not only it, but the MUSICIAN as well. Now, you listen to me and understand this, HIP HOP, TECHNO, INDUSTRIAL THRASH, RAP as well as ANYTHING that resembles their sound IS NOT FUCKING MUSIC. HEAR ME? I will repeat it once more, this stuff IS NOT MUSIC! PERIOD! END OF STORY! If you think scratching a vinyl LP on a turntable, or the repetitive drone of a sequencer coupled with a programmed drum machine qualifies as a definition for music then I truly do pity you. If it is possible for you to take some friendly advice then I will tell you that it is time for you to raise your standards and start thinking on a higher level. This stuff does nothing to enrich your mind and expand your horizons as true art does, and unless you strive to experience the beauty of it, you will miss one of the great joys of life. Truthfully though, I personally have nothing negative at all to say about Hip Hop, Techno, Industrial or any other type of "computer generated." thumps, and I will gladly listen to it, under the RIGHT circumstances. You see, although it is NOT MUSIC, it is GREAT TO DANCE TO, and I go out sometimes to clubs for that purpose, oh, and to get shit faced as well. The objection I have is when it is referred to as music, when in fact it is really only a 'primal" beat to move to. Music it may be to a hill tribe, but music as art? NO. 

Please help me. I would like to know how long one studies to learn how to be proficient on a musical instrument before they can go on and learn how to plug in a sequencer, drum machine or other electronic device and program it to play? It's okay, I already got the answer from someone. If you do not know let me tell you that musical training, surprisingly I may add, IS NOT REQUIRED AT ALL in order to operate these things. Now, in addition to this I learned something that is remarkable. As it turns out your AVERAGE person, with a bit of persistence, could quite easily learn to operate these machines and make noise. There is very little skill required at all to produce "music" with the aid of these advances in human technology. The operation of these devices to make "music" by those unskilled in the art of playing an instrument is quite common as a matter of fact. Really. How do I know? Well, it was really easy actually, all I did was turn on my radio. I believe that it is a sad comment on our so called "progressive" society when we allow talented artists to be replaced by machines. Many of these so called "artists" can hide in a studio behind a machine and "appear skilled" on a recording yet really posses no talent. I have seen it personally too. I was not a devoted listener by any means, but I did buy several albums by New Order, who are a "classic" techno band from the eighties. I had an opportunity to see them live in a very small venue and it rates as the absolute WORST concert I have ever had to suffer through. I only suffered for half of the gig because I walked out, I couldn't take it anymore. They were ABSOLUTELY PATHETIC due to the fact that they simply had no ability to play any instruments, what was on their albums was the work of a computer. 

Do you see my point? About the mandolins I mean. You see, those mandolins you hear on Fantastic Voyage are special. Why? BECAUSE THEY ARE REAL, that is why. Someone PLAYED them. The sound of those mandolins could have been created artificially with the use of electronics but they were not. As a true artist Bowie would not settle for anything but the original sound, a sound created by the work of a SKILLED musician. He did not have to do this, most could not have heard the difference, but he did. This is one thing I have always praised Bowie for, he does not, and he will not, ever compromise when it comes to what he produces. This is very true, even the crap he produces at times is always good quality crap. I have always believed that one reason that Bowie's music is so incredible is due to the fact that he puts so much effort into it, and he will not settle for anything less than what he wants. There have been many who have worked with Bowie for one simple reason, the reason is that Bowie wanted a "certain sound" and he went and got those who he could get it from. This is true in every minute detail of his work. Others probably would have used a machine to get the sound, not Bowie however, the hand claps on Station To Station happen to be real. 

Speaking of Fantastic Voyage. That track came out of a jam session, and out of the same jam session another song was born as well. You know it as Boys Keep Swinging, 

Uh, oh. Damn, I did it again. I got sidetracked. I getting known for this aren't I. Sorry.  Let's get back to the experimentation that was done on Lodger because I have lots more to tell you. Okay? 

AladINsaNE 

To Be etc etc.......................

	Posted 25 May 2002

	 


This instalment of Images is special to me, as it is dedicated to a very dear friend of mine. Out of respect for her I will keep her identity private, and only say that she lives somewhere in the UK. I want to thank you my dear friend for being there when I needed you, and for all of your support, encouragement and advice. You are a very unique and special individual, one who has truly enriched my life. Thank you for thinking I was worth it, and summoning up the courage you needed, to write to me. I am truly the real winner because of this. I want to wish you a Happy Birthday, although I am late again as always. Thank you  for all you have given me, but mostly I thank you for just being who you are, and for choosing to be my friend. You're the best of the best and don't you ever forget that. Oh, before I forget, your letter is coming along, slowly, as usual. 

Jamie 

Part Thirty -  Dedicated To A Dear Friend 

As the recording sessions for Lodger progressed it basically became a "free for all."  There were pretty much no restrictions imposed as far as it went to trying something new. Bowie certainly had the right collaborator in Brian Eno if experimentation was the name of the game because Eno was quite content when it came to wading into unknown waters. His work with Roxy Music on their first two albums as well as his solo material is beyond legendary. There some of you, well possibly many, who are not very familiar with Eno, other than his work with Bowie, or may have heard some of his material and it was not to your liking.. If either of these is the case I wish to offer you a small suggestion that in my opinion you can't lose on. If you find some of Eno's work a bit too "out there" for your taste do not be bashful about admitting it, I too find some of his work a bit "far fetched," and as a result I do not own anywhere close to a complete catalog of his released work. I can safely divide Eno's work into several categories, accessible, inaccessible and so highly inaccessible that you require a doctorate degree in the bizarre to attempt to decipher it. Rest assured that it is not a "black mark" on you to shy away from his inaccessible works. I am a rather fond admirer of Robert Fripp, Adrian Belew and Eno, but admittedly I do have a line with regards to what I will tolerate of their "experiments," and often they cross it. If journeys into the realm of the unknown are not for you that is fine, to each his own. However, DO NOT let this steer you away from Eno's work. PLEASE! Now, although it is far from the designation of commercial, there is some work by Eno that is extremely brilliant, as well as EASILY ACCESSIBLE to ANY LISTENER. It is these pieces I want to talk about for a minute. 

Listen. If you are wary about trusting my opinion on music, then would you trust Bowie's? If so, I want you to know that David Bowie literally RAVED about Roxy Music in many interviews after their debut album was released in 1972. This was not a passing fancy either, as he was still raving about them five years later in 77, on television to be exact, when he was being interviewed by Dinah Shore. I am adamant about this. If you do not own the debut album by Roxy Music then it is IMPERATIVE THAT YOU BUY IT WITHOUT FURTHER HESITATION! BUY IT TODAY! The album, simply titled Roxy Music, is the work of a collection of geniuses and is truly one of the most brilliant albums ever made, by anyone. The music on this album rates up there with the most important ever made, it was a breakthrough in modern music, it is a true "classic."  Every person should own this album, even more so if you are a Bowie listener, and I beg you to buy it. This is an excellent way to hear the mastery of not only Eno, but Andy MacKay, Phil Manzanara, Paul Thompson and Brian Ferry on a very accessible album. I rarely attempt to "push" an album on anyone, but this is the exception to the rule. I am so confident about this album that I do not even remotely consider any repercussions from those who take my advice and then after believe that I "mislead" them. I will even go this far. Buy the fucking thing and listen to it six times, ON HEADPHONES in a place you will not be disturbed. Now, if after doing that you dislike it, you may post your thoughts about my music recommendations on alt.fan.david-bowie, which is where I normally "hang out." If I am not there believe me, any of the regulars can find me, and as a matter of fact the most mentally unstable and volatile ones know where I live. In addition, providing there are is semi reasonable amount of complaints, I will promise to publicly state on the group that my recommendations in music are not that good and I will NEVER AGAIN recommend an album in this fashion. Okay? Deal? Just one final remark, if you do not bother to buy this album then you are the one losing, you are selling yourself short, and I really mean that. I do. Trust me. 

Those who have the misfortune to know me personally will agree when I say that I could never be described as un opinionated, timid or quiet. However, this is really going out on a limb, even for me. Although I will not recommend this before food, as I do Roxy Music's first album, I will say that it is worth taking a risk and buying it. I am referring to an album that was released in 1973, and it is another ground breaker that in my opinion every serious Bowie listener should own. Contained on this album is a pool of some of the most proficient and brilliant minded musicians that have ever graced this planet,  Robert Fripp for starters. Now, complementing Mr. Fripp we have John Wetton, former bass player for King Crimson, as well as from Roxy Music Andy MacKay, Paul Thompson and Phil Manzanara. Just to add to the list there is also Chris Spedding who played with too many artists to name, as well as Simon King, formerly of the same band as Simon House, Hawkwind. Where, you ask? Well, they appear on another debut album that also changed the world of modern music, another classic in the true sense of the word. The album is titled Here Come The Warm Jets and it is Brian Eno's  first solo album. Again, this album is very accessible and is worth owning. If you buy it and like it you will also enjoy Another Green World and Taking Tiger Mountain, also by Eno. If you are a fan of "ambient" music, Evening Star, a Fripp/Eno collaboration is a truly lovely album, as are many others of Eno's. 

I realize that should I keep on going I will be forced to rename this series, from Images, to In Loving Praise Of Brian Eno And His Collaborators. So, for this reason alone I will say just a few more words. Eno has been successful on two fronts, on the experimental side, as well as on the commercial side of music. He has worked with some truly avant garde pioneers on the experimental side. From the Velvet Underground Eno has worked with John Cale as well as Nico. You can add to that Laurie Anderson, Robert Fripp, Adrian Belew, David Byrne, Elvis Costello, Peter Gabriel and the list goes on far too long to complete. It is interesting to note that Eno has had incredible success on the commercial side of music, however the work was not personally his. Eno has never had any commercial success actually, with regards to his own work, it came through his contributions to others. It is remarkable, to me anyway, that Brian Eno has attained any "commercial" success, as that is one area he has shunned with his personal work, and I never envisioned him venturing there in any form actually. His success came in the form as an award winning producer for his work with other bands. His greatest achievement as a producer came for the work he did on the U2 album, The Joshua Tree. To put things mildly in perspective when I say he was successful as a producer, I mean he was successful.  The Joshua Tree was produced by Eno along side another award winning producer, Daniel Lanois. In the United Kingdom The Joshua Tree went Platinum, selling one million copies, in an unfathomable 28 HOURS! It stayed as the number one album on the charts for nine continuous weeks. It also topped the charts in 22 other countries selling over 15 MILLION copies. The album put U2 on the cover of Time Magazine, and it was named number three on a list of The Top 100 Albums Of All Time by Rolling Stone Magazine.  The album produced two number one hits  hits on the pop charts: "With Or Without You" and "I Still Haven't Found What I'm Looking For." In  addition "Where The Streets Have No Name" and "In God's Country" made the hit charts as well. The band won 2 Grammy Awards for Album of the Year and Best Rock Performance by a Duo or Group, as well as 2 more Grammys for Best Rock Instrumental Performance by a Duo or Group and Best Performance Music Video for "Where The Streets Have No Name." The Joshua Tree tour was documented in the film Rattle And Hum, and the soundtrack was released as a double CD. U2 obviously realized that Eno made a sizeable contribution to their success as he was invited back to produce Achtung Baby. As far as the scope of Eno's work, well, I readily include myself as one who finds it difficult to comprehend how vast it is, and diversified. In addition to U2 Eno has worked with Blondie, Talking Heads, The Ramones, Genesis, Suede, Jane Siberry, INXS, Sinead O'Connor, Depeche Mode, Camel, Peter Gabriel, Icehouse, Johnny Cash, Roy Orbison and Pavoratti. There has been movie soundtracks as well such as Sling Blade, Tomb Raider and Basquiet, just to name a few. To really understand just how large Eno's resume is I will say this. With everything I have just told you, I haven't even scratched the surface. It is easy to understand why Bowie wanted to work with him. 

Bowie let Eno basically "run loose" in the studio during the making of Lodger, and the result  is quite noticeable, with a glance at the credits on the album, that he had his "hands into everything." Out of the ten tracks which appear on Lodger Eno is given credit on six of them. I am sure that it is no great revelation to anyone if I happen to mention that the origins of what we call "rock music" is the "blues." One  of the major reasons that Bowie wished to work with Eno was because of his entire "approach" to music. This "approach" that Eno developed came as the result of having certain problems arise when trying to write by using the conventional methods that most bands use. Much of the material written by bands comes out of jam sessions. What occurs is that there may be a "framework" in place for a song, however it is usually loosely written, or exists in parts. There may only be part of a melody, a chorus, maybe a riff or a few chord sequences from which to build from. . The musicians will then add each individual part to this framework, by improvising. Through this method it allows the incorporation of many ideas, and replays of the tapes gives a good indication of what fits and what does not fit. The problem with the conventional method of writing in Brian Eno's opinion was this. "When you ask musicians to jam, the common ground will always be the bloody blues, so, you always end up with these endless, boring, bloody blues pieces. Now, if you happen to have ever wondered why so much of the music we hear beamed at us from our radio all sounds basically the same, you know, the standard "three chord" rock n' roll, you have now been "enlightened." Bowie liked Eno's approach because it "broke the structure" and the improvisation came from "new places." 

Brian Eno wanted to "alter" the sound of the piano as of his "experiments" that was successfully incorporated  on Lodger. The trick though was to alter the sound by "natural" means, and not by using any high tech electronic modifications. He accomplished this, after a bit of thought, by taking weights of varying degrees and attaching them so they hung from some of the piano strings. Now, depending on the weight used, each time the hammer struck one of these strings an extremely unique sound would be produced. Now, according to Bowie this whole new "approach" to writing that was used on Low, Heroes, Lodger and later on Outside, presented a unique problem, one I had never thought to even consider. The problem was with the musicians, getting the RIGHT ones that is. Bowie put it this way, "Everybody was virtually handpicked for the album. I looked for musicians who would not find themselves in an inhibiting or embarrassing position when asked to do things which musicians maybe aren't generally comfortable with.  Like, Put this frock on! Play like a fried egg or be a tree!" In later interview Bowie talking about working with musicians on the experimental albums said, "We wanted somebody who is technically very, skilled but has the intelligence to move away from cliché."  This s how Bowie summed it all up in an interview done just after Outside was released, and it is worth repeating. He stated," It was a question of, would these musicians accept the fairly unusual recording process? In my mind, I looked at every one and tried to put them into that situation. These were the ones which would be able to do it. The first time around for Low, Heroes and Lodger, we had some who were almost irritated at some of the things Brian and I wanted to do. That doesn't make for an enjoyable set of sessions so we thought, let's really look for people who will do what we want to do." As you can see, by having such musicians working with Bowie, as well as Eno, they gained total artistic freedom to try ANYTHING THEY WANTED, and best of all, UNINHIBITED. This is why Bowie could say to Roger Powell when they were recording Repetition, " I want the sound of bodies falling behind a door." 

Okay, here it comes and you have been warned. I have a theory I want to discuss. This "theory"  I am sure, as most of my "theories" are, will be greeted with. "Oh no, not again," coupled with a great deal of dismay and disappointment by most of you. Many fans are adamant in their belief that this album was the LAST real venture into innovative music that Bowie attempted, and the second to last great album he would ever produce. Many say that the "END" came with Scary Monsters. Is there a reason for this? I think so. Look at this quote from Bowie on the making of Low, Heroes and Lodger. He said, "There was no need to set parameters." Isn't that interesting, "no parameters?" That statement makes it quite apparent that Bowie was willing to go just about anywhere with his work, without the recognition of any borders, and without the acceptance of any limitations? Why? Why was it like that then? Why didn't he continue working in this fashion? I believe that we have Switzerland, MainMan, Tony Defries, Angie, RCA, Isolar and Bowie to thank for this period and the loss of only ONE of them caused the "end" to arrive in 1980. I believe that I have some extremely powerful evidence to support my opinion as a matter of fact, not only that, it makes sense as well. Oh, there was one more item which was instrumental in the making of these albums that I almost forgot to mention. It is called REVENGE! 

Now, first of all, we must go back a bit in time, just prior to 1976, to  be exact. It is necessary to look at what was influencing his life, as well as his work, up to, and during that time frame. Under the control, and control is the word, of MainMan and Defries Bowie had a much different working environment. One of "pressure." As I discussed in earlier segments of this series, Images, Defries was extremely demanding  of Bowie. How much, if you have not read the  previous instalments. Well, so demanding that Bowie had little, or NO CONTROL WHATSOEVER, in various areas of his life and his work. Defries handled the income, expenses, marketing, record deals, distribution, tours, publishing, as well as handled all of Bowie's "personal" needs such as housing, food and spending money. It was ALL controlled by Tony Defries. This type of lifestyle may have relieved Bowie from the mundane world of having to actually be "responsible" for yourself, in the sense of having to live a normal life of paying bills, shopping for your necessities, budgeting, money worries and so forth. However, it can be an extremely dangerous way to live, and in Bowie's case it created something that hurt him in too many ways to count. It created "dependency." Bowie lived not the way he wanted to, but the way OTHERS wanted him to. Although provided for well, he was in fact helpless, and obligated to the demands of his "keepers," so to speak. Then there were the pressures which he very likely exerted on himself. The feeling of not knowing what is going on around you, as well as what is happening in your own life. The feeling of having no control over anything that effects your life. 

The "external" worries came from Defries. David Bowie was vital to Tony Defries, as INCOME, that is. Bowie was the "golden goose," a "cash cow," and the source of enough money to build the empire he craved. Defries talked once about MainMan becoming the largest management agency for artists in the entire world, saying he may one day EVEN BUY RCA! Having expectations set this high made Defries put pressure on Bowie to make music THAT SOLD. It wasn't just the record sales either, he expected the tours had to draw sell out crowds, and he was intent on also making Bowie a "movie" star, an international celebrity, a household name. All that was expected of Bowie was to do it. ALL OF IT. Money? There wasn't any, for Bowie that is. He lived on handouts from Defries, and if Defries didn't come through then he had no alternative, he turned to his "friends." He was not "broke" per se, it was worse. He was in debt. Angie was also a concern, the marriage by this point was long over and there was a divorce looming. This added to the worries as there was custody of their son Joey at stake, and a possible financial settlement to Angie that could have gone well into a million plus dollars. Then the bottom all fell out and David Bowie's world collapsed all around him. He awoke from a dream, to a living nightmare. 

Young Americans could not be released due to a court injunction obtained by Tony Defries, citing breach of contract. Bowie was now the subject of a lawsuit, which if it went to court, he would not have a hope of winning. Bowie learned in no uncertain terms also was that what he "thought" was the truth, and what was really the truth were very different. The world Bowie woke up from was one of fantasy, this was reality. The reality was that he owned nothing at all, no company, no house, no car and no money. He didn't even own any of his own work, his music, and everything else connected to it all belonged to Tony Defries. Under his personal services contract, it turned out he discovered, that HE WAS PERSONALLY OWNED BY DEFRIES, and this contract was effective FOREVER. It had no termination date on it at all. David Bowie is broke and living off of friends, he can no longer work, and all of those people who "looked after" him are now gone. He has a problem. 

Okay, did you follow me so far? Listen, this part is really important. Now, think of what happened to Bowie in the space of under a year, from 1975  going into 1976. RCA saved his ass, and look at what he got from it; the benefits to him personally were incredible. How so? He was not broke anymore as he got a lump sum payment of three hundred thousand dollars from MainMan, which was actually paid by RCA as they agreed to cover MainMan's debts. This was more money than he had ever seen before. In addition he no longer had to pay Defries fifty percent of his earnings after expenses. It was now sixteen percent, but the important part is that he no longer paid any expenses, which by supporting the lifestyles of a host of others such as Defries, Iggy and every employee at MainMan, not only took every cent he earned, it put him in debt. He got control of his work back, including the publishing, which meant the royalties generated from these sources now went mostly to him. In addition, he would now receive ninety five percent of the revenues from his tours, including the merchandising. Simply put, Tony Defries no longer "OWNED" David Bowie. The divorce settlement went totally in his favour. 

Switzerland as well as Isolar played an important role as well, extremely important to be exact. I will say that the most brilliant business move ever made by David Bowie was when he made the decision to manage his own affairs and opened Isolar in order to do so. This move has allowed him to save untold millions over the years. Where does Switzerland fit in? Well, because of his residency status Bowie could take full advantage of Swiss tax laws, and by doing so with the aid of holding companies, it allowed him to keep all the money he was now saving. By the completion of the Station To Station tour Bowie was worth well over a million dollars, between three to four million to be a little more exact. Here is the point I want to make. Bowie went from being in debt to becoming a multi millionaire in a little over a year. On top of that, what problems did he have now that would adversely affect his life? The answer is NONE!  The dream finally came true, Bowie MADE IT, for the first time in his life he had it ALL! He had more actually than he ever thought possible. He said in an interview done in 76 that he was "making obscene amounts of money." The fact that I need to illustrate my opinion is this, Bowie did not need a damn thing, and what he had with RCA allowed him to make Low, Heroes, Lodger as well as Scary Monsters. What he had with RCA was of major importance, it was the KEY TO THE WHOLE THING. Really, it was. 

Yes, I firmly believe the secret lay with RCA. What did he have that was so vital? The answer is a signed contract to provide them with five albums. That's right, a contract, and the timing of it was all too perfect. It came out of his experiences with MainMan no doubt but you can be fucking sure Bowie now paid a little more attention to the contracts he signed. Bowie now actually obtained legal advice as to know what the terms of a contract were BEFORE he signed it, instead of finding out the hard way after. You can bet your ass the contract he signed with RCA, once they got him released  from the clutches of Defries, for the most part anyway, had all the basses covered. Oh, and not just covered either, but covered as much as possible in HIS FAVOUR, which is another reason we got these albums. Now if you add in REVENGE to all of this then my case is made. That is how Bowie was able to make the music he did from 1976 until 1980. Do you agree? 

Okay, then let me briefly summarize the point I am making if you do not see where I am coming from on this. Bowie at this point in his career, 1976 until 1980, had EVERYTHING he wanted, he was happy and content. During this time he had few problems to deal with as the major crisis he had to contend with in the past were all resolved. The battle with Michael Lippman over a discrepancy in the percentage he took during his short stint as Bowie's manager, was pale in comparison to the recent ordeals he faced at the time. The Lippman thing was settled quickly, and without much grief anyway. Bowie was now FREE, happy, content and in his own eyes very wealthy as well. He did however have ONE major obligation he had to fulfil, and this obligation was to RCA. He had to give them five albums, and that was IT. There was nothing more. It is my opinion, based on these facts, that because Bowie had control of his affairs with little to worry about, and the fact he was financially set, allowed him to do whatever he wanted artistically. He could not only do what he wanted, but do it WITHOUT the concern for what ANYONE ELSE THOUGHT OF IT, INCLUDING his listeners and RCA. To put it bluntly, Bowie didn't give a fuck, at all. He didn't need the money, or anything else for that matter, so why would he care if anyone bought his albums or not? He did however deeply care about one thing in particular, and that was doing what HE WANTED TO DO artistically, free from ANY INTERFERENCE, especially from his label, or anyone who had, as Defries did, ulterior motives. If you look at his work over these years, and his "nothing is taboo" attitude coupled with his behavior, it lends a great deal of weight to my opinion I believe. The contract he had with RCA was vital to the making of these albums, as I said before, in ONE major way. It had to do with a clause that was written in Bowie's contract with regards to the distribution of his work. The importance of this clause can NEVER BE UNDERSTATED. EVER. Why is that you wonder? Well, let me put it to you this way, if this clause did not exist in Bowie's contract with RCA you NEVER would have heard Low, and that is a FACT. In all probability you never would have heard Heroes either. This clause said that RCA was LEGALLY OBLIGATED to RELEASE what Bowie GAVE THEM as an album under the terms of the contract, they had no right to "edit" his work, or prevent its distribution. If you recall I stated in an earlier instalment of Images that RCA refused to release Low unless Bowie changed some of the tracks to suit them. It was this clause that literally "forced" RCA into releasing it, and if they had their way Low would still be sitting somewhere, on tape and collecting dust. So, what this clause did was remove any risk that Bowie's work would be interpreted as so un commercial that it would never be heard by an audience. He was GUARANTEED an audience, no matter what he wrote. 

Revenge is sweet. Well, sweet to the ears anyway if you are one who just happens to like Bowie's work from 76 to 80. It was revenge you know, or partially anyway. Bowie's "spats" with RCA are legendary, and they went on continuously for one reason or another. The truth is David Bowie never forgave RCA for the treatment they gave what he maintains is his best, and personally his most valued work, Low. Bowie was extremely proud of Low, and the fact that he had to battle with his label to even get them to release it was a "personal" insult. Whether right or wrong, it was Bowie's contention that he got poor support artistically from RCA. You can add to that many other squabbles. The most recent bickering  between the two at the time Lodger was being made was over the newly released album, Peter And The Wolf, on which Bowie provided the narration. Bowie was apparently absolutely furious when he discovered that Peter Ustinov and Alec Guinness were RCA's FIRST two choices to do the narration on the album. They both declined the offer so they asked Bowie. He did not like being third choice. Every time they fought it pushed Bowie to do his own thing even more, to punish RCA, and he did. 

It was all of these factors combined that gave us some of the greatest music ever made. It would not last however. Why? Well, the way I see it Bowie was no longer satisfied with being just "comfortable" and making music. He wanted more, much more, and  as a result of his wants we got much less. That is something I will talk about in length, but not now. Later. There is a bit more I wish to say about Lodger first, so please bear with me. Alright? 

AladINsaNE 

To be you know what................

	Posted 29 May 2002

	 


Part Thirty One

The work continued. Bowie, along with his "hand picked" posse of vigilante musicians continued on their "anything goes" free for all. The focus again was on the music. In a contradiction to Bowie's recording style, as I said earlier, the lyrics were left, and they would not be written in the studio this time. 

Somebody had an idea. The idea was to take the song All The Young Dudes and play it backwards. Yep, backwards. Since ALL ideas, especially those that involved insanity were welcomed during the recording of Lodger, it was immediately accepted as something that should be tried. It was too. Not only was it tried, but Bowie liked what he heard and he used it for a track on the album. The mid section of the song Move On, well, it is actually All The Young Dudes played in reverse. There was another previously written song by Bowie which appeared as well on Lodger. I am referring to the song Red Money. The instrumental track of Red Money is identical to Sister Midnight, a song which Bowie wrote for Iggy Pop while they were living together in Berlin, and it appeared on his album Lust For Life. The lyrics and title of the song were rewritten by Bowie for the version that appears on Lodger. I personally do not mind Red Money, but Sister Midnight in my opinion is far superior. The fact that Red Money works well as a track on this album is an exception to the rule however. I say this because as foolish and illogical as it sounds, Bowie should NOT PERFORM SOME OF HIS OWN WORK. 

"Huh?" You say? Yes, and I mean that. Bowie has written a lot of material and given it away while collaborating with other artists, most notably Iggy Pop. While in Berlin during the Low/ Heroes period Bowie co-wrote two albums with Iggy, Lust For Life, and The Idiot. Although Iggy is given co-writing credits on both albums, the truth is that the songs themselves were almost entirely written by Bowie. Most of you would be familiar I am sure with the song Lust For Life, made popular because of its appearance in the hit movie Trainspotting. This film surprisingly featured a considerable amount of music from Iggy Pop albums, and very refreshing in my opinion. Lust For Life was written by Bowie on a ukulele while he was laying on the floor in his Berlin apartment watching television. The rhythm for the song was copied from the tapping Morse Code beat of the theme from the Forces Network. The songs Bowie wrote for others are in many instances "classics" when performed by those he wrote them for. However, when Bowie decides to perform them himself, the results in most cases are beyond horrid. The word "sickening" applies quite well as a description too. 

Now, you can suck on this. I may get some "hate mail" for what I am about to unload on you here, but quite frankly I do not really care, because what I am going to say is the truth. Period. If you can't handle it, well, too fucking bad. You have my condolences. First of all, any serious Bowie listener probably owns, or should own, three Iggy Pop albums, Raw Power, Lust For Life and The Idiot. The reason I say this is because if you are serious about knowing all of Bowie's work, you should own these because of the immense contribution he made to them. Raw Power features not only the handy work of David Bowie, but Mick Ronson as well. This was more or less a "breakthrough" album for Iggy which gained him some notoriety among the record buying public. This  of course was due to the involvement of Bowie and Ronson, and the ensuing publicity. As far as The Idiot and Lust For Life, well, they could be classed as David Bowie albums really, and not just "albums" either. They are both CLASSICS, and it is no wonder either when you look at when they were made, and what Bowie was producing between 76 and 78. They stand up to anything. 

I am going to let you in on something.  I am going to answer a question. I am going to provide the answer that solves a mystery, and the mystery is why serious Bowie listeners from the seventies seem to despise the album Tonight. The answer is relatively a simplistic one, and it is because those who despise Tonight are mostly the ones who own copies of Lust For Life, The Idiot and other Iggy Pop albums. You see, out of the nine tracks which appear on Tonight, seven originally appeared on Iggy albums, and those who actually own these albums have a distinct advantage over those who do not. The advantage is that they can make a comparison between  the original versions, and the versions that appear on Tonight, as well as other Bowie albums. Therefore, those serious Bowie listeners who actually have what is required to make an educated comparison will, as a majority, come to the same conclusion. The opinion shared by myself and these others happens to be that Bowie's versions of these songs are a shade lower than absolutely pathetic. They are an embarrassment. There are, as I know, those of you who like these tracks the way they appeared on Tonight. All I can say to that is, because you have never compared them to the originals,  your opinion is not an "informed" one, and therefore you are not in any position to comment. I have noticed in the past however that ignorance does not seem to deter you. You still defend that album. 

I am really going to get it for this next remark, but, as the saying goes, the truth sometimes hurts. If you have heard the version of the song Tonight, as done by Bowie, it is the closest thing to outright blasphemy that you will ever have the misfortunate to encounter. I am telling you that if you defend it, you are ignorant. I say that with reason as well, because I am not prone to making statements that I can not defend, as most of you already know. If you defend this song I will be willing to bet that you have no fucking clue what it is about. Do you? If so, then you tell me. I will say that it's not a love song between a girl and her television set. The way Bowie and Tina sing it the subject matter should be easy for you to figure out. So? I'm waiting. What is the song Tonight about? Romance? Love? Boy meets girl? Well? How about a first time romantic encounter, I mean the way it is sung that is possible, isn't it? Tonight, after all, is an "emotional" song. Do you know, do you know FOR SURE? First of all, does this ring a bell?  " I saw my baby, she was turning blue. I knew that soon her young life was through. And so I got down on my knees, down by her bed, and these are the words to her I said."  You have, of course, heard that before, or have you? Tell me, where is it from? If you don't know, and you are a defender of Bowie's version of Tonight, let me say that you look quite foolish about now. Why? Because you have just proven to me that you are ignorant of what it is you are defending. YOU do not even know the song, yet you are professing to be educated enough to have others take your opinion as being relevant. Good luck, but it won't work with me. Sorry, I've been around too long. Oh, and I know too much also. <LOL> 

If those words remain a mystery, then may I offer you some enlightenment? They are the lyrics to the first verse of a song called Tonight. Now, before you retaliate and say that isn't true, it is the first verse, on the ORIGINAL version. For those who have the original they will understand it when I say that Tonight is a very powerful song, emotionally, and that has probably got a lot to do with the subject matter, and how Iggy expresses it. What is Tonight about then? A heroin overdose, that is what it is about. It is about a boy who is watching helplessly as life slips away from his girlfriend. He tries in vain to reassure her that, "Everything will be alright tonight," yet knowing all along that she is surely going to die. Since he can't save her, he professes his love to her by saying, " I am gonna love her to the end. I am gonna love her to the end. I will love her 'til I die I will see her in the sky." That my friends, is what Tonight is about. Those who have Lust For Life knew this already. 

Now, have you seen the video of Bowie and Tina Turner performing this song live? Nice, isn't it? They're all smiles, giggles and quite cute as they "flirt" with each other. Oh, add in a few laughs as well. The album version is really smooth, nice and slick, a duet with Tina. They both try their best you can tell to sound really "sexy." I guess you are supposed to be all cute looking and flirtatious, a few smiles, some giggles, and sound real sexy when you sing a duet about a girl dying of a heroin overdose. Right? Oh, how stupid of me, I damn well forgot about one of the most important things, the dancing. Bowie and Tina perform some really fine dance moves while singing with sexual overtones about a heroin overdose, and a girls death. I guess songs about drug overdoses and a young girl dying are great dance material? Hey, why not, they sing it like it is a "fun" song. You know, happy, easy going. You can hum along, or sing the chorus. I have an idea. Let's all do this together, it will be really enjoyable. We can all sing the first verse together. Think of how happy it will make us feel. Okay now, after me on the count of three. Remember, sing it really happily, okay? All together now, one, two, three, " I saw my baby, she was turning blue. I knew that soon her young life was through. And so I got down on my knees, down by her bed, and these are the words to her I said. Everything will be alright tonight." Didn't that sound nice, really uplifting? Given the subject matter who wouldn't say Bowie's version is better?  Well, me for one, and anyone else who is not an idiot of course. Oh, and serious Bowie listeners too. 

It took the rest of the world twenty some odd years to discover what Bowie listeners had know since 1977, that Lust For Life was one kick ass tune. Well, the one that appeared on Iggy's album. I do not recall where I got it, but I do believe it must have been sent to me by a person who was not an admirer of my writing, as I think that it was an attempt to "do away" with me on a somewhat "permanent" basis. I have a bootleg  of Bowie performing a live version of Lust For Life. I do not know when, or where, it was recorded, however I do know that it is HIDEOUS beyond description to listen to. It is really, really awful. He croons the song as though it is a lounge act he is performing, you can almost picture the "tip jar" on top of the piano. I value my ears and this song as performed by him is an assault. Tonight in comparison is a blessing. He also had the audacity to perform the classic Iggy tune, I Wanna Be Your Dog, again with disastrous results. Why would he even think that you could make this into a "nice" little tune to hum along with. If you own Party then you know Bang Bang. You also know, being educated enough to compare, that it is destroyed completely when sung in falsetto by someone in a red suit, who is dancing the Tango in front of a big red plastic spider with glowing legs. I happen to like China Girl from Let's Dance, basically because of the production work which is beyond perfect. The track is as slick, and as smooth as glass, so much so that you would be hard pressed to find a better "pop" sound anywhere on this planet anyway. It is unfair to compare them, because of style considerations, but for pure raw energy the Iggy version is untouchable, especially live. Not only can Bowie not pull off the songs he writes for others on his own solo albums, but the same is true for live performances. I am talking from experience here as I have seen Iggy more than a couple of times. One of those times was in 1977, with Bowie on piano. 

As I said, I think Red Money works well. It is much more tolerable than the long winded rambling boring rendition of Sister Midnight that he lavished on unsuspecting audiences in 76. If you are familiar with Red Money you will recognize the lyric regarding the "small red box." There is a meaning to this line. Bowie was doing a considerable amount of painting around this time, and in many of his pictures this "small red box" would appear. It was painted in almost unconsciously. Bowie thought it to be a representation of "unresolved issues."  In my estimation I believe that in Bowie's mind he believes that he is offering some sort of tribute, a note of recognition and respect, for a person when he rerecords their work. It is the thought that counts though when you honour someone, and this is why his cover versions should NEVER go beyond the "thinking" stage, because once recorded it is difficult to imagine that his intentions were to honour anyone. Two words I would like to see come to mind when Bowie considers recording other artists work. Those words, to quote Bowie are, "Project cancelled." 

Lodger, although there is a substantial number of Bowie listeners who find that the musical "style" displayed on the album is not to their taste, deserves respect for the various approaches to music that were accomplished on it. Simply put, that album is "all over the place." It is the most diverse of Bowie's albums when it comes to style. The rhythms throughout the tracks on the album alone deserve high credits. African Night Flight to name one. It easily matches Peter Gabriel's Biko. Where else would you find an album with a track that has an African rhythm to it such as African Night Flight, and then two tracks later encounter something as Turkish sounding as Yassassin, to a reggae beat. The backing vocals on Look Back In Anger, I cautiously say that they are almost "Beatle style harmonies." Bowie was aiming for a very German sound as the backing for Red Sails. Whether this was achieved I guess is a matter of opinion. What I do know is he is the only artist who would dare to overlay such a background with a Chinese sounding melody, talk of travels to the "hinterland," and end it off with a few numbers and directions indicating that the hinterland is so fa, fa, far away, so  fa-fa-fa-fa-fa. The departure from the conventional is nowhere more apparent than on DJ, and like Lodger itself, it too is overlooked for the most part. To be able to find words that would properly do justice to this song as a description would be a difficult task indeed. The song is absolutely brilliant, and stands as one of the most unique pieces ever composed by Bowie. The song, first off, is extremely appropriate for the time that it was written. One thing that is easily forgotten is the fact that DJ came out at a time when disco was all the rage, and DJ, in part anyway, exposes the entire "disco scene" for the foolishness it really was. I used to believe that most of what came out of the disco era was quite useless where music is involved, but then sometimes when I compare it to much of what I hear on the airwaves today, I am not so sure. 

Think about this for a minute and then tell me if I am right. We all are aware that when it comes to Bowie's work, especially the work produced during his really innovative phase in the mid to late seventies, the music critics seem to "miss the point." That is not all they miss either, there is something else and you will notice it, well the absence of it being mentioned, in almost every review you will ever read. This oversight is common for reviews not on a few albums, but ALL OF THEM, no matter what year. I mean from 1969 right through until 2002. I am completely bewildered by the fact that I have never once seen a music critic mention the fact that Bowie happens to posses a remarkable voice. The man can actually sing. How this manages to escape these experts lends credence to the theory held by most Bowie listeners that they are in fact all fucking deaf, as well as stupid. The vocals on one particular track from Lodger are so ignored in my opinion that it would be better if they didn't exist. I say this because those who ignore them do not deserve them. Ooops, there I go again, a few more well placed comments aimed at winning a popularity contest. The power of Bowie's voice that is demonstrated in his ability to hold some of the notes for the length of time he does on Fantastic Voyage is astounding, to say the least. Calling Bowie a rock singer is something that I avoid, and I detest hearing that term used on him. The reason is that it is rather demeaning to take such a brilliant artist, and "dump" him in a category with every other rock singer.  Well, since the media sticks him in there anyway, let me say this. If you compare David Bowie's vocal abilities with the rest of the "singers" out there, the truth is that ninety nine and a half percent of them would choke to death before they could match a quarter of the vocal range he is capable of, and they would suffocate if they tried to hold a note half as long as he is able to.  Hmmmm? How does anyone miss that, especially those "experts?" 

It has been argued that Lodger is an album which divides Bowie fans into three groups, those who see it to be a truly brilliant album, and yet severely underrated, those who are indifferent towards it and those who do not give it very high marks compared to other Bowie albums. Bowie himself raised a good point once saying that a lot of fans were under the impression that the "process" he used with Eno, and the way that they approached music, was somehow different when making Lodger, compared to Low and Heroes. I believe that this is a very relevant point due to the fact that Lodger seems to be a complete departure from the work that appeared on the two previous albums. Well, according to Bowie my guess would be incorrect, because according to him the same approach was used for all three albums. He did however provide a reason why he thought fans would tend to think that Lodger was different. He explained that in his opinion, " it's the lack of instrumentals that give you the impression that our process was different. It really wasn't though." I reported earlier in this piece that I was not aware of how the idea came about to record All The Young Dudes backwards. Well, since I wrote that several hours ago I have found the answer. May I share it? 

As it turns out the idea was "stumbled" upon by Bowie.  Here is how he said it happened, "I had put one of my reel to reel tapes on backwards by mistake and really quite liked the melody it created. So I played quite a few more in this fashion and chose five or six that were really quite compelling. Dudes was the only one to make the album, as I didn't want to abandon the 'normal' writing I was doing completely. But it was a worthwhile exercise in my mind. It has the same title as the song I wrote for Iggy. But as the one for Jim was a working title, I passed it onto the Lodger song." The credits on the album Lodger reveal that one of Brian Eno's contributions was for his use of a "Cricket Menace." Bowie revealed the nature of this "instrument" in this fashion. He explained, "Little crickety sounds that Brian produced from a combination of my drum machine ( I would and still do, use one to write with when I'm on my own) and his 'briefcase' synth. You can hear them on African Nightflight." There, you now have something "new" to listen for the next time you decide to give Lodger a spin. Now, aren't I helpful? <LOL> 

This fact I found out while doing some research for this particular instalment of Images. Truthfully, I have NEVER heard this complaint before about Lodger. .Let me ask you all first. What is your opinion of the way Tony Visconti and Bowie mixed the final tapes for Lodger? My own personal opinion is that I see absolutely nothing wrong with it. I think the sound is well balanced, I don't know of any place off hand where the sound is muddy, and I find overall that the highs and lows are well equalized throughout the entire album. Apparently, I have discovered that not all people share this view. I have learned that there is a substantial number of Bowie listeners who are of the opinion that the final mix on Lodger leaves a lot to be desired. This really came as a surprise to me, so I decided to do a little "digging" to find out what more I could. Well, what I found was the last thing in the world I ever expected. You see, as it turns out, Bowie listeners are not the only ones who believe that the mixing of Lodger could have been better, David Bowie thinks so too. There is another person as well who is not overly pleased with the mix. This name, coupled with Bowie's, will surely come as a surprise to you. Ready? Tony Visconti. Let me make it clear that I would not have stated Bowie or Visconti's opinion of the mix on Lodger if the source of the information was an article that someone had written, and this just happened to get mentioned. I thought it was necessary to include this information because Bowie's own personal views concerning his work are always important for an article such as this one, and so are the views of others who are directly involved in the recording process, such as Tony Visconti. The source for this information was not "second hand," I can assure you. It came from a decent source, Bowie. This quote is from an interview I discovered while I was looking for some opinions about the mixing of Lodger. I wanted to know if there were in fact many people who did not like the way the final version of Lodger was mixed. Bowie said, " I think Tony and I would both agree that we didn't take enough care mixing. This had a lot to do with my being distracted by personal events in my life and I think Tony lost heart a little because it never came together as easily as both Low and Heroes had. I would still maintain though that there are a number of really important ideas on Lodger. If I had more  time I would explore them for you but you can probably pick them out as easily." 

I want to close this part of Images by talking about a quote from Bowie that I know every one of you will enjoy because it is a very revealing. This quote is one of those that you just know comes straight from his heart. It is powerful, and powerful because it is said with conviction. IT IS BOWIE TALKING, AND THIS IS TRUTHFULLY WHAT HE BELIEVED. 

The conversation was about Low, Heroes and Lodger. The person conducting the interview asked Bowie this question, "Were you aware of their importance (of those albums when you were making them?" 

Do you know what Bowie's answer was?
No?
I'll tell you next time.

Bye. 

AladINsaNE 

To be blah, blah, blah, blah...............................

	Posted 8 June 2002

	 


Part Thirty Two

I have said it many times that it is really necessary to devote the time required, no matter how much it is, to understand as much as you can about Low, Heroes and Lodger. The reason I gave for this is that if you do not have a good understanding of this work, then you are missing a lot more about the true "essence" of David Bowie, as a person, as well as an artist, than you could ever realize. This is true. Those albums, and I include in there Station To Station, Young Americans, Hunky Dory and a couple of others ARE ALL BOWIE. The rest of his work, save a few, contain mere scattered pieces of the "true" Bowie, as they had "ulterior motives" behind their making. They were not made just for the sake of personal expression through sound, as was the soul motivation for these albums. 

I have come under fire for stating this more times than I can count, and all of it coming from newer Bowie listeners, or those who believe that my assertion is incorrect. They chalk up this statement I make as a matter of "personal opinion," and not based on anything other than such. 

Well, to those of you who believe this to be true I have this to say, and that is you are wrong. Dead wrong. The issue I make of the importance of understanding these albums to understand Bowie is NOT MY OPINION. Now, before you scoff at that may I remind you that I do not say things which I can't back up, and you should know that by now if you are one who reads my articles. Let me say to ALL of those who have dumped on me over the years for sticking to my statement that you are about to get a rather rude awakening. Also, before I go on I want to make one thing perfectly clear to a few of you out there who had the "wisdom" to post your "brilliance" a while back on the news group, alt.fan.david-bowie. Now, as incomprehensible as this is to any real Bowie listener, I saw actual postings on this group from "visitors" who wanted to start a discussion as to whether Low was a "good" album. I responded by letting them know that for even "thinking" to question the relevance of Low that they had demonstrated to any real Bowie listener, that they in fact were first class morons who did not understand the first thing about Bowie, and never would based on that kind of question. 

I came under fire of course for that. To those of you who attacked me for that, well, you attacked me for no reason because I was not wrong at all. I was right, and again, this I can prove. You were fools. I will just say this to all of you, the importance of these albums is NOT MY OPINION AT ALL, IT IS BOWIE'S. So, if you do not think that it is important to spend the time to understand these albums, or think that they can be "dismissed," then leave ME out of it, go flame Bowie. 

I closed out the last segment of Images by mentioning a quote of Bowie's. Many of you after reading it may come to the same conclusion that I have, that this quote is one of the most sincerest, truthful, revealing, as well as one of the greatest importance when it comes to how he rates the work he produced during this period. As I described earlier, the conversation was about Low, Heroes and Lodger, and the person conducting the interview asked Bowie this question, "Were you aware of their importance (of those albums when you were making them?" Bowie replied by saying this, " Yes, yes, yes. For whatever reason, for whatever confluence of circumstances, Tony, Brian and I created a powerful, anguished, sometimes euphoric language of sounds. In some ways, sadly, they really captured unlike anything else in that time, a sense of yearning for a future that we all knew would never come to pass. It is some of the best work that the three of us have ever done. Nothing else sounded like those albums. Nothing else came close. If I never made another album it really wouldn't matter now, my complete being is within those three. They are my DNA." 

Lodger was recorded by Christmas,  all that was left were the lyrics to be written, and for Bowie and Visconti to do the final mixes  Lodger was scheduled for a worldwide release in May of 1979.  Bowie would not be spending the Christmas holidays at his home in Switzerland this year. He chose to go to his "other" home instead, the one in the Caribbean. Most are aware that Bowie had a permanent residence in Switzerland, however he had a second home as well, and this one he kept rather private. Bowie bought this home in either late 75 or early 76, I am not sure exactly when, and it is located on the Caribbean island of Mustique. Mustique is a very unique place, for several reasons that I will explain, and it is easy to see why Bowie chose to buy a home here. The island  is located in the Eastern Caribbean, eighteen miles south of St. Vincent, and forms part of an area of islands called St. Vincent and The Grenadines. Mustique is small, fourteen hundred acres, one and a half miles wide, and three miles long. There are eighty five residences on the island, well, villas are a much more appropriate description, and roughly fifty of them are available for seasonal rentals. There is only one hotel, one guest house, a general store, a church, a "designer" boutique, a cafe, a bakery, and of course a bar as well. One thing you will not find however, as you do on most "tourist" beaches, is an endless stream of high pressure beach vendors selling everything from jewellery, to T-shirts, sea shells, cruise missiles, sun glasses, assault rifles and Scottish castles. You will also not find any traffic signals. 

The ownership, and the way in which Mustique is governed is quite unique  in my opinion, and unlike anything I have seen before. I think it is worth a mention because you may also find it interesting. First of all, Mustique is PRIVATELY owned, by a corporation which is called simply, The Mustique Company. The corporate address for the company is in St. Vincent. In 1989 the Government of St. Vincent & The Grenadines  passed into law The Mustique Company Limited Act. This basically gave the company total control of the island, and left them to govern it anyway that they see fit. This law was rather "convenient" you see, because as it turns out one hundred percent of the shareholders of The Mustique Company just happen to be the residents, property owners, as well as those who own businesses on the island. Now, who usually regulates taxes? Right, the government. Well, on Mustique the residents ARE THE GOVERNMENT. So, guess what? That's right. No income tax, no corporate tax, no capital gains tax, no gift tax and no "offshore" profit tax. It gets better too. The disclosure laws to guarantee privacy are the best in the world, so good as a matter of fact that their system has come under fire from the governments of a multitude of countries, due to the fact that their taxation departments are "stone walled" when it comes to getting information about anyone who has set themselves up in Mustique. The confidentiality laws in Mustique make Swiss banking privacy protection look second rate amateur in comparison. There are NO LEGAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS IN EXISTENCE in Mustique. What does this mean? Well, total anonymity, in other words NOBODY can get ANY information on what you own, or who owns what. You can own a company based in Mustique and there is no requirement for the filing of by-laws, or for the disclosure of who the directors are, the shareholders, your attorney, or anyone else who is related to the company. In addition any information on your trading activities, or your banking information will not be passed on to any Revenue Authority anywhere in the world.  These laws are, and I quote from a financial report, "the most restrictive confidentiality laws on the planet." Understand though,  before you consider opening your own business here, you must have a minimum of half a million dollars US to incorporate. 

Getting to and from the island is a little bit of a hassle as there are no regular scheduled flights. This leaves you to fly in from Barbados either on a charter flight, or bring your own plane. If you don't have one I suggest that you either borrow a friends or come by boat. I mean yacht. Oh, you can only fly in during the day also, another hassle. If you are willing to put up with these inconveniences I can guarantee that a visit to Mustique will afford you a unique opportunity to meet some interesting people who frequent the place. If you are a Rolling Stones fan then both Mick Jagger and Keith Richards have homes there. Here is a quote from Roger Waters of Pink Floyd, "I was at a picnic on a beach on the island of Mustique just after Christmas, and I suddenly saw [drummer] Nick Mason on the other side, who I haven't spoken to in fifteen years. And I thought, "Fuck, this is nonsense!" So I went up behind him and massaged his neck. He turned around, and he nearly fell on the floor when he saw who it was. He's invited me to dinner, and I shall go, because we were very close friends all those years." Princess Margaret used to hang out and party on Mustique, it was a favourite haunt of hers. Sean Connery and Raquel Welch frequent the island too. Tommy Hilfiger recently invited his friends to join him at his $40 million beach hut on Mustique to celebrate his 50th birthday. 

If you have some vacation time coming and you happen to like the blues, you may wish to make a note of this. There is a round about Bowie connection to this as well. Every year, in January I believe, the island of Mustique hosts a blues festival. Here, lets do this. There we go, I just went and  looked it up so you'll know, and I wasn't too far off as it turns out.  The 2002 festival was held from January 23rd to February 6th. I was truly quite surprised when I discovered who the principal organizer of this event was because it was the last person I would ever expect. This is where the "Bowie" connection comes in. Now, Bowie is not involved with the festival in terms of organizing it, or appearing as a performer, as far as I know. I am not aware if he even attends them. There are two key people who are responsible for organizing the festival. The Producer of Mustique's Annual Blues Festival is a gentleman by the name of Basil Charles, who is also the owner of Basil's Bar, the only "watering hole" on the island. The other individual is the actual founder of the event, which she started seven years ago. She also serves as the Artistic Director. Her name is none other than, Dana Gillespie. 

If you are tinkering with the notion of grabbing the family and heading off to Mustique for next year's blues festival then you can thank me for saving you some work. Why? Well, I went and checked out the accommodations that are available so you can find one in your price range without having to look yourself. As I said, out of the eighty five residences on the island, there are around fifty that are available for seasonal rentals. They vary in size so therefore it should be extremely easy to find one that will suit you budget, I know I found several possibilities for myself without any difficulties. Since I do not know how big your family is, or if you will be vacationing with friends, so I decided to provide you with several alternatives. The prices of course vary slightly from Villa to Villa, but these are  in the range that you can expect. Hey, that sounds like a good title for an album doesn't it, Villa To Villa? There are some places "in between" the ones I have quoted as well. If it is just yourself and one other person you could get by with a two bedroom place, and that will set you back to the tune of $6,500.00. If it is you and another couple then $10,500.00 will get you into a comfortable four bedroom place. You would be looking in the neighbourhood of $16,000.00 should your require a six bedroom villa. If you are planning to make it a "special" event and decide to bring along a few close friends, then you will not encounter any problems finding an adequate place to hold a few more bodies.  A nine bedroom villa can be yours for $27,000.00. I am well aware that these prices could be considered the "purchase" price of homes in some less developed countries. I can assure you though that what I have quoted to you are not to buy these places, but merely to rent them. These prices are not for a year, and they are not for a month. What I quoted you is how much each of these places cost o rent for ONE WEEK.  Yes, you are looking at an average price of $6,500, to over $27,000.00 per week, should you choose Mustique as your next holiday get away. On a positive note you may wish to know that reservations are not necessary to attend the Blues Festival. Now, even better is the fact that admission to the festival is free to guests on the island. With all the money you will save on the price of admission, you can easily afford to purchase the CD of the event which is sold each year.  The proceeds from the sale of the CDs are donated to help the school children of St Vincent. 

David Bowie's residence was called Britannia Bay House. The house was decorated in a Balinese theme. No doubt some of the furnishings were purchased  from a local boutique called Forever, which specializes in furnishings and other items which are made in Bali. If you ever make it to Mustique one day and have thoughts about possibly running into Bowie at Basil's Bar, then let me tell you that you are probably not going to be very successful. I say this purely for the fact that Bowie sold his home there in 1995.  The price he got for it was two million dollars. In 1978 Bowie spent Christmas and New Years on Mustique. On New Years Eve he went over to Mick Jagger's, who was hosting a champagne party. After the holidays Bowie left for London to begin work on the mixing of Lodger. On February the 14th was the London premier of Bowie's latest film, Just A Gigolo. As it turned out champagne would not be the order of the day in this case, the reason being that there was little to celebrate. 

The invited guests were asked to dress in 1920's style, or formal black tie to The Prince Charles Cinema in Leicester Square for the screening of Just A Gigolo. Bowie was in attendance that evening with his date Viv Lynn. Apparently Bowie did not feel that the "dress code" that the guests were asked to adhere to applied to him. I say this because Bowie, as well as his date, came to the film premier wearing Japanese Kimonos and wooden clogs. Unfortunately their clothes did not divert the film critic's attention away from the movie, they saw it all, or as much as they could stomach of it anyway. Rarely does one hear of an actor described as, "embalmed in dead talent," which were the exact words used on Bowie by The Sunday Telegraph. The Morning Star reported that Bowie, "exudes as much warmth as a fridge."  The Sunday Mirror concluded that Bowie was "completely miscast," and going on to say that the film was, "all show and no substance." The critics did not just have their sights set on Bowie, the other actors did not escape notice, and neither did director David Hemmings.  The review from the Financial Times stated that Bowie, as well as the remainder of the cast, "fall like ninepins before the ham handed staging and the choppy, frantic, try anything editing." These reviews, if you can believe it, happen to be the kinder ones written by those who did not like the film were the "kinder.” One review was rather surprising , this was the one which ran in the New Musical Express. It is surprising because this magazine has always openly supported Bowie's work, which is evident by the articles about him. Most of what is written on Bowie over the years has been positive, no matter what is written in the "other" publications. They have quite often defended his work where others wouldn't. In the case of Just A Gigolo however, New Musical Express was ruthless compared to their usual treatment of Bowie.  This is an excerpt. "David's dramatic ambitions obviously far outweigh his abilities. Bowie might look the perfect part as a foppish Prussian gentleman turned gigolo traipsing through 1920's Berlin, but he can't play it. An illusion is burnt to a crisp every time he opens his mouth or tries to convey any depth or detail of character. Bowie's efforts throughout are comically inept." Bowie did not like the film either, calling it, "my 32 Elvis Presley films, all rolled into one." That fact however did not matter, the bad reviews did not stop, he was literally hit with them coming from every angle and that took its toll on him. According to friends, although he "toughed it out" in front of the media, inside he was devastated. 

I agree that this movie from a serious standpoint is one big fucking mess. It works however as a comedy, a "comedy of errors" that is. I think that it is grossly unfair though to ruthlessly attack Bowie's capabilities as an actor. I will be the first one to say that Bowie has done more than his share of poor acting jobs, yet there have been some awesome moments slipped in among them. I still believe The Man Who Fell To Earth is overlooked, and a loss to those who do. Bowie is strikingly brilliant in the role of Thomas Jerome Newton, even considering the fact that he was fucked up on coke at the time, and it was his first real acting job. It is my view that the bad films were almost all poorly written, poorly directed and poorly acted by ALL OF THOSE INVOLVED, not just Bowie. It is entirely wrong to put the failure of a film entirely upon his shoulders, as if HE was the only one responsible for it. It is for this reason I feel that the New Musical Express , as well as a few others, were way out of line in their treatment of Bowie, especially to single him out as they did. It was wrong and unfair.  Although I fail to understand how, Just A Gigolo actually received a few good reviews. One I read compared it to Cabaret, with Liza Minelli. Variety Magazine said Bowie acted his role with, "engaging appeal." Film & Films magazine said the film ,"is an original and often deeply moving movie." Mostly though, the movie was said to be "overkill." It was pulled, mercifully, from theaters after only a few screenings, saving a lot of Bowie's dignity in the process. 

Do you know what? I really wish people would just stop for a moment and quit living for today, without looking at the past. Our past is our history, and without it there is no chance in Hell that you can understand today. My entire point is that without history one has no points of reference with which to make comparisons, and without comparisons it is absolutely impossible to even begin to know if something is good, bad or if what we are looking at is even relevant. Without the past there is no measurement of the future. I get into this a lot with those fans, who for some unforsaken reason, still fail to even begin to grasp just how important some of Bowie's work actually was. if you take Low, Heroes, Lodger and compare them to what you can find on the shelves today of a record retailer it would be easy to proclaim that they are "nothing special" in terms of originality. Guess what? If you said this you would be correct for the most part. Why? Well, even though they may be of superior quality, being Bowie albums, they are not "original" by today's standards. I could show a person HUNDREDS of albums in a store today which are very similar in musical style to Low and side two of Heroes. "Ambient" music now warrants an entire section in most major retailers. That is now. Now, about 1977. I am asking you roughly how many titles do you think were available in the "ambient" section of a record store? What is your guess on how many bands were writing in this manner? The first answer is zero, and the second is a few. There was NO AMBIENT, or NEW AGE SECTION in ANY STORE. Why? Because this type of music, save for a few unknown artists, DID NOT EVEN EXIST. What were people listening to instead in 77 and 78? The answer is DISCO. So, now that we know history then tell me this. If people were listening to disco in 77 and 78, and the approach to music incorporated by Bowie during this period did NOT EXIST, then exactly how relevant were these two albums when they first appeared? If disco was the popular music of the time, then exactly how innovative were these albums when they came out compared to what people were listening to? Compared to what sold, do you feel that Bowie may have taken a bit of a "risk" by making these albums? 

Since these albums were "firsts," not by an artist, but firsts speaking in relation to THE ENTIRE CONCEPT OF WHAT MUSIC IS, they were important. 

Not just important, important enough to alter the entire course of music history, these two albums changed music forever. Did it ever occur to you that the reason we have "ambient" music a DIRECT RESULT of the work done in the seventies by Bowie, Eno, Fripp and a few others. Where would artists like Gary Numan and a dozen others be without Bowie? The answer is non existent. These albums may be nothing important in your eyes if you just look at today, forgetting history. In my opinion however, by doing so you will never truly understand just how important this era was, and the profound effect it had on the future development and progression of music as a whole. For whatever value my opinion holds, let me say that it is well worth taking the time to understand the history of the period in relation to the work that Bowie released at the time. This is imperative if one wants to understand why much of Bowie's work is so important.  If you doubt me then I will prove my point.

There was another medium David Bowie explored in 1979 which stemmed from the making of Lodger. A few other artists had "dabbled" in this medium before, but record companies were extremely reluctant to invest their money in this area. Once again, if compared to the way things are today, what Bowie did wouldn't be singled out, because like ambient music, it is now commonplace. It didn't used to be that way, however, and if you study your history you will come to an amazing discovery, and that is just how much of a contribution Bowie made in this new field. What Bowie did was the same as what he did with much of his writing, he was a pioneer, and in the years to come there would not be one band or record company that would not follow in his footsteps. That my friends, is how important this bit of history is. That should suffice I believe to adequately illustrate my point. So, what also was it that Bowie did with Lodger that made it so important? Guess. 

AladInsaNE 

More scribble to follow sometime in the future...................

	Posted 15 June 2002

	 


Part Thirty Three

I tell my kids that when I was their age, my boy is 13 and my daughter 18 by the way, oh, how rude., they do have names, Michael and Nico, I tell them I did not have a home computer. They look at me and you can just tell what they're are thinking. Why, are you crazy? How could you NOT have one. There is a look of horror as they realize that meant life without Nintendo and or the Net. No calculators  either I add. How did you do your math then is the look. No channel changers, no remote controls for anything actually. You can't mean you did it by hand, get up every time to change a channel or switch CDs? There were no CDs. They believe we had dinosaurs walking around when I was their ages. To those of you who are reading this and in your late teens, your twenties or early thirties you may not remember that there was once a world without MTV. You never consider that, do you? Why should you anyway, you grew up with it, and besides, there really is no reason to. Well, until now that is, because the history of MTV is crucial to understanding the importance of what Bowie did in 79. First of all though, do any of you know when MTV started? 

Stage was a surprise in Britain, it went to number five on the charts. Elsewhere though, Bowie's sales were either flat or declining. March of 1979 found Bowie once again in America, New York to be specific, along with him was Tony Visconti. Bowie wrote the lyrics to Lodger during this time, and together with Visconti also did the final mix to the album. Lodgers was finished. 

For those of you who still doubt the marketing abilities of Tony Defries, here is one more thing. He understood how "fickle" the "public" are, prone to blindly follow trends and easy to manipulate. "Video is the way to sell records," he stated in the early seventies, and once again he was proven right. The answer by the way is 1981, prior to that there WAS NO SUCH THING AS MTV. It is difficult, yes even for me, to imagine a world that was void of music videos because they are so prevalent now. They are EVERYWHERE you look. Even so they are a relatively "new" medium, because prior to 81 they were few and far between, and this is something that you must understand. Nobody, save a few, made them. Record companies, marketing and advertising agencies, as well as most artists saw NO VALUE in them, either as an artistic medium, or a marketing platform. It was determined they were not worth the cost. 

This point I agree is arguable, but the first foray into what could be accurately described as a "music video" was in 1967, done by the Beatles. The videos were made for Penny Lane and Strawberry Fields Forever. The Beatles themselves were the  reason the record companies invested their funds into these videos, as well as the feature films based around The Beatle's music such as Yellow Submarine, and did not do so for other artists. You see, The Beatles made incredible profits for their labels, therefore almost any expenses incurred to promote them could be justified, and this was not true of other artists. The world would not see another music video until late in 1975. This one made by the band Queen, and directed by Bruce Gowers, on a 5,000 pound budget. The video Bohemian Rhapsody earned fantastic royalties, even so, video never caught on. What caught Bowie's eye were the very few bands who tried mixing film and music in clips lasting a few minutes, Devo being one. The power of TV to sell music had long been recognized by the music industry executives, though not through the use of music videos. The first musical broadcast goes back to 1930, a performance by composer George Gershwin. The real marketing power however came from the "dance shows" such as Dick Clarke's American Bandstand, a staple for teenagers since the sixties, and Your Hit Parade. Bowie had experimented with film in the late sixties, while still managed by Kenneth Pitt. This was for a self produced special designed for TV. The film, titled  Love You Till Tuesday, consisted of visual impressions of some of his songs such as When I'm Five, Space Oddity, The Ching A Ling Song as well as a few others. There was also a mime routine included, and this is the only known film in existence showing Bowie performing mime while studying with the renowned Lindsay Kemp. It is worth seeing. 

Devo caught Bowie's attention in 1977, and in 1979 Bowie convinced the "suits" at RCA, between rounds of their ongoing battle I imagine, to underwrite the financing that would enable Bowie to produce three music videos from tracks that appeared on Lodger. How significant was this? Well, look. This was in 79, TWO YEARS BEFORE MTV EVEN EXISTED, NOBODY WAS MAKING MUSIC VIDEOS. Do you see now what a truly significant move this was on the part of Bowie and RCA once you start looking back on history. Bowie is NEVER credited for his contribution to the advent of music videos. Why? Because people don't learn their history, and this is exactly why this fact is overlooked by THE MAJORITY of Bowie fans. COMPLETELY MISSED! I hear Bowie fans constantly spouting off on the fact that they consider David Bowie to be a genius. I say to them, "What about his contribution to the medium of music videos?" The reply, "What contribution?" Yeah, right, he was only one of the founders of it. No big deal I suppose. Well, maybe to you, I thankfully happen to be a lot different though. 

Here we have Bowie once again demonstrating a powerful example of his abilities as a multi faceted artist, able to use not one, but many different mediums in order to convey his personality and thoughts to his audience. Bowie was an innovator, and one of the pioneers that actually began "rock videos," and as before the ENTIRE MUSIC INDUSTRY eventually caught on and followed his lead. This is another prime example without question of David Bowie being YEARS ahead of his time. It is also a prime example of the power of Bowie's work, and don't you EVER underestimate that fact, because it would leave you looking rather silly. Why? Well, if you think for a minute at what Bowie did in 79 with regards to video, as he did with music on Low and other pieces of his work, he literally CHANGED THE COURSE OF MODERN MUSIC FOREVER. How many others have had such an impact on music as Bowie has? I count none. 

Bowie chose David Mallet to direct all three videos. Mallet had experience from American TV, he worked on two innovative "dance music" shows in the sixties, Shindig and Hullabaloo. When Bowie hooked up with him in 79 he was the director of Kenny Everett's series, which Bowie appeared on the same year. Now, I have a serious problem at times, and that is with "credits.," ones that appear on films, albums, or anything else for that matter. Why? Well, I am just too fucking curious, that is why. See, you read a credit, maybe it says something like this for example, "Director - David Mallet, Co-Director - David Bowie."  Sorry, that is just NOT good enough for me because it is not explanatory enough. You see, I want to know EXACTLY what EACH ONE contributed to the project. In this case I have used as an example, I WANT TO KNOW EXACTLY WHAT BOWIE DID, how much, and what was it really that he contributed. If you think that I am TOO curious, well, sorry, because that is how I happen to "learn" things, and I won't ever apologize for using my brain. I know a few who should try it sometimes. It is because of this curiosity that I watched the three videos from Lodger quite a few times over the past three days. It was during this time that I started to wonder about how much input Bowie had in the making of them, because I had no idea. I did not know whose ideas were used to write the "story lines" for example, Bowie, Mallet or someone else. Who came up with the theme for the sets? Did Bowie have any input as to how the parts were acted, or filmed. As a person who attempts to understand the entire scope of Bowie's talents, these are extremely important questions to me, and ones that surprisingly I had never considered before. These questions arose only because of writing Images. 

You know me, I am relentless, and this was no exception. Nothing remains unanswered if I can help it, so away I went the other day. The "vaults" were opened, a process I now do alone, as I was sure the answer to all my questions lay somewhere inside. I do not go through my Bowie stuff anymore with anyone else around who is not a die hard, and the reason is that my girlfriend, as well as most of my friends, will no longer tolerate it. The fact is that as I go through decades of what they call "that stuff," and, I find items that I have not seen for some time, a few I forgot I even  had." The sheer "excitement" of rediscovering many of these important artefacts causes me to want to "share" their value with others. Hey, have I ever shown you this picture? See, a press release photo from 76, Slick AND Ronson together?  The reply, " I think so." Well, look. Oh, fuck, Rolling Stone, 76, Cameron Crowe interview with Bowie. I am going to read you THE WHOLE THING. It's great. Now, listen. The David Bowie Black Book. Here, I'll show you something. Page 101. There, see.? That is MY FAVOURITE picture of Bowie, look at the hair. The reply, " I have seen that. You show it to me every week." Oh, do I? Sorry.  Hey, 87 tour program. Did I tell you how much I hated that fucking tour. "Yep, two or three times a day." See this 76 program? Try and find one of these. Oh, you can get the program, but try and find the envelope they came in along with it. See, DAVID BOWIE - ISOLAR. It took me over twenty years to find one. After that show in 76 I went right past the program vendors and out the fucking door. Idiot, eh? I paid $30.00 for this one, I would have paid $500.00. "Knowing you, you would have paid a lot more if you had to," they say. How do you know? "You tell me that every day pretty much." ReallY? That much? Oh. Can you believe this, some guy on our newsgroup sent me this as a present, a 78 tour program from Australia. He just gave it to me. "I saw it." When? "Once last week, three times the previous week, and around twelve times last month alone just for starters." Hmmm? Look! "I know, a Glass Spider promotional frisbee." I showed you that? "Many times."  Ahhhh, Station To Sta.... "Japanese pressing,. Right?' Well, uh... "And you have an original on vinyl, and a Ryko, and a Ryko AU20 Remaster, and the standard RCA issue CD, and every other pressing of that album that is know to exist in the known universe, and you have six CDs and two vinyl copies of the Nassau boot because you would commit suicide if you ever lost it. I know, make sure you are buried with the AU20,  the Nassau, Rotterdam and Cleveland boots. Oh, and the 76 tour program." I told you all this already I guess. "Yeah, several million times." Well, curiosity they say killed the cat, and mine was no where in sight as the boxes were opened, in a ritual reminiscent of what one would expect to see if something priceless was handed to the unworthy. The mood was one of reverence and humility as I rummaged through countless fucking boxes, piles of magazines, newspapers, and every other known source of Bowie interviews in the hopes of finding some comment from Bowie on the making of the videos from Lodger. Finally, three o'clock in the morning, September 1980, New Musical Express. The search had ended. 

It isn't much, but it is enough. I had no idea, as I said, to the extent of Bowie's contribution to these videos, or if everything was left in fact to David Mallet. What I read was sufficient enough to cause me to never look at one particular video the same way again, I now have  a much greater respect for it after what I learned.  The role that David Bowie had in the making of the videos on Lodger seems to me now to have been a lot larger than I had anticipated. It seems that Mallet's expertise was needed basically from a technical perspective, in order to be able to put BOWIE'S IDEAS on to film. I am getting a little ahead of myself here, but I want to bring this up now. This interview reveals little about Bowie's input on the Lodger videos, except that the ideas were Bowie's, and  Mallet was left in charge of how to express what Bowie wanted to on video. What really got my attention however was when Bowie went on to talk about his work with Mallet on the Ashes To Ashes video, and it is this video that I will never look at the same way again. It has always been my favourite Bowie video in the first place, but truthfully I never really gave Bowie the credit he personally deserves for it. I was under the impression, for some unknown reason, that the story line, direction, and the film sequences were probably the work of many, and Bowie's role a lesser one. I could not have been more mistaken, and I will let Bowie explain. Here is an except from that interview for you that I have taken from the New Musical Express. The words are David Bowie's, so here you go. "The three video's that were done for Lodger were co-directions inasmuch as I gave David (Mallet) complete control over what I wanted to put in there. But this one (speaking about the Ashes To Ashes video) I story - boarded myself, actually drew it frame for frame. He edited it exactly as I wanted it and has allowed me to say publicly that it was my first direction. I've always wanted to direct and this is a good place to start - to get some money from a record company and then go away and sort of play with it." I admit that even though I think that I am quite aware of David Bowie's abilities, I was surprised when I read this. It is fascinating to me how a video of this calibre, which I consider one of the best music videos ever made by any artist, was taken from a CONCEPT, to a SCRIPT, and then ACTED and DIRECTED in, and after to a FINAL EDIT BY BOWIE HIMSELF, and this was his FIRST ATTEMPT. All I can say is MORE PLEASE. 

I hate music videos. I hate MTV, and I hate all music video channels. MTV, MINDLESS AND TOTALLY VOID is what it should stand for. It is a fucking insult to anyone who has an ounce of intelligence. Music TV my ass, it DESTROYED MUSIC. It is a BLIGHT, a PLAGUE, and an INSULT to art. MTV is for the brain dead where art and intelligence are concerned, oh, and this IS NOT MY OPINION either. Prove it? My pleasure. When it comes to studying any art form there is one common perception that must be shared by everyone, regardless. What is that? INTERPRETATION. This applies to music, painting, sculpture, architecture, dance, and any other form of artistic expression. What is created by an artist has a meaning, it is an expression, a form of communication. Art is designed to cause a reaction by evoking EMOTION in those who view it. Art is not only viewed, but FELT as well, that is if it is worth anything. Listen to Warszawa. What does it mean to you? In all probability each person gets a different experience listening to it. I have experienced a wide variety of different emotions from the same piece of music. One of the greatest joys a person can get from the appreciation of music is the fact that through individual interpretation music can become personal. The best way to illustrate this is to ask you about your own personal experiences with music.  Mostly all of you have certain pieces of music that are "deeply personal" to you in some way or another. The ones I am referring to are those that made an emotional impression on you so deep that they really mean something to you. Sometimes we may hear what an artist writes and then say to ourselves, " What that song says is EXACTLY how I FEEL, I could have written that myself. He understands things the way I do." Music can often help get us through the "rough spots" we experience in life. It can bring joy if it reminds us of something good, because we associate it with certain experiences or moments in our lives. Likewise, it can bring us sorrow, even pain.. 

I ask you this simple question. Why can a piece of music be deeply personal to you, and the same piece mean nothing special to me? The answer is interpretation, and because we are each different as people, we interpret art in our "OWN" unique and individual way. Now, lets use Teenage Wildlife here, just because I really like it. Hear that Buffer if you are reading this? To me this song invokes feelings of a loss of innocence as one matures from adolescence into adulthood. When we are younger we have hopes in a world that looks bright with prospects, adventure. It is something to seize, to leave our stamp on. Unfortunately, reality sets in, you find yourself in a jungle, and it is every man for himself. Instead of prospects, the goal is survival. The world you discover is not what you thought, it is mean. To you it may have been what was playing in your car when you picked up a girl on a date that you didn't think would go out with you. You got up the nerve, and expecting a rejection, you asked and she agreed to go out with you. What's more, it really worked out, you stayed together. Every time you hear Teenage Wildlife it reminds you of the time she got into your car, and how happy and terrified you were at the same time. If you are Buffer, a friend of mine, when you hear Teenage Wildlife then you turn off your CD player and go and  bitch and complain on the news group about how much you loathe that song, only to have me tell you that you are quite mental. Now, suppose THE FIRST TIME you heard Teenage Wildlife was on TV when you saw the video for it. This is all hypothetical of course. The video depicted a high school, and a group of rather "straight" kids, more the "art" type who would pursue things with an intellectual flavour, rather than weapons. This group is being relentlessly harassed by another group in the school who harbour a vendetta against these people, and who are determined to lay something of a "shit kicking" on them, if they can get them in an isolated area. The video has depicted a cat and mouse game between these two groups from the beginning, however the ones "hunted" find an escape route every time they seem to be cornered. One day however one of the boys stays behind after school, it is late and the building is almost deserted, sitting at a desk in a room alone he glances up at the window in the door. It is there he sees a face, the face of one who has been chasing him for so long.  This happens as you hear the line, "What shall I do? They wait for me in the hallway." Then he realizes that he is trapped. "They move in numbers, they've got me in a corner. I feel like a group of one. Oh, no. They can't do this to me. I'm not some piece of Teenage Wildlife." The scenes in the video play out as the intended victim, "Howls like a wolf in a trap," only to see his assailants enter through the now broken door. The first hand to strike him causes him to, "Fall to the ground like a leaf from a tree," catching a glimpse out the window on the way down, " Looks outside at that vast blue sky." Now, I need not progress any further with a story line here, you get the idea. 

There are of course many different ways in which we can gain exposure to a piece of music for the first  time. However, unlike before, the way a piece is  interpreted now depends not only on our own imaginations, but is controlled to a large extent by the medium that brought us the music. The "freedom" of thought which allows each person to interpret what they hear in their own unique and individual way, is also restricted to a great extent by the way music is delivered to us these days. I have fabricated this Teenage Wildlife video "story line" for a reason, I want to illustrate a point about two mediums most commonly used to broadcast music, and their effects as to the way we receive it.  You have never heard Teenage Wildlife. Your first exposure to the song comes one night while you are sitting at home watching MTV or some other program with an identical format. You happen to like what you hear, how couldn't you, and so you pay close attention to the video that is playing. The song happens to come up in conversation one day, and the person you are talking to asks you what is the song about. What is you answer? The person who asked will be given by you no doubt, a brief synopsis of what you saw in the video. The person who asked will now know that the David Bowie song Teenage Wildlife is about a conflict between two different groups of teenagers. You know this because that is what you were "told" it was about. 

There is no comparison. You are either listening to the radio, at a friend's house or you just purchased Scary Monsters and this is you first listen. Robert Fripp's guitar grabs you and holds you while Bowie asks, "How come you only want tomorrow?"  "Wow," you think. Several minutes later Bowie declares, "Each to his own,"  the instrumental tracks overlaid with stunning falsettos of "WILD" fade and the song ends. You may listen again. You may listen many times, you may read the lyrics. What is this song about? The answer is what makes the music we adore "personal" to each one of us. It is entirely up to you what it is about. You can defend music videos and MTV all you want, I could care less, but you will never convince me that MTV has not damaged music and those who watch it. To those like me who are disciplined to use video shows for finding  "information," tours, new releases and news, then it is relatively safe. I pity those however who are on a steady diet of MTV because you are exposing yourself to something which causes atrophy of the mind, and this is dangerous. Unfortunately it isn't difficult to find people who have been stricken with this avoidable condition, if you just look around you, they are everywhere. 

What MTV has basically done is robbed your thoughts. It has also stolen the adventures that lead to wonderful new discoveries when we listen to something. How? Well, you don't think for the simple reason that you do not have to,  MTV has removed every reason to use your mind because it TELLS you what to think. The songs which appear on MTV are exactly about what the video TELLS YOU THEY ARE ABOUT. What is terrifying to me is that the messages conveyed in ninety nine percent of these "works of art on celluloid," rates as some of the most mindless drivel that I have ever encountered. I am at a loss as to how people can watch this shit day after day. Really at a loss. Sex.  Women.. Yep, tits, ass, beautiful hair, full lips and all dressed up the same. The skill that costume designers must posses in the music video industry is how to get the least amount of clothes on a women so that all of her "attributes" are visible, yet cover enough so that the video does not get rated as pornographic and banned. The women's "equal rights" organizations are hypocrites because they are "selective" in who they target. The magazines like Playboy, Penthouse and Hustler, as well as companies and advertising agencies who feature scantily clad females in their publications and advertising campaigns all come under attack. Does the music video industry? No. Why is that, because as far as I can determine they are the WORST offenders of portraying women as "objects." Most women in these videos have probably been "manufactured" for the most part by the Dow Chemical Company who manufacturer 44 D's, and are walking testimonials to the things that can be accomplished by the practitioners of plastic surgery. The bodies of these women are displayed in such a fashion so that they are viewed as "toys for boys," and not as that of a "person."  In an attempt to further enhance the image of these women as "toys," they are in most cases portrayed as having only enough of a brain to maintain life support. These "women," when adorned with the most minimum amount of fabric legally allowed radiate one message only. The message is, "I bet you want to fuck me," 

Getting people interested in fucking something is an example of a brilliant marketing strategy used by the record labels, who are responsible for these videos. It isn't just the women. Have you noticed that most front men for bands these days are "cute." I have. If not, then make up and wardrobe try their darndest to "fix" the problem. There is a reason for that as well, it is so they also send a message. The message? Well, it's, "I bet you want to fuck me." First, I want to make it perfectly clear that I have no information at all from any research or studies that have been done by the advertising industry to support what I am going to say. It is my opinion and I base it on what I feel is common sense. I believe that the average person will devote much of their time and, pay close attention to things that they want to fuck. I also believe that the average person will allot a sizeable amount of their available cash to be used to purchase icons of things they want to fuck, if for some reason they are unable to get their hands on it.  You see, the sex drive of teenagers and those in their twenties, the segment of the population targeted by MTV, will make them tuned in to these videos if they "like" what they see. In an effort to "get close" to the things they like, people will spend large amounts of money on icons which resemble these things, such as records, pictures, posters, videos and magazines. Record labels for The Beatles, Bay City Rollers, Backstreet Boys, Jennifer Lopez, Britney Spears, Spice Girls, and thousands more have used sex to sell the work of the artists they have under contract. Again, I do not get it. How can one watch this stuff for extended periods of time on a consistent bases. Boy loves girl, girl loves boy, girl gets boy, boy gets girl, boy leaves girl, girl leaves boy, girl cheats on boy, boy cheats on girl, girl misses boy, boy misses girl. On, and on and on it goes, the same redundant stories over and over again, and the only difference between them is that the cute boys and half naked mindless women are rotated for each video. Doesn't this endless repetition become "tiring" after awhile? My exposure to these video stations is not governed by choice, but more because my mind can only take so much abuse. 

The freedom of thought is the greatest tool an individual possesses because it allows a person to "go anywhere."  The progress made by scientists, inventions, medical breakthroughs, a better understanding of the universe and space exploration itself are all made possible by one thing, free thinking. Music, dance, theater, film, literature all have their roots in the same place, the realm of free thought. Free thought is the ability which allows us the gift to interpret music and the arts and it is decimated by MTV. Now, hear me out on this. You may think that I am over reacting to the effects that MTV has on people by destroying free thinking. Let me tell you that you would be quite correct, if it was ONLY MTV, but unfortunately this is not the case at all, and far from it as a matter of fact. There are many powerful things that we are exposed to on a daily basis which are just as bad, and in many in some cases much worse, than MTV. If you add up all of these things which have a detrimental effect on an individual's ability, or  their freedom to "stretch" out their imaginations, then you have a very serious problem. I am of the belief that this problem is not one that we are heading for, but one we already have. I believe also that the gravity of this problem is not benign, or one that is temporary when left unaddressed. My opinion is that instead this problem is an acute one and it is getting progressively more critical because for some reason it does not appear to be recognized as a problem in our society. What terrifies me however, is that I think this problem  has been recognized, and as a severe one, yet the response has been to simply ignore it. If anyone wonders why this is such a concern to me, and should be to most, is the fact that with the loss of free thinking eventually comes the loss of "individuality," and when these two are lost it means the demise, and eventual end of creativity. I do not believe that I have to go into the ramifications that a loss of creativity would have on society as a whole. The problem has already manifest itself quite clearly I believe in the arts, as I do not believe we have anything even close to the amount of quality output from artists compared to twenty years ago. There isn't much "new" anymore, in any area, yet whole civilizations used to be built with the arts as their centerpiece. Bowie quipped in an interview I have from 1981 saying, "Art is dead, so what the Hell can we do about it anyway." I will not bother to explore the things that I am convinced have deeply harmed free thinking in our society as I could write a book about them, and truthfully I would really like to do that one day. 

I greatly admire the artists who are able to successfully merge their music with film or video. The art of showing a collage of images in conjunction to music stimulates both the visual and audio senses, and can result in a very powerful emotional experience for the viewer. Now, I can hear some of you shouting that I am a hypocrite, accusing me of self contradiction because earlier I said that I basically loathed most music videos. Well, I do. What I am referring to are visual images that are used to create sensations while still leaving room for individual interpretation. Where as music videos tell you what to think by dictating a story, these "films" only add to the experience of individual interpretation by adding a visual experience. What is wonderful is that in most instances the visual images presented ARE ALSO open to individual interpretation. There are so few artists who do this so it is not easy to find names, but let me try. Okay, now. Hmmmmm? Let me see.  Ummmm. There, David Bowie, that's one. Have you seen the Heroes video? 

AlaDINsaNE 
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An Unusual Part Thirty Four

Bowie's videos are superior to most others for an interesting reason, and that is for what they DO NOT have in them, scantily clad bimbos. Bowie does not rely on SEX in his videos to sell his work, instead he relies on his creative talents as an artist to attract an audience. While most of the videos made to promote artists are aimed directly at the groin, Bowie's are aimed at the mind. This is probably one of the reasons his work does not break any sales records, but it speaks volumes for his INTEGRITY as an ARTIST. I remember exactly when it was that I saw the video for Heroes for the first time. I was downstairs in our house watching some show, and my parents came down and said that they wanted the TV in a few minutes in order to watch a program. I asked them what they wanted to see, and they said the Bing Crosby Special. I said to them, "Great. It's on this channel. I'm just waiting for it to come on." My parents were accustomed to the Santa Monica 72 bootleg, music from Yes, Supertramp, Genesis, Pink Floyd and other similar artists emanating from my bedroom, not Bing Crosby. They both looked at me like I was on drugs or something, I was, but they couldn't tell. Fuck Bing, the TV Guide said Bowie was a guest on the show. I must add here that as far as the drugs go, well, they were mandatory. You see, I had enough common sense to know that in all probability The Bing Crosby Christmas Special of 1978 would probably not feature Bowie near the beginning, I would have to wait anywhere from thirty, forty and possibly more than forty five minutes until he appeared. Do you understand what this meant? Endurance. I was not going to leave the TV and risk having my parents call me when Bowie came on, because they may forget, or remember halfway through his part. This meant that I would be required to endure the suffering associated with wholesome entertainment for the entire family. It was fucking horrid, awful, putrid, disgusting, vile and really bad on top of that. Physically I am not big, I do not go out and pick fights, and I can run.. Well, I can run faster scared than they can mad, put it that way. I am tenacious however, some would call it stubborn or obstinate. I will not give up, or give in, and in that sense I will stand up to anybody. I am tougher than Bing Crosby, and I had to be to weather what I did, and they threw everything they could at me. 

I was assaulted by Bing personally, he sang several Christmas tunes. He doesn't fight fair, you are not supposed to "gang up" on a person in a fight, it should be just you and your opponent. I may be mistaken because I was severely traumatized by this experience but, I think Andy Williams took a few shots at me as well. His singing did not hurt as much as Bing's though. This however, I know for sure. He came at me a couple of times with his entire dysfunction family, wife, kids, cousins, you name it.  I am not joking about the dysfunctional part either, one of his kids wrote a book that implied that sharp sticks inserted with a sledge hammer in the area of your body you sit on was much more preferable than having Bing as a father. Although he always looked and acted like a doting father in public, they never got to see some of his "moves" he used at home. It appears. he had a pretty good "right." They all sat on a couple of couches arranged around a perfectly decorated plastic Christmas tree complete with fake presents underneath. There was also a lovely fake brick fireplace with a fake fire burning inside. I think Williams was there as well. First of all they all sang some Christmas Carols, like all families do at Christmas when they get together for the holidays and spend time enjoying each other's company in their fake houses. They sit around  their plastic trees decorated by set designers from Hollywood. The winter chills and howling winds from a twenty eight degree California winter are kept a bay by the warmth given off by the fake flames in a fake fireplace. I was still reeling from the singing when I got blind sided. Bing demonstrated that he would stop at nothing, no matter how dirty it was, to try to make me run away to puke. He grabbed one of his nephews I think it was, the kid was around five or so. Instead of slapping him silly about the head, like he would at home, he plopped the kid on his knee and started reminiscing about Christmases gone by. Intermingled with this soliloquy of misery were examples of old fashioned family values. The beauty of the words recited by Bing were obviously scripted by a few of the best television drama writers in Hollywood, they probably work on the afternoon Soap Operas. The reason I believe this is because the sentimental warmth that was acted out by Bing was so good you could just see tears welling up in those who were tuned in. The real punch though, excuse the pun, was delivered at the end when Bing gave his advice on the importance of the family, and how much you need those who you love. I guess that is especially true, and Bing should know. I guess if you have an important fight coming up and need some practice, family members can be very important. I'm sure many families sit and talk about the "good" times on Christmas Eve while waiting for the morning when they can all open their beautifully wrapped empty boxes. My parents never moved, I thought at times that these sugar coated lies disguised as sentimental values would be too much even for them to swallow, and they would turn the channel to watch something better, like a channel where the station was off the air. Sometimes they hummed along. I almost didn't make it, I needed those drugs. 

There was a synthesized doorbell sound.  Bing went to answer the door pretending that he didn't expect to have the person who signed a lengthy worded legal contract prepared by high priced studio lawyers, and who received a fee after his lawyers examine the contract to make sure that he was being treated fairly, drop by. I couldn't believe Bowie went on this show. In reality I couldn't believe Bing would ALLOW him on this show. It doesn't matter though, he was there. I can't begin to explain the feeling I had as I watched Bowie upstage Bing when they sang their duet of Peace On Earth and The Little Drummer Boy. It was the most exhilarating wave of malicious delight I have ever had that swept over me. Bowie's voice made Crosby look ridiculous.  Bowie voice was marvellous, powerful, he was all over the scale, adding falsettos that were captivating in their beauty. Bing Crosby on the other hand sounded like a skinned cat who had been doused in turpentine, set on fire, and stuffed between two mattresses held together by duct tape. My parents hummed along with Bing. 

It was the last thing I ever expected, and even if I did there is no way one could prepare themselves for the experience of seeing it for the first time. I didn't even know there was a video made for Heroes, very few artists made any videos, and they were rarely shown on TV. Now, if you would have ever told me that I would see a non mainstream David Bowie appear on a Bing Crosby Christmas special, sing a duet with Bing and then see a performance of Heroes, I would have strongly suggested that you go and seek help immediately, because there is obviously something seriously wrong with you and it should not go untreated. I remember thinking, "Holy fuck," as the first few notes of Heroes drifted out of the single billionth of an inch mono speaker we had on our 16" RCA colour TV. Disbelief. It was akin to state of denial to what I was hearing that I first felt, or it could be the drugs. Indifference was my parents reaction. To tell you the truth this shocked me. You see, while not thinking they bought me a stereo for my room that I asked or as a gift. It was not the best one you could purchase but you could easily hear it across the street most days. Heroes was one of the few Bowie songs that I took to immediately, it was love at first listen, and I played it a lot. I do mean A LOT. I recall sitting there in amazement as to how these two people who live in the same house, could not recognize what they were hearing after being exposed to it recently for most of the hours that they were awake. Nothing. 

The first image of Bowie on the screen sent cold shivers up and down my spine. I got a rush. I remember cursing that there was no way to record this, and wondering if the day will ever come when you could record things from the TV. I concluded it would never happen. Even though Bowie was sporting normal coloured  close cropped hair and wearing regular clothing, he still looked "different," an outsider. I think it had a lot to do with his eyes, you can see them really well in the video, they made him look, well, alien. As far as the video goes, it was the lighting that "did it." It was brilliant. To anyone who missed the Station To Station tour this video is a stunning example of what can be accomplished  using only white light. The way the lighting was situated behind Bowie gave an eerie effect, especially the way it cast Bowie's shadow. Bowie, I feel, could not have played the role better and the combination of him in that setting was spectacular in the least. Whereas the music videos rely on a series of scenes based around a written "story line" to convey the meaning of a song, Bowie used only "images." It certainly isn't difficult when you compare the video of Heroes to something from MTV to discern what constitutes art. Does Heroes tell a story? Well, no, but what it does do is send a message, but you are not TOLD what the message is. The true genius behind this video is that it is designed to be felt "EMOTIONALLY" by the viewer. The way it was filmed does a magnificent job of creating a feeling of starkness, cold and bleak, yet there seems to be an underlying warmth that is difficult to explain. These are my feelings about it anyway. Your feelings may differ, and this point is crucial. You see, even with the presentation of a visual image viewed in conjunction with the music, each person is still free to interpret the music and the images the way they want. The video does not TELL you what to think, instead it invites another "emotional" response, as art should. 

Bowie, Peter Gabriel and a few others should be commended for their refusal to allow their music to be associated with mediocre repetitive story lines for the brainless. They should be complimented for realizing that sex already gets enough coverage in our society, without any further contributions from them, and therefore they choose to make video which is aimed at a different head. It is a pleasure to view something that is treated as an extension of one's art, rather than a commercial to sell a product. I know that I have different feelings for Heroes when I hear it in the 78 the video, and then hear it in a Microsoft commercial. One conjures up feelings of joy, and the other methods of committing first degree murder. That is one thing that Bowie has always done for me with his work, and that is brought out some powerful emotions. The standard that Bowie would establish for his videos was set right from the beginning, and it was a very high one. It is always noticeable in Bowie's videos that a great deal of thought went into each one, and this I feel remains true. I am not just saying this, because it is Bowie, but his videos are in almost every case, "something that you haven't seen before.," and in that regard set themselves in a much higher class compared to most others. May I go as far as to say that most are in a class by themselves? The three that came off of Lodger were no exception, even more so when you consider the year that they were made.  DJ is overlooked in my opinion.  I believe that I may look at that song in quite a different manner than most fans do, as I have never heard anyone make a similar statement regarding this track. I see parts of it as a "historical archive," a brilliantly written comment which truly captures the period when it was written. 

Those of you who are of the same generation as I am,  the ones favoured by Almighty God because we were in our teens in the seventies, will be able to identify easily with this. The music that was normally on the radio could be described as "decent," for the most part, or fucking incredible if you compare it to now. It just occurred to me that you never hear anyone mention what station they listened to the most. I would be very interested to know what people who grew up in that era thought of the DJ's, compared to now. My interest comes only from the fact that I have never heard anyone's comments, or opinions, on that subject. CHOM FM in Montreal was one fucking great station to listen to. Now I am going to freely admit that the station itself may be a bit over rated by me,  because the music they played was decent enough that you could easily listen to CHOM all day and not get fed up with it.  Now that I come to think about it,  EVEN the now dreaded AM radio stations that have their drive by shooting, er, sorry, I mean drive home at five specials, were okay to listen to. Better than  okay, actually.  I remember Brown Sugar, Layla, Diamond Dogs., Take A Walk On The Wild Side, Round About, Games Without Frontiers, In The Court Of The Crimson King, Karn Evil Nine, Dream On, Funeral For A Friend, One Of These Days, Hide In Your Shell, Can't Get It Out Of My Head,  Aqualung, Let It Be, Won't Get Fooled Again, I Don't Like Mondays, Born To Run, My Sweet Lord, Psycho Killer, Band On The Run,  #9 Dream, Lola and Wild World all getting lots of airplay on AM radio. What the fuck happened, anybody know? I remember getting up one morning and hearing all of Echoes, which is over twenty minutes in length. I remember them playing ENTIRE ALBUMS at times UNINTERRUPTED, and I mean uninterrupted. No breaks, no commercial and no fucking commentary. HEY! THAT'S IT!  FINALLY. I could never quite put my finger on it. One of the major things that irritates me about the radio these days. It's the commentary. 

The DJ's and other radio personalities never fucking shut up. They each seem to  have a total  of one sentence that starts when they first get on the air, and ends the day they retire. This may be a desirable thing to have if you  host a talk show that is so bad that you have been turned down by every person who you invited on as your guest. This includes all those dead people, those who have not been born yet,  the people in the costumes you couldn't coax off the pages of Marvel Comics and the mannequin that kicked the shit out of you. You could not even get Celine Dione. This is the person who decided to take a two year hiatus and drop out of public view so her and her husband could make a tax deduction. Here's some interesting trivia. It was actually Celine Diones husband who was the one to first discover her seemingly never ending swamp, er, sorry, I meant to say pool, of talent. He was not her husband yet, when this happened, he was still just their sixty two year old neighbour, named Rene. Now, Rene owned his own very unique, and successful business, at one time  that catered to  the more affluent members of society. His is a real rags to riches, then back to rags then to dressing up to look like Mark Anthony. This style of dress was necessary so he would look the part when his wife, dressed as Cleopatra, so they could be elevated and carried on platforms by people dressed as slaves over the heads of their invited guests and into an area made to resemble part of Egypt. This was all a perfectly crafted demonstration of just how much of a self serving display of arrogant posturing that you can get away with if you have money, and guests with strong stomachs, who can contain their laughter  as they watch you HUMBLY renew your sacred wedding vows. 

Rene came from a relatively poor family, they were all GOLD DIGGERS, in other words they were gold miners. Now, although both parents worked, because of the size of the family they were unable to put any of their one children through school, or assist any of him financially. One day however, a ray of good fortune fell on Rene, he found some money, and a sizeable amount of money it was too. He found it actually in what looked to him like a lost, or a discarded, woman's purse. It was quite peculiar how he found it. As it happened he was just waiting at a bus stop, he wasn't looking at anything in particular when the corner of his eye just "caught" it.  Rene thought to himself that it as fortunate he found it, and not someone else, because the brown purse was just hanging there, draped over the shoulder of a blond girl, who was wearing what he thought to be rather thick sun glasses. He rationalized that a purse hanging like that was bound to be taken by someone before long, so he decided not to leave it for some "junkie" to find.. He thought, as he bolted across a nicely manicured lawn and through a freshly trimmed hedge, that the girl's dog, who was in some "funny" contraption with a big wooden handle on it, may pursue him as he fled.  That however, did not happen, the girl's seeing eye dog remained firm. Rene had the luck of the Irish when it came to finding things, he would just stumble on to them. He found a car once, in the street of all places. He found that there were many people who just left stuff they didn't want laying around all over their houses .

With the six hundred and forty two dollars from his lucky find, Rene opened the business he had always dreamed of, since he was eleven, and mixed cocaine with Vick's cherry favoured cough syrup with codeine, three Tylenol #3's wrapped in a Kraft processed cheese slice,  one hit of double purple micro dot, two hits of something they told him was either mescaline or worm pills for the cat, two nice lung fulls of Pam Cooking Spray and he was drunk on either Gelco Radiator Fluid, vodka, or Hugo Boss Cologne, he can't recall which.  It took awhile for the idea to catch on, giving people's pet fish swimming lessons, but it did, especially among the wealthy. Many would just drop the fish off on the way when they were taking the family dog in for its  "counselling" appointment with the animal psychologist.  Rene was making a small fortune when it happened, he had sixty six outlets, and was offering home based lessons at a premium price, and then out of nowhere came the blow, one which he never anticipated. In two separate incidences in the same week, two of Rene's students died , the coroner's inquest determined that they had both drowned accidentally. Both of the resulting lawsuits were successful, and if he had the proper amount of insurance coverage he would have been fine, but this lesson came too late,  everything he had was seized, and then sold with all of the proceeds going to the families of the victims. This part is the real tragedy. You see, Rene  by this time Rene had built up a rather well known reputation for himself as a philanthropist.  He would often go to Las Vegas and give women he only met once, out of court cash settlements. 

Rene recalls with a great deal of warmth in his voice that he remembers he was in sitting in the back yard, wearing his favourite under shirt along with his lime green thong bathing suit,  and celebrating his 66th birthday, along with some friends. He remembers thinking it rather odd that fourteen year old Celine was sitting with her feet on the trunk of her parents silver Chevrolet Impala, that was a favourite target of the repo man, who was so far unsuccessful.. This was of course before Celine's father "set the bitch on fire," so no one would have it. No one knows, even to this day, what prompted Celine's father to take off in that car, without warning, and like a bat out of Hell with his daughter still outside.. Remember the "old" cars? The engines, 350's, 427's, V8's, slant 6 and no aluminium, big metal blocks, some with four barrel carbs. Cars were METAL then, not fibreglass, plastic, recycled tin cans and aluminium foil. You never see polished chrome anymore, some of those grills were literally works of art. Then there was the room in them, you could lay down in the back seat to  sleep. I always found it fascinating how the rear seats in those older cars could hold four people easily on weekdays, yet only two on weekends. It's a mystery. They had big trunks too, which in  this case is lucky, because Celine, by some miracle, managed to remain on the trunk, but still oblivious to her father as the car accelerated to what Rene estimated to be around forty miles an hour.  Celine did great, and she would have made it if the speed bump that her father did not slow down for, or try to avoid, wasn't there. Every eye witness said the same, it was not her fault, from what they saw it was everyone's unanimous opinion that there was no one would have made it. Her body went straight up and to the right as it departed from the trunk of the vehicle. On the way up she did  an almost picture perfect two and a half, the only thing was her toes were not quite together.  She got remarkable height, but it seems that the layout she did as the upward acceleration diminished, was sloppy at best.  There was a desperate lack of body control, limbs flailing everywhere and grasping at nothing but air. This was all highlighted by a scream that Rene could not help but notice. It started at about middle scale with just a vocal noise. Now, although it did sound desperate, kind of void of any hope, surprisingly, it was not the least bit erratic, or out of key. It was not what one could describe as "powerful,"  but the sustain of the note Celine demonstrated just before the word help, worked really well. The transfer of her body from the layout position into the half twist as she reached the summit, was much smoother, but her arms were not tucked in enough. For the vocal co-ordination however, she gets full marks, it was the best that anyone has ever seen,  before or since. The word "help" was beautifully synchronized. The beginning of it was audible at the lower end of the scale, and at the very second that her upward motion had ceased, when she was literally suspended in space for a tenth of a second.  Now, at the precise moment when half of her body was still partially laid out, and the other half rotating, and the realization comes that the journey has not yet ended,  there is still half to go, her voice rose to a falsetto HALFWAY THROUGH A NOTE. I did not believe this, and I still have difficulty with it, but everyone who was there swears it happened.  Right in the middle of the word "help," she starts improvising, adding "AAhhhh's."  After the half twist though it was reported that her moves were not recognizable any more, she seemed to lose her sense of perception, and not knowing up from down anymore caused a serious loss of body control. On the other hand though, the vocals were stunning, she held notes for periods of time that were breath taking, she was hitting and holding vast ranges of high notes, as well as low notes,  intermingling  lyrics with known sounds, and ones that came from her own personal style. She kept going too, giving it all she had  until she hit the ground a slid partially under a bush. Everyone said that her voice was so beautiful and captivating, they did not want it to end and they all wished that she had fallen a lot farther. 

Rene knew right away he had seen a falling star, this girl could sing, and not just well. The question of her becoming a star was not if, but when. As Celine lay there Rene started adding up what her talent could bring  to him every year,  he never said what it could bring him, but I am sure he meant happiness and joy. Rene realized that he had a situation on his hands similar to the other treasures he "found."  As he looked at her bruised body partially covered by vegetation, he noticed that there were thorns on some of the branches by where she was laying. He looked at his hands before he attempted to grab her by the waist to get her out. Always thinking of people first, Rene was determined that there would not be any more injuries today, noticing that he didn't have a mark on himself, he tenderly pulled Celine out by her ankles, after putting on a pair of gardener's gloves of course that some one handed him,  and as he picked her up she half woke up to see her Knight In Shining  Armour. Celine claims that she was fine after the accident because, as she says, "the asphalt broke her fall." I think these statements indicate something else. 

Rene brought Celine the short distance to his house, he wanted her to sit for a few minutes to rest. Not being used to someone fawning over her, her gratitude was sincere when she thanked Rene after biting into the sardine, peanut butter, cheese and turnip sandwich he made her. Nobody really took much interest in her at home to really sit down and talk to her. It was difficult for her growing up without two parents. Her mother was killed in a freak airplane accident when Celine was nine. Although they never learned all off the details during the six month inquiry that was done by the FAA, they do know this much. It was definitely a commercial aircraft, but they refused to reveal which airline operated it, sighting that it was not "need to know" information. The cause of the tragedy was the result of "human" error, and not due to any mechanical failure. It was determined that it was an unsecured cap was the sole cause of the accident. It was further ruled by the panel of aviation experts that a "determining factor," was the altitude of the aircraft at the time  of the mishap.  It was through the simple failure to properly close, secure and lock a cap by one, or more, of the Pump And  Drain Engineers on the Sanitation Crew, which allowed the contents of the airplane's lavatory to escape from the containment, tank and become separated from the aircraft.  Had the plane been at a lower altitude at the time, Mrs. Dion would have become "contaminated," by the "mixture," however not seriously injured. It was  because the plane was at an altitude determined to be 33,000 feet at the time, the "mixture" froze on the way down. Mrs. Dion had no way of surviving the impact when it struck her while she was out in the back yard beating the family dog for pissing in the pot of Irish Stew she was preparing for dinner. Celine was close to her mother before the Lord saw fit to "call her home," and the void left in her life was never filled. Her father was a hard working man, and therefore not around very much. His daytime job was counting grass seed at  the local factory to make sure each bag was filled according to company specifications before being shipped off to the retailers. He had been at this job for only a short time, after losing his prestigious position with his former employer, due to a medical condition. 

He had managed, out of fear of what others would think, to keep his severe dyslexia hidden from everyone, including his parents, since childhood. It was due to this condition that he firmly believed that the bid red octagon shaped sign said "POTS," and not "STOP." This is the only reason he did not even slow down as his Ice Cream Truck proceeded through it, and he became an uninvited participant in the Pride Of The City annual parade about a quarter way through. The newspaper the following day called it a "miracle" that the guy who makes animals out of balloons for kids was not killed, or seriously injured, after he flew over the heads of those who were lined up at the side to watch the parade, and after doing what the paper described as "several decent bounces," landing between a fire hydrant and a parking meter. While defending himself, unsuccessfully, in Traffic Court, the truth about his condition was revealed and he lost his drivers licence, and therefore his job as well. He lost his private pilots licence and his qualifications as a Federally Licensed Proof Reader, sometimes working on a part time basis for the Government of Canadian ensuring that the spelling was correct on the schematic diagrams of the safety systems on the CANDU Nuclear Reactors which are responsible for preventing a meltdown. The loss of his job driving the ice cream truck was devastating on him, as it took his pride away. It wasn't only the fact that he worked for the company a little over twenty six years, but also what he accomplished while there. In his more sentimental moments he would recant the story of how he worked his way up from pushing a cart in the park, to driving the "FLAGSHIP" of the company's fleet. He would tell you how he worked the stadiums, football, baseball and the hockey arenas too. He would tell you a about the parts of the big games he managed to see, or concerts, when he wasn't bent down over his ice chest. 

He was a gentleman, a shy sort of man, and he never boasted about himself. This is the only reason he rarely told anyone the fact that he once held the World Record for pitching an ice cream sandwich, and he came second in the popsicle division. The participants were judged not only on distance, but accuracy, he would always add. On  a rare occasion  a visitor to the family's home may be show the den, it was here where the walls were adorned with the various awards he won over the years, and the shelves were lined end to end with trophies. If you named it you can bet he won it.  The  amount of sales achievement awards were unbelievable, every flavour of popsicle, and any type of bar, you could name was there, along with all the Vendor Of The Month, and Vendor Of The Year plaques. His modesty prevented him from telling you that he had a shit load more in boxes in the garage. Ironically there were a few plaques in recognition of his "accident free years." These were of course  all previous to his summary convictions of dangerous driving, failing to yield,  obtaining a state licence under fraudulent pretences, three counts of uttering a false statement,  submitting a false document, forging a document and wilfully supplying or giving information you know to be false or misleading  to a state agency. 

His modesty, which prevented him from telling his guests that he had shit load more awards in boxes in the garage, is the same reason very few heard of the world record for tossing an ice cream sandwich the furthest, with accuracy. The only time you would hear it was when he was piss drunk on his favourite, Benny's Better Chardonnay , red wine, usually discounted, or when he was painting the inside of the house and he got wasted from inhaling the solvent. He never talked about the things he did to help others, or things he was rewarded for. The stories that were told about him, and circulated by word of mouth in the lunchroom or toilet, were stuff of legends. He once pushed his cart for six hours with TWO FLAT TIRES, rather than quit.  The real testament to him was when the refrigeration unit failed on another driver's truck on what turned out to be the hottest day of the year, All attempts by the other driver failed, and he was certain he was going to lose the entire load,. All of the older drivers recall the frantic pleas for help as the driver watched the thermostat rising, -20, -18, -10. Dion was approaching the most lucrative spot in town, a twelve building state owned housing complex on welfare day. Even with the knowledge of huge commissions, they usually bought Drumsticks and up,  Dion turned his vehicle around and rushed to the other drivers aid. Now, along the way he was pulled over for speeding, and after making the cop aware of the severity of the situation, and having no time to spare, he begged the cop for a POLICE ESCORT, and he got it. The temperature in the truck was well above freezing when he arrived, it was a serious situation, things were getting soft. Dion tried a few things, only to have his attempts fail. There were only minutes left,  yet Dion was calm, even under the tremendous pressure. All was nearly lost when Dion single handily "hot wired" the refrigeration unit, saving both the driver, and the load. He got a letter of commendation from the company, and a set of pens. 

Celine enjoyed the fact that Rene asked a lot of questions, and seemed truly interested in hearing the answers. He asked her how old she was, and when she replied fourteen, he asked if she was married. The answer, Celine fondly recalls, seemed to delight him.  The thing Celine remembers the most about her first time with Rene, was how caring he seemed to be. In an obvious display of concern.  She said Rene gave her some valuable advice. he first told her that he could tell that she had a promising voice just from the shrill sounds of terror that she expelled on her descent to the ground, after "flying" off of the trunk of her father's Impala. Rene went on to explain that the "real" world can be a tough place at times, and there are those out there who prey on others who are less street' smart. This can be especially true in places like New York, Los Angeles and other big cities. The entertainment industry, he said was ripe with talent agencies that appear reputable on the outside, and you later discover that they are in fact operated by agents who are.......Rene paused. "MONSTERS." He, paused again looking pensive. Looking deeply into Celine's eyes Rene told her that at fourteen she was not a kid, and besides, she was a well educated girl, having had four more years of formal schooling than Rene. He respected her and therefore was just going to spit it out knowing she could handle it. "PREDATORS," he said. "PREDATORS." They will eat you up, rob you, use you,, take it all, and when you are no more use to them, they will spit you out, like used Bazooka Joe Double Bubble cherry flavoured chewing gum, that you can buy for five cents, and has a little comic inside. He told her that this was not to sound at all like he was questioning how smart she was, but a girl like her was "ripe" picking for one of them.  The only reason for this he said was not because she was dumb, but because they had been at it so long they new every angle, and that she may be a bit naive when it came to these "tricks" used by these unscrupulous, manipulative users. Celine was infatuated by this as no one had ever cared for her  so much, or respected her. He went on to say some of those managers "take advantage" of girls in, more ways than one. The terrible thing though is they normally take "commissions" of eighty five to ninety five percent, where as a reputable manager only takes seventy to seventy five percent. He told Celine that in his opinion that was way too much, he said if it were him he would only take sixty percent because he is not greedy and money hungry like them. Celine was deeply moved. 

Rene barely gave a second thought to the Federal charge of the illegal transportation of a minor across state lines. Noting that Celine was still rather "fuzzy" from the blunt trauma blow to the head,  she still looked at least "half together," and this is why he ascertained that there was no better time than the present to ask her a very important question. It was then he proposed to her. He suggested they get married in Las Vegas. Just the thought of what a great adventure it would be to hitch hike with Rene to Las Vegas was enough, let alone get married to a wonderful man. When her eyes uncrossed she readily agreed.. The woman at the marriage registry never questioned anything. To marry a girl of fourteen, a signature from a parent giving permission was required. Rene stood talking to the woman wearing a George Bush Halloween mask, explaining that Celine was his  daughter from Botswana that he adopted through a relief agency. The woman did not question the President Of The United States, as she handed him the marriage certificate. The rest, well, is history. During her two year absence from the public eye, she still allowed herself to have her picture on the cover of every magazine you could name. In addition she let her words be heard by never refusing an interview to anyone. Her interviews for the Bangladesh Times, Kosovo Herald, Afghan Daily, and the Iran Sunday Edition newspapers made wonderful reading. Her "image" also appeared for thirty minutes, twice a day for 365 days, on "talk shows." Missing the glare of the cameras Celine would walk around holding a camcorder aimed at her face while asking herself questions, all this time Rene illuminated her with a flashlight containing rechargeable Eveready Heavy Duty  batteries he bought on sale from Wal-Mart. 

Okay now, back to what I was talking about. Shit, I forgot. What was I talking about again? I can't remember. Damn it. Oh, yeah, Bowie. Let me finish........ 

AlaDinSAnE
And if you thought otherwise, and doubted me, I hope this straightens things out. Oh, and by the way, I am not finished yet, there is a lot more to go. So there.
Bye.

	Posted 23 June 2002


Part Thirty Five

There are a few radio stations that I can spend a bit of time listening to. These are usually the ones that they call "classic" rock stations. However, there is not one that I have discovered, that I could listen to on a regular basis day after day, because they all have the same major problem. The problem is that they all tend to play the same songs over and over again for decades at a time, and it gets rather annoying after awhile.  Ziggy Stardust, Changes, Suffragette City, Rebel Rebel, Jean Genie,  Golden Years, Young Americans, Modern Love, Space Oddity and a few others are the extent of their Bowie menu. Maybe you are different, me. well, I prefer not to be yelled at, especially first thing in the morning. Not only is this not nice, but I am not a "morning person," so you may be committing suicide to do so. I do not need some fucking DJ yelling at me, as most of them now do, ever. I also do not need their lame jokes, or a bantering "morning" show laced with foolish commentary. The thing that I need least though, is to enter their contests. I will not put my balls in a vice, food processor, or a meat grinder while at the same time wiping my ass with #6 grade sand paper, snorting a vinegar and hamburger fat mixture, while singing Amazing Grace, all for the chance of getting my name entered in a draw for the chance to win two theater tickets, or fifty dollars. The GRAND PRIZE of two airline tickets to Nigeria to see Britney Spears, and meet her backstage for an autograph session, have a non nude photo taken of her, plus a complete set of her whinings on cd, surprising as it may seem to you, does not interest me. 

Look, I am in the publishing business, I know that radio is supported by advertising, and by the amount I hear on the radio, the owners of these stations are all Zillionaires. As I was parking at the grocery store one day the DJ said that Roxanne by the Police was coming up next. They were about twenty seconds into song when I got back into my car, TEN MINUTES LATER. I couldn't believe it. It never used to be like any of this before. There were DJ's who were knowledgeable, and spoke to you as if you were a listener with some intelligence. The commercials were reasonable in numbers, and the music WAS music. Radio has now become an insult to one's level of intelligence and display of poor taste. How sad this is for a once respected medium for music. I hated Abba, but I found myself singing along to Dancing Queen one day, and then I realized something. The stuff that we thought was garbage back then, is better than most of what we have today. Yep. That's the way it is. We've progressed? Really, where? 

It came out of nowhere and it hit hard, consuming not only music, but society as a whole, everything changed. The Disco Era. They had Disco album burning rallies that were organized by "music" lovers at venues as large as baseball stadiums. They were well attended. Polyester suit, a multi coloured "Hawaiian Shirt" open at the top to reveal the gold chains around your neck, on which one of them hung a big gaudy gold medallion. Loafers, slicked backed hair, grease optional but encouraged, and a thick "police style" moustache rounded off the "look." The place of worship was the Discotheque, which had unimaginably long lines in front of it  most days, and every weekend. Cocaine was the drug of choice for the wealthy, now costing $60.00 to $80.00 a gram, was $180.00 a gram them,  I know that because I read it somewhere of course. The Mecca of Disco's was in New York, Studio 54, and it was the celebrity haunt of the day. EVERYBODY went there. The only way that the "ordinary" person was granted admission was by your "look." A mass of people striving for the honour of being allowed through the sacred door would huddle outside. The door men would go around and "judge" those who were waiting, and if you were dressed outrageous enough, or beautiful enough, then they may allow you to enter. In my opinion this practice was not only degrading to people, and therefore disgusting, but also morally bankrupt. The entire place was a sickening display of excess. Bianca Jagger, on her birthday, entered Studio 54 on the back of a white horse. A big neon "man in the moon" adorned one wall, with it's hand moving up and down to its nose holding a spoon full of cocaine. It was smiling. Federal Marshals, armed with a search warrant, raided Studio 54 to seize the company records and books on suspicion of tax evasion hit the jackpot. In the safe located in the office they found not only the books that got the owners convicted on the tax evasion charges, but a sizeable amount of cocaine in a few bags, enough to lay charges of possession for the purpose of trafficking. Studio 54 was permanently closed, and the owners went to Federal Prison for several years. 

Georgio Moroder, who wrote the music for Cat People, Nile Rogers, who worked with  Bowie as a producer and a few others were the talent in this era. The rest, well, fucking horrible. The bad part was that Disco was MINDLESS, and it seeped into every nook and cranny effecting everything. The Rolling Stones, Miss You, and too many more songs they wrote were Disco. How does one go from Gimme Shelter, Monkey Man, Wild Horses and Angie to Woo Woo Woo Woo Woo,  Woo Woo Woo Woo Woo, Woo Woo Woo Woo? Especially The Stones. I bet it wasn't Richards idea. It not only got the Stones either, it got others too. Under the guidance of those who obviously have NO FUCKING RESPECT, took one, if not the most, important pieces of music ever made, demeaned, disrespected and degraded it beyond belief. Robert Fripp, and many other musicians, made their decision to make a career out of music after hearing this album. Sgt. Pepper's Lonely Hearts Club Band was made into a movie, and in the process it was degraded in every way possible. How badly? Well, first off, starring in the "film," I use that word loosely were one of the biggest names in DISCO, THE BEE GEES. Yes, Sgt. Pepper goes to the Disco. Add Peter Frampton. Had enough yet? Here is a review, "Impressively ridiculous, candy-colored, rock star-packed musical vaguely based on classic 60s album. Die-hard Beatles fans love it. Fans of goofy camp will also find its senseless and gauche style appealing." If you ever swallow bad dope and need to puke, go to: http://www.stomptokyo.com/badmoviereport/sgt_pepper.html, and get the full story. I can't handle telling you, I would have to be hospitalized. 

If you look at the audience, you can see why the real talent during this era went unrecognized by the Disco crowd beyond it. As for Georgio Moroder, well, they would recognize his work on  Donna Summer albums, and on the movie  Flash dance.  However his work with Jon Anderson of Yes, Roger Daltrey, Asia, Blondie and Freddie Mercury probably escaped them. Now add  Cheap Trick,  Kenny Loggins,   David Bowie, Barbra Streisand, Janet Jackson, Cher, Olivia Newton-John, Elton John, Billy Squier, Bonnie Tyler, the list goes on too far, and you have a man who gets around. Add a few film scores such as Scarface, Midnight Express, Metropolis, Top Gun, and over twenty more, some Grammy and Golden Globe awards as well, and you get an idea of his talents. Guitarist  Nile Rogers, and producer of Let's Dance belongs here as well. In the late seventies Rodgers teamed up with fellow guitarist Bernard Edwards, to form the band Chic. Now, while dance bands may not be your personal preference, it is worth noting that the area of music that is known as R&B, became heavily influenced by what is known as, the "Chic" sound. The other members were Bowie drummer Tony Thompson, plus vocalists. Norma Jean Wright, and Alfa Anderson. Chic was not signed to any label when they recorded their first single, Dance Dance Dance. They shopped it around to the different labels, getting a poor reception, until it was picked up by Atlantic Records, and they signed CHIC. The label was not aware at the time that they hit the mother load, you see, Dance Dance Dance sold over a million copies in ONE MONTH! Two more songs, Le Freak and Good Times, were also hits. A surprising number of other artists contributed to CHIC over the years, and many are Bowie related. Drummer  Sterling Campbell, Heathen and Outside to name a few. Omar Hakim, the drummer on Let's Dance, Lenny Pickett, who played the wind instruments on Heathen, as well as "those two." in 84 and 87, and so did saxophone player,  Stan Harrison. Add flute and sax player Steve Elson in with Pickett and Harrison. Richard Hilton, keyboards on Black Tie White Noise, and of course drummer Tony Thompson. Last, but certainly not least, the man who added so much soul to Young Americans, Luther Vandross. 

This should be  fascinating, as well as fun. Look at these. 

Reunited - Peaches & Herb
Heart Of Glass - Blondie
Music Box Dancer - Frank Mills
Knock On Wood -  Amil Stewart
Stumblin' In - Suzi Quatro & Chris Norman In The Navy -  Village People
I Want Your Love - Chic
Goodnight Tonight - Wings
Take Me Home - Cher
He's The Greatest Dancer - Sister Sledge
Hot Stuff  - Donna Summer
Reunited - Peaches & Herb
Love You Inside Out -  Bee Gees
We Are Family -  Sister Sledge
Goodnight Tonight - Wings
Shake Your Body (Down To The Ground) - The Jacksons
Just When I Needed You Most -  Randy  Vanwarmer
In The Navy -  Village People
The Logical Song -   Supertramp
Love Is The Answer -  England Dan & John Ford Coley

Do you want to REALLY KNOW how pioneering Bowie was? Do you want to REALLY KNOW how small and select a group of core  listeners he had? Do you want to REALLY KNOW why his albums did not sell? DO YOU WANT TO KNOW WHAT IT WAS LIKE TO BE A BOWIE LISTENER BACK THEN? I can tell you in ONE sentence. Lodger came out in May of 1979, and those two song lists are the top ten songs  from a pop chart from May and June of that year. Now do you see? Wow, I just realized something that I never thought of before, and it turns out to be a rather important discovery. There are FAR MORE CATEGORIES for music and "noise" now. We had only a few back then really. Today, well, Hip Hop, Rap, Techno, Disco, Grunge, Industrial, Ambient, New Age, Punk, Alternative, Rock, Dance, and it goes on forever I imagine, if you really want to make a complete list. Back then, there were less. Now, I may miss a few here because I never really paid attention to much of what I did not listen to. If I am in error please forgive me, this list is meant as a representation, and not as a complete guide to the genres of music in 1979. There was Disco, Rock, New Wave and Punk. Now, what I state here, as far as percentages are concerned,  is  based only on MY PERSONAL RECOLLECTION of things at the time, and not on any studies. I am asking for you to trust me on this, but I want you to know that even though I strongly doubt it, I may be incorrect. 

In 1979  Disco was all the rage. Everyone went to the Disco on Friday and Saturday nights. Who? Me? I won't lie, ever, so, yes I did too. But hold on here, I never went on a regular basis, and this will exonerate me, my motives for going were not pure, in the least. You see "They" went home after work, ate, showered and then made the necessary preparations to go out. The opening of the door on their clothes closet revealed the hangers, on which hung their personal collection of the worst fabric Satan's little helpers ever wove. Polyester. The stuff was stain resistant, machine washable and you could throw it in the dryer. it was worshipped, if not for those reasons, then it was for this one alone, it was "WRINKLE FREE!"  No more IRONING, and  without  those wrinkles  you always looked great. I guess the mirror had not been invented yet. Oh, and the colours, they were just spectacular. Lack of oxygen blue, lima bean diarrhoea brown, giraffe urine yellow, infection puss green, bathtub mould beige, cadaver grey, rotting Halloween pumpkin orange, gangrene black, rabies foam white and several other magnificent colours to be seen in. There is also a dazzling array of multi coloured polyester material on the market, and the clothes made from this material literally have to be seen to be believed. Tenth floor suicide splatter,  pizza and binge drinking vomit, calico cat and steam roller, mouldy marzipan, and others. 

Although it is difficult to imagine how such a product could ever be improved, they still spent a Baszillion Kazillion dollars, and put the best minds in the world on it. As improbable as it sounds, it turned out that the investment and the research was not  in vain. It resulted in the discovery of "STRETCH POLYESTER." This now meant that "full bodied" individuals would never have to worry again about finding clothes that fit. I know what you are fearing now, the loss of all of those lovely colours and shades to choose from? Do not worry, all the hues found in a garbage dump were saved, not only were they saved, they were enhanced. The  colours  themselves found in stretch polyester clothing are the same as in the regular line of fashion designs, only they are much brighter. They glow like neon would be an accurate description. Now, a forty year old man who is "well rounded," meaning at 340 lbs. he is more "hearty" than your average person, can now do, what others do. He can shed his track suit forever. Imagine the feeling of freedom as he buttons up his blunt object trauma to the head polyester shirt, this is of course after he has "stretched" his rotting lettuce, brown with a few off green highlights, over the bottom half of his excessive frame, next comes his stool sample coloured jacket. As he applies the #6 grade grease recommended by the manufacturers of the rotating drill parts used on offshore oil rigs, he realizes that he now has freedom, he can do what other people do. You see, polyester was not just clothing, it was a liberator, and it freed many in the Disco sect. This man probably reflected on his personal empowerment through polyester as he demonstrated his moves to those around him on the Disco dance floor, wearing enough Old Spice cologne to kill a skunk, all to the beat of Golden Years. Oh, the mindset. 

Isn't that it though? The mindset. Bowie's song DJ is a perfect commentary on the very mindset that was prevalent in this era. Everything about it had no substance or depth whatsoever. Disco was a "LOOK,", as foolish as it was. Leisure suits, sexual freedom, the lack of morals did not kill you back then, gold chains, probably 4kt,  fake rings. There was NOTHING BEHIND IT.  Bowie wrote in DJ, "You think this is easy, realism." A wake up call from an illusion? Sure. "I am a D.J., I am what I play," says it all, and is in my opinion one of the best lines Bowie ever penned. So is this, "He used to be my boss and now he is a puppet dancer.  I am a D.J., and I've got believers." If you look at all of the songs from the pop charts that I listed you will notice one thing in particular. Almost all of the songs are written about the same subject matter, boys and girls. How original. The subject matter of the music that was prevalent during this era truly represents the mentality of the majority of music listeners at the time. I know, I was there, and it was sad to see the level of mediocrity that the radio, the music, as well as the listeners had sunk. 

Bowie, New Wave and Punk listeners I can assure you were not too interested in any activity required to "Shake Your Body (Down To The Ground)." As far as "Love Is The Answer," well, we had a different one. It was called a MIND. Rock music, another foolish label for something if you ask me, was divided into two main categories, Rock and Progressive Rock. In the Rock category were what you would call the "Heavy" rock bands, or the ones that were more "beat" oriented. Led Zeppelin, The Who, Nazareth, Bad Company, The Stones, Aerosmith, and others who were similar in musical style, fell into the "Heavy," or "Beat" categories. The "Progressive Rock" bands focused on the music they composed, viewing it as a "creative" art form involving sound. Like painters, sculptors, film directors and other "artists," they created through experimentation. The purpose of Rock was to fill you with energy, to make you move, while Progressive Rock was clearly aimed at the head, its purpose was to make you LISTEN. Genesis, Eno, Pink Floyd, Yes, Strawbs, Jethro Tull, Gentle Giant, Hawkwind, Mike Oldfield, Roxy Music, Emerson Lake & Palmer, as well as  similar artists, were all described as Progressive. Bowie? Well, the media in all of its glorious ignorance labeled him as "Rock." The ones who were completely ignorant, idiots, morons, brain dead, fucked in the head, with a bit of stupidity added to the mixture, called Bowie's work, "Glam Rock." Now as difficult as this is to admit, I know full well that there are those who call themselves Bowie fans that also consider him to be "Glam Rock." To those of you I want to say this, and I will say it only once. Go and listen to the music, and the subject matter, that comes from the likes of Gary Glitter, Sweet, T Rex, Kiss and the other Glam bands. Now, is  Bowie's music the same as these bands, is it simple three chord pop? Hmmmmm? How, about the lyrics? Was Gary Glitter, Kiss, or the others comparable in depth, subject matter, vocabulary, insight, perception and intelligence? Would you care to compliment Bowie personally on having the intelligence of Gary Glitter? Well? Okay, the clothes, the make up, the hair, and the rest of what makes up the "Glam Look." What was Bowie's look derived from? Do you know where? It was based on traditional Japanese Kabuki Theater, that Bowie had studied, and was very well educated about. Do you believe that the members of Sweet or Kiss studied art history? What then is their "look" based on, something of equal intelligence? Oh?  Hmmmmm? So, may I ask what there is about Bowie which qualifies him to have all of the dignity and wisdom of these fine artists? The logic of a flea would be MORE than sufficient to rationalize the fact that to take an artist like David Bowie, and place him along side these others, would be in fact one of the GREATEST FUCKING INSULTS you could  bestow on him! It is in fact YOU that qualifies as Glam Rock, not Bowie, or me either. Understand? 

This I say is a fact, however I do not have any  information  to give you from second or third party to substantiate it this time, as I usually do. I say this from my encounters with other Bowie listeners of my generation. I am so sure of this that I can't recall EVER crossing another where this was not the case. Really. Bowie fans had the Heavy and the Beat oriented music in their piles of albums at home. Some had a few, some had many, it depended on the individual. As I said, I can't remember once where this was not the case, their preference was Progressive Music. They considered it far above what "they" listened to in every aspect. The "other stuff" was frowned upon, so much so that they could be quite condescending when referring to it. Talking to fans of that era will show you that this has not changed one bit, even to this day, myself being the largest example one could ever find. New Wave was an interest,  Punk was Iggy, this new Punk, well, it was attitude. Out of all of the songs listed on those pop charts, I can safely say that the ONLY ONE that I guarantee would be completely acceptable to Bowie fans as far as any depth goes would be The Logical Song by Supertramp. 

I had my own Disco look. Long hair, jeans, canvass runners and a T-shirt that had this written on it,  "There's Old Wave - There's New Wave - And There's David Bowie. The picture on the front showed Bowie in a leather jacket leaning against a brick wall, head tilted, and looking really fucking "cool." My shirt was NOT polyester, or worn with a dog puke off white leisure suit. I weighed 150 at the time so there was no need to stretch into anything, save a condom. Disco lights look great on acid I noticed sometimes, as I belted back Tequila Sunrises in my efforts to get really wasted, and marvelled at the stupidity of those who were prancing around showing off what they learned from the movie Grease. Their attempts to look normal in their open neck Hawaiian tourist shirts, poor fitting and cheap no wrinkle suits, two tone loafers, fake jewellery and cop moustaches was hilarious. The shallowness though, was pathetic. My motives for going to a Disco had no morals, were self serving, manipulative, ethically wrong and inconsiderate, it was to get laid. I was intelligent enough you see, to put two and two together. It was logic that led me to the conclusion based on the fact that if the girls who frequented these places were stupid enough to fall for this shit, then they would fall for pretty much anything. Sometimes I would even go on the dance floor to show off my moves. I would go out there and stagger around drunk and stoned to Fame. Terrible? Yes, but it worked. 

This may very well be the last segment of Images for awhile. 

AlaDINsaNE

	Posted abt. June 2002


Part Thirty Six

One executive at RCA turned to the person seated beside him and asked, "What do you think of those girls?" The reply was, "One of them isn't too bad looking." The executive was probably in shear delight to hear that answer, it was, I imagine, exactly what he wanted, as he couldn't have asked for a better one. The set-up was perfect, now, time to drop the bombshell. "They're ALL Bowie," were the next words spoken. Then you heard, "Really?" He wouldn't have been the only one caught off guard either, when viewing the video for Boy's Keep Swinging. It would have made a great company motto for RCA to apply to Bowie, "Caught Off Guard." I mean,  they usually were. This time though, well, was the same as the last, and the one before, and the one before that, and the one before that. Bewilderment. The executives at RCA were once again as perplexed as the last time Bowie handed them a new album. On the positive side, well, in five long years Lodger was the first studio album that contained at least ten VOCAL tracks. This was a step in the right direction, as far as they were concerned, but it didn't take any more than one listen to realize that once again, there were no hits. They must have thought of those other labels who were cashing in on the Disco craze, and what do they get? Lodger. They all knew by now that there was no use in fighting, they were stuck with it, period. Now came the difficult part. 

Most record labels, except Bowie's, recoup their investment and hope to make a profit by selling the artist's work. They now were faced with the task of getting someone to buy it. Demographics can often help, you look the record buying audience as a whole, then you divide them into groups according to specifications such as age, music preferences, what attracts them to a product, and so forth. Once you have this then you "target" certain segments  of the audience,  by tailoring a marketing and advertising campaign at those groups which have been selected. The feeling would best be described as sickening when analysing the demographics to market Lodger. An overall look at what the record buying audience consisted of, would have revealed a vast sea of eager purchasers just drooling for anything that had a beat they could dance to. This first bit of demographic information would be used as a comparison to the tracks on Lodger. Okay, they want dance tunes. Now, lets see, we have, Fantastic Voyage, African Night Flight, Move On, Yassassin, Red Sails, D.J., Look Back In Anger, Boys Keep Swinging, Repetition and Red Money. Nobody, RCA included, in their right mind anyway, could imagine anyone kicking up their heels to African Night Flight, Move On, Yassassin or Repetition at a Disco on Saturday night. Upon further review, the same conclusion would be reached on the other tracks as well. The majority of record buyers would not buy Lodger, plain and simple, so no use targeting them. Punk? Well, Bowie worked with Iggy. Iggy qualifies, but it would be uncertain if Lust For Life, or The Idiot, qualified as Punk. If so, since Bowie wrote, them it may be possible to promote him to this segment of the audience. It became clear that those who listened to the Sex Pistols, Dead Kennedy's, Alien Sex Fiend, The Clash, Skinny Puppy, The Cramps or The Stooges, were not about to slam dance and spit along to Fantastic Voyage, Red Money, or D.J. In addition, RCA was unlikely to succeed in getting Look Back In Anger, or Red Sails played between sets at CBGB's, in an attempt to reach this audience. I could see Speed Of Life appealing those who were leaning toward New Wave at the time. Too bad it was two studio albums ago. All RCA saw so far was trouble. This trouble however would end, Rock was the answer. Of course, Bowie is a Rock N' Roll musician. This album has lyrics, and sort of an edge like Ziggy, Aladdin Sane, Man Who Sold The Word, Diamond Dogs, Station To Station, SURE! It was when the marketing team turned on a Rock station that they would truly discover that they were not in any trouble at all, instead they learned that they were FUCKED! Out of all of the music that they would hear the stations play, NONE OF IT was anything like Lodger. The ONE saving grace that they had, would have been when they discovered that there was an extremely strong market base to the Progressive oriented audience. They would buy it, all they had to do is sell it. 

There was no way in Hell, they quickly discovered, to pass Lodger off as a "progressive" album. It may be a progressive audience that would buy Lodger, but Bowie was not a progressive artist in the sense of the word, and Lodger was not a progressive album either, for the same reason. It would be easy to say, "What is the problem? " RCA has been marketing his work for years, by now they should know how. You would be right in that assumption, up to a point, that point would be 1976. RCA could market his work that year, and previous, because they knew what it was. Low ended that. With Low they were rendered helpless, also remember Bowie refused to lift one finger, or give even one interview, in support of it. With Heroes, well Bowie handled most of that, and this left RCA with absolutely no experience. I personally could have helped RCA  market Lodger at this at this point, by telling them that I will buy a copy. After that, well, they are on their own. Press releases, whether internal company ones, or the ones let out to the media, are designed for one purpose, and one only, that is "hype." They are in most cases sent out in advance, and are supposed to describe the product in such a way to increase anticipation. The record labels use them all the time, and RCA is no exception. I like wall to wall carpeting, mine needs to be cleaned by the way. No, I have not "FINALLY" snapped. It is because I sincerely care about your carpets that I am telling you this. If you have anything close that could fall and stain your carpet, please move it. You may laugh so hard at this you will knock things over. RCA was at a total and complete loss as how to even describe Lodger, that is evident by what you will soon read. How do you write a press release for an album that you can't understand? Do you know? I do, because I found out from the internal RCA press release for Lodger. The answer is, you grasp at straws in panic. 

The internal RCA advance press release, to create an air of excitement, described Lodger as a "concept" album. They did not go on to say that it was a concept that they did not understand though. After reading a few more lines you would have learned that, "The Lodger is a homeless wanderer, stunned and victimized by modern life's pressures and technology." Are you with me so far? Okay. Next came some friendly advice from RCA, well, more like instructions. These instructions were on how to listen to Lodger. It said, "It is absolutely necessary that you "listen" to Lodger until you can "HEAR" it." WOW! That was my first reaction. Guess what? I tried it, and it works. Not only that, I tried it with a King Crimson album, and it worked also. Coincidence? I thought so at first. Well, I tried it once more, with Station To Station. I get tired sometimes of just looking at the picture on the front cover of that album, after all it is all over my house. Well, imagine my delight when I put it on,  and following RCA's instructions I listened to it, and I "HEARD" it! Really. Oh, this gets much better. The following line after these instructions contains a guarantee from RCA. It says, "The music "IS" there." What they are really saying is that they know it is there, and hope that you can find it,  because they failed. The press release summed up everything about Lodger into a final description. What was Lodger exactly? Get ready. "It would be fair to call Lodger, Bowie's Sgt. Pepper," they said. How accurate. There you go. Do you think that is fair? I think it is fair to say that they didn't "GET" it. At all. 

It wasn't before long that RCA realized that there may be another "slight" problem, this time with the video's for Boy's Keep Swinging, and DJ. Bowie dressing up as three women may have a rather negative effect on the sale of Lodger. This is due to the fact that the general public thought Bowie was already "weird" enough, and this was just fuel for the fire. This video they surmised was "passable," but DJ was "another story. Bowie kissing a man was "dangerous" goods. In certain ways the gay community had moved along way towards acceptance by 1979, in certain ways, however some things remained unchanged. The main success came in the form of getting mainstream society to recognize in fact that the gay community existed, and this meant acceptance, to a degree. Realizing they were there however, was one thing, having it "thrown in your face," quite another. There were also many parts of the country, and places away from the city, where attitudes remained unchanged. It was only eight years previous that the radio stations in the US refused to play any music made by a "Transsexual," thus keeping Hunky Dory off the airwaves. It was only seven years previous that Bowie received death threats for his appearance. While Bowie is walking through Earls Court, followed by several people, at the end of the video for D.J, he "kisses" one of the males following him, and he makes SURE it is captured, and unable to miss, by the camera. RCA knows full well that there are many people out there who were likely to take offence to this, and a backlash was not ruled out. This was especially feared considering Bowie is wearing dresses in the other video that accompanies it. RCA had spent a lot of money trying to "undo" damage from the story that Tony Defries and Angie conjured up, and then getting Bowie to tell the writer from Melody Maker that he was gay. The UK was a lot more accepting concerning this "admission," and the resulting media coverage saved a fourteen date tour to promote Hunky Dory, probably saving Bowie's career in the process. In America however the announcement was accepted in a far different manner. In many ways it literally destroyed any opportunity for Bowie to break into the mainstream American market. "Unwillingly,” he said in a few interviews, Bowie became an icon for the gay community. He was now labeled, and as a result many radio stations refused to play any of his records, and many times in the press he was portrayed like an exhibit in a freak show. RCA had been trying to temper the public perception of Bowie in an attempt to make him more palatable to a mainstream audience.  These videos were certainly not going to aid that effort. 

Look Back In Anger did not fall into the "dangerous" category. It was "safe." In my opinion this is a fantastic video. I can't remember when I saw it for the first time, I do know however it was YEARS after the release of Lodger, because I live in Canada, a nation deprived. Please, do not get me wrong, we are certainly not deprived of music, we can get anything, the problem is that YOU HAVE TO GO OUT to get it. I read somewhere that Canada has some of the cheapest prices for CDs in the world, compared to other countries. I don't know, Brian Kelton, Ziggy1, on this group should be able to give a solid opinion on our prices compared to the UK. This is because he attacked Canada last year, it was an all out war at many pubs. Looking the wrong way before crossing a street, because people in the UK haven't learned the correct side of the road to drive on yet, Brian was almost hit by a car after leaving a "battlefield." I would have pitied the remainder of the car. This is in average, and in US dollars,  CDs range from $12.00 to $15.00, so you can decide. What we may make up in CD prices we lose on television. Truthfully, we get sweet fuck all when it comes to music on TV, except of course MTV, and Much Music, which is the Canadian equivalent. It didn't used to be like that however, when I was in my teens we used to get some great shows. Two that come instantly to mind are The Midnight Special, and Don Kirshner's Rock Concert. Stones, Bowie, and just keep going from there, including many of the largest acts from that period. These days? NOTHING. I asked a good friend in England a while ago if she had any Bowie on video that I may be interested in. She said that she didn't have anything "special," only stuff she recorded from the television, and was convinced that I would have most of it anyway. Well, all I can say is that I sure hope she finds a lot more of this stuff that I "already have. "The tape was LOADED, interviews, concert footage, as well as copies of a few things I already have, but the quality of the video she sent put mine to shame. We would never get anything of that nature on TV here unfortunately. Deprived, as I said. This explains the reason that I did not get to see the Look Back In Anger video for several  thousand years after its debut. David Mallet and Bowie based the story line for the video on a novel by Oscar Wilde called The Picture Of Dorian Gray. Even with their concerns about the "gay" slant on Boy's Keep Swinging and DJ, the marketing department at RCA had decided to use them aggressively anyway, to draw some attention to Lodger. What they did was extremely unique, for the time anyway. 

Although it was not yet recognized, the money saved from the reduction in travelling expenses, would turn out to be the largest benefit to be derived from video. As it stood now, record labels were required to send their artists all over the world on promotional tours to sell a new album. Talk shows, radio spots, magazines, autograph signings, appearances at record stores, and all of them required the "personal" touch. It was dreadfully expensive for the record labels, and very demanding mentally and physically for the artists because of the constant travel. Video changed all of that, allowing the promotion of an artist all over the world with no demands on the artist's time, and little expense to the record companies. RCA did use the videos from Lodger, but only pieces, instead of using each of them in their entirety. RCA instead had a "new" video made that featured the many "faces" of David Bowie. When completed, the four minute video aired on the Promo Vision network, running non stop in one hundred stores belonging to the major record retailers across the country. It was also decided that RCA would organize some  press and promotional parties, where they could air the video and rely on the subsequent write ups. They tried to book some space in a mental institution in New York for one promo party, no, I am not kidding, and failed in their attempt, being turned down also by two ballet schools, finally managing to secure the Explorers Club. For these parties RCA had a separate twelve minute video produced, which focused more on the current album. Bowie did not have a watch ,and he still doesn't, being quite apparent as he waltzed in a ultra high fashionably three hours late for the screening. When he arrived the guests were ushered into a room to view the video on a large screen, and after they had access to Bowie so he could field questions about his new album. The marketing minds at RCA and Bowie seemed to have quite different opinions about what Lodger was. Rather than call the album his Sgt. Pepper, Bowie borrowed from the work of painter and filmmaker Salvador Dali, calling Lodger, "Dada Pop." 

Bowie was always complaining that RCA did not do enough to promote his work, always blaming his consistently poor album sales on them, and the lack of spending. I have often contemplated if it ever crossed his mind, even once, that when the bulk of people are listening to Disco Inferno, Boogie Nights, YMCA and Dancing Queen, they are not about to purchase albums with The Secret Life Of Arabia, Subterraneans or Red Sails on them. The extra investment made by  RCA in the five videos, the spots on Promo Vision and the promotional parties meant little, the war between them still raged, turning nuclear for the most part. Bowie did not fight in person anymore, instead attacking by sending his personal assistant Coco Schwab to deliver the blast. Everyone was asked to draw a straw at a meeting of  RCA executives, and it was a man named Pat Gibbons who drew the shortest one. This meant that it was he who got the job of being the liaison between RCA and David Bowie. Now, I have never seen a picture of Pat Gibbons, but I find it fun sometimes to just imagine what the people you hear about, but have never seen, look like. Do you ever do this? I imagine Pat Gibbons as a man in his fifties, who used to be a bit on the heavy side, but has since lost a tremendous amount of weight. I see him as a soft spoken, mild mannered, easy going, and well educated man. His education provides him with the ability to assess situations and find logical solutions. I see him as becoming completely dumbstruck by those who do things that don't make any sense, or try their best to make a bad situation even worse. One can only guess at such a man's reaction when someone that you employ, and pay millions of dollars to, simply "disappears," and won't tell you where he lives. If he ever does surface, meetings are held where they request, after all precautions are taken to make sure that they are not being followed by you. Bewildered, as well as puzzled, would be a normal reaction that you would expect to see, to a person who complains that YOU do not do enough to promote their work, who hand you a new album, refuse to help you do anything to sell it, and instead run off to a foreign country to get drunk for eight months, leaving no forwarding address. A person would require a great deal of patience to have to deal with a person who will not meet with you face to face, instead sending others to deliver messages on their behalf. This would also require a person to have an extremely long fuse, able to put up with ongoing and reoccurring problems over and over and over, and over, and over and over and over again. An easy going demeanour would allow one to not take things personally when you are constantly being blamed for everything, and can't seem to do anything right. This is especially true when you only discover what you supposedly did from a magazine, an interview, a media press conference or some other public forum. I believe that Pat Gibbons must have had a very supportive wife, if she didn't pack up and leave in the middle of the night. She would never force her opinions on Pat, but would probably offer her advice. For instance, she may have calmly suggested that it would be nice if Pat found a different line of employment, rather than deal with recording artists, suggesting a circus clown, migrant farm worker, septic tank cleaner, or stunt man as alternatives. Probably a social drinker at one time, Pat can now put back an eight ounce glass of straight vodka in one swig. He would do this I am sure when he downs five or six number ten Valiums, or some other sedative, his ulcer medication, or just before bed when he takes his sleeping medication. The constant demands of the corporate world would cause him to forego just regular medical check ups, but instead going quite frequently, sometimes thinking that he might one day be under the constant care of a physician. Pat is probably bald, he shaves his head, because for some reason he developed a "twitch" that caused him to pull his hair out for some inexplicable reason. One thing odd about Pat though, if his wife asks him if he would care for some Hot Coco, he looks rather insane. 
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Part Thirty Seven

Bowie sometimes went and squared off with RCA in person, and the fight was usually over the same old matter, the lack of promotion, he thought he was getting from the label. To get his "point" across at one meeting he decided not to show up alone. Instead he arrived with an independent promotional team, insinuating that if RCA could not do the job, then he would have to go and get "outside" help. During the meeting Bowie played the part of the "artist." It was all posturing, he deflected all the questions to Coco, or the Scotti brothers, who made up the team of independent promoters. Coco berated Pat Gibbons, and anyone else from RCA who tried to defend their position, on David's behalf. The meeting accomplished absolutely nothing in the way of a resolution to Bowie's concerns, and those of RCA. It served only as a spitting contest, driving the wedge deeper between them. Personally, I don't know what Bowie expected. If you go and see, as I have, what was at the top of the charts when Heroes, Low, Lodger, Scary Monsters, and several of his other albums were released you will see something immediately. What Bowie was making in terms of music, was so far the opposite of what the majority of the people were listening to, it is obvious why his material didn't sell. It is not just that either, his "look" contributed to the problem immensely. The dresses, the make up, the gay innuendo, well, all of the bizarreness surrounding him, did nothing to help his career in North America. Europe has always had a much more tolerant attitude than North America, because they are exposed to so many other cultures, therefore, different ideas, customs and personalities. North America, on the other hand, is anal retentive at best. Bowie's "act" only did one thing in America, it gained him a label, as a "freak." Oh, add transvestite, faggot, weirdo, thing and a host of other defamatory descriptions. I know this full well. Why? The reason is that the labels were not only applied to Bowie. I am sure that most listeners of my generation who lived in North America at the time suffered a few of these references hurled in their direction at some point in time. I mean, if Bowie was all these things, then his listeners must be as well. I recall being asked why I listen to "that shit," or how I can stomach that "faggot" on several too many occasions. The reason I could listen to Bowie of course was the fact that my head was not located where theirs was, up their ass. In the eighties it became "fashionable" to be a Bowie listener, however in North America during the seventies just the opposite was true. Bowie knew, he had to, that in order to "break into the market" in America, an artist had to gain acceptance by the main stream record buyer. Having a reputation as a freak, and writing music that was the exact opposite of what people bought, did nothing in the way to help him gain acceptance, as a matter of fact, it did the opposite. This probably explains the fact that within a period of four years after Lodger was released, it had sold a whopping grand total number of 153,364 copies in America. This was more than Stage, but over 100,000 copies less than Heroes. 

Before I say this I want to let you know that I am well aware that there are two sides to every story, in addition,  there are always some details, or maybe certain pieces of information that an "outsider" would not be privy to. I do not know all of the details, but based on what I have read over all these years it is my opinion that RCA, and not Bowie, should have been the ones doing all the yelling. I see the behavior of RCA as a lesson in tolerance and patience. They are the epitome of the Biblical lesson of "turning the other cheek." RCA turned the other cheek on many occasions, and after that they turned another cheek, and another one, and then another, and another, then they turned that one, they turned one over here, and those over there. They turned around so many times they must have been dizzy enough to puke and fall down. I, to this day, am at a complete loss to explain how in Hell they put up with even a quarter of some of the antics they did. Tony Defries, on many occasions, ran up sizeable debts, the unauthorized $100,000.00 hotel bill for a ten day stay in Los Angeles, being one example, and having the bill sent to RCA. These "stunts" came at a time when Bowie had not made one cent of profit for RCA, instead he was a loss according to their records. These incidences were not uncommon, other labels may just as well have turfed him, Defries, and the entire MainMan Circus, out the door. When Bowie violated his MainMan contract and Defries sued him he had no money, no income, and as a result of a court injunction he was unable to release Young Americans. RCA was in no way obligated to do anything, yet they supported him, paid off ALL of MainMan's debts which allowed them to pay Bowie what he was owed, and handled other incidentals. RCA was wrong in trying not to release Low, but Bowie was wrong in refusing to promote it, and instead pull one of his now famous disappearing acts. Up until 1983, and then signed with a different label, Bowie was never a large seller in America, and often the figures were mediocre for an artist of his stature. Based on all of this I think RCA got a rather "rough" ride, and Bowie had little to complain about, but there is, after all, the "other" side to all this. 

Bowie often set the trend, if not setting it himself he contributed a wealth of new ideas. In too many instances to name, his work, and his ideas, were years ahead of their time. Low and Heroes were decades ahead. I did not pay much close attention to Bowie's early work in video before I researched this article. I now see that his contribution is just more proof of how extremely innovative and forward thinking he was as an artist. I added them up, Bowie had SIX videos made to promote his work, TWO YEARS BEFORE MTV even started. It had been an extremely busy two years for Bowie. In June he left New York for London and then to Australia, doing a few radio interviews along the way to promote Lodger. After, he went home to Switzerland for a brief rest, and then to Kenya for a holiday. 

Hurrah, a club in New York, was one of the first ones ever to start screening music videos. Bowie used to drop in from time to time, just to catch up on the latest fads and trends. He was there on December 16th, after spending the earlier part of the evening watching a play on Broadway. While he was there someone introduced him to a stage director by the name of Jack Hofsiss. The two of them hit it off quite well, engaging in a conversation about characterization, a topic Bowie knew well. I wonder if Hofsiss realized that he was talking to one. I should mention that it was Jack Hofsiss who was the director of the play Bowie had seen earlier in the evening. The play was called The Elephant Man. 

The day after Christmas Bowie met Jack Hofsiss again, it was purely a social occasion, in a restaurant. The conversation once again fell on the subject of characters. Hofsiss noted that he saw a lot of similarities between the Elephant Man, and Thomas Jerome Newton, Bowie's character from the film The Man Who Fell to Earth. Hofsiss said that they were both characters of "isolation," living  apart from society. Bowie literally had no idea that the star of The Elephant Man, Tony Award winning actor Philip Anglim, was leaving, until Jack Hofsiss offered him the role. This must have delighted Bowie to no end, and with good reason, it was an honour. A part in a Broadway production would certainly give him more credibility, and therefore help him to be taken more seriously as an actor. 

There was a war raging inside Bowie, there had been since early 1978. He was going through another metamorphosis, a new "character" was emerging, yet this one was not compatible with the existing one. The two creatures fought each other, this Bowie was a content artist, the emerging Bowie wanted recognition, it wanted the fame that eluded it all of these years, now, this fame was DESERVED, it was OWED, it was time to collect. The transformation would turn out to be an extremely long process and it was intermingled with episodes reminiscent of Jekyll and Hyde. The new character would often emerge seeking what it wanted. This is evident in the meetings with RCA, the demands for more promotion, where as this personality ran at the sound of the word. Tony Defries wanted nothing more than to break into the American market, Bowie just followed, and with Defries gone, so was the thought. Sales was the concern of RCA since 75, Bowie could care less, he had enough money and he was content. The focus was on his personal development as an artist. The American market however, was the only thing this new character craved, it, and the spoils from the conquest. The new character though, could not win the battle. Bowie had three years left on his contract with RCA, as well as his contract with MainMan. He owed RCA one more album, and he was not needed by Hofsiss until July 1980. He had the time. He accepted the offer. Bowie would be The Elephant Man. 

December got even busier. In London Bowie performs an acoustic version of Space oddity on Kenny Everett's New Years Eve television special. From there it was back to America for two more television appearances, one on Saturday Night Live, and the other one being a television special titled, Dick Clark's Salute To The Seventies. 

I used to try and be home if I could to watch Saturday Night Live. If not, I would try to watch it at a party I was at, where I could be found indulging in the art of getting wasted. I never did get to forget my own name though. This particular show I was home for I remember, not wanting to risk missing anything. All of the promotion you heard about Bowie since the early part of 1977 was on how the "bizarre" had been left behind. The Real David Bowie was all you heard in 78. If not that, then, Bowie Without The Mask, Bowie Without The Characters, Bowie Without The Baggage, Bowie Without The Illusions, Bowie Without The Disguises, Bowie Without This, Bowie Without That, This Is The Real One, This Bowie's Not Fake, This Bowie Doesn't Lie, This Bowie Is Bowie, David Bowie Is David Bowie, No Plastic, No Additives, No Preservatives, Not Recycled, Machine Washable, One Year Warranty Or 20,000 Kilometres, and it does a great job on bathroom base boards, tubs and tiles. Well, they may have very well indeed left the "bizarre" behind, but someone found it apparently. 

It was quite entertaining to see Bowie carried out on stage in a one piece plastic glitter tuxedo, that went from his neck down to his feet. It was also quite enjoyable to see that one of those carrying him was Klaus Nomi,  a former opera singer, who had since turned to Operatic Punk, and who was looking rather flamboyant. Adding to the pleasure were the opening notes to The Man Who Sold The World, a song that I had always wanted to see performed live, but did not have the opportunity until now. I do not know the names of those who were in the band. I remember the keyboard player dressed in black, sporting a bandana I believe that was tied at the side, and staring into the camera with a stern look as though all on the planet were insane enough to be committed, except him. The guitar player stood out. You would stand out too  beside this keyboard player, Klaus Nomi and counterpart dressed in tuxedo tights and wearing black lipstick, a guy in a plastic tuxedo, and there you are dressed in a proper shirt, pants and a tie. He was laughing his ass off. Bowie was carried to the back of the stage when the song ended. I was slightly interrupted by a question, "What is that crap you're watching?" It came from my father. " Oh, it's that silly fool," as he answered his own question before I could. "Haven't you had enough of him and his crap yet?" I was thinking of saying, "No, as a matter of fact I haven't, so why don't you just go out there and buy me some posters." I kept quiet though, I knew he'd eventually answer it himself anyway. "Jeepers, look at that nonsense. I don't know how the heck you can watch that crap. You must have something better to do than waste your time on this. There's something wrong with a guy like that. It's not very funny," were the last words  he said as he walked away shaking his head. I don't blame dad for his reaction, he probably wasn't the only person who thought the same. I mean, here was Bowie in a blue jacket, a matching blue skirt, and high heels singing TVC15. I can see why a few people may have found that "different." I love TVC15. I never thought I would see Bowie's head superimposed on a  string controlled marionette dancing to Boy's Keep Swinging. I did though. 

Greenwich Village in New York is where Bowie's apartment was, and where he would stay for the early part of 1980. He was here to complete some work in order to fulfil an obligation, and to tie up a few "loose" ends. That was not the only "end" either, but no one knew at the time. An era also was coming to its final conclusion. The last decade would become history, and it would be viewed in the future with great sadness, because it is gone, and because it took so much with it. Myself, and many others feel that had we known how valuable this time was, we may have cherished it even more, but, like all things, we took it for granted. At least we were there however, and grateful for that beyond words. The battle inside Bowie raged even more, the new person inside was still not strong enough to emerge and consume Bowie, for now anyway. In time though, it would be the victor, but not suddenly. The artistic character Bowie now was, would shine one last time, when it fulfilled a promise. The promise? It was to RCA. One last album. Scary Monsters And Super Creeps. 
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Part Thirty Eight

In the early part of 1980 Bowie began work on what would come to pass as the last album he would make for the RCA Records And Tapes label. This album was his last obligation to them, and would fulfil the terms of his contract. Although he was still "signed" to RCA and MainMan for a little longer than two more years, meaning he could not release anything on another label, he was essentially free, for the first time in his life. 

Scary Monsters is another overlooked album, along with Low and a few others. Ashes To Ashes, Scary Monsters, Fashion, Teenage Wildlife, It's No Game will be the songs quickly recollected as the majority of you disagree that this album is overlooked. Most of you will say it is completely the opposite in fact, you will say this album is WELL KNOWN, even to non Bowie fans because of the two hits it produced. Sorry, you are still mistaken, it is overlooked. People may be able to easily recognize the album and know most of the songs, even if EVERY TRACK on it became a number one hit, it could still be overlooked. You wonder? Well, Scary Monsters is not overlooked in terms of song recognition. Scary Monsters is overlooked however for what it is, and I know this to be true, because if it wasn't then you would hear people mention what I am referring to more often, but I NEVER hear it discussed, EVER! 

Oh, I agree as an album that Scary Monsters is not overlooked, it is in fact one of the better known Bowie albums, and if people don't know the album itself, they are familiar with some of the songs from it. That is not my point, besides, popularity is not relevant in the least when it comes to LOOKING at an album. The songs are not ignored, they are talked about often I say, even so, that is not relevant either, and that is because of what is usually discussed, which is again, popularity, oh, and personal opinion. Personally, if I were you, I would not be too quick to admit that I didn't overlook Scary Monsters myself for the reasons that I know the album, and I recognize the material from it, or I know the video. I say this because each of those reasons are superficial, and I do not bother with what is superficial, and this is one of the reasons that I have a poor opinion of the music, and the so called "artists," we are plagued with  today. Oh, yes, I include Mr. Bowie in there as well, but I wish I didn't have too. All of it is superficial, it lacks any substance, there is nothing behind it at all of any importance, no depth musically, no depth lyrically, no depth whatsoever. I am going beyond the superficial, and THAT is the reason I say this album is overlooked. It is my opinion, one that I believe is proven simply by listening to the album, that the two most important things that make Scary Monsters the album that it is, are the two things I RARELY, if EVER, hear mentioned. What then? It isn't obvious? I guess not or I wouldn't be writing this. How silly of me. Oh, well, that isn't the first time. The brilliance of the album Scary Monsters And Super Creeps is found first, in the writing, and second, in the music produced by those who played on it. THAT, is what is overlooked. Oh, and if not, then why do you never seem to hear these things mentioned by anyone. See? Interesting. 

The lyrics on Scary Monsters are among his best, and the album as a whole stands as the greatest social statement he ever made. This was not accidental either, by the way, it was planned. With the lyrics for Lodger,  Bowie departed from his traditional method of working, which was composing the lyrics in the studio, making them up as he went along. The lyrics were written after the music was completed. This was the first time Bowie had done this with an entire album. Scary Monsters was a first as well, because Bowie wrote all of the lyrics for the album in ADVANCE. This demonstrates just how important the message was to Bowie, by the fact that he took the time, and gave them such close attention, to be sure that  he got out exactly what he wanted to say. Bowie built the songs this time around the lyrics. 

Arguably, the talent of the musicians in the band on this album rates as the best, or close to the best, line ups that Bowie has ever assembled to work with him. The music is a solid testament to this I believe, and Scary Monsters stands out in this regard, it has its own place. The core of the group comprised of veteran musicians Carlos Alomar on guitar, Dennis Davis on percussion and George Murray on bass. A former Bowie guitarist returned for this album, and as usual, he left his unmistakable signature on every track he played on. His contribution succeeded in proving once again, that as far as technical guitar players are concerned, there is Robert Fripp, and then there's Robert Fripp. Also on guitar was Chuck Hammer, who later went on to work with Lou Reed. Also returning, from the Station To Station sessions this time, on piano, Roy Bittan. Andy Clark handled the duties on synthesizer. The backing vocals were performed by Lynn Maitland, Chris Porter as well as David Bowie, who also played keyboards. Solo artist, and guitarist for The Who, Pete Townsend contributed a little, as well as Japanese vocalist Michi Hirota: The album, like many other of Bowie's finest works, owes an enormous debt to producer Tony Visconti, who produced this album as well along with Bowie, and played acoustic guitar on two of the tracks. 

Once again Bowie succeeded in not only procuring a pool of marvellous talent to draw from for Scary Monsters, but he organized a cohesive and an extremely productive working environment. This point is also overlooked, and it should not be, Bowie DESERVES a great amount of credit for managing to do this, it is not an easy task to accomplish. It is not confined to artists, but those individuals who are high achievers, or posses a high degree of skill, intelligence, or talent in a certain area tend to be a bit difficult to manage. These are people just like me, as a very fine example, intelligent, talented, gifted, know everything there is to know, good looking, successful, highly superior to others, witty, motivated, always right, never wrong, opinionated, never make mistakes, wealthy, admired, competitive, respected, gifted, egotistical, worshipped by most, well dressed, mostly perfect, humble and modest. These personality types often do not work well together. This is because their strengths and successes leads to the development of an extremely  high level of personal confidence, often referred to, inaccurately many times, as ego. Their methods have worked well for them, they made them high achievers, therefore it is difficult for them to accept change, or adopt other people's ideas, they rely on their own ingenuity. Countless bands have  been destroyed because of this. It can also deeply effect one's character. I do not, will not, and have no desire, to discover the music of Oasis. You may think my reason is daft, well, so be it. I will not entertain the work of Oasis because I have no respect for Liam Gallagher. Yep! It is ONLY because of him. His own "self worth" along with an ample supply of cash, has allowed him to demonstrate the fact that he firmly believes that he is far superior to any other example of God's handy work. In this belief he feels that he has the right to do what he pleases, without any regard for others. Celebrities do not intimidate me, what others worship them for, I consider their 9 to 5 job. Acting, painting, writing music is WORK. It is no more special to me than your job or mine. Liam Gallagher is a spoiled brat, he is abusive, disrespectful, arrogant, unappreciative and he belittles others. If he behaved around me the way he does around others I would smack him in the fucking head with a 26 ounce vodka bottle. Oh, and an empty one too, in case it broke, which it would. Maybe I am different, but if you want to keep company with me, or get my attention, then you must earn my respect first. Sorry, I have standards. when it comes to who I associate with, and they must be met. The vast majority of people seem to be in awe of celebrities, they view them as superior, and what is frightening to me, is the  fact that they blindly "WORSHIP" them as DEITIES. These people determine someone's value as a person by how they look, what they have, as far as material possessions are concerned and the value of a bank balance.  I, on the other hand, do not measure the worth of someone that way. I do not give a fuck about their looks, their job, their car, money, clothes, house, or other possessions. This is because people are not superficial to me, with regards to their value, I go far beyond that. I determine the worth of people for their personal beliefs, demeanour, inner character and the things which are valuable to them. I look for those who honour their commitments, are truthful, who respect others, especially those who respect people who are less fortunate than themselves, which demonstrates to me the degree of THEIR SELF respect. I value honour and integrity, above material goods and money. Liam Gallagher demonstrates none of these characteristics which I value, so I do not have any respect for him, therefore he can FUCK RIGHT OFF until he learns some manners. I do not expect someone to associate with me until I have EARNED their respect and trust, I value others enough that I am prepared to work for their friendship, it is too valuable a commodity to be just "given" away for nothing. It goes against my strong belief in the Bible as well to elevate something such as Liam Gallagher to the status of a "God," or Bowie for that matter. This is one reason I shun the Church Of Bowiezoidnet. 

Many of the "stars" in the "entertainment" industry these days, are nothing more than  idolized "children with money." The problem is that the worshipping public are accepting of ANYTHING that these stars do, without question. The public has no morals that they expect these people to live by. Six marriages, some are caught cavorting by the media while still married, some pack handguns, others have used them. Assaults, rape, drugs, booze, you name it. Yes, it is not just celebrities, the problem is though, we find no fault in them for these things. As far as their work, well again, the public accepts it all. There are no public standards. Sadly, it didn't used to be like that. I often get criticism, usually from Bowie fans, because I make it clear that I have set standards for myself, in regards to all things in my life. Bowie had them in the seventies. I still have mine, and look at him at times. Wrong, I do not judge, and I do not tell others how to live, or behave. However, I can grieve the loss of an artist and his music. When people had standards, music, art and life itself was much better. Today however, Standards are replaced by Stupidity. No? Really. Then try this on for size. The Tate Gallery in London recently purchased a can containing 30 grams of shit. This can is number 004 in a series of 90 that were made by Italian concept "artist" Piero Manzoni. The exhibit is called, The Shit Of The Artist. The gallery paid more than 100 times the going rate for gold for each gram of shit. The gallery paid  £22,300, that's  52,000  in US dollars, for this "seminal work." I am awash in wonder, as I ponder the unfathomable, and incalculable levels of stupidity that people are capable of. I hear the statement, "Art is in the eye of the beholder. We all see things differently." I say that a person first of all should set some quality standards for what they determine is art. I know there are many of you who will defend  this shit, excuse the pun, as art, citing "free expression" someplace in there. I say, this is NOT ART. Furthermore, if you defend it as such I pity you, for your low, or complete lack of standards. Sorry, but I don't consider you too bright either, and that I can prove. This is NOT art, it is something to prove how stupid, gullible and fickle people are, and I know this for a fact. You are wrong if you this has value as a piece of art. No, it is not my opinion, I have another person who agrees with me on this. "Who," you ask? Well, Piero Manzoni, the artist who canned this shit agrees with me. In a letter to a friend Manzoni said his motivation for canning and selling his own faeces was to expose gullible art buyers. Now, since the artist who created this exhibit says that it isn't art, where does that leave you then? Only one of you is right, and that is the person who made it. He knows more than you why it was done. He did this before, selling his fingerprints  on hard-boiled eggs, and staging a competition to see who can draw the longest line. His was 7.2 km. "If collectors really want something intimate, really personal to the artist, there's the artist's own shit,"  he said in the letter. I find this amusing except for one detail, and that is that there are hungry and homeless people in distress in this world, and rather than help we chose to spend over $50,000 on a can of shit instead. That says it all I believe. 

What I fail to understand is this. Why is it that the average person can't figure out the fact that most of these "art" exhibits are done by these "artists" for the sole purpose of seeing if they can pull it off. They create something completely useless, or disgusting, and see if the public is first, actually stupid enough to accept it as art, and second, brain dead enough to pay thousands or millions for it. Rarely are these artists ever disappointed, and they laugh all the way to the bank. The vast majority of society have their priorities in a mess, with their heads stuck in a TV or video game they are like tranquillized sheep, unthinking they follow  the crowd doing what they're told to do , liking what they are told to like, buying what they are told to buy, thinking what they are told to think , dressing how they are told to dress, no standards, low morals and unquestioning as they drift through life. Consider these for a moment. "Art" an exhibit featuring nothing but 15 blank canvases. One gallery features a painting of the Virgin Mary, in a gray  robe against a flat gold backdrop. Small cut outs of vaginas and buttocks from pornographic magazines are stuck to the picture to suggest putti. A ball of shit is meant to be one of the Virgin's breasts. I like this one, the Golden Tower Project.  It is a seven foot tower made of 400 jars of urine which were collected from artists  around the country. The jars are stacked one on top of the other on 16 metal bases and lit by electroluminescent wires. This next one sure has value. It consists of security camera stills of James Bulger with his murderers. Here, two sheets of paper and a slice of salami. The fat from the salami soaks into the paper leaving an imprint. Rotting meat and vegetables, dead animals, human cadavers, aluminium foil, dirt, and the best one, it was NOTHING. Yep. You paid to go into a gallery that was empty, it was the art of "nothing." There was a line up to get in. Tell me we have our priorities set right. 

This society we live in is focused on those things which are temporary, that which is superficial, things meaningless when compared to eternity, we deny truth, choosing instead to live in a happy illusion  of our own making,  believing in our own fabrication of a world, rather than face the grimness of the real one.  We live in a frantic, confused and panic driven world. The world is comparable to the sound that suddenly hits you from the guitar of Robert Fripp on the opening track of Scary Monsters. Equally as frantic is the statement "Shiruetto ya kage." Accurate words in my opinion. 

AladinSAne 

To be continued?

	Posted 5 July 2002


Part Thirty Nine

Bowie's disillusionment towards society, which sets the tone for Scary Monsters, is evident from the first three words of the opening line of It's No Game. "Silhouettes and shadows" The first verse reveals a major change, a shift, and obviously not one that was in the right direction, and it's not a game. There is a lot to be said about the sound of the vocals on this track. According to Bowie he wanted part one of It's No Game to covey a lot of "intensity." This was certainly accomplished by Fripp's guitar, which does a fantastic imitation of a berserk chain saw on speed, and the nerve rattling vocal "dual" between Bowie and Michi Hirota. To add to the edginess, and feel of confusion on the track, it was Bowie's intention to make the vocals sound almost inarticulate in places. Bowie says he owes a lot to John Lennon, and he credits him with the idea for the vocal sound on this track. Although he did not elaborate, I believe he was trying to communicate the uncertainty, and raw emotion that Lennon is able to convey so well with his voice. "Mother,” being a fine example. It is easy to hear the Lennon influence on the vocals for part one of It's No Game,  Bowie succeeded in this regard, both in style, and in the intensity they project. It was Bowie's intent to attack, and break down,  the stereotypical attitude towards women in this song also. He decided on doing so by selecting a Japanese girl, because this stereotyping is best displayed by the attitudes people have towards Japanese Geisha's. Bowie wanted to dispel the notions of women being, sweet, non thinking, incapable of making decisions and merely around to fill the role of servants.  He wanted Michi Hirota to sound more like a Samurai, rather than a submissive female. There is a definite reason that the vocal styles on It's No Game part one, and It's No Game part two, are radically different. The latter of course, being much more subdued. Interestingly enough, Bowie did not wish to have It's No Game come across as one blatant protest song. The two different styles are to reflect that the feelings of anxiousness about society can be expressed on different levels, and in different degrees of intensity. 

What is also rather intense also are the lyrics. This album is a magnificent example, probably the best, of Bowie as a conceptual writer. He wastes no time in using It's No Game to state the major points which make up the "theme" of the album. These points he will elaborate on later in the album. Bowie makes it clear, he did long before he wrote this, that he shares a similar opinion to mine about society.  I believe that this society we live in is focused on those things which are temporary, that which is superficial, things meaningless when compared to eternity, we deny truth, choosing instead to live in a happy illusion  of our own making,  believing in our own fabrication of a world, rather than face the grimness of the real one. I stated this in the last segment of Images. The distinction however is clear, the majority "buy" into it, and some have the gift to see right through it for what it really is. The lyrics on Scary Monsters are the written observations of one of those who sees right through it.  These observations have been made by others before him, and many times over. Even so, it doesn't detract from the fact that they are both eloquent, and brilliant. 

Now, before I begin discussing this writing, I wish to make a few points so there will be no mistaking what is fact, and what is an opinion. As in this case, I wrote a general overview of what Bowie's intentions were for this song. All of that is fact, it came from Bowie. and I gathered it from those interviews. I will provide Bowie's perspective for each track that I mention. The sources for the interpretation of individual lines or verses will be properly credited, if they are not mine. 

"It defies, all logic, reasoning, intelligent thought and simple common sense," would be the perspective one would gain by looking at society from the outside. It is easy to see why someone wouldn't, "understand the situation." The truth is that the ones who come to realize these things about society obviously do not fit in, because they can't. This is because they would have to go against their rational thought, defy their senses of logic and reasoning, and rid themselves of common sense. Now, since these are the things which are extremely valuable to these individuals, their intellect would never allow them throw them away. Even if it was possible, most of these types of thinkers have absolutely no desire to fit, they do not need acceptance from society and therefore would not lower themselves just for the sake of fitting in. They are in fact, "barred from the event." The barriers between these people and society are unconsciously "self imposed." They are unable, even if they wanted, to think the same way as public opinion dictates that most do. You see, most of society has their beliefs rooted in the truthfulness of public opinion, and that which is widely accepted. They live their lives based on it, and it governs everything. Public opinion comes from the faith we have in ourselves because we are intelligent, and all of the vast knowledge we have accumulated through academics and the sciences Public opinion and the trends that it produces, becomes our reality. 

The reality is that if "You throw a rock against the road" it will break "into pieces." That is a fact Bowie states, it is the truth, it is reality, and it is stated to demonstrate that what Bowie sees, and has written about on this album, is in fact the truth. While the majority of those have faith in the wisdom of humanity, and live their lives in the belief of public opinion, people on the "outside" do not. These individuals do not believe in public opinion, and that which is widely accepted, they have no faith whatsoever in the combined wisdom of mankind, or their trends, because public opinion is usually wrong, it does not lead to any truth, but deception instead. Those on the "outside" seek reality, while the majority prefer to believe the nonsense of public opinion, and live in a world that is in fact an illusion. What is worse we "draw the blinds on yesterday" as Bowie said, meaning we "forget" our past, choosing to ignore it, and therefore we are destined to never learn a thing from history. This will guarantee an endless repetition of our past mistakes forever, and going by history, that's the way it's going to be. I agree with Bowie it's all "so much scarier. 

"Put a bullet in my brain, and it makes all the papers." You know, I read that and I am reminded in an instant why I have been following this guy's work religiously through three decades with no plans on ever stopping, unless death gets in the way. It will get one Hell of a fight first. If Death  thinks that separating me from my Ryko AU20 remaster of Station To Station is going to be a easy, he had better reconsider.  If he plans showing up at my place and taking me away without my AU20, then he has another thing coming,  First off, the  guy desperately needs a new costume designer, and second, I do not fear him at all, and be warned that sickle of his may wind up sticking out of his ass if he isn't careful. He had better be prepared to show me the sound system on "the other side" first. If I can't take my Station To Station AU20 along, or if he has bad speakers, quite simply I am not going anywhere.  Station To Station and I will never be separated, even by the combined forces of the universe. It would be wise for Death to stay home, because if he even attempts to procure me without my CD I will in fact kill him. One of my reasons for becoming interested in the work of Bowie was his writing. He has a magnificent ability to take a thousand ideas, and put them on one line. His descriptive abilities are amazing. He can be serious or humorous, and quite often sarcastic as he plays with words. Sometimes his words are penetrating when they strike you, often emotional and deeply moving.  In many instances Bowie's words are not just heard, they are felt as well. To be able to draw emotion out of a reader is a wonderful gift for a writer to have, and Bowie has this gift. "Put a bullet in my brain, and it makes all the papers," is a perfect example of all of his writing abilities, written in one line. 

That lyric rates to me as one of his best. It certainly is one of the most powerful statements he has ever penned. As is common though with Bowie, he has riddled it with sarcasm, and it is necessary to look at it closely to get the point he is making. This lyric to some is elusive, and it is not difficult to explain why. It must be taken in context with the overall subject matter of Scary Monsters. This line amazingly clever, and it is a scathing attack on the priorities we have as a society. Just look at the world. What do you see? The media has to carry the information that the MAJORITY want to know, it's a matter of economics. Radio, TV and the print media only survive by one means, advertising dollars, and advertisers look at demographics when they purchase space. There are TWO things that are most important to an advertiser when they are selecting where to spend. First, they look for the best vehicle with which to reach the audience that they have targeted. The next is "cost per thousand." Simply put, this is how much will it cost me to reach each person in my targeted audience. Take for an example two television networks, I'll use ABC and NBC. The advertiser knows that the best time to reach the audience he wants is Friday night between 8 and 9 PM. Each network charges the same for a commercial, let's say $100,000.00 for example. If the show on ABC draws two million viewers, and the show on NBC draws three million, it costs less on NBC per thousand. Your $100,000.00 will reach a million more potential customers by advertising on NBC, over ABC. This is why the ratings are so vital to media corporations, because the more viewers you attract, the more  advertisers you attract, and advertisers are money. To attract these viewers the media must report what the majority of the people WANT TO HEAR, and not what they determine is relevant to world events, or they will not tune in. People do not really want to hear about the reality of things, because it upsets them, and this is the reason for the watered down sap we get called news. 

Where, may I ask, was the media when Cambodian dictator Pol Pot systematically murdered two and a half million of the country's population, who were all innocent of any crimes? When children were eating grass and plants in an attempt to fend off starvation in North Korea, where was the media? There are nations in the world today who are practising genocide against minorities, where is the media? There are many in the world who eat from the garbage left over by others, and then there are those who do not even have the luxury of garbage to eat. Where is the media? The ONLY WAY that the evils in this world can be addressed is if we are MADE AWARE of them. That is SUPPOSED to be the responsibility of the media, but it is not. The news we receive today has been tidied up and arranged into a nice little package designed to attract an audience, rather than report on the true state of the planet. A disaster is a great event in order to draw a crowd, and the bigger the better. It is an awful thing to have to admit this, but the World Trade Center disaster was a jackpot to the media financially, especially to newspapers and magazines. If a disaster strikes, let's say a famine, the media will rush to cover the event. Now, a famine is quite serious, unless you feel children dying from a lack of food is no big deal, and this is the type of situation which should demand a lot of media attention The more people that know about it, and the more they are made aware of the gravity of the situation, then the more they will help. The media coverage should be uncensored, and the  pictures shown should reflect the reality of the problem, even if they are graphic. The truth must be conveyed, at any cost, because lives are at stake. The media must cover such an event over a PROLONGED period, or until the problem is solved, this reflects the true need for assistance, and keeps people from forgetting about the problem. That is how the media should work, but it doesn't. 

As I said, wherever disaster strikes you will see the media run like Hell to get there. Not only that, they will climb over each other in order to get as close to the problem as possible. The way a story is covered is important, as some are much better than others. In a war it is best to get as close to where the bullets are flying, or hopefully under a falling bomb. During a famine  look for the thinnest people. After a tornado  the area that has suffered the most damage, or the area where you find the most people who are sifting through the debris of their homes, attempting to salvage what they can of their lives. If a child is kidnapped or murdered try and get as close to the parents as you can in order to get a few comments. Plane crashes are best if you can get a picture of them on the way down,  preferably in flames. If there is a disease epidemic try to get pictures of as many of the victims as possible, preferably all in a big pile. This is all of course to get the "inside track," the closer you get, the more graphic the coverage. Unfortunately this graphic coverage is not presented in a way designed to draw any positive attention to an event, but instead it is used as sensationalism, designed to grab the attention of people and attract an audience. In this case graphic pictures are acceptable because they are only shown for a brief period, long enough to get someone's attention. They are not shown long enough however, to properly convey the reality of a situation in most instances. This is because the vast majority of people do not like to look a what mankind is capable of doing to mankind, or the reality of the world, because it "upsets" us. The old saying, "out of sight, out of mind," comes in to play here. The media avoids portraying the reality of things because it hurts business, the truth drives people away. Now, a disaster usually receives limited coverage, rather than having it focused on long enough to make the world respond. A disaster will only be covered long enough until the next one occurs. This would not be so terrible if the media at least continued to cover some of the previous events on an ongoing basis, but they don't. As soon as the next news worthy tragedy appears, they all bolt like lightening in that direction, dropping the old one as fast a copy of Tonight, or Never Let Me Down. They do this because it is important to be one of the first to cover a disaster, getting the "scoop" on things. You see, a new story keeps your audience tuned in to your station, old ones are useless, people get "bored," and that's bad for business. The trouble is that once a story is out of the media it is forgotten by people. We don't solve problems we can't remember, and the starving continues. 

The media pays little mind into giving any sort of worthwhile coverage to the problems in the world that require them. However, should Britney Spears break a fingernail, it hits the front page. A photographer was caught behind the organ in the church Madonna was going to be married in, he had been there for two days. Imagine, your blinds, pale blinds, are drawn all day for one reason, to prevent someone from thrusting a camera in your house to try and photograph you in a compromising position. Why? To feed the insatiable desire of the public. Just think, you will never be alone again, you will be watched either by a bodyguard, the press, the public, or all three at once. Your privacy is gone, forever. Why? It is because YOU ARE THE NEWS, AND PEOPLE WANT THE NEWS. Diana Ross was involved in an incident once that was a travesty of justice, and what occurred was so inhumane that it was covered by every major television network, as well as the news papers. The security alert was triggered after Diana Ross passed through a metal detector at Heathrow Airport. The security personnel that were on duty actually had the audacity to ask Miss. Ross to stop for a moment so they could ascertain what caused the alarm to be triggered. It was wrong, of course, for the security guards to do this. Ross refused to submit to any further screening, and it was then when it happened. One of the guards TOUCHED HER. Now, to touch Diana Ross is improper because she sings songs, therefore she is above the law. Her "harassment" by the security personnel at Heathrow made the news on every major television networks, and it "made all the papers." Courtney Love skipped out on a $15,000.00 massage bill, Britney Spears opened a restaurant, Tommy Lee and Kid Rock love silicone, and Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine, Celine. Ozzy Osboure, his foul mouth, his wife, and one of his offspring, received FOURTEEN MILLION DOLLARS to have their everyday lives filmed and shown on television. Now, you tell me the state of this world, and the mindset of the majority of its inhabitants, when we find other people's lives more valuable than our own, so valuable that we idolize them. What is terrifying to me is not just that, but LOOK AT WHOSE LIVES WE ARE INTERESTED IN. What are the reasons to admire these people? Anna Nicole Smith is getting her own show that is similar to the Osbourne's. What is her claim to fame? Her value to us is the fact that she married an extremely wealthy man who was in his nineties, when she was in her early twenties, to get his money. Pamela Anderson has done what in life? Well? She wore a bathing suit on television in order to display the results of the numerous plastic surgeries she has had, she married a drummer from a famous band, she was seen performing sex acts on a self made video that was stolen from her house, she got divorced, starred in an awful movie, and is now dating another musician. I see her in the paper three times a week. Why? It is because she IS NEWS. Why?  Well, truthfully, I don't know, ask "THEM." The true indicator of the combined intelligence of society is the television. Now, remember that these networks have to attract viewers in order to sell advertising, and so in order to attract viewers you do not put what YOU want on TV, you put the programs that THE PUBLIC WANT. Well, look at what they want. Survivors, Friends, Seinfeld, Who Wants To Marry A Millionaire, Greed, Fear Factor and the rest of it. I admit it in front of millions of people on television that I have no interest in marrying a person for their values, therefore I want to be a contestant on Who Wants To Marry A Millionaire. Huh? Get the kids together to watch Greed, so they learn something. The media ignores the true issues of importance in this world, but if Bowie were to, " Put a bullet in his brain, it would make all the papers." Bowie is right too. Wonderful priorities we have. 

"There's always tomorrow," is wishful thinking. "To be insulted by these fascists - it's so degrading." It is an insult to a thinking person to expect them to believe what they are told to by society. "It's no game." It's no laughing matter. 

"It's an odd piece of music," Bowie said about Up The Hill Backwards. I'll explain why. 

AladINsaNE 

To....................

	Posted 8 July 2002

	 


Part Forty

	Yes, Bowie called Up The Hill Backwards an "odd piece of music." I agree, few wouldn't, that it is unusual.  According to Bowie, "on first hearing it conveys a cynical, shrugged off attitude," sort of, "there's nothing we can do about it."  He stated that it is "the epitome of indifference." By the end however he insists that, "it makes a commitment." He wanted to "block in the song" at both ends using what he calls , the high energy Fripp, quasi Bo Diddley sound as bookends. It has "more power than it would seem at first as a commitment. But by the end it has a strong commitment, disguised as indifference." 

	I have to take Bowie's word about the strong commitment, what I do know however is that once again this song contains, one, if not the best, lines he has ever written. More on that in a minute. " The vacuum created by the arrival of freedom, and the possibilities it seems to offer." I take that literally, and when I do I see an amazing amount of insight, and I am in awe of it. Freedom did arrive. It did. We saw its arrival in the form of the various "movements," such as the "women's movement," as well as "revolutions," such as the "sexual revolution." The, "possibilities they seemed to offer" were quite appealing, through them we would attain "NEW FREEDOMS, we would be "LIBERATED," we would have more "RIGHTS." We forgot to consider the fact though, that mankind should not be let loose, especially armed with the bulk of its "wisdom," because knowledge is dangerous in the hands of mankind. The fall of the Roman Empire, the greatest empire there ever was, can be attributed to one major factor, the breakdown of the family unit. Now it is the family unit that is the "foundation" of our society, if it is destroyed I do not have to tell you that society will collapse. The so called "sexual revolution" was supposed to "free us, " and it did. It was  because of the sexual revolution that sex is no longer taboo. It advocated "free love," which in reality meant that it was now morally acceptable to go out and fuck everything, and anything,  you wanted to at will, without any sort of a commitment to that person. In addition it allowed the homosexual community to "come out of the closet," The whole of society was effected, it changed dramatically as a result of the sexual revolution. This is because it also redefined what was morally acceptable to us. What we saw on television, in the movies, heard on the radio, read, and the general attitudes towards sex, and what was permissible, all changed. We became more promiscuous. What is the value of something that is just "given" away?  Is it really worth that much to anyone? Then, what is the value of "free" sex? How much respect does a person have for you who is unwilling to make any type of a commitment? Zero, on both counts. 

	Unfortunately, the acceptance of this sexual freedom mainly served to desensitize society. What was once shocking pornography, was now available for the "liberated family" to watch on prime time television. We could all learn "new" words now. With our values now lowered, it made it much easier to accept other examples of a degrading society. Drive by shootings, serial killing, high school massacres, rape, children packing  9 mm hand guns, gang violence and the behavior of celebrities. The sexual revolution was hampered however by its bi-products. AIDS, Herpes Syndrome 2, Clyamidia and a few other nasty little diseases. The lack of commitment led to millions upon millions of "one parent families" where it is a struggle for them to make ends meet. They drain the social welfare system, but the major damage is done to the children of these families. Kids are meant to be raised by adults, that way they learn how to cope with life, and how to behave. The difference between what is right, and what is wrong, stem from the teachings of parents, they need role models, a boy needs his father, a girl, her mother. It wasn't just the sexual revolution that destroyed many families, in fact, the "women's movement" did more. 

	Liberation. Women's Liberation freed women so they could now go and be a slave for a corporation, doing a work fifty hour work week. This is instead of doing the useless job of loving and raising your own child at home, to prepare them for life. Being at home is a disgrace to a woman's self worth, according to the "freedom fighters," your worth is really determined by the corporate ladder, and how far you get. You can now prove your worth as well, on a piece of construction machinery, on an oil rig, or as a prestigious handler of roofing tar. You can even drive a truck to get far away from home, or go and shoot someone by joining the Army. Thank God for Liberation. Especially thankful for the women's movement are the baby sitters, for the simple reason of the hard cash they get paid for raising other people's children. You drop little Joey off at the sitters at 7:30 AM. Little Joey is fed, and then placed in front of the television for a few hours. Joey receives the benefit of having his attitudes formed at a young age by the shows he watches, and this prepares him for later life. Later, Joey is picked up at five, by two parents who are too tired from work to give him much attention. When he is old enough to go to school on his own, Joey can come home to an empty house everyday, where there is no one to set guidelines, or rules he must obey. Joey sets his own values, helped along by his television education, and the wisdom of friends his own age. Skipping school, shop lifting, car theft, break and enters, drug dealing, and involvement in gangs  are great options for Joey with all this free time on his hands. If Joey is lucky enough, well, chances are good, to come from a single parent family he also gets the benefit of one less role model, so he can pick his own. Joey can choose from Kurt Cobain, Liam Gallagher, Tupac Shakur, Notorious, Lee Harvey Oswald, Osama Bin Laden, Cindy Crawford, Tinkerbell, Timothy McVeigh, or Jason from the movie Halloween. So, many wonder possibilities. If he wanted to Joey could even succeed in getting sixteen years to life from copying one of these role models, in a Federal Penitentiary. Now, do not misinterpret me here. I see nothing wrong at all with women who wish to pursue a career outside of the home. I do see a problem however when women who choose to stay home are called slaves to men, or demeaned by the insinuation that raising a child full time is a waste of time, compared to working for a corporation. 

	These revolutions have also freed fifty four percent of the population from their wedding vows. The freedom from having to honour our commitments has certainly had an effect on society. Just ask those who saw the Roman Empire collapse. If the truth be known, what we have attained through these freedoms is, as Bowie said, "a vacuum." They have succeeded in forcing us to accept the things which we would not have been willing to accept before, probably due to a higher code of ethics. Since the scope of what we are expected to accept now has broadened, it has given licence to society to test these new boundaries, by going over them. Artists push at these boundaries consistently, seeing how far they can go over the line of decency before someone objects. Radio personalities, I use the term for politeness only, such as Howard Stern are no different. It is practised in every facet of the entertainment industry. You see though, the more they push, the more we accept, and along the way society becomes desensitized. As time goes on, it takes more and more to get a reaction from people due to the loss of our senses. This explains why television shows have to continually find new ways to "SHOCK" the viewing audience in order to attract them. It used to be that the quality of a show, the writing, acting and such, was sufficient to hold the attention of viewers. The quality of music a radio station played was what determined a listening audience. Now we have to see a person stick their head in a box of tarantulas,  eat pig entrails, or suffer on an island without food before we tune in. Cartoons for our children, such as Bugs Bunny, are no longer exciting enough. Nowadays we must have some character, who is a mutant version of  Bart Simpson, tell us to, "FUCK OFF SHITHEAD!" 

	By being desensitized to those things that used to violate our code of ethics, has lead us to the acceptance of the ills of our society. What used to shock us, is now seen as "routine," oh, another one, no big deal. I am referring to drive by shootings, high school massacres, children murdering other children, crooked politicians, war, genocide and the rest of it. We have become "used" to it. We have become, as what Bowie said this song displays so well, a society of "indifference." Our attitude toward things is, "WHAT EVER," more often than not. They crossed a monkey with a jellyfish using their genes. Oh, and spinach with a pig too. Don't believe me, neither did I? Go look it up and you will see that I am being straight. They are genetically altering whatever they can. Why? It is because we have not imposed any restrictions on them, they are free to do what they want. Will they clone a human? You bet they will, we won't stop them. Do you know that almost ninety percent of cloning attempts fail?  So, what do we do with the ones that fail, and are born anyway, accept it? The next generation, our children, have been exposed to this "freedom" since birth. The violence from television, the movies, Play Station, never mind the goings on in the world. What is it going to take to "shock" them into reality the future. History has proven that we can't allow society, and its leaders, to go unchecked, they need to be regulated, restrictions in the form of a code of ethics must be imposed. Instead however, we are removing any ethical boundaries in the name of "FREEDOM." Because of the vacuum of indifference we choose to live in, and giving society the freedom to do what ever it pleases, we are just begging for trouble. We'll get it too. 

	They told us freedom would come through our advances in technology, Yes, technology would set us free. At one point it was envisioned that our average work week would be 28 hours, and we would retire by age 38 because most of our work would become automated, mostly through the computer. Instead, we have been enslaved by technology. It has not improved us as humans, it has destroyed our standard of living. Yes, things are easier with the microwave and cell phones, but society and the family unit overall has been decimated by our technological advances. Television was one of those advances. The average American watches NINE YEARS of TV in a 65 year life span. The television is so valued that 99% of homes have at least one, and 66% have three or more. The percentage of families that regularly watch television while eating dinner is also 66 % and this is why parents spend two or three minutes a day in meaningful conversation with their children. The breakdown of the family unit starts early in life. Seventy percent, (70%), of all day care facilities have televisions, so by the time a child reaches the ages of four to six the TV has become so ingrained in them that 54% of them will choose TV over spending time with their fathers. As babies children are dumped in front of it at the daycare, and exposed to it at home for almost seven hours a day, and this would explain the fact that it is natural for a child to spend 1500 hours a year glued to the television set, and 900 at school. My generation did not have a lot to choose from on television, we only had twelve channels, but now there are hundreds. This is the TV/Internet generation. Seventeen percent can name three justices of the U.S. Supreme Court, yet 59% can name The Three Stooges. Oh, just wait. The brokerage and investment firm, Merrill Lynch, commissioned a study on the state of education and published it in a book titled, The Book of Knowledge: Investing in the Growing Education and Training Industry. The results on the study you could say were rather alarming. Among the findings were that 43 percent of fourth grade students could not pass a basic reading test. Nearly HALF of all High School GRADUATES were unable to perform mathematical calculations at a grade seven level, and one third of seventeen year olds could not locate France on a world map. 

	The technological boom started in the early seventies, however the mid seventies was when the turning point was. The home computer was no longer the writings of science fiction, it was a reality.  I found an interesting coincidence that along with the technological boom the marriage rate has fallen nearly 30% since 1970, and the divorce rate has increased about 40%. The divorce rate has quadrupled from 4.3 million in 1970 to 18.3 million in 1996. Another interesting fact is that 81% of those divorced cited that the problems in their marriages were ALL DUE TO A LACK OF COMMUNICATION! They felt they got no "emotional support." I know that this will be difficult to believe, it was for me anyway, but I assure you it is true. I know that because I went to a lot of different sources, and read quite a bit in order to make sure that this wasn't one man's theory. It isn't. We live in the so called "Information Age," and therefore you would think that communication has improved along with the volume of information that is now available at our fingertips. If you think that however you would be completely mistaken. The technology which delivers this information to us, the Internet and the television mainly, have in part had a devastating effect on inter personal communication. Bowie said a VACUUM. Listen to this. The internet could be the ultimate isolating technology, that further reduces our participation in communities even more than did automobiles and television before it," said this study. The Society at Stanford performed this study, and it was recently updated, on the effects of the Internet on society.  A report issued from The Stanford Institute for the Quantitative Study of Society on February 16th, 2000, had this to say,. "As Internet use grows, Americans report they spend less time with friends and family, shopping in stores or watching television, and more time working for their employers at home - without cutting back their hours in the office. As it turned out , one of the "KEY" findings of the study was this, "the more hours people use the Internet, the less time they spend in contact with real human beings," said Stanford Professor Norman Nie, Director of SIQSS and principal investigator along with his co-investigator Professor Lutz Erbring of the Free University of Berlin. The University of Detroit did a study on communication between parents and children and found that they spend a total of 14.5 minutes a day talking to each other. This 14.5 minute statistic is misleading however. You see the study went further and evaluated the content of the conversations, only to discover that most of that time is squandered on chit-chat like "What's for supper?" and "Have you finished your homework?" The study found that the duration of meaningful communication lasted an average of two minutes. 

	What the future holds because of online shopping, banking and the ability to obtain services and communicate, is the fact that we will never have to go out very much anymore. This will further reduce the need for human interaction. In a very short time "Smart Cards" will allow us to "download money" without ever leaving home, and with E-government becoming available as well, things  such as licence renewals, applications for permits, passports and other government services will all be on line. Smart Card readers which hook up to your home computer for on line shopping are now a reality. Some companies who offer them are unable to keep up with the demand. In the developed nations every government has a branch of it solely devoted to the introduction and implementation of ecommerce, with Britain, Canada and the United States leading the way. The US has fifty five pilot projects devoted to the development of Smart Cards which will contain all of the plastic cards you now carry all put on to one card. This card is also an "electronic purse," which you download money on to. Every piece of technology required for us to become a cashless society has now been developed and the equipment is made, all that is left  to do really is to "turn it on." Soon names such as Visa Cash and OneSmart will be household names. Hitachi makes a telephone that lets you insert your Smart Card into it and this enables you to down load money to your card at home. A cashless society is closer than most realize, if they wanted to it could be implemented in months, rather than years. The next technological advance that has come to pass is the implantable chip. This chip, about the size of a grain of rice carries all of the information contained on your Smart Card, and is implanted just under your skin. It is also able to do all of the financial transactions that your Smart Card is capable of. This chip is not something of the future, it has not only already been developed, you can buy one at a cost of around $200.00. The next implantable chip will have technology included in it to be able to transmit information such as your vital signs if you are injured. The most interesting feature however is that the chip contains Global Positioning System technology. This allows them to "track" you and know exactly where you are, within three feet, anywhere in the world. This chip is expected to be available within the next twelve to fourteen months. Because these chips carry all of a person's ID, and are implanted, it makes them almost tamper proof in the fact that it would be extremely difficult to alter ones identity. Since this is the case it would be in the best interests of the government to make them mandatory, for reasons of national security. This idea is beyond the "discussion" phase, it has actually moved as far as the "testing" phase. The results could be rather fascinating. Bowie had society figured out quite well, and in one line. There is more however, in Up The Hill Backwards. Really. 
alADiNsaNE 
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Part Forty One

"More idols than realities."  That line says it all.. It describes the world we live in more accurately than anything else I've ever heard. "I'm okay, you're so so." No comment. 

There is some rather "nasty" guitar work from Robert Fripp that becomes the introduction to the title song on the album. This is quite fitting actually as Bowie referred to Scary Monsters as a nasty piece of Londonism Bowie insists that Scary Monsters is based on a character, a corrupter, who is talking about how he corrupted a fine young mind. Bowie describes him as, "a criminal with a conscience, having his own self doubts." There are no doubts however, about the runs that Fripp performs at the end of the song. No doubts at all. 

Bowie once called Ashes To Ashes a 1980's nursery rhyme. He said that he felt that the nursery rhymes from the 80's will have much in common with the  nursery rhymes of the 1880's, and 1890's, which were all rather "horrid." Coming back to Major Tom ten years later was to showcase the disillusionment of the great dream when they shot him off into space, according to Bowie. All the great technology, and wonderful ideas put him up there, but once he got up there, he wasn't quite sure the reason he'd been put there. Major Tom was left up there, and now returning to him ten years later, you can see that the whole thing has soured, because there was no reason to put him up there. It was technological ego that put him in space, but for no specific reason. This potpourri of technological ideas was disastrous, but more disastrous is the solace he takes in a heroin type drug, with cosmic space itself feeding his addiction. All he wants is to return to the womb from which he was born. This explanation certainly adds credibility to Ashes To Ashes being a nursery rhyme for the 1980's. 

From a musical standpoint, Ashes To Ashes offers an almost coming together of the highlights from previous albums which made his work so enthralling. When it was released as I single and I would hear it on an AM radio station, where others were around who were not avid Bowie fans, I remember thinking to myself that these people literally have NO IDEA what they're listening to. This reminds me of an incident one time with my girlfriend when I threw Ashes To Ashes on and told her to LISTEN TO IT. The reply, one I expected, was, "I've heard this lots of times." To which I replied," No you haven't, you heard it, but you've never LISTENED to it."

Right on cue came the puzzled "what do you mean" look that says heard and listen are the same thing. I of course took that look to mean that she thinks heard, and listen, mean the same, which is something personally that I could never understand. Hearing music is one thing, sitting down to LISTED to it so you get something out of it are not the same to me. People seem to think if they hear music playing in the background, and catch a verse, is adequate enough to qualify as listening to music. Whatever. I told my girlfriend to come over here for a minute, motioning to the stereo, where I have two sets of headphones plugged in. As predicted,  I got the "here we go again" look.  Oddly enough, I seem to get a lot of the "here we go again" look, and not just from Min, my girlfriend. I seem to get it from all of my friends. I have noticed that the "here we go again" look is a look unique to each individual, no two are the same, and each person has their own set of facial expressions and body movements which accompany it. I've been studying these looks I get, I want to write about my findings one day. 

All I said was, "Listen to the voices," and it didn't take long for Min's face to light up and express, "WOW!" It was the same expression I am sure that crossed my face at hearing Ashes To Ashes on headphones for the first time. I was watching the counter on my CD player pass 1:40, 1:50 and just before it hit 2:00 I tapped her on the shoulder and mouthed the word, "listen." At 2:03 I mouthed the word, "Here."  What Bowie has done with the vocals at 2:04 on Ashes To Ashes always stops me in my tracks, because the effects are stunning. I have often pointed that part out to friends and said, "Those are voices you know?" Then I get the "no fucking way, you're crazy" look. It never fails, every time I replay it for one of the "skeptics," the reaction is a repeated one from the skeptics before them, "WOW!" That song was wasted on "THEM," if you know what I mean. Do you know anything about Andy Clark? I ask because I don't, and I can't find anything on him either. He's the keyboard player on  Ashes To Ashes, and that synthesizer sound at the end of the song is beyond wonderful, it is a simple sound, yet extremely unique in its presentation. I won't get started on Bittan. Then there is the video. I'll talk about that for sure. 

The video Bowie made for Ashes To Ashes is a masterpiece. And Bowie did make it. The entire concept for the video, from beginning to end, was Bowie's, and he drew the story board for the video  by hand, frame by frame. Bowie directed the video himself, and as a matter of fact this was his first attempt at film directing. There is one particular scene in the video that Bowie was quite happy with. He referred to it as, "organic meeting high tech." This is the scene in the video where Bowie is sitting with all of these plastic tubes running into him. It was supposed to be archetypal Bowie said. The idea behind it was a futuristic colony founded by this human. In that particular scene the "human" is being "pumped" out of him, replaced by something organic. The video was  heavily influenced by the artist H.R Giger. Some of you may not recognize this artist, but I guarantee that you are familiar with his work. His most well known work was done for film director Ridley Scott.  Giger drew all of the sets for the movie Alien, right down to the "Alien." itself, and this won him an Oscar Award in 1980. He has also done several album covers, the two best known are Debbie Harry: Koo Koo, and Emerson, Lake and Palmer: Brain Salad Surgery.  Incidentally, both of these covers were chosen as two of the top 100 best covers of the century by Rolling Stone Magazine. Overall however, there are a lot of clichéd things in the video, but done in such a way that the entire video isn't clichéd. The video reflects a nostalgia for the future, a theme that Bowie insists is a reoccurring one in his work. What interests him is the fact of seeing the future, and finding out that it is someplace we have all ready been. 

Bowie had some other ideas he considered  pursuing on video. One of these ideas was to edit some film he previously shot, and make it available on cassette. While staying at the Pierre Hotel in New York Bowie re-created the set for Diamond Dogs.  He modelled the buildings, which stood three to four feet high, using clay. The buildings for "Hunger City" were constructed on tables, with some of them being intact, while others were crumbling to resemble a city in decay. Using a "micro" lens allowed Bowie to get the camera down in between the buildings, where he filmed as the camera zoomed up and down the streets, and between the tables. He also tried out some animation using these characters he made. One thing interesting about the characters, is that they are  all wearing these oversized, awkward, "organic" looking roller skates. these were used for transportation apparently, because of the lack of available fuel after the collapse of Hunger City. As we all know, once again, the cassette did not appear. 

"It's all about grim determination," Bowie put it. Referring to the Disco's he frequented in the early 70's he said that there was a high powered enthusiasm for fashion, and it was taking a natural course, as opposed to now. This high powered enthusiasm has been replaced by an insidious grim determination to be fashionable, almost like a vocation. There's some kind of strange aura about it. It was this feeling that he wanted to capture in the song. We almost did not get to hear Fashion, because it was presenting too much of a problem for Bowie to write, and therefore almost shelved.  Ah, Ah, Ah, Jamaica, Jamaica Ah, Ah, Ah, Jamaica. Bowie couldn't get that rhyme out of his head. Worse though, he could think of nothing to add to it, it wasn't something he could build on. This was not from lack of effort apparently. He told Visconti that he was dropping it as a possible track for Scary Monsters, because he wasn't going to waste anymore time on it. .Visconti told Bowie, "You can't drop it," and advised him to be a little more patient, obviously seeing the potential. The next morning Ah, Ah, Ah, Jamaica, had become Fa, Fa, Fa, Fa, Fashion, and it went on to become a hit. 

One thing I have noticed is that there is no "middle" ground when it comes to Teenage Wildlife, Bowie listeners  either really like it, or really dislike it. I have also noticed that you would have more success moving Mount Fuji, than to get those who dislike this song to come out of their coma. Hear that Buffer The Rouge? That was addressed to a friend who has been asleep for quite some time, and meant in jest. Bowie says that Teenage Wildlife is addressed to a mythical teenage brother, if he had one, or maybe his own latter day adolescent self. He once said in an interview that it was written for his son. Lucky kid. Bowie has always been impressed with archetypal songs and sets out to write them from time to time, calling Teenage Wildlife one of the more successful. Archetypal means completely original, or  imagery  that is symbolic and has been derived from past experiences. Now, in case you feel that I was attempting to showcase my vocabulary, well, you better think again. I just went and looked up the meaning of "archetypal," because I didn't know what it meant. I put the definition in here just in case there are others out there like me, it saves them from having to go and look it up. The song is an approach to a young mind that has not been forearmed to all of the hypocrisies he will encounter, and the stubbornness to change that people have, and to accept change, to flow with it. Bowie is of the opinion that this refusal to accept change results in people becoming reactionary, they fight against it, and this leads to all of the terrible conflicts we have around us. 

"I don't believe in this high tech society at all. I don't believe it does exist, I think it's a great myth. I think the thought of high tech songs, high tech music, computer buttons, whatever. It's not like that at all. It's on a very emotional people level, flesh and blood. One see it becoming terrifyingly real, anti tech. The old symbolic street fighting thing will not be as symbolic as it was, but it will become a reality. One can foresee that in the dreadful 80's." I pulled that out of an interview which was done in 1980. Bowie was talking about the track Scream Like A Baby. It made me rather happy when I first read it, because it is a statement that I could not agree with more. It was also insurance that I would never have to worry about Bowie getting immersed in the never ending flood of high tech. He was absolutely right when it comes to high tech music, and the point is so simple that I refuse to see how it can't be understood.  Bowie is right, "It's on a very emotional people level, flesh and blood." It's all about EXPRESSION, and  I fail to see expression, emotion, energy, ideology, suggestion or thought come from a Sony SE-MM612-7E  sound replicating interface. A quick tour to get yourself aquatinted with all of their technological "advances" in the making of music, amount to some very interesting reading. That is of course if you take interest in those whose concepts of music are best described as ridiculous. 

The possibilities now exist of an credit on an album reading, "David Bowie -  Data entry instruments."  Oh, and that isn't the work of my imagination either, courses are offered at some major universities on that subject alone. While looking around to get myself further aquatinted with the concepts of high tech music I stumbled upon this piece of wisdom. " Whereas a previous age imagined music in terms of "real" instruments (acoustic, mechanical devices like pianos or violins) and concert halls, most of the music we hear today can be described as electronic-or at least requiring electronics." I'm confused. What does "previous age" mean? To me previous means an era gone past, one that has been replaced. What does it mean, "we imagined music in terms of "real" instruments?" I don't imagine music in terms of "real" instruments, MUSIC IS MADE WITH REAL INSTRUMENTS. In case this person hasn't caught on, music is made by musicians who play real instruments, not by a computer which has no talent. Then I found this, "The goal, quite simply, is to produce a "digital Stradivarius," an electronic musical instrument distinguished by the sound, feel and look of the violins produced 300 years ago by the legendary instrument maker Antonius Stradivarius." Why? Why, try to replicate that which exists? If you want the sound, then get THE REAL THING! Last, I found this, "We have hooked up two joy sticks. One controls the texture...how many notes are being played?...is it chords or melodies?...is it running up and down the keyboard? The other joy stick controls the harmony and things like rhythm. The user guides the machine as it composes. You don't have to remember all the controls since you get the feel for what happens when you move the joy sticks around." Can you imagine the "artistic expression," and the "feel" you're going to get from someone "playing" two joysticks? Bowie is so right, too bad he doesn't think the same way about user pay Internet sites. 

Scream Like A Baby Bowie describes as "future nostalgia," meaning taking a past look at something that hasn't happened yet. I like that. 

Aladinsane. To...............Hmmmmmmm...................
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Part Forty Two

I have something to say before I get started on this instalment of Images, an ongoing series about the characters, life, and work of David Bowie. The purpose that I had for writing this article was forgotten some months ago, yet I am continuing it for a few reasons that I seem to have also forgotten. This segment however, may serve some use to those of you who may be a little low on funds between pay cheques. There are instructions contained in here on how to make several million dollars with minimal effort. I would be doing it myself, but I'm too busy writing this, for some reason that I'm sure will eventually come back to me. Soon, I hope. 

If you really think about it, it is rather boring, redundant, and never ending. Artist bashing artist, band bashing band, and the "new" generation bashing the former generation. "A bunch of tired old farts," and "in it for the money," was how Johnny Rotten summed up his predecessors. This included of course all those bands who weren't "talented" enough to outlive The Sex Pistols, such as The Who, Bowie, The Stones, Pink Floyd, Lou Reed, Iggy Pop, Genesis, Frank Zappa, Jethro Tull, Emerson Lake And Palmer, as well as the other one hit wonders. Don't get me wrong here, I have a soft spot for The Pistols, they were a fun band in my opinion and I wish I had the opportunity to see them before the Filthy Lucre tour. I had to laugh under my breath however at this type of rhetoric, as I watched it spread by many in the "Punk" sect,  you could see it become the new "gospel" in many instances. "Out With The Old, In With The New," they screamed. Well, I thought that I heard that "new gospel" of theirs somewhere before actually. The odd thing is, that my father heard it as well. What is really quite something though, is the fact that my children are hearing it now from what they listen to. I avoided the word "music" on purpose, in case you wondered. My father avoided the word too when referring to my choice of "racket," as he so fondly referred to it, or "crap" when it came to Bowie, especially Diamond Dogs and Aladdin Sane. Ziggy was "that awful noise." He had special descriptions reserved for Moonage Daydream, and Hang On To Yourself. Never, mind, you get the idea. Interesting to note was also the fact that this new wave of radicalism which was going to topple the existing establishment, had both a "look," and a "sound," which shocked the parents of those who followed the "punk anthem." It wasn't long before the Punk Movement was branded as a serious threat to youth, as well as a serious threat to the whole of society, and the battle was on. 

It's not that I fancy myself as courageous, but I am not overly frightened when I am informed of these "threats" to society. That is, I do not worry about the waves of anarchy forecast between each generation, which are supposed to throw us back into the Stone Age. To be straight up about it, I am really not afraid of people armed with musical instruments. If that makes me a tough son of a bitch, well, then that is what I am. There have been several of these warnings issued concerning the potential destruction of the world. A quick look back, and behold, these are some of the threats that we were told could lead to our demise, we were to fear these things, for our very lives. Chuck Berry, Elvis Presley,  Little Richard, David Bowie, The Rolling Stones, The Beatles, Iggy Pop,  The Sex Pistols,  Marilyn Manson,  Eminem, blue spiked hair, thrusting hips, Hippies, Beatniks, Mods, Unisex, bell bottom pants, psychedelic colours, yellow submarines, electric guitars, Jimi Hendrix and a can of lighter fluid, Jim Morrison and a bottle of alcohol, The Who, Timothy Leary and a hit, or several hits, of acid, Elvis Presley, The Clash, Pop Art, Ozzy Osbourne, Lou Reed, marijuana, Abby Hoffman, Jerry Lee Lewis, Rock N' Roll, studded leather, Doc Martins, Punk, Alice Cooper, and I could list a hundred more reasons we almost returned to caves. 

You can be well assured that I am besieged with amusement as I look at Johnny Rotten and The Sex Pistols. How can one not be, when they see that they are the product fabricated by a gentleman by the name of Malcolm McLaren. He was  a man who came to realize that you can't deceive the vast majority of people with the same trick twice, as a matter of fact, you can quite often use the very same trick to deceive the vast majority of people hundreds of times over again, without any fear that they'll ever catch on.  Now, if you want to make a quick million, or perhaps more, you may wish to take a page out of history. The page you want is the one that is "common" to each of these scourges of society I have just mentioned. Step one. Piss off, infuriate, shock, anger, offend, scare or intimidate people in the age group of thirty five to seventy. This is accomplished simply by finding what behavior this age group considers to be in extremely poor taste. Behavior includes, language, clothes, lifestyle, moral values as well as just your general demeanour.  Long hair, wearing make up, safety pins stuck in the face, thrusting, grabbing or exposing your crotch, coloured hair, sexual deviance, starting a Fourth Reich, destroying your instruments, smashing up hotel rooms, alcohol abuse, adultery, excessive drug use, improper display of religious icons and inappropriate language have all worked well in the past. 

The whole idea is to be seen as a "threat" to youth. In other words, set a terrible example, be a role model that will terrify parents at the very thought of their offspring aspiring to follow in your footsteps. The best way to gain the  attention  of parents, the authorities, and certain levels of government, in order to properly offend them, is through your music. Your sound should be "fresh,"  and therefore it is necessary to find new sounds, and experiment with them  at a variety of different decibel levels, in order to ascertain which ones are the most irritating to people thirty five years of age, and above. It has been proven time and time again, by previous entertainers, that the best way to  showcase your poor character, bad attitude, lack of respect, and repulsive ideologies, is through your lyrics. The first rule of thumb regarding your lyrics is this. You do not have to believe anything you say. The second rule is to attack the ideas, values, icons, beliefs, and institutions that are held in high esteem by parents. Taking a few well aimed swipes at authority, and telling kids that everyone in the world is completely fucked up, except them of course, is also prudent. Now, although this sounds quite illogical, it is, in reality, extremely logical. While many artists fight to get airplay on the radio, your ideal situation is to have a good percentage of your music kept from being played on the radio. This is accomplished by writing lyrics  that are perceived as offensive, as well as enough of a threat to the "morality" of young people, to cause parents, and special interest groups which advocate decency, to mount a successful campaign to have some of your music BANNED from the radio. You will also want these people to cause enough of a frenzy, that your record company is forced to put big colourful WARNING LABELS on the outside of your CDs.  That's all, by the way. 

Malcolm McLaren was an entrepreneur, who owned a clothing boutique, and understood the value of marketing. The Sex Pistols were a marketing creation of McLaren's using the techniques that I have just described to you. Get the parents upset and this attracts the media, which give you lots of coverage. Now, a guaranteed fact is that  kids will purchase the music that most offends the "establishment," and there is a time honoured reason for this. It is called "identity." Each new generation has sought to have a separate identity from the previous generation, it allows this new generation to have a place in society that is "exclusively" theirs.  This uniqueness is best obtained by going against the "ideals" of mainstream society, and this technique continues to work, as it has for countless generations. Each "new" generation shocks the previous one, adding to the well known question, "What are kids coming to these days?"  Artists have continued to capitalize on this need for identity, by giving kids something to identify with.  What they give them is a focal point with their music, and this music defies the things that mainstream society identifies itself with. Quite often this music is defined as "SHOCK ROCK," simply for the effect it  has on many people, and entertainment figures such as Marilyn Manson, Madonna, Alice Cooper, Eminem, The Who, The Rolling Stones, The Tubes and most notably James (Iggy Pop) Osterburg, are all fine examples of people who have employed this technique. What "shocks" me however, is the fact that the exact same technique continues to work as well today, as it has in the past. This is a point easily proven by counting the number of artists who continue to use this approach, most often with very satisfying results. 

The idea of giving a "new" generation something that was exclusively theirs, and distancing yourself from the "older" generation, was a concept that David Bowie understood well. A very close friend in England sent me an interview with Bowie that was done in July of this year. Her timing it seems, could not have been  more perfect, as Bowie discusses this very topic in that interview. "You have to try and kill your elders," was how he started. He went on to say, "We had to develop a completely new vocabulary, as indeed is done generation after generation. The idea was taking the recent past and restructuring it in a way that we felt we had authorship of it. My key "in" was things like Clockwork Orange, that was our world, not the bloody hippy thing. It all made sense to me. The idea of taking a present situation and doing a futuristic forecast, and dressing it to suit, it was a uniform for an army that didn't exist. And I thought, if I took the same kind of thing, and subverted it by using pretty materials....That Clockwork Orange look became the first uniform for Ziggy, but with the violence taken out of it." It is my personal opinion that David Bowie understands marketing techniques, and  furthermore, he is one of the most talented individuals I have ever seen when it comes to putting these techniques into action. Did David Bowie resort to "shock rock," as one of the weapons in his arsenal of marketing tools? Most people would jump at "YES," as an answer to that question, immediately citing his role as one of the artists most commonly associated to Glam Rock, the "gay" confession to Melody Maker, and add the dresses and make up in there as well. I agree that there are certain things which Bowie has said, or done, for the purpose of "stirring up" the media.  I do not believe however, that he has done this to the degree that most people think he has, and I do not believe that the examples which people use as evidence of Bowie's attempts to shock the media, such as those I just mentioned, are relevant. First of all, Bowie had NOTHING at all to do with Glam Rock, that was an invention of the media. His ideas for the use of costumes and make up came from "intellectual" sources, such as his interest in traditional Japanese theater from the Nho period, as well as Kabuki, which emerged from this period, and was a blend of traditional, and Japanese Puppet theater. Bowie read much on the subject of traditional theater from around the world, his father was once involved in it for a short period of time, and apart from Japanese traditional theater, he had a strong preference for German Cabaret, circa 1930. To associate Bowie and Glam is narrow minded thinking that is based on a poor knowledge of Bowie's interests, and in my opinion an insult to a man who prides his collection of books more than anything, simply for what they have taught him.  I am not however surprised at the media for being so irresponsible, I expect it.  The "gay" announcement to Melody Maker can only be partially attributed to him, and only in the fact that he went ahead and said it. The idea however originated with Tony Defries and Angela. It is a fact that many of the "shocking" things the public feel Bowie has done in the past, were thought up by others. This does not mean that he hasn't done his fair share of things that caused a great deal of controversy. Although the Aryan label was put on him by the media, here we go once again, he did nothing to dispel it, instead he milked it for all it was worth. Still, it is odd to me how anyone can think that artists themselves can believe a good portion of some of the things they say in interviews. I have read Bowie interviews that are so loaded with bizarre statements that I can't help marvel at how he could possible keep a straight face while watching some magazine reporter writing it all down thinking it was the truth. They then take this stuff and write serious articles which they believe are truthful, as well as revealing, and I can't keep a straight face reading half of it. 

A very common practice of a lot of bands and artists as I said earlier, is their bashing of other bands and artists. This, in most cases, is another tool in the marketing arsenal, and used to draw an audience. Since the "new" generation seeks a separate identity, they want their "own" distinct brand of music. Artists attract this audience by bashing the artists the these kid's parents listen to, as The Sex Pistols did so often. One characteristic about David Bowie that is completely ignored, and it shouldn't be, is the fact that he does not engage in this practice. This to me exhibits a tremendous amount of "class" on his part. I may be mistaken, but personally, other than comments he made about Elton John, I have never heard him speak in a derogatory manner about others, instead, it has been quite the opposite. Rather than bash others, Bowie has on many occasions spoken about his "respect" for other artists. Roxy Music, Kraftwork, Lou Reed, Devo, The Pixies, Bauhaus, John Lennon, The Velvet Underground, Bob Dylan, Iggy Pop and Marc Bolan are the ones that immediately come to mind. Tom Verlaine was one of these artists which Bowie respected quite highly, enough to record a version of one of his songs on Scary Monsters. Another credit to Bowie is the fact that he has always taken the time in interviews to discuss the work of other artists he admires, which can only help to boost their careers. Talking about Tom Verlaine in an interview shortly after the release of Scary Monsters, Bowie referred to his work as "terrific," and called him one of the finest new writers around, adding that he wished he had a much larger audience, but felt that would come in time. Verlaine also had another admirer in the Bowie camp, and that was Carlos Alomar. It was a joint decision between the two of them to record a version of Kingdom Come, which was Bowie's favourite track from Verlaine's latest release at the time. The "style" that Bowie wished to emulate on Kingdom Come was that of singer and producer Ronnie Spector, another person who he admired very much. I have often wondered what the opinions of Bowie fans, and Tom Verlaine fans for that matter, are concerning Bowie's version of Kingdom Come. I have a high opinion of both, however I find the original has more "punch" to it, but then again, well, there's Bowie's voice. I'm not even going to try. 

Because You're Young Bowie describes as a love song. It is written from an outsider's perspective as he looks at these "two young things, knowing that it's all going to fizzle out one day."  I'm sure that I would not have to look too far to find a few others like myself who would say that subject matter aside, this is still one great piece of music.  Pete Townsend, may I add, was quite successful in making his presence felt on this track. What I feel is unfortunate, is the fact that Bowie has not included Because You're Young as part of the set at any one of the performances which I have attended.  What is really disappointing though, is the fact that Bowie included this song, as well as Scream Like A Baby, in the 87 tour rehearsals, and both were later dropped. To add insult to injury, I have heard both of these songs from the rehearsal sessions, and they were done extremely well. It really is a shame that we were deprived of them. Oh well, maybe next time. 

 Bowie wanted  to create a certain feeling, with It's No Game (Part 2). His aim was to show what happens when a protest, or an angry statement, is thrown against the wall so many times, that the speaker finds that he has absolutely no more energy to give it any impact any more. The sentiments are EXACTLY the same as in the first version of It's No Game, but this one comes across as melodic and superficial. The ambiance has changed, it has a gentle, almost nostalgic, kind of quality to it, rather than the very angry vehement statement at the beginning of the album. It's the two sides of social protest according to Bowie. Once again, Bowie was more than able to create exactly what he wished the listener to experience. The "speakers" in most cases do lose energy, as the nature of the protests contained on Scary Monsters usually fall on "deaf ears."  It this regard It's No Game (Part 2) is a fitting end. It is true that social protests of this nature are generally ignored, and sadly, Scary Monsters is no exception. Yes, it produced hits, but that is not my point. I agree, in that respect it got a lot of recognition. Everyone knows Fashion, and Ashes To Ashes, but the relevance of Scary Monsters was lost to most. Many albums of social protest have been written over the years, Dark Side Of The Moon, Crime Of The Century, Selling England By The Pound, Tea For The Tillerman and the list could go on indefinitely. Peter Gabriel, Bob Dylan, The Rolling Stones, Neil Young, Lou Reed are all part of another indefinite list of artists who have focused their music on statements of social commentary. Now, here comes my point, but first a few easy questions. In all the discussions that you have been involved in, or any discussions you have heard, where the topic is social protest in music, how many times have you heard Scary Monsters come up? In any articles you have read about social protest in music, how many times have you seen Scary Monsters mentioned? If someone did a survey of music listeners to determine the twenty best social protest albums ever made, where would Scary Monsters fit in? In my experience the answer to question number one is zero. In my experience the answer to question number two is also zero. In my OPINION, the answer to the third question is that Scary Monsters wouldn't even make the list, because the theme of the album is overlooked by most, as I have previously stated. I am confident enough that what I am saying is correct, that I would not hesitate for a second bet on it. Again, it is only my opinion, but as a thirty year Bowie listener it is not an uneducated one. As a protest  album, the commentary on Scary Monsters stands up to the best of them. The writing on the album is superb, and certainly is a dynamic testament to David Bowie as a visionary.  The same can be said about Diamond Dogs, and some of the ideas expressed on it were carried forward and restated on Scary Monsters, yet in a much more refined manner. Fashion, and Ashes To Ashes, are what Scary Monsters will be remembered for.  It will never occupy its rightful place however, as containing some of the finest writing ever done by any artist. Its intellectual depth went by unnoticed, except to those who care to look beyond the surface of Bowie's work. Although it is unfortunate, I am not anywhere near surprised, that the "true" brilliance of Scary Monsters was missed by the majority of people. Also, for an album many people argue with me saying it is not overlooked, I don't ever hear much said about Robert Fripp's contribution, or Bittan, or Andy Clark, or Townsend for that matter. I find this all rather strange, especially for an album many claim to "know" well. Can anyone offer some sort of explanation for these oversights? I think I can. I'll go back and say it once more, Scary Monsters is an overlooked album. 

It just occurred to me, and why I don't know, but in this entire series I have not given any mention to Bowie's album covers, and come to think of it, I never seem to see them mentioned anywhere. Information on them, I have discovered, is not very easy to come by. However, the cover for Scary Monsters should not go by unrecognized, or the concept behind it, and I will make sure that doesn't happen. 

ALADINSANE 

To be, or not to be..............................

Posted 1 August 2002

	 


Part Forty Three

	The cover for Scary Monsters, well, the idea was this. To produce an image that would reveal "the can of worms contained inside of the beautiful every man. The falling apart of what seems like purity." That was a direct quote from Bowie, and taken from an interview that coincided with the release of Scary Monsters. The cover idea, and production, was a three way collaboration between British photographer Brian Duffy, artist Edward Bell and David Bowie.  Brian Duffy made a name for himself as a fashion photographer in the sixties, and this was not the first time Bowie had collaborated with him. The cover for Aladdin Sane was designed  by Duffy and Celia Philo, and the photograph was shot by Brian Duffy. It was in fact Duffy that came up with the idea for the  "Lightning Bolt" on the cover, which he got from a design on a Panasonic electric kettle. The "tear drop" was also his idea. "He put on that afterward, just popped it in there. I thought it was rather sweet," is how Bowie described it.  One interesting point to note about the printing of the cover for Aladdin Sane. The complexity of the sleeve design required that it had to be printed using a seven color a process. The process was so revolutionary at this time, that it was not possible to print the covers in the UK, therefore they were all printed in Switzerland. 

	The clown suit which Bowie wears on the cover of Scary Monsters was designed by Natasha Kornilof, who has worked quite extensively with Bowie over the years.  Natasha Kornilof once worked as a costume designer for Lindsay Kemp, and it was through Kemp that Bowie met her. She designed, among other things, his clothes for the 78 tour. The clown figure was actually based on a Victorian Clown character that was created by Lindsay Kemp in the late sixties.  There are two representations of the clown on the album, one being the "neat" outside look, and then the dishevelled side, which is what one sees if they look inside. Bowie admits it to be a "nod" back, as it seems we always return to the elements we started with, and go back to re evaluate the past This idea fits in well with his idea of future nostalgia, which is seeing the future, and finding out that it is someplace we have all ready been. Many interviews have revealed that Bowie places a great deal of value on the past,  he seems to regard it as an anchor. 

	"There are a lot of mistakes on this album, but you wouldn't know from just listening to it," states Bowie, "as they are difficult to find." Rather than "correct" the mistakes, Bowie said he preferred to "build" around them, creating a structure that became an integral part of the music, with some interesting results. "I'm of the opinion that what holds your ear to modern music, are the mistakes," he said. Now, "leaving" the mistakes in a piece of music and building around them is an interesting way to approach writing. It is improvisation that is free flowing, rather than stop when something is "off,"  you just continue in the "direction" of the "mistake," not knowing where it will eventually lead. Now, I may be completely wrong on this, but the "tone" I seem to get from Bowie is that this is a "new" idea. It may be new in the fact that he used this approach, however by 1980 the idea was in fact a rather old one. Many of the "progressive" bands such  as ELP, Genesis, Yes, and others, had been using this technique in the studio when composing. For Fripp and Eno this method of working was a mainstay, and I would be willing to guess that Bowie adopted this technique from one of them, and it was probably Eno.  In all honesty, I find the statement about mistakes being the focal point that keeps a listener interested in a piece of music to be a bit much, even by Bowie standards. In other words, I don't buy it, at all, and I have a sneaking suspicion neither does he. I bet he "stole" that line, because it "sounds" provoking, and is a good one when you want the intellectual, deep thinker image, which he often utilizes in interviews. 

	While all of this was unfolding, 1980 was "just another year" to Bowie listeners. Those who were there remember, it was the same as always, nothing out of the ordinary, nothing had changed, and there was no reason to suspect anything would. For over a decade now everything had been a routine, it was predictable, and we knew exactly what to expect. Bowie would release an album, sometimes two, every year, and do so without fail. That part was GUARANTEED. He had his name associated with seventeen albums between 1970 and 1980. Another rock solid guarantee was a tour every couple of years, and add a few films and other ventures intermingled along the way. As far as the quality of his work, well, that was a given. That was something we NEVER DISCUSSED, there was no reason to ever bring it up in a conversation.  Now, if you put a group of individuals in a comfortable situation where everything is the same routine,  and where they have nothing to worry about, it will not take long for them to become complacent. This best describes the mindset of Bowie listeners in 1980, we were all COMPLACENT, and this was not a fault, as there was NO REASON to be anything but. I have often wondered if there are any others who have contemplated the same thing I have for over twenty years, and that is, what would have happened if we "knew" what was about to transpire? I have often wondered about how I would have felt sitting at that show in 78, if I knew I would not see Bowie perform again for another five very long years, and it would be FIFTEEN YEARS until I would see a tour that would rival what I was watching? Likewise, I wonder how I would have reacted if I knew that 1980 would be "THE END" of the greatest era in music history, and I would lose much of what I grew to admire, and respect, in Bowie as an artist? What if I had known at the time that Scary Monsters would be the last "BOWIE" album I would get, for a long time to come? The wait, would be over a decade. What if I knew that I would never really see David Bowie ever again? Soon, it would be all over, and we would never suspect a thing until it was done. We were about to be shocked. 

	It was not over yet however. Bowie was asked around the time of the release of Scary Monsters if he still felt a need to put himself on the line artistically. His answer to the question was "yes," as an artist he found that it was necessary to take risks. Bowie felt the need to try and discover different methods that would afford him the opportunity to look at his work from different perspectives. This was so he could  evaluate his work, and  try to redress it, offering something new in the process. Unlike most bands, Bowie, as those of us who have been at this for decades know, was not easy to follow. Let me put it this way. If you follow Aerosmith, you know what kind of music you are getting. The same goes for Cat Stevens, Elton John, Love And Rockets, The Dead Kennedy's, Barbra Streisand and the vast majority of other acts. You get hard rock with Led Zeppelin, you get New Wave Pop from The Cars, you get Industrial Thrash from Skinny Puppy,  and you get folk music from Crosby, Stills, Nash and Young.  Most of the bands can be identified with a particular sound, because their sound is THE SAME, it all fits into ONE CATEGORY. It's easy for most, all you do is pick a category of music, and behold, there is a list of bands who can cater to your taste. Now, life is not that easy for us, as we must be able to go where we are led, and I can speak for myself by saying that in the early days I was led to places that I was completely unfamiliar with.  Quite often these places DID NOT EVEN EXIST, UNTIL BOWIE INVENTED THEM, and you can't find places that are more unfamiliar than that to someone who is just "tagging" along, as we all were. Even so, we went to these places, and many times, you know, it was an adventure which we all shared. You also knew that the "others" did not have the qualities it took to go on such a journey, we were "special," we had "something," that few possessed. What was it? If you were there, then you know what it was. If you were there, then you know what I am talking about. Bowie was asked during this same period if he felt that his audience had grown along with him over the years. His answer? He said, "Not necessarily. My audience has DIMINISHED remarkably over the years." Asked if that bothered him, he replied, "No, not at all." There is one thing I know for certain, I know that I didn't "diminish." 

	February 1980. In their infinite wisdom RCA releases Alabama Song, which Bowie recorded at Mountain Studios in  Montreux.  I like Alabama Song, the arrangement of it is truly twisted and demented, and with Belew adding in his impersonation of sanity, you are left with a rather pleasing little tune. Now, I know a bit about marketing, but even if you knew nothing you could still figure out that this song is not really suited as a single for AM radio airplay. This was not the sixties, and Bowie is not Jim Morrison, therefore it was highly improbable that Alabama Song was going to do anything except what it ended up doing, going to number 23 in the UK. It then vanished into 45 RPM obscurity, to join its place alongside the other Bowie Top Ten Hit Singles, such as Sense Of Doubt, Repetition, Move On, Amsterdam and Holy Holy. The flip side contained one of the ten thousand or so versions of Space Oddity that no one wanted to hear. On the other hand, there is Crystal Jun Rock, which is a brand of Japanese rice wine, commonly referred to as Saki. David Bowie composed the music that was used in a commercial for this product, and it only aired on Japanese television. The music for the commercial was released as a single, under the title of Crystal Japan, and it met with some success, however RCA refused to issue it as a single in North America. If there was any concern over any of this I can tell you that it came from one source only, and that was "upstairs" at RCA. Bowie could care less. While technically still under contract with RCA, his obligations to them would be fulfilled with the delivery of Scary Monsters And Super Creeps, and in three short years he would be free. All that was left to do in the mean while, was to find a way to fill in the time. It was off to Berlin to see Iggy in April, and then to London in May, where he met up with Tony Visconti to finish Scary Monsters. 

	David, and Jack Hofsiss met again in June, this time at the Carlyle Hotel.  Philip Anglim was leaving, and Hofsiss needed someone to fill his role as the Elephant Man, he offered the part to David Bowie., and gave him twenty four hours to make a decision. This was a rather "tricky" situation, and not just because of the time factor. There were other actors involved in the production, who had by now been working together for some time, and both Hofsiss and Bowie would need  their vote of confidence. Now, as to be expected, there were some serious reservations about Bowie coming in and assuming the lead role. Realistically, Bowie lacked the necessary experience to just "walk" in and take over where Anglim left off. Also concerned, were the producers of the play, Elizabeth McCann and Nelle Nugent. In addition to the question of Bowie's experience and ability, there was also the issue of his reputation for flamboyance, and the "rock star" attitude, of those who are used to having everything their own way. Nugent had a personal meeting with Bowie, and applied some conditions before she accepted Hofsiss's proposal. She wanted a rehearsal period of four weeks, enough time she thought to get Bowie comfortable with the role. It was also enough time for her to judge his ability. New York, being the heart of Broadway Theater, was unforgiving, there was no margin for errors, therefore Nugent wanted a six week road tour of the play BEFORE it opened with Bowie in New York. She was so concerned about Bowie's "image," that she also wanted  to use the six weeks for a publicity blitz aimed at creating a "new" image for him, in the eyes of the press, and the theater audiences. The releases stated that Bowie's  move to stage acting was indeed legitimate, and not a flighty "whim," it was a natural progression for him as an artist. The publicity worked well, as Bowie was not the victim of criticism BEFORE he had an opportunity to prove himself on stage. Many artists, as well as other celebrities" are unduly condemned by the media, and the public, for even trying to venture away from the things they have become "known" for. I admit that in many cases they are right, such as Pamela Anderson becoming an actor, but it is still unfair to pass a verdict on an artist before they try something. The verdict from the critics should come AFTER the artist has had the opportunity to perform. Cher was dragged through the mud and ridiculed when she accepted her first acting role. All the media basically alluded to was that, "She is a SINGER, not an ACTRESS, therefore she will fail, and we'll all have a good laugh at her for thinking she can act." It turned out however, that she shut the media up in a hurry. I am not a Cher fan, but I have seen a few movies that she has acted in. In my opinion she is more than capable, and in some instances she is right up there with the best of them. At least Bowie was given the chance to perform first, thanks to Nelle Nugent. Bowie jumped at the opportunity. Stage acting can lead to movie offers. As Nugent said, "Bowie was a LEGITIMATE ACTOR." He would now be seen as one. The contract was drawn up. David Bowie would perform an average of eight shows a week, and in return he would receive ten percent of the gross from ticket sales. This was the standard contract for the best actors on Broadway, so Bowie did well. On average this worked out to around $2,000.00 a week for Bowie, and under his re negotiated contract with MainMan, which was still in effect, he would be required to pay Tony Defries the sum of $200.00 from those earnings. 

	While on tour, the band Van Halen stipulated in their contracts with the local promoters that bowls of M&M candies be provided backstage at their concerts.  There was provision however. Their contracts contained a listing of "Articles," which were the obligations that were required to be fulfilled by the promoter. One of Van Halen's  articles in their contracts would read like this, "Article 148: There will be fifteen amperage voltage sockets, at twenty-foot spaces, evenly," and so forth, with all of the bands requirements. Now, article 126, in every one of these contracts stated  this, "There will be no brown M&M's in the backstage area, upon pain of forfeiture of the show, with full compensation." In other words, every brown M&M had to be manually taken out of these bowls before being brought backstage. If even one brown M&M was found in a bowl, the band could legally cancel the show, and do so without refunding any money. It isn't just them either. Here are some others. Prince demands that no one look him in the eye or wear sunglasses in his presence  Elton John demands flower arrangements, but no chrysanthemums, lilies, carnations or daisies, and the tablecloths must be linen. Britney Spears demands that her telephone number be used for outgoing calls only. If it rings, the show's promoter is fined $5,000.00. In her contract Diana Ross specifies that she must walk on carpet at all times. Jakob Dylan stipulates that it is forbidden for anyone to make any references that refer to him as being Bob Dylan's son. The best however, is REO Speedwagon. In their contract it takes FOUR PAGES just to describe all the food they require for themselves in their dressing rooms before sound check and after the show. Here are some prime excerpts from those pages.  Halls Cough drops, light blue or light green only, plus "tea service" consisting of three boxes, 24 bags per box, of Earl Grey, Throat Coat Herbal and Constant Comment, with lemon and a squeezable bottle of honey with sugar, as well as Equal and Sweet & Low artificial sweetener That's enough tea for 75 people. Now, you can't have tea without crackers, so add on 2 boxes. They must be Nabisco, one box of "low fat," and one box of low fat Cinnamon Honey. In the event that you get bored with the crackers, there's a bag of pretzel rods, and 2 litres of bottled water with no bubbles to wash them down with. We all know that the leading cause of death among rock stars is thirst. Well, the members of REO Speedwagon will not die of thirst. Their contract demands a case of Coors beer, plus a dozen bottles of Samuel Adams and some "good" local beer, 3 bottles of Chardonnay, with a corkscrew, and a bottle of Merlot (room temperature) with no bottle under $12. Then there's  a total of 12 bottles (each) of Evian, Gatorade, Classic Coke, Caffeine Free Diet Coke, Diet Mountain Dew, Snapple, V-8 and Club Soda.  That amounts to 136  bottles and cans of beverages, plus the tea service for 75. Oh, and fresh coffee must be available at all times. You need cups to hold all those drinks so add three sleeves of hot & cold Solo cups, not the clear ones either.  With all that liquid around there is a strong possibility that there may be a spill. In that event they are prepared with a roll of paper towels, twenty four large, lint-free towels, and some napkins and paper towels, and the band's got their beverages about taken care of. Snacks are mandatory should guests pop around, some bagels & cream cheese, mixed nuts, popcorn and a dozen donuts should do it. Oh, and 3 quarts of milk, 1 or 2%, not skim, to wash down the donuts. You can't go and do a sound check on an empty stomach, so before the sound check they are served a bowl of chilled tuna salad, wheat thins, a half dozen donuts and coffee. Then 75 minutes before the show, it's fruit time. Here they get a platter of cantaloupe, watermelon, honeydew and pineapple. Add a fresh fruit basket filled with ripe, ready-to-eat grapes, apples, bananas and oranges. After sound check it's time for dinner. Dinner includes two meat dishes, steamed vegetables, potato dish, salad, rolls, breads & butter and a nice dessert. This must be served on real plates with silverware. To wash down dinner? Well, there is an exact duplicate order of all of the beverages the band demanded earlier. Also, you can't eat the same thing every day, one must have variety. So, on Sunday, Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays it's a whole cooked turkey with green beans, asparagus or peas, mashed potatoes or rice, gravy and cranberry sauce plus plenty of soy sauce, hot sauce, mayo, dijon mustard and a loaf of bread and rolls. A box of freezer bags as well, for the road. If it's pizza, then it must come from Pizza Hut or the best place in town. If it's Tuesday, Thursday or Saturday, then it's pasta.  Linguini, ravioli and angel hair smothered in marinara and meat sauce, served on the side. Add to that grated parmesan cheese, garlic bread, and salad.  One more thing too, just in case they want to go out, have the keys for a 15 passenger van and a driver ready. Most of the food is wasted, it ends up in the garbage. 

	Why do bands do this? Oh, the answer to that question is real easy. They do it, BECAUSE THEY CAN.  People will bow down to them because they are CELEBRITIES, and placed on a pedestal by the majority of society. They have MONEY, which is POWER, and this allows them to do pretty much anything that they desire. The real problem however is the idiot public, they oblige them. Personally, I harbour a few opinions about this. Do I judge people? Yes, we ALL do. However, to my credit, I consciously try not to, and I have made progress over the years. To demean another human being, one who probably works for a bare minimum wage, sift through bowls of candy in order to remove the colours which you do not like says an awful lot about your character. I am sure that the members of Van Halen do not concern themselves by worrying about what the person who is removing the brown M&M's thinks about them. If it were me, well, I would care what that person thought. Money, or anything else that someone owns for that matter, does not make them more important in my opinion. In terms of worth, as long as they are decent, all people are equal in my eyes. Since this is the case, the respect that I may earn throughout my life does not fluctuate in value from person to person, based on their "status" in society. Respect is respect, and it is all worth the same, no matter who it comes from. If Prince doesn't like someone looking into his eyes then I suggest that he stay well clear of me. I like to look directly at the person I am speaking with. They say that the eyes are the windows to the soul, and they can reveal much about the TRUE CHARACTER of a person. I do not mind anyone looking through my "windows." I would though if there was something that I didn't want anyone to discover. I lived in a village for two weeks once, no running water, no electricity and no beds, however there were straw mats on the wooden floor. This village was in the middle of the jungle in northern Laos, and was accessible only by a foot path. The walk to reach the village, after spending four hours in a truck to go twenty kilometers due to the condition of the road, was well over three hours. The children in this village literally walked two and a half hours to get to school, and two and a half hours to get home each day along a very narrow footpath that wound through the mountains. How they accomplished this during monsoon season is something that I will never understand. At night they did their homework with the use of an oil lamp, with a very tiny flame on it, about the size you would get on a lighter which was turned half way up. I assure you that I am not exaggerating any of this. I look at this and then I see that Diana Ross will only walk on carpet. Does anyone else see a problem with this picture? I wonder if REO Speedwagon are aware that there are actually children in their own country that would be thankful just to have access to their garbage. I have nothing, except disgust, for those individuals who have money and fame, and take it and use it to satisfy their own stupid whims, just because they can, and belittle others in the process, thinking of them of being "less," compared to them. The truth is that the ones they regard as less, are most often more, when it comes to the qualities in a person which really matter. 

	I have said it before, and I will say it again. I deeply respected Bowie at times for the way he used to treat others. His true character was demonstrated at times by how he worked with others. The Elephant Man is a wonderful example. Many directors will tell you that working with people who have "made it" can be a real pain in the ass. So bad is it sometimes that the directors  end up firing them, as what just happened to actor Kevin Costner, part way into a recent film. The problem is that they are so used to having  their own way, that you can't tell them to do anything. They will only do what they want, and are therefore uncontrollable. David Bowie was not like that. Instead, he looked at what he was being coached to do by directors as an "education," and he  put his ego aside. Rather than walk around believing that he "knew" everything, Bowie found his weaknesses, and he strived to correct them. It was because he realized his shortcomings, and had enough self respect to care about the quality of his work, that he was willing to  learn. Bowie wanted to succeed in his role in The Elephant Man. What he was willing to do in order to accomplish that is quite remarkable. I want to go into it in some detail, because it is worth reading. 

	AladinSAnE 

	To.........................................

	Posted 3 August 2002

	 


Part Forty Four

Bowie would embrace the role of The Elephant Man with a tremendous amount of enthusiasm. Bowie immediately flew to London to begin his "research" on the character he was to portray. His destination was London Hospital, where John Merrick lived out the last days of his life. In case you are unfamiliar with this story, I will fill you in very briefly. The Elephant Man is a true story, based on the life of John Merrick. Merrick was afflicted with an incurable disease called neurofibromatosis, which caused massive deformities to his muscles and skeletal frame. To give you an idea, the measurement around his head was 36 inches,  and had a large build up of skin at the back. His tongue was large and thick making talking extremely difficult. His right hand was twelve inches around the wrist, and five inches around one of his fingers, while the other hand and arm was no larger than that of a ten year old child. The deformities to his face caused by the affliction were so severe that it is not possible for me to adequately describe them. If you are interested  in learning more you can find photographs on the Internet, and I have several sites that you can try if you email me. His skin tone was "elephant" gray,  and  instead of being smooth, it was actually lumpy in texture, especially on his legs and feet.  On his chest and back however, his skin hung in loose folds. Merrick was forced to walk with the aid of a cane, as he had no hips, so to speak of. It was his head though, which caused the most difficulty for him. The reason for this is that because of its size, it was so heavy that he had a great deal of difficulty holding it up. This forced him to sleep while sitting, or crouching,  with his head resting on his knees for support. Laying down flat on a bed would cause a sensation similar to suffocation. He worked for a period of his life as  a sideshow attraction, before being befriended by a doctor at London Hospital, who arranged  for him to become a permanent resident. He lived there until his death on April 11, 1890. He died as a result of his head falling backward as he slept, and the weight dislocated his neck. 

In order to better understand John Merrick, David went to visit the hospital where he lived, so he could study the few artefacts that are on exhibit. Among them was a hat which Merrick wore in public. The hat had a piece of cloth sewn on to the front which covered his face, and two holes were cut in it in order for him to see. What I find truly remarkable is the fact that Bowie would be required to  play the character of John Merrick WITHOUT THE AID OF ANY MAKE UP or SPECIAL EFFECTS, in other words, he would NOT LOOK PHYSICALLY DEFORMED to the audience. Bowie would have only his own body, and his expressions, in order to make  his character believable. Bowie would not look physically deformed on-stage  at all, yet he had to convince the audience he was, without any visual aids.  This is not easy, especially for an "untrained" actor, who is replacing one who won AWARDS for his abilities. He would be "judged, " and judged by critics who would make a comparison between him, and his predecessor.  There are very few who would face a challenge this difficult. He was in London, at the hospital, asking a lot of questions, which were answered by the assistant curator of the exhibit, a man by the name of P.G. Nunn. He wanted to know how Merrick walked, how he spoke, and other characteristics about him that were noticeable. Bowie would use this information in order to build his own John Merrick. He spent three hours there, looking at the items on display, and asking his questions. Coco was with him.  John Merrick built a model of a church that he could see part of from his window in the hospital. The model is portrayed as good enough to be the work of a professional sculptor, it is that intricate. The fact that Merrick had the ability to do this was amazing, and this is what was portrayed in the movie version of The Elephant Man.  As we all know, there is Hollywood, and there is real life. The movie was not very accurate when it came to the model church according to Bowie. He said after he visited the exhibit that, "The real letdown was seeing the bloody church he built. The real thing he made was a penny plain and tuppence coloured thing that the nurses actually cut out for him, all he did was bend it up, and stick it down. I was really disappointed that it wasn't a little wooden structure that he had patiently and tenderly carved by hand." Bowie went back to New York. It was time to meet the others who he would be working with. After they met him, they had some serious doubts about his motivations, and his ability. They believed Hofsiss had made a bad decision. 

New York. Rehearsals. Bowie had a certain approach to his work, and to the character he would play. "I know if I'm not successful within the first fifteen or twenty minutes, then they'll get up and leave, because it's not the kind of part you can fuck with frankly. You've got to be credible. You've got to be a believable Merrick, or it all falls to pieces," he said. This type of work ethic is rare, but one Bowie has adhered to for most of his life. Bowie gained the confidence of the others in the theater company with this work ethic, as well as his behavior. Unlike many other celebrities Bowie was not demanding, or want things his OWN way. Instead he behaved as someone who had to earn the respect of the others, and someone who NEEDED  their help and support. There was no "rock star ego," and the few times he was late for rehearsal, he apologized to EVERY person in the cast, INDIVIDUALLY. I have always admired, and openly praised David Bowie for maintaining his standards, which are far superior to most artists, save a very few. This is one reason I get so critical of him at times, because after 1983 he tends at times to lower them. I have very high standards when it comes to the arts, especially music, and guess what? I got them from Bowie. 

The character Bowie would play was physically very demanding. He would have to portray Merrick’s condition using only his body, which required him to twist his arms and legs into some extremely demanding, and uncomfortable positions, to portray the deformities. He would have to not only do this, but also stay partially bent over for a full two hours at a time. This is one place where Bowie could incorporate the mime training he received under the direction of Lindsay Kemp.  Even so, Bowie had to do special exercises in order to relieve the stress on his body.  Bowie commented on the physical aspects of his character this way, " It makes one suddenly aware of how one's body and one's facial expressions function. It's.....you do feel you're being scrutinized, to an unbearable extent. It's not that pleasurable actually. But I think that was the first thing I had to fight. After we'd finished rehearsals and opened in Denver, I was furious with myself on the first night that the thing  that was preoccupying me during the performance was how people were adjusting, or relating, to my body movements, and that I hadn't been considering the character at all. It took a good week to shake that feeling off and become interested and involved on-stage with Merrick." It is very easy to see how this would be the case. Since his body movements were the only way to convince the audience that the character was radically deformed, and to make the character believable he had to focus a great deal on his physical movements,  being in this situation would easily detract from everything else. In addition to the physical aspects of his role, Bowie talked about the physical demands that it placed on him. He said, "I went back into mime training during rehearsal and I had to use the pre-imposed exercises before and after performances to get myself into, and out, of it. One's spine can be damaged very badly. I had one night of excruciating pain when I didn't do the exercises. I've been to a chiropractor every now and then just to check I'm not putting my spine out of place. It's quite possible to do that, especially if you sit down in that position. You hear a click, and you think, that's it. That was also quite frightening for the first week, but you learn just how much pressure to use, and when to lay back a bit." 

One thing that Jack Hofsiss, the play's director, was adamant about, was that Bowie develop the character based on HIS OWN interpretation of John Merrick, and not try to copy the one created by Philip Anglim,  the actor who he was replacing.  Hofsiss would not allow Bowie to have the benefit of sitting in the audience to watch performances, and learn from them. Instead, he allowed Bowie to attend one performance only, and no more after. He was on his own. Bowie attended Anglim's final performance in San Francisco, along with May Pang, John Lennon's former girlfriend. Bowie recited his lines as they watched. Now, his voice was another matter, as he had to alter it drastically. Merrick could not speak properly, due to his oversize tongue, and the shape of his mouth. In addition to the deformity of his tongue, Merrick had a thick "trunk" like upper jaw, and a misshapen mouth which built up with saliva, making speaking difficult, and his voice unique. Bowie realized  the importance of his voice, and what it could do to make his character more authentic. Now, Bowie spoke using a shrill tone to make his voice reflect the character. He also went as far as to spend hours  listening to tape recordings of people who had cerebral palsy, in order to be able to mimic their speech patterns. David appeared on television prior to rehearsals, on The Johnny Carson Show, and 20/20. The interview was done in an art gallery in Soho, and  Bowie had  some of his paintings shipped over from Germany and hung on the walls. The message was clear, "DAVID BOWIE - PAINTER - MUSICIAN- SCULPTER-ACTOR.  BOWIE ON BROADWAY, he was an ACTOR, A REAL ACTOR. "What was it like to be a homosexual and a father?" Did you hear me? Yes, that was one of the questions they asked him. Now, anyone care to ask me what I think of these media personalities, and critics, who profess to be experts on music, and then ask questions like this. If it were me, I would ask Bowie something stupid, instead of an intelligent question like that. I might of ask him about his work as an actor, since he was going to be in a play, or maybe what he learned from the artists that he has chosen to work with him, or maybe what The Bewlay Brothers is about, and the inspiration behind it. I'd like to interview the host of 20/20. I would ask him why he is calling Bowie a homosexual when he isn't one? Then ask him why he interviews people and discusses topics he doesn't know anything about? Then I would ask him what it's like to be a moron, and embarrass yourself in front of millions of people on television, as well as to be a father, who calls other fathers homosexuals? Cool questions now, aren't they. 

Bowie made his stage debut on July 29, 1980, one day previous to the date announced to the press. This was done to keep the media controlled, and allow David to have one performance in order to get comfortable first , rather than having  him subjected to the opening night jitters, and the media scrutiny as well. Every ticket was sold at the Denver Center For The Performing Arts.  In thirty eight years, not one other string of  performances were more successful than The Elephant Man. All of those who doubted Bowie's ability to make it as a "real" actor, were silenced by Bowie, in ONE night. " He brought magic and music to the play, powerful, and "perfect," were some of the words used in the reviews that were out by the next morning. They were all spectacular, and they saved their most praise when talking about the performance delivered by Bowie. Considering the effort that he put into his role, coupled with his work ethic, he deserved it. 

Bowie is on the road. 

ALADINsaNE 

I will be wasting more time on this useless series again I'm sure, some day
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Part Forty Five

The ticket sales for the week of performances for The Elephant Man in Denver amounted to $186,466.00. Bowie got paid $18,646.60, and $1,864.66 of that went to MainMan. For Bowie, the pay was poor, compared to what he usually made on stage, however what this play would do to enhance his credibility as an actor, was priceless. Chicago, and two weeks at the Blackstone Theater, followed Denver. The media was everywhere, and this was partially due to RCA, as they flew many of them in. The single Ashes To Ashes was released the previous week, when Bowie was in Denver. The play opened on August 3rd, and again, the box office, and reviews were beyond all expectations. So much however, for the "practices," the real test was next, New York. It was not just New York either, Bowie was headed for Broadway, and he was going to walk out in front of the toughest audiences, and the toughest critics there are. He would not only have to face them, but also their preconceived notions. There is only one reason that David Bowie got the role, and that was so they could use his name, not for his ability. This is what Bowie faced, and they were "waiting" for him. Many wanted to see if he could actually pull it off. 

One of the unwritten rules in the entertainment industry is that free tickets, and other "incentives," are always given away to the critics, the media, as well as certain well placed individuals. Rules, I heard once, were made to be broken, and this one certainly was. There were no free tickets given away to ANYONE, except those who were the personal guests of the performers. One of David Bowie's guests was the widow of actor Charlie Chaplin. Oona Chaplin was one of Bowie's neighbours, in Switzerland, and at his invite she flew to America for the occasion. The Booth Theater had a seating capacity of seven hundred and thirty five people, and unlike an arena where concerts are held, there was no wall in front of the stage to act as a security barrier. Of course, this was not usually needed considering the "difference" between the audience at a Guns N' Roses gig, and those attending a play on Broadway. Still, there were concerns, seeing that Bowie was sure to attract many of his personal fans. Now, it is not that Bowie fans are prone to the acts that would be committed by those who attend a Guns N' Roses concert, but it was felt that security precautions should be taken. At several other performances some Bowie fans decided on putting their acting abilities to good use. In their opinion they felt that The Elephant Man was short one character, and so they decided to correct this shortcoming by jumping up on the stage to join Bowie and the rest of the cast. One thing that can be said is that each one of them possessed a great deal of manners, as they personally introduced themselves to Bowie, before taking their place alongside the other performers. Unfortunately for them however, the security personnel at the theater thought the play was fine as it was, and as a result they ended the careers of these actors quite abruptly. Also, because the theater was so small, and therefore tickets became very scarce and almost impossible to come by, there was every reason to suspect that those who were not fortunate enough to get a ticket, may attempt to attend the show anyway, and by whatever means they could, including hiding in David's limousine. I am not joking about that either, it was on a list which identified twenty seven possible methods of gaining entrance to the theater, compiled by security. This possibility was thought to be serious enough that a security guard was placed in Bowie's limousine, there was also one sitting in the front row of each performance, this guy got lucky, plus one standing in one of the wings backstage, and finally, one at the stage door. Before every performance the venue was searched for bombs, and David's route he took to the theater each night was often changed. Once the play had been showing for awhile, Bowie would sometimes walk to the theater alone. He said that he never experienced a hassle, all he got was the odd, "Hi Dave, how's it going?" 

Ashes To Ashes had become a hit in Britain, going to number one on the charts, by September the twenty third, the day when The Elephant Man opened at The Booth Theater on Broadway. The audience was an interesting mix of the upscale Broadway audience, punks, complete with blue, orange, green or flaming rainbow hair, Bowie fan's, artists, actors, authors, musicians, intellectuals, the media and the curious. Among them were one of Bowie's favourite artists, David Hockney, as well as Andy Warhol, contemporary composer Aaron Copeland, Brian Eno and an endless list of celebrities. Unfortunately, Ashes To Ashes would only go as high as 101 on the American charts. The album however did much better, going to the top in Britain, and to number 12 in America. Those who could not attend the opening night performance managed to make it at a later date. In particular were two film directors, Nagisa Oshima, and Herman Weigel, Merry Christmas Mr. Lawrence, and Chrisiane F. were the films that Bowie fans will recognize. David's mother, Peggy, was his guest for one performance, and his close friend Elizabeth Taylor came as well. In addition Kenneth Pitt, Bowie's son Joey, and there was one person who was asked to switch off the lights, which were attached to the outside of his jacket, during the play. 

It is only my opinion, but I imagine that Bowie must have experienced a healthy case of the jitters on opening night, knowing the scrutiny he would be subjected to from the media, as well as the audience. Whether he did or not, they didn't show. The play opened, and by the time the curtain closed two hours later, the audience was stunned. Few could believe what they had just witnessed,  not only did David Bowie pull it off, his entire performance was brilliant. The reviews that appeared the next day were beyond spectacular. There was one in particular however, that I wanted to share with you, as it really reflects the situation which Bowie faced before the play  opened in New York, as well as the overall reaction of the audience after seeing his first performance. This review appeared in The New York Times. "When it was announced that David Bowie would play the title role in The Elephant Man, it was not unnatural to think he had been cast simply for the use of his name. Dismiss that thought now. Yes, more young people in designer jeans and leather now show up at the Booth Theater than before, and yes, they probably show up because Mr. Bowie is a celebrated rock star. Fortunately, he is a good deal more than that, and as John Merrick, The Elephant Man, he is splendid."  This is truly indicative of the vast majority of the reviews, and some were even better. However, there is an old saying, and it goes like this, "There is an idiot in every crowd." This is not just a "saying" in my opinion, like physicist's Albert Einstein's Theory Of Relativity, it is almost one of the fundamental laws which govern the behavior of the universe. A prime example of this law in action is theater critic John Simon, from New York Magazine. He wrote, " Bowie's reedy voice, when distorted, as the part demands, becomes a falsetto sawing that slices intelligibility in half, and his androgynously pretty face and street wise punk rock sexiness finish off what pathos his acting left intact." Do you know what I just thought of? We need a critic critic. Yeah, we need someone to act as a critic, and whose job it will be to evaluate critics. Well, is that a good idea? Are there any volunteers who are willing to accept the position? If nobody wants the job, I'll take it, and I'll start with this guy. John Simon is a moron. How's that? 

Overall the economy in the United States was not good in 1980, and in tough economic times the entertainment industry is usually one of the first areas to be adversely, effected as people have less disposable income. The downturn was especially felt on Broadway. To give you an example, as of September 1st, the Booth Theater was only bringing in about $61,000.00 a week, which is about half of its capacity. When David Bowie however took over the lead role in The Elephant Man, the play hit its top attendance figures out of the seventeen months it had been running. In the very first week alone it brought in $116,680.00, the second week $118.000.00, and $119,000 after that. I do not know much about the revenues which are generated from acts on Broadway, but from what I read these figures were said  to be "astonishing" at the time. Again, the amount Bowie was personally earning was minimal compared to what he could earn performing solo, as he was only making around $30,000.00 for eight performances a week. This did not matter though, Bowie was doing this only because he wanted to. A loft party was held after the performance on opening night, and the media was barred. 

Interestingly, even with the feud between Bowie and RCA still blazing as bright as ever, Bowie did not put aside his music while he fulfilled his acting commitments to Jack Hofsiss. Just prior to The Elephant Man opening in New York, Bowie set aside two whole days for interviews to promote Scary Monsters, and the play. Each representative from the media was granted fifteen minutes to interview Bowie, on a one to one basis. RCA, on the other hand was making good use of the publicity that was being generated because of The Elephant Man to further promote Scary Monsters. In order to promote the single Ashes To Ashes, RCA used Bowie's best known hit, Space Oddity. The advertisements said that Ashes To Ashes picked up where Space Oddity left off. In my own opinion this type of marketing, using Bowie's previous work to sell new releases, was an extremely stale approach, and I imagine it was not very effective. I say this from looking at the American sales figures for Scary Monsters. Another reason I say this is because I firmly believe that Bowie's work is quite capable of standing on its own merits, and does not need help by being associated with a tired, overplayed, inferior hit, over a decade old. The ads for Scary Monsters focused on Bowie's longevity, touting the album as the latest release from a legendary rock star. Now, to RCA's credit there was some individual who realized the potential of video as a marketing  tool. The result? Ashes To Ashes went on tour. 

AladiNSAne 
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The video for Ashes To Ashes did go on the road, as I said, and I meant that literally. The problem before was Bowie's "image," and a lot of radio stations refused to give his music the airplay it deserved because of it. Now however, Bowie was "straight," and legitimate, and still it did nothing much in the way of increasing the airplay his work received. Now, the problem was his music, it was too "progressive" for most AM stations, and although FM radio is far superior in music quality, it was a hit on AM radio that broke the market for an artist back then. Once again, RCA would not have their "HIT," that they so desperately wanted from Bowie. They would  succeed in attracting the press to Bowie's work however, a feat that was difficult in the past. Copies of the video for Ashes To Ashes were distributed to the press in the major centers, accompanied by a press release. The press release stated that once again David Bowie had proven himself an innovator, this time in the field of video. The resulting articles proclaimed Bowie as a trend setter for the eighties. This proved to be a truly brilliant move by RCA, as it solidified Bowie's reputation, and guaranteed him a position of importance, as an artist going into a new decade. This type of publicity is of major importance to any artist. The reason is that it makes you "relevant," and therefore "WORTHY" of attention. The looming danger for any artist is to be labeled as a "has been," and therefore not worth any significant media attention. Every artist knows that if you are out of the media, you are soon forgotten, and once forgotten, that's it, you are finished. Thankfully Bowie would not suffer this fate. 

Bowie was approached by director Herman Weigel about appearing in his new film, Christiane F, which is based on a true story. This is a gripping film about a fourteen year old girl who becomes a heroin addict, trying it for the first time at a David Bowie concert, she then turns to prostitution to support her habit. For the movie Bowie recreated the stage he used for the 1978 Heroes tour, in order that a live concert segment could be filmed. The scenes were all filmed in Manhattan, and in true Bowie style, everything  was completed in one day. The following day David Mallet joined Bowie. The Christiane F. set was dismantled and replaced by the set used in the video for Fashion. The single was released on October 24th, where it did well in the UK reaching number five on the charts, but in America the results were disappointing, as Fashion peaked at number seventy. Coincidentally on the same day, Free Spirit, a book containing the memoirs of Angela Bowie, was published in London. Now, in addition to Scary Monsters And Super Creeps, there was another full length David Bowie album released in 1980. If you want to put your knowledge of David Bowie trivia to the test, this is an excellent question. Bowie fans will immediately recognize the tracks on this album, but the album itself is rather obscure. Do you know which album I am talking about? If you get the right answer, and can name this album, I want to congratulate you on your knowledge of Bowie's discography, because it is one Hell of a lot better than mine. I wouldn't have got the answer to it, and the only reason I know it now is because I stumbled upon it while doing my research for this segment of Images. 

Looking at this album one can see that it has "TONY DEFRIES" written all over it. The whole  packaging and marketing concept is the epitome of a "classic Defries." Now, remember that Tony Defries still had the copyrights to all of David Bowie's back catalog, beginning with Young Americans. This gave him the legal authority to package Bowie's music and sell it any way he saw fit, and you can trust that Defries was always looking for ways to make a nice tidy profit. This deal was Tony Defries at his best, and it was a mirror image of some of his past "schemes."  A "classic Defries" works like this. You have someone make something, there no effort required on your part, you have them do all of the work, and you just sit there. Not only that, you pay nothing, as you have someone else pay all of the manufacturing expenses. So, no work, and no cash outlay on your part. Next, when it is finished you have them give it to you for nothing. Those who made it, and paid for it, have no rights to it at all, it is exclusively yours to do with as you wish, FOREVER. Now, you take it and you "rent" it to someone for a period of time, so they can make copies and sell them. In order to "rent" the product for a few, years they must not only pay you millions of dollars in rental fees, but must also pay you a portion of every copy they sell. The people who rent it must also agree to pay all of the expenses to copy it, market it and distribute it, and if they do not sell enough copies you can take it all back. The person who made the product is also required to pay for a place for you to live. In order to live you require two condominiums, two houses and one mansion. These homes must be furnished as well, and all of your living expenses are to be paid, including food and clothes. In addition all of your business expenses are to be paid by the person who manufactures the product. This includes two offices in America, one in the UK, and one in Japan. All of the salaries for the employees are to be paid and all of the operating expenses for each office. You will be booked in first class whenever you travel, and a limousine with a driver will be provided. In return for all of this you will have to attend some meetings, but only if you really want to, and you get to pick the meetings. Also, if you run up one hundred thousand dollar hotel bills, and three quarters of a million dollars in advertising fees and the person who made the product can't afford to pay them, the bill is to be paid by the people who rented the product. Now, it is obvious that to organize all of this requires a lot of planning, and work, on your behalf. After all, you have to arrange to make sure that things are made and given to you for no cost, you must keep track to insure all of your expenses have been paid, and to make sure that the rent and royalty money has been paid. In return for this, along with the rental and royalty fees you receive, you will also be paid five separate management salaries. In addition, because you have to go to the trouble of renting the product for the person who made it, then the person who made it must pay you half of everything they earn. That's all. 

K-Tel is a New York based company that specializes in compiling and marketing greatest hit albums, and anthologies. The albums are not sold in any retail outlets, instead they are marketed using television advertisements, and sold exclusively through telephone mail order. Although these advertisements can best be described as "cheesy," they are highly successful when it comes to generating revenue for the company. Using this method K-Tel had sold, as of 1985, ONE HUNDRED MILLION anthology, and greatest hits packages, worldwide. In the late nineties K-Tel became an "Internet" retailer, and the stock went through the roof, rising from $3 to $40, and over 30% of the total company was sold to the public in just one month. K-Tel and Tony Defries were made for each other, and therefore it should be no surprise, using RCA as a go between, that they made an arrangement. Bowie had no say in the deal at all, because legally, Defries was not required to notify him. Once again, and true to his form, the only work Defries would do, was to collect the rent, the royalties, and avoid personally paying any of the expenses involved in the project. K-Tel would select the sixteen tracks to be included on the album, and it would be sold as "The Best Of Bowie." This you may find this rather interesting.  One point I have strived to make in this series is concerning Bowie's popularity. I have tried to illustrate the fact that, unlike the UK, David Bowie, had an extremely limited fan base in North America. In most places Bowie had nothing more than what is described as a "cult" following. I know that there are many of you who may have difficulty accepting this fact. I do not blame you for this one bit, as it is difficult to believe. I say this because you look at Bowie as he is now,  a well known celebrity who enjoys the recognition he has as an international multi talented artist, and one who has a substantial following. I can understand how it would be hard to imagine the man you see now as having such a small group of dedicated listeners, especially considering his talent, and the quality of the work he produced in the seventies. It is however, true. This might serve to support my point. Even with the highly successful method K-Tel had of selling albums they refused the North American marketing rights to The Best Of Bowie, and the reason will give you an accurate picture of Bowie's "commercial worth in the American market, as opposed to the rest of the world. This may surprise you considerably. 

This information came from George Lukan, who worked for K-Tel. In 1981 it cost $500,000.00 to run a successful advertising campaign. In order to break even K-Tel would have to sell 700,000 units. Taking the United States and Canada, with a combined  population of over THREE HUNDRED MILLION, K-Tel felt that they would be unable to sell enough copies of this package to cover expenses. Now, you may shake your head and wonder about the sensibilities behind this decision, but from a strictly business stand point, there was no other decision that was possible. All you had to do was look at Bowie's North American sales figures, and they made the decision for you. Bowie released seven albums from 1976 to 1980. Hear that, SEVEN ALBUMS IN FOUR YEARS, I remember the GOOD OLD DAYS. Do you want to talk about now? I didn't think so. Anyway, out of those seven albums, FIVE sold UNDER 350,000 copies. Out of those five two sold UNDER 200,000 copies, those were Stage and Lodger. Heroes and Low both fell under 280,000 copies. At 552,791 copies, Station To Station accounted for his highest selling studio album. As you can see all fell far short of what K-Tel required in volumes to make any profit, and instead they would have suffered tremendous losses. Even though Changesone sold 1,331,247 copies, when this number is looked at compared to the "average" sales expectancies for a Bowie album, the volumes looked like a "freak accident," and unlikely to repeat itself. The risk was far too great. K-Tel selected the sixteen tracks to be included in the package, and put them in chronological order on the album. Included was a series of photographs depicting Bowie's "characters" in different stages of his career. It was released on December 5th, in Western Europe, New Zealand, Australia and Japan. Now, where K-Tel worried about being able to sell 700,000 copies in America, The Best Of Bowie went to number two on the British charts, as was a hit in almost every other country. As difficult as it is to imagine, it is true. K-Tel recently filed for Bankruptcy Protection provided for under US law. It was another, in the long list of  over 250  companies that became victims, when the technology bubble burst on NASDAQ. 

The videos sent out by RCA did little in the way of stimulating sales of Scary Monsters, as the album only sold 347,413 in North America, as of June 1983. What they did not do for sales though, they did for Bowie's image. MTV was not on the air yet, and therefore music videos were still a brand new format. The press were intrigued by the videos sent to promote Ashes To Ashes and Fashion. The result was more positive reviews for Bowie, and he was achieving a growing reputation as a MULTI TALENTED ARTIST, it could not have been better. The New York Times wrote glowing editorials about Bowie for his work in The Elephant Man, and at the same time were heralding his as great pioneer in the entertainment field. This editorial, written by John Rockwell, appeared in the paper. He wrote, "  Ashes To Ashes and Fashion is not so much the images as the brilliant way they are edited and how they expand on the music itself, rather than merely accompanying it or even contradicting it. These little shorts are genuine music theater in a new and modern guise and they deserve to be seen by anyone interested in either rock or opera. The real hero of the rock video revolution so far is that perennial pioneer David Bowie." Now, I want to draw on a couple of points here. I wrote a scathing piece in a segment of Images awhile back concerning rock videos, and television channels such as MTV. I wrote that most videos destroy music by removing the individual interpretation from it, and this is something ALL ART should posses. I did however, cite Bowie's videos as being different from most others, as his videos preserve, rather than remove, individual interpretation. If you have been following this series my personal view of music critics and journalists will be well known to you. I regard most of them as completely ignorant, and many are plain stupid. John Rockwell is one critic however, who has earned my respect and admiration. This is because he is the only critic I have encountered who was brilliant enough to notice that Bowie's video's did not alter, or outright destroy, the integrity of the music by removing individual interpretation. This was evident when he wrote, "they expand on the music itself, rather than merely accompanying it or even contradicting it."  This article is also a testament to Bowie's scope as an artist. Rockwell wrote, "Ashes To Ashes and Fashion is not so much the images as the brilliant way they are edited." You must remember that Bowie wrote, directed, and edited the video for Ashes To Ashes. David Mallet was co-director, and as it turned out he had virtually no involvement in the making of this video, other than to provide advice when asked. It was ALL BOWIE.  So, when John Rockwell wrote, "These little shorts are genuine music theater in a new and modern guise and they deserve to be seen by anyone interested in either rock or opera," he was referring to the VERY FIRST VIDEO Bowie ever wrote, directed and edited himself. This is truly a monumental achievement by Bowie, and he well deserves the highest recognition for it, which in my opinion, he does not receive. Several months after this review appeared in the New York Times, MTV went on the air. The video for Ashes To Ashes was shown in its first week of broadcast. 

If David Bowie was a literary critic, I can assure you that Angie's book, "Free Spirit," would not have received a very positive review, at all. If Bowie's close friends are to be believed he was apparently rather "horrified" after reading it. His concern over the contents of the book did not stem from any thoughts about his personal reputation, but more on what the effects of the book could be on their son. Joey was now ten years old, and Bowie was quite certain he would read the book one day. Bowie wondered if Joey would think differently about his parents after reading about some of their behavior, which was better left out of the public eye. Bowie was saddened that Angela gave little regard to this fact, before writing her book, and exposing the "family secrets" to the whole world. He knew she did it only for the money, but the fact was that she put money before the well being of their son. Now, I have a few personal thoughts about Angela , as well as the two books she wrote about her life with Bowie. In my opinion at first, the jury was out, according to her. I will admit at times I believed she got a rather rough ride, and was treated unfairly. I was also of the opinion that she was royally screwed when it came to the divorce settlement. I have mellowed a bit on my position regarding the divorce, but I still feel that she was "robbed" on the financial settlement she got. I think $700,000.000 was an insult considering Bowie's finances at the time, and had the divorce case been heard in America, rather than Switzerland, she would have faired much better. As opposed to America, where the opposite is true, Swiss family courts are heavily weighed in the favour of men. On the other end however, my opinion of her has been  altered since I read her books. 

I have lost a great deal, almost every bit actually, of respect that I had for Angela Bowie. This came about after seeing her a few times on afternoon talk shows, and reading both of her books cover to cover. In my opinion she had a wonderful opportunity to redeem herself in the eyes of the media, and the public, with her books. I will openly confess that I was personally very excited when I heard that there was a book coming out that was written by her. The reason for this was that SHE WAS THERE. You see, her book would not be like this series I am writing, or other accounts of Bowie's life. My information, as well as the information in most of the other accounts, is obtained from other written sources, and therefore it leaves us at a disadvantage. Angela, she was there, SHE SAW IT ALL, a FIRST HAND ACCOUNT, and a TRUTHFUL ONE AT THAT. Okay, I will come completely clean. I was fucking DROOLING thinking of all of the possibilities while I waited for that book to come out. You couldn't imagine some of the thoughts I had. She was around when Bowie wrote his songs, so she must know a lot about them. I bet she knows what The Bewlay Brothers is about, and that could be in her book. I may get a first hand account of how Bowie recorded some of his albums, by someone who WAS ACTUALLY IN THE STUDIO. There could be first hand information about Visconti, Ronson and others, where little is known as far as how they work. I envisioned a book that would be a virtual gold mine, priceless in terms of useful, and never before revealed, information about Bowie. 

I really like sex, but it ceased to be a topic of discussion for me around the age of seventeen. After that there was no more need to join in with others to exclaim my individual sexual prowess. You know, all of the boys together  trying to "up" one another by giving detailed accounts of their various "conquests," and which most of the stories were nothing more than wishful thinking. Sex became a personal matter, no longer "dirty," and my mind sought out more intellectual pursuits. Sometimes, I think I am different. Why? Well, it seems like the whole fucking world is preoccupied with sex, I'm not, and I can't understand others. I just don't get what the big deal is about it. We are human, sex is fun, so we like to fuck. And? So what. We all do it pretty much the same way, so why is there a need to talk about it? In my opinion, sex is really quite boring, and most often infantile, as a topic for discussion. You have all seen the discussions based on Bowie's sex life floating around on various news groups. When I see this I just shake my head, and wonder. I can't help thinking, "Don't these idiots have anything more intelligent to discuss about Bowie than this? I mean, who cares who he's fucked? Why does it matter?" The only conclusion that I can arrive at to answer these questions is that these people are just plain ignorant. Some of you may say that I have no business saying that, and in all fairness, you may very well be right. However, my opinion remains that if that is what they feel is worth discussing about Bowie, they obviously have missed any relevance he has as an artist, either that, or quite probably the music is way over their heads. There is also the possibility that they believe there is some importance to this, rather than the unique recording processes first developed, and used, on Heroes. I don't, and I believe that thinking is for those who will never ever understand the essence of Bowie. I am thankful that those who have been members of this group before me have always frowned on this form of discussion, and strongly discouraged it. That fact is a real credit to them, and it sets this group apart from the others, as being much more worthwhile in terms of content. 

Her first book was far beyond useless. It was a discredit to the value of paper to put her thoughts on it. However, I am human, and as a result I have hope, which at times  really amounts to not much more than stupidity. You see, I put faith that her second book, Backstage Pass, would be the book that I was so desperately hoping to have, and Angie would be redeemed. I forget which talk show it was on , oh, I remember now, it was Joan Rivers. I'm pretty sure anyway. I saw Angie on there as a guest, to promote her second book. While I was watching out it came, "I caught my husband in bed with Mick Jagger." I couldn't fucking believe what I had just heard. I went, "WHAT? Of all the stupidest things to say in order to sell a fucking book." I am unable to understand how a person can have so little integrity, or self respect, that they could go on an afternoon talk show which is viewed by millions, and lie right through their teeth for the sake of money. Not only that, how could they have so little honour as to say something about another person that was not true, and in doing so damage that person's reputation, for the sake of a few dollars. Any respect that I had for her vanished, and Bowie demonstrated the utmost class by not responding to her nonsense, and by not saying one negative thing about her to the media. Yes, I have the book, and yes, I read it. I got it for eight bucks in a bargain bin. I wasn't ready for what I read, and I never could have prepared myself sufficiently beforehand, even if I tried. It is no wonder The Rolling Stones threatened to sue her into oblivion if she so much as copied one word from their song Angie, which was of course written about her. Sex. I slept with her, he slept with her, I slept with him, he slept with him, they slept with us, she slept with us, we all slept with them, her and I slept with them, I slept with it, I slept with that, for page after page, after page, page after page, after page.  My reaction to all of this was, "SO FUCKING WHAT? WHO CARES WHO YOU FUCKED? I don't get it at all, am I supposed to be IMPRESSED by this, or something? Do you want a medal, or a "goody" biscuit  for doing something that practically ever person on the planet has done? Are you aware that you are not the only one engaged in this activity?"  I couldn't help thinking that if I were that sexually immoral, and disrespected myself, my wedding vows, and my partner to this degree, I certainly would not be bragging about it to the world, and displaying my lack of integrity like it was some sort of a badge of honour. Another one of my initial reactions after reading these books, was the fact that there were quite a few of her statements that were so absolutely ridiculous, I found it difficult to believe that any person would take them seriously. This was an error on my part. I say this because shortly after the release of Backstage Pass I saw some of the best examples of the most ridiculous statements taken from her book, and quoted as if they were the "gospel truth," in some of the most trusted magazines and newspapers. Now, I am not insinuating that those fans of Bowie's who have bothered to learn something about him would believe these statements, it is usually those who do not know much about him,  that are easy prey for books of this nature. It is not just these books either. I am also referring to all of the ignorance I see flowing out of many of the articles I read on Bowie in the media. There are a large number of people out there, even Bowie fans, who believe everything that they hear, and read. I see examples of it all the time. Every once in a while I mention Bowie around a group of people I do not know well and someone will say, "He slept with Mick Jagger." I used to snap right back at people who said things like that, and correct them. They would then get a little bit of advice from me. I would tell them that going around making statements about things you know nothing about, before finding out if what you are saying is even the truth or not, can really make a person look like a fool. I don't do that anymore, I just think to myself, "What an idiot." These books are  useless as a source to learn anything about Bowie, and in fact they will severely damage your knowledge about Bowie, if you accept most of what is written in them as being factual. This is because most of the information has no credibility whatsoever.  I have had disagreements with people who have attempted to use parts of these books as evidence to support their statements. However, I will not accept anything that Angela says as being valid as evidence, for the simple reason that she has no credibility. This is proven simply by the fact that there are incidences that Angela claimed happened, that can be proven to NOT have happened. These things were written as an act of revenge, and you can't rely on any of the statements made about a person, when the person making the statements is motivated by revenge. My overall opinion of her books is, what a waste, when we could have had so much. 

By December 5th, 1981, the day the K-Tel package was released, Bowie had accomplished  everything he had wanted to. In addition, he had two more talents he could add to his resume, one as a serious Broadway stage actor, and another as a video writer, director, actor and editor. There were still two more things Bowie wanted to do as soon as possible. He wanted to have his paintings displayed in reputable art galleries. He had told those around him that he  wanted to embark on a world tour in the spring of 1981, now only a few short months away. Based on the last tours, it was easy to expect that this one would be just as spectacular. 
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Part Forty Seven

Quite a long time ago I noticed something, and that is the people that society views as successful seem to have one thing in common. Feelings of inadequacy. This may sound like a paradox, however if you examine it closely you will discover that there is reasoning behind what I say. You see, it is because of these feeling of inadequacy, that these types of people are never satisfied with what they have accomplished, they are more prone to find faults in what they have done, and keep working in an attempt to make everything "perfect." As we all know, perfection is unattainable with most things, therefore these people continue to push themselves to reach a goal that one can never reach. Their accomplishments are usually a result of this drive. There is a line in Ashes To Ashes, and it reads, "I've never done good things, I've never done bad things, I've never done anything out of the blue." These few lines are autobiographical, they are Bowie judging Bowie, and they reflect the attitude I just mentioned, one of being inadequate. Even though many high achievers share this characteristic you would never know most even had it, as it is rarely displayed. All the outside world usually sees in these people is an outpouring of confidence, but inside it is quite a different matter. These few lines from Ashes To Ashes reveal a part of Bowie that helps fuel his drive. Bowie talked a bit about these feelings in an interview conducted in the Booth Theater during the run of The Elephant Man. Talking about Ashes To Ashes Bowie said, "Those three particular lines represent a continuing, returning feeling of inadequacy over what I've done. I have an awful lot of reservations about what I've done inasmuch as I don't feel much of it has any import at all.. And then I have days where of course it all feels very important to me, that I've contributed an awful lot. But I'm not awfully happy with what I've done in the past actually." Now, I know that many of you are thinking "Classic Bowie Bullshit" after reading that. For all it is worth, I can assure you that those statements are not Bowie "playing" the media, and this was not said in a twenty journalist, one after the one, fifteen minutes each promo marathon. This interview is one of the ones at the top as far as credible information is concerned. It was a total of three hours long, and conducted over a period of two days.  The only reason Bowie did it was because he happened to develop a respect for journalist Angus MacKinnon, and felt "comfortable" enough to be straight, and it is one of the few interviews that is actually free of Bowie's "nonsense." Instead, what you get is a rare look at Bowie. It is rare, because it is Bowie straight up. 

In light of what Bowie said about feeling inadequate, he was asked what he felt his positive achievements were. He said this, "The idea that one doesn't have to exist purely on one defined set of ethics and values, that you can investigate other areas and other avenues of perception and try and apply them to everyday life. I think I've tried to do that. I think I've done that fairly successfully. At times, even if only on a theoretical level." MacKinnon then said Bowie acted as if he proved a lot to himself with his role in The Elephant Man. Bowie said that he was well surprised that he was able to do it successfully, adding that his confidence was at "low ebb" on opening night. He said he was in fact, "Terrified." He agreed that he did prove a lot to himself. Did Bowie decide to play a good portion of material from Ziggy Stardust on his last tour in an attempt to recover his "old" audience, MacKinnon asked. This may seem to you like an asinine question, but wait. This person is not like most of your "average idiot" writers, who know so little about Bowie that they have their picture under "ignorant" in the dictionary. This guy knows Bowie, and this is obvious by his follow up remark after the question. I was quite impressed, as I would never expect to hear anything like this. He said he felt a vague sense of betrayal. Bowie's response was, "Really?" MacKinnon went on to explain that he was so IMPRESSED with LOW and HEROES, that playing the older material, CANCELED OUT THE VALIDITY OF THE NEWER MATERIAL. I know, I couldn't believe this either when I read it. That came from a rock journalist. It is easy to see why Bowie respects this guy, he is a brilliant observer, and he knows his stuff, this guy is no fool. Bowie said that there were two reasons that he played so much of Ziggy on that tour. He said first that he found the music enjoyable again, and he hadn't played it on stage for some time. He said it was for his "personal enjoyment." In addition Bowie said that he was only too willing to admit that there are a number of people who want to hear his old songs, and without any hesitation, he is quite willing to play them. He said he can also play what he is doing currently, but he has no qualms about playing the older things that people like. 

Everything was going along quite well for Bowie. This included the ongoing feud between him and RCA, which he now thought to escalate. Previously Bowie had held a press conference, he said was to end any rumours, speculation, and to clear the air about the status between himself, and RCA. "At present, and for the foreseeable future I am under contract to RCA Records, and at no time have I engaged in any negotiations to alter that status. My relationship with RCA has been a long and rewarding one, and any rumours that I am signing with another label are both false, and erroneous," Bowie stated to the press. Unlike Angela, the "dirty laundry" stayed IN THE HOUSE, where it belonged. The feud between Bowie and RCA was known about, but only through innuendo, and gossip. Bowie kept it away from "prying" eyes, and admitted to nothing, except that all was fine between him and his label. A certain question however arose that changed all that. MacKinnon asked Bowie if he had complete control over what RCA released. He said no, and went on to say that they even put things out without his approval. He said a good example was Velvet Goldmine. RCA had someone unknown mix it, and then they released it, before Bowie ever heard it. MacKinnon said that he should be able to stop that, since Bowie just re signed with RCA. Then it came out. Bowie said, "No. I most certainly haven't. We're miles away from that, and shall just have to wait and see what happens." Bowie was then asked if the rumours about RCA not liking Lodger were true. Bowie said that they were, and said that they didn't like Low either, insisting he go and make another Young Americans. This is the attitude Bowie said, that he was dealing with. Bowie had taken the feud public now, there would be no need now for rumours. MacKinnon asked, "Do you have any plans to tour." Bowie replied, "Yes, next spring. I say this every time and I hope it happens. I want to play smaller places." See what we missed? 

David Bowie was living at the Carlyle Hotel, and he often frequented a Japanese restaurant, close to the Booth Theater. He conducted many of the interviews from there, as well as practiced his Japanese on the waitresses. On December 5th, Bowie was interviewed by Andy Peebles for the BBC. The next day Peebles interviewed John Lennon, and he asked him about Bowie. Lennon replied in part that he never really knew who he was, "Because you don't know which one you're talking to." David Bowie received a panicked call two days later on December 8, 1980, from Lennon's secretary, and former girlfriend, May Pang. Bowie loved New York because, as he said, no one bothered him, he could move around freely. John Lennon was dead, Pang told Bowie. He was gunned down in front of his apartment when returning from the recording studio where he was putting the finishing touches on his new album, Double Fantasy. Mark David Chapman went to the Dakota, Lennon's residence, sometime between eight or nine in the morning. Lennon appeared around noon and Chapman got his autograph. Along with the autograph, Chapman had something else. It was a .38 revolver, and it was loaded with "hollow point" bullets. The bullet literally has a hollow point, which  allows his type of ammunition to "pancake" on impact. The entrance wound is small, as it is with normal bullets, however, since the bullet flattens on impact, the internal wounds are massive.  John Lennon returned that evening about eleven o'clock, and Chapman had not moved, he was waiting. Yoko was carrying a tape in her hand when she exited the limousine ahead of her husband, and as she walked past Chapman he said, "Hello."  As soon as John walked past, Chapman pulled out his .38 and then assumed a "combat stance," with one arm supporting the other at the wrist. He then said, " Mr. Lennon." Two shots struck John Lennon as he turned to acknowledge Chapman. He then fired two more that hit John's shoulder.  He fires one more, missing his target, however, it is too late. The wounds he sustained were fatal.  Why did Chapman shoot Lennon? In his words, "I was feeling like I was worthless, and maybe the root of it is a self-esteem issue. I felt like nothing, and I felt if I shot him, I would become something, which is not true at all." He also said, "What happened was I was in the library, and I was looking through some books, and I came across a book called One Day at a Time, and I saw him there with photographs in front of his residence, the Dakota, and I was full of anger and resentment, you  know. I took it upon myself to judge him falsely for - for, you know,  being something other than, you know, in a lotus position with a flower, and I got angry in my stupidity. So it started with anger, but I wasn't angry the night I shot him." The sentence given by the court, for the murder of John Lennon, was twenty years to life. Chapman recently applied to be granted parole. His request was denied. The death of Lennon had an enormous effect on David Bowie, not only did he lose a close friend, but his life changed as well. At first, Bowie was in a state of panic when he heard the news, yet he did not request any additional security at the theater.  Jack Hofsiss offered to make some changes to the play, so that Bowie could leave the stage periodically when he wasn't needed. Bowie refused to go along with any alterations being made to the play, just for "his" sake. Never the less, Hofsiss increased the security at the theater. 

Christmas was a family affair, and for the first time in seven years Bowie spent it with his mother, flying her to New York to be with him and Joey. Bowie made two New Year's resolutions going into 1981, and both would not be welcome news for his fans. First of all, there would be no spring tour, and the murder of Lennon was a major factor in this decision. Also, Bowie toured because of the money it generated,  but now however, Bowie did not "need" the money, and so, a tour could wait. Next, Bowie would not record for a year. This decision had to do with the feud between him and RCA, as well as his contract with MainMan and Tony Defries. The problem for David was that Defries would get a percentage of EVERYTHING RCA RELEASED, both past, present and future. Defries got fifty percent of everything from 1975 and back. If Bowie released a new album Defries got seventeen percent of the royalties it generated, plus twenty five percent of the publishing. Bowie did not wish to give Defries, or RCA, any more than what they already had. He would just sit and wait until his contract expired. Defries and RCA were not waiting however, Defries had ideas, and they decided to team up. You see, since Bowie wouldn't give them anything, they had to do with what they had. I just thought of a line from Teenage Wildlife that is a PERFECT. It  goes like this, "It's the same old thing, in brand new drag, comes sweeping into view."  Their answer to Bowie's refusal to record was simple, they would just take the OLD, and make it NEW again, and this is exactly what they did.  RCA, along with Defries, repackaged, or in some cases just reissued portions of Bowie's back catalog. This practice went on for YEARS! 

I am speaking from personal experience here, and let me tell you that these reissues, and repackages, became a fucking nightmare for certain types of Bowie collectors.  Personally, I am thankful that I have never been a "catalog" collector. There is a wide variety of Bowie collectors out there, and many are unique as far as what they "specialize" in. "Specialty," is a nice word for "OBSESSION," if the truth be known. Some want to build a collection of original vinyls, so they look for Bowie on the Vocalion-Pop, Parlophone, Pye, Deram, Philips, Decca Mercury, RCA and EMI labels. Then there are those who seek out singles or picture disks. I have seen collections which feature foreign pressings. Then there are of course those who collect, quiet now, Shhhhhh, BOOTLEGS. To some collectors the music is secondary, as they prefer to gather magazines and  newspapers which feature Bowie, as well as tour programs. Ticket stubs seem to be a prized commodity, and for some it is video. Then there are the "period" collectors. These people collect certain phases of Bowie's career, or specific years, and this is the category I fall into, as I collect 1976, and anything to do with the Station To Station period. Catalog collectors are the epitome of a "DEVOTED" collector. "Devoted," of course meaning "INSANE." These are the collectors who must have it ALL, yes, I said ALL, meaning  EVERYTHING THAT BOWIE HAS RELEASED, THE ENTIRE CATALOG. Singles, vinyl, CDs, picture disks, box sets. Now, most are not crazy enough to try for domestic, as well as the foreign releases, they usually stick to one continent, there are however the few exceptions to the rule. You can easily recognize these people as they speak a certain language  few other Bowie fans are able to speak. Earthling BMG 74321 43077-2/4 Limited edition  74321 44944 1, and other catalog numbers. Now, as if the regular catalog isn't enough for these collectors, along comes RCA and repackages the stuff they ALREADY OWN, forcing these poor souls to purchase the same music numerous times. Now, you may say, "What's the big deal? Two copies of an album in some cases is not all that bad." Well, I say that you are right, if that were the case, but it isn't. I am not talking about an album being repackaged by RCA, or others, a COUPLE of times, no, it's a bit more than that. Let's take The Rise And Fall Of Ziggy Stardust And The Spiders From Mars for example. It has been repackaged in some "new" format, or other and re-released NINE TIMES! Now, I agree that Ziggy is a great album, but I think that most will agree with me that nine copies is a bit excessive. When you start adding on to that another four, or more copies, of every Bowie album you are bordering on the ridiculous. What was that? How many copies of Station Top Station do I own? At last count, I believe I own sixteen copies of Station To Station, but that's different. I NEED every one of those, by the way, and it is my opinion that everyone should have sixteen copies of Station To Station. 

All of these re issues wouldn't be so bad if some thought went into them, but honestly, a lot of them are junk, and it is easy to see that the motivation behind them was money. That would not be so bad either, if RCA put out a quality product that was attractive as a collectible, but, once again, junk. Now, do not get me wrong, there is some really "nice" stuff out there, but overall much of it is not very attractive. I particularly remember the 1982 rerelease of Bowie singles that came in "Picture Sleeves." The quality of the printing on those sleeves was horrible, and I know because I own them all, and I have multiple copies of some of them. Here's a story. I was at home one night and a friend comes over and gives me about thirty Bowie singles as a gift. Included in there were all of the picture sleeve singles, explaining why I now have duplicates. There was also a Tin Machine Live in a silver limited edition box, there was a China Girl 45 rpm picture disk, another limited edition box from something off of Tonight, or Never Let Me Down, and a whole lot more, most of which I did not own. Now, this friend of mine likes Bowie, but he is not someone you would call a fan, so I got curious as to where he obtained all of these singles. The answer, as it turned out, was in the garbage. No joke. He was walking in the alley behind a used record store and all of these singles were sitting in a garbage can, so he grabbed them for me. They are all in great shape too. Although there are several re-releases that are worth owning, the average ones are rather boring, poorly thought out and unattractive. An exception to this was Fashions, which is in my opinion one of the best Bowie packages compiled by anyone. Fashions, is a set of ten 45 rpm picture disk singles. The pictures on the disks offer a snapshot of Bowie's career, through the various looks he adopted. The singles came in a vinyl booklet, with a self portrait drawn by Bowie on the front. There was a limited pressing of 25,000 copies. While RCA and Defries were busy deciding what wrapping paper to put on Bowie's back catalog, K-Tel's The Best Of David Bowie sold over a million copies. 

Christmas was quiet and uneventful for Bowie.  I imagine he must have enjoyed New Years, with the knowledge that January 3rd, 1981 was now only two days away. Now, although Bowie knew January 3rd would be an important day, he could have never imagined that it would be the most important day of his entire career. It would also be the most important day in the life of every Bowie fan as well. 

AladInSANe
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Part Forty Eight

On January 3rd, 1981, the last performance of The Elephant Man starring David Bowie was staged at the Booth Theater on Broadway. The play's director, Jack Hofsiss, tried to persuade Bowie to stay with the production three more months, however Bowie declined. It was over. That evening the cast, who were at first so apprehensive about his ability to be able to handle the role, held a party for him. As a gift he was given the cloth backdrop from the play. It was not only "OVER" for Bowie, it was over for his listeners as well, only we did not know that at the time. 

Now, I want you to all listen to me closely here, and pay attention to this.  I mean it too, because I want you to understand what I am about to say. The reason is that I know fucking well there are many of you out there who do not know this because you haven't looked, and it is about time you learned. Every Bowie fan should be aware of this information, because it tells you everything about Bowie's motivation as an artist, and this is something, that sadly, far too many Bowie listeners do not understand. At all.  Ready? Okay, here we go. In TEN YEARS, between 1970, and 1980, this is what David Bowie personally accomplished. Music wise he wrote, recorded and released a total of TWELVE SOLO ALBUMS. That is NOT all, he also appeared on thirteen others. Two of those, Lust For Life, and The Idiot he basically wrote almost all of the music for Iggy Pop. Out of these as well, he produced Lou Reed's Transformer, along with Mick Ronson, and some of Iggy's Raw Power. He single handily saved the band Mott The Hoople from fading away into obscurity, and they were on the brink of it when he stepped in. Bowie wrote, and gave them their first hit, All The Young Dudes, and his production work made the album a classic. You can add one more album to the thirteen others, with his narration of Peter And The Wolf. Now, on top of that add five world tours in the ten years, 72, 74, 76 and 78 were solo tours, and he toured as a member of Iggy Pop's band in 77. I am far from finished. He played the lead role in two major film productions, as well as made Ziggy Stardust The Motion Picture. He was featured in The Cracked Actor Documentary, and his other television appearances, as well as radio and personal appearances, are far too numerous to list. There are few Bowie listeners who are aware that he also made, or was featured in SIXTEEN videos in those ten years. Then, there is the one Broadway play he starred in. You take a good look, David Bowie did ALL of that in TEN YEARS. These however, are only the things that you KNOW ABOUT. It would be wise of you to remember, that over this period of time, in addition to the work I have just mentioned, Bowie was also painting, sculpting, writing, or doing whatever else, that you do not know about. 

I have something to say, and I want to say it to everyone of you who thinks that we didn't LOSE DAVID BOWIE in 1980.  Take a good fucking look at that list, and you add it all up, and now you show me just ONE other period in Bowie's career where he EVEN CAME CLOSE to what he accomplished then, and I mean in QUANTITY, and QUALITY. Well? Come on, show me. The number's don't lie, they speak for themselves, what I said he did is the TRUTH. So, to prove your case, all you have to do is show me another time period where Bowie came close to accomplishing what he did between 1970 and 1980. I'm waiting. Well, guess what? I have some rather bad news for you. The thing is, you can't. That's right, you heard me, you can't. The fact is that there is NO OTHER PERIOD in his career where Bowie was this, innovative, diverse, inventive and productive. There is no other period either, where his work was consistently of such high quality. I defy you to show me a BAD album from this period. Yes, there may be a WEAK one, such as Pin Ups, but there is nothing that rates as POOR. Do not attempt to brush the quality of his albums off as only my OPINION, because it is not my opinion, it is a fact, and I can prove it. I invite you to visit any place, such as Teenage Wildlife, the fan based web site where the listeners rate each Bowie album, and song. You will soon discover that this is not MY OPINION, it is the opinion of the VAST MAJORITY of listeners, and there is enough evidence to positively conclude, that as far as Bowie's listeners are concerned, this period was EXCEPTIONAL, compared to any other. If you think otherwise, you are in disagreement with every listener I know who was there in the seventies, and the majority of other listeners, so this makes your argument an OPINION, not mine. Bowie never produced this way artistically again. We LOST that. 

Now, one more thing. I have people tell me that the reason he stopped producing to this level was because he got older. Well, I wish to straighten something out here. You are a first class idiot if you expect me to believe that, and I mean it. Please, give me more credit than that, because this is an insult to my intelligence, really. Think about this for a minute. Think about what you are trying to make me believe here. You want me to believe that Bowie got old in the space of ONE YEAR, and stopped producing. Yep, that's what you said. I have to tell you that you are WRONG, it is NOT because Bowie got older. You see, according to credited MEDICAL JOURNALS, which are used to train physicians, aging is a GRADUAL PROCESS, and the reduction of physical activity is a process which takes many DECADES, not ONE YEAR. The sad truth is that it WAS BOWIE HIMSELF who decided to stop producing the innovative and diverse art, that his talent is capable of, in the quantity, and of the quality, he did in the seventies. Still, it is for some odd reason, that I will never understand, that some people feel a need to defend Bowie from those people, such as me, who state the facts, and then express concern and criticism because of what they lost. These people are willing to alter reality, and deny the facts, any way they must in order to "protect" their image of Bowie. To them, the image they have of Bowie is that he is flawless. They have their own image of other fans too. They view anyone who would criticize Bowie, as not fit to call themselves a fan. What is of concern to me however, is that they not only view those who criticize that way, they also condemn anyone who would dare to even question Bowie, or his work. Now, how someone could ever "just accept" something,  without first questioning it extensively to discover the truth about it, or if it is what it claims to be, is beyond my reasoning. Correction, it is not just beyond my reasoning, it is beyond any reasoning. 

January 3rd, 1981 was the end of the greatest era in Bowie's career, and what followed was a period of near seclusion for two years. Although he continued to work on some projects during this time, he would rarely make any public appearances, and he told no one of what his plans were for the future. After his final performance in The Elephant Man Bowie left America for his home in Switzerland. Once Bowie was in Japan with John Lennon, and they were walking around in a market when Bowie discovered an old Beatles style jacket. He asked Lennon to put it on, which he did. Bowie said that the jacket looked out of place on Lennon, meaning that it belonged in another era, and it didn't "fit" anymore. John Lennon was one of the reasons Bowie did not extend his role in The Elephant Man, tour, or stay in America. He truly feared for his own personal safety. The first part of 1981 Bowie relaxed, and engaged in one of his favourite, skiing. I have a photo of Bowie that I cut out of some magazine years ago that shows him wearing this enormous snowsuit and mitts. The caption under the photo says, "Ziggy Snowflake." I think it should have read, "Ziggy Snowman." Oh, he had a hat on too. February was spent on the ski slopes with his son Joey, which had become a family tradition, provided dad was not on tour. Joey, as a matter of fact, had become a competitive skier, and he has won many medals. Bowie could hold his own on skis as well. He personally taught Tony Visconti in 1979. Visconti said Bowie was extremely patient, and an excellent instructor. He was able to teach Visconti the basics in only two days. 

RCA figured it out. Bowie was going to wait it out, in other words, just sit and do nothing for a couple of years until his contract expires. Now, even though Bowie under the terms of his contract had fulfilled the required numbers of albums he was to deliver, he was still obligated to keep producing, at least something. RCA was not very happy with this move by Bowie, and so they decided to take action. RCA placed Bowie on "suspension for non delivery," and by doing so they legally were able to extend his contract for one year,  until the end of 1982. His contractual obligations to Tony Defries and MainMan would not expire until 1983, and he was not about to further line their pockets more than he had already. Simple, David Bowie would not work, and RCA, along with Defries, would continue repackaging his back catalog. On March 30th, they released the single Up The Hill Backwards, backed by Crystal Japan on the B side 

At the end of February Bowie returned to London. Record Mirror magazine had run its annual readers poll, and Bowie won awards in two categories, Best Male Singer, and Best Co-Director of the number one video of the year, Ashes  To Ashes. At the annual Rock And Pop Awards Ceremony, held at the New London Theater, and sponsored by Record Mirror magazine and BBC Radio, David Bowie won again as Top Male Vocalist. In May the soundtrack was released for Christine F. The album was not a huge seller, only 25,000 copies were shipped to the UK, however the film's popularity was a different story. At the time of its release Christine F. became the most successful film in the history of German cinema. In July the BBC made an announcement of a series of condensed plays that they planned to produce and broadcast in 1982. One of them being a play written by Bertolt Brecht called Baal, and David Bowie quite admired this man's work. Bertolt Brecht was a German playwright, poet and a theatrical performer. It is no wonder that Bowie was fascinated by the work of Bertolt Brecht, as his style, beliefs, and some of his views on how to present art mimicked those of Bowie, or the other way around perhaps. Brecht was born in 1898 and he experimented with dada and expressionism, which are also two styles that Bowie experimented with, and talked about very frequently pertaining to his music, as well as his painting. A major influencing factor on Bowie's work, and also his personal life was isolation, and he often chose, or forced himself, to live in this state. I quoted Bowie in an earlier instalment of Images where he said that he chose to live in isolation, so he could write about it. Isolation fascinated Brecht, so much so that it heavily influenced his work. He detested the "common" form of plays, and cinema where the audience was made to focus on a main character. The emotional state of the audience is then determined by the things that happen to the main character, such as if he is hurt, they feel sad, and feel anger and revenge against the one that hurt him. Brecht said that the emotional attachment to the main character basically put the audience into a trance, leading to a state of self oblivion. This is not what he wanted to happen with his work, instead, he wanted the audience to "think," rather than become emotional. Brecht experimented attempting to achieve this through his art, and although he was never completely successful, he did gain credit for developing a technique  known as "verfremdungseffekt" or the "alienation effect.” It was designed to remove any thoughts of criticism from the audience, so their response to his work would be analytical, as opposed to emotional. Bowie's isolationism was different of course than Brecht's, as his only applied to himself. 

 Brecht was born with a congenital heart condition and was also plagued with a facial tic. He gained quite a reputation as being "uncontrollable," during his school years.  At the age of twelve he suffered a heart attack, which he fully recovered from, and he later returned to school. It was in school where he began to write, and he ended up a co-founding and co-editing a school magazine called "The Harvest.”  By the age of fourteen he had his first poems published, and by the age of sixteen he was writing for a local newspaper and had written his first play, The Bible. The play is about a girl who must choose whether between living,  dying, or saving  others. He got into trouble and was almost expelled from school at age eighteen for disagreeing on whether it was necessary to defend his country in time of war. Brecht left school when he was nineteen, and by that time the First World War had broken out. His medical condition prevented him from active military service, and therefore he was assigned clerical duties instead. In 1917 he resumed his education, this time studying medicine at Ludwig Maximilian University in Munich, and while there he attended seminars on the theater. During this time his mother was terminally ill from cancer, heavily drugged with morphine, and it was also at this time that Brecht wrote Baal. 

Can art imitate life? I think so.  Like Brecht, Baal is a poet. Baal is also a singer, drunk, lazy, selfish and ruthless. When he is befriended by a gentleman who is rather wealthy, and a connoisseur of the arts, he promptly seduces the man's wife. His motto is revealed early in the play, and it states, "Take what you can get, and when you've got it all move on to greener pastures." Baal had some rather interesting philosophies, one being, "The toilet! Best place in God's creation, where you can calmly sit in contemplation. Your dreams are on the wall before your eyes. Your accomplishments below you, drawing flies." Earning the admiration of a middle-class age student, which he rebukes, only to take her fifteen year old girlfriend instead, who later drowns herself. He later finds another vulnerable woman, who he makes his mistress, only to publicly humiliate her in the filthy cabaret where he is now working as a singer. He gives up singing in the cabaret, in favour of wandering around the countryside with his mistress, and his musician friend Ekart. When he discovers that his mistress is pregnant, he abandons her, leaving her by the roadside. In memory of the fifteen year old who drowned herself because of him he sings a song called The Drowned Girl. It tells of her suicide, adding how the human body physically merges with plants, seeds, and water. Years later Baal, and his friend Ekart, return to the cabaret where they one performed, only to find the two women that Baal earlier discarded. Both have lost the womanly sensitivities they once had, both having now become rather "rough."  Baal also discovers that his mother has died. Ekhart seduces the worse one of the two and is caught by Baal, who then murders him. In a jealous rage. Baal's debauchery has left a trail of deflowered virgins, dead or abandoned lover's, and murdered friends. He is now being sought by the police, so he flees to the forest finding refuge in a woodcutter's camp. Here he dies of pneumonia while still standing on his feet, and his arms stretched out at the sky. 

Now, although Brecht's life did not mimic that of Baal's, there are certain similarities, and his life can best be described as quite colourful. Like the character Baal, Brecht's mother passed away while he was writing the play. In order to "broaden his experiences," Brecht began frequenting brothels at the age of sixteen. As a child, one of their servants by the name of Marie Miller had a rather interesting game to amuse Bertolt and his brother. She used to hide objects in her underwear and allow the boys to "search" for them. Apparently his mother had a habit of smelling his clothes to determine the extent of his sexual activity. No, I am NOT making this up. Let me assure you, that like you, I  also had a bit of difficulty believing it. I found some of this stuff quite bizarre indeed,  so I checked it all out, and it is strange, but it is also true.  He simultaneously pursued eight girls, between the ages of sixteen and twenty, one being Paula Banholzer, who gave birth to his illegitimate child in 1919. He did slow down marginally in his adult life, but still having  no less than three mistresses at any given time.  Brecht is known to have experimented with homosexuality, often inviting artistically inclined male friends to his room on weekends to read erotic literature. His diaries, although vague, make mention of his need for both male and female sexual gratification. Apart from his countless affairs with both women and men, he was married twice and fathered four children, two of them illegitimate. 

Brecht's political leanings were with Communism, starting  in 1919, and he joined the Independent Social Democratic party.  He believed that the freedom of the individual must be suppressed today so that in the future mankind will be able to achieve  freedom. The artistic influences, that effected his work, have got to be the most diverse, and the most incompatible, that I have personally ever seen.  He studied Chinese, Japanese, and Indian theater, focussing heavily on Shakespeare and other writers from that era. He adopted elements of Greek tragedy in his work, and that of other German playwrights. He enjoyed  Bavarian folk plays as well. Now, as impossible as this sounds, and as crazy, Brecht had a phenomenal ability to take these incompatible writings, blend them together, and incorporate them into his own work. He also trained other actors, one of them being  Lotte Lenya, the wife of Kurt Weil, whose work Bowie listeners have heard. Kurt Weil was a composer, who wrote several critically acclaimed operas, and he collaborated at times with Brecht, who wrote  lyrics to Weil's music. Those familiar with Bowie will instantly recognize a song he recorded, that was originally written by Bertolt Brecht and Kurt Weil. It is called Alabama Song. Brecht got a first hand lesson in the application of his political beliefs about the suppression of individual freedom during the 1930's, when his books and plays were banned in Germany, and performances of his work were interrupted by the police or, forbidden.  Oddly enough, and unlike his doctrine favouring suppression of the individual, he failed to see this as a positive step towards mankind achieving freedom in the future, and in 1933 he fled to Zurich, and later into exile in Denmark. Weil, suffering the same fate also left in 1933,  but for France instead, and then on to the United States in 1935. So much for the freedom of mankind, I guess. In 1935 the Nazis revoked Brecht's German citizenship. He truly feared the Nazis, moving to Stockholm, as a result of the growing pressure on Denmark from the Nazis. The advance of German troops on Sweden, caused him to move to Finland in 1940, and in 1941 he fled to Moscow. It was from Moscow that he arranged passage by ship to Los Angeles,  and once there he settled in Santa Monica. 

In 1947, Brecht was summoned to appear before the House Committee for Un-American Activities, led by Senator McCarthy, in order to investigate the "subversion" of Hollywood by the Communists. In reality it was nothing more than a "witch hunt," driven by the ignorance and stupidity of McCarthy, who had convinced himself, without a scrap of evidence, that there was a Communist behind every tree in America. In addition he was thoroughly convinced that there were actors in Hollywood, who were in fact COMMUNIST SYMPATHIZERS or AGENTS, whose mission it was to use the field of entertainment to CAPTURE THE HEARTS AND MINDS of innocent American citizens. Now, all of this appears so  ridiculous, it is difficult to imagine it hurting anyone, but that is far from the truth. In the wake of this "investigation," to weed out Communism, many people suffered for the remainder of their lives. Hundreds of, actors, writers, musicians and others in the entertainment industry were hauled in front of this committee and questioned about any affiliation they had to Communism. Those brought before the committee included actress Shirley Temple, who was ten years old at the time. The pressure was put on people to give names, and turn in those they worked with, who they thought may be Communist sympathizers. Every person was made to take a pledge stating that what they say is the absolute truth, and then answer this question, "Are you now, or have you ever been, a member of the communist party?" As funny as it sounds there were ten actors jailed for refusing to take the pledge, give names, or provide testimony against others. Those who were found to be "Communist Sympathizers," were "rail roaded,"  usually found guilty based on hearsay, and unreliable evidence. As a result their names were "Blacklisted" in Hollywood, meaning, they could not work, because no one would hire them, and if they did, then they would be branded as a Communist. The careers ended for most of those who were blacklisted, although some continued to work by leaving  and working in foreign countries, or writing under an "assumed" name.  Brecht left the United States for Switzerland the next day. In 1948 he went to East Berlin, and in 1950 to Austria where he was  granted citizenship. He also briefly returned for a short period in that time frame to Germany. In 1955 Brecht received the Stalin Peace Prize. The next year he contracted a lung infection, and died of a coronary thrombosis on August 14, 1956, in East Berlin.  He had left instructions, that when he died, he wanted a stiletto put through his heart. and to be buried in a steel coffin so that his body would not become riddled with worms. Can you see now why Bowie was so fascinated by this person? I thought so. 
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Part Forty Nine

As for movie's, well, Bowie had ideas of his own that he was attempting to promote when the opportunities arose, and this is how he met screenwriter, turned director, Paul Schrader. As a screenwriter he will always be best known for his work on the film Taxi Driver. Schrader was determined to make a film based on the life of Japanese novelist Yukio Mishima, who happened to be a personal favourite of Bowie's. David wanted a part in this picture if it was at all possible. It was during one of their casual discussions that Schrader mentioned that he was doing a re-make of the 1942 classic, Cat People. The music for the title song to the film was written by Giorgio Moroder, and it had no lyrics. Schrader asked Bowie if he would write lyrics to  fit Moroder's music, as well as sing them. Bowie agreed, and he was in fine company with Moroder, as he had an impressive list of credits to his name. Among them an Oscar Award for the music score he wrote for the film Midnight Express, as well the hits such as Flashdance for Irene Cara, and several more for Donna Summer, to name only a very few. I still do not understand why I continue, especially after all these years, to torture myself with questions such as, "Which version of a song do I prefer? What is my favourite song, or album?" I say this because these questions merely serve to confuse, puzzle, scramble and infuriate one's mind. Furthermore, the questions serve absolutely no purpose, save an opinion, that no one, including you, really needs to hear. In addition, they force the mind to perform at a dangerously high level as it  attempts to sort out the information to reach an answer, only to have the all of the solutions it arrives at unusable, because the answers to the questions defy logic and reason. Are you lost yet? Okay, let me explain. There are questions such as, "What song is better, Day In Day Out, or Heroes?" The information one must process to reach the answer, Heroes, does not contradict itself, it is easy to understand, the mind can utilize a process of basic logic to determine the answer, and most of all, the answer will not emotionally disturb you. This, however, is far from the case concerning some of Bowie's music. 

Station To Station, Quicksand, The Bewlay Brothers, Right, Five Years, Lady Grinning Soul, Sweet Thing, Life On Mars, Warszawa and Heroes. Ten songs, which ones are much better than the others, list them in numerical order, starting with the best, to the worst. There you go, there's an assignment. This, my friends, is EXACTLY WHAT I TRY TO AVOID. I finally decided on my favourite Bowie song, it's Station To Station. It took a mere twenty two years of torturing my mind to discover that, and for what? Putting these ten songs in order is relatively the same process which deals with contradictory logic. I could probably put Station To Station first, and then not feel too good about it because I have just said that the other nine are not as good. Coming to number two, I have also come to a dilemma of unreason. I really like Right, but how could I ever say it is superior to Warszawa. Now, comes the unthinkable, it isn't possible to discredit The Bewlay Brothers, by putting it fourth, Quicksand fifth when it is as good as Station To Station. Never. Where do I put Five Years? Number eight? No, I can't because it is as good as Right and Warszawa. To think that I could ever say Heroes does not belong in Bowie's top five is not logical. The problem is that THEY ALL BELONG IN BOWIE'S TOP FIVE, ALONG WITH TWENTY MORE. How does one's mind solve that? Well, I have the answer to the problem. The answer is to STOP comparing his material, except to identify that work, which you believe is abnormally substandard. Easy? No! It is fucking impossible, in my case anyway, because it is human nature to compare. Therefore, the battle over the things I do not need to contemplate, will continue to rage, and probably forever. I may be completely mistaken. but I tend to believe that I am not the only one afflicted with this condition. 

It was the reoccurrence of debilitating human nature which led me to ask myself the question. "Which is the better version of Cat People."  I have heard the later one, from 83, dismissed as too commercial, which to me is a useless observation, as it proves nothing. I don't care if ten million, ten billion, or a hundred zillion people bought the single, or the album. Also, I do not care if the song was played twenty four hours a day, seven days a week for twelve years, because NONE OF THIS takes away from the fact that the song kicks ass.  Stevie Ray Vaughn's guitar work on that track, especially the intro, is absolutely stunning. The vocals are extremely powerful, captivating really, and the remainder of the band delivers a stellar performance. I saw multiple performances in 83, and each time Cat People was a definite highlight. The 83 version is the best, it beats the movie version. Then there is the version from the movie. Never before, with the exception of Station To Station, have I ever heard a song build with such gripping, inescapable suspense. You are held, spellbound, and you can't walk away from it no matter how hard you try. I would be hard pressed to give you an example that even comes close to what Bowie accomplishes with his voice on this version. It is EXPLOSIVE. The movie version is the best, it beats what is on Let's Dance. See, they are BOTH better than each other, and with Bowie's music, that statement actually makes perfect sense. 

Do you want to hear something funny? Okay. Lyrical depth on am AM radio hit. HA! HA! HAI HA! HA! HA! Funny, eh? I think so. More like impossible. Montruex, Switzerland, is where Queen was recording, and Bowie happened to be there at the same time. How it happened, does not matter, the point is that it did happen, Bowie went to the studio, and they recorded together. The result was Under Pressure, and lyrically, it was dynamite. Musically? Well, perfection comes to mind. Truthfully, it took me a long time to realize that. I never really cared for it before, as it sounded to me that it was recorded only for one reason, to be a commercial success. I stand corrected now however.  Since we are on this subject I have to say this. Are you all aware that you got seriously deprived again? Are you? Do you know what you never will see? Let me put it this way, Under Pressure was not the only thing Queen and Bowie recorded. How many songs they recorded together, I do not know. However, I do know of at least one more. The one I know about is called Cool Cats, recorded apparently the same time as Under Pressure was. And? Well, all I can say is that  Under Pressure WAS NOT the only exceptional piece of music recorded during that session. Freddie Mercury drives this song with a falsetto that is so exceptional you can't help but think the word, "staggering." Now, add one David Bowie to an already amazing piece of music, and you tell me what you have? Exactly. Unfortunately however,  this track sits on a shelf in the massive pile of other goodies which we will never see released officially. It is a great song, and I believe that those others who have heard it will agree with me. 

The BBC adaptation of Bertolt Brecht's Baal was produced by Louis Marks, and directed by Alan Clarke. Both flew to Switzerland in order to approach Bowie about taking the lead role in the play. The purpose of the meetings were to discuss the various obligations one would be required to fulfil for the production, and to discover how Bowie felt about accepting the part. Surprisingly, considering his overwhelming success in The Elephant Man, Bowie was reluctant to take the part. This after all, he reasoned, was a new medium he had little experience in. Bowie asked Clarke to leave some videotapes of some of his past work, and both men returned home without receiving any firm commitments. 

Bowie finally agreed to accept the part in Baal, not because of money, but because he wanted to. As it was in the case of The Elephant Man, the fee Bowie accepted to play the lead role, was the standard fee normally paid to actors by the BBC, one thousand pounds. In addition, Bowie insisted that two special provisions be made for him in return for accepting the part. First, complete secrecy. No one outside of the production, especially the press, was to know that he was involved in the play, or even in England for that matter. Two, still in fear from what happened to his friend John Lennon, he was to be given a personal bodyguard as an escort. With those terms agreed to, Bowie left Switzerland for London in August to begin work on the project. Again, Bowie made an impression,  and not as a selfish, self centered, ego driven, complaining celebrity who is NEVER satisfied, but as a true professional. The rehearsals took a month and Bowie worked the full period. According to Louis Marks, Bowie was never late, and he worked so hard that he was completely exhausted by the end. Bowie had been studying Brecht's work for years, and therefore he adapted well to the part because he was so familiar with it. Markes called it a "natural instinct." The working conditions were far from easy, as one would imagine it would be for a taped television production. Like Bowie, Markes was a perfectionist, and often he demanded five or six takes of a scene before he was satisfied. The conditions in the studio have been described as "overheated," due to the lighting requirements, and it proved to be quite a challenging situation that the actors had to work in. There were no problems with Bowie. Sometimes he would be drenched in sweat and exhausted after many takes of a scene, and he would still ask Markes if he wanted the scene repeated. They recorded the songs at the end and during the last five days they could only work in the afternoon. The mornings were "lost," courtesy of someone in the basement of the BBC who decided it was a good time to operate a pneumatic drill. David Bowie wanted to have a recording made of his renditions of the songs from the play, and he turned to his long time friend and producer, Tony Visconti, for assistance. According to Visconti David wanted the record merely for a "souvenir," fully realizing at the time it had little commercial potential.  Bowie's objective was to recreate the sound of a German pit orchestra on the album. Therefore, the only instruments he used  was a violin, a trumpet, an accordion, and one viola. 

Having finished the work on Baal, Bowie returned to Switzerland. An announcement about his starring role in the play was finally made to the media, after production had wrapped up, and he was  safely back home. Under Pressure was released on November 2nd. in the UK where it immediately went to number one on the charts, and without any comment from Bowie. Considering they had been kept uninformed, it was natural that the media was expecting to receive some sort of a statement from Bowie concerning his work with Queen, as well as his role in Baal. Instead, all requests for interviews were refused. For the most part, it was impossible for anyone to contact Bowie directly, and to send a message, there was a procedure that EVERYONE, no matter who it was, had to follow. Anyone wishing to reach Bowie must first phone RCA, and leave a message, then RCA relayed the message to Coco, and Coco delivered it to David. This procedure even applied to Louis Markes, he had to do this to reach Bowie while they were filming Baal. For the better part of the next six months Bowie would remain in seclusion in Switzerland, with only a few brief trips to New York and London, one trip being to see The Rolling Stones perform at Madison Square Garden in September. Meanwhile, RCA released yet another single compiled from his back catalog, this one being Wild Is The Wind, with Golden Years on the B side. RCA was not finished either. Hoping to repeat the success of CHANGESONE, which sold over a million copies, they, along with Defries, went to work compiling the various tracks to be included on CHANGESTWO. Now, a funny story I read in some Bowie biography some time ago. At RCA Bowie had a reputation as being an artist that was unable to deliver any hits. He in fact only really had one to date. As a joke an RCA promotions executive suggested a subtitle on the album cover reading, "David Bowie's All Time Greatest Hits," implying that he had many hits, and not just one. As usual, RCA grabbed anything, no matter how lame, in their desperate attempts to sell Bowie's work. So, not realizing it was a sarcastic joke, and without thinking how ludicrous it sounded, they had it printed on the cover, right under the title. The promotions executive was dumbfounded at the fact that anyone could have possibly thought he was serious. It was released on November 19. The British premier of Christiane F. was on December 17. 

There was one wish for Christmas that was shared by Bowie fans, and RCA alike. That wish was that Bowie would re emerge in 1982. The fingers of everyone were tightly crossed. 

AladInsaNE 

If I'm still crazy enough, I might add to this sometime.

Posted 26 August 2002



	

Part Fifty

	Warning! A portion of this segment of Images contains mature subject matter, as it deals with a man's fantasy and lust for what a girl can give him. Therefore, it may not be suitable reading for some.

	On January 8th, 1982 David Bowie celebrated his thirty fifth birthday. That month, as well as most of February, were spent on the ski slopes in Switzerland. The year had ended well for Bowie, with Under Pressure becoming a number one hit in the UK, and reaching a very respectable, for Bowie that is, number 29 in America. Likewise, 1982 began on an upbeat note with Bowie being named Top Male Singer in New Musical Express'  annual readers poll. I am confident that there were many others who ended 1981, and began 1982 on a positive note as well. I am also confident that there were some who were not so fortunate, and 1982 would not bring much in the way of things worth celebrating. Two immediately come to mind.

	The first was RCA, and basically, the whole thing backfired. The track selections for CHANGESTWO were ill conceived at best. Very ill conceived.  Out of the ten tracks on the album songs such as Oh! You Pretty Things, Sound And Vision, Wild Is The Wind, John I'm Only Dancing (Again) and D.J. were virtually unknown in America. The same can be said for Starman and 1984, which got insignificant airplay, and they were mostly only known by Bowie's fans. As far as Ashes To Ashes and Fashion are concerned, they were both too recent, if someone wanted them, they had just bought them within the last sixteen months. To be straight forward, other than for the few fans Bowie currently had in America, the record had no appeal to anyone. Their thoughts of the profits rolling in from another Platinum seller, like the previous CHANGESONE, soon vanished. The album, as usual, did much better in the UK than America where it reached number 24 on the charts, as opposed to 68.  By June of 1983, CHANGESTWO had sold a pitiful 143,999 copies in America.

	Initially RCA may have been rather excited to receive the soundtrack to Baal which Bowie had recorded, because it was something they never expected. What may have seemed like a bonus at the time,  turned out actually to be much more like a liability. This was discovered on February 26,1982, when it was released, and went on to sell a total of 24,212 copies in America. Now, remembering that David Bowie is an INTERNATIONALLY RECOGNIZED MAJOR RECORDING ARTIST, these sales figures are the epitome of dismal, and merely added insult to injury, as far as RCA was concerned. 

	I have special sentiments, including a lot of heart felt sympathy, when it comes to the second group of individuals who did not have much to celebrate going into 1982. I say this because I happened to be among them. Yes, like all other Bowie fans there was not a lot to be cheerful about. There was of course a great deal of hope that things would be substantially better this year. The situation was not good, one album in two years, and we had suffered for three years without a tour. Bowie fans were positive that 1982 would not be a repeat of 1981. Guess what?  We were right, there was no repeat of the previous year, instead the unthinkable happened, and as inconceivable as it was, we got much less from Bowie in 82. Again, there would be precious little of Bowie's work to enjoy, and once again, no tour and no album. The most Bowie fans would see of him this year, would be on film, it was an easy way for Bowie to still be seen as a working artist, yet remain in complete seclusion. If he intended not to produce again until his contracts expired, we all had a long wait ahead, a wait of over one more year.  Nobody wanted to think about it. Especially me.

	 "Turn and face the strange," Bowie once sang, and his next career move could truly be classified among the strangest ones of all, not because it was a movie role, but because of the part he accepted. Somehow, Bowie and a horror film just doesn't seem too compatible, and not just by my standards either. His former manager Kenneth Pitt said that he couldn't understand why David would accept the part, and many thought he may have been grasping at anything in order to further his career as a film actor. Bowie accepted the role of John Blaylock, a man over three hundred years old, well, a vampire that is, and the film was called The Hunger. Again, it is a mystery why Bowie accepted the part, and there could be many unknown reasons. The two major forces behind the project were director Tony Scott and screenwriter Michael Thomas. Adding to the mystery is the fact that in almost every circumstance Bowie demanded that those he worked with have a solid background, and he always viewed their previous work before accepting ANY part. You see, in this  case there was nothing really to view, because as far as feature films are concerned, Tony Scott had never made one before. Tony, is the brother of director Ridley Scott, who is best remembered for his work on the film Alien, and the sequels which followed it. Bowie greatly admired the work of Ridley Scott. Now, although Tony had never directed a film for the "big screen," he was not new behind the camera, and was in fact very well known for his work in commercials. He had  won several Clio awards, Silver and Gold Lion Awards from the Cannes International Television/Cinema Commercials Festival and London's prestigious Designers & Art Directors Awards. Tony is a business partner with his brother in Ridley Scott And Associates, a commercial production company, formed in 1973, and based in London. Although to many of us commercials do not seem to qualify as "art,"  Scott had this to say, "I loved commercials because I was always shooting--I was actually getting to turn some film. And for the generation that I happen to be a part of, the adventures in advertising then were the same as what videos are today, here. There were very few restrictions in Europe. In its own way, advertising is as great an art form as documentaries or features." Whether Scott, co-stars Catherine Deneuve, Susan Sarandon, or just the role itself motivated Bowie to accept the part, I do not know. All that is important though, is the fact that he did.

	Getting Bowie signed to the  picture was not without a battle, this one between Scott and the studio. MGM was extremely reluctant to allow Bowie to be given the "leading man" role in the film.  Deneuve and Sarandon, although well known leading ladies in their own right, were still not "large" enough that they alone could guarantee the financial success of a film. As far as  Bowie, MGM did not believe that he was enough to attract an audience, a decision that maybe was well founded if you based it on his previous movies. Eventually however, Tony Scott prevailed.  When Bowie agreed to taking the part one provision remained, security. Still fearing his personal safety, no one, especially the media, were to know what he was doing, or even where he was. Messages again were to go through RCA first, then to Coco Schwab where they would be screened for necessity, and those which she thought were important enough were given to Bowie. Keeping the media at bay was also Coco's responsibility, as always, one of her major functions was too "PROTECT" David, a job she does magnificently. NOBODY, NO MATTER WHO YOU ARE, OR FOR ANY REASON, gets to David Bowie without first going through Corrine Schwab. She is one of the few people, Visconti to name another, who is still in David's life from the years at MainMan. Almost all of the others were discarded long ago, for reasons I am sure I have no need of explaining. In my opinion, if there is one person on this planet who personifies loyalty, there is no one greater than Corrine Schwab. Period. She has literally devoted her entire life to one cause, looking after the needs of David Bowie.

	Corrine, who speaks four languages, was fresh out of university in 1974 when she landed the job at MainMan as Bowie's assistant. The job grew from general duties, errands, schedules and the like, to "David Bowie's Personal Assistant." This came about because Bowie admired her efficiency so much, that he asked her to remain with him when he departed from MainMan. In my view however, the title of "personal assistant" falls far short of the role that Coco has assumed in Bowie's life. The commitment she has made to Bowie all of these years is one that I describe as quite "unusual," simply because of the self sacrifice. How so? I say this without any exaggeration in the least, Coco Schwab has literally devoted her entire life to one cause, looking after the needs of David Bowie. I do not mean on a typical 9 to 5 work day, I mean twenty four hours a day, seven days a week, and three hundred and sixty five days a year if that is what Bowie requires. The employee, employer relationship between herself and Bowie is not what you would expect, and I mean this in the sense of "authority.," SHE HAD IT. Whether it was on a movie set, concert stage, in the car, or on holidays, Corrine Schwab was always either at David's side or at the least within arms reach. She ran David's affairs, keeping his life in order, and maintaining a rigid schedule when it was needed. David knew better than to violate her instructions, knowing the resulting chaos that would ensue. Tony Mascia, nicknamed Big Tony, was Bowie's bodyguard, and responsible for keeping him physically safe. On the other hand, although it was Tony who kept him "physically" safe, it was Corrine who was his "real" protector. Corrine was his guardian, caregiver, confident, advisor,  and she sometimes became his disciplinarian, offering a generous scolding when it was required. Bowie was known to get out of hand at times, or  he was just a real "handful."  At first, those who met Coco were often bewildered by what they perceived her relationship was with Bowie.  They couldn't figure her out. She would not leave his side, unless it was to run an errand for him, and she appeared to have total control, often issuing sets of instructions which Bowie followed dutifully. What perplexed many is that she often "spoke" for him, made decisions for him, and she also determined which of his affairs took priority over others. Most people were of the opinion that she was "over protective" of Bowie, often not letting anyone near him. This however was her greatest assets. Corrine kept them away. Corrine kept Bowie "insulated" from the "outside" world, and this kept him from becoming  "victimized" by others. Who were the possible aggressors? EVERYONE was. That's right, all were suspect in Coco's opinion, therefore NO ONE got to Bowie without going through Coco first, and only with her approval. This applied to messages as well. All messages, even from, RCA, family and friends went first to Coco, and those that SHE DETERMINED were of importance, made it to Bowie. Many believe if they could obtain a backstage pass to a Bowie concert, it would mean an encounter with Bowie. Well, think again. You may get back there but you have a better chance of Elvis Presley, Osama Bin Laden, Adam and Eve, Moses, Nelson Mandela, Ho Chi Minh, and myself showing up at your place for dinner and drugs, than getting into Bowie's inner sanctum, as it is "GUARDED" by Coco. This applies to celebrities as well, because very few, except close personal friends, such as Bette Middler and Mick Jagger, are permitted entrance. If he sees fit, one word from Bowie to Coco will guarantee that a person will be "erased" from David's life, forever. All contact is permanently severed, and they will never see or hear from him again, or be allowed in his presence.  This has happened several times in the past to some people. The threat of being "erased" has been used also on several occasions in order to make sure that Bowie gets his way. It works well if one needs to manipulate certain situations. It has been said that Coco kept Bowie alive between 1975 and 1978 by making sure he consumed plenty of whole milk, as his solid food intake was apparently below that which is required to sustain life. This is collaborated in The Cracked Actor documentary as Bowie is seen sharing this substance with a fly in the back of his limousine accompanied by Coco and Big Tony. Although many failed to understand her relationship to Bowie at first, one thing was always certain. After being around her for any length of time, most developed a deep respect for her, and few had ever witness anyone so efficient, hard working, or as loyal as Corrine Schwab.

	Now, I have a dirty little secret that I want to confess. First of all I want to say this, so you do not think that I am some sort of a deviant pervert. It is perfectly normal for men to fantasize about women, so don't think I am odd when I say that I have fantasies about Corrine Schwab.  As embarrassing as this is to say, it is the truth, I get highly "excited" at the very thought of her, and the mention of her name, or to see a picture of her, literally drives me fucking crazy. She has everything I want, and I know that she could give me the ONE THING I DESIRE, which no other women EVER COULD, and I lust at the thought of it. I lust after it so much that I dream about it all the time.  Let me tell you that if I could, I would take it right into my bedroom, get into bed and I would go at it as hard as I could. Not only that, but once inside those covers  I wouldn't put it down for a second,  I'd go at it all night.  Oh, in case you thought, this isn't about sex, that's not the thing she could give me that I lust for. It's not sex at all.  "David Bowie," by Corrine Schwab. THAT IS MY FANTASY, Coco could give me "THE BOOK." I have often thought of how fantastic it would be if Coco ever decided to write a book on Bowie. Imagine, she has SEEN EVERYTHING.  Just think about it. With the exception of Bowie himself, there is no other living soul that knows more about his life than Corrine, and from 1974 through until 1979 she probably knows more than Bowie. All the recording sessions, tours, the play, the films being made, the way Bowie conceives and develops his ideas, she KNOWS ALL OF IT, because SHE WAS THERE.  She often stays with him in the same suite.

	As a person who appreciates Bowie's work as much as I do, this would be the greatest book that could ever be written, as long as it focussed on the important aspects of Bowie's career, and left his love life out. As much as I long for this book however, I know that the chances of me ever seeing it are about ten million to one. The reason is Coco herself. She stands to make a great deal of money, but I do not believe that she would ever "turn" on Bowie and write an unauthorized biography for the sake of cash. I say this because she probably would have done so already by now if she intended to. This fact alone speaks volumes about her decency, loyalty, integrity and honour as a person. Too bad there aren't more like her in the world. We really could use them.

	 AladINsaNE

	 More of the alphabet to follow....................

Posted  7 September 2002

	 


Part Fifty One

Bowie was back in London for the filming of the Hunger, and once again, outside of those who had to know, his whereabouts was "top secret" for security reasons. Keeping Bowie hidden was not that difficult since most of the film was shot indoors. "Heaven," a disco located near Charing Cross Station, was used in the opening scene of the film.  This club is where Deneuve and Bowie lure two others, a boy and a girl, home with them, obviously on the promise of drinks, drugs, and sex, and instead they suffer the fate of those who cross paths with vampires at feeding time. A house in Mayfair was also used as a set location, along with a country house in Bedfordshire called Luton Hoo. Coincidentally, in the original book Dracula by Bram Stoker, Whitby, a Yorkshire fishing port, was where Dracula first set foot on English soil, and also is featured in some scenes in The Hunger. Those who worked with Bowie on the film had the usual comments about him, in that he was wonderful to work with, took direction well, unpretentious, was willing to learn, and he always tried extremely hard to do things right. Screenwriter Michael Thomas personally found Bowie, although quiet, to be the most confident person he had ever met, believing that he "could do absolutely anything and succeed at it." Although Bowie had, has, continues to, and probably will forever take on roles in some films that should have received  awards and acclaim under the categories relating to "FOOLISHNESS," one thing can always be said about him, and that is that he puts effort  into every role he accepts, like no other. Bowie does not accept imitation in  his music, acting, his written articles, painting, or anything else that has his name attached to it. He sent out for three mandolins to record Fantastic Voyage, rather than use a synthesizer, he waited for Fripp while recording Heroes so he could get the "right" guitar sound. rather than settle for what he and Alomar could accomplish, he studied the speech patterns of palsy victims so his voice would be right for The Elephant Man, Luther Vandross and David Sandborn were used to create "Plastic Soul," Nile Rogers to create "Ultimate Pop," the hand claps in Station To Station are real, and so is his management ability. That is why it should have come as no surprise to Michael Thomas that Bowie would learn to play a cello for the movie, which he did.

Those who have seen the film will remember the scenes with Deneuve, Bowie, and the girl from across the street, sorry I can't recall her name, playing music in the sitting room. Bowie
was seated playing a cello in these scenes which were short, and definitely not crucial to the plot. Now, Bowie did not really play a cello, however rather than going through the motions of playing  to "fake" the scene, he picked the instrument up and practised until he was half way proficient with it. This caused Thomas to later comment, "Most actors would have faked it. Not David. He fucking learnt how to play the cello. He worked like a bastard until he could play a decent Bach cantata." This is the work ethic that those who have followed Bowie's work over the years, take for granted, but we have it to thank for being the motivator behind his best work. The film, as you know, called for Bowie's character to age rapidly at the beginning of the film. Bowie's day started at six thirty in the morning when those scenes were shot. It was off to the set, and then to make up, where he sat anywhere from three to five hours each day getting his character ready, before one frame was shot.

There was never, and still isn't really, a lot of fanfare surrounding this film. It just kind of appeared, and then just went away.  Personally, I don't really know what the general opinion of it is among Bowie listeners, I do know however, that I never hear it come up in any discussions. I may be mistaken, but I do not remember a lot of buzz about the film in critic's circles when it was released, but nowadays it seems to be treated kindly, judging from current reviews. I like the film, and it is my opinion that the reason it does not get the recognition I feel it deserves, is that it has been grossly mislabeled by the media. Please correct me if I'm wrong, but as far as I am concerned The Hunger does not qualify to be categorized as a "horror" movie, like it was. I am sure that calling it a horror movie must have turned many people away, who may have otherwise seen it. This is another classic case of people, journalists this time, opening their mouths and giving their "expert" opinions on things which they know nothing about.  It works like this, they hear the word 'vampire," then they
automatically think "vampire, horror movie." Simple. Simple minded that is. You see, when most people hear "horror movie," they start conjuring up feelings that accompany real horror movies, such as getting the shit scared out of you, or they start visualizing an overabundance of severed limbs. The is one more thing that goes along with these two, and that is a inane story line. Horror movies, save the real quality films such as The Exorcist or Rosemary's Baby, rarely deal with any real issues, therefore they do not require scripts that would have much depth. In many films today the scripts consist of four letter words which are used as filler between mutilations. It would have been nice to have seen a writer who actually paid attention to the film when they saw it, if they ever did see it that is, and had enough intelligence to notice the underlying theme. The Hunger was also categorized by journalists and critics as being a "vampire" film. This may be really stretching it in your opinion, but I wouldn't really label The Hunger as a "vampire" movie either, as the focus of the film was not about "vampires," they just happened to be the characters that the bigger issue focused around. The Hunger deals with much deeper issues that that of the undead running around creating havoc until someone manages to get them trapped with a little sunlight, and then serves them some stake, of the pointed wooden variety that is. As far as the story line goes, when the general public hear the words "vampire movie," that is exactly what they think, as they are basically all the same.  This label, I am sure would have dispelled even more people from seeing it. Yes, you are right, the classic vampire story materialized in The Hunger, but it was superficial. The real issue which was dealt with, and magnificently if I may add, was death. It was not just the issue of mortality either, the film dramatized extremely well the very sudden shock, and rude awakening,  that comes when death becomes a "REALITY," and must be confronted.

David Bowie's character, John Blaylock, a vampire, and the ultimate symbol of immortality. He is also a mirror image of a person in their youth. They both have something that makes them inseparable, a bond, that bond being the belief that they somehow have an immunity, one which protects them from the disease called life. Immortal and invincible. The young never age, and like John Blaylock, accidents and death are unfortunate occurrences which happen to others. Confusion, disbelief, denial and desperation, were the emotions Bowie displayed beautifully through his character, when he realized that the impossible was happening to him, he was going to die.  The myth that accidents  just happen to others was shattered in the scene where John Blaylock is crossing the street on his way home from the clinic, and his immortality almost comes to an abrupt end underneath four wheels. In my opinion, one of the best moments in the film is one which has no dialogue, and a scene that could easily go by unnoticed.  The scene I am referring to is the few moments before  Blaylock, now close to death, murders the little girl in the sitting room. This room was once happy, when she used to come over and he would play his cello in accompaniment to her violin, but that feeling has departed. He now despises the girl that once brought a smile to his face, because of what she represents. This scene is a masterpiece, and taking into consideration all of Bowie's films, it rates as one his greatest, and most powerful moments, proving that given the right roles, he has a marvellous ability to reach an audience through this medium. In this scene the girl is bursting with energy, her smile beams, there is no fear in her, only the peace that comes from true happiness. Her youth fills the room. Bowie doesn't say a word, he doesn't have to, it's all in his "look." It is the look of want, a desperate want of what one can't have. It is the look of suicide, when one changes their mind seconds after stepping off that ledge. It is the look of need to be what a person once was, but will never be again It is the look of waking up after the accident, and told that you will never
walk again. It is a look of hate and jealousy. The act of murdering the girl was not for any real need, it was an act of revenge against the world, committed in self pity. What that girl represented was the one thing John Blaylock despised more than anything else in the word, and that was youth, and those who had it. There was one moment in the film that brought attention to a deep rooted fear that most of us have experienced, and that is the terror we would experience being buried alive, as John Blaylock was when he was laid to rest.  The only difference,  John Blaylock was sentenced to be buried alive for all eternity.

In terms of substance, The Hunger had something to offer. Of course anything which required thought was instantly to many, especially the journalists. What did they write about The Hunger? What was the reason that they gave to see the movie? Well, it wasn't because of anything so ridiculous as a well made movie, great acting, and writing, that apart from most films, actually had some depth to it. To them, the value of The Hunger as cinematography could be found in a "lesbian" love scene between Susan Sarandon and Catherine Deneuve. Wow, imagine that, sex in a movie. Gee, I wonder what they will think up next. Maybe they have a point though, I mean, where else can you go and see something as kinky as two girls getting it on. Maybe I'm fucked up, but looking at images concerning sex, just isn't that big of a deal to me anymore, and it certainly isn't something that would motivate me to move very far, let alone drive to a theater to pay for. Now, I want to set the record straight here. This lesbian love scene between Sarandon and Deneuve, is not a lesbian love scene between Sarandon and Deneuve at all. What it is in reality, is a display of ignorance, and another brilliantly showcased example of those who speak in a tone of authority, yet have absolutely
no clue about what they are talking about. The terminology that is most commonly applied to these individuals, are words that best describe fools and idiots. Oh, pardon me, I forgot. Please also include morons.  Sorry.  The love scene that got these fools excited, causing them to rant, rave and write endlessly about the once in a lifetime opportunity to see these two alluring females in bed together never happened. The truth is that the people you saw in action on that bed were not Deneuve and Sarandon, as they both used "body doubles," or "stand ins" for that scene. Since this is the case, I guess there isn't any reason to see the film, and think of all those people who were cheated out of their hard earned money because they didn't know. Maybe I shouldn't have opened my big mouth and said anything, now poor Dave, Sue and Cathy are probably going to get sued. Hey, this might be the end of BOWIEZOIDNET!  What about The Hunger picture wise? You don't hear much, but the cinematography in this film is far above average, and if compare to your typical horror flick, it rates as excellent. Just to let you know, I do not consider Dracula, Interview With A Vampire or Sid And Nancy as your typical horror flick, they were well shot too. Some of the shots in the
film, especially those taken at the top of the stairs in the house, where their were white drapes blowing in the wind and doves flying about were spectacular.  Maybe it stems from his ability to make award winning commercials, but director Tony Scott has an obvious talent for finding
the right shot. As evident in the scene with Bowie in the sitting room just prior to committing the murder, the visuals in The Hunger quite often speak louder than the dialogue. To have labeled this film as a horror movie about vampires featuring a lesbian love scene between Susan Sarandon and Catherine Deneuve is a fucking travesty, and one that I should be used to by now, considering the treatment the critics and the general idiots, er, I mean the general public gave to Heroes, Low and half a million other things done by Bowie. At least The Hunger seems to get some of the respect it deserves now, twenty years later is about right too, as this is usually how long it takes those "others" to clue in to Bowie's work.

What is it with this incessant need to label every fucking thing in existence, separate it all, place it all into nice neat categories, along with sub classifications within each category, and then assign a style of clothing to it. Truthfully though, I put things into categories myself, but I don't have too many, and they are fairly basic. For example, I classify things which are on the radio, or come out of a record store as either music, or fucking garbage.  They are very easy to remember as well. Then there are categories for truth and bullshit, right and wrong and good dope and bad dope, and all told, you don't need much more to keep life manageable. I'm not alone on this either.  As it so happens, Peter Murphy, from Bauhaus, seems to dislike the act of labelling everything as well, in fact, he has a real problem with it.

	
This dislike of his became painfully obvious to one journalist, who had somehow deluded himself into believing that not only was he rather intelligent, but far more educated and well read than Murphy. This was his first error in judgement. The second was when he mistook his own ignorance and stupidity for wisdom, and defined the work of Bauhaus, placing it into a nice neat category. Comparing the interviewer to Murphy, on the intelligence scale, one would notice a minor edge in Murphy's favour, a distance best measured in light years. I thought I'd share part of it with you here, as it is rather humorous to see just what happens when a know it all music journalist has the misfortune of demonstrating just how smart he really is, in the presence of an intelligent man, and a very talented artist. 

Interviewer: (speaking of recording "My Last Two Weeks" and "Subway)
When you were recording this, you had to have known that some of your "gothic" fans, the fans of the "Bela Lugosi's Dead" era, might have a problem with this new approach.

Murphy: Nobody's gothic, who's gothic? I mean, what is gothic?

Interviewer: You should know, you practically invented it.

Murphy: Wait a minute, wait a minute. I invented gothic music, what are you talking about? You tell me what gothic music is, and then I'll answer you. That way, we can be more specific.

Interviewer:  Well...

Murphy: First, I want to tell you, gothic is not Anne Rice, it's not Marilyn Manson, it's not Nine Inch Nails. Gothic was an architectural movement [hence, "Bauhaus" -- SS], it was a post Renaissance, European, cultural aesthetic; it was Jean Cocteau, the Surrealists... if you're talking about the American,  Tupperware sort of gothic rock, well, what is that? There's lots of kids out there who might call themselves "gothic-industrial," but they're more than that. And if you start calling members of my audience who wear black or whatever, if you start labelling them "gothic," which may infer some sort of geeky, stupid kid -- well, that's insulting... and outrageous. My audience are not "Columbine killers," they're the sort of people that are looking for alternatives to boring, sterile, middle-class culture. They're into things like poetry or looking into other realms of themselves. Now, that's not to say there aren't hard-core sorts of "goths," who are into "occult" sorts of activities and call themselves "Anti-Christs" and all that sort of stuff. But that's all children-play, and it's dangerous and they might hurt themselves. But, what are you calling "gothic"? Tell me.

Interviewer: Well, the way I see it, "gothic" is a sort of modern-rock interpretation that you more or less started...

Murphy: No, you started it. The press started that. That's what annoys me, this sort of media bollocks. Because Bauhaus never had an idea that we were gothic, we were just, ah, surrealistic bastard-geniuses, do you know what I mean?

Personally, I was in fits of glee when I first read this, and the interviewer got exactly what he deserved for being so musically retarded, and trying to plunk Bauhaus into some foolish genre. My wonder is why would you even consider fucking doing something so stupid? My opinion on the whole matter is this, Bauhaus stands ON THEIR OWN as a worthwhile band. They are not fucking "GOTH," they are "BAUHAUS." It's the same situation with the "BOWIE" and "GLAM ROCK" association. As far as I am concerned, and anyone else who has followed Bowie's work long enough to make any sense, is that any fucking idiot, or moron for that matter, who lumps Bowie in with the superficiality of the "Glam Rock" crowd is just that, a moron, and an ignorant one at that. A severe lack of knowledge is the only thing demonstrated by anyone who wishes to categorize any of Bowie's artistic output as "Glam." Furthermore, it is an insult to Bowie's depth and creativity as an artist to think that the makeup and the costumes were born out of a need to be outrageous, or that they can be attributed in any way to the mindlessness of "Glitter And Glam." Who would even dare to think that a mind like Bowie's would ever resort to a level so blatantly foolish for ideas to incorporate into his efforts to successfully combine theater with his writing, in order to create a multi media performance on stage. Does anyone see any similarities in the quality of Bowie's music, compared to the "Glam Rock" bands?  Can someone show me perhaps where any of these Glam Rock bands were dealing with themes in their lyrics, that would somehow be equivalent to the ones Bowie was dealing with at the time? Whereas the conceptual ideas for visuals presented on stage by the Glam Rock bands came from their mother's, or sister's make up drawer, Bowie's were derived from the knowledge he had gained while entertaining a passion of his, Kabuki, traditional Japanese theater. It is a blend of Japanese puppet theater, and traditional theater from the Noh period, to be more specific. The point is that DAVID BOWIE, is DAVID BOWIE. Therefore, in logical succession, THE HUNGER is not a horror movie about vampires featuring a lesbian love scene between Susan Sarandon and Catherine Deneuve, THE HUNGER, is THE HUNGER! 

In The Hunger, the introduction to the film with Peter Murphy trapped in a cage to the sound of Bela Lugosi's Dead  is absolutely  brilliant. I hope some of you will remember this particular series of advertisements which ran for Maxell tapes. The ad features a guy sitting in a chair in his living room facing a set of speakers. The sound coming out of the speakers is so powerful that it is blowing the man's hair straight back, his tie over his shoulder and he is gripping the arm rests of the chair holding on for dear life. I think most of you have probably seen it, as it has run frequently, appearing in a wide assortment of advertising mediums. Although new to North America, this advertisement is not new, it is actually a remake of an ad that was made in England twenty years ago, back in 1982. The  man sitting in the chair in the original commercial was none other than the former Bauhaus front man himself, Peter Murphy. The version of the Maxell ad that was made into a television commercial won numerous awards, and the company behind it all was Ridley Scott & Associates. The commercial was shot under the direction of Howard Guard. who was working under contract for the company at the time. Around the same period of time, director Tony Scott was in the process of lining up the cast for The Hunger. One of the things he was also looking for, was a band that would be appropriate for the nightclub scene at the beginning of the film. Tony happened to mention one day to Howard Guard that he was looking for a band, and Guard mentioned Murphy and Bauhaus. Tony went and saw the band, and it didn't take too long for him to figure out that he had  exactly what he was looking for.  Howard Guard went on to direct a couple of videos for Bauhaus, the better known one being "She's In Parties."

Here's something that isn't thought of very often. Go to the movies these days and you just can't help being overwhelmed by some of the most incredible things imaginable that appear on the screen, due mostly to the advances in special effects technology. This is especially true since the computer became small enough, powerful enough, and cheap enough to be used to create many of these remarkable effects. They are no longer confined to the big screen either, as we are constantly being exposed to them on regular television. It is primarily for this reason that it is quite easy for us to forget that there once was a time when they did not exist. Now, to put things in perspective we are talking twenty years ago.  These days it is not cheap to make a movie, for example,  Lord Of The Rings had a cost $270 million,  Moulin Rouge was a steal in comparison, costing only a paltry $50 million, and Spiderman was in the midrange costing $120 million. Take those figures and compare them to The Hunger, which cost a whopping 13 million. I know as well as you, that when you compare the special effects in The Hunger, to what we have today, they are nothing, but remember, we are not talking about today. There were three main parts in the script which called for some elaborate handy work in the use of special effects. At the beginning of the film, David Bowie's character had to age two hundred years, and at the end all of Catherine Deneuve's former lovers, which were all by then just a collection of grossly malformed semi human shapes, had to crumble to dust. Finally there was Deneuve herself. She would have to go through a variety of changes that needed to be visual, when her character physically decays after she falls over a railing to her death.  Scenes such as these could be done today with a minimal amount of effort, and virtually no difficulty. The equipment however back then was not yet good enough to create the optical and visual effects necessary, and what was required to make these parts of the film work, were thought to be so complex,  that they were  thought for a time to be unfilmable.

In order to find some way to get the effects they needed, by finding some sort of solution to the impossibilities they seemed to be facing, they searched for the best help they could find. The help eventually did come, in the form of a man named Dick Smith., a brilliant, and an extremely talented make-up artist. Now, whether Smith is the very best in his field is a mute point, it doesn't matter, because one look at his resume gives you an idea very quickly of just how capable  Dick Smith is. These are some of the projects he worked on before The Hunger, along with the responsibilities he had for each film..  The Godfather (make-up artist) 1972, The Exorcist  (make-up effects) 1973,  The Godfather: Part II  (make-up artist) 1974,  Taxi Driver  (special make-up) 1976,  The Sentinel  (special make-up) 1977, and after the Hunger he continued to work, and some of the most recognizable  films he had a part in were Starman, Amadeus, Poltergeist III and Tales from the Darkside: The Movie, to name but a few. Now, just in case you happen to believe for some reason that I am exaggerating, and think that there were problems with the special effects on The Hunger, but not to the degree I have indicated, well, I can tell you that nothing I have said has been overstated.  To further illustrate the situation, look at it this way.  Anyone who has seen this movie knows that with the exception of Bowie's ageing, none of these scenes are very lengthy, and you can see by this man's credentials how capable he is. Taking all of these factors into consideration, Dick Smith had to work SEVEN MONTHS STRAIGHT on The Hunger so Tony Scott could get shots he wanted.

One of Smith's favourite projects on the film was the work he did on Bowie's character. The swift ageing  of John Blaylock had to be believable.  In the early stages, when  Bowie was beginning to age, Smith was not really involved. The only thing that was used to make Bowie appear older, up to about age fifty five, was make up, and this was applied by the on set artist. Smith took over just after the scene where Bowie leaves the waiting room of  Sarandon's office. Dick Smith had earned a reputation throughout the industry as an expert in the design of old age and character make-ups. Much of this came from his work on the films LITTLE BIG MAN, THE GODFATHER series, THE EXORCIST, and MARATHON MAN. Having an idea of how to make Bowie look up to around age ninety did not present much difficulty, however, after age ninety it was all imagination. The reason for this is that there aren't a lot of one hundred and fifty year old live subjects running around to get any ideas from. As often happens when you get two talented professionals involved in a project together, especially where are both perfectionists, conflicts between the two can arise, and then erupt. I have given Bowie credit for this before many times, he  is a professional, talented, the ultimate perfectionist, and is also an exception to this rule. His demeanour in fact, is just the opposite, he works extremely well with others, and has done so throughout his entire professional career. This however, can not be said about the working relationship between Tony Scott and Dick Smith. The problems between the two started almost immediately, stemming from disagreements about would could, and could not be done, and what would, and wouldn't work. Two prime examples of this were Scott's insistence that Bowie wear lighter coloured clothing in the film, and that for realism, the character display facial hair in the form of a five o'clock shadow. Smith's argument was that it was nonsense to put light coloured clothing on a character with a face as heavily made up as Bowie's, the contrast would be far too great, leaving  Bowie's face looking made up and destroy the integrity of the character. Furthermore, the make up would rub off of Bowie's face and would show up instantly on light coloured clothing. As far as the facial hair goes, well, according to Smith the make up required to accomplish this would render the effect unbelievable in
close up shots. In the end, Smiths objections went nowhere after of course they fell on deaf ears. Tony Scott was the director, he was going to get his light wardrobe and his five o'clock shadow, and that was it.  There was nothing more to really discuss after that. Scott probably knew all along that he was going to get what he wanted.  I say this because Tony Scott knows full well how extremely talented professionals think, especially in the film industry,  therefore he knew fucking well that anyone with a reputation like Smith had, there was no way he would ever fail, and risk anyone ever saying that there was something that he couldn't do. Whether he knew in advance or not isn't really that important, as  Smith delivered on both counts. The unwillingness of Scott to soften his demands ended up benefiting the entire film industry in the end, because out of this came two revolutionary new products for the special effects industry. In order to eventually solve the problems, and give Scott what he wanted, Dick Smith developed a series of very finely detailed add on features, that could be used to alter an actors appearance when developing the look of a character, Bowie's five o'clock shadow being one of them.  In the process Smith ended up actually inventing an adhesive paint that will not rub off on an actors costume. This paint he invented worked so well that it eventually became the standard for the industry.

The look of Bowie's body resembling that of an old man was achieved using foam pads under his clothing, giving him a hunched over look. Bowie's character was around the age of ninety when he murdered the little girl. Her name, the one that I could not remember, is Beth Ehlers. Interestingly, up to this point and beyond in the film, no masks at all were used to create the image of the ageing  John  Blaylock, instead individual prosthetics were used on Bowie's face, and his hands as well. It was not until Bowie's character reached the approximate age of one hundred and fifty that the prosthetics were replaced by a very finely detailed foam latex mask. The mask was especially useful for the scene where Catherine Deneuve has to carry Bowie's character, who is by now so decrepit that he can't move any part of his body by himself, up the stairs to his final resting place. For this scene all they did was put the mask  over the head of a light weight dummy. With the ageing of Bowie taken care of, came the next problem. These were the scenes where Deneuve's harem of ex lovers all rise from their places of rest, and motivated in unison by revenge, they all converge on Deneuve causing her to fall over a railing, and after they all crumble one by one as they turn into dust. There were several different sources that were utilized, in order to get some of the ideas which were eventually incorporated into the original design of these characters. One of those sources that
was used was Nosferatu The Vampyre, director Werner Herzog's absolutely stunning remake of Friedrich Wilhelm Murnau's 1922 classic film Nosferatu.

Once they had decided on the various designs for these characters, they next had to build them, which wasn't that much of a concern, it was once they were built that the real problems started, because then you had to actually make them move. It was imperative that these last few scenes, as difficult as they would be to shoot, had to look realistic. It would have been a real loss to all of those involved in the picture, who had contributed their best efforts, to have the film work well all the way through, only to have it all fall apart at the end. If you put an actor in a monkey suit to play the part of a monkey, the end result is that the monkey looks like they had an actor put on a monkey suit to play the part of a monkey. Likewise,  If you put an actor in a rubber suit to play the part of an alien, the end result is that the alien looks like they had an actor put on a rubber suit to play the part of an alien. It was for this reason that there was a real problem, as they knew that any audience was surely going to find it quite laughable, should it appear that Deneuve's former romances were just a series of rubber suits. After exploring all of the alternatives to shoot this scene, and get it right, reality set in. Reality  you see, in this case, comes in the form of a rubber suit. Remember, this was long before the era where computer animation had crossed the medium to cinematography, so it was not an option, but if it had, this problem would not be a problem for long.  Since this was the case Scott and Smith were left with two things, they had an actor, and they had a suit. There was nothing else.  Since they could not change the fact that they had to use an actor and a suit, it was a waste of time trying to figure out ways to change the things which could not be changed, time was better spent looking at what could be changed.  It was when they took this new approach to the old problem that a novel idea emerged. What they did, using foam latex  as a material is design several full scale body suits that you stepped into and they zipped up in the back. This next part will sound rather illogical, but believe me it makes perfect sense. Since they could not get rid of the suits, as you know, they looked at how they  may be able to alter them in an effort to solve the problem, and this when the idea came. The idea was to ADD MORE to the suit, so you would SEE LESS of the suit! Sound foolish? I know it does, but it worked, and here is how.  What they did is build up the physical features of the characters that protruded out from the suits as much as they could. These areas would include the cheek bones, the top part of the chest, the nose, the ribcage and so on. These areas were built up with a design to reflect the available majority light when the scene was being shot. The hope was that by doing this the lack of light would make sure that the real proportions of the actor inside the suit would not be visible. It worked, and very well at that.

The script next called for these characters to literally crumble into dust after Deneuve falls to her death. Before they could shoot these scenes, model doubles of each individual character had to be made. There were two major issues that had to be addressed. First of all, before they could even start construction on the model doubles  a suitable material had to be found to make them with.. The material would have to be strong enough to hold its shape prior to the scenes being shot, and it also had to be capable of crumbling on cue. Second, the models had to fit in.  It was Tony Scott who choreographed the final scenes of the movie, which were very focused, and with the movements of the characters, and dispersed with brief moments of intense action, it became quite complex.  It was very important at this stage, with several action scenes taking place at the same time, that everything fit together.  They basically ended up stumbling on the material they needed to make the models with, and I mean that literally. The models were made from poorly mixed batch of polyurethane foam which had been discarded, and left lying on the floor in the make up lab. Since the ingredients used to make the foam were not the right consistency it made it very weak, and this weak foam was used to create the basic structure of the models. To make sure that they did not start falling to pieces too soon, they were given a bit of additional support with a layer of wax and micro balloons, which are microscopic glass bubbles. Once the wax was applied it was used as a base to carve finer detail into the models, in an effort to make them even more realistic. The scenes that showed Deneuve's former lovers crumbling to dust were  accomplished by juxtaposing shots, placing side by side, of the actors in their suits moving or falling on to pre set marks with inserts of the rod-controlled foam models in the same spot. These scenes were very tedious and they took and they took a long time to shoot because everything, down to the smallest detail had to be staged to maintain continuity. 

The scene in the movie where Catherine Deneuve's character dies, after her fall, demanded some  real creative thinking, because it had to be spectacular. The reason is that this scene was going to be singled out by a lot of people in the audience, and it was going to receive critical attention from these people, and their judgement can either help, or hurt the film at the box office. You see, in almost every film which has a vampire in the script, the vampire is killed, and the scene when the vampire dies is always eagerly waited on by the audience, because this moment is always one of the highlights of the film. It is not the killing of the vampire that people are waiting to see, it is what happens to the vampire just after it is killed. They all seem to go through a rather lengthy process of "decay" as they return to dust, often going through several human, animal, and demonic physical transformations in the process. Directors have always personalized these scenes with their own unique special effects. Movie audiences have grown to expect it, and will often judge the worth of the entire movie based on these few minutes.  Tony Scott was no different. The problem? Neither
was Dick Smith. As you can see, this has all the makings of a showdown. 
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Part Fifty Two

The depiction of the death of Deneuve's character was crucial, and done incorrectly could quickly turn this serious film into a comedy. It was not the time for disputes. Dick Smith had been putting in long hours working on various design concepts which he thought might work best for the film. His idea was a close up shot of Deneuve's beautiful face, then have her "real" self appear by having a hideous demonic face emerge from underneath her skin. Unfortunately, Scott had other ideas, as he wanted the character to rapidly disintegrate, the whole body, hands, legs, and face. Scott won, and Smith was not overly happy as his ideas were totally refused, they were not even a consideration. This, of course for a man of his ability and reputation as one of the best in the business, was perceived to be an insult. Never the less, being a professional, this would not effect the quality and integrity of his work. He went on to design one of the greatest effects that had ever graced the screen, up until that day. Using rubber he created a fake head and covered it with a foam latex mask of Deneuve. Smith engineered a revolutionary new bladder system that had never before been attempted which made the cheekbones retractable and would also allow the face to inflate and deflate. This distortion caused a surreal and eerie effect. In addition Smith wired the head to be fully functional, with eyes and a mouth that were mechanically operated. Next, weeks were spent designing and moulding a full body dummy of Deneuve, that was rigged to show her limbs
shrivelling and her body sinking inward. Smith had argued profusely with Scott over this idea of having the body whither, as it was all too "common," and he wanted something more original. Scott still demanded it.  This effect however, never appeared in the movie because Scott changed his mind, and what further annoyed Smith was the fact that Scott kept changing his mind consistently about the effects. Scott would change his mind quite often even when they were shooting a scene. What really angered Smith, to the point that he made it known.

The word on the set was that Scott seemed more concerned with the bizarre, in having the hair wisp around in front of Deneuve's face in the final scenes of her demise. What infuriated Smith however, is that the never before seen effects, using the new bladder system he engineered and designed were barely visible. This was all due to the way Scott shot the scene. First of all it was under lit, and second, the camera was at such an angle that the movement of the head was barely evident in the final film at all. A scene where Smith designed another mechanical system to make the mouth open and close was dropped entirely by Scott. Apart from the treatment Dick Smith, and his efforts, received at the hands of Tony Scott, among his peers The Hunger remains a testament to his ingenuity. Smith finally won an Academy Award in 1984 for his work on the film AMADEUS, and in retrospect he admits that he appreciates the challenge it was to work with director Tony Scott.  Anyway, as plagued as it was with problems making it, they do not show in the final cut. The Hunger is one fine movie.

On March 2nd Baal was broadcast on BBC2. The reviews were not spectacular, in this case however, these  bad reviews reflected good on Bowie as an actor.  You see, Bowie had fought hard for legitimacy as a bonafide actor, and the criticism contained in these reviews set him made him one. You may wonder how this could be? It has to do with the fact that  Baal was advertised as a "star vehicle for a big star," yet according to one review in the Sun, it stated that this advertisement insinuated that the play was on par with Bowie as an actor, and it went on to say that David Bowie is "more than just a pretty face." meaning the two were far from equal. Bowie, in their opinion was "too good" for the part. The Sunday Times echoed this by saying that, "the actor is more interesting than the play." This was further confirmed by this quote about Baal saying it," is hardly the best vehicle to project the spectacular Bowie style," in The Daily Express.. Baal was a flop, and that couldn't have been better for David, as REAL ACTORS deserve better scripts. Yes. REAL ACTORS.

It was during his stint as The Elephant Man when David Bowie met director Nagisa Oshima. It is no secret that Japanese performing arts have been a passion of Bowie's for decades. The ideas for the make up and wardrobe for the Ziggy era performances were fashioned from the styles used in  Kabuki, traditional Japanese theater. Therefore, it comes as no surprise that Bowie was well aquatinted with Nagisa Oshima's work. He is best known for his film  Ai No Corrida, meaning In The Realm Of The Senses, which holds the title of the most erotic film, as of 1996, to ever be granted release by the British Board Of Film Censors.  Nagisa Oshima discussed an upcoming project that he was considering, and perhaps Bowie would be interested.

"No fucking interviews, and that's it." Do you know what that is, and where it comes from? No? Well, let me tell you. That, my dear friends, is something that anyone close to Bowie is quite familiar with. It is a rule, and it is rule number one. Nobody, and I mean nobody, is permitted by Bowie to comment on ANYTHING to do with his personal life, or you face the consequences. This is by no means an idle threat either, just ask those who have ignored him. Trust me when I tell you that there is NOTHING ever said about him in the media that does not eventually make its way back to Coco, and then to him personally if need be. If you violate this rule then the punishment is simple, you are banished, and banished forever. I am not kidding either, break this rule and David Bowie will never speak to you again, and you will also never again be allowed in his presence. This fate has befallen several people, but overall it has been a highly effective tool, a weapon actually, over the years which stops almost everyone who is close to you from revealing any details of your personal life to the media. Notice I said "almost" everyone..

On June 2nd, Terry Burns, David's half brother, injured himself severely when he jumped out of a window at The Cane Hill Hospital in a botched suicide attempt. Terry had been incarcerated a total of sixteen years, except for the period of time that he was married to a fellow patient who was an alcoholic, and that marriage ended in divorce. Terry was taken to the Mayday General Hospital suffering from a broken leg and an arm broken in two places where gangrene had set it. Submitting to pressure from his aunt, Pat Antoniou, who visited Terry once a month at Cane Hill, David agreed to visit his brother in July. Now, to those who were not present, the success of that meeting between David and his brother is anyone's guess, however, according to aunt Pat it was a failure, and so much so that she broke the rule. Aunt Pat phoned John Blake, a journalist at the Sun, and started to talk. The topic? It was David. Although what she said was true, to air it in the media was the ultimate act of treason. Bowie had not seen Terry in nearly ten years, and this is extremely saddening due to the fact that had it not been for the influence Terry had on Bowie over the eight months he was recuperating at home from his eye injury, Bowie very well would not have gone the way he did career wise. His exposure to music, literature, it was Terry who gave him Keroacs book On The Road, a major influence on David.  Bowie's exposure to art, history, theater and politics were all the result of the time Terry spent with him over those long months.  Bowie revered Terry at one time as a role model, a teacher, and someone to trust, especially after his father, whom he also greatly admired, passed away when David was so young. Terry lived on seven pounds a month from social welfare, and Pat made up the difference with a bit of money, cigarettes, a family tradition, and clothes. David, she said, "Never lifted a finger." She had to "force" Bowie to visit his brother saying that, "it was time he lived up to his responsibilities." She wanted Terry put in a private hospital and a trust fund set up by David to pay for his upkeep. During his visit Bowie promised Terry that things would change, and he would be moved to a private hospital and cared for.   Pat became annoyed enough to go to the media when nothing happened. "I'M TERRIFIED OF GOING MAD, SAYS BOWIE," was the headline which appeared in the Sun. Bowie's response was to look for the quickest way out of town.

The destination was Switzerland. With bags packed, and The Hunger almost complete, an opportunity appeared for better way out. This was perfect, a way to get out and still appear as though he was not really running away from the humiliation, as the story had now spread to other papers.

It was two years since they last spoke, it took director Nagisa Oshima that long to raise the five million dollars he needed for his film. He called David, "Do you still want to do it? We start filming three weeks from now in Raratonga." Bowie didn't wait, Switzerland was put on hold and he headed immediately to the Cook Islands, here he could relax, tour some of the islands, and wait until filming began. England, the press, and aunt Pat were forgotten. Bowie viewed the opportunity to work with Oshima as another step toward a personal goal of his, and that was to direct a film one day. Nicholas Roeg and Nagisa Oshima were on the film critic's list of "intellectual" directors, and these were the people Bowie wanted to be tutored by. The scripts to him were not important, this is painfully obvious even to a blind dead person in some cases, it was instead the opportunity to work with these men. Oshima was especially alluring to Bowie due to his reputation as an innovator, much like himself. Also, like himself, controversy was never far away from Oshima. His notoriety and reputation as one who did not conform began with his public tirades which criticized tradition Japanese values. To those of you who are familiar at all with Japanese culture, you will know that the Emperor is "out of bounds" when it comes to political action. The monarchy in Japan is revered, the Emperor Hirohito, who ruled Japan during World War Two, was thought to be divine, and the monarchy is traditionally treated with the same respect that is due to the elders of society, who are granted absolute authority over the younger generations. As a student Nagisa Oshima  committed the ultimate act of defiance when he organized a protest against the Emperor. His ideology naturally manifested itself in his work, especially his study of a man and a woman who compete for sexual ecstasy that was portrayed in his film that I previously mentioned earlier, In The Realm Of The Senses. The film won awards as an erotic masterpiece in Britain and America, and became the centerpiece of an obscenity trial in Japan.  Oshima is regarded as the first completely modern Japanese filmmaker, meaning unlike most of the performing arts in Japan, his work is unaffected by tradition.

There is one person, by the name of James Grayson, a celebrated icon, a steadfast contributor to alt.fan.david-bowie, and a friend of mine, who will no doubt disagree with the following opinion. No doubt I will be shot, I imagine it will all be in good cheer though. The cheeriness coming of course at the pronunciation of my long awaited demise, and no doubt Mr. Grayson will not only receive notes and cards of congratulations, but large amounts of cash as well. However, while I am still here I will make the most of it, and wield my pen one last time.  My pen, the orchestrator of chaos and confusion. My pen, the orator of truth. The Hunger was not a horror movie, but this does not mean that David Bowie did not ever act in one, because he did. The horror movie that Bowie starred in? It was the one made by Nagisa Oshima, and it was truly frightening. Merry Christmas Mr. Lawrence, a movie that when I read about the subject matter, truly caused me a great deal of excitement. I waited in  anticipation to see Bowie finally be able to showcase his acting abilities, playing a "serious" role in a real drama.  I admit that I like war movies. Now, don't get me wrong, I do not mean the ones that are military propaganda, you know, the calvary coming over the hill at the last moment and saving the world from the evil grip of tyranny. Tyranny breeds in countries that fail to think exactly as we do, countries without McDonalds, the abode of the uncivilized. No Nike, no Playstation, no Seinfeld and no Lexus. In the end though freedom comes, as Colonel Sanders, with the aid of Rambo, Harry Potter and Justin Timberlake, oh and the armed forces of the United States Of America, and its allies, win the battle for liberation, defeating evil once again. I like those movies which focus in on the realities of war, or the historical details, the human issues,  the toll an armed conflict takes on a country and its people, as well as those who have to fight them.

Having read several in depth books by this time on World War Two, my knowledge of the ordeals suffered by prisoners of war at the hands of the Japanese was enough to conjure up a mental picture of Bowie's role. I did this by taking articles I read about the upcoming movie, and applying them to what I knew about the war. The film was hyped as a serious film based on life in a Japanese POW camp, and in this camp there was one brave soldier who stood up to the Japanese commanders.  David Bowie was cast in the role of this man,  and his name was Jack Celliers. I know how Canadian soldiers were starved to death when the Japanese over ran Hong Kong. The "Death Railway," which was built between Burma and Thailand under the command of the Japanese forces, was made famous in the film The Bridge Over The River Kwai. It was mostly constructed by Australian prisoners of war who were malnourished, ravaged by diseases such as dysentery and malaria, and suffered the
indignities of inhumane treatment. Untold numbers perished. Battles such as Iwo Jima are a testament which demonstrate the Japanese will to fight to the death, and to not surrender, and it was this will which was the motivation behind the ill treatment of those taken prisoner by the Japanese. They did not "understand" surrender, as it was not something that any real Japanese soldier would ever contemplate. You fought, and you fought to the death. Simple. This you did for your Emperor, and your country, as it was considered an honour to have the opportunity to fight, and die if necessary in battle. An indicator of how strong the will was to die for the country is evident in the fact that there were never enough planes to supply the endless list of those who had voluntarily signed up to become Kamikazes. To surrender was unthinkable, it was the ultimate act of a coward, a disgrace, and those who did were reviled by the Japanese. The treatment they received was appropriate, considering their worth as honourable men.

Wow, what a demanding role for Bowie I thought as my imagination went into overdrive considering the possibilities. If they used him right, this was going to be one Hell of a fucking amazing movie. To me it all had to do with he channelling of the "Bowie Charisma," and I could think of no better vehicle. The character of Celliers was defined as rebellious, the type that will defy any authority rather than conform, and the strength he uses to resist is born from the most powerful source a man can draw from, more powerful as a shield than that which is rendered from physical strength. Celliers fights the battle with the power of an unbreakable spirit, a foe that his enemy can not see to fight, an enemy whose strength can never be known. This type of adversary is most dangerous,  you can break the body, you can destroy the flesh, yet the spirit transcends the physical, where it can continue to fight the battle. The danger is that quite often the death of the flesh, and the victory of the spirit, will inspire others, giving them a will to fight, where before there was none. This danger was illustrated in The Bible when ten Roman soldiers were under orders to watch the tomb of Christ after his burial. The reason ten were assigned was for the assurance that at no time would the tomb not be watched. The Pharisees knew full well that Jesus was far more dangerous dead than alive, and if the body was to go missing, then true to his word Christ was not defeated by death. They feared that if the prophecy of a resurrection appeared to have been fulfilled, it would inspire a movement which would be unstoppable. This fear was proven correct. In the same context, they could destroy Celliers physically, however if his defiance remained to the end there was no victory for his captors. The failure to break his spirit would be a humiliating  defeat, as Celliers would become a martyr, and a danger. His death would create a source for others to draw strength and courage from that could never be destroyed. I contemplated with great delight at the thought of the natural charisma, and the air of internal strength personified naturally by Bowie, emanating from this character,  being cast as a spirit of a man that is unbreakable.  Knowing full well what the body of a defiant man in a Japanese POW camp would look like, and to me seeing one in this state that inwardly shines with the indomitable strength, Bowie projects so well, was what convinced me that I was going to witness one of the most brilliant performances ever, to truly captured of the will of a human spirit. This film depicting the will, and endurance of the human spirit would be stunning.  Reading the articles while the movie was in the making combined with the waiting could be equated with torture at times.  The words endurance, the will of the human spirit, stunning and torture are all words that I used extremely well. 

	This movie in fact, had an immeasurable impact on me, and of the kind that I can honestly say I will probably never experience again. This movie is so endearing to me that I actually have two posters of it in my collection, one I am proud to say is an original movie poster from the theater, and the other one is from the video release of the film.

The value of this film in connection with the endurance of the human spirit was horribly understated. I had no idea how much my spirit could truthfully endure until I saw this film the day it opened. As far as stunning goes, I can say in my case I certainly was stunned. What I witnessed on that screen was so fucking incredible that it vaulted all my senses into a foreign world. I admit that I saw this film twice at the theater, and numerous times on video. The reason is that I still can't believe it, and I do not hold out much in the way of hope that I ever will. The film is quite elusive, er, I mean the application of the art of any thinking being used in the making of this "movie" is elusive.  "Non existent" is a better combination of letters from the alphabet. In a  mediocrity contest,  not even The Big Red Plastic Arachnid With The Glowing Legs stands a chance, if put up against the cinematic drama of Merry Christmas Mr.Lawrence. I am only going to deal with ONE OF THE REASONS that this film is beyond ridiculous, and leave the other nine hundred and ninety nine alone. Those of you who  disagree are going to tell me that this is all just my personal opinion, and you are right, it is. Although it is an opinion,  I built it on an extremely solid foundation, and should you care to dispute the validity of it, then all I ask is that you bring forth something that can cast a doubt  on how strong this foundation is. It all has to do with believability. I mean, did you take good look at this thing? I sure did, and this is what I couldn't help noticing, it was this, and after all these years they are still sources of intrigue.

The recollections I have of viewing Merry Christmas Mr. Lawrence for the first time, was the unsettling feeling that swept over me, I remember starting to sweat slightly, at the scenes which led up to the first graphic display of the brutality in the film. It may only have been the music building towards a crescendo, but for whatever reason, I just knew something was going to strike. No sooner had this thought occurred, when that wide angle shot filled the entire screen with the prisoners, and probably like most others in the theater at that moment I found it very difficult to deal with my thoughts. The inhumanity and total disregard that the Japanese had for human life became painfully clear looking at the uniforms of those men. Not one wrinkle or one tear anywhere, the sharp creases in the pants and shirts were proof positive that there were men in that camp who were being housed in conditions which certainly must have violated The Geneva Convention. All through the movie, if you look closely, you will notice these are the neatest, cleanest and most sharply dressed prisoners of war you will ever encounter. To imagine what those prisoners who were confined to the laundry facilities and the tailor shop must have  endured to keep their comrades looking fit enough at all times for the runways of Paris, London, New York and Milan made me weep. If there was any saving grace, it was what was reflected in the durability of those uniforms. The way they held up under those harsh conditions indicated that they surely carried an Armami, Boss or Versache label. Quality this high would have made it a bit easier for the men to keep the uniforms looking neat and tidy. Judging by the gleam of what appeared to be footwear that was days old, I don't think the prisoners who were tortured as cobblers lasted long. Those forced into polish and buff slavery would have fared the worst, the majority most probably collapsed and died in the same dirt that they fought so valiantly.

While the Japanese officers and soldiers appeared to have a healthy diet, by the look of things the same could not be said for Jack Celliers and the other captives. Their physical appearance mirrored that of persons forced to live on a steady diet of gourmet food.  One could easily get the impression that rather than the balanced diet enjoyed by their captors, the prisoners were given food much higher in fat content.  The fat was probably contained in the rich sauces that are known to accompany the meat dishes found in French cuisine. I say  French for a reason. I have seen this film many times, and each time I make an effort to see if I can find anything that would point to the fact that these poor souls were fed something other than three or four course gourmet meals. I diligently look for indicators such as wrappers from Wendy's, Kentucky Fried Chicken, Arby's, Burger King, or Jack In The Box in the exercise yard, but so far my search has not been very rewarding.  Some prisoners display the scars from being forced to devour second helpings. I am confident director Nagisa Oshima wanted not only to illustrate how the Japanese overfed their prisoners to thwart escape attempts, as it is difficult to climb a fence and run away after ingesting three multi course sit down meals in a day, but also that the Japanese knew this food to be high in saturated fats, and fed it to the prisoners anyway. Many POW's would die years after the war because of the poor food they were forced to consume in detention facilities. These brave men were felled by heart attacks caused by high cholesterol.

Many times some of the truly remarkable things seen in a film, come from individuals who never appear on camera, and Merry Christmas Mr.Lawrence is no exception. I know that there are people who made a major contribution to this film that will never get what they deserve. I mean of course that they will never get the recognition they deserve, and be given a lengthy prison term, or the death sentence, er, I mean an award for their efforts. I am referring to those who had the responsibility of taking David Bowie, and making him appear convincing as a soldier, a Commanding Officer, and a prisoner of war. If you failed to take notice at the end result of their work, then I suggest that you go and get the movie and watch it again, because it is something that you do not want to miss.  The work done on Bowie by these people have made his character so convincing that I have heard veterans of World War Two actually say  "Darn, that fella looks familiar. As a matter of fact he's a dead ringer to a  guy I served with overseas," after seeing the front cover of my 83 tour program. You and I both know that fads, fashions, and trends are cyclical.  They appear, vanish, only to appear once again twenty to thirty years later. Taking this into consideration, it would be a mistake to think that these veterans were foolish to believe that  David Bowie would resemble one of their comrades in arms. As accurately depicted in Merry Christmas Mr. Lawrence, The Serious Moonlight style hair was extremely popular with soldiers from mid 1943, up until the end of 45, especially with combatants in the lower portions of Southeast Asia. These were the areas in and around  Java, the Philippines, Indonesia and the clusters of islands below. As depicted in the film, this style of hair would  not succumb to the harsh conditions encountered in jungle warfare and "wilt."  Apparently, if the haircut is done correctly it will withstand not only the blazing heat and humidity, but will also survive relatively unscathed in a monsoon, if one is not out in it too too long that is. If you watch the movie closely,  you will discover that Bowie always looks like he just got out of the chair at the salon, and hasn't even gone out the front door. Here is something you can try. Go to the library and get some history books that have photographs of POW's from various conflicts. If I may, I suggest photos from World War One, the Boar War, Vietnam, and the Gulf War. When you have these look at their hair and you will see something most people never notice. I can be trusted when I tell you that no matter what era the battles were fought, every prisoner of war you will ever see has hair just as marvellous as the characters in this film. I am astounded that the people behind the scenes  went as far as to make sure such a minor detail was included in the movie for the sake of realism. So true to life is the fact that captured soldiers had so much "dead" time that they sent hours on their hair just to fill in the days. Okay, yes you are right. I knew you'd get it. That wasn't overlooked either, look at prisoner's hands and fingernails. Accuracy right down to the last cuticle.

Not even the weight of Jack Celliers hat could move a hair out of place.  This is a true sign of a man born to command, when even his hair obeys.  The colour of Cellier's hair in the movie looked about as natural as Iggy Pop would look as a television evangelist. As odd as this seems, it's just more attention to detail, and another example of realism. Celliers, being a battle hardened soldier, would have known by instinct to colour his hair to suit the conditions of the terrain he had to operate in. The colour would be carefully selected as to blend in with the common colours of indigenous plants in the area, as well as the surrounding earth and rock. When a soldiers hair properly dyed, and is combined with the proper colour of clothing, it affords him the opportunity to move about without becoming a target. It's common sense that any soldier who had to fight in dense jungle conditions, would dye their hair bleach blond  to blend in with the varying shades of green found in the vegetation. Looking at that hair colour, and then looking at the jungle, I find it difficult to even contemplate for a second that Celliers would ever have his fucking head blown right off of his shoulders. Wait, now hold on. I take that all back. Now that I think about it, that would have been a great way to start the movie!

Maybe this also describes you.  I became extremely disturbed, and I got quite emotionally upset when I first watched the scenes of Bowie  being tortured by his sadistic keepers. Truthfully, to this day, I still feel some of those powerful emotions whenever I watch these scenes. In case you need a refresher, I am talking about the scenes where Bowie has his hands tied to the rafters leaving his body dangling in mid air. Here I find the emotions meant to be depicted on the screen are successfully transferred to the audience. To expose any organic substance to these scenes is truly sadistic, as they are painful to behold. To expect anyone to give so much as one second of it any credibility, well, that is best defined as a crime against all humanity. This one scene alone is enough to classify this entire film as a fucking horror movie. It is truly scary that this scene is meant to be taken seriously, instead of an act of blasphemy to the art of cinematography. No piece of film should have to suffer the abuse of having to bear these images. This movie is a test of the human spirit, and it comes in the form of exposing your spirit to this degree of mediocrity, and having it not abandon you permanently. The next time you wish to tempt your spirit I suggest that really pay attention to the horrors being committed during these torture scenes. It won't take long for you to realize that it is YOU THAT IS BEING TORTURED, and not David Bowie's manifestation of a POW. Yes, as I see Bowie in a uniform that was part of the Giorgio Armani spring  collection, laundered and pressed,  every cease in line and button in place, his hands bound above him and tied to the rafters, dangling above the floor are a pair of Gucci Custom Stitch Army Boots that have been out of the box for three minutes, and show six and a half steps of wear on them. The hair style that would have caused you to get the shit kicked out of you had you worn it that way in 68, let alone in the mid forties, is coifed in such a way that it has a beauty to it that is even more spectacular than the wonderful follicles and strands he had constructed, and displayed so eloquently during The Big Red Plastic Arachnid Fiasco. Not one strand on that head has been left unattended.  The precision with which the colour has been applied is beyond even the hand of Michelangelo, it exonerates itself by displaying in perfection the fact that it cost hundreds. The colour was not in existence in the forties, and is not one which can be had even today, save for the use by one individual, as the mixture is protected by patent laws. Upon learning this Jesus Christ became angered, having plans after seeing its radiance to use it in the next generation of halos. The eyebrows are likewise fashioned.

Looking at Bowie's face as he hangs there, you will notice that a miracle is unfolding, and I will bear witness to this. Now, since I have personally spent a large amount of time in Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia and other countries in Southeast Asia, I am very familiar with the weather patterns, including the average temperatures for each of the seasons.  Here Bowie hangs by a rope in such a way as to induce pain and cause suffering, a victim of torture, indoors during the afternoon, in a tropical climate with no fan or air conditioner visible. If we put all of these facts that are depicted in this scene together we can come to a very clear understanding of what the conditions were like in that room.  Thinking back on my trips to Southeast Asia, I confess that I have never had the opportunity to be strung up by rope and hung from any rafters.  As a matter of fact, opportunities to be tortured by any method have so far eluded me, and therefore I am unqualified to offer much information on these matters. Now, although can't offer much there, I sure can here, and this is the voice of an expert. I happen to know from over fifty personal experiences that if you happen to be outside in the vicinity of the Equator in the afternoon, you are going to sweat. It's a natural occurrence when the temperature is a hundred degrees  and over, as it is most days in the dry season. Trust me that this sweat is quite noticeable. Should you happen to be indoors, in a place where there is no fan or an conditioner, you are going to sweat so fucking much that you risk accidental drowning. Now, I know I should not say this because I have nothing in the way of proof to support it, but I'm taking the liberty anyway, and so you can just chalk this up to a stab in the dark, a wild guess. I'm going to guess that if you sweat so much that you risk accidental drowning just being indoors in a place where there is no fan or an conditioner, that if you were also strung up by a rope and hanging from the rafters with the ball joints at the end of each arm being pulled out of their sockets you may sweat slightly more. Again, I am not a physician, it is just my opinion that there may be some sort of discomfort or pain associated with the dislocation of both arms, and pain usually causes one to sweat somewhat.

My humble point is that anybody in Bowie's situation, swinging from the fucking rafters in the Godamn tropics is going to look like they had twenty fucking fire hoses turned on them. There may also be a look of discomfort on the face of those who are being tortured, and their arms are being pulled from their sockets. Well? You look then. You look at Bowie hanging there. Notice if you will that there isn't one drop of fucking sweat anywhere on that face. The grinning face. It must be some weird British custom that I am unfamiliar with, to appear friendly and cordial in these types of situations, to those who put you there. The British are a fucking eccentric lot anyway, so it wouldn't come as any surprise. Somehow though, I strongly doubt that it could be accomplished with any regularity. Judging by his underarms, the Japanese provide a very high quality antiperspirant to their prisoners. He looks like they hung up the fucking front cover of GQ Magazine. Throw in the dialogue and watch a new standard for mediocre appear right before your eyes. This film is even less believable than that sad ass fucking version of White Light/White Heat he continues to torture those who love him with.

Notice, as an act of mercy, I stayed away from the plants.

Merry Christmas Mr. Lawrence?

No, Good Riddance Mr. Flowereater.

AladINsaNE

To be, well you know.......................

Posted 15 December 2002

	 


Part Fifty Three

You know, it's November 1982 already? It's impossible not to wonder where all the fucking time goes, another damn year gone and it seems like it was January just the other day. I'll tell you straight up, that myself, and every other person I know, are starting to have some real doubts about this decade. People keep saying it's because we're getting older and things change. They go further on to explain that as time passes we become less willing to accept these changes, and tend to keep our mindset in an era where we were happy, and felt secure. That's the speech. Do you get it? It took me a couple of takes, but I got my finger on it pretty quick. A bit of thought led me to the conclusion that there is another terminology that's more commonly used to describe this so called "era where we were happy, and felt secure." You know it, its called the "good old days." Twenty fucking five and I'm already fondly reminiscing back to the seventies, the good old days, am I? Isn't that just kind? Truthfully, I have always been extremely appreciative of the fact that I have been blessed enough to live in a world where I am forever surrounded by all of these really smart people. Heaven only knows what I would do without them. I do think about it from time to time though. Time to time means one minute to the next. 

Look it, you all listen to Bowie, so I know I'm not dealing with the likes of these "geniuses" that I'm constantly surrounded by. You'll understand. Let me tell you what's going on. Good old days? Fucking call them what you want, all I know is this, everything is fucked right up like you wouldn't believe. You have no idea of the shit we're going through., and it's not getting any better either, it's getting worse, really fucking worse. I don't listen to AM radio, I'm just telling you this because it'll give you a good idea. Turn on AM a few short years ago, and do you know what I used to get?  Tull, Stones, Supertramp, Who, Zeppelin, Fleetwood Mac, Aerosmith, Harrison, McCartney, ELO, Chicago, Alice Cooper, as well as you know who.  These last few years it's the likes of this, Barry Manilow, Kenny Rogers, The Commodores, The Captain & Tennille, Juice Newton, Hall and Oates, Neil Diamond. Now, those morons are telling me I'm getting old at twenty five, becoming adverse of change, and  therefore I'm longing for the good old days, when I was happy, and felt all nice warm, cuddly and secure? Fucking idiots. I'm longing for the good old days alright, and so are my friends, but not for any of the reasons that the real smart people think. Take one fucking look at these "brand new days," and there's your answer. Get it? I know you do. If you think suffering through this is bad, you haven't heard a damn thing yet. The Stones wrote a disco song. Yes, Keith Richards. The thing became a hit too. Remember Gimme Shelter?  Happy? Monkey Man? Star Star? Yeah, back in the fucking good old days when I was all cosy, even though our cave had no running water or electricity. Over half the bands that used to crank out good stuff are putting out crap now. It started before, but things didn't get real bad until two years ago, in 80. 

Low, Iggy tour, Lust For Life, Bing, Heroes, Peter And The Wolf, The Idiot, Heroes tour, Lodger, Stage, Just A Gigolo, and that's just the big projects in three year. Then Scary Monsters, two years ago. What the fuck is going on? Look at this, seventy four, seventy six,  seventy eight and Iggy. FOUR FUCKING YEARS! No tour. Look at everything. This is so unlike Bowie. What's wrong? 

I lived through that, you try it. Seventeen albums, five world tours, the films, the bootlegs of the tours coming out. Oh God, I still remember the very second in my bedroom when that needle fell for the first time on the Nassau Coliseum boot. The quality, so rare back then. Life comes down to a few minutes? That's one, then there's the Ryko AU20, the Jap vinyl, okay, okay, I'll stop. Anyway, all that in ten years, down to virtually fucking nothing for four. Jimmy, dos, Keith, Kelton, you guys remember. A small blessing was bestowed however, on receiving  Fashions as a Christmas gift from my girlfriend. This was a set of ten 45 RPM picture disk singles released by RCA. They came individually packaged in plastic sleeves which were inside of a hard vinyl cover, like a book, you can flip through them. On the cover is a self portrait drawn and signed by Bowie. In my opinion this is the best re-issue in the RCA catalog, they are beautiful. Even though he felt that his listeners were being taken advantage of by all the RCA reissues Bowie liked these, saying "they showed some taste and imagination. They were issued on November 4th. It took little time for RCA to strike again as on November 18 out came  Bing and Bowie, just in time for Christmas, along with Fantastic Voyage. Bowie was always complaining about what he felt was a lack of promotion  by RCA. He saw it now though. Since they had nothing new, and Bowie refused to do any promotion on the re-issues, Defries being one reason, and RCA the other, RCA was spending big time advertising the compilations thought up with Defries. It was working too. Bing and Bowie made number three on the British charts. RCA made a grave error in judgement by doing this. Foolishly they thought Bowie would take all of this promotion as a sign of goodwill, and as an real effort by RCA to market his albums. They were aware that contract renewal day was at hand. This attempt to please Bowie pissed him right off. He knew why they were doing it. What he really wanted was Low and Heroes promoted when they were released, especially Low. The failure of RCA to promote Low, actually their refusal to issue it in the first place,  was unforgivable. Low was "personal," and he wanted it to be heard, and it was, by 265,906 people out of over 300,000,000 in North America. "Nice if they had that money to spend on Low and Heroes," were the words he imparted to anyone who was there to listen. 

Planned? Oh, no, not planned. It's more like contrived. As he was gearing up to enter the Record Plant in late November, the machine had already been going full bore for two years. The staff at Isolar had started planning and arranging the 83 tour, back in 1980. Listen to this, because I want to ask you something after. Bowie called Visconti and told him to set some time aside, he was going to use him to produce Let's Dance. Visconti waited for the phone call. Nothing. Time was getting close and Visconti called Coco for a plane ticket. It was classic Bowie style, no warning. "He met someone else," were her words. Well, here is my question, and something to think about, "What would have happened if it was Visconti, and not Nile Rogers on Let's Dance? Would the result have been different?" That really is something to wonder about now, isn't it? Personally, I say yes, but as to what and to what extent I still do not know. I wonder, I really do. Over at Isolar it wasn't just the tour either, the contract with RCA would be up in a matter of months, and the courting ritual between Bowie and the labels would start. Profiles. Bowie gave instructions to his people at Isolar to prepare detailed profiles on all the bidding labels. They were not only to include the financial aspects of the offers, he wanted some other things. He wanted to know what else beside money he was going to receive, among them marketing plans, distribution ability, and support for special projects.

He was still adamant about making films, and even with his limited successes, he still  managed somehow to strike a deal with United Artists. They were prepared to develop his projects, but due to the lack of ideas for suitable script material, the partnership did not produce anything. 

Switzerland was home,  New York was battle headquarters, and Bowie had returned to his place in Chelsea. His return to the limelight was to come soon. This time there would be no characters, no gimmicks, and he had a clean lifestyle. This time there would be no bullshit, this was the REAL DAVID BOWIE. It was from here that his new character, called "THE REAL DAVID BOWIE" would be fine tuned. This "REAL DAVID BOWIE was the first character that was actually planned. Apart from his other roles in life, which sort of developed over time both consciously, as well as unconsciously, this one was designed and built from scratch to perform a function. This creature was constructed with a goal in mind, so every minor detail was attended to. What proved to be a challenge was the creation of a world to insert this REAL DAVID BOWIE, as it had to also be manufactured. That wasn't the major issue however, because once the world was built, you had to operate it, and to operate an entire world, is not always that easy. To operate this illusion effectively, everything in this world would be designed to complete a certain task. Everything would be fully functional. I have often wondered if he got the idea how to do what he did in 83 from the movies. There is a striking similarity between all of this, and The Wizard Of Oz. The only difference I can see, is that instead of any wizard, there was a REAL DAVID BOWIE  behind the curtain. Remember, in the movie the streets were also paved with gold. Bowie, however had to make his own gold. That was done at The Power Station. 

If you really look at the whole thing the planning behind it is fucking incredible. After 1980 he starts crawling into the wood work, slowly disappearing. From here it becomes a juggling act, to appear and disappear just enough. Artists die when they part from the media, Bowie had to be seen enough so people would know he's still there, but quiet enough that people realized that he was gone, the same with his work. If you notice his work slowly dried up. Did you know he was going to tour in 1980? WAS, that is. As the supply of new work from Bowie slowly became non existent, the demand from his listeners increased, so did the desire for a tour.  By now this was DOUBLE the time that he had ever been absent from the stage. He would have a new album ready BEFORE he signed with a label. The tour would all be arranged, and the videos would be ready to air beforehand. He had a personal appearance booked at a music festival as promotion. The media was courted, and the coverage controlled, in order to suit his needs. All that was necessary was the word, "GO!" 

It's 1982, and there is one thing which David Bowie has still failed to accomplish. He has failed to sell any records. He has yet to break much over 1.3 million on an album in America, and only two have ever broken the million mark.  There was only one goal. All the thought. planning, design, orchestrating, and building that was being done now was for one reason only, to achieve a goal. He was envious of his peers success, he was burdened by his inability to do what other artists had done. The goal was SUCCESS, and all of the trappings that come with it. Fame, recognition, and yes, he has admitted it, money.  Bowie muttered once, "You sort of think, Well, hey, I've made it. Made what exactly? If your ambition when you began was to be really, really famous and really, really which, then, yes, you've made it. You've got what you wanted. But if you were stupid enough to believe you were an artist, you've got to understand that has a different set of values attached to it. And commercial acceptance can be very painful... "You think, "How can he say that?" The commercialism was all planned. 

It doesn't take long for Bowie, and therefore it was four weeks that were booked as studio time at The Power Station.  There was a "this was going to be it" attitude before he went into the studio. This was the "one." He was going to make the most mainstream commercially viable record possible. "In commercial terms, if you want an album to sell, you must make things graphically clear and keep them as simply defined as possibly so that it's fairly easy to pop them into a category," Bowie said. The category we know as "Pop." This album was to be completely mainstream, there would be no "music" on it in the sense of music as art. This was a "PRODUCT," it was built to perform a function, and to complete a task. It was designed with one goal in mind, to sell. The album would have manufactured songs, rather than music, and almost all of them capable of getting airplay and becoming hits.  "You can pretty much thumbnail sketch each album on the charts. In one phrase, you can say what it represents. Anything that starts to explore falls into that periphery area," Bowie said. He is right, and there would be no "periphery areas" to be found on Let's Dance. There would only be songs, and like all songs, there would be nothing intellectually enriching here, the focus would all be on the sound. Say what you want about Let's Dance, but you are unlikely to find a "slicker" album by anyone. It is a testament to genius.  On the production and engineering aspects I can't say it is the best overall. This is because of the vast difference in sound on some albums. The need to achieve the desired results on each work led to a need for wide variations in these techniques, and to try and compare them would be like trying to compare Jennifer Lopez to Music. There are however certain albums where certain characteristics emerge which are unique, the vocal sound on Heroes for example. I fail to see where out of all of  Bowie's albums to this very day, where you are going to find a smoother pop sound, and  in that regard Let's Dance is an amazing piece of work. The engineering and production of that album is brilliant, leading to a sound quality that is quite special, it's  so "clean." 

"A number of people have said that album has in spirit the same  feeling as the Young Americans album. I would agree but I think the balance has changed somewhat. On the Young Americans, I was so overwhelmed by the Philadelphia sound... that I was writing songs specifically to point out the rhythm & blues and soul elements. This time around in Let's Dance, I think it's far more a case of my working with rhythm & blues to enhance the songs themselves. The approach is kind of the other way around from that of the Young Americans period," said Bowie. Do you buy any of that? Not me. He compared the sound of the tracks by saying they're roots were in  "rhythm & blues?" Who the fuck is he trying to fool. The root of those songs is not rhythm & blues, it is "COMMERCIAL POP." What is pop structured around? A beat, rhythm and a few  "catchy" verses.  If you want beat and rhythm, you want Nile Rogers.  This caught me really off guard, Rogers, "Because of the nature of the business, people are not that keen on intermingling between blacks and whites. They  don't expect that a black producer can go in and do an artist of the calibre of David Bowie." I was quite shocked by that remark, and I found the racial overtones quite offensive, this however in no way effected my regard for Rogers work. Davis, Murrary, Vandross, Alomar, Eva Cherry, Rojhas, and Iman are all blue, or orange? Fuck. Bowie has kept slaves for years. That is a joke. Why would Rogers not expect Bowie to use him? Colour! Fuck off. The Stones, Beatles, Gabriel, and the list goes on, have used people of other races. What does race have to do with music, or anything else for that matter? Any artist who would not use talent because it doesn't come in the right colour isn't worth bothering with, professionally, or as a person. This is a classic "chip on the shoulder" attitude, and I was surprised to hear it coming from Nile Rogers of all people. Especially concerning Bowie. Bowie didn't just use him once either, did he? The call came one evening in early December, "David could have had any producer-white or black-he wanted. He could have gone with Quincy Jones and a more sure fire chance at a hit. But he called me up, and for that I feel honoured." 

What Rogers did not know is that he was about to feel the physical battering, assault really, that many have experienced due to the veracity of Bowie's work habits. Eno could not understand how he did it.  His work on Low took three days, Fripp on Heroes, that was accomplished in twenty four hours.  "This is the fastest I've ever worked in my life. We went in from about ten a.m. to the early evening for six days a week and worked.. David has a deep understanding of music. He knows a lot more then he gets credit for. We spent time discussing chords , notes and different approaches to music. At one point  David was so enthusiastic about capturing that rock 'n' roll flavour that he wanted to cut everything live-rhythm, horns and vocals. That's how open he was to doing the unusual," according to Rogers. This next quote however speaks volumes.  Rogers stated that, "Before recording here we spent three days cutting demos of his  songs, so when we actually got into the studio, we knew exactly what we wanted.." That is incredible, unfathomable, and unbelievable. That tells you that this album was not just planned, it was contrived. To understand this, let me say this. Bowie NEVER  plans ANYTHING. IN ADVANCE. He goes in virtually EMPTY HANDED, he writes as he works. The lyrics to Heroes were written at the microphone in three takes. He walked into Cherokee Studios with a sound effects records, and two songs that became so radically altered, the originals were unrecognizable. Station To Station, written after four days of no sleep during a  Bowie style coke binge, by candle light, and in fifteen minutes. Two Marshall amplifiers died, from abuse in the process. He wrote stuff in the fucking bathroom of all places. Lodger was an exception, but only for the lyrics, they were written after the recording in Switzerland, in New York.  "Three days cutting demos," is unheard of. Never had this been done in the past. It was all planned in advance, like everything else. 

I was going to tell the judge the gun went off when I dropped it. Then clumsy old me dropped it again, and it went off. It was an accident. I dropped it twenty six times by accident. It wasn't my fault Bowie was in the way. Then I thought, "No.." Here's how it happened. I was sleepwalking when I got on the plane and went to Bowie's house.  No. I was drunk.......That won't work either. Shit! You know, I thought up every excuse I possibly could to beat a murder rap after hearing Let's Dance for the first time. I came up with nothing that I thought could work. This was truly a disappointment. Time heals all wounds, except two I suffered in 84 and 87, and my view on this album has somewhat changed. I love that album, and as a matter of fact, Let's Dance is the greatest album Bowie ever made, for what it was designed to do. Let's Dance is his best in that regard, and there is not one person that can prove otherwise. It was designed to sell, and it out sold every album before it, or since it. So, for what it was designed to do, Let's Dance is the greatest album Bowie ever made. 

Bowie and Nile Rogers met in a nightclub in New York during Bowie's stint in the Elephant Man. To underestimate Nile Rogers would be a big mistake because some of his achievements are unsurpassed. Rogers" talents include producing, arranging , writing, orchestrating, mixing as well as being a competent musician.  Rogers is most associated to Chic, a disco band which debuted in 1977. There are two fascinating similarities between Let's Dance, and Chic's first single. Both were made while the artists were not signed to a record label. Chic recorded a single Dance Dance Dance and shopped it around to the major labels with no success  until Atlantic Records bit, and it was a nice bite too.  Dance Dance Dance sold a million copies in ONE MONTH, and subsequently three of their records outsold everything in the history of Atlantic Records.  Here are some names that will hit home. Two of the founding members of Chic were Nile Rodgers and Tony Thompson who later left the  band and was replaced by drummer Denis Davis. Bernard Edwards was a  third founding member of Chic, and he appears on Let's Dance. Edwards plays bass on Without You. Rogers did not lock himself into the area of disco/dance and pop either. He has worked with  other notable artists such as Peter Gabriel, Blondie, Stevie Wonder, UB40, Roxy Music, Kate Bush and Paul McCartney, and I have only named a few from a very long and impressive list. 

It always happens, doesn't it? You always forget something. Pack a suitcase, leave the grocery store, I always forget the groceries, there is always something you forget. It's a good thing our heads are attached, too bad about some people's brains though.  No big deal, that's why glue and staples were invented. Too bad these people forgot where they left the glue and staples. Do you know how many parts are in a REAL DAVID BOWIE character? No? Let's just say a lot,  and these things aren't easy to build. If you leave out some parts then you risk the chance of the whole thing becoming hopelessly defective. This was not the case here though, with the REAL DAVID BOWIE.  There was however a flaw. The amounts of respect and decency, and the amount of selfishness and disrespect, were improperly mixed when they were put into the character. This caused the character to become quite unliveable with at times, as it severely effected its ability to treat others fairly. This flaw was not considered important enough to go back and correct, and beside that, there was no time. He needed a band. 

How do you get rid of a guy like Carlos Alomar after nine years? Easy, use the money. Carlos was called to play on the record, but offered less money, and so much so that it guaranteed that he would not accept the offer. Gone. As I said, the mixture was off. The decision was not Bowie's, but it still could have been handled. Roger's wanted a few of his own people, and he was used to control. If Rogers needed certain people to get the sound that was essential to the success of the album then so be it. He was an unknown guitar player, one that Bowie saw at the Montreaux Jazz Festival, that became his choice. It was "instinct" that made him decide that Stevie Ray Vaughn had the sound he wanted. A good choice too. Dennis Davis was recording with Stevie Wonder, so Rogers called in Tony Thompson. The rest of the musicians were Carmine Rojas, bass, Omar Hakim, drums, Rob Sabino, keyboards, Mac Gollehon: trumpets, Robert Arron, Stan Harrison, tenor and flute, Sammy Figueroa, percussion, Frank Simms, Geoge Simms, David Spinner:, vocals, Nile Rodgers, guitar, Bernard Edwards: bass, and David Bowie of course on vocals. This is a massive line up by Bowie standards. Hey, notice any "musician" that is missing? C'mon, who is missing? BOWIE.  See, "David Bowie on vocals." Vocals. Bowie did not pick up one instrument during the recording of this album. When did that last happen? Right, never. Credit becomes due here. For Bowie to turn control of an ENTIRE album, over to the hands of someone else is an amazing display of trust. He deserves a nod in his direction for that. 

I have really developed a love for this album. BANG! I'm dead? Fuck off, you missed. I LIKE LET'S DANCE!  Now, I have to clarify this a bit, there are only certain aspects I like, and in some areas it rates really low. Hear that, "low." First, lets dispense with the obvious, actually Bowie did that already, the depth is gone. Like most, who started listening in the early seventies it was the depth, substance is more descriptive, that attracted us, and held us.  The cult that we were. Music, lyrics and Bowie as a forward thinking artist were food for thought. There was something there to be heard, something to learned as well. It was an enriching experience back then, one I damn well miss. Bowie turned me on to other bands, and not ones like Puff Diddy. He would never have done anything like that in those days. I got some reading material recommended to me, and started looking at art. On a scale that measures lyrical substance, meaning other than Chinese girls under the serious moonlight shaking it without you, Let's Dance is a burp. Ricochet, Criminal World, and maybe there's another in there which sparks a thought, but not much else. There are however. some nice Bowie clichés to be found in places. The music on Let's Dance? There is little in the way of music to be found anywhere on that album. This was a fact that angered me to no end when I first heard it. Truthfully, this is where the whole problem was.  I bet I am talking here for a lot of people, I know for a fact that most of the pre 83 bunch will back this up. The whole problem with Let's Dance is that you couldn't find what you were looking for on it, and that is substance. Since this was the overall reason you were listening to Bowie in the first place, and found in large amounts on his previous work, you naturally expected to find some here. For those of you who are post 83 fans, this here is something you have never thought of, there was no reason for you to in the first place, so do not take this remark as condescending. It isn't. I am saying it to illustrate something. Suppose you started in 88 for example. What Bowie albums could you have purchased? Silly question? No, it isn't. The answer is any one you want, right? Think about it, WE COULDN'T! The point is if you started in, say 74, you would have collected the previous albums in no time, as there were not many to collect. After that you are going album by album as they are released. What was before Let's Dance? We were looking for what? There you have it, that made it a whole lot worse. I know a lot of you fans who came later can't understand the loathing and absolute hatred you hear from listeners of my generation towards Let's Dance. See, from the beginning,  you looked at Let's Dance from the point of view I had to learn in order to see any value in it. Naturally,  you could not understand this bad attitude towards it. You will in a minute though. We are just coming off of the Trilogy, Bowie's three album "experimental" period, ending with Lodger, his most experimental album. Any substance there? Yeah, right. So, next? We get handed one of the greatest commentaries on the ills of society ever spoken. This commentary is set to the notes coming off the guitar held by technically, the greatest talent in existence, Robert Fripp. Throw in Roy Bittan, a bit of Pete Townsend, tracks like Ashes To Ashes, Teenage Wildlife, It's No Game and you have a rather luscious mixture. You add Scary Monsters to the Trilogy, then you can see that for the reasons we are listening to Bowie, we are literally in Heaven. Any older fan will repeat this story. Now, you should have been there, and any of these older fans will remember their own personal experience at this moment. The Trilogy, Scary Monsters and it doesn't get any better, the needle falls, we suffered through Disco remember, Modern Love, China Girl, Let's Dance. Get it? That's why. 

To those of you who like the heinous Let's Dance, you can add me to your crowd, because I finally learned. The only way to find the treasure in that album is to STOP LOOKING FOR WHAT ISN'T THERE! It isn't an "intelligent" album. There is NO INSIGHT, there is NO POINT, there IS NO WISDOM, there is absolutely nothing there to be "learned."  You have to also know that there is NO MUSICAL INTERPRETATION, you are NOT GOING ANYWHERE, there is NO INNOVATION, and you are not going to wonder how they did anything. If you continue on this path, as I did for many years, then you are torturing yourself, and it really fucking hurts. I know it does. The album is mindless. Now, try this. Look at it as a mindless commercial pop album, loaded with catchy songs with no substance, and made only to appeal to the average idiot. Now what do you see? The thing's a fucking masterpiece like nothing else I have ever seen. Bowie and Rogers made one of the greatest mindless albums to appeal to idiots I have ever seen. Laughing? I know, me too. But look. What was the thing designed to do? Break the market, right? It has to sell. What kind of "people" are the average record buyer? There you go 

The problem with the average idiot who thinks he knows music, is that he equates music to some kind of a nice thumping beat he can bang his stupid head against the wall to, or some "cute" riff. Like Modern Love for example. It works on me. Every time I hear that song something starts moving. That riff at the beginning as an attention grabber is genius.  Cute gimmick noises, rather than music, always work on the AM Radio listeners. Warszawa would get a radio station changed, "what is that shit," or turned off altogether. Cute gimmick noises get the volume turned up. These "cute gimmick noises" are like the ones you hear at the start of China Girl. Yeah, I have both picture disks, the uncut video and the original 45. SO WHAT! I have lots of Iggy boots and video with China Girl. Mr. Osterburg, the trailer park trash from Michigan, and his China Girl are enshrined in my heart. Nothing comes close. Bowie's version however, in terms of being produced only for the reason of being able to top the billboard charts, is perfect. Everything that makes a pop song work is done to absolute perfection in that song. The sound is so "POP PERFECT," I can only marvel at the engineering and production work. What's music for? Artistic interpretation? Fuck that, music is there to dance to. I can dance to Speed Of Life. It's true, I can do it. Most however, can not do this. For bragging rights I can dance to Move On as well. The average person out there puts on red shoes, records made by "YELLOW REAL DAVID BOWIE CREATURES," and dances to blue, orange, pink, off white, turquoise and other colours of the spectrum. Sort of like "Let's Dance." I will defend that song musically however. That demented, twisted, warped, insane saxophone is worthy of a Fripp guitar beside it. Insightful lyrics, like the ones contained in weeping testimonials of how much some guy loves some girl, are always appreciated by the thoughtless. I'm surprised Without You didn't make Single Of The Century. Bowie's voice is at its "crooning" best in that song however. 

The most dismissed song on the album is my favourite track. That's Ricochet. You could throw that song on Lodger, Scary Monsters, and a couple of other Bowie albums and not cause them any disgrace whatsoever. Music wise, it is. lyric wise, they're there. Am I alone here? Am I? I mean Criminal World. Am I the ONLY ONE OUT THERE who finds any merit in this song? Well?  I can handle some pretty demented sounding music, I prefer it, but the original version of this song by Metro is pushing it in places. If you ditch this track, dismissing it as nothing, then I feel truly sad for you, because you are cheating yourself so bad that you have no idea to what extent. Here, let me tell you. You are missing a rare opportunity to see EXACTLY how Bowie perceives music. Yeah, Criminal World can show you how David Bowie perceives music. Where, may I ask are, you going to get that opportunity? Also, as a serious Bowie listener, would you ever miss that opportunity? Well? If you want to take advantage of this rare opportunity I will tell you how. Get Metro's version of Criminal World and listen to it. Now, get Bowie's version of Criminal World and listen to it. Now think, "How the hell did he hear that in that? In Metro's version, look what you heard,  and look what he heard" How?" What a fucking mind. Try it with Johnny Mathis' version of Wild Is The Wind, and the cut from Station To Station. That one will make you drop. How? What a fucking mind. Vaughn's  guitar work on Criminal World is stunning, and the production and engineering give it one of the most crisp and cleanest sounds I have ever heard on any record. Bowie's vocals are used, and all around this track is worth owning, and listening to. It is worthy of being called  music by David Bowie. Follow the bouncing empty head and sing along to the catchy verse. "Putting out fire with gasoline." and "its been so long." Yeah I follow it sometimes too. Again, so what. You deny it, but I KNOW YOU DO TOO.. Yes, you do. Here sing, "I've been putting out fire with gasoline, putting out fire WITH GASOLINE." Keep going, "Its been so long., so long., so long.. Its been so long, long., so long, putting out fire, been so long., so long., so long, I've been putting out fire..............."  Gee, I can't help noticing  you sound like you have had a lot of practice. Right? I said, "RIGHT?" At least I admit it. Oh God, I did it in public too. What a moron I am. Shit. I'll never hear the end of it now. What an idiot. Ah, ha, I will save myself. Although I find Cat People a nifty "sing along" song for the top forty crowd, the true worth of that track is manifested on the version used in the film Cat People. Moroder and Bowie? Trash this and you need help, and you need it badly.  Don't wait, please. Go now, there is something wrong with you, get it checked out before it is too late. "It's too late, to be grateful, It's too late, too be late again, It's too late, to be hateful." Sorry, I can't help it. I can't. "The European cannon is here" I CAN'T HELP IT. SORRY! Do you think I'm only one in a million or something? Shake it. So, Shake it if you must. YUCK! 

Is Let's Dance amazing? Look at it as mindless pop. Is it? Bowie is a genius. It's the best mindless pop there is. I'll be back. 

Aladinsane 

Oh, I have some great stuff on the 83 tour coming up. That's part of your Christmas present.

Hang in, okay? 

	Posted 22 December 2002


Part Fifty Four

With Let's Dance in the can Bowie, leaves to spend Christmas in Acapulco, where Eric Idle discovers him sun tanning on the beach. Idle is a close personal friend of Bowie's, and was chosen to be Joey's Godfather.  He invites Bowie to play a part in his upcoming film, Yellowbeard, which he accepts. 

January 1, 1983. Happy New Year. The world looks the same, and the universe is unfolding as it should. The planet is unaware though, that the plan is in place, and  "THE REAL DAVID BOWIE" is about to be unleashed. Along with his "Character," David Bowie has created the greatest illusion imaginable, and if it all works, he will finally succeed in obtaining all that has eluded him until now. 

Bowie was back in New York before the end of January He was free, the MainMan and RCA contracts had expired, and now, it was time to deal with the labels. He anticipated the big day, and that day would come on January 27th.  Bowie had this to put on the table.  Over an eleven year period he had eleven albums to his credit. Only one however had reached Platinum status, selling over one million copies, and it was not an "original" album in the true sense. The album was CHANGESONE, the "Greatest Hits" package assembled by Defries and RCA, and it sold just over 1.3 million copies. Six albums went Gold, selling  over 500,000 copies, and Fame was his only single ever to reach that plateau. Bowie sold well in the UK, but the UK is not what the labels considered the major market, that was America. This left Bowie in a less advantageous position, because these figures were quite poor for an artist of his recognition. I know it's not the same, but to give you an idea, Michael Jackson was selling at around 12 million per album world wide. Bowie's real value was staying power, and this meant it was a solid bet that his material would at least sell so many copies. There was also the potential that sometime in the future he might strike it big, and score with a hit album. Little did anyone know at the time what was on the shelf, and Bowie decided he would NOT use Let's Dance as a bargaining tool, it would remain sealed in the can until a deal was struck, that is directly according to David Bowie 

Isolar had the profiles of the major labels completed  The first label of course was RCA who had recently been through some rather difficult times but were showing signs of recovery. They recently had a 15% reduction of artists on the roster and had cut overall staff by 25%. RCA still controlled 15% of the record market and the two newest artists they had signed were Diana Ross and Kenny Rogers. They reportedly were ready to offer "millions" to retain Bowie. Geffen Records, created by David Geffen, was by far the smallest label, but it was now controlled by Warner Communications. They had the second largest share of the market at 18%. The largest label in the race was Columbia, a label under the CBS Records Group, which also included Epic Records. CBS controlled an impressive 25% of the domestic market and had 15% of the distribution market overseas. Its roster of artists was equally impressive, including  Michael Jackson, Paul McCartney and Pink Floyd to name a few. The last real contender was EMI America, owned by Capitol Records,  with a 10% share of the market. 

Although that is where it belongs, I imagine an enema using an unlubricated copy of Tonight sideways is an unpleasant experience to anxiously look forward to. In a rush to sign a deal, that is about the speed it appeared Bowie was going. Want a girl or a boy to like you, appear uninterested. It's an old trick that never dies. Was he in a hurry? Record finished, a tour almost ready that was two years in the planning. You tell me. However, you can't appear anxious, that will cost you money. How would a David Bowie appear not in a hurray? Easy, do what you always do, DISAPPEAR, I mean, you're better at that than you are at writing music. Alakazam! Poof, and David Bowie was gone. He could not be found at his office, or anywhere else for that matter where he might be seen. If the people in charge of negotiations at one of the labels wished to speak to him they called Coco. Bowie played the "I'm too busy game," never calling anyone first himself. This game was remembered well by Bhaskar Menon, the chairman of the board at Capitol Records. The first call came from Coco, or someone else at Isolar. They were told that David would call at 12:00 the next day, and please make yourself available. Bowie would call the next day. Now, I do not know this for sure, I am going by personal experience, and the experiences that I know others have had. Knowing Bowie's desperate need for a watch, if that call came on time, then that thing disguised as an album, with the burning hoop from the pits of Hell on the cover, and the evil being with the plastic hair who continues to give me horrible nightmares, is listenable to. Was that ever hard to say. To put heat on the other labels the news out of Isolar was that Geffen was close to signing him. 

It was thought to be the same type of ploy, to put pressure on everyone else, when an Isolar press release was made public on January 27,1983. The release was not lengthy, it basically said that David Bowie was now under contract with EMI America. There was no way, this was a ploy. EMI? Ten percent of the market, lower than average distribution ability. Bullshit!  David Bowie wanted two things, money and the promotional backing, and he found it, and he found it at EMI. It was true, Bowie was now with EMI. In the EMI fold, Bowie joined the other "major" artists they had signed, Kajagoogoo, Naked Eyes, and Sheena Easton, to name a few.  How this marriage came to be was not easily understood by many, but it really is simple. EMI  America, as you can see by the wonderful roster of talent they had, in order to make a  profit from, needed help. With David Bowie on their label, it was hoped that this would attract other artists. Bowie heard the right words out of EMI, a talented marketing department, and a  willingness to invest heavily in the promotion of his work.  The other words were, "We'll offer you this amount of money." This is an opinion, not mine, but a general one shared by many who are insiders in the recording industry, and so is one based on knowledge. Although Bowie says that Let's Dance was never heard by EMI before the contract was signed is disputable. It is so disputable that the consensus is that EMI would NOT have signed him for what they did without hearing it first. Now, on the other hand, word is over at RCA, that had they heard Let's Dance, they would have made a "substantial" offer, realizing it had  commercial potential. The most probable situation is that Bowie is right, in that he didn't use Let's Dance as a bargaining tool, but wrong, as EMI did in fact hear it before the contract was signed. If so, then why did RCA not hear it? Simple, they were eliminated early, and the album was only going to be played at contract signing time. This was so the record company knew what they we're getting, just to make sure that it was not another Metal Machine Music.

Twelve years previous, in 1971, Bowie signed with RCA to a three record deal and was paid $115,000 with half of that sum going directly to Tony Defries. In 1969 Mercury Records got him for $15,000. The money was rumoured to between 10 to 17 million dollars for the five year, five album contract Bowie negotiated with EMI America. Geffen said that they could not afford him. RCA disputes this figure, they said it was closer to between 20, and 22 million. It doesn't really matter though, the point is THE REAL DAVID BOWIE just pocketed millions, and EMI America was in possession of the masters for Let's Dance. The word was, "GO," and THE REAL DAVID BOWIE went out that fucking door faster than Fripp on Up The Hill Backwards. By the beginning of February he was in Australia, with twelve year old Joey, and director David Mallet in tow. MTV. MTV. MTV. MTV MONEY MONEY MONEY MONEY MTV. MTV. MTV. MONEY MONEY MONEY MONEY MONEY 

I love "WATCHING" music. Yep, some friends come over, a few drinks, SOME REALLY GOOD FUCKING DRUGS, and we all sit around  the TELEVISION SET and "WATCH" music. Younger people don't know how easy they have it. They're spoiled. Hell, they never had all this great technology thirty years ago. I would have loved watching Station To Station, or Young Americans. Just the thought of turning on the TELEVISION SET and finding Subterraneans, A New Career In A New Town or Eight Line Poem really do strange things to me. I really can't quite describe it. It would be the sort of a feeling one would have if they turned on a high quality 52" TELEVISION SET and saw a commercial flogging Windows 98 software, made by Microsoft, with Fripp and Eno playing Heroes in the background. Think of Watch That Man. Garson, Ronson, Bowie, and Hilfiger on the 52" screen. Kids these days? We never got to WATCH music when I was growing up, we could only listen to it. We had to figure it all out for ourselves. These days, you don't even have to think. I wish I was that lucky. Videos are fantastic, in my humble, sorry, wrong word, I mean in my learned opinion. The intricacies that are a woven combination of tempo, time signatures, chord progression, key changes and rhythm, which make up the basics of most  "POP" songs, can be difficult to understand. Unlike a Roxy Music album, with Jobson on it, or a seventies Genesis album., Pop music is difficult to understand for most. The three chords, one guitar solo, and a fabricated entertainer wailing inane words from the dictionary, while  a computer plays a thousand digital musical sound replications takes a trained ear. Add a drum machine and a sequencer, you're looking at decades. This why MTV has been such a wonderful blight, er, I mean a saviour, to millions, as it presents helpful visual aids to those who need help understanding music. Like the guy who just posted his appreciation of his own "personal opinion " of Bowie on our news group, consisting of 70's listeners. It provided a much needed chuckle. 

Australia was where  Mallet and Bowie went to film two of these visual aids to promote Let's Dance. As far as music videos are concerned, Bowie's usually avoid the boy, and Silicone Sally theme, and are more representative of his work. The video for the song Let's Dance had an underlying theme about the plight of the indigenous people in Australia. China Girl had the usual boy/girl theme, however it did not come across as one. In addition to Bowie, the video featured Jee Ling, a Chinese model he was dating at the time. This is a brilliantly shot promo. Shot so well in fact, that it detracts you from the redundant "boy meets girl" theme, which is the plot in almost all other videos, and makes you focus in on the "artistic" aspects of it. If you can that is. The way the rice coming out of the bowl, and the break to the next scene is very well done. When shot where Bowie and Jee Ling are kissing, and the colour fades in is exquisite. There are lots of worthwhile scenes in that video. The ending of the video was a parody of the Burt Lancaster movie from Here To Eternity. Bowie's gay side is wonderfully depicted in this video, the "full" nudity of him and his boyfriend on the beach, kissing in the surf, got it banned. Now, not that this will do any good for those who  believe the "bisexual" story fed to Melody Maker, but here is how it went when Kurt Lodger joined Bowie later in Australia. Lodger, a well respected writer, and now an associate editor for Rolling Stone magazine, had been around Bowie forgoing on eleven years, first meeting him in 1972. Sitting one night over a few beers Bowie said, "It's no longer hip to be cool. The biggest mistake I ever made was telling that Melody Maker writer that I was bisexual. Christ, I was so young then." Bowie remained in Australia with Joey for a short period, purchasing a small ranch at the same time. The bomb was now built. 

The weapons of warfare change, the strategies do not. They have been in existence for thousands of years. There is a  common philosophy behind every offensive strategy however, and it reads like this. Strike with the most power you can when your enemy does not expect you, and they are caught off guard, weak and unprepared. 

March 16 - Press conference, tour announced
March 18 -  Let's Dance/Cat People released.
March 23 -  Public appearance when his art is displayed.
April 11 - Let's Dance album released world wide
May - China Girl/Shake It released
May 18 - Tour begins

BLITZKRIEG!
More coming............... No there isn't.
This is the last instalment of Images
Bye. 

Posted 24 December 2002

	



	


Part Fifty Five:  BOWIE - THE LUNACY YEARS
 
 The REAL DAVID BOWIE CHARACTER was made, and now it was time to build his world. Isolar was, more or less, was the command center, everything went through them. It was a massive effort, requiring contracting out all of the work, and Isolar found those contractors. Bruce Dunbar serves as Bowie's business representative, Gail Davis is his director of creative services and Wayne Forte is Bowie's booking agent. It's pretty straight forward actually. Here is the recipe. Take ONE REAL DAVID BOWIE, and book venues. You need: A band, a stage, lighting, costumes, instruments, sound equipment, lighting system, trucks, customs documents, and people to move it all to 90 gigs in 15 countries. Now, you draw up a plan to move it all. Now, get a couple of hundred people, and move them as well to 90 dates in 15 countries along with the equipment. Airline tickets for all of them, one charted jet for Bowie, passports, visas,  ground transportation, food, and a system to pay them. You need counterfeit proof tickets printed for each gig, counterfeit proof backstage passes, VIP and press lists drawn up, food and beverages backstage, security and contact the police in each city so they are aware of the event. The one to pay for all of this is Bill Zysblat, who owns the accounting firm, Sound Advice. This was the world to be built for the REAL DAVID BOWIE, and it had a name. It was called Serious Moonlight, and everything had to be paid up front. Some things could be done simultaneously, as they required time to construct, such as the stage. The call Mark Ravitz received gave him one day's notice to come and meet with David. Ravitz had made a name for himself as one of the best, and most innovative, stage designers in the business. The stage for the Serious Moonlight tour would not be indicative of his real capabilities. The most elaborate stage set up ever to go on the road at the time is though. That stage was the one used by Bowie in 1974, on the Diamond Dogs tour. The stage "concept" was Bowie's, and several days after the meeting Ravitz had a scale model built. Once the plans were approved. they were sent to FM Productions in San Francisco, who built the stage. The set was quite simple in design. It incorporated six skirted clear columns, a moon, and a hand with a finger pointing. The hand idea came from the logo for the most successful movie in history, E.T. The machine was running, time now to put it into high gear.
 
They served brandy and champagne cocktails that day at the Claridge Hotel in London. There were seventy five media representatives in the room anxiously waiting for Bowie to arrive. They would have something to write about soon. This was BIG NEWS, it was rumoured that David  Bowie was going to announce his "return." Those people did not realize however, that when the REAL DAVID BOWIE walked into that room, they had all been witnesses to a miracle. He was only ten minutes late. Bowie walked in, perched himself on a table and declared that he was going on tour, playing dates in Germany, America, France, Britain, Holland, naming off more of his schedule. "Fire away," was the invitation he gave to the media to ask their usually brilliant questions like, "What's your favourite Bowie album." It was due to the length of his absence that made this announcement truly big news, four years between albums, almost five between tours.  The attention by the press was incredible, "A Cracked Actor Makes Repairs," read one headline.  It worked. It REALLY REALLY WORKED this time. You can always trust the media to be stupid enough to believe Bowie, even after  his bisexuality, retirements, movies, plays films, autobiographies, political ambitions, marriages, and whatever other "truths" he's told to the press. Do they smarten up? Nope, they gobble it all up, and do it as fast and furious as garbage cans gobble up that "87 THING" he assaulted us with. They had lots to report on, and therefore wrote pages and pages of articles about the REAL DAVID BOWIE.  The articles basically all read the same, all of the "masks" were gone, there were no more "characters." All of the bullshit was gone, this was David Bowie straight, this was the real David Bowie. They were only partially right however. They were correct in the fact that this was THE REAL DAVID BOWIE only, as everything else they reported was incorrect. In my assessment the media are abnormally stupid. I say this because if you look at the previous tour in 78, it was advertised as presenting THE REAL DAVID BOWIE, as well.  I have always wondered, out of the two of them, if the media could tell me which  REAL DAVID BOWIE, is the real David Bowie? Once again, they printed everything that they were told by the REAL DAVID BOWIE. Unfortunately, the media was talking to a programmed piece of plastic. Out of all the roles Bowie has assumed, this one was the ultimate deception. This REAL DAVID BOWIE was pre planned, designed, and manufactured to purposely deceive." The purpose was to break into the "Pop" market, requiring a necessity to attract the "average" consumer. "  To do so Bowie had to appear like your "average" entertainer, and dispense with the "weirdness" he was associated with. So, to show the world what he was really like behind the "masks," a REAL DAVID BOWIE was fabricated.  This "CHARACTER" he assumed called "THE REAL DAVID BOWIE," worked on the "public," yet very few of his previous listeners were fooled by it. This is due to being around him, and his work for awhile. Looking at his past, and then looking at this REAL DAVID BOWIE, it became quite clear that it was all fake. If looking at it didn't reveal the extent of the illusion, then listening to it sure did. Bowie was interviewed in a number of high profile magazines, and on prominent radio stations, where he had an opportunity to project this image. The image was that of an "all around normal person," and an international entertainer. THE REAL DAVID BOWIE could be compared somewhat close as an entertainer to Frank Sinatra.
 
 Image consultants were hired to do some fine tuning to the REAL DAVID BOWIE before it was unleashed on the public. "The days of drink and drugs and kinky sex are past," said Bowie, "Now it's early to bed with a good book, daily workouts on the punching bag, proper meals, and the joys of single parenting." Yep, that's our Dave. Damn, what a clean living  role model for any decent person. David Bowie's an idiot. I mean, he missed the chance of a lifetime, think about it. He could have capitalized BIG TIME on this REAL DAVID BOWIE LIFESTYLE. How? SELF HELP BOOKS. Sure THE REAL DAVID BOWIE SYSTEM TO A HEALTHIER AND A HAPPIER LIFE,  THE REAL DAVID BOWIE NUTRITIONAL GUIDE,  THE REAL DAVID BOWIE EXERCISE VIDEO,  THE REAL DAVID BOWIE GUIDE TO WEALTH, that one would be written AFTER the tour. Good idea, eh? He could have pitched the stuff on Martha Stewart, Home Shopping Network, and later on Bowienet. Now, what's this about he got up, early of course, and he worked out? With what? A fucking punching bag. A punching bag?  Exactly how the Hell did they think anyone would swallow that. The Adrian Belew, David Byrne, Eddie Jobson Children's Nursery Rhymes, Christmas With Iggy, Learn The Alphabet With Klaus Nomi, The Sound Of Music -  Performed By The Cramps, are album titles I would believe, long before I would believe Bowie slipped on a pair of boxing gloves. Hold on though, I'm not saying that he couldn't have used them, as his boxing career wasn't progressing well. Out of his two professional fights he lost them both. In the first, George Underwood kicked his ass. Then, The Thriller In Berlin, with Lou Reed being the winner of that one. Word has it that Axyl Rose gave him a shot in the head too. He looked healthy, the well tanned look, the tan coming from an indoor sun lamp, is especially highlighted by the light blond hair. The Bowie that appeared in official photographs was all the work of image consultants. The pastel suits, bow tie, nice shoes were a costume. It was staged, and every detail was looked after, right down to removing Bowie's vice. Look at the photos from 83. Do you notice that something is missing? No? I noticed it quite by accident. Cigarettes? I may be wrong, but I have yet to see an official photo of THE REAL DAVID BOWIE, that is really the chain smoking real David Bowie, with a cigarette. On stage I only saw him light one once, and it was used as a "prop" during China Girl.
 
 If you notice all of a sudden in the first half of 83 David Bowie became the darling of the media. The coverage he got even BEFORE the tour commenced was massive. Why? How? Four years, no album, no tour in nearly five. Let me tell you how much interest there all of a sudden was. His booking agent, Wayne Forte, went to set up the first three weeks of the tour in Europe, and he described it as a "hard sell." He wanted outdoor venues and the promoters would not budge, "Bowie," they said, was an "indoor act. Reserved seating, for a older, well dressed audience." As much as he tried, the promoters would not change their minds, indoors, or NOTHING. Now, I believe the promoters had good prudent sound reasoning on their side. Think about it, what guarantee did they have. None. Look at the 78 tour and the average audience size. There was that, plus Bowie, absent for five years, the fact is that there was NOTHING Forte had to show these promoters that the attendance would be EVEN as big as 78, let alone larger. I would have done the same in their position, it was too big of a gamble, the risk was too high. The losses would have been staggering, and all absorbed by the promoters. So, indoor venues it was.  How big was Bowie? After the press conference was held to announce the venues, Forte received 250,000 requests, for the 44,000 seats available. Bowie was going OUTSIDE, it was a Stadium Tour now! The question is, "Where did all of these people come from?" They weren't just his seventies fans, there were seats left in venues seating 16,000 on the 78 tour. Some crowds in 76 numbered three thousand. These were "new" fans that filled in the gap, but how did they discover Bowie in his five year absence between 1978 and 1983? From buying Scary Monsters? Probably not, since it sold a staggering 347,000 copies. Maybe from the single, Ashes To Ashes? It didn't sell enough to reach Gold, at 500,000 copies. Let's Dance? One album may get you the popularity to go from playing dates in venues seating 16,000 to playing in 60,000 seat stadiums in SOME countries, but NOT world wide. So, where did these fans come from? Well, to put it plain and simple, they were "VICTIMIZED!"
 
 These "new" fans were the victims of the New York based Rogers and Cowan Corporation,  publicity, and public relations specialists. If you want hype and image, or to create a fad, a trend, or even an "ICON,"  then Rogers and Cowan will do it for you. They have a reputation world wide as being the very best publicity and public relations consultants that money can buy. Yep! Rogers and Cowan, now under contract with Isolar to build a marketable icon called  "A REAL DAVID BOWIE." In reality, Bowie took a pretty high risk not recording and being  absent from the stage for so long. Had he not walked that fine line between media existence and obscurity so well, by keeping his name out there "just enough," there was a good chance that he could have severely damaged his career to the degree that making a comeback could have been a terribly long arduous process, or even an impossible one. To illustrate my point, I'll ask you this. Suppose Let's Dance failed, and Serious Moonlight became an indoor 16,000 seat arena tour, with left over tickets for each date? That is the other side of the coin. Rogers and Cowan, as well as the image consultants who were hired, faced an enormous challenge. Bowie was basically a "nobody" in America, not just that however, he was a "Faggot with the red hair nobody."  They now had to take this "faggot with the red hair nobody," who had disappeared for five years, and sell it to the American mainstream conservative record buyer. You try that one. It was marketing genius what they did to create "A REAL DAVID BOWIE" that was sellable. The clothes and overall outward appearance of the REAL DAVID BOWIE creature was one thing, but the way that Bowie's absence for five years was used is quite another. Rather than look at Bowie's absence as being a detriment, they used it as their greatest weapon. This absence, first of all, had kept all the "Bowie is weird" editorials away from the public, as well as there were no "new incidences" to report of " Orange Hair Drug Crazed Alien Homosexual Creatures With Lipstick On Coming To Earth And Making Bizarre Noises Called Low."  People forget a lot in five years. A big plus, was that there would now be a whole "NEW SEGMENT" of record buyers who did not know Bowie five years ago, because they were too young  This segment would not know much of Bowie's past, so they would believe what they were "TOLD."  This absence was used too "erase" the past.
 
 There is an old strategy. It's called,
 
 "Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie.
 Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie.
 Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie.
 Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie.
 Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie..
 Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie. Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie.
 Lie, Lie, Lie, Lie," and it works.
 
 To help to change Bowie's reputation, and therefore the public's perception of him, here is what you do. You lie, just lie about the past by saying. "Well, I must be honest, I mean, I really made a big effort to come down to Earth, so to speak for this tour. It's, I mean, I am a good actor. And the characters I've presented in the past on-stage, they worked. They worked a bit too bloody well," said Bowie. Regarding the tour, "I won't be putting on any pose or stance. It will just be me." He went on to say how well it was all working, and had given him a whole new audience. In terms of characters, THE REAL DAVID was the most elaborate, this David Bowie was just your average person. All that "other" stuff was an act. Sure, he didn't mean any of it at all, he was acting. Hell, he couldn't believe it himself how good an acting job he did, looking at all of the people who fell for it. This strategy worked better than anyone ever could have dreamed possible. The image and the interviews were successful in altering the public perception of Bowie, the past was a "FAKE DAVID BOWIE," this was the "REAL DAVID BOWIE." The truth is however, that this REAL DAVID BOWIE, was a false image, contrived, designed by Bowie with the aid of marketing consultants with the sole intention of creating a facade that would be palatable to mainstream America. This character was the furthest thing from reality that ever existed. His absence was played to the fullest. DAVID BOWIE DIED, AND HE HAS RISEN. The hype was truly befitting the Second Coming Of Jesus Christ. Most, knowing little about Bowie had no reason not to believe the press releases. They touted him as the greatest entertainer who ever lived. How was your average record buyer to know that his albums did not sell in the past. The FIVE YEAR absence was made to seem more like FIVE THOUSAND YEARS! He was made to appear as a BIG STAR BEFORE HE LEFT, and as ROYALTY on his return. THE REAL DAVID BOWIE, a world class international mainstream entertainer. Bowie as a single parent was used to alter is reputation as well. Here was David, no longer some weird space creature, but a loving and caring father. His son's name  was reported now to be Joey instead of Zowie, Duncan in reality and for the first time Bowie allowed them to be photographed together. One stipulation though, Joey could only be photographed from the back for security reasons. Joey's main caregiver was his nanny, Marion, however David had been spending a lot of time with him in the daddy role during this period. This role would continue as well, for as much time as could be allocated to it, and it was a priority to David.
 
 THREE YEARS IN THE MAKING, DAVID BOWIE'S NEW ALBUM!
 
 It took eighteen days to make really.
 
 HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS! HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS!
 HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS! HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS!
 HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS! HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS!
 HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS! HYPE! FIRST ALBUM IN THREE YEARS!
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 HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE!
 HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE!
 HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE!
 HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE!
 HYPE! HYPE! HYPE! HYPE!
 
 Did it work?
 
 Albums are never released world wide, they have a North American release date, a European release date, and so forth.  Why? Well, you release the album in one market first and you watch the reception to it. If it does not meet expectations, then you can alter your marketing strategy before you release any further copies, and before entering another market. Also, if you think about it, the standard is that you put out a new album FIRST, then you announce a tour. EMI's marketing department, along with publicity agents Rogers And Cowan, decided on a different approach. The tour was announced FIRST, on March 16, and the opening date scheduled for May 18. The RETURN OF BOWIE, this got the ball rolling. The whole marketing scheme was orchestrated brilliantly. You see, if you got the people clamouring for tickets to see the SECOND COMING, it was only natural that they would snap up the new album. If you were going to see Bowie, you were going to buy his album. So, they kept Let's Dance in the can for almost a month after the tour was announced. There was NO LIMITED RELEASE. The bomb was dropped everywhere at once on April 11, 1983, the day EMI released Let's Dance WORLD WIDE. To tell you how effective the pre release hype was, here is a little known fact. Due to advance orders EMI recouped ALL of the estimated $17 t0 $22 million they paid to sign Bowie BEFORE LET'S DANCE WAS RELEASED. There you have it, Bowie didn't cost EMI America one cent. The brilliant minds over at Rogers And Cowan made Bowie the hottest item in town LONG BEFORE Let's Dance ever hit the shelves, and long before one date was ever played on the 83 tour. Oh, I forgot. The band. Bowie needed a band. This is a story and a half.
 
 Bowie needed to assemble a backing band to accompany him on the Serious Moonlight tour, but there was a problem, and it had to do with musicians.  It was in fact becoming difficult for him to find musicians. Why? Well, there were many who refused to tour with him because of the pay. Several musicians from the 78 tour, Belew for one, were invited to by Bowie to join the 83 tour. Now, on the 78 Heroes tour the musicians were paid $2,000.00 each per week, plus expenses. They were offered $1,000.00 per week, plus expenses and bonus, to join the Serious Moonlight tour.  So, as you can see, Bowie was gracious enough to offer those musicians from the 78 tour, a nice FIFTY PERCENT PAY CUT, to come along in 83. On the Serious Moonlight tour did you see anyone from the band in 78? No? Now you know why. Bowie wanted experience on the tour, so he turned first to Carlos Alomar, his band leader. Alomar first played live with Bowie on the second leg of the  Diamond Dogs tour, from September to December 1974. He accompanied Bowie on the Station To Station tour in 76, and again on the Heroes tour in 78. You can bet your ass however, that Alomar, as band leader, fared better in pay, or, like the offer to play on Let's Dance, if the money was too low, he too would have refused the offer to tour. Some of the session musicians who played on Let's Dance were approached for the tour, and also turned down the offer because of money. There were others who did not. With Alomar were Steve Elson, Stan Harrison, Larry Pickett (saxophones),  Dave LeBolt (keyboards)  Carmine Rojas (bass)  George Simms (backing vocals)  Frank Simms (backing vocals) and Tony Thompson (drums). There was supposed to be a Stevie Ray Vaughn in there someplace as well. 
 
 Asked at a press conference
 
 Question: "Who is the band?
 
 Bowie:  I've got Carlos Alomar on guitar- on rhythm guitar. Tony Thompson from Chic on drums, a guitarist from Texas called Stevie Ray Vaughan. If you think Jimmy Page is modern, he stopped at about Albert King."
 
 Question: Why did you sign with EMI?
 
 Bowie: "Because I don't like RCA. And they didn't like me! I think I released several very interesting, intelligent and important albums on RCA which they didn't seem to have much time for. 'Lodger' was very much one of them, yeah. 'Low' and 'Heroes' were two others. I just thought it was time to move on, and I forgot about it." 
 
 The second question I threw in for fun.
 
 So, what happened to Vaughn? Well, "the young Mr. Stevie Ray Vaughn and his career," according to Bowie. "That was most unbecoming to all of us. That was quite a shock. I was absolutely - God, I was so pissed off about it. That really pissed me off. It's not Stevie's fault. I think he's got a manager problem. What an extraordinary man his manager was. I couldn't believe him. He was a cartoon of a manager. I mean, he really was something else. I thought it was a cheap trick he tried to pull on us, and I just wasn't gonna stand for it. There was no way I was I was gonna be kind of - almost blackmailed into that kind of situation. I thought that was a very desperate thing to do." There you go. An EVIL, KNIFING, UNSCRUPULOUS, UNDERHANDED, GREEDY manager, who attempted to use dirty tricks and BLACKMAIL David Bowie was the problem. As expected, Bowie was aghast that someone could stoop so low, and to do this to such a fair minded person as himself. I mean, just the thought. Do you have any idea what this HORRIBLE MANAGER did? He told Bowie that there was no way that Stevie Ray Vaughn was going on that tour, and be paid MINIMUM WAGE according to the Musician's Union scale. That BLACKMAILER had the nerve to actually represent his client. That "cartoon of a manager" pulled a "cheap trick," and turned down Bowie's more than generous MINIMUM wage offer. How underhanded, eh? As Bowie said, "he really was something else."  The negotiations did not end there however, as the BEAST still tried to reach an agreement with Bowie. The rehearsals for the tour started in a small studio in Manhattan, and Vaughn was among the musicians present. The band then moved to a communications complex in Las Colinas, Texas,  located between Dallas and Fort Worth. The complex was designed to serve as a movie studio, and therefore housed several sound stages. Using one of these sound stages they erected the entire working set for the tour so they could conduct full dress rehearsals. When we attend a Bowie gig, few of us give much thought to what is "REALLY HAPPENING" on the stage we're looking at, we're just enjoying what we see and hear. Happy just to be there. It is a much different situation ON STAGE than you imagine however. We like to think that the musicians can relax, have fun, let loose, and it's not really hard work on stage. This is not true however, it is in fact the complete opposite. Do you know what Carlos Alomar hears on stage? Well? "All I can hear is Tony's drums, and Carmine's bass, some of the horns, and a bit of keyboards." This is why the rehearsals are at first done in stages. The first to rehearse are the rhythm section, bass, drums, rhythm guitar and percussion. After the rhythm section has the timing perfected, keyboards are added, and then lead guitar. Even in rehearsal the lead guitar and keyboard can't hear each other. Then the horns and vocalists figure out where they fit in. While this is happening the computerized lighting system is being programmed. I will say that the accuracy, and split second timing of the lighting effects in 83 were MAGNIFICENT! I was really impressed. Anyway, if no one can hear each other on stage, how do the songs get performed with such professionalism? What ties it all together? There is one answer to that question, and it all comes down to ONE THING. David Bowie. There is your answer. Although YOU do not see it sitting in the audience, Bowie holds everything on stage together, and it works by using him as a focal point to co co-ordinated what is happening on stage to make everything cohesive. There is an ongoing dialogue between Bowie and Alomar on stage that you will never see, and also a continuing one  between Alomar and the band. This "secret communication system" is how everything is co co-ordinated, and how instructions are passed along. If a problem arises on stage, YOU will rarely notice it, however all who are on stage are informed of it. Do you want to know how it's done? Okay. Listen to Carlos Alomar, he will explain it to you.
 
 Now, according to Alomar, Bowie is used for timing. "Just looking at David, and keying in on him, that's about it," he said, and, "When I'm doing a show, I'm wide awake, looking at David's lips all the time, reading his lips, because I can't hear him at all." Alomar is responsible for the band as well so he has "to look back and forth at the other guys to make sure they're not having any problems." This is done sometimes by watching which chords are played. Alomar explains that if, " the drummer drops a beat, and they go out on a B chord and he drops a B, it might be because he broke a drumstick, or broke a snare, or his foot pedal broke and a roadie's fighting to get it back before the next beat." Bowie's instructions are communicated in normal gestures, and that way they appear as part of the show. If Bowie drops his hand, blinks, or moves his head a certain way, then you think nothing of it. Quite often in fact, these are signals, the movements actually "MEAN" something, and are Bowie's way of passing along instructions to Alomar, who then passes them along to the band. How does Alomar manage to "talk" to the band, considering the noise, and the fact that he has a guitar in his hand and happens to be playing as well? Put it this way, that guitar does a lot more in Alomar’s hand than just make sound. He explains, " The cues I give back are with the neck of my guitar. I pull it up, I pull it back, or down. Tempo back, tempo down. Everybody is grooving off the rhythm section. But they watch me. If I pull my guitar neck to the left, that means cut it off before time.  If I pull the neck down, that means cut it off." I am getting ahead of myself here, but I want to say this before I forget. Fuck I forget.
 
 Give me a minute....................................
 Just a minute, it'll come.................................
 What was I talking about again?
 Where was I.................................?
 
 AladINsaNE
 
 More to come, if I remember that is.

	Posted  1 January 2003

	 

	 


Part Fifty Six,  BOWIE - THE LUNACY YEARS

Vaughn was in Texas rehearsing. At the same time his insane manager was trying to defraud Bowie, attempting to con him for more than minimum wage. 

It was all smiles however over at EMI America. I have often wondered what the mood was like over at RCA Records And Tapes about now. If you try you can just imagine the delight. All those years. Hundred thousand dollar unauthorized hotel bills, unauthorized advertising bills of a half a million, paid all of MainMan debts, gave Bowie $300,000.00, and all for 8,941,704 records sold in America, over the course of ELEVEN YEARS. To further add to their woes, Iggy, Low, Heroes, Metal Machine Music, and Tony Defries were still fairly recent memories. Then there's Bowie's bullshit to top it all off. To then sit there and watch Let's Dance rise up the charts like a thermometer in Hell? Lovely. It was faster than a thermometer in Hell actually, it was as fast as I can grab a can of insecticide,  at the mere mention of the word "spider."  This is only rumour, but apparently Jesus hit the record store half an hour after it opened, and all he got was his name on a backorder list.  It took two weeks before he got a copy of Let's Dance. Oh, I hear he paid scalper price for his ticket to boot. 

EMI hadn't seen anything like it since The Beatles, and the day they released Sgt. Pepper. Nothing on that label even came close to the numbers that started to accumulate on April 11th, 1983. Let's Dance, number one in Britain, and five in the States. A hit in Europe, Australia, Asia, Canada, Venus, Mars, Antarctica, Scandinavia, Heaven, Hell, and on several billion life sustaining planets in the far reaches of outer space. Bowie wanted to break into the American market, and he made a ripple with Young Americans, at near a million, and a little splash with Changesone at 1.3 million. Let's Dance was a tsunami, a tidal wave, OVER FIVE AND A HALF MILLION in album sales. God only knows what the combined singles sold, China Girl, Modern Love, Let's Dance and Cat People. Did I forget any? I have tried to get those sales figures for the past eighteen years, and have come up empty handed, no luck, none. Anyway, the whole thing had gone absolutely crazy, album sales, singles, the videos splashed all over the despicable MTV, your watch the music channel. Did this cause Rogers And Cowan to ease off a bit on the publicity, or EMI on the promotion?  Are you out of your mind, they were just starting. The tour was coming up, so the real assault was about to be launched, all of this was only phase one, the first wave. Time to assemble and train the "Special Forces," or  "Advance Teams," as they called them. They would be sent in before Bowie. 

All was well in the world, with the minor exception of a tiny piece of windswept ground in Texas, where there was a nuclear war in progress. The war wasn't really confined to that one location actually, minor crises sprung up all over the place. Now, I know a lot about mental disorders, because I come in contact with people. However, this time you can come up with the diagnosis, and decide who is insane,  Bowie, or THE MANAGER FROM HADES. Now, do you remember that inept, "comic book" manager of Vaughn's, that Bowie referred to. Remember, how "shocked" Bowie was by this man's ghastly behavior? If you recall, Bowie just "couldn't believe" this guy, especially when the tactics he used were akin to "BLACKMAIL."  That was when Bowie said he put his foot down, he wasn't going to have any of that, implying that this manager abused his good will. How many sides does a coin have? Two? Good. We have just heard tales, so let's flip it over and hear the other side. If you ever need a manager, I have heard that one of the best places to look for one is in a comic book, apparently that is where Stevie Ray Vaughn's manager came from. This wasn't the first time this man had used his negotiating skills. The man Bowie had gone on about in great lengths, to describe as basically a back woods hillbilly , and a poor excuse for a manager. 

Well now, I'm going to let you in on a little something.  This supposed two bit shyster of a manager Vaughn apparently had, was one smart hillbilly. Bowie was right however, when he said that the guy was "unbelievable," as he had just negotiated an extremely lucrative deal for Stevie Ray Vaughn with CBS Records. Unfortunately, the fair minded David Bowie is not like CBS Records. The negotiations were stressful, long hours, bickering, all the legal jargon, offers made, countered, more stipulations, refusals, acceptance, stalemates, too much, too little, no way, lawyers, accountants, advisors, and  BULLSHIT! STRESS! STRESS! STRESS! Stevie's manager was firm on one point. Vaughn would not accept minimum wage to tour with Bowie. The second point was negotiable, and that was to allow Vaughn and his band Double Trouble, to  open some of the dates on the US leg of the tour. Bowie said yes at first, and then a firm no, Vaughn and his band were no longer on the table. Now, the MONEY. Vaughn's manager was much more successful in getting Bowie to raise his offer of money, than he was in getting Vaughn's band in as back up. This, I believe, is where Bowie felt he was getting blackmailed, in the salary negotiations.  Now, this may  be difficult for you to follow, as I am going to go into a lot of detail concerning these meetings. I am doing this so you can see first hand what a bargaining session is like, when dealing with David Bowie.  I  will be using some difficult language, the sort that is used in sensitive negotiations of this sort. Please try to follow me if you can. I am sorry if you get lost, but I wanted to be accurate. This is a rare treat for you, as you will get an insiders perspective of David Bowie actually working a business deal. 

Let me set the stage here.

Bowie has made Vaughn's manager an offer of compensation for Vaughn to tour. The offer consists of the following: 

1) A salary that is equal to minimum wage on the union scale. This comes out to roughly $1,000.00 per week 

2) Living expenses paid. 

3) Travel expenses paid 

4) A daily cash allowance for "pocket" money 

5) Mid tour bonus 

6) End of tour bonus 

Are we okay so far? 

Vaughn's manager responded on behalf of his client, agreeing in principle to points two through six  The stumbling block was point one. Stevie Ray Vaughn would not move past the rehearsal stage for a salary this low. If you carefully consider the situation here,  you will realize something. Vaughn did NOT need to go on this tour to survive, the CBS contract  had made him financially secure for the present time, very secure, so this was not a "need work for the essentials of life" situation.. The Bowie angle was, "We are giving Vaughn a great opportunity" Oh, damn it! I AM SO SORRY! I do apologize, how rude can I be? Vaughn's manager has a name. It's  Chesley Milliken. Okay, check this out. "That album wound up on Epic Records, but the label hadn't even pressed it when David Bowie, hoping the Texan's fiery leads would help revive his career, asked Vaughan to play guitar on Let's Dance. Sure enough, the record rocketed up the charts, and Vaughan was catapulted into the spotlight ? and out of his natural element. Still, the crowd back home loved to see one of their own succeed. "Hell, we were jumping up and down, skipping down the street." That WAS NOT Chesley Milliken. speaking, in fact it was Jimmie Vaughn, Stevie Ray's older brother.  "There was my little brother on a number one hit, playing just as loud as shit all over the record. It was an exciting time." Tommy Shannon, who was the bass player in Vaughn's band Double Trouble  adds, "He and David Bowie were good friends,  and he really respected Bowie and his music. After being pressured to join the touring band, he finally said he'd do it." This is not a matter of record, it comes from knowing Bowie's character, and his demeanour. I would like to add that Stevie Ray might have considered Bowie and himself to be "good friends," and it may have appeared that way to others, but the chances are that was all it really was, appearances. "It's just the power to charm," is a line from Modern Love, and it provides a very  accurate description of one of David Bowie's greatest personality traits. He has charisma, and it comes from his "power to charm." David Bowie is charming. The attention you receive when talking to him is perceived as concern, as though he has a "genuine interest" in what you have to say. Polite, soft spoken, gentle, and you will never feel as though you are inferior, or being "talked down" to. When you are around Bowie, YOU are made to feel IMPORTANT. The names on the list of those who have MISTAKEN this "charm" for actual friendship, numbers in the thousands. Bowie makes people "feel close," or "let in" is a better phrase, however the truth is that they are not. Bowie guards himself, and in all of these years only a handful have ever gained the status of "Friend." Bowie trusts only a handful of people, and this is proven by the number which actually manage to stay in his life for any length of time. Robert Goodall? Is this name familiar? Probably not, and if it has surfaced in any "Bowie Biographies," I unaware of them. Business wise, no person is closer to Bowie than Goodall. More on him later. Iggy, Coco, Eric Idle, the late Marc Bolan and John Lennon, Mick Jagger, Tony Visconti, Lou Reed, Iman and a few others are the closest. I know that Liz Taylor and Bette Middler were close, and may still be, I don't know if they still are. Oona Chaplin, Charlie's wife, as well. It is doubtful that Stevie Ray Vaughn was considered a "real" friend by Bowie, as he too was probably one of the "charmed." 

One name that was absent on the list was Chesley Milliken, as he was not among those who were "charmed" by David Bowie. He was instead becoming quite AGGRAVATED. Bowie's representatives appeared "shocked" at his request for Vaughn to receive more than minimum wage as a salary.  It was an uncompromising state of affairs by now. Time to push, pull, give, threaten, shove, relent, soothe, hit, and apply all the other wonderful tactics needed to win in a "successful" negotiating campaign. First however you attack, then retreat, and you wait. You wait to see what retaliation there is levelled at you in return. Milliken attacked. He said "no" to the offer, based on the money offered. That was it. Offer more, or fuck off basically, and he left. It was now Bowie's team holding the ball. 

Silence. Nothing. Make Milliken wait. Did he blow it? Was another offer coming? What is happening? What? Let Milliken sweat. Will there be a telephone call? 

Finally. 

Ring! Ring! Can we talk? Milliken's reply, "Let me see. I'll get back to you." 

A returned call. Another meeting. 

Vaughn did not need the money, but he needed the money. Was that a typo? Nope.  Vaughn would gain NOTHING financially either way from going on the Serious Moonlight tour, as he was not going to earn any money for himself, he was going to do it for others. Remember? Stevie Ray Vaughn had his own band, Double Trouble. If Vaughn toured with Bowie, what about them? Well, this little story should tell you a lot about Stevie Ray Vaughn.  So his band would not be adversely effected financially by him being away, Vaughn was going to keep THE ENTIRE BAND ON SALARY WHILE HE TOURED WITH BOWIE, and pick up where they left off upon his return. 

Bowie's corner had thought about things a bit. Minimum wage? Well, having taken a serious look, plus all things considered, Bowie told his representatives that this offer may not be enough after all.  To show a real desire to settle, and to demonstrate good faith, David Bowie was now willing to offer a lot more money to Stevie Ray Vaughn. This however, would be their final offer. It was a lot, and  MORE than fair, but since it was Stevie, they'd be willing to go this far. The offer hit the table. 

It is impossible to imagine the complete and total look of disbelief that must have swept across the face of Chesley Milliken, as he sat stunned, his mouth agape, and in total silence. Too amazed to even shake his head, too overwhelmed to speak as he gazed at the offer. The numbers that he saw in the new proposal must have been beyond comprehension to him. He would have wrestled with himself in an attempt to sort out what he saw. What did it say? Three hundred dollars per show? Hundred? Per show? No. No way, not a chance. Three thousand per show? Three thousand per week? A hundred what? 

Three hundred.

Three and two Zero's

3 - 0 - 0

Dollars?

You mean, $?

Three hundred dollars a show.

Chesley Milliken looking across that table saw no one was laughing. I can see him being completely fascinated at how Bowie's people could fucking keep a straight face. Surely no one could ever in a million years expect him to take any of this seriously. I mean, c'mon, get real, and all this time Bowie's people are perplexed, trying to understand this strange behavior they are witnessing. It is, after all,  an odd way to respond to such a genuine display of generosity. Is there something wrong? What is there that Chesley Milliken doesn't understand? Speak for goodness sake. You want Stevie Ray Vaughn to work for $300.00 a show? They wanted Stevie Ray Vaughn to work for $300.00 a show? Right? Gee? Well, FUCK YOU, were the basic sentiments expressed by Milliken as he departed for a more hospitable environment, like Nagasaki was perhaps, the day it was nuked. Those fucking idiots were serious. What a Godamn insult. This man had just signed a lucrative personal recording contract with CBS Records. The Serious Moonlight tour required a solid commitment. Now, even though he did not have to, Stevie Ray Vaughn WAS WILLING TO MAKE THAT COMMITMENT, and this meant PUTTING HIS OWN CAREER ON HOLD FOR OVER ONE FULL YEAR, and for being prepared to make that sacrifice, Bowie would reward him with a whole $300.00 per show. What's more, when Milliken and Vaughn refused the whole $300.00, Bowie accused them of trying to BLACKMAIL HIM! Then the unthinkable happened, the worst thing imaginable, and the makings of a  public relations nightmare started to unfold. Vaughn and his management went to the media. 

More Blah, Blah later.............................

Posted 7 January 2003

	 


Part Fifty Seven: BOWIE - THE LUNACY YEARS 

	How dare they?

The media?

Do they have ANY IDEA how much a REAL DAVID BOWIE costs? Now they want to tarnish it? This was a worst case scenario. 

Chesley Milliken and  Stevie Ray Vaughn could care less, this was bullshit, and they called a press conference and spilled it all.  Here was a guy who just pocketed over TWENTY MILLION DOLLARS, and wanted people to work for him for a few peanuts above minimum wage. It was true, and the media printed every word. The press conference was not intended as a bargaining tool either, to try to persuade Bowie to cough up more cash. The dealings between Bowie and Vaughn were finished, as far at Vaughn was concerned, as he was so pissed off by the treatment he received that there was no way he was going on any tour with Bowie. The press conference was intended for one thing only, and that was to set the record straight. So, how do you find your way out of this one? I mean, this couldn't possibly be the REAL DAVID BOWIE, the one they were talking about in the press? He wouldn't treat people this way. That's right, he wouldn't, so shift the blame. Feed Carlos Alomar to the media; he was the "band leader," let him take the heat. First the press releases. They stated that no one contested the fact that Stevie Ray Vaughn had played brilliantly on Let's Dance. However, at the rehearsals there was a "slight tension in the air," that suggested  that he was not entirely suited to be a team player behind a "Superstar" for a world tour, especially after his "attractive CBS Record deal." Hmmm? Does this sound like a guy who was willing to put his career, and the full pay out from an "attractive CBS Record deal" on hold, just to tour with Bowie. It was a hastily arranged press conference, where a very embarrassed looking Carlos Alomar equated the situation with Vaughn to "kinda like a time bomb." Interesting how this all just popped up out of nowhere isn't it? Even though the CBS contract was signed, there was no mention earlier of any problems with Vaughn during the  Serious Moonlight rehearsals when the negotiations were taking place. How convenient. This was all well and good but there was one question which remained unanswered. The money, what about the money? Was what Vaughn said true, or was it not true? They asked Alomar directly. "We are looked after quite well, and get mid and end tour bonuses," he said. So what. Was Vaughn's story true? Alomar refused to give any specifics. The press conference was over. Several years later it was Vaughn's version of events that proved to be correct. The important thing however is that Bowie escaped. 

The paperwork for the Serious Moonlight tour involved the signing of around four hundred contracts. Vaughn's would not be one of them. One thing good came out of this however, for Bowie listeners. The rehearsal sessions, along with every performance on the tour is taped from the sound board. Band meetings are held on the road in two sessions, with half the band at each one, to listen to these tapes. These sessions are designed to critique the performance of each band member, and not the overall performance itself. It is impossible to gauge the overall quality of a gig from these tapes, as they lie according to Alomar. The band listens to the gig on four Aiwa speakers pushing 1000 watts, and these can't begin to match the true power of the sound coming from the stage. For example, if you drape a towel over Tony Thompson's monitor, the sound is so powerful that it will blow the towel out at a forty five degree angle. Also, tapes made from the board do not reflect the conditions at outdoor venues, crowd noise, or the ambience in a closed venue. Carlos Alomar is personally responsible for these tapes, and they are carefully guarded. "It's my ass if they get lost," he said. Now, Bowie may have put on those boxing gloves of his, only to find Carlos Alomar to be a more menacing opponent than he first thought, because one of those tapes did get "lost," and Alomar still seems to be all there. The recording that went astray is a sound board recording of a rehearsal session for the Serious Moonlight tour, made in Las Colinas, Dallas on the 27th April 1983. This is not only a SPLENDID bootleg with regards to quality, but it is also one that is quite historically significant as well. This is due to the fact that it was recorded during the salary negotiations between Milliken and Bowie, therefore Vaughn had yet to depart from the band. This bootleg happens to be the only recording in existence, outside of the "VAULTS" that is, of Stevie Ray Vaughn and Bowie live. I am a lover of rehearsal bootlegs, 76, 83, 87 are what I have, and I believe that there are recordings of the rehearsals for the 74 and 90 tours as well.  Now, this is my opinion here, but the Las Colinas bootleg is a gem, because of all the errors. Bowie is so professional and mistake free on stage, that I find it to be a wonderful experience to see him "less." This is one reason that the video shot of the afternoon rehearsal session on February 2nd, 1976  is so precious to me. Rehearsal bootlegs can also be rather saddening, because you get to hear what was left out. The 83 bootleg has Wild Is The Wind on it, and this is one song that I have yet to hear performed live at any Bowie concert I have attended. It is also disheartening to hear 1984,  All The Madmen, Because You're Young, and Scream Like A Baby that were ditched in 87, at any gig I saw anyway. 

I am not alone in my opinion of the 83 rehearsal bootleg either, as it appears that His Majesty also found it to be quite good. 

Question: Have you heard the bootlegs for the rehearsals of your Serious Moonlight tour with Stevie Ray Vaughan? 

David Bowie: "Yes, you mean the album called the "Hawk And The Dove?" It came straight from the sound board, the mix is very odd... but its still a rather fab memento of that period, I think. I bought my bootleg in Japan in 1990. I will sue ANYbody else who tries to buy it..." 

Now, this is where Bowie can be really  stupid. Look, he PAID FOR THE FUCKING THING. Why? All he had to do was email me, I could have burned it for him for free. We could have started trading. I have lots to trade, and he has the studio outakes for the Station To Station and Young Americans sessions, which I do not just want, but I WILL FUCKING KILL FOR! So, Dave, if you read this, email me, Let's Trade. For any of you who are interested, here is the track listing for the 83 rehearsal boot: 

 Disc One
         01 Star
         02 Heroes
         03 What In The World
         04 Look Back In Anger
         05 Joe The Lion
         06 Wild Is The Wind
         07 Golden Years
         08 Fashion
         09 Let's Dance
         10 Red Sails
         11 Breaking Glass
         12 Life On Mars
         13 Sorrow
         14 Cat People
         15 China Girl
         16 Scary Monsters
         17 Rebel Rebel
         18 I Can't Explain
         19 White Light White Heat

 Disc Two
         01 Station To Station
         02 Cracked Actor
         03 Ashes To Ashes
         04 Space Oddity
         05 Young Americans
         06 Soul Love
         07 Hang Onto Yourself
         08 Fame
         09 TVC 15
         10 Stay
         11 The Jean Genie
         12 Modern Love
         13 Interview

Pssst!  Psssst!
Hey.
Hey you.
Want an airplane?
Cheap.
Bowie?
Frightened?

Not frightened, the word is "TERRIFIED." Just getting on an airplane causes him to hyperventilate. He not only turns pale, but he sweats profusely. He rarely remembers a takeoff, due to the fact that they literally "put him out," in his words. You see, he faints. This is the reason that Bowie always travelled Trans Atlantic by ocean liner, it was because of his deeply rooted fear of flying. His tours were arranged so air travel would never be required, it was a boat, a train or a limousine. The 83 tour however would be different. The Alien would finally fly. Now, to hear how he puts it is nothing short of a riot. When asked why he chose to "bite the bullet" and fly to the destinations on the tour,  instead of travelling by his normal means, Bowie said this, "I had put myself in a situation where I might of had to let somebody down." This meant that if he did not fly, then he could not have done enough performances to satisfy all of his fans, and some would have missed out. In simple terms, HE DID IT FOR YOU. Yes he did, David Bowie put himself through the worst Hell imaginable just for you. What a terrific person to make such a personal sacrifice on behalf of his fans. Bowie and Jesus seem to have a lot in common if you go by what he says. Bowie, and the truth however, are quite a  different matter, because the truth is that it all had to do with the logistics of the tour. Logistics? Okay then, MONEY. 

No matter what THE REAL DAVID BOWIE says, the decision to use a plane had NOTHING AT ALL to do with pleasing his fans. It all came down to cash. This tour Bowie and the band had to travel THREE MILLION, SEVEN HUNDRED and EIGHTY SEVEN THOUSAND MILES with 177 pieces of luggage weighing 7,788 pounds. Now, that is just the band. A total of 12,245 people were briefly employed by the 83 tour, and 9,457 hotel rooms were filled. The equipment that had to be hauled from venue to venue weighed 64,000 pounds. It was explained to Bowie during the planning stages of the tour that an extremely large amount of cash could be saved if the band flew. Not only that either, they could play more venues on top of the cost savings. Bowie by now had been eyeing the massive tours mounted by The Rolling Stones, and how much they had been raking in. He wanted the same. If more money could be made by flying, then he would fly, but only on the right plane. Brent Silver, who used to be employed by The Federal Aviation Administration, was given the task of finding a suitable airplane to be used on the tour. To find parties interested in bidding on the contract, letters were sent out to the major airline charter companies, inviting them to submit competitive bids. Background checks were done when the field was narrowed down to twelve companies, and the records of each company were carefully examined. Next were the planes themselves. Brent Silver flew out to the location of each of the twelve bidding companies, to have a look at each of the planes personally. While he was there he had every engine ripped apart and inspected for any safety concerns. A Boeing 707 was chosen for the tour, and the only identifying markings on it were the word "JET," written in black letters on the tail. The plane came to be referred to by its passengers, as "JET 24." In my opinion Bowie screwed up here too, and I say this because rather than find a pilot for the plane, Bowie could have learned to fly it himself. I mean he did learn to play the cello for The Hunger, what's the difference. Think of all the cash he could have saved. 

Earl Slick, "Slicky," was called in to replace Stevie Ray Vaughn. The rehearsal sessions lasted two weeks in total, where the band learned thirty five songs. Slick had four days. Just one more detail to take care of. "I had seen a musical called Zoot Suit," Bowie explains, "and I was very impressed by the clothes the actors wore. Then I went to see La Boheme at the Met, and I was equally impressed by those clothes. And, lo, and behold, it was the same guy who designed them both, Peter Hall." Anyway, you can take it from here. Bowie tracked down Peter Hall. The band probably "got him" after the tour was finished, so I imagine he is probably deceased by now. Heaven help all of mankind, The Serious Moonlight tour was almost ready to hit the road. 

The Serious Moonlight tour opened in Brussels, but I want to leave that for now and skip ahead. Why? Well, because I have a really cool story I think you will appreciate, and truthfully, I really don't want to fucking wait to tell it to you, I want to do it now. Are there any objections? Are you positive? Okay, fine then, off I go. Jet 24 was at thirty thousand feet, having just left Quebec City, Bowie's first date on the North American leg of the tour, where he pulled in 14,400 fans, breaking the previously held house record at the Colisee de Quebec by over three thousand. Bowie had a book in his hand, and he was reading a portion out of it to the band that recounted a story of how an entire jury sat through a trial before admitting they were all deaf. The title of the book was, "The Book Of Failures" "Heard of the Not Terribly Good Club Of Great Britain?", asked Bowie laughing. Steve Elson jumped in and said, "You should do a book of rock and roll failures." To which Bowie replied, "I'd have to start with The Legendary Stardust Cowboy." Then leaning forward Bowie sang, "I took a trip on a Gemini space ship, and I thought about you - oo."  Bowie went on, "That guy was incredible. I took the name Ziggy Stardust from The Legendary Stardust Cowboy. His only venue was a Burger joint in Lubbock, Texas, and he was virtually ignored as he stood on the hood of his car and howled. He really did. He recorded two 45 singles for Mercury Records, and the Mercury person who recorded him was called on the carpet pretty damn quick. But, The Legendary was the first cosmic rocker." 

I remember I told you the name of the company which manufactured JET 24, that was Boeing. I told you it was a 707, right? I don't think I told you what  model the plane was, did I? No, come to think of it I didn't. 

JET 24 was a Boeing 707 Starship. 
I thought that was fucking really cool. 
I'll get back to Brussels next, I promise.
Yeah, sure Mr. Sane. 

AladINsane 

Yeah, yeah, quit crying, there's more..........................
 Posted 10 January 2003
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